
{V Prosser 
« Memorial Health 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

Board Packet 
October 29, 2020 

Whitehead Conference Room 



Vision " ‘  P Values 
Patients ‘ r 0  8 S e r Accountability 
EmP'Wees I! M e m o ri 0! H eolth 5'3”?“ 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services ’ ‘ Respect 
Financial MISSlon: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2020 

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

COMMISSIONERS: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D. 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Susan Reams 
Keith Sattler 
Brandon Bowden 
Neilan McPartIand 

GUESTS: 

. CALL TO ORDER 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 

. SERVICES 
A. Replacement Facility Update (Attachment E,F,G,H) 

1. New Hospital Visioning (Attachment D) 
2. Construction Method (Attachments I, H, I-2) 
3. Design Update 

B. 2021 Strategic Planning (Attachment A,B,C,D) 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
A. PMH Retirement Plan (Attachment V) 
B. LEM Scorecard (Attachment Y) 

. ADJOURN 

October 27, 2020 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

STAFF: 
Craig Marks, CEO 
Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
David Rollins, CFO 
Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Kevin Hardiek, CIO 
Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 

Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG 
Hillary Beashore, Associate/Architect 
Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 
Meg Hohnholt, Project Manager, NVS 

Paul/ Meg 
Paul/ Meg 

Kurt 
Craig 

Craig/ David 
Craig 



 

October 29, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
THURSDAY,  October 29, 2020  REVISED*   

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Kevin Hardiek, CIO 

              Keith Sattler                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO  
              Brandon Bowden       Kristi Mellema, CQO 
              Neilan McPartland                    Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO    

         
 

   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
       B.  Certificate of Appointment/Oath of Office – Neilan McPartland 
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
       Action Requested – Agenda 
 
IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for September 24, 2020 and Special Board Meeting  September 29, 
2020.     

       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #153785 through #154514, dated 09-17-20 through 10-22-20, in the amount of 
              $7,060,590.30. Surplus Items Property Description:  4 Mattress Overlays; #001038 OR Table.   
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.    Medical Staff Report and Credentialing                       Dr. Sollers  
 1.  Advancement from Provisional           
                     Bailey Padilla, CNM – Allied Health Professional privileges in Midwifery effective October 29, 2020  
                     through  April 29, 2022. 
 
                    Tyler M. Neitlich, MD – Telemedicine privileges in Diagnostic Radiology effective October 29, 2020 
                    through  April 29, 2022. 
 

     Veronica Ruvo, DO – Telemedicine privileges in Diagnostic Radiology effective October 29, 2020  
     through April 29, 2022. 

Vision ‘ Values 
Patients , ‘ P r 0  8 S e r Accountability 

EmP'Wees L Memorial Health Se'V‘Ce 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial MiSSion: TO improve the health Of our community. Excellence 

- 

( £ 3 _  

\ xx” ' I 
A \ / \ 

1/ / l g ‘  

n— /\ 
V _ _ 



 

October 29, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 

Jenny Siv, MD – Telemedicine privileges in Neurology effective October 29, 2020 through  
April 29, 2022. 
 
Jennifer Plymale, MD – Courtesy privileges in Pediatric Cardiology effective October 29, 2020  
through April 29, 2022. 
 
Jeremy Nicolarsen, MD – Courtesy privileges in Pediatric Cardiology effective October 29, 2020  
through April 29, 2022. 
 

 
 
 2.  New Appointment 

     Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinical Privileges                      
       

     Stephen Burton, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
     effective October 29, 2020 through April 29, 2021. 
 

     Aixa Espinosa Morales, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology  
    effective October 29, 2020 through April 29, 2021. 
 
     Rizwan Kalani, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
     October 29, 2020 through April 29, 2021. 
 
     George A. Lopez, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
     effective October 29, 2020 through April 29, 2021. 

 
                     
              3.  Reappointment   
           Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges                      
        
      Fadi Akoum, MD – Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested clinical privileges in 
                   Nephrology from October 29, 2020 through October 28, 2022. 
 
 
                 
VI.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

A. Review Financial Reports for September 2020 (Attachment CC)              David              
Action Requested – Financial Reports 

 
         B.    PMH Clinic Financial Performance (Attachment DD)               David 
  
         C.    COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachments KK & LL)                 David/Craig 
 
         D.   Cleverly Dashboard (Attachment  FF)                                                                                                                  David 
  

E.   Capital Requests          
 Action Requested – Capital Requests                 David 
   1.  Elevator Railings Upgrade 
   2.  Water Cooled Ice Machine/Water Dispenser                     (cont’d) 



 

October 29, 2020 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 *3.  Express Chemistry Analyzer                               
  *4.  Smith Medical Epidural and Patient-Controlled Analgesia Pumps (PCA)  
 
 

 
VII.   EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
          A.  PMH Retirement Plan (Attachment V)                   Craig/David 
                Action Requested – PMH Retirement Plan Change 
 
 
VIII.  SERVICES 
          A.  PMH EPIC Annual Report (Attachment O)                Kevin 
 
 
   IV.  QUALITY  
           A.  COVID-19 Update                                      Dr. Sollers  
                            
          B.  Legislative and Political Updates        Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
          C.  CEO/Operations Report                                 Craig 
 
 
    V.   ADJOURN 
       



mmurcmm ESEBEUE Baum: . 
£32.. m_bm< o 

mufi>cc=m o 
:3c mmmc=m>> o 

”$0555 

mu_c__u _.__>_n_ ‘59, team: 8585t 
36:3: _m:::m-_Emm 325m o 

Ha_Imn_y_,§>m_._.m ._<_UZ<ZE 

SSEO Emom w>oEa< .28 52mm .. 
mcmE 8:833 3:90 

ucm EmEmmmcmS. m omom m>otaa< ._ 

:o:m:_m>m_.u._wm Emom 323m .- 
H>._._._.q3~u 

3.38m >m>.5m EwEwmmmcm 

tmum _mu__uw_>_ mfiom 323m 

333m 533 
EmEmMmmcm ww>oEEm mHON 263mm 

“._.Zm:>_n_0._m_>m_o 
mm>O.E_>_m_ 

mp: mumH—m amp—muc— “—0 

65:8 ucm 258.85 _m_u:m:_n_ :mfi 
€58.08 m: 8 E25 ONON ncm 

:mE gmwambm oNom w>oan<\3m_>mm 
H>._._._.q3.o 

c0583?— mmatmfio w 2.80 5:22 

wucw=wuxu .3E3EE8 .50 U5 :3m m5 w>9QE_ o._. ”CUBE—Z _m_ucmc_..._ 
yumamwm mmu_>._wm 

BEBE Ego 
3..am BoEoE tmum 32v 

335mm (3—c 20:0s 
‘1‘ 

wwwoEm 
3:53:383‘ 

L O m m 0 ‘— Q A 

mucmfima 

mw2m> " co_m_> 
o~o~>u_ I :mE v_._o>> 

23033858 3 Emom 
_.=>_n_ 



toamm 
ccwm EEzEEou maom 39.9mm o 

$t Scum 35 smn. w “.3325 . 
”>._._._<3.0 

toawm 
flcwcwm BEsEEOU oNom 9653. o 

H>._._._,q3,0 
2363‘ >2 toqmm 

“:34 mHoN wfi U5 cozficwmmi o 

”Elmoxgfifim $6242: 

8cm=QE8 332531 . 
toamm 

wucmELotwn. wm>o_QEm 263mm . 

”._.Zm:>_n_O._m_>m_n_ mm>O.E_>_m_ 

:mE 323m 533:3: omoN w>oEa< .- 
mucmELotmn. 

323m cosfizzn mHON 323m o 
ENE Emmmmcm Emzma 335m o 

tong :23. flow 38% . 
”Ezmomqgfim 252%: 

32m: Humbcou ”ES w>9aa< o 

”._.2m:>EO._m_>m_o mm>o._n:>_m_ 

532223 >8 M53395 toqasm o 
“._.Zm__>_n_O._m_>m_o n_n_<._.m ._<U_Qm:>_ 

98:9. Emom m>oaa<\>>m_>mm o 
H>._._._,§O._ ._.zm__._.<n_ 5.34:0 

EEmoE cozmmcqou 35:82 
359533 omom $20.3 cam Bmsmm . 

639m m:t3Eo§ 
Emzmn. wo_>>-_3_amo_._ w>oaa< . 

EmEEsm “._.zm__>.n_o._m_>m_a mm>o._n:>_m_ 
33:92.“. c2635 mHoN 2633. o 

toamm :mE conga Emom omom m>2aa< o 
mucmzau 3808.5 mfiom 263mm 0 52¢ 63:8 

”>._._._<:d 53:38.... cozuflE omoN m>oaa< o 
cm: 

8:88:0u mucmEm>ow <I< 3:33 o wucnEou 2.8088 omom m>05a< o 

#5530359 mm>o._n__>_m_ 
”€3,050 

EEmoE 85.3 59.055 325m o 

”>559 ._.zm__._.<n_ 
fimbcou Ensum m>oaa< .- 

”E4499 ._.2m_._.<n_ .. 
5:333 mm>zu¢30 w 2.30 



ENE Btzuwm .: ISE 3.25m .. 
Baum: mczmvt. .. 

Hmmu_>mm_m 

$80k. 
cozfigto mm>o_n_Em_ 26.2 325m . 

n._.zm_S_n_O._m_>m_o mm>o._n:>_m_ 

8805 323m 5828 a 
323m 538:2: 8 Sam toamm . 

”E230 

32.2mm .m:::< :40 mfiom m>oEa< . 
80:0; 338 m>€aa<\3w_>mm . 

”ts/50 
:mE EmEmmmmcm imam _mu__uw_2 a 

“7.4.5 ._<U_n_m:>_ 

293m 3:358”. 
3:68 EmEmumEmm >5w ._ 

“mm—0553 

3mg: Engage”. Isa . 
”$8?n Asuzqz: 

ESmoE Eats: :55 BwSmm . 
“._.Zm=>_n_O._m>m_n_ mm>O._n__>_m 

x82, _B_Qmo_._ toaasm . 
”._.zm:>_ao._m_>m_n_ mm>o._n:>_m_ 32:53 MEQEE 38 53mm . 

”Emsaodao $45, 2282 

22m: 
mucmEBtma 959533 mfiom 2,n .. 

cmE EmEmwmmcm mm>oEEm BmSmm .. 
H._.Zm:>_n_O._m_>m_o mm>0._n__>_m_ 

cosmgmfi Omu Huzucou o 
._.Zm:>_n_O._m_>m_D mm>O.E_>_m_ 

5:833 mwzfiflno w 2.30 



mmmcmzu Emcmm mm>o_aEm_ 2633. o 
F2m§¢0d>mo mm>0._n:>_w 

2632. 8.623 .363. o 
Hn___._mnE.§>m_._.m ._<_UZ<Z_..._ 

32.0.. .88... m>o.aa<\3w_>wm . 

H>._._._...5.o ‘ 

33:9... 
EmEmmmmcm 35533 new 

.tfim 
_mu_um_>_ 60m .mEEsE 3:35 o 

“._.zm__>.n_o._m_>m_n_ mm_>o._n__>_m_ 

Smog: "0:038:00 

mofimgsfifim 82.5.5”. . 
i__._mom<>>m_._.m ._<_uz<z_u_ 

Bang: wmmEmZ .. 
H5.1.655 

c283 v_..o>> Emom oz 

t __m 
.25 5% .83.). do... .8 3.23 

EmEmmmmcm .mEEsm U6 ucm .832. . 
”._.Zm=>_n_O._m_>m_D mm>0._n__>_m_ 

E. @3258 __o.>mn_\xI Ewx 0 
SEE I35 .8 :0m 85.50t 

36:2: _m:::<-_Emm 325m 0 
Hn:_._mnE.n..>>m_._.m 

._<_uz<z_u_ 

3mg: .28... 333.5 . 
.._.zm.§a.o._m_>m_n_ 3.6.5.5 

mu. .8 28m w. 8 Ewuhn. w gmfimbm o 
toawm mmEEEou 3:25 o 

H>._._._..u.5.o 

322% 2.6.8.2 .6232 >539”. .- 
325m 22m . 

“mm—USmmm 

Smog: 3:6“... EmumEmm .. 
EmEQSE 

.6205 cam ._.zm_ ”.6 2033334 o 
cosm>ocmm 

3.2.8.2 .8632 w>oaa< . 

«5:333 825030 w 280 



”5.3430 
mcozmamfilfim Emom BmEEou . 

“mmusm omom “06:9 BmSmm .- 

Hn:_._mcm,,§>m:.m #202427. 

:2; EmEtsbmm 
523$ Hmogwuoz t $232 

.25 mama : Em €33n SON 
Ema gmflmbm Hmom tEt BwSmm o 

@5555 

mw>BmEE 593% 
>9. :0 Egg: mESm new m_o._ 263mm - 

H._.zm__>_n_0._m_>m_n_ mm>o._n__>_m 

3mg: mmmEmZ . 
H>.r_._.ajd 

”>528 __. 

Ewco_mm_EEou 3:300 Eu. Hmwzcwm 
xm... 33q tam m52m 9653‘ o 

Hn.__._mom_.3<.m_.rm ._<_UZ<ZE 

Humbcou m__>_Umn_< m>oEa< o 
”._.Zm:>_n_O._m_>mD mm>O._n__>_m_ LwnEwasr 

$2328 833.8% 38s 
B 8522 EUCEE :35 339.8 . 

EImomfismkm 36242.“. 

28 8 88m m: 8 “:2m w gmfimbm a 
Hobby. 

mcEcmE Bmmm HNON Bancou o 
”tzqzd 

FE“. :93 m>9qa< a 

”Elmomd‘gmhm ._<_uz<zE _ 
533:3 32330 w 225 

5290?. 



532928 $26... 3:33 . 
”t—Zn—Od>m0 mm>0._n:>_m_ J: 

8:332. msxcmm 1352mm . 
muwmczm 

.335 vcm @32o HNON 30a . 

:mE EmEtaumm 

53:65 Hmogmcoé t 
_8__um_>_ “Em wcmE t cam 959.32 

:8 am: 235% How 965% . 
mmuEwm mcicmm 3w_>wm .- ”mmuSmmm 

”EIQdQSmkm ._<_Uz<2_n_ 
:mE Emu 

52¢ 28 U5 .EmEcEScm. Hmom m5 m>oEa< o 
U5 EmEceScm omom m5. BmSwm .. m8=oa Emom w>9aa<\3m_>mm o 

cor—8:3 826030 a 2.80 



I _mow 2663 $3 cart 90—2 «Ex 
E 38.5 *3 grain. ..._, 

m m mv E25 5:5 23:, 
m H V .uuscma a mg 238%; _3_:__u :55? 333 mmv 20:3 E: 

o wv 1 \ .4I l ”L wvA Ammflcflav {mEsucmm mucmELotwa 3:36 __m._w>0* 

<2 A“8.9... . 4.3 a {aflfl am am”. u...“ .. .o. 4 .E . £3 mm $8." 3558 83850:; 8mm 
«2 $0.8 . £8 3 3.? 5.2 {,5 8“ £9.92 445 an: _ go? @3352 a 25620. 2.72.23 3838.8 

mmmd «$6 .|_ «Em c an ._ 
fine a .EGQ 

fat a $0.? 
E9 22835 BB .mnm 

«.2 n m n ._ m m ¢ ¢ . 33:5 n v “$352 w an; mum. 3 92¢ 5522 
cm om . . .u _ K “3:5: omv Ed: mafia“ 25. .2 mum3.. a 3555 cm we as: 2322:: 

$3.3 p. 9...; 28 $8.8 u . .. a . .. . . r. _ . 3m 2 4 . arm» 9.. Evan go? 33358 8:23:83. 828.35: 
$3.3 $8.0m .P £09m“. , L 3;. . . «an. m.“ 43am 

m... 2.3 n» r at cm . . Aw‘nmmflamv 
:3: =39 mzfigfi B mnudq smfiao - EwEmmmcmE “magma 

xofid $50.0 .. . r. c: a. 556.5 
fiat. t Efi 3.9.. c 45¢..c 

«flue. 
. fihodv gmn— acwflmaE co.“ 5n 3mm 9.03035 flwwm_u0mm< m: mop—tam: 

$2 33.3 1.8 8.. #355 E43" 45.13.31.133” 
. . . . $3.8H - “Roma 

:3 $25 - 93:55 me 5:33 20332935 5 13: 
$93 $0.0m I. 

on: _ . . 
E; 

. . .. 
in. 
. _ . _. . «$d US m=uc_._m 

ucwEmmmcmS— 2.5m. - mfiaam 

$2.. Rim .. m. H .. .. _ ._. u _ ._ . .. . . ghwv Amman—cm? a US m:o_mn_E_ummm EmzmaE >3 om uoccmfica 339:4 
«83 $34 - Lfimtlnawfi _ 

.twfi _._ 
ES 

_ 
. H .M - . $9? 3352 a am: 5% £8 53:? #3 

find 
38 32 own .62 to Ham 9.4 2.: 2:: 

_ 
.35. .23 53.2 _ pm”. 

a 
c2 .36 man 233%.: w 324 .30 .322 

5.0m: BIOEmE \‘I‘V 4.0.305?! 



$553: ucm Em.) m_ _mom I :32. m>:m_:E:U.. 
.86 26.3 «53 car: 922 tax 

:89 kc $2. 55.? 26:0... 

mam $3 ._ .m 
I 

Eu”. 3W3 $5.3 $53 $.53 $5.3 _$V.Nm 
._ $3 v 3:35 _muohwmcmnxm .693 _32. 

«awn $5.3 .5.t $5.3 mama A «a. _mEmEEou 
mm.moH mmdNH . . . A . . . mmdmfi A _uc no Luau find... 

813m 833 . A . i. m 9.53.. m ...III I mafl m 3a.: m 95.5 H... 
31 Emma v E3809.“ ”5......v 

$q «8.3 h 
_ . ..E 

a... flwacw... . 
- in IMmII “$.5l 

$.m $3.3 fimdw $58 v 3:96... 3: +0 .3 mm .632 
...mo.3m $33 - -. 3.}: .m 

.mmm....I.I.. new... w ......HEIM mm... a“ m 2.0.2.. A... SE: A. mama m $33 A mtxgcgmx 9:230 .02 
«$5 mam...” 

. 5v 2 Emwfim .....om. E ..Afiumh 
... . .. . 

- 
.. 

.. $8.... 
A £932 .32... 

mmdm afimm “ u .. __. _ 
.hwm mu mmww . u . . .. . . Nod... v snazwuwm 3:383. E 530 $2 

mam VNN 
l 

.. .mmm u . . u 3 .. .31... _ ms." PH . 
.... m- A 335 3558t .30m E23330 

$3 $3 . .. . . . . mm: 33 85 A 3:5 .322: 
mm; «34 r. .. .. . . 8A.... mom? 9.3 E25 33%... 
Rafi $6.2” man ...I 5.5.3 m3 2 . .25.: . . .. . . . 3...: 58.2 mmmfin A “9382; .5 

m3} “mar—u ......mm. ANA...“ 
_ 9.13..” . u A 5......” EEK. .. p wadw A “23332; w=_mmE_ utmocumfi 

h: w: . ...F... 
II 

mum . u . ... . . owe A «Encouovfi 95 35.59% 
am Am I a». 

II 
A ... mm .....m _ A... E . ..mn... mm A 329:3 mo 

m... mm E .. E. A... E m... . mm mm A m:o_mA_En< E2585 
omm m3; . . ... _ . . . A DEWWI 

__.... 
.- mmoa A 33> am 

I _ I - I I 
$3.1m 

namdm I Emu :1“... 
.....mm H3mm Faun. 

....I. 5m . . gmdm v :32 mcfififi .5 mAq «532.50 I EmEmums “3355 
RWN Kim ... . .....E 

a ._ flan. I I «.35 . . . 3n.“ v m>mo om c223 2235.031 non—.23: 3:343 
afio ....Sd . . .30 n ”5.5 

- ...E n. 3.5.6 
4.5.0 

...8 o .9. A 53.0 
v 2.8 2033:. on: 5.... 3mm c2535 umpgunmmq 23532.. 

m m ... a. n o. . _fiI, 
u m H .. I 

El. m v 33.... 53; mam”... 
god .xa A .. 1:6 .5 ...... 

......u. ...... Mafia. 
”In...“ 

....3 .. 9......“ 
. 584 v :93 «53 5052.5 #3 - 9.3585 am 

5 
m3 Ba 

- 
.I o 50...... _ an. 3 um...m. am...“ .955. .35 -8.” 

II 
Ema v 35.8. nofiéo 3 man 0.3383 “3.. ... 

5.2 
.30 5.5 _g «E 3.5. __E ...E 55. .I. .I 

$3 v ..mw... H 1225.: m._:._ 262 
mfim mmA . . . u . .u . . _. . . . . Sun A mExflaoz cofimuatm 

0.8.8 $9.2 aha... . . .... 3. 55mm ....3 E .. . #3... 5.5 
... . 5mm - 5.9.. 

A 203835 29.5. 
$3 «$6 tho . ..5 o ......u... o ......u ...K a .55 ...awd «Rd v 33. 3.653 

......d 
«$4: _ .. v5 a -.n. .... .....wm ....m 

w. . LMMII. 
_ «E m «R .w. «and v 353 _muotamou I >309... 

«$6 «Sum .. . . __..n u. : ... ... . ... . mam...“ v twin; 3:0: _BotfiEEgo . wE_tw>O *0 2:0: 
m.m mm A . . . odm 

.c r... m 
In? 
I 

. . . mm v Hmflucmuma mcozfioa ammo ho a 
$2 mm . . . .. .m .l . . m... ma... mm v A933 0.5... 208323: mafia}. 

. I .H . 
I . 

| _ at 
aw in . . we. .3. | . . . . . . . H... A tmum _muEmS. .323. we a... 

mm om . . . A . u A H mm. mm .3 A 256 Ema mamcwcmiEou 
«\2 mac .. . . 3...... A . . . . ... . m3 mo... A .3c ...:v PcmEoE 
$2 mmm nun .uhm mmm ME . Em _ E .. . . ca... wan __. . 25 A 33> 0E5 BmSucEw 

w com _ 
...Ew...‘ 

$3. 3...: 
. _ . A mmm do.“ 03; «mo... A 33> u_c__u uzm .632... 

E... mmm . . . . . omm . A .. a... omm .... 83 A 35> 256 BB coucum 
mum 0mm . __..MG 5 . . . . u . u. 3 H34. fibflr ..__. mmofi A 335 u_c__u 3.38am— 

fimd find e. ED 5 _ mama . 395 £55 . 4.55 . . #55 “$5.. _ . I «o6 v 3.65:... team _mufiwE 

$55 «$3 .55... A ..nmfim ......a ..m 3.3 ...... mm $0.3 mama ....nmfim ”K 5.5 
A ..ucoEEBmx 23.5.. - 23585 

«$43 «3.3 
I_ unflmm £65..” www.mm $0.3 www.mm 

......Amfim a...“ 
.3. «WW. «Bug A ...ocmEEOuwm 2:03.. - 356 

«3.3 $35 5.2 
I . . 5.8.. «5.85 

.55“. . . mag" . .I .. $3...“ A .2555 232.... - B... 3.3 
«.83 .83 3mg .....m....m A. 

......mfl H #53 5mg. - 25.5 EH.“ 
II 

$m.mm 5.3 $8 A __EAEESB. 2:25.. . .593 222.330 
.83 .33 

. .33. .38 ..uwwm . E. ...a :55... . 53.9.: ”E mm . 
I 

xmflm A ....cmEESmm 28.5..- an. 
53.6... @355 53.9.. I . I. H.“ _ _. g I Qul. any - Edam __ WE; IEadm . find.” A ...ucmEEoUmm 3:25.. - 26 3:3. 
$5.8 xmdm 5.3 E R a... .I 

an.» 
I.I|_. 2.3K 
. . ......o ow gm: $3.... A .2558: 2.6.5.. - om.— 

xmfiw «3.3 
. . Mm .. Infifll 

. 
EdII 

_ fiadm 
. 

3mm 3 .3... vw fidmm A ..ucwEEOuwm 2:25.. - ...: 

.3. «SN «3.. $8 A528 9.5 ..oz to 5 an... _ m3. 2.: _ as: ......E __..E _ 6...: _ n8 _ =2 .26 29.. 238%... a 8...... .25 BE). 

Bbmuqum cw?— u_m0um._um I ONON 
. 

5:00: _OtoEmZ .‘J‘ mmOLfi— Alb... 



.Ed mmno Hm mEEmE me... 35:23 >53. .mco.mm_EEou .3 9.3% B mmmEmsn 3.3%.... 35.3 o: mn. Ems... 

633 m5 .2 .53 m “.358... 
_ 

tam 9:00”. :02). mp: :0 mum—0Q: cm. 2.200”. zoo—>— 530... 
.H 

3% SEE. SE. 3%.”... 5.2”". 205823”. .< 
.. . 
II 

l JI l I I 

.28.. 
..........~ 

5.3 clm.n. 
Em3< cvzmmcmau a acmEsumtm .u_ul._|m>>< 

9.02 952 8.6.0.8. 3883 as:~ .835 mfib cormmcwnEou wo>o_nEm_ .m. 
.mEHmwS. 

Emom .8586.t . 

.wnEmEmm m... mm>o_n.Em 3835:. .0“. 20.2.0 88%.... 
pm Emma 8353.... ucm cm... EwEEzmm 1.2. Et An. .0 .2 ..>. 

BEE—.333 
mp :25 25 2.62 2... NE 32230 cm m>mm 3.25 .35 ENG :mE EmEEEmm ....>.... .d 

. 35...“. $535. ,II 
530 9-..... I! anamw. 

. -w 
>0. 5.96 3 3:8 am? we. .L 

- I, . ZOEWJ 
95:8 amtm. .5 

. 
Ouu .m_.w_>. 
.55. .. d._>. £2.55 :oEcm .. 

0.0 £2.93: :38. . :mugom conga... .- 
Ouu goofing... coccmcm .. mEmmm :83 o 

0.0 65:0”. .223 o Smbmpmmm 5.20 .. 
08820 .._m___.¢ Ems. . 5.53 5.3. . 

05 6.3.2 $80 o >53. w>3m .5 
. 

wucm=muxu .>u_c3EEou .50 mo Lima... m5. w>o._n.E_ o... ”COVE—Z .m.u:m:_n. 
uuwammm mmu_>..wm 

.3...m— 3.330 
xLOBEmw... muoEoi taum .852). 

3.3mm CZUGI _0_L0Emw_)_ 
\J 

mmmoEm 
bzwwnmw l— m m m 0(- Q "\ 

35.q 
co.m.> 



mcoz 

6333.? 
0 saw 

.3830 
o cozfl E m 5:5 333 ucm cmnaom 

..wc0_mm_EEou >3 33:88 mm; .5322 
mi. .mucom< Ewmcou wfi 963% 

3 .5o m mug: 535m .mcofiflEEou 

.353Q 
o cam .3330 o co>£ E m 53> ummmma 

tam. mEmwm EcofiaEEou >9 umbcoumm 

QCOZ 
<02m0< 

tmZOU m>0mn_n_< .>_ 

mm; c0202 9:. .mucwm< m5 265% . ..._ . - 
2.52 3 SEE m mums 5:35 ESEEEB ...... 

. . . 252 353 265% ..= 
952 282 

l... .1. _. j- 
.4, .- 

- 
wcdz EwEEou 33:; 

.= 
.- 

.Ed 86 pm 
962 2.02 >ccmx.u.m:o_mm_EEou.>n $903 ___um__mu mm; @385. 3.9.0 3 =3 ._ 

mucm=wuxm 
uumnmmfl 

32mg:— 
xLOBEMmF 30t."— 

wu_>..wm 
3:33:3034 

mw:_m> 

2:262 E; 
"CE—Om :mtm 

.._n_ 

08 2086:: 822m 
06 222...: 52.; ob .2___om .938 

0832”. 3:3 3:22 
8o 5:22 was 

.EEDEEOU .50 "—0 3.:m m5 965:: 3. “CORE—)— 

5601575502 ‘1 

LQWWOLQ 4" 

cmuaom covcmhm 
.o._>_ £2.55 535 

55mm .m 
mEmmm camsm 

SmEBmmm EEG 
>ccmv_ m>3m .5 

.flucmcfi 
mwu_>._mm 
3:30 

tau—m _mu__ow_)_ 
wwwhoEEm. 

mucwmuma 

:o_m_> 



0.2 62>. .> 
0.). 0.23288 0:00 

0.2 2.08:3. 50.6.0 
05. 5...... $.52 

05. ....O 2...”. 
00 ~m...02 

5.053. 

8 0mm... .32.... 
.215. 2.8.0.2 2.50 EB 

0.2 $52.. was.» 
.0023m 

0 00m 008000 0 002...— c. m :23 
.03m c0305. 2.... .220"... .0:0.mm.EEou 

02020020. 
05.. 2:82 .0:0.mm.EEou >0 20m... 

83 22030.0 $232.0... 0....~ .0.— BEE—:00 

022.0m E2005. 0.... .05... 005.8500 
ms..m.ycmnm.u 0...... 0.2.0 EmEtmqun... 
0.... >0 kcwEEoum. .2... 0032.6. 

0000 0.6.. .2: 33.3.... .0226 030.0300. 
ucm mEEBQQmmm 0... $0.00... 8. c0505..-. 

. 

.NNON .mm $080.03 
$30.... omom .3” 505803 60¢ 022.02). 

>..Emu. :. m0$2.>..0 .m0.:._0 03.9.0300. 
5.3 $5.. $3.000 0.. EmEEBnammx .......O0 

6....02 52.053. 

.NSN .mm 253%... $30.... omom .qm 
.wnEBQmm 0.0.0 .CmmSm .8050 

c. 33.3.... .m0.:._0. 00.0.0300. 5.32mi 2.2.0.. 
2.300.. 3 200.2832 I 00 009.5. 0.20.: 

086.2 5.53.3 $8.... 
omow. .wm 

.mnEmfiwm 0.0.“, 5.02.. 5:2). c. 33.3.... 
.mu..c_..0 
03.30.00. 

5...: “cash $005300... 5.001.005... .0. 
208020003”... I 02.15. ~2.50.2.2 

0:20 .00... 

.NNON 
.mm .maegnmm $30.5 omom .3 .mnEmfimm So..— 

.Cwm5m .3050 :. 83.520.00.23 0333.00. 5.3 
tfim 02.04 B E0EE.oaamum I 0.2 0.60:... ms; 

"macmEacfifimomm:5.2.0.. 0... 03:08... 22.3. 
..0 

wCOZ 

0.2 23mm. .0222 o 
22 .520 23. . 

0.). $5000.”. 9.00.0.2 a 
00233“ o 2.6 £08000 0 00.6.. c. m 5.3 

03m 0030.). 0;... 20.320 5:23.880”. 
>0. 0000008 0:0 mEmmm .m:0.mm.EEou _ _ 

>0 mums. mm? €02.62. $232.2 2: .0... 
mmEEEou 02.30m .8605. 00m 00.....EE00 

mc._m..cmuw.u 2.... 0.2.0 EmEtmé 
05 >0 nwucwEEoum. ucm 0032.6. :00... 

0.6... E... m0$0..>..n. 28.2.0 .00....0300. ucm 
3:02.289... .502 05 96.0% 0.. :0...0E < 

.28 .3 .953. .25... 88 .E .8533... metatm $20502 :. 83:2... 03.0.0300. 5.3 
tmum 0c.0.0050_0t.m:0.m.>0.n_ - 0.). 23mm 52.22 

Amom .3 
gems. $8.... o~o~ .3 

5983.3 
02.0020 $20.s :. 35:2... 00303.00. 

2.0.2, tmpm 00.0.00Em_0._.\.m:0.m.>0.a I 0.). ~2.30 0.3. 

.33 .00 news. 525.5 88 .3 5.82.3 
02t0 $20.s :. mm$2.>..o. 033500. 5.3 

:30 0:.0..00E20.Q_m:0.m.>o.n. I 0.2 $5000.“. p.032 

"mucwEuc.000< 
.502 $222.3 0... .0mm 82.0w ..0 

$533535 can 
“.000... tfim E2022 .< 



.6“. 5525 15?. 9: mm (No Emuum B cozoE 
m wUmE 53mm EcofiflEEou ~ mEEou 

58> 8:: t8: 
9: Lou, {No ~ELF. :93 #5t .50 55.. 23% we, ”Er: A; “coesumts 

wcoz wucmcE 2: >2 cormucwEEouE m m:_26__on_ Emom 3: 8. uwncmEEBE mEEou wucmcfi 9:. .5523 FE“. :23 .u 

.Qsmcwao 

: :mEs mmmcwzmhon. :mo_ 4mm 9: L8 @333 m5 

:5, m>> .oNoN 
LmnEmumo cmsoEH 7.820”. mcorfimqo Axes EuEzumti 

wcoz m35.2 _m_u:mc_n_ 3-9300 wfi nmEmmmE m:___om 225 :2...— _m_ucm:_n_ 3.6500 .m 

.358Q 0 «Eu 
3330 o cozfl E o ES, @3m 20:22 m5 

.LmEamm 
.m:o_mm_EEou >2 330m mm; 

SEE o~o~ 3393 Lou. toamm _m_ucm:E 2: 
3.8% B cozoE m. wumE 33mm .mcofiflEEou 

.mtoamm 

.38 
«mm anEmammmamsefi88;: .Bemawm 

. _ E9; $20..s E mmmw__w>._..fi..__m@_§_u 338:c fits 
._ .tfim wEqEmfih 8 EwEaaSm I as. .022 _> 

V .NNON _ 

H_. 

.mm Lmneuammfimsefi 88 .3 253% E0: 
.- E. 

H $20;m E 831.3% 
_mu_:__u 333352 53.. twp...“ 

@3328 B EmEEBnqmwm I 0.2 .Esaucwm mc 

.38 “mm LonEmEmm 
. _. smack: ONON cam .mnEwEwm E0: 3206t 

m._..._mm..mm__>_a _mu_:__u 33353.. £5, tm 92:88 
3 EwEEEaamwm I E). .m_._wE_._ox 526.5 

:3 

.NNON .mm 255% cmsefi 28 “E 253% 
:5: $2235 5 83:25 _8_:__u 533352 5:5 

:93 @3328 B EwEEEggmmm I 0.2 ~.__._m._ >2t 

.mmom ..m~ EnEmEmm .3395 omoN fiqm EgEmEmm 
E0: mEuEmE EEBE E mmmwzza _8E__u uwpmmzcm‘. 
fits tfim $358 8 EwEEBnEmmml 92 .to EE 

_m_u:m:_n_ Omom “Egg .2: 635m m:___om Ego 

9 Emefiflg 
c~o~ umsmsq 3.. atonmm 

_m_ucmc_u_ 2533"— .4 



966 8. 6t 3:0: 
.26 6626c 

65 62:8 
:25 6:3. 

.5 

6:02 

6:02 

.BcwEwmcmtm 
_ 

6co_mm_EEou E 36:86... .63 52:3 
5:36.66 .6626c 2: com: 96:26.. 

.88 § 3338 3 osm am .3653 
6323.35 of ‘6“— 22.66 025 66.6% 
OH COED—>— m 2.q mEmmM— LmCEmflEEOU 

66:66m o 6.6 .6836 o co>£ E 6 5:5 
63m 6:22 2:. .mEmwm 6co_mm_EEou 
>6 umncoumm mm; :uEB £33 6”— 3:66”. 

EmEmumEm... 65 69. mEucé 6265 
3 (am: 6.: 3 6362666 6:: 6 3:53 

3 996 96 6:69 m:_26__m :m EmEEBE 
E 665330 mm Enigma Emom 6.: 666% 

B 226.2 m 666E 5:65 6:o_mm_EEou 

665336 0 .26 .6336 o 
‘66“— :_ m 5:3 

68m 226.2 9:. .mEmmm 6:o_mm_EEou 
>2 umucoomm mm? SEE .ooofivwm 

66666 9. Ho: m :55 6f 8 
:0 EmEcumfid. 

:0 62:26 
.6 .6636 636266606 

683-26 m U6 66:53 65 666% 
3 630.2 m wumE 6:53.63 6:236:60 

.925 B 636 66:66:66 69 3 cm; 66.6 26:66 6;... 
.653 

.6636c 28m 6;... *6 $2235 63.6582 
8 >669: wfi 666% 6:3. 6co_mm_EEou 

.255 6* 3:63 “6:68.669. 65 .6”— @623 
66:66 3 (am: 6.: 3 :2626% _m:_u_\_mEL_£ 

a 3:53 3 36.2 mfib ucm m:___om 22.5 
m:_26=m 

50529.6”. 6 66666 9 666: Emma 8:0 EB Emom 
6;... 626266 :3 65 U6 :ofiflEnsm 8. 60:6 2638 
(.65 6”. 40m: 6:... 8. :Ensm 3 8.655606 9:266 

2 
K32... >60 656:3 (mm: .6“— 6m_>_o< 666:5 60 

$66 :6 3:0; 66.: 26; co 9.6666 666.26 
66 oooém 8. 33 :6: mt 2:02, 6626 

6.: .28; __mu-co 653996 68:8 .23 £6 {a 
60:8; $226: 

‘6&_t6>0 
“6:661 6622; 6.6; 

6:... 
.6266 m7: mats—u $.30: 23 U6 66:5: 65 

B 666.9. 663m. 
6386688 6656.6 cm 6286.. 

2 88 “mm 536.6 I 88 am 655. so: 8:33 
0:3 339632 

mEuEuxE 96.6266 96 666666 
:6 “665.65 52;; 663.4 

63626668 62,2q 
_.__>_n_ 663606 65 6 32266 cm 3% 996 

£86 3 663 56.: 
63352.6 3 “Em .6”— E8 

1662, 
. 

E E65535 
$63.62. 362260 Emom 

I 95665. Emom 663m 
.< 

a 265552; 
53334 «am: I 

cows—o6: 363 I 663: 
3:66". EoEoumm 

.< 

8 “85:35. 
2634‘ comummconEou 

66>o_nEm_ :5... .m 

62360 E Emom 
65. 3 6.3 Emacs 

ma ucm 66x63 
-9. m5 =5, 526 9:. .6502 

6653Q o ucm “6836 o :96“— :_ m 525 
63m .6322 6;... .mEmwm 65266600 

>2 36:83 am? EEB 83> m “6: 65 . 

.6566 60.60 cm 5:5 :66 668836.. 26: 6.: E 
6666.:6 =26-B:m new 6:56:68 *6 m 8 a: 6 
E63,? 3332: m B ~66>oEE6 :6 o... Axum 26.6.36 

cm SP; 2033268 :26 6:666:66 68.56 
m: 369: _.__>E 65 Em6... 9596663 65 >2 wumE 
germ—6:6EEBE 6.: 6665 cam :mE EwE§6m 

_.__>_n_ 66:3 65 6 363.66 cm 66m 853 E60 

3.02.5. 
Eoefimts 

cmE EoE9=6m :53 .4 



.Ed «MM um. m::mw8....m£_ 
35:33 mag hmcommEou 

.3 2.3% B $9.53 55:3 0: mo 33:. 

43-3 $2050 :0 33 so some 
.3 :5, Emma. :3m 2: new :3; 633333 253m 

33 3:30; .EmEmumEE 2: Log, 2:00.. 0528:. 
.2: gm; 3 mwm>oEEm B swam BEstoaao mi 9.6 

.._: 
_ 

. a ,u 
_. Ammém 

.Emmv “as 3% MccmEEUmBm tax mEBo=£ 
.5... _ 

.._ ., magma a? ma; x2389. wm>o_n_Ew 9t .Emom 

4:. 
. m5 3 x5: 32 mi __mEm ___>> coccmzm .33 

32 
2.02 ..-_ 

.. .2: 9.3 B Emom m5. uwmmSoUcm ucm umuEEm: mEG tonmm Duo .0 . 
. . 

.mEBéHBm new 
... >=Emu$ Eon. EB“— _mu_.:_oa 9: :o 833 Ho; Eats”. muumun: _mu_u__on_ 

mcoz gtwcmz. __ 
wE B 32296 E5 m m>mm 5885mm ..mco_mm_EEou can map—mafia; .u 

.._... .Emom 
2: . 

3 305m 3: mam 3 ANNE: cofimmm {ES {@2050 
E m_n_m__m>m m5 :5, EE .flosm .._; mm>oEEm 

.69. $520 338:8 m2 9?. E: 8:82 mEm__m_>_ 
802 982 E5 5358 so 320% ”.25 m mam 5:3 332 38% $558 .m .umESmnm o ucm 3330 

o 3E C__ m 5:5 Emma 8:22 2: .5235 



.Ed mmum Hm mEEwE m5 _umEzozum >562 EcofiflEEou :3 _ucmflm B 8833 EELS 0: mafia Ems... 
. 

.EwEE_oan_m m5 
Scam E9: 330: 

3 qo {3534‘ 
. .‘ 

_ _: 
3:38 :Bcwm 2: .3330 H saw .63”. E m ES, 333 w 

_ .: _-1 
.Ed 8K :32... cm>m .n 

63:8 3 EmEmmm 93 .253. .mcofiflEEou >9 nmucouwm 
_ ,. m .Ed omno 0:234 23.... 

.u 
@980 __mEm new $3 cosoE 2:. .5358 ES? 2: 

_....r - _ 
.Ed 86 mats: mficmEmm .m 

EmEB 8.3.0.2 
2: B 32:505. 2262 gonna 8 5:2: 

.88 EN. 2.2 69.53 5 U5 cozmcmfim... 
.Ed omum ucfltmaué 5232 .4 

£3, 386:8 :23 m mnmE cmuaom Eco_mm_EEou 633%c wfi m:_>>o__£ :oEmoq 
_Emon ES? 9:. 

_ Ecruflmmkaflzfls 
:8 _Es >58. .5 9: B 58 yo cofimsumfi mc§o=8 Lo...|1 8.29.38 

3 832385 83.33%c comm _. . . 
33%c .958 

.= . 1 
.mucm_mw=< ho mmumE 

m5 .3 830:8 _.E_. amm. m E 3:3. hmcofiflEEou 
>3 3.80 3 3:8 mm; EmcofiflEEou 

mcoz go: to Emom 2: n3 9.3922 228% ms... .220 3 =8 ._ 

cwugom concem 
.32 .8235 :29; 

558 5:3. 
mEmmm :33 

53353. 5.20 
80 £35.. 

mfimu- 
o 5:8. 965 .5 

mucm=muxu SuEDEEOU .50 "—0 5“:m w...“— w>o._QE_ o._. ”Cgmmmz _m_ucmcE 
pumnmwm mmumiwm 

fitmEE €350 
xLOBEMmF wuoEoLm taum F652). 

$3.6m C H _ U 0 I :0 _.. O E 0 2 
\J' 

www>o_aEm_ 
£53385 flcwrma 

mw:_m> t— m m m Ot— Q r‘ co_m_> 



cozmu6m2 .Xmmdm mmpmnflo .m_<_._ oz .cOBBESBE .5 saw; ..8 _ 
$03 .2555 
SEE, 9m? :2: $80 28% .6 22333m $3-0m 

.2333: .250 $333 02 

.853 am. Sn “.0 So 5% mafia 505:5 am we: #2 9.3 £533 £5335 
a: 26:8 02 EcoBmEEUFE ..E o 953 Emf hwaEwEwm US EcoE ms... Eu, HE: uwtoamg mEm=mE 

.v_ 28 Ewfimn. w uEBmhm 
.928 SE 

a: uE. gm? 3:83 m U.0 mEEB 885:3; ”6 3m: m> m E 55386 
U5 “0. m :83 mm; 2mg... $83 Hm 5 35.858; 3538 U5 ..mnEzc 

.3338: .25 
3883 m5 8...a “55:85 :23: 52:8; coucmm .mmmmu 

5_>Ou 
a: 30:8 02 EcosmEEE ..on_ 9:58 ooodm mm; 30: 33m 83553? SE. 8:03.. 3952 .5 

mum—E: $5509 

.3330 o 502$ 

E K 5:5 38m new 

5525 
.5 

>3 

vmncoumm mm? 5308 
9:. 63:38,”. 3 

.Em: mncmmw mmSEE m5 965% 3 
mEucSm 539.: m 28E 92.22 .u 

630.5% 96 3323”: 953 ..wnEwEmm Lou. $555. 3.52.5. U.0 ._<>O¢n_n_< 

.33 um mEmwm .m Eco_mm_EEou E .590 3 8:8 mm? mczm away—O O... ._._du 

._m>mm>> .5 
.5 

. 
38:2 .._. .5 .. 

228 .m .5 
. 

Omu £m .0 o 
_E;mmI .m 

.5 
o 5:55 .m 

..wco_mm_EEou o 
000 .Ozu .._mzsn. 355. - 5:3. .m EcomflEEou o 

000 
.000 

66:23.2 55. o mEmwm .m 
..mco_mm_EEou o 

I u. I I ..I IHIII-lulllllh.’ ll..lnl l l I l H 

wucw=wuxu .>u_c3EE0u .30 "—0 £2m 9..“ w>o._QE_ o... ”Cgmflz _m_ucwc_u 
uuwnmwm mmu_>._wm 

31mg:— 3:“.50 
{OBEMmF 39:0..."— tflm _MU__ow_)_ 

wuviwm Cur—Um: __U_...0Em_)_ 
\

l
‘

 

www>O_QEm 
hfiznficsouud mucwmumn. 

mm2m> L m w w Ox— Q '\ :o_m_> 



.Emt macaw: 
mcficfim 

.Emmmwow: 

:: 26:8 oz 

.28 388:: 

3:235:25 Lou. 

.>_co 338:: 
.mco_HmE._ou_c_ Eu. 

.u_m_> .mfiocm hou— v.23 mEES 
3 EB 55% 

.5 50323:: 520 cm mam >2: 8% >5 :85: 
.8 S: cm “mm B 9:. 2:95 w>> .3w_>ucm5 9.: >5 :cm :8 3:8 

*0 m2: cm 25:2 25 EmEE .wEmwm :5: 28:22 mcEmS mo. 
:5, 550:: cc: 3:3 25 £3, xmmgm 3 mag: :23 25 3:32: 

>mo_BmE.w_u m .69, v_oo_ 3 m::_.E8 m2, :2: 8:88 9:22 
.u 

.5663: 
6 m Lou. v62 8 mezzo: ES 

.>._m:cu_E @355 w: 2:05. 
new Umbcou mE umcmfi 23650 Ema: 

.5 “:5 8:82 9.26m 
.5 I l1 

.mymmtwtommflzgza Lou— Em mmaIEmmZ 
.cosEu—E So 

__ 

Lou, 8m $633. __mEm_ 
.mcozmHSE t6: 3:: 

.3633. =m :mtcn 
6528 .8.s 8 £623 30:: E0: mczficmb m: =5, 

25 5.5::2 E um: EOE >250 33: B 965 2 mc_::m_: Em m>> 
.aucwEEoumm 2:25... good £3, BcwEtmawu 3E... Em; Ems... 

833.. ES, :38: mn Ho: 2:8: ucm :5: :Es Em; 

BEEQES coEEou “SE 02:. we? 
.mcosmmg 83:: 5:: team 

2: 8.53m: ._mcmEocm;: 2mm 23 Us: 95 9.95 w? Ema ms: 53: 
>_mEmbxm 2m? 05 5:2m m .2: U5 

.50 Ema, Er: 99:3 m. 
2:0 “to; 3.2: 3530: 

.53 35: mm; t “832 m_._._. 
.BnEmEmm 

Lou. nXVNN Hm mm? =UcmEE0uwm 2:02,: am .tw m_ 0.; .adw 
“m mEs aucwEEm 2:02,: 53.29. mi HE. twtoam: Lw__:n_ .2 

mm.m.~H 
Em; m2::m.luo._: 

:3 o 
gm. n 33 Bow. .mpoifiou->ucwm< . 

BEE Nmma 3 58 m cm; 256 3&2: . 
aucwEESwm 2:03: :0 $03 “om cEtm: m . 

umnEmEmm .6“— ESEOUm cmE gmflmbm mfi E0: 3,3m 

.335 5:5 m=£ 0: 

:cm 9.32, mmv 32635 oz $2050 :8 39:5: Bum—0:: cm 3:: 
3:05 cc: 2.3.6:: mcoc m_ 25 

.3 be 598:: >H__m:_o mmmucmz 
$3.6m Hm mcEcmum cozmufimE 8mm .::->;o__ou_ 

3885.8 :0 

$63 dam oz 633:: NH 3 :mmmmbE wow 8 9:3 $622 233 
m E>o Eu— :Bo: 9.7.3 

33%.: .6532: m5 3 9:: 355.: mm 3 :: 

E25 32 Hafim 
.mdm pm 2325 m m: B 8:528 cozfizucouw. 

acmEteuwm 

tau—m 23:92). 

3.33. 
35:35. EEK: 



308000: 
a: 32.8 02 

.>.:0 00008:: 
.8050582 :0: 

Emma 2.2.0: ::0 :30: E05 EB 0:03 2:00: 

200E 05 208.008 505 :0 0000.: 2002.008 03% 0:0 .0038 t 
0:0:3 2:00: 200E .0800: .00: 03 580 0:0 30.000. 5.3 0:20 
:00: 05 023030: 0: ._.3 03 2003 5x02 :00 >05 :0:3 0:050 

8 tat. :8 80.800 0.222: m:.>m: 0:0 22203:: :8 00:500.: 

Emu 00:20:. :0.:3 0:03:05 0>.0>:. 8 5:03 03 m. 0m:0._m:0 

SO .:0 
m:.0m 3.500 “.0 0.0. 0 0. 005 E5 085%: 3:22 .0 050.00: 

.8300... E0E000.00¢ 

308000: 
a: 32.8 02 

3.:0 0.0.9.003: 
.m:050E:8:. :0”. 

.008 0:0 :0 
:2: u.m0505m 05 50m 8 0: 2:03 .mom 0:88 SO .:0505m.:.E0< 

8 530: 0:0 .005 :05 5.3 58 53.38 30> .002”. 05 

80.0800 8 .0023 :00: 0.30: 2800...: E0Et000o .5582 
25 

:. 0:0: :50 0:0 03 2.:3 20 8 “:03 >05 50:3 8 mm :80 E08 “50:. 
:8 m:.v.mm 0:0 :2: 0.m0505m :2sm0: 05 m:.0.0 :50. 0:0 0>> 58m 
.8602 0:0 m00>20E0 05 5.3 0:20 00.0 003 2:... 0:00.: 05 

5.3 00000:. m:.:0.m.> m m:.2u 0: ...3 02, 32.68 30: 05 :0 308 
0 5.3 3.0005 05 :. 000%:0 2020.00 0:0 03 :05 00:000: 9:22 .u 300:: 

m:.::m.n. 03385 HNQN 

2.000000: 
0: 32.8 02 

2:0 00008:: 
.0:050E:8:. :0“. 

.33 
m. 000: 00:0..0E00 2:026 .:0.5050.:.E00.u:0m 

:8 8.2.0 
05 :0. 8 :028 003 0020003 3: 00.6.0.5. .m:.::0E 

302:“. 0.5 0: 

__.3 0.5.0 2“. 500.. .5808: 
3280:... 0:0 m:.::0E 30:22 :0 2003 

5.00. 00:80 8.2.0 020003 5 0030.95 0.05 0001600: 0E0..0_2 .v. 
050005 3.“. 00>0.n.Em. 

3000.000: 

2.. 32.802 
.>.:0 00008:: 

.0:0...mE:8:. :0“. 

.:0:E000o 
U,0 m:.::.m0: 05 t 050. 

._.3 :0>:m .30. U5 5:0:5.EE00 0:0 0:0.5050m0: .~:0En.0_0>00 
:0000. :0 2205.80 :0 5.3 .8000: 0.005 0 mm: :02... 500:: 

05 50 .0080 50:3 m. 2:80.000. U6 5:0EQ20>0.0 0:0 EOE0mmm:m. 
.0055 :0>:m 28002.0 m... 30: m .002: 03: 03 0.05 00580 8:22 .0 3%.... 302.: m: 

.EB. 0.0:0mm 
m:.::8m 

308000: 
a: 32.802 

3.8 000082. 
.m:0.HmE._8:. :0”. 

3.:0 $000.50 
.m:050E:8:. :0“. 

303:0 05 050.0E00 >05 :0:3 0:00 Em mm 0 :30 m:.>.m 0:: 
03 3280.2 :0 000320.80 0:: tfim .02022 8 50 E03 9033. 
5:0E0mmmcm. 8:035:30: :00350: 58:00 @5980: 20.08:. 

5.3 0.0: 8 005:0:0300 5:80:20 05 0N.:m000: 8 E08 
0 mm 0.5 0.0 202 0:0 :30: :m _..3 5:0Etwa0: :00: 000320.80 

=0 5.3 .0208: 05 50:0525 >023 25 m:.00 :00: 0>m: 03> 
.m500E 

tSm .00.:02 :0:E0>0z 05 :0 00.50:. 3.2 05 20.98 
._.3 505 5:090 :0 mm: EEmoE :003m .mm..2 :0 005.000: 9:22 .u 

“:0E0mmmcm 00.3.05: 

.2555 
>: 5:0E0mm:0.2. mms. 



Rom: Q3 Ex. 

omom ‘3 538302 2 9.:m 333:8 uxmz 

.59» 2:36 tcw 
9: >3 5398 amp: was 3 Emu 95:98.3 tau :8 95 £05,250... 

mvwo ”E 85:23 mEEmS. 

mcacsm EcosmEhou—E 8n. 

.Ew: 
2.59.. .23 

3383 pm; 5290.. came Ho: mm: 3%: EEmoE :ozuwyoi =E>mn_ 9.: E0: 

9635 EcosLoE Lou. & :88. of. .598. 
co_=_E NNHm m gm; 95 ES 3:82 9:22 .u 

car... E355". awn—500 
.EEQ 

:o____E 3% m E 95 m2, 3% S 28> ans; m_.__._ B C2:2: mam .Em: 
mccmmm .25 

$383 >3 52% mm; 5253 FEB :o____E mam m cm; m3 gmnEBQmm t6”. o~o~ LmnEBnmm 

6:03.230 3 EmEBmumbcmEBmpm 2:85 2: 33% 8:22 .0 I oucmEBtwn. _m_ucm:_n_ 



Vision 
Patients 

Empii’yees Memorial Health 
Medlcal Staf’l= 
Quality 
Services . ‘ 
Financial MlSSIOh: To improve the health of our community. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
WEDNESDAY — OCTOBER 28, 2020 

12:00 p.m. - ORCHARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

MEMBERS: 
Keith Sattler 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Brandon Bowden 

CALL TO ORDER 

I. APPROVE MINUTES 
Em Beggflfl " __ - September 23, 2020 Minutes 

”114 “‘5 Prosser 

II. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Values 
Accountability 
Service 
Promote Teamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 
ExceHence 

STAFF: 
Craig Marks 
David Rollins 
Stephanie Titus 

A. Review Fina ncials — September 2020 (Attachment CC) David 
Action Reg" uested — September 2020 Fimahcial S t e ?  

B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal Stephanie 

C. COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachments KK,LL) David 

D. Voucher Lists 
ActiotLRegg gag.- Voucher Lis-t Payroll and AP Vouchers #153785 through #154514, David 
dated 09—17—20 through 10—22-20. in the amount of 57.060.590.30. 

E. Surplus Items Resolution 
gtionfieguested. - S u r p | u s m :  4 Mattress Overlays (FBC) David 
#001038 OR Table. 

F. Capital Requests David 
Action Requested— Capital Requeiu. 
1. Elevator Railings Upgrade 
2. Water Cooled Ice Machine/Water Dispenser 

III. ADJOURN 

October 28, 2020 Finance Committee 



Vision " Values 
Patients (« ‘ P r 0  8 S e r Accountability 
Emp'wees Memorial Health Service 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services . _ Respect 
Financial MISSlon: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY — SEPTEMBER 23, 2020 

NOON - ORCHARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

MEMBERS: 
Keith Sattler 
Brandon Bowden [é 

[- . er. 
I. . 

CALL TO ORDER 
Keith Sattler called the meeting to-é'r'der at 12: 24 p. mu? 

STAFF: 
Craig Marks 

. David Rollins 
" '1 Stephanie Titus 

. 
ii—

 

I. APPROVE MINUTES .: . _ - :2 
ACTION ITEM 1"». - -., 

J 

EFL-I‘M A motion to approve the Ein'ance Committee- Meeting .minEItesfo r August, 2020 as 
presented was made by Brandon Bowden. The Mgtlen wfir sgcended by Keith Sattler and 
approved. ~ . ~ ' H. ”in 

II. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP ,_..-_. 
I.__ ~ ‘  

A. David Rollins reviewed the Financial Statements” far August 2020 showing Net Income as negative 
._($1,219, 339) due to reversal of recognizing SBA Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Funds as 
government entities have to receive written forgiveness before recognition of income. Net 
Income would have been $187, 749 without any adjustments or COVID Funds 
ACTION ITEM ‘1. - 
A motion to recommend acceptance of the August Financial Statements as presented to the PMH 
Board of Commissioners w55~made by Brandon Bowden. The Motion was seconded by Keith 
Sattler and approved 

B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal 
Stephanie reviewed accounts receivable and cash receipts of $5.3 million and updated progress 
on Revenue Cycle initiatives. 

C. COVlD-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment W,X) 
Current projection is 2020 Net Income of $12,649,643 with $12,973,265 of COVID Funds, SBA, PPP 
Funds for $6,350,000 will be recognized in December 2020 or final audit calculations. 

August 26, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



D. Voucher List #153360 through # 15378 In the amount of $5,336,372.75.) 
ACTION ITEM ' 
A motion to recommend approval of the Voucher List #153360 through # 153784 in the amount 
of $5,336,372.75] as presented to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Brandon 
Bowden and seconded Keith Sattler and approved. 

E. Surplus Items Resolution: Everest Side by Side Refrigerator-Freezer; Office Chair; 
Bookshelf/Cabinet; Bookshelf; Desk. 
ACTION ITEM 

A motion to recommend approval of the Surplus Item Resolutions Everest Side by Side 
Refrigerator-Freezer; Office Chair; Bookshelf/Cabinet; Bookshelf; Desk as presented 
to the PMH Board of Commissioners was made by Brandon Bowden and seconded by Keith 
Sattler and approved ' 1 

F. Audit Firms Responses — Recommendation 7T 
ACTION ITEM _' .. -, - 
The submissions by DZA, Eide Bailly and WipFli were discussed. DZA vvas low bidder and since 
there were no performance issues, a motion to recommend approval of DZAasthe Audit Firm 
was made by Brandon Bowden and seconded by Keith Sattler and approved. 

m. ADJOURN _1 _ H 
Having declared no further business, thé‘rmeeting was adjourned .at-1:17 pm. 

August 26, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 



JMOMNDUM 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM: CRAIG .l. MARKS, CEO 

DATE: OCTOBER 2020 

RE: CEO REPORT 

SERVICES 

1. 2020 Strategic Planning 
We are off and running on our 2021 Strategic Planning Process with the distribution of our 

2021 Strategic Planning Packet (Attachment A) to all members of the PMH Team. In addition, 
printed versions of the packet will be distributed throughout PMH. As in past years, the 
planning packet and process take an external look at the healthcare industry and an internal 
look at Prosser Memorial Health, and how we are performing and positioned for the future. 
There is a tremendous amount of information in the packet that will help us plan for the future 
but unfortunately there is no information about the impact the COVlD-19 pandemic will have 
on the industry. While there is some speculation (e.g. increase in telehealth) it is still too early 
to know what permanent changes the pandemic will bring. 

While there is much to look forward to in the coming year, our largest project focuses on 
the replacement of our current hospital. To that end, a significant portion of our planning 
process is dedicated to meeting with all PMH Team members to discuss their vision for our new 
facility. In other words, using our six Pillars of Excellence as a guide to understanding what is 
important for them to see included in the new hospital (Attachment B). We began meeting 
with our team and asking this question last week (Attachment C) and will ask the Board to 
respond to this question at the October Board Work Session. We will use this information to 
create a Project Vision By Pillar with measurable goals, which will be approved by the Board 
and used to hold us accountable on this significant project. 

We are also asking for input from our team on what they would like to see us accomplish by 
Pillar in 2021 (Attachment D). We are asking each department to meet with their staff and 
complete this worksheet. We will also ask the Board for their suggestions on this worksheet at 
the October Board Work Session. We will use this input to create our 2021 Strategic Plan which 
will be reviewed with the Board in November and the Board will be asked to approve it in 
December. One of our goals with the 2021 Strategic Plan is to make it shorter and less 
complex. Our ultimate goal will be to eventually have a strategic plan that fits on one page. 
While a worthy goal, that may take several years to accomplish. 



2. Replacement Facility Update 
While our replacement facility is the primary focus of our 2021 Strategic Planning Process, 

we also continue to work on many other fronts of the replacement facility project. This past 
week we spent several days (Attachment E) refining our plans for our acute care, LDRP and ED 
patient rooms (Attachment F). These drawings represent the feedback from the first mock 
rooms, and were once again built as mock rooms for our staff to tour and try out. Based on the 
feedback received last week, additional adjustments will be made to each room and these 
rooms will be what we plan to build. In addition to viewing the rooms again, we also asked our 
staff where to put light switches, electrical outlets, gasses, etc. While no one was able to get 
everything they want, we did reach a consensus that will address the needs of our patients, 
staff, and providers. I would like to thank everyone that has participated in the process, we 
could not do this without your input! 

The team has also been focused on IVIEP (Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing) plans, initial floor 
plans and site layouts. Since there is no natural gas service on the north side ofthe Yakima 
River in Prosser, we have been planning for an all-electric facility. However, with the assistance 
of the Prosser Economic Development Association and the City of Prosser, we have been able 
to discuss the possibility of a new gas line that would run to our property by Cascade Natural 
Gas. While we are still early in this discussion, Cascade Natural Gas has informed us they will 
know the feasibility and cost of such a line by November 1, 2020. We need an answer by then 
to continue our MEP planning for the new building. We also met with our civil engineer to 
begin looking at possible site layouts for the hospital, roads, parking lots, medical office 
buildings, a heliport, the irrigation canal, etc. We are early in the process, but they hope to 
have some ideas to share with the Board next week. 

Our design team has been busy working on possible floor plans for the first and second 
floors of the facility. We plan to spend a lot of time next week reviewing the floor plans with 
department leaders (Attachment G) and continuing to work on site, MEP and building exterior 
(massing) plans. Our Owner’s Representatives (NVS) are assisting us with a review ofthese 
areas. They are also helping us with conversations with the Department of Health regarding 
our need for a Certificate of Need (CON) for our replacement facility (Attachment H). Our 
interpretations of the State statutes indicate that we do not need a CON, but we are required 
to pay $1,965 to the DOH to have them officially tell us whether or not we need a CON. We 
sent the letter and are now waiting for their response. Last month we planned to discuss the 
construction contracting methods used by public entities in the State of Washington with the 
Board, however, we forgot. Therefore, our Owner’s Representatives plan to discuss our options 
(Design, Bid, Build/ General Contractor/Construction Manager (Attachment I-1) with the Board 
during the October Board Work Session. I have also included our application to the Capital 
Project, , Advisory Review Board (CPARB), which will allow us to utilize the GC/CM method if we 
so choose (Attachment l-Z). Finally, we have begun to collect Letters of Support for our 
replacement facility to share with the USDA when we submit our final/formal application 
(Attachmentsl 8: K). 



3. Nuclear Medicine Update 
Work continues at a very rapid pace on our nuclear medicine renovation project. This 

project is another reminder of when it is better to build new as opposed to renovate. At times 
the noise levels are very disruptive and if this was a larger project, it would cause problems. 
Fortunately, the area is temporarily walled off and the primary area impacted is Administration 
(the CEO’s Office), so it is not a problem. We continue to work with the Department of Health 
and recently received letters sent by the City of Prosser announcing our intent to have 
radioactive material on our campus for the provision of nuclear medicine services (Attachment 
L). At this point, everything appears to be progressing as expected regarding our license. 
Aurora Weddle, Director of Diagnostic Imaging, is beginning to conduct interviews for our 
nuclear medicine technician. She has several candidates and plans to make a decision in the 
near future so that the technician can be here as the new equipment is being installed (first 
week of November) and become oriented to the renovated space and new technology. Our 
plan remains to be operations before the end of 2020, which will enable us to say that 
something good happened in this crazy year! 

4. da Vinci Robot 
We have begun to explore the feasibility of acquiring a da Vinci Robot to perform Urology, 

gynecological, colorectal and general surgery cases. Our new general surgeon, Dr. Unger and 
Urologist, Dr. Tieu are interested in robotic surgery and our two OB/GYN’s are already trained 
in robotic surgery. This technology can enhance patient outcomes (e.g. less invasive, faster 
recovery times) and most surgeons are now trained with this technology. Originally, we were 
planning to add this service in our new hospital, but with the current level of interest by our 
surgeons we are exploring the option now. As you recall, we are currently performing robot 
assisted joint (knees and hips) replacement surgeries with a Stryker Mako Robot. Because we 
are a critical access hospital (CAH) we have a distinct advantage in paying for this technology 
(cost reimbursement) compared to fee for service hospitals. To begin the process, we recently 
met with representatives from Intuitive, the owners of the da Vinci Robot. Intuitive and their 
DaVinci platform have pioneered new capabilities in the OR, transforming the field of minimally 
invasive surgery over the last 20 years (Attachment M). 

Intuitive is working with us to identify the type of robot we would need, the space 
requirements, number of cases we need to perform to pay for the technology, etc. We are also 
reviewing additional sources of information (Attachment N) and discussing this with our 
providers. One of our big questions is whether or not a da Vinci Robot will fit in our largest 
operating room without disrupting our other surgeries. Because this is a large investment (SI-2 
million) we will do our homework to ensure we are ready for this technology. If we determine 
we are prepared, we will budget to acquire the technology in 2021. We may also determine 
that it is best to wait until we have a new hospital in 2024, but we will be more prepared when 
that day arrives. In the meantime, if we delay acquisition of this technology until 2024, our 
providers can be privileged at Kadlec and/or Trios and use their da Vince Robots. We will keep 
you informed as we study this exciting technology and remember, even ifthis technology 
appears in the 2021 Capital Budget, the Board will have an opportunity to review the proposal 
and approve or reject it before acquisition of the technology. 



5. EPIC Annual Report 
I recently wrote about Providence Health taking their Community Connect product (the 

ability for independent, smaller hospitals to share EPIC with the other Providence-owned 
hospital) and creating a new organization centered around it called Community Technologies 
The Community Technologies organization is now off and running and conducted a day-long 
virtual seminar to discuss their new organization, global IT challenges (e.g. cybersecurity) and 
new offerings for Community Technologies customers. One of these new products is an EPIC 
executive packet that contains our EPIC performance compared to other EPIC users 
(Attachment 0). We are just beginning to sort through all the data contained in the report, but 
believe it will help us identify opportunities for improvement and celebrate areas where our 
performance is strong. Kevin Hardiek, Chief Information Officer, will briefly review this report 
at the October Board meeting. 

6. Lab Equipment 
A capital request for an Abbott Abaxis Piccolo Xpress Chemistry Analyzer is being submitted for 

approval this month ($14,298). The chemistry analyzer utilized in the central lab is both expensive and 
requires a large amount of space. When the chemistry analyzer goes down, patient care delivery, 
especially in the Emergency Department, is significantly impacted. Failure of the chemistry analyzer 
occurred earlier this month for several days, required multiple courier trips to Tri-city laboratory around 
the clock to have critical tests run. A cost-effective and space-sparing way to prevent delayed results of 
critical tests is the Piccolo Xpress. This analyzer will provide another alternative for multi-chemistry and 
electrolyte test results. All departments are considering innovations of this kind as we are planning the 
new hospital. The goal is to ensure the reliability of providing critical diagnostics through redundancy 
without duplicating more expensive equipment. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

1. Patient Thank Yous 
We continue to receive a steady stream of thank yous (Attachment P) from patients as our 

team provides outstanding care to our patients. It is wonderful to read how our staff have 
positively impacted our patients and their families in many different ways. It also says a lot 
about the communities we serve, when our local citizens take the time to say, ”thank you!” 
This doesn’t happen everywhere and demonstrates that we live in a very special place. I also 
want to let the Board know that our staff is very appreciative of everything they have done for 
them during these challenging times, ranging from the Pool Party gift cards (Attachment Q) to 
the COVlD-19 thank you gift (Attachment R). I cannot objectively tell you how many staff have 
asked me to thank the Board, but it has been a lot. It would not be possible for us to be where 
we are today without the strong support of our Board. Thank you!! 



EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

1. HR Director Update 
After several months searching for the best candidate to become the next Director of 

Human Resources at PM H, I am pleased to announce that l have selected Bryon Dirkes 
(Attachment 5). Bryon is currently the Director of Human Resources at Forks Community 
Hospital in Forks, Washington, and has over twenty-five years of healthcare human resources 
experience. Included in his experience is seventeen years within Providence Health and three 
years at Trios. Bryon’s strengths include employee engagement and leadership devel0pment, 
and he is very excited to join PMH and assist us in our pursuit of excellence. Bryon currently 
lives in Walla Walla and plans to join us in early December. Please join me in welcoming Bryon 
to our team and thanking Rocky, Nora and Crystal for the outstandingjob they are doing every 
day in Human Resources! 

2. Engagement Surveys 
The Annual PMH Employee and Medical Staff Engagement Surveys were sent out October 

19 and will close on November 13 (Attachment T). We are using the same basic survey 
instrument we have used in past years, but have included the opportunity to provide specifics if 
staff believe communication is less than expected (Attachment U). We have worked hard to 
improve communication and need more actionable ideas so that we can continue to improve. 
The survey is 100% confidential and will identify areas where we are performing well and also 
opportunities for improvement. I encourage everyone to participate in the survey and give us 
your honest feedback. Everyone that participates in the survey will receive a $5 gift card for the 
Busy Bean or Hole in the Wall, for taking the time to engage with us. Regardless of the results 
ofthe survey, we will never stop trying to improve engagement with our team! 

3. PMH Retirement Plan 
For the past several months we have been discussing with the Board, ways to enhance 

employee participating in the PMH Retirement Plan. Currently, PMH contributes 3% of each 
employees’ gross pay toward their retirement and only 38% of our staff contribute any 
additional funds. Across the country, 73% of employees participate in contributing to their 
retirement plans. In addition, 3% is not nearly enough for anyone to retire comfortably. After 
looking at many different options, we have developed a plan which is a combination ofour 
current plan along with the addition of a matching component that would be rolled out over 
the next four years (Attachment V). We are proposing that full and part-time employees will 
continue to receive the automatic 3% contribution from PMH. Per diem staff will no longer 
receive it because they already receive a 10% hourly increase for not receiving benefits. PMH 
will then contributed $1.00 for every $10 employees contributed up to a total of 1%. Each year 
we would increase the match and decrease the automatic hospital contribution until 2024 
when the program would be 100% match up to 4%. Depending upon the participating levels, 
the match could also be increased in future years. We are also proposing an opt-out approach, 
meaning that 4% will automatically be set aside for retirement, unless the employee choose not 
to participate or opts out. The current annual cost of the PMH Retirement Plan is $658,823 per 



year and the cost ofthe new plan will range over the years from $818,313 to $796,547, 
depending upon the participation level. We will discuss this plan at the October Board Work 
Session and the Board will be asked to vote on it at the October Board Meeting, with a 
proposed implementation date ofJanuary 1, 2021. 

4. Employee Engagement 
Now that we are officially into fall, we are looking forward to our Annual Halloween 

Extravaganza. The Employee Engagement Team is once again hosting the fun which will include 
a departmental and individual costume contest, pumpkin decorating contest and lunch served 
by the Administrative Team (Attachment W). Unfortunately, because of the pandemic, we are 
not able to have our Annual Chili Cook-off, but it will return next year. We will have our 
departments decorated, so we are encouraging our staff to trick-or-treat to each department 
utilizing appropriate COVlD-19 precautions. It is also time to start thinking about the upcoming 
holidays. At this time, we are still planning to host our Annual Holiday Party on December 12, 
however, with the resurgence of the COVlD—19 virus in the area, and across the country, it is 
getting less and less likely that we will be able to have our party. We will notify everyone as 
soon as a final decision is made. I have also included the October newsletter which highlights 
some of the activities at PMH in September/October (Attachment X). 

5. 2020 Leadership Evaluation Management (LEM) 
For the past three years we have been using the Studer Leadership Evaluation Management 

system to evaluate the performance of our Leadership Team. Our current LEM (2020) indicates 
that we are performing well with the exception ofthe Services Pillar (Attachment Y). The 
reason for this is that the Services Pillar is measured based on adjusted patient days and they 
are down at PMH and all hospitals across the country because of the pandemic. Because we 
lost several months of patient volumes due to the pandemic, it is virtually impossible for us to 
achieve our budgeted goal. This decline in volumes was unexpected and outside of our control. 
For this reason, I would like to purpose to the Board that for this year, and this year only, the 
Service Pillar be excluded from the LEM and the weights redistributed to the Quality and 
Financial Stewardship Pillars. This change would make the Quality and Finance Pillars worth 
15% rather than 10%. We can discuss this idea at the October Board Meeting. 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 
I am pleased to announce that after several months of discussion Dr. Richard Unger, general 

surgeon, has decided to join the PMH Team (Attachment 2). Dr. Unger provided locum tenens 
services at PMH after Dr. Chaugle left and was well liked by our patients, staff and providers. 
Dr. Unger has a long history of practicing in smaller rural communities and is looking forward to 
expanding the scope of general surgery services we provide at PMH. Dr. Unger plans to join us 
full—time in January. Please join me in welcoming Dr. Unger back to PMH. With our general 
surgery needs addressed, we are now actively recruiting for a gastroenterologist, dermatologist 



and primary care providers (IM, Family Practice, Pediatrics) for Benton City and Grandview. We 
currently have two dermatologists interested in our Opportunity and one of them currently 
resides in the Seattle area, but would like to relocate. We plan to have at least one of these 
candidates visit in the next couple of weeks. One of the keys to our current success has been 
our ability for everyone to review our draft 2021 Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment 
Plan. The proposed Plan continues to build our primary care base, while adding two specialists 
(GI, dermatology). We welcome your feedback as it relates to this Plan, which will go to the 
Board for approval in December. 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

1. Financial Performance - September 
We continue to work our way back to normal, but continue to be 5—10% behind our 

expectations (budget) while exceeding our last year’s performance (Attachment CC). For the 
second month in a row, we were profitable without the benefit of COVlD-19 Relief Funds. 
While our profits without the Relief Funds were small (Operating Income - $,075, Net Income - 
$53,443) they were positive and begin to position us for a strong 2021. In September, our gross 
revenue was 7% below budget as a result of hospital and clinic volumes continuing to be slightly 
below expectations. Our deductions from revenue were better than expected and with the 
addition of $1.3 million of COVlD-19 Relief Funds, our net revenue was $1.675 million (31%) 
better than budget. Our expenses in September were higher than expected because of our 
COVlD-19 incentive payments to our staff and the purchase of supplies and minor equipment 
for our new surgeons (urology, ENT). The net result was an operating income of $1.3 million 
and a net income of$1.353 million, both significantly over budget and last year. 

As a result of our slowly recovering volumes and COVID-19 Relief Funds, our year-to-date 
financial performance is excellent. Our gross revenue is trending at 13% below budget, but 
only 1% last year at this time. Our deductions from revenue are in line with our decreased 
gross revenue and budget expectations and we have recognized $5.1 million of Relief Funds. As 
a result, our net revenue is 3% ($1.6 million) better than budget and 13% ($5.6 million) better 
than last year. Our expenses, in total, are trending right at budget despite the recently 
unbudgeted incentive compensation payments. The result is a year-to-date operating income 
of $4.1 million (8.3%) and a net income of $4.568 million (10.2%). Both margins far exceed our 
Pillar Goal (6.0%) and position us well for the future. As good as our income statement looks, 
our balance sheet looks even better. We currently have 222.58 days of cash on hand and our 
payor mix continues to be strong. While we have not yet recognized the $6.35 million of 
Payroll Protection Program funds on our income statement yet, we are beginning to submit the 
required forgiveness data and expect to show the $6.35 million of our income statement before 
the end of the year. Our primary financial opportunity for improvement is to enhance our 
billing and collection process. We currently have 57.18 days in net accounts receivable, while 
our long—term goal is 45 days. Our team is aggressively attacking this opportunity and plan to 
improve in the coming months. 



2. PMH Clinic Quarterly Financial Performance 
The past several months has been a struggle for our clinics and clinics all across the country. 

Volumes are down, but slowly recovering. However, the lack of volume has created financial 
deficits that cannot be made up in a few months. Our clinics in total are 51.4 million below 
their budget and $1.5 million behind last year (Attachment DD). However, if we allocate their 
share ofthe COVID-19 Relief Funds to the clinics (approximately $1.2 million), they are much 
closer to budget and last year. In addition, our clinics contribute significantly to overall hospital 
volumes and revenue. 

3. 2021 Budget Process 
As we begin to collect information as part of our Strategic Planning process, we have also 

begun to develop our Operating and Capital Budgets for FY 2021. Our department leaders are 
currently projecting their revenue and expenses for next year. Because this was such an 
unusual year, we are advising our leaders to start with their 2020 Budget and make 
adjustments as necessary for 2021. If we use 2020 actual data and annualize it, we believe our 
numbers will be artificially low. To say the lease, 2021 will be a challenging year to budget. By 
the end of October/early November, we will total all department input and see how close we 
are to our total margin goal of 6.0%. We will then meet with department leaders to identify 
additional opportunities for improvement (revenue growth and expense reduction), if need to 
meet our total margin goal. In addition to working on our Operating Budget, we are also 
collecting capital acquisition requests from our Medical Staff and all PMH departments, 
including our clinics. A preliminary budget will be presented to the Finance Committee and 
Board, for review and setting tax rates, in November and the final 2021 Operating and Capital 
Budges will be presented to the Board for approval in December. 

4. Malpractice Costs 
While we are all speculating what the future holds as it relates to the COVlD-19 pandemic 

and its aftermath, we were recently notified by our malpractice insurance broker, that 
malpractice costs are going up across the country. At PMH we have been very fortunate and 
have not had any significant malpractice claims or payouts for well over 5 years,. Despite our 
positive track record, Physicians Insurance is telling us to expect premium increases going 
forward (Attachment EE). While this is only one expense area at PMH, we are concerned that 
the cost ofthe pandemic may be passed on to us in other areas. This is another reason why 
2021 will be very challenging to budget. 

5. Cleverly Hospital Dashboard Report 
Cleverly and Associates is a top hospital financial consulting company in the country. For 

the past several years we have used them to assist us in setting our charges which has been 
very successful. Cleverly helps us keep our charges below our competition, yet maximize our 
revenue potential based upon our payor mix. Cleverly is also known for their Dashboard Report 
which compares hospitals’ financial performance against other U.S. hospitals. (Attachment FF) 
We just received our report and are beginning to examine it to identify opportunities for 
improvement. Our report compares us to hospitals with similar net revenue and all U.S. 
hospitals. It should be noted that Cleverly obtains this information from Medicare Cost Reports 

I 



filed by every hospital in the country. Unfortunately, however, our data is from our 2018 
Medicare Cost Report, while most hospitals are using their 2019 Cost Report. Our 2019 Cost 
Report should be available to Cleverly in a couple month and we will have them run the report 
again. Regardless, the information is very valuable and David Rollins, CFO, will briefly review 
the Dashboard with the Board at the October Board Meeting. 

6. PMH Foundation Update 
The Foundation began phase 1 of the capital campaign feasibility study this week, including 

the development of a PMH New Hospital Prospectus (Attachment 66). For the next three 
weeks we will have Andy Coe and Jay Werth from Convergent Non-Profit Solutions, in town 
conducting one-on-one, confidential interviews with people on the donor prospect list we 
created. The goal is to have a minimum of 50 interviews done in that three-week span. 

When the interviews are completed, Convergent will supply the Foundation with a report 
based on feedback from the interviews with a recommendation on what a realistic capital 
campaign goal should be set at. They will also provide qualitative information in an aggregate 
form on what the overall community support is for building a new hospital. Both the financial 
target and the aggregate will be included in our USDA loan to demonstrate community support 
for the project. 

QUALITY 

1. New PMH Board Commissioner 
On September 29“", the PMH Board of Commissioners interviewed four individuals 

interested in the position vacated by Kit Watson when he moved out of the Hospital District. 
All four candidates interviewed were well qualified and in the end, the Board selected Neilan 
McPartland to fill the vacant pOSition (Attachment HH). Neilan will begin his duties in October 
and will fill the remainder of Kit’s term, which was through December 2021. Please join me in 
welcoming Neilan to the PMH Board of Commissioners! We plan to schedule orientation for 
Neilan to PMH at his convenience and before the end of the year if possible. 

2. COVlD-19 Update 
The PMH COVID-19 Task Force continues to meet on a weekly basis and the good news is 

that the number of positive cases has been declining at PMH and Benton -Franklin Counties 
(Attachment II). Nationally the number of cases is increasing again, but the average age of 
those infected is younger and the deaths from COVID-19 have significantly decreased. We are 
doing a much betterjob protecting the vulnerable and the treatment regimens (e.g. 
Remdesivir, zinc, vitamin D, Dexamethasone, etc.) are more effective. PMH has done a good 
job of maintaining adequate supplies of PPE, medications, COVlD-19 lab reagents, etc. and we 
do not anticipate any challenges in the near future, but we are closely monitoring COVlD—19 
activity throughout the area. With the onset of fall and colder temperatures, we are also 
opening up all of our clinics to care for patients with respiratory issues, rather than sending 
them exclusively to the Prosser COVlD-19 Clinic. Each clinic is establishing a well and sick 



section in their waiting rooms, and the sick patients are being cared for in designated treatment 
rooms. It is also important to remember that all patients are masked when they enter a clinic. 
The Prosser COVlD-19 Clinic will also remain open seven days a week for the foreseeable 
future. 

Now that fall has arrived, that is also a sign that it is flu season. We are now offering flu 
shots to our staff and encouraging everyone to get one (Attachment 1]). The last thing we need 
is for hospital beds to be filled with both COVID-19 and flu patients, which would put our 
capacity to care for everyone at risk. Hospitals have reinvented themselves in many ways to 
respond to COVlD—19. Since March, decades of standard operating procedures have been 
reexamined, redesigned and refined, with the goal of saving lives while protecting our 
caregivers and patient’s’ families during the pandemic. For example, we have increased COVID- 
19 testing capabilities; implemented social distancing and mask use through our facilities; 
limited visitors, etc. The precautions have made PMH and other hospitals among the safest 
environments found anywhere today. Despite this, we continue to see evidence that people 
are putting off necessary care due to unfounded fears of contractingCOVlD—19 from a hospital 
visit. A CDC study found that during the first five moths of 2020 the number of visits to 
emergency departments for life-threatening illnesses declined by 42%. In addition, it was found 
that there was a dramatic drop in Medicaid pediatric visits for primary and preventive care 
services. These delays can have an adverse effect on a person’s health and have caused us and 
the AHA to promote the safety and availability of our services. Hopefully, with the support of 
organizations like the AHA, and the ads we are running, local citizens will pursue the healthcare 
services they need and deserve, without the fear of contracting COVlD-19. 

3. COVID-19 Financial Plan 
PMH continues to perform well financially because of our ability to access COVlD-19 Relief 

Funds and our patient volumes consistently being over 90% of our 2020 budget. Year-to-date 
(through September) we have received $19,971,754 of COVID-19 Relief Funds (Attachment KK). 
Of those funds, $5,196,271 have been recognized on our income statements, leaving 
$8,183,503 to be used or recognized in the future. We have already determined that we will 
not need the 56,35 million of Medicare Advanced Payments and will pay this back over the next 
year. We also have not recognized the SBA Payroll Protection Loan of 56,35 million because it 
has not yet been forgiven. We anticipate that is will be forgiven before the end of the year 
which will add $6,35 million to our net income (Attachment LL). As a result, we are projecting 
that our net income for 2020 will be $12,299,041. This would be an incredible financial year for 
PMH and is based on the guidelines we were given by HHS several months ago. However, they 
recently changed the guidelines which would have a negative impact on PMH. 

In June, HHS stated that hospitals could "use any reasonable method of estimating the 
revenue during March and April 2020 compared to the same period had COVlD—19 not 
appeared. For example, if hospitals had prepared a budget without taking into account the 
impact of COVlD-19 (such as PMH), the estimated lost revenue could be the difference between 
budgeted revenue and actual revenue. It was also considered reasonable to compare the 
revenues to the same period last year. However, on September 19th, HHS issued a new 



definition of lost revenue, stating that is was “represented as a negative change in yea r-over- 
year net patient care operating income.” This definition change has serious financial 
implications for the hospital industry and is being fought by the AHA and several members of 
Congress (Attachment MM). This change could cost PMH up to approximately $5 million. 
While that would be a significant loss, we would still end 1010 with a net income of 
approximately $7.3 million. This would far exceed our budget expectations and our Financial 
Stewardship Pillar goal. 

4. October Board Meetings 
We have a busy October Board Work Session planned as we continue to work on our 

Replacement Facility Project by discussing the Board’s Vision for the new facility, learning about 
the construction methods we are allowed to use in Washington and receive an update the work 
the Design Team is doing. We would also like to spend a brief time discussing items the Board 
would like to see in the 2021 Strategic Plan. Finally, we have two Employee Development 
topics we would like to discuss which include another revised PMH Retirement Plan and the 
2020 PMH LEM Scorecard. The October Board Meeting will be very straight forward with a 
possible action item related to the PMH Retirement Plan and informational reports regarding 
the Cleverly Dashboard Report and the PMH EPIC Annual Report. Also, a reminder that the 
November Board Meetings will be held on November 17 and 19th and the December Board 
Meetings will be held on December 15th and 17‘“. These changes were all made to avoid 
conflicts with the upcoming holiday season. 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other Hospital activities, please contact me 
at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786—6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the Hospital. 



Attachment A 

Fiscal Year 2021 
Strategic Planning 
Document 

F: I . 1%.. : H I .  

ilEy-Irinployee Engagé'me.’ . . 
Ihl' - ‘ _ -. I I  I : I I 

afiedical Staff .ID.ev.e'lo Ea. ', FIE, 
- . . _. {II . _ 

‘. uaht 1' .IH'II'Ffll‘rl-hn 'l' ‘ 
.1. E l s i .  ‘ l - ‘ r  2| 

9 :erVIces r *' 3 '  . LJ-II ' 
'.I:' I! ""4“ "'3'” rI Lid ‘F. ‘ -nc-.ial . ‘j‘fifitIig'IIéill‘riiig-iiiilffl 

llll— _‘_' I I I  | _ _ |  ¢1ll-l t i l l : : : l :  
_ I': 

{‘I Prosser 
I I !  Memorial Health 

723 Memorial Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Contains Confidential Information ProsserHealth.org 



Table of Contents 
I. Strategic Planning Model ..................................................................................... 4 

ll. Mission, Vision, Values, and Standards of Behavior ........................................... 6 

III. External Assessment .......................................................................................... 24 

B. Hospital & Health Network Environmental Scan 2020 . ............................ 25 

C. JP. Morgan’s Top 10 Questions Every CEO Must Answer ..................... 45 

D. Top 10 Trends to Watch (and Act Upon) in 2020 ..................................... 53 

E. ASHE 2020 Hospital Construction Survey ............................................... 60 

IV. Internal Assessment .......................................................................................... 69 

A. Demographic Data ................................................................................... 70 

B. Community Health Needs Assessment .................................................... 83 

C. Prosser Community Health Needs Assessment ...................................... 110 

D. Market Analysis ........................................................................................ 117 
E. Patient Loyalty .......................................................................................... 129 

F. Historical Financial Performance .............................................................. 158 

i. Hospital Dashboard Report ............................................................ 159 

ii. Balance Sheet & Statement of Operations ..................................... 164 

G. Service Line Analysis ............................................................................... 177 

i. Organizational Chart ....................................................................... 178 

ii. Statistics ......................................................................................... 179 

iii. Trend Line Graphics ...................................................................... 180 

V. Replacement Facility Update .............................................................................. 190 

A. Draft Prospectus Report ........................................................................... 191 

VI. Medical Staff Analysis ........................................................................................ 199 

A. Medical Staff Recruitment Model ............................................................. 200 

Vll. PMH Medical Strategic Plan Performance Update 2017—2020 ......................... 213 

A. FY 2020 Strategic Plan Update ................................................................ 214 

VIII. PMH Team Worksheets ................................................................................... 234 



Vision “ Values 
Patients , ) P r 0  8 S e r Accountability 

Emphyees Ll Memorial Health 5W5" 
Medical Staff Promote Teamwork 
Quality Integrity 
Services Respect 
Financial Mission: To improve the health of our community. Excellence 

October 9, 2020 

D ea r Tea m, 

’(Success is Wh at happens when opportunity meets planning. ”- Thom as Edison 

It's once again time to roll up our collective sleeves, put pencil to paper, and chart our course for 2021, during 
the Strategic Planning process we have established at Prosser Memorial Health. While the process can be a 
little daunting. and the information provided to you more than a little overwhelming, I would like each of you 
to reflect on the last four years that we have engaged in strategic planning and think of Thomas Edison's 
quote. 

In 2017, we put a plan together. establishing our Six Pillars of Excellence, created a Mission, Vision and 
Values that we hold each otherto, and identified specific goals and objectives to achieve excellence in each 
ofour pillars. The growth and success we have experienced sincethattime is not by accident. It is a true 
reflection of what we can do as an organization when we have a clear road map that defines where we 
wont to be and the commitment of every team member to do their part to help us get there. 

Yes, 2020 has brought incredible disruption to our organization and the goals and objectives we had in our 
Strategic Plan this year. However, our continued success is our resilience and trust in one another. We are 
committed to our Mission: To Improve the Health of Those We Serve. We believe in our Vision: To Become a 
70p .2 00 Chard/Access Hospital (in the Country, and we are committed to our ASPIRE values. We've had to 
be flexible and pivot to meet the needs a pandemic has brought to PM H, but we have not lost sight of what 
is important. 

In our planning process this year, we will focus on recommitting to each of our Six Pillars of Success that will 
take us into 2024, and how these Six Pillars will make building a new hospital on attainable goal for our 
organization in 2024. It won't always be easy, but I commit to you that it will be worth it. 

Part of the 2021 strategic planning process. is to seek out your ideas. I encourage you to read through the 
2021 Strategic Planning document and share your ideas and feedback on how we can make Prosser 
Memorial Health stronger in each of our six pillars for 2021 and beyond. There are two worksheets in this 
packet; one is called New Hospital Visioning Worksheet. please provide feedback about what you would like 
to see for the new hospital as it relates to our Six Pillars of Excellence, and the other is our standard Strategic 
Planning Session Worksheet for general ideas and feedback. 

Thank you for everything you do for our patients, their families. our community and each other. 
#ThislSHowWeCare #ThislSWhereHereosWork! 

Sincerely. 

Craig J. Marks, FACHE 
Chief Executive Officer 
Prosser Memorial Health 
[Find the hidden syringe and email the page number to Carol Allen to win a gift certificate.) 





I ‘ )  P r0 5 S e r FY 2021 Prosser Memorial Health 
‘LJ Memorial Health Strategic Planning Model 

Mission, Vision, 8: Values 

l I 

Approved Programs Strategy Implementation Financial Planning & Services 

J 
Allocate Resources 

Jr 
Measure & Evaluate Financial Analysis Strategy Evaluation 





Mission, Vision, Values 
& 

Standards of Behavior 

Our Values 

Accountability Service Promote Teamwork Integrity Respect Excellence 



Our Mission 
Prosser Memorial Health will improve the health of our community. 

Our Vision 

FY 2021-2024 

Prosser Memorial Hospital will become one of the top 100 Critical Access 
Hospitals in the country through the achievement of the following Pillars of 
Excellence. 

Pillars of Excellence 
1. Patient Loyalty Pillar: PMH will provide outstanding customer service, 

aspiring to treat those we serve the way they want to be treated. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher. 

2. Medical Staff Development Pillar: PMH will respond to Medical Staff 
concerns and needs in a timely manner, pursue initiatives in 
collaboration with our Medical Staff and ensure the availability of the 
appropriate providers for those we serve. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual Medical Staff 
satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 



3. Employee Development Pillar: PMH will encourage and provide for the 
ongoing development of our employees. We will provide an atmosphere 
that values our employees and promotes: 
. Open communication. 
0 Competitive wages and benefits. 
0 Selection and retention of effective, caring personnel. 
. Utilization and development of talent throughout the organization. 
- On—going education. 
. Employee recognition. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual employee 
satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 

4. Quality Pillar: PMH will develop and maintain a system of continuous 
improvement which is incorporated into the daily work of every 
employee and Medical Staff member. 

GOAL: Achieve an iVantage Quality score of 49 or higher. 

5. Services Pillar: PMH will develop and maintain appropriate facilities, 
technology and services to meet the needs of those we serve that 
includes building a replacement facility. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve a 50% market share of our greater community 
for those services we provide. 

6. Financial Stewardship Pillar: PMH will continue to strengthen its 
financial stewardship position to enhance the ability to develop new 
services, obtain needed technology, modernize facilities, recruit 
physicians and ultimately ensure long-term viability. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve an annual total margin of 6% or more. 



Administrative Team 
Pillar Champions 

Patient Loyalty 

Chief Nursing Gfficer 
Chief Operations.- Offite'lr 

Hedi-cal Staff Development Em playee Engagement 

Chief Human 
Resources Officer Chief Medical Officer 

Quality Services Financial StEwardship 

Chief Quality .4" Compliance 
Risk Officer 

Chief Communications Dfficer , _ . Q _ 
Ch J ' . 

Chief Info r-r‘nation Officer ' 'Ef Finarmal C fficer 

Our Values 

Accountability Service Promote Teamwork Integrity Respect Excellence 

1O 



Our Values 
ASPIRE to soar to a great height 
A 

S 
p 

Accountability: Take responsibility for our own behavior 

Service: Care enough to exceed the expectations of those we serve 

Promote Teamwork: Work together to achieve common goals 

Integrity: Do the right thing even when no one is watching 

Respect: Respect the inherent value and worth of each person 

Excellence: Exceed the expectations of those we serve 

11 



Our Shared VaIues 



Staff and Auxiliary 
Prosser Memorial Health has a rich heritage of leadership in our 
community, consistently offering new and innovative services. While our 
Mission calls us to deliver compassionate, high—quality, affordable health 
services to our community, we also strive for excellence in every aspect of 
the way we care for our patients and their families. When we enhance our 
service excellence, we will establish a lifelong relationship with our patients 
and their families, securing our future and the next generation of quality 
health care. 

These standards outline the behaviors necessary to achieve excellence in 
the way we work together as a team to serve our patients. We have the 
opportunity to practice excellence in every interaction we have with a 
patient, a family member, physician, visitor, or each other. In order to 
achieve and sustain service excellence, we request that each staff member 
read and incorporate these behaviors and follow these standards in their 
daily work lives. These expectations will be added to each job application 
and description as well as Medical Staff, Board member and auxiliary 
applications. All team members will be accountable for their customer 
service attitude and actions. Creating a workplace where everyone is 
willing to go the extra mile to show kindness and meet the needs of our 
patients, family members, physicians, and co-workers will be greatly 
beneficial to everyone. 

Craig J. Marks, FACHE 
CEO 
Prosser Memorial Health 

13 



Introduction 
Prosser Memorial Health strives to fulfill its Mission by expecting all staff to 
embrace our values and adopt our Standards of Behavior. 

We believe each and every department and individual adds value to our 
organization and is accountable for its success. 

We need to rejoice in the accomplishments of our coworkers, always 
recognizing them for a job well done. 

We believe that by consistently living and following these Values and 
Behaviors we will be proud of and take ownership with PMH, making our 
work enjoyable while exceeding the expectations of those we serve. 

Our Values are to ASPIRE to soar to a great height. 

A 

S 

P 

Accountability: Take responsibility for our own behavior 

Service: Care enough to exceed the expectations of those we serve 

Promote Teamwork: Work together to achieve common goals 

Integrity: Do the right thing even when no one is watching 

Respect: Respect the inherent value and worth of each person 

Excellence: Exceed the expectations of those we serve 

14 



Vision of Success FY2021 to 2025 
We will become one of the top 100 Critical Access Hospitals in the country 
by living our ASPIRE Values and the achievement of the below Pillars of 
Excellence. 

PafientLoyaky 

Goal 95% Exceed 
Pattern Expectations 

Medical Staff Eleveiupment Employee Engagement 

(Seal: 90% Medical 
Staff Satisfaction 

Deal: 90% 
Empiovee Satisfaction 

Duality Sarvices Financial Stewardship 

Goal: lflfifs Selected _ a _ _ t’ — . _ a 
. I' F I F" El a: Quality Attributes Gmai 5:10 1%» Market Share 40a . eta Margin i 3’ 

Our Values 

Accountability Service Promote Teamwork Integrity Respect Excellence 

15 



ASPIRE Values & 
Standards of Behavior 

Our Values 

Accountability Service Promote Teamwork Integrity Respect Excellence 



We Value ACCOUNTABILITY: 
Take responsibility for our own behavior. 

I WILL: 
Set a good example, project self-confidence, and not allow personal 
issues to interfere with the quality of my work. 

Anticipate and correct problems before they become complaints. 

Apologize to those we serve for problems or delays, do my best to 
make it right, initiate service recovery as warranted, and thank them 
for their understanding and patience.- 

Seek out available education opportunities to improve my personal 
and professional skills so I can participate, learn, and grow. 

Avoid blaming others when problems occur by becoming part of the 
solution, and take responsibility for my own behavior. 

Take initiative to hold myself and others accountable for creating a 
positive environment. 

Take pride in what I do and my professional appearance, language 
and behavior. 

Own and resolve guest problems. 

17 



We Value SERVICE: 
Care enough to exceed the expectations of those we serve. 

I WILL: 
Immediately acknowledge everyone I meet, smile and, if possible, 
address them by name. 

Assist and/or escort those we serve to their destination or introduce 
them to someone who can help them. 

Contribute to the creation of a clean, safe environment for those 
we serve. 

Answer the phone with a smile in my voice and identify myself by 
name and department. 

Be professional, providing help in a friendly and 
compassionate manner. 

Seek out opportunities to promote a positive experience for 
our customers. 

Thank customers for choosing PMH. 

18 



We Promote TEAMWORK 

Work together to accomplish great things 

I WILL: 

Focus more on “we” and less on “me”. 

Be open to new ideas and embrace change. 

Speak favorably about PMH, all departments, and coworkers, and go 
out of my way to make my team—members look good. 

Welcome new employees. 

Recognize and praise achievement. 

Communicate effectively. 

Have a positive, encouraging attitude when encountering co-workers. 

Seek partners in the community with common values and goals. 

19 



We Value INTEGRITY: 

Do the right thing even when no one is watching. 

I WILL: 
Do the right thing even when no one is watching. 

Be honest, trustworthy, responsible, and dependable. 

Be considerate of how I am perceived in my body language, eye 
contact, verbal tone, and writing style, realizing that this perception 
affects others and the outcome I am trying to achieve. 

Take ownership in positively representing PMH in and out of 
the workplace. 

Follow through with what I say. 

Take pride in what I do. 

Promote mutual respect and build community within PMH. 

Seek input from those impacted by decisions. 

Always wear my name badge. 

20 



We Value RESPECT: 
Treat others with Dignity. 

I WILL: 
Protect everyone’s privacy and confidentiality. 

Be aware and considerate of generational, physical, religious, 
financial and cultural diversity. 

Praise in public, coach in private. 

Recognize each person, situation and idea as significant. 

Not engage in gossip, inappropriate behavior or language. 

Treat others as they want to be treated. 

Provide services to the underserved and encourage others to do 
the same. 

Anticipate and provide for the needs of those we serve. 

Provide fairness and justice in internal policies and practices and 
external relationships. 

21 



We Value EXCELLENCE: 
Exceed the expectations of those we serve. 

I WILL: 
Participate in continuous improvement, recognizing that everything 
I do is a process that can be improved. 

Contribute to the creation of a just culture and not accept excuses, 
mediocrity, and carelessness. 

Do my best and remain positive. 

Use my time effectively. 

Anticipate and provide for the needs of those we serve. 

Provide compassionate and personalized service in a timely 
manner, and build strong relationships that create PMH guests for 
life. 

Strive to “raise the bar” in exceeding expectations. 

Promote effective use of resources. 

Ensure accountability for the development and use of resources in 
the present and their availability for the future. 

Always begin each day and each activity with quality in mind. 

Begin each customer interaction by considering their expectations 
and going beyond their expectations by providing care with 
compassion, integrity, respect and stewardship. 

22 



Commitment to ASPIRE 

These Values and Standards of Behavior reflect the level of 
professionalism that we will demonstrate in providing services to our 
community. 

These Values and Standards of Behavior have been developed by 
employees of Prosser Memorial Health to establish specific behaviors that 
all employees, medical staff, and volunteers are expected to model. 

We believe that by adopting these Values and Standards of Behavior, 
those we serve will receive outstanding service, making PMH one of the 
finest hospitals in Washington. 

I have read, understand, and agree to comply with the Prosser Memorial 
Health Values and Standards of Behavior. 

Signature Date 

Print Name Department 

23 







Welcome to the 
2020 Environmental Scan 

. Health. The health care system continues 
to evolve beyond the walls of the hospital as 
hospitals and heatth systems seek to manage and 
prevent chronic disease and improve the well— 
being of patients. This includes addressing the 

life. That certainly holds true today. Fresh 
technologies. new players in the market. 

increased emphasis on population health and 
social determinants of health, the advance of 

T hey say that change is the only constant in 

consumer-friendly care delivery models all of ; social determinants of health such as housing, food 
these factors and more promise a significant and ‘ insecurity and violence in partnership with community 
lasting transformation of health care. organizations, providing access to behavioral health 

For those in health care, we . resources and working to stem the tide 
welcome this change. Because as a P l . I of tragic drug overdose. 
we have always done. heapitals - ' YD . Innovation. Innovative strategies 
and health systems are leading this ‘ i . are becoming the norm. Eighty-six 
transformation, helping to shape and . g. - q percent of health systems have at 
direct the future. i ' least one executive dedicated to 

exploring partnerships. investments 
and other tactics to position for the 
future. Top priorities for innovation 
initiatives and investments will include 
lT/data analytics. patient/consumer 
engagement and use of artificial 
intelligence to improve care delivery. 

0 Affordability and value. 
Affordable health care is one of the 
biggest concerns facing families. 
employers and government. Hospitals 
and health systems are doing their 
part to make care more affordable. 
They are leading the charge toward 
value-based care with new models 

As a field. we have a remarkable 
track record for adaptability, 
seamlessly integrating decades of 
major breakthroughs in technology. 
biology and science -—- evolving 
treatments for cancer come to mind 
— into improved patient care. 

In health care, change brings with it 
the opportunity to continue improving. 
it means better care for our patients. 
Change is what hospitals have been 
doing for far longer than any of us 
have been around. We know that 
there will always be changes we need 
to make to prepare for the future. 
That’s what we’re doing today. that provide better coordinated care at 

To help you, each year. we publish a lower cost. They are using the best 
the AHA Environmental Scan. This year‘s scan offers technology and data to improve patient outcomes. 
an overview of the trends, statistics and economic 0 Individual as partner. Today‘s consumers 
forecasts likely to affect patients and providers at want health care when and where they want it. 
every level of care. The availability of virtual care. patient-friendly online 

We track, interpret and share developments to portals and alternative places of care such as retail 
make your job easier. With that in mind... we have clinics will be more important than ever. 
identified several key topic areas that will likely This scan offers facts, predictions and statistics to 
impact health care in 2020 and beyond. think about and plan for. but nothing to fear. We've 

0 Access. The cornerstone of healthy commu- embraced change in the past and grown from it, and 
nities is having access to the right care at the right we will again. 
time in the right setting. Many factors affect this: As always, the AHA will stay on top of it as 
availability of government programs such as part of our commitment to helping America's 
Medicare, Medicaid and the Children's Health hospitals and health systems as they care for their 
Insurance Program. private insurance coverage and communities saving lives. performing miracles 
a strong and resilient workforce. and keeping people healthy: 

26 



Access 
eru‘fltc'l’v 
and SOCiEl i s  

Hospitals, health systems 
and health care organizations 

. recognize that access to care for 
k Ir individuals is the cornerstone for 

developing healthy communities 
across the nation. Insurance 

. coverage and a strong workforce . 
i are key elements that influence 

access to health care. 

COVEBAGE 
The Uninsured 
UNIIlISUflED BATE: YOUNGER '11-IAN 65 TOP REASONS FOR BEING UNINSURED 

AMONG NONELDERLY ADULTS 
20% 10.4% 11-956 -_177% 1 

.* 153% . i  3 _ 4 5 %  0%! 
i W10 5% 1o 1% I 91% 1o. 0% Lost job or changed employers 

Lost Medicaid 
- 1 1% 
Marital status change. death of a spouse or 

-——.-— . —  

Cost is too high 

2010 2011- 2012 2013 2014 2015 201 6+ 2017 2018 parent, left school 

— 1 1% 
”maul-I Influence Covaram Inthe United States. 2013-2018“ and “Income. Pm. and Hnalth Incomes Casings in 
the United States: 2010-2011'wwwmnws usflmficsmmtlfinswance‘lbmm html. U 5 Cm Bum. ; Smroa: 'Kw Facts chain the Unlnstud Pcmbflcn." hint Famiy 

3 W .  Whom. Dec. 7. 2018. 

n i l - I I —  fl i n t - " u —  

The Underinsured 
UNDERINSUHED RATE: ADULTS AGES 19.34 - In 2018. high out-of-pocket costs and deductibles contributed to 

underlnsurance. 
: _I The greatest growth In the number of undennsured adults occurred 

22% ' among those with employer plans. 
15% f - Continuously insured adults. including the undennsured, are more 

; likely to get preventive care and cancer screenings. 
l 

0% ‘- Celina. Sara 3. atal. "Health Insurance Coverage Eight Years AflarthaACA: mummies Mexican: 
2018 . and Slnner Coverage Gaps. But More Underlreured. " The Commonwealth Fund. Feb. 7. 2019. 2010 

27 



The Affordable Care Act (ACA) 
The ACA individual marketplace 
MARKETPLACE ENROLLMENT {in millions] 
1 5 : 1  - 4 

3 11.7 

N
.

 

1 .7 12. M -I
 

'.""
 

on
 

11.4 
8.0 

.
r

—
n

—
u

u
—

d
-

m
—

n
 

nan—I 

l I 
i 

J 
2014 2015 2 201 o

 M
 

C
) _|
 

5.
] 3 .s
 

m
 

(D
 

16 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF PAHTICIPA'I'ING INSURERS 
PER ST ATE 

a 50 6'0 ”“- ' T 3.5 4.0 i 

3% I [J a 1 r 
0 I 

2014 2015 2016 2'01? I2013 2019 

MARKETPLACE AVERAGE BENCHMARK PREMIUM 
$401 $477 . $500 m... ........_._ . 

care i $276 
2014 2015 2017 2013 

Note: Amgccelculated usingsecorId-iowastcost adverflanspermarket. 
'Marketplace Enrollment. 2014—2019.Marlcetolaca Aucrage bendtrmrlr premium. Number 
of Issuers Participating in the Individual Health tram-once Marketplaces" Kaiser Family 
Foundation. kldorg Accessed July 29. 2019. 

2019 2016 

Medicare 
As measured by expenditures. Medicare is the largest health 
care insurance program in the US. 

201? ENROLLMENT 
No. of people ‘34: of US. population 

nrcggfann as million : 13.0% 
Medicare Part B l. 53 million 1 16. 0% _______ 

ilMedicare Part D "i 44 million OI 15333511 
lama. Barbara S. and Wolfe Cluistian J. "Brief Summiaa 01 Medicare 01 Medicaid." Office of 
the Mom. OMS. Departmental Health 81 Hun-tan Services. Get 15. 2018. 

IMPACT OF SUBSIDIES ON ENROLLMENT 
(between 2017 and 2018) 

cm— -—_——-.—..—I.  

Subsidized enrollment - +496 

”Trends in Subsidraad and Unaubaideed Enrollment." Centers for Medicare 0: Medicaid 
Services. Aug. 12. 2019. 

The ACA linked to reduced disparities 
I Gaps in insurance coverage among racial and ethnic groups 

decreased after implementation of the ACA coverage 
expansions. These effects were greatest in states that 
expanded Medicaid.’ 

- Under the ACA. women with ovarian cancer were more 
likely to be diagnosed at an early stage and receive treatment 
within 30 days of diagnosis“ 

Chaudnr. Aiav otal. "issue Brief: Did the Affordable Care Act Reduce Racial mcl Etlnlc 
in Health Insurance Cotramga?" The Commonwealth Fund. Augustzole. 

1' Smith. Anna Jocnd Mela. Arr-lands. "largest of the Affordable Care Acton acreage 
diamslsand treatment for W with marten cancer. "mecca-er Onodogy. vol. 
3?. no 13. June 5. 2018. Reprinted with permission. o 2019 American Society ofClinioa! 
Oncology. All rights renewed. 

AFRICAN AMERICAN CANCER PATIENTS 
4.69/9 Increase in African American patients 

beginning treatment within a month of 
receiving diagnoses of advanced cancers 

in Medicaid expansion states post—expansion. 

Doom Anna. “Yale anrdvflnds ink between Medicaid expansion and equity in cancer cam.“ 
felonious. June 2. 201 

Impact of a potential Medicare public option 
- By 2025. 6.3 million people would gain coverage. as 

opposed to 9.1 million peeple gaining coverage through 
additional support of the ACA. 

- A reduction of $836 billion to hospitals over a 10-year period. 
0 A significant disruption to the employer-sponsored 

insurance market. which provides coverage to more than 
150 million Americans. 

Koenlg. Lana at at. ”The Impact of Monitors-x Choice on Coverage. Healthoaro Use. and Horror- 
tals.“ KNG Health Cartooning. LLL'. March 12. 2019. and supplemental reportAugrm a. 2019. 

Medicaid and the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) 
ENROLLMENT 
'- Mora than 72 million people. or 22% of the U.S. population. 
- Medicaid expansion adult enrollment: nearly 17 million people. 
'- 47% of Medicaid and CHIP recipients are younger than 21 . 
0 11 % of Medicaid recipients are 65 yea rs or older. 
”Who enroils in Medicaid and CHIP.” Medicaidgov. July 28. 2010. 

MEDICAID PAYS: 
' $1 in $6 in the health care system. 
' $1 in $3 to safety net hospitals and health centers. 
' $1 in $2 for long-term care. 
1- For nearly half of all births in a typical state. 
“Medicaid in the United States,” fact sheet. Kaiser Family Foundation. November-2018. 
fiudewitz. Robin. at al."1Dthings to Know about Medicaid: Setting the Facts Straight.“ 
Kaiser Farrrilv Fotmdation. Witch 6. 2019. 

28 

l l l l l l  



WORKFORCE 
Workforce shortages 
PHYSICIAN SHGHTAGE PROJECTIONS B? 2032 

IPrimarvcare physicians I 21300-55200 I 
I Non-primary care specialties 24300-05000 I 

Surgical specialties 14,300- 23A00 I 
‘2019 Uprbta: The Compleidties of Piwsician Sunny and Demand: Proiecdms from 201? to 
2032,." mad for the Assoc'mion oiAmem Medical Colleges: submitted by MS Markit 
Ltdn WI 2019. 

“ —  ‘ 

HEALTH CARE WORKFORCE SHORT AGE 
PROJECTIONS BY2025 

Horne IhealthIeid—esp - III I 333°“ . 
_ Nursing assistants ___._..... £3.92.” 
Medicaland lab technologisultechnicians __ $300 
N"!!! P'mE'IPEEEE _ 
W W  'Demand tor Heeltiicare Workers we Outpeca Supply wzmnn 
WtSHeeidtcereLeborMerkot,‘ Mercer HPA. May2018. 

PSYG‘IIIATHIST SHORT AGES BY 2030 

Psychiatrist supply Psychiatrist demand 

a fl 
Micro! Health Workforce m 2018-2030." HRSA National Centerlor Health 
Workforce M535. 2018. 

PERCENTAGE OF COUNTIES WITHOUT A 
PSYCHATHIST 

MW... - 2m 
N..-.......n - —  .5. 

Anemia, C. PoliyA. std. 'Geoorlphic Variation in the Suppivoi Selected Beteriool Health 
Providers.” American Jounniol‘PIeafiw Medicine. vol. 54. no. 0. supplementa (June2010l: 
5 1 W W I  

NURSING EDUCATION CAPACiTY 

Number of qualified applicants turned 
7 5 K away from baccalaureate and graduate 

nursing programs by U.S. nursing 
schools in 2018 due to an insufficient 

number of faculty. clinical sites, classroom space. clinical 
preceptors and budget constraints. 

”Fact Sheet: Musing Faculty Shortage.” Arnen‘cen Association ofCollegss of Nursing. 
acmursingng. April 2019. 

Workforce and immigration 
IN 2017, IMMIGRANT? ACCOUNTED FOR: 

155% of the US. population. 
I _ 23.5% of 

3:22;; « formal and 
...._..... 1,... nonformal. 

workers long-term 
I, care sector 

18.2% of health " \ workers 
care workers I , 30.3% of nursmg home house- 

keeping and maintenance workers 
'imrnigrerns are definedls those bornoutsidethe [1.8. andara neturaiiaedcitizens, legal 
medium and unauthorized Immigimts. 
m m  Leah at at. "Care ForAmerica' sElderlvAnd Disabled People Relies On Immigrant 
Labor" m a m  vol Sane. someone). 

Drivers of workforce changes 
0 Generational shifts - Open talent models leg. gig. 
. Technology virtual and contract) 
«- Consumerism ' DiVBFSiW“ 
Hefin. Jenniferetel. ”The‘luhireo’lwork: Howcm health systems and health plans 
prepare and transform their workforce? Deletes Wis, Deloltte Centerfor Heehb 
Solutions. Mandi 7'. M19. 0 2019 Deloitlio Development LLC. 
' "The linear-ems for StrategicWerkfcroe Planting and Deveiopment: Clieilengea end 
amides," American Hamid Assotiaiion. 2017. 

Artificial intelligence (Al) 
and fire workforce 
WAGE OF TASKS THAT COULD BE 
AUTOMATED IN HEALTH CARE 

I 

Support occupations - 40% 
l 

Practitionersftechnical occupations — 33% 

Implications: 
'- improved efficiency. productivity and performance. 
0 Expanded job responsibilities. 
- Practicing at the top of license. 
0 "Soft" skills will matter more. 
- Workforce will acquire new digital skills to be able to 

collaborate with Al teams. 
'Al andtl'la Health Care Worklorca.‘ Market Insights. AHACenwrfor Halli! innovation. 
Sept. 23. 2019. 

I M at less. Learn more about the Mill's 
norkforce agenda. 
ahanrgiworkiercc 

29 



Distribution of physicians 
by employment status 
5.o%-- ---— 6.7% IOWner 

I Empioyee 

41.8%— I Independent 
# 47‘4% contractor 

53.2% _ '  [ 5 9 %  
2012 2018 

Kane, Carol. Policy Research Perspectives -- “Updated Data on Physician Pracfloe 
Arrangements: For the First Time. Fewer Physicians are Orrin-tars Than Empty-yea. ' AMA 
Economic and Health Policy Ransom American Medical Association, Mavzo‘w. 

'- 2018 marked 
the first year 
in which there 
were fewer 
physician 
owners than 
employees. 

Clinician burnout 
PHYSICIAN BURNOUT AND DEPRESSION 

Burnout _ 44% 
Colloquial depression - =  11% 

Clinicaldepression . 4% 

Kane. Leslie. "hiedsoape iiational Physician Burnout, Depression 8r Suicide Report 2019.“ 
Madacepe, Jan. 16. 2:019. 

NURSE BURNOUT 

Nurses reporting burnout — 8% 
Nurses considering changing 41% 

jobs due to burnout _ 

“Wake Uptotha Facts AboutFatigue eBooic.‘ Kronos. 2010. 

PHYSICIAN BURNOUT 0031” 
Focusing on physician turnover and reduced clinical hours. the 
annual cost of burnout on a national scale: 

$4.6 billion, or $7,600 per employed 
physician 

NURSE BURNOUT COST' 
Annual cost of nurse burnout to the average hospital: 

$52—$81 million 
' Han. Shasha at al. ”Estimating the Attributable Cost of Physician Burnout in the Unit-d 

States. " Annals oflntema! Medicine, vol. 170, no. 11 [2019}: M780. 
1 "2016 National Heelthare Retention 8t FIN Staffing Report.“ NSI Nursing Solutions Inc. 

March 2010. 

Non medical tasks take time 
0 Primary care physicians spend more than one-half of their 

workday, nearly 6 hours. interacting with the EHB during 
and after clinic hours.‘ 

- During the time spent interacting with the EH Fl. 44% is 
focused on administrative tasks like order entry and billing 
and coding, and 24% is focused on inbox management.‘ 

- An ED physician makes 4,000 mouse clicks over the course 
of a shift.f 

' Arndt. Brian G. at al. "Tentered tothe EHR: Primary Care Physician Workload Assessment 
Using EHR Event Log Data and fine-Motion Observations." medemryrnearerm. Irel. 
15 no. 55mm 2017): 519-426. 

t Fry. Erika and Sancho. Fred. “Death bye Thousand Elicia: where Ioctronic Health Raced: 
WentWrong,’ Emma. March 16. 2019. 

Workplace violence 
HOSPITALS THAT HAVE FORMAL WORKPLACE 
VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROGRAMS 

2017 2018' 
AHA Annual Surveyof Hospitals data. American Hospital Assodation. 201 1' - 2019 
" 2018mm is preliminary. 

RATE OF IliITEItI'I'IONAI. INJURIES BY OTHERS. 
PER 10.000 WORKERS W 2017 

Heat ereandsoe' —s-1 assistance workers 

All private industry - 1.9 

”tniuries. ltnmes. and Fatalities.“ Department of Labor. Bureau of law Statistics 
wwhlsgmrfwehlwvcdjshan. Accwsed Aug. '7. 2019. 

VIOLEIIICE IN THE EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT {EDI 
- Nearly half of emergency physicians stated they have been 

physically assauited at work. 
' 71% personally witnessed others being assaulted during 

their shifts. 

. 96% of female emergency physicians and 80% of male 
emergency physicians reported that a patient or visitor 
made inappropriate or unwanted advances toward them. 

'ACEP Emergency Deparll'nent Violence Poll Research Results.’ Marketing General Inc. and 
the Anion-In Gollege of Emergency Physicians. Septerrber 201a 

Learn mercuric-urine MIA :1 i Le . t arn area HbonilillifitgufnslU-uit'ntt' 
I I AHA-ORG i‘illiitiibrr 

aha.ornfwerkplaca-uiolence 

30 



The health care system is evolving 
outside the walls of the hospital 
and into the community in an 
effort to manage and prevent 
chronic disease and improve the 
well-being of patients. 

Social determinants of health 

SODIUM. ISSUES HAVE A MAJOR IMPACT ON OONSUMER HEALTH 

Factors that contribute to health outcomes. % Average amount of data generated over a person's lifetime 

Social determinants of health 
1 1.100 terabytes (volume. variety. velocity, veracity) 

Health behaviors 

Ciiniell care 0.4 terabytes (clinical data} 

—— 6 terabytes Nonmodifiable factors le.g.. genetics) 

Note: This graphic has been adjusted from the original version. 
Singhal. Shubham and Canton. Stephanie. “The are of exponential improvementin healfltcere?" Mclfinsey a Company. May 2019. 

HOUSING“ ; SOCIAL DETERMINANTS AND YOUTH VIOLENCE 
o 1 1 % of households spend more than half their income . Many risk factors of youth violence are the result of chronic stress 

from living in impoverished neighborhoods or poor housing. food on housing costs. 
insecurity. racism and other instability. - Severe housing-cost burden is associated with an 

increase in food insecurity. child poverty and people in - Each day. 14 young people become victims of homicide and 1.300 
fair or poor health. are treated in EDs for nonfatal. assault-related injuries. 

l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l  

FOOD ENSECURITY' Estimated i . high schooi 
- 11.8% of households were food insecure in 2017. (:93: 0f VOUth i In students 

. . . . . -- violence reported 0 40 million people lived in food-Insecure households. BILLION annually being bullied at school 
'Givans. Winners "201SCuntyHealfl1RanldngaKeyi-‘tnd'mgsfieporflfiohgtwood ' 

Johnson Foundation endure UnhasityofWrsconsh Population H-lthlnstiune. M2019. 
1' “Food Seculity Stem ofU.S. Homholds in 2017'." Department of Agriculture. Economic 'Prevent‘mg Youth Violence — Fast Facts." Carters for Disease Control and Prevention. ode-gov. 

Research Service. Wersmm. Sept. 5. 2918. E Fob. 25. 2019. 

31 



Hospitals and social determinants 
SCREENING FOR SOCIAL DETERMINANTS 

O of hospitals 
0 8 8  /0 screen for social 

needs. 

UNMEI’ SOCIAL NEEDS ARE ASSOCIATED WITH: 
I Nearly twice the rate of depression. 
a 60% higher prevalence of diabetes. 
0 More than double the rate of ED visits. 
I More than double the rate of missed medical 

appelntments. 

TOP 3 GOALS UNDERLYING HOSPITALS STRATEGY 
ON HEAL'I'I'l-RELATED SOCIAL NEEDS 

Improving health outcomes — m. 
improving patient experience _ 57% 
Building community relations — 50% 

TOP 3 TYPES OF SOCIAL NEEDS METRIOS TRACKED 
BY HOSPITALS 

Number of referrals (6.9.. 
community providers} 57% 

Number of individuals 
screened 

Number of people connected — 45% 
to community resources i - 

Lee. Josh Ind Kettle. Casey. "Social determinants of health: Howells hospitals and health 
systemlrlvoeting in endaddreeslng social needs?“ DeloltteCentorforHealthSolllm 2011 
o 201? Details Development LIB. 

55% 

Behavioral health 
NATIONAL LANDSCAPE 
Hi} Americans afiacted 

{1 {a 
beha I [ h  Ith 

iifl’llilqfi* 1Il'l 5 3?” "18:0”! ea 

0 70% of adults with behavioral health disorders also have 
physical health conditions. 

' Costs are 75% higher for people with both behavioral and 
physical conditions. 

- Fewer than half of adults with any mental health disorder 
receive treatment. 

‘Eehsvioral Health Care is High-Volt” Gale.“ Arnorlan HoophalAseociation. maple. 

"
K

e
l

v
i

n
-

I
n

n
 

I 

HOSPITALS. HEAL'IH ORGANIZATIONS AND 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
0 Nearly 30% of patients who visited a hospital ED had at 

least one behavioral health diagnosis. 

Number of community mental 
health centers in operation across 

I the country in 2017 
“Edwin!!! Health Integration: Treating the Whole Person." American Hospital Assedation 
Couturier l-lealthlnnovaticn. 2019. 

PHOENTAGE OF HOSPITALS REPORTING 
INTEGRATION OF ROUTINE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
SEMES INTO THE FOLLOWING AREAS: 

54.6% 49.6% 
Emergency A m w t  

41.2% 17.3% 
Primarvcgre Extended care 

Al-lAAnnualSwvc-yof Hospitals datafllrnerlcarl HospitalAmciatinn. 2019.031: ispretmlmlv. 

Major depression 
DEPRESSION AND TREATMENT IN THE 0.8. 
People in the us. reporting at least one major depressive 
episode in 2017: 

' “’u of the in not No. of I j . _ . . )eople ' respective recelvlng 
I population treatment 

Adults 17.3 mllion 7.1% 1 35.0% 
. 0 ”  —— u—o-J—u Huh - no. _ x. 1 

Adolescents : I 1 

I The prevalence of adults with a major depressive episode 
was highest among individuals ages 18 to 25. 

- The prevalence of a major depressive episode was 13.2% 
higher among adolescent females compared with males. 

”MIjorDoprcssion.‘ Nations Inseam of Mental Health. www.nirrit.nih.¢m Farm 2019. 

Suicide 

IN 2017: 

i More than 47,000 Americans died by suicide. 

0 The most common method of suicide -— firearm (51 96). 
o Tenth-leading cause of death in the U5. 

- Second-leading cause of death among individuals ages 10-34. 

0 There were twice as many suicides as there were homicides. 
I 4.3% of adults 18 and older had thoughts about suicide. 

Suicide Statistics. National Institute 01 Mental Heals-l. wwninflnrflhnov. April 2019. 

32 



Veterans' behavioral health 
- About 20 former and current veterans die by suicide each day. 

- The suicide rate is 22% higher than the general population. 
0 The Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) is using algorithms 

to identify potential veterans at risk. 
- Since the VA adopted this technology in 2017. 250 fewer 

veterans have died by suicide than would have been 
expected based on the previous rate. 

Rafindmnath. Mittens. “How the VA uses algorithm to predict suidde. " Millie. June 25. 2019. 

- ‘ . - — — — - —  — q._-i-_-.. 

Reversing the tide of drug misuse 
DRUG OVERDOSES 
Preliminary data from the CDC indicates that overdose deaths 
declined 5.1% in 2018, the first drop in the US. since 1990. 

* -  75.000 -_ 42,000 "r r .. . 

35,000 l__-___ I - _ .  
2017 2018 

. Deaths from heroin and prescription painkillers are 
decreasing. 

finnegan..ltlarlna. 'Daoline hopiofimwfnfionamhtubdrnphmmm: 
forthofirst time In decades, " HemeHadthcumcom. July 18. 2019. 

Opioids and naloxone 

HIGH-DOSE OPIOID PRESCRFI‘IONS {in mifionsi . I}. u 3 i —— —‘—I o H 2013 201 7 

HALOXONE PHESCRIPTIONS IWEASE [in W )  

600 l 
300 1......— 

2017 
Guy. Gary Jr. at al. ”VitalSIgns: Bram-Based Nam Dispensing— Unload States. 
2012-2018." Morbititv and Mortaltv Weekly Report. £20191 88:679-686. 

MISUSE OF PRESCRIPTION PAIN RELIEVERS 
BY US. RESIDENTS 12 OR OLDER (in millions] 

11 11.1 

10 
9 

.___..___ J . . H  

I m -  

201B 2017 

“Kay Sthslance Use and Mental Health Indicators inlha United States: Whom the 2018 
manual Survey on Drug Use andHaaltl-l.’ ntot HallmarflunlanSmioes. Substance 
Abuse and Mental Health Serv' Administration. Center form-floral Health Statistics and 
m .  Ill-Is Publication No. PEPta-soas, 2019. 

. 
i

n
.

-
 

a
l

l
“

 
fi

l
m

—
m

u
 

Aging population 
AMERICANS 65 AND OLDER 

No. of people % of population 
L 2018 I__ 52 million __ '_i 13% _ 
£2060 l egylllion I 239i. 

AMERICANS 65 AND OLDER REQUIRING NURSING 
HOME CARE (In millimi 

2 1.9 

2030 
Mather. Merit. at al. "Fact Sheet: Aging in the United States," Population Refemcl 
Bureau, July 15. 2019. 

2017 

LONELNESS 
Older adults ages 50 to 80: 

Feel a lack of companionship — 34% 
Feel isolated from others — 27% 

I Chronic loneliness can impact memory, physical well-being, 
mental health and life expectancy. 

Solwav. Erie- ataL "Loneliness and health.“ Universityof Michigan Institute for Hellman 
Feller and lnrwatlon‘s Madam! Poll on Healthy Aging which 2019. 

AlZl-IEIMER’S DISEASE 
- The sixth-leading cause of death in the U.S. 
- 5.3 million Americans are living with the disease. 
- By 2050, it is projected that 14 million Americans will have 

the disease. 
0 Every 65 seconds someone in the US. develops the disease. 

In 2019, Alzheimer's and other 
dementia will cost the nation $290 

$ 2 9  0 billion. By 2050 these costs could rise 
B I L L I O N  to$1.1trilllan. 
‘2019 Aldteirlars Disease Facts and Figures lnfogmphic" AmmrsAssodedort 
slam 2019. 

I Learn lliorE £11}e the 
I- 4 % ?  M! ore at AHA s efforts to create 

HQD‘Iiifiildly hoalln systems 
flhaJiiilfagafriandly 

33 



Lef- L». , 

j " _' T “flit ‘T'i—f-q 
.sffi‘: . _ :EIIIi I i ]  '31. . ‘- 1 _ 

teCImulOClvi innovation and data 

Iii-r 
Eels rWLvE-jr'fi 

"Hr"? 
a .  .1... era‘s II... I 

m. 

it
“
 

The health care field is transforming. The digital health 
evolution, consumerism. clinical advancements, new 
entrants and unique partnerships are accelerating this 
transformation. Hospitals and health systems are taking 
a leadership role in preparing for the future by investing 
in innovative technologies, practices and cultures 
with the goals of improving outcomes, addressing 
affordability and reducing friction for individuals. 

} ‘ 1 ‘  41,-. 
Health system innovation . . . _ 

Forces dnvrng health system Innovation 
TOP PRIORITIES Fort INNOVA‘I'ION WHATWES . Pfiorifizing consumerism. AND lNVESTMENTS 

- Disruption from new entrants. 

Access _ 90% I Improving quality of care. 
ITlData analytics _ 90% - Increasing value-based contracting. 

PatientiConsumer _ - Decreasing operating margins. 
engagement 9“" 

Care delivery! _ 85% MOVATION INVESTMENT 

Clinical rBSttumg 9/ of health systems have a formal 
1 0 investment or ventures arm. 

Innovation infrastructure i 
0/ ofhealth systems have one or more ; MOST COMMON HEALTH SYSTEM INNOVATTON 

0 executives responsible for innovation PARTNERSHIPS 
Strategy and we's'ght' Technology companies— 67% 

Academic institutions _ 52% 
HEALTH SYSTEMS THAT HAVE A DEFINED Pharmaceutical companies — 43% 
DEPARTMENT oEoIcATED To INNDVM'ION 

”TrendsforScallng lnnovaion in Health Care.” CertariorComucted Medicine andthe Health Large health SVStS A" health systems Mamgement Academy,June 2013. 

l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l  

SPEED OF IMPLEMENTING AND SCALING 
INNOVATION 
. 38% of health systems report the ability to scale quickly. 

0 88% of health systems with a formal process for sealing 
innovation report the ability to scale quickly. 

.I
—

n
u

-n
 c

a
n

n
e

d
—

a
d

..
.-

 

34 



Health IT 
Based on a survey of health care lTleaa'ers 

TOP HEALTH CARE IT SECTORS TO EXPERIENCE 
GROWTH IN THE NEXT YEAR 

Analytics and big data _ 94% 
— - — — -  

Telemedicine 

Wearables/Consumer sensors 

Disruptive innovation 
Based on a survey of health care leaders 

SERVICE LINES MOST RIPE FOR DISRUPTION FROM 
TECHNOLOGY 

Behavior-m health — 71.0% 
Primary care — 705% 

Cardiology — 295% 
I 

TOP CHALLENGES TO HEALTH CARE IT 
INNOVATION IN THE NEXT YEAR 

TalentrHin'ng — 72% 
Economic uncertainty — 64% 

Competition _ 54% 

Roberts. Bryan. ”2019 Healthmra Proceeds} Vonroclr. April 12. 2019. 

Digital Health Forecast 
Health care 1T leaders predict that digital health innova— 
tors will work to demonstrate rea' l-world applications. 

Examples: 
- Broader adoption of Al and machine learning in 

population health to improve identification of those at 
risk and delivery of personalized services. 

I Virtual reality/augmented reality as a routine 
treatment for pain control. 

- Wearables and implantable health devices to 
enable detection of chronic conditions and monitor 
treatments . 

- Broader use of voice recognition and intelligent 
assistants to reduce clinician burden. 

- Increased use and impact of digital therapeutics. 

“20l9 Healthcare Trench Forecast: The Beginning o! a Comumer-Driym Reformation." 
Haaldtcsre lniorrnation and Menaoament Systems Society lHIMSSl. 2019. 

HEALTH TECH AND DIGITAL HEALTH 
INVESTMENTS (in billions) 

M L__.__.__: .._ 3'3“". 
$20 ‘ "' $10.8 
0-.._- _! 

2010 2018 

Singhel. Shubham and (lemon. Smphanie. ”The era of exponential improvement in 
healthmro?" McKinsay B: Commny. May 2019. 

TECHNOLOGY THAT WILL HAVE THE BIGGEST 
IMPACT ON HEALTH CARE IN 2020 

Teueheanh — 59.4% 
Data analyticsIBig date — 34.8% 

Internet of medical things — 28.6% 

Machine learning and Al - 22.3% 
Survey to Health Care Leaders and Strategista. AHASoclaryfcrHeelth Care StrategyfiMarlret 
Development. June 2019. 

ORGANIZATIONS POSING STRONG COWETI'I’ION 
TO HOSPITALS AND HEALTH SYSTEMS 

UNITEBHEMJ’HGRGUP’ 

vaetna' 

amazon 
W 7  

Crnitovic-‘LPaulotd. ‘ZMQSUtedamiam in Healll'ioarcfiltaflurisfiising.‘ 
Katlfmni-iall. 2019. 

Heaith analytics; 
- Health systems with a higher number ofvalue-based care 

arrangements are more likely to have a mature approach to 
analytics. 

HEALTH SYSTEMS‘ INVESTMENT IN ANALYTICS 
I 2015 I 2018 

I 
I I I > 1 2 %  

Have a chief analytics officer L 30% 
up... 

Have a clear and integrated 40% 
strategy for analytics deployment _ __ 70% 

Have a designated department I 
to deliver business intelligence! . 6 1 9 5 .  

analytics services to the organization I 

Hagan. Alison at al. “Shifting into high gear: Health systems have a ginning strategic fours on 
analytics today for the fixture." W e  insights. Daloitte Center for Health Solutions. 2019. D 
2019 Dabble Development LLC. 

35 



Z 
9 l— 

i 
O 
Z 
.2... 

Artificial Intelligence (All 
HEALTH Al MARKET SIZE 

$33 i" _ _  
i $6.63 

$63 l | — 
l 

3 
$43 i‘ H" F I Compound 

1—. I annual 
$28 E I growth rate 

l 
$600M . 

o - g 
2014 2021 

Collier. Matt. Fu, flicl‘iard and Yin. Lucy. "AItliioial hmfligence: Hsahhmre‘s New Nervous 
System,” Aocanture. June 2017. 

10 Al applications with the greatest 
near-tam impact in health care 

$150 I Robot-assisted surgery 
- Wtual nursing assistants 
0 Administrative workflow assistance BILLION 
0 Fraud detection possible 
I Dosage error reduction '35."a 
s Connected machines 58:33; by 

- Clinical trial participant identifier 

' Preliminary diagnosis 
. Automated image diagnosis 
- Cybersecurity 

Collier. Matt. Fu. Richard and tin, Lucy. “Artificial Intefiganoe: Healthcare's New 
Nervous System.” Accenture. June 2017 

.n. . 

Personal genetic data 
- By the start of 2019. more than 26 million consumers 

added their DNA to four leading commercial ancestry and 
health databases. 

I As many people purchased consumer DNA tests in 2018 as 
in all previous years combined. 

‘- if the pace continues. these companies could have the 
genetic makeup of more than 100 million people by the 
start of 2021 . 

Reminds. Antonio. "Mme than 28 miiiion people have taken an alt-home ancestnr test.“ MIT technology Review. Feb. 11. 2019. 

lntemet of Things (loT) 
AVERAGE NUMBER OF INTERNET-CONNECT ED 
DEVICES PER PERSON IN THE U.S. 

2m — an 
2022 _ 13-6 

Cisoo “Complete View] Networkfi'rg Index NND Forecast. 2017-2022.” 

Opportunities and challenges of lcT 
Opportunities: 
Telehealth and remote monitoring, smart sensors. 
medical device integration, health care building facilities 
that optimize clinical processes and operational 
systems, voice assistants, robotics. smart pills and 
treatments of diseases.f 

Challenges: 

Data storage capability, cyberrisk. the need to update 
hospital infrastructure and human error.‘ 

t “id! in Herald-roars: Are We Winteasinp a New Revolution?" Scltoroa. Medication 
Mar. 7. 2019. 

1 screws, Karla "5 Chsflennes Facing l-iealth Care Id”) 2019,“ iofl'uailm 
006.27.2013. 

interoperability 
PERCENTAGE OF HOSPITALS THAT SEND m 3  TO maumonv ems Pnovrosns omsIoE 
TH“ SYSTEMS 
100% . ‘” 88% ""— 

oa _ _  
2012 

BARRIERS TO INTEROPERABIUTY 

.Other provide-”rs 3 6 " "  not have an EHFl or lack j 639’ h 
I' capability to receigeinformationm 5 ° 
2 Experience challenges sendinglreceiving data 57% 
across different vendor platforms ___ _ _ h -i 
Difficult to match or identify the correct patient 37% ‘ 
between systems _ ... _ 

1 Additional costs to sendfreceive data with 35% 
organizations outside system __ 

[Tied to develop customized interfaces to exchange 23% 
_in_forrnatiop electronically _ ‘ R ___J 

”Sharing Data. Saving Uves: The Hospital Agenda for Interoperability." American Hospital 
Associated January 2019. 

.LAearn More set learn more absolute 
til-i131 Centerfar Healtt 

It‘iiifwdll-L‘m abeoruicentar 

36 



AN D VALUE 
The best care that adds value to lives. 

Affordable health care is one of the biggest 
concerns facing families. employers and 
government. Health care transformation 
and Ivalue-based care models focusing on 
populations can improve the quality of care 
at a lower cost. 

995T 'ro STAlgeHOLDERs__ 
US. national health expenditures 

growth Amount ‘i'é, of GDP 

2017 l 3.9% i $3.5 trillion i 17.9% 
2013* 4.4% $3 6 trillion i 17.8% 
2019* 4.3% lss. a trillion 1’ 17.3% _ 

4. 5.7% es. 0 trillion i 19.4% by i 
2020-2027 average by 2027 j 202? ! 

'Projection 

National heath Expendiwres Projections 2013-2027 —-— Tables. Office ofthe America Ashram 
EMS. unsgov. Feb. 2|), 2019. 

Financial impact for hospitals 
HOSPITALS’ COST TO PROVIDE UNCOMPENSATED 
CARE (in billions) 

.5... sis-4mm $766 i $253' ' 
I 

0 ’ , Combined Medicare 
2°17 2°13 and Medicaid 

AHAAnnuel Surveyed Hospitals data. Amer-inn underpayments to 
HospltelAssoccetlon. 2013 and 2919. . . l. + 201Bdateis preliminary. hospitals In 2018 

Patient perspective 
0/ Reducing health care costs should be a 

0 top national priority. 

TOP HEALTH CARE PRIDHI'I'IES 

Lowering prescription drug prices 92% 
Health insurance coverage 91% 
for preexisting conditions 

Making sure Medicare _ 38% 
benefits are not cut 

Lowering the overall cost of health care — 88% 
Increasing spending on research '- . . 85% to find cures for diseases 

Blandon. Robert J. et el. "The Upcoming U5. Health Care Cost Debate "The Public's Viewa.’ 
New EnglandJoumel of Medicine. vol. 381} no. 26 (2019]: 2487-2492. 

. ‘ .  I I I I I  c - n - u -  I-Ir. l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l  

OUT-DF-POCKET COSTS 
1' Out—of—pocket costs increased by12% for inpatient, 

outpatient and ED care from 2017 to 2018' 

I Medical fundraisers account for 1 in 3 campaigns for the 
crowdsourcing website {SoFundMeT 

' "Out-of-Packet Costs Rising Even as Patients Transition to Lower Cast Settings of Care.“ 
TransLlnion Healthcare. June 25. 2018. 

f Zded'llik, Mark. "Patients Are Turning To GoFundMe To Fill Health insurance Gaps," National 
Public Radio, npr.org, Der. 2?. 2018. 

37 



LL! 
:3 
_.__l 
<1: > 
D 
Z 
< 
>_ 

' t 
:3 
co 
<E (3 
CC 
0 
L1. 
L1. <1: 

Employer-sponsored plans 
INDIVIDUALS ENROLLED IN EMPLOYER- 
SPONSORED PLANS 
0 Half of Americans say they or an immediate family member 

have put off going to the doctor, not filled a prescription or 
delayed other medical care because of cost.‘ 

- Four in 10 had difficulty paying a medical bill or insurance 
premium within the past year)“ 

0 Four in 10 enrolled in a high-deductible plan do not have 
enough savings to cover the deductible" 

0 One in 5 say health care costs have used up all or most of 
their sailings.1 

‘ Marlin. Rachel. "Employees Start To Feel The Squeeze Of Huh-Deductible Health Plans.‘ 
rational Fuhfic Padio. mnorg. May 3, 2019. 

t Lovey. Noam N. “Health insurance deductibles soar. leaving Americans with wetter-dais 
bills.” LosAngabs Trims. m2. 2019. 

TRENDS AMONG CONSUMERS WITH EMPLOYER- 
SPONSORED INSURANCE FROM 2012 TO 2018 

\fisits to primary care physicians I 48% 

Visits to nurse practitioners and 129% 
physician assistants _ 

Frost, Ammda and Hargrevss. John. 'HCCI Brief: Trends it Primary Care ts,’ Heaith Care 
Cost Institute. October 2013. 

Medial cost trend 
THE MEDICAL COSTS IN THE WPLOYER 
INSURANCE MARKET PROJECTED TO INCREASE 

6% 5.1% -_.. .. 5 M  

5 4 .. ____,___L __,__ 
2018 201 9 2020 

Drivers of medical cost trend 
Retail drugs 
Between 2020 and 2027. retail drug spending under private 
health insurance is projected to increase 3-896 a year. 

Chronic disease 
Adults with one chronic disease 60% 

Adults with two or more 40% 

'- For employers, per capica spending on an individual with a 
complex chronic disease is 8 times thatofa healthy individual. 

“Medical costtrend: Behind the numbers 2020." PWC Heaith Research Institute. June 2019. 

I
‘

m
-

“
m

u
 uflI—I-fl“

 
(m 

Mental health services 
PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYERS OFFERING MENTAL 
HEALTH DISEASE-MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS 

WJEL 1 . 80% 
40% 
0% 

[" “as 

2016 2018 
0 Costs will go up in the short term. In the long term, addressing 

mental health is a simificant deflator'of medical cost trend. 

"MGM mmd: Bahindtha hunters 2020.“ PWC Heath fimsrch Institute. June 2019. 

u...- “ - 4  

Employees bear the cost 
. Average deductibles for employer-sponsored plans tripled 

between 2008 and 2018.’ 

- Average annual rate of cost sharing outpaced growth in 
wages from 2006 to 2016.‘ 

Cost-sharing - 4.5% 

Annual median wages - 1.8% 

- 84% oi employers offered a High-Deductible Health Plan 
(HDHPl in 2019.’ 

0 Enrollment in HDH Ps reached 47% of the commercially 
insured, ore-Medicare population in 2018, representing a 
3.3% increase from 2017} 

“Martini costtrend: Behindtha numbers 2020.“ RM: Health Research infinite. June 2010. 
t y .  Bid-r. 'High-Deductibie Plans Stage: CDC.‘ l-lealthcue Firmncial Mamasrnent 
Association, Aug. 28. 2018. 

Prescription drugs 
PRICES FOR MORE THAN 3.400 DRUGS INCREAED 
IN THE FIRST SIX MONTHS OF 2019 , 
. An increase of 17% in the number of drug price increases. 

0 Average increase is 10.5% ——tive times the rate of inflation. 

Frocl'li. Aimee. “Drug prices b12019 aresurgingwidthfltesatfithnesinflation."CBSNows. 
chmewscom. July 1. 2019. 

HOSPITAL PRESCRIPTION DRUG SPENDING 
- Average total drug spending per hospital admission 

increased by 13.5% from 2015 to 2017. 
'Recent Trends in Hospital Data Sparring and Mandacnlrer Shortages,“ NOHC at the 
University at Chicago. Jan. 16. 2010. 

MEDICARE AND MEDICAID DRUG SPENDING 
From 2013 to 2017. prescription drug spending grew at an 
annual rate of 10.6% in Medicare Part D, 10.0%. in Part B and 
14.8% in Medicaid. 
'CMS Updates Drug Dashboards With Prescription Drug Pricing and Spendng Data.‘ MW, 
Mb 14, 2019. 

38 



PRESGHIPTION SPEClALTY DRUG COSTS IN 201? 

$78,781 "3- $60,336 
The average annual cost of The median U3. 
prescription specialty drugs household income 

7.0% V8- 2.1% 
General rate 
of inflation 

Increase in cost 
vs. 2016 

Seltondelmeyer, Stephen W. and Pelvis, Leigh. ”Trends in Retail Prices of Specialty 
Preemitzticn Drugs Widely Used by Older Arneficans: 2017 YeaFEnd Update. " AARP Public 
Policy Institute, June 2019. 

Drug shortages 
0 Cost hospitals $359 million a year in additional labor costs. 

0 More than half of hospitals reported they had managed at 
least 20 shortages during a six-month period. 

vizient, Inc. Survey. ”Drug shortages and laborcosta. Measuring the hidden costs of drug 
shortages on U.S. hospitais." illizien‘l. Ina, June 2019. 

[555' Learn Moreat ‘ “ "  T'i-‘i‘ ” 
J "  The More iratlniiéfil" s 

AHA-ORG aha orQl’value-initiativa 

CARE MODELS 
Trends in delivery models 
HOSPITALS PAWAHNG all All ACCOUNTABLE 
CARE ORGANIZATION IACOI' 

53.4% 60% s— 
4593 A...“ 
30% 
15% --’~ 

24.4% —-—-——— 

0% J 201 a 201 4 
NOTE: 2018 sonny encoder: is not already comma to prior years. 

HOSPITALS WITH CONTRACTS WITH COMMERCIAL 
PAYERS TIED TO OUALITWSAFETY PERFORMANCE“ 

60% 
48.7% 

40.7% 

30% --—-—-— 

2014 

a
t

.
 

—
—

 
“

r
t

-
M

n
 

A
—

‘
L

 

Advanced illness and palliative care 
a Advanced illness accounts for 4% of the Medicare 

population and 25% of its costs.‘ 

- 12 million US. adults and 400,000 children are living with 
serious illness.’ 

0 72% of hospitals with 50+ beds have a palliative care program.1 

PALLIATIVE CARE IMPACT 
$ 3  5 per year savings if hospitals nationwide 

I 
implement high-quality palliative 

Bl l. LIO N 
programs 

, —- 0/ reduction in symptom distress reported 
: 0 by palliative care patients 

" Stuart. Bredet el. ‘A LargeScale Advanced Illness Intervention Informs Madonna's New 
Serious “truss Payment Model." l-l'aafrhAfieim, vol. 38. no. 6 (2019]: 950356. 

f ‘Channina how we thlnkabout palliative care.” American Hospital Associrttion. creams. 
Wants. 9. 2019. 

Lila-"n 'Tilt‘i‘ Jiltlili the AHA 
Dai'EiE‘J-“Silifi wit!“ Eli? Center if} 

fade-Lint:- adhesive“ ’33 
ahaorgipalcare 

HOSPITALS WITH SOME PERCENTAGE OF NET 
PATIENT REVENUE PAID ON A SHARED BlsK BASIS' 

20% H 12.6% 116% 10.5% I 

m" - M - “ fl' 0% *' * | 
2016 2013't ' 2014 

HEALTH CARE LEADERS THINK VALUE-BASED 
RELATIONSHIPS THAT CONTAIN BOTH UPSIDE 
AND WIDE RISK WILL OCCUR’ 

mas than 1 rear. ..__§:_‘l_i 
it: 122. r9913? .26-796 
! :325.Y§§£§.. £5529... 
l 5 or "19.9.3931? 17.5}; 
I Never 6 3% 

0 Obstacles to shared—risk. value-based contracts: limitations 
in data sharing, no agreement on outcomes measures and a 
lack of incentives for payers and providers to work together 

" MIA Annual Sunny of Hospitals date. American l-lospltsl Assnc'etlcn 201 5-2019. 
1 2015 data preliminary. 
t "White Paper: The 9th Annual Industry Pulse Survey." Change Healthoere and the 

HealthCue Executive Group. March 18, 2019. 

39 



LLI 
D 

21" 
> 
D 
Z 
<E 
>— 
L: 
i 
CD 
<1 
C3 
CC 
O u_ Ll_ 
<1: 

A003 
ACOs BY THE NUMBERS 
- The number ,of A003 has multiplied 5 times since 2012. 

- At the end of the first quarter of 2018, there were more 
than 1,000 ACOs across the U.S.. covering 33 million lives 
and representing almost 1,500 commercial and public 
payment arrangements. 

- 33% of ACOs had at least one contract with downside risk. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

IN 2018. A008 OGNTHACTED WITH: 

Medicare _ m 
commercianpavers — n %  

Medicaid _23% 
Fifer. Hebecoa. 'ACOsmayns mngarfinamhlincenfives. like moonstone-resort." 
Haafflm Dive. July 3, 2019. 

Net savings generated by 
Medicare ACDs in 2018. $740 

MILLION 
Verme. Seems. ' lflm In 'Fathways To Sum Grows: 2018 A80 Results Show Trends 
Swooning Program Redesign Continue,“ Hamming Sept. 30. 2019. 

Top A00 priorities 
TOP 5 P l u m  OF INTEGRATED SVI'STEMIr 
HOSPITAL-IE) A005 

:Heduce avoidable emergency department visits 
and inpatient_ admissions 
Manage post-acute care spending and quality 50% 
Prevent readmissions through better care transitions 42% 

I Activ_el_y manage high-need high-cost” patients _:,.__ 31% 
Reduce avoidablefunneiessary care 

l 

TOP 5 CHALLENGES OF INTEGRATED SYSTEM! 
HOSPfTAL-LED A005 

Difficulty aligning physician compensation with 
9 ' ! q  contracts _ 63% 

1 Ability to design and implement care delivery i 5.7% 
changes __ _ _g 

'Oual'rty of data provided by payers .- .213 
:_Lack of data analytic Lpability. a___nd tools [£16 
Prospect of/participation' In mandatory downside ! 22% 
risk 

Edwards. Kerstin, at al. 'The 2018 ACO Smy: Unimre Paths to Success. " Leevitt Partners, 
March 2019. 

va
lu

e
-u

l—
 

.n
—

o
—

 
“-

 
.c

u
a

a
..

. 
o 

. 
H

a
w

—
-

 

VALUE AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT __ 
Performance improvement 
pracdces yield positive outcomes 
HOSPTI'AL-ACQUIRED CONDITIONS: PROGRESS 
BETWEEN 2014 AND 2017 

. 13% decrease in conditions 

0 20.500 lives saved 

' $7.7 billion saved in health care costs 
'AHRO Mom! Scorecard on Hospital-Acmired Commons." Many for Halitosis Research 
:rgfl'ctelity. Rericlurilitm1a . Md. totes! WWJMQWWWW' nt—eeletyfpfdirflen. 

Jammy . 

WAGE DECREASE N HOSPITAL-ACQUHED 
WWE1BANDZO17E§IACUTE 
CARE HOSHTALS 

i Clostridioides difficile events — 
bacterium that causes colitis or 
inflammation of the colon 

4% - Central line-associated 
bloodstream infections 

-8% _ MRSA bloodstream events 
_5% Catheter-associated urinary 

tract infections 

6% Venti later-associated events 
4% I Surgical-site infections 

43% 

'201? New and State Hodflmro—Assoeiated hiections Progress Report.’ Cerrtersfor 
om Control and Prevention. edcoov. Amati July 28 2019. 

Top 5 patient safety concerns 
- Diagnostic stewardship and test result management 

using EHFls 
0 Antimicrobial stewardship in physician practices and 

aging services 

' Burnout and its impact on patient safety 
0 Patient safety concerns involving mobile health 

0 Reducing discomfort with behavioral health 

”tors Top to Patient Safety Concerns -- Executive Brief: ECHI treaties. https'J/ 
mecrtormamfing-top-m-g “' ‘ aw; 2019. Accessed 
March 12. 2010. 

EE‘s ' ‘iiri more about new the a acr e7 nratns 
Irurferrnansermernvemmt .‘llifl‘ advances pair. -n: safety 

alra ergfeanterrpedonnanee-impravament 

4o 



NW!" 
DIVJDUAL ,. . 

. ”14‘s.": .1 .. . 1 rye-i“... ‘ .- 
Hei'gti‘gn r293 he d1 vie rertv o'i trait} ' _. tie a 
and serve as partners in their health 

Health care providers are fostering true patient 
engagement. recognizing that individuals are 
increasingly viewing health care through a 
consumer lens and connecting in ways that 
make sense in today's digital world. 

l 

l 'I 

_ J 
--.-r' 

The consumer perspective 
THE FOLLOWING ELECTROMC CAPABEJTIES 
INCREASE THE uxsuflooo OF AN INDIVIDUAL 
CHOOS'NGA' "DUDE": .2016 I2019 
Request prescription refills 

I 

77% 
Receive reminders via email or text for preventive 
or follow-up care 

57% 
70% 

Cemmunrcate with provider through secure email 
53% 

69% — - — —  ’ _ 

Booklchangeicartcel appointments onlme 
58% 

' .p—l - 68% 

Use remote or telemonitoring devices to record health indicators 
39% l 

, 53% i 
Communicate with provider through video conferencing 

49% 

Safavi. Kaveh and Kane. Brian. "Today's Consumers Reveal the Futuroof Healthcare: The 
Acoenmre 2019 Digital Health Consumer Survey.“ Accenture, Feb. 12. 2015. 

MOST IMPORTANT HEALTH CARE FACTORS 
INFLUENCING ODNSUMERS' DECISION-MAKING 
Convenient. easy access — 51.3% 

Insurance coverage _ 46.4% 
Doctorfnurse conduct _ 44.2% 

Brand reputation - 39.8% 
Quality of care — 34.6% 

"2019 Realm Consumer Trends Report. "‘ NRC Health. Jan. 6, 2019. 

_ .o-.-. 

Virtual care 
Interest in virtual are is higher among consumers with more 
complex needs.‘ 

EMPLOYERS OFFERING TELEHEALTH SERVICES’ 

I I 0/ of employers 
6 1  0 set employee 

cost-sharing 
lower for tale-medicine 

a. _ w a: visits than int-person visits 
201a 2013 i in 2019. 

CONSUMERS MTH MLDYER COVERAGE ARE 

5 Ongoing assessment of a physical condition or 62% 
‘ ailment 

Fnitial assessment of a physical condition or ailment - 43% 

Mentallbehavioral health services 27% J 
I . . - ' i Emergency Situations, such as urgent care : 2533—] 

I . -  i "  I - — — — -  

' Semi. Revolt and Kath. Brian. "T oday'e Consumers Reveal the Future of Healthcare: The 
Ascenm 2019 Digital Health Consumer Survey, " Awesture. Feb. 12, 2019. 

1 "Medical ousttrerd: Balms the numbers 2020.” MC Health Research Institute. June 2019. 

un- I" . m — — - _ — —  

Online Access 
PERCENTAGE OF HOSPITALS THAT PROVIDE 
PATIENTS WITH THE ABILITY TO VIEW HEALTH 
INFORMATION ONLINE 

1 00% l 

50% -._._.- "T M- 
25% 37% ‘ 

oi - 
2012 2018 

AHAeual Survey tnfmnation Technology Supplement. American Hospital Association. 2018. 

41 



o: 
LLl 
Z 
i..— 

or: 
E 
m 
<[ 
_J 
<1 :3 
Q. 
2 
Cl 
Z 

Atternative places of health care 
services: Consumer trends 
UHLIZATION GROWTH RATES FROM 2016 TO 2017 
ACCORDING TO PRIVATELY INSURED HEAL'I'H 
CARE CLAIMS DATA 

Telehearth - 53% 
Urgent care centers - 14% 

Retail clinics I 7% 
Ambulatory surgery centers 5% 

Utilization of emergency _2% 
departments - 

"Fl-I Heatthcero IndicatorsflandFi-lMetioal Price IMN1RMMM Viawof Places! 
SeMoontlsnnd Medal Pricey.“ White Pater. FAIR Hem. Inc... Ayn-l 2019. 

Who has a primary care physician? 

Baby Gen Xers Millennials 
boomers 

Silent 
generation 

MocCraclten. Linda and Maidens. Gerry. 'D'uital l-ioaflh: When PrirmVCareisnotAlumys 
Prirrrary.’ Acconttrre. Sept. 19, 2010. 

LGBTQ disparities 
- 16% of people who identity as lesbian. gay. bisexual. 

trans. queerrquestioning (LGBTO) report being personally 
discriminated against when going to a doctor or health clinic 
because they are part of the LGBTO community.‘ 

- 18% of peeple who identify as LG BTO say they have 
avoided medical care. even when in need. citing fear of 
discrimination.‘ 

0 High school students who identify as LGB are almost 5 
times as likely to attempt suicide compared with their 
heterosexual peers! 

I Adults ages 50 to 95 who identify as LG BT reported greater 
rates of disability. depression and loneliness and increased 
likeliness to smoke and binge-drink compared with 
heterosexuals of similar ages.i 

" 'Dlscrimination in America: Etudences and Viewof LGBTOAmerlms." National Public 
Ratio. arbor-t Wood Johnson Fomdation and Harvard T.I-l. Chan School oi Public Health. 
Novembor2017. 

t LGBTQ, National Alliance on Mental Health wwwmnfingflind-euppoltllgtrhq. Accessed 
Sepl.12.2019. 

t Seaport. Liz. ”National study finds LGBT seniors face tougherold age.“ Association of Hearth 
Care Journalists. July 10. 2018. 

Le are first: about the AHA ‘s 
31:? BMoreg InElritl‘letor flrtrEralty and Hflairlr 

trusty dirersityconnectiorr..orr_.| 

—
_

—
¢

 .
—

—
.

-
—

_
v

_
m

u
_

-
a

-
.

-
—

-
 

u
.

-
 

ALTH SYSTEMS 
Hospitals and health systems serve patients 
and communities as critical access points of 
health care services across the country. 

Health care and the economy 
0/ of all jobs in the overall U.S. economy 

0 at the end of 2013 were in the health 
care SBCIIOIT 

new jobs in the overall U.S. economy 
in at the end of 2018 were in the health care 

28 Number of jobs added to the health care 

MILLION 

sector between 2006 and 2016. a rate of 
growth almost 7 times faster than the rest 
of the economy“ 

Projections 
I Employment of health care occupations is projected to grow 

18% from 2016 to 2026. much faster than the average for all 
occupations. adding about 2.4 million new jobs.1 

I Job growth in the home health field is projected to grow 
54% from 2016 to 2026.1 

' 80mins. Joint. 'Heslthcara Job Growth Outpaced NaenyEvary macaw in 2018.‘ 
HealthLosdas. Jan. 4. 2019. 

‘i' Seleherg. Edward and Martiniano. Robert. 'Hoaith Care Jobs Projdo Continuum (how 
Far Faster Than Jobs In The General Economy. ' Health Affairs. May 9. 2018. 

.1: “Occupathnal Outlook I-lrrltmook.'Departrnentof Labor. Bureau of LeburStatistlos. 
Accessedhug. 13. 2019. 

42 

I ‘ O I  h w fi " l . ' m fl _  uni-Ii“ . 



Hospital prices 
HOSPITAL PRICE GROWTH REMAINS LOW 
in August 2019. annual health insurance inflation hit a five 
year peak of 18.6%. while hospital prices increased just 2.1 %. 

Bureau of labor Statistics Consrrnar Price lndex data. 2019. 

Community hospitals 
INPA'I'IENTIOUTPM'IENT REVENUES FOR 
COMMUNITY HOSPITALS 
l Inpatient l Outpatient 

1 995 

201 8' 

AHA Mutual Sumayof Hospitals data, American Hospital Association. 1998-2019. 
'2018 data is preliminary. 

Cybersecurity 
Health care cyber incidents 

NUMBER OF 11.3. HEALTH CARE DATA BREACHES 

600 ‘ 503 

D 
2018 Jam-June 2019 

NUMBE! 0F PATENT RECORDS AFFECTED 
lin millions} 

40M ; 31.5 

2 0 M  g.“ 1 4 . 2  i - —' 0_ - ._..._ 
2018 Jan-June 2019 

FROM JANUARY Tl-BOUGH JUNE 2019: 
- External hacking was responsible for 88% of breached 

records. 

0 72% of incidents occurred in the provider setting. 

It Incidents involving business associatesfthird parties 
affected 74% of total patient records. 

“Protenusmls Mid-YearBraachBaromater, Breached Patient Records infirm I-laflofzclflflatdala 
the Totalfonfillof 2019.‘ Pmtanus. Inc. In oollaboratim with Dataflreechesnet. JulyZDl 9. 

Lean} more shoal-A HA 
cybersecurlty arid rial: resources 

and services: 
alla.orwcyfianlsk 

The rural landscape 
Rural hospitals at risk 
0 According to a study of hospital closure impacts, rural closures 

were associated with a 5.9% increase in inpatient mortality.“ 

AS OF SEPTEMBER 2019* 
I 118 rural heapitals have closed since January 2010. 
I 17 hospitals closed in 2019 alone, outpacing previous years. 

i The Cecil 6. Shape Center for Health Services Research. University of North Carolina, 
shepacantenuncsdu. Accessed Oct. 10. 2019. 

Rural health care workforce shortages 
- While almost 20% of the US. population lives in rural areas. 

less than 10% of physicians practice in these communities.“ 

0 of primary care physician shortages in 
6 6  /o the US. in 2018 were located in rural or 

partially rural areas.i 

a of mental health professional shortages 
6 2  /O in the U.S. in 2018 were located in rural 

or partially rural areas.1 

@- 
9 In 2017, more than 50% of rural physicians were at least 50 

years old and more than 25% were at least 60 years old.’r 

Decrease in the supply of physicians 
in rural areas by 2030 while 
remaining steady ln urban areas* 

' Joynt E. Karen. at at. 'Hural Hospital Participafionand Pariamtnnco Maine-Based 
Purchasing and outer Delivery System Relorm lnhiatives." ASPEOffice of Health Policy, 
October 19, 2016. 

t Skinner, Lucy, at al.. “Implications of on Aging Rural Physiclan Werldoroe." New Eager-rd 
W o r m .  2019; 391:299-301. 

Health care access in rural America 
. 42% of rural adults without health insurance reported they 

did not get care when they needed it; while 24% of those 
with health insurance did not get care when they needed it. 

REASONS FOR NOT GE'ITING CARE 

Could not afford it — 45% 

Physical access/Distance - 23% 

- 22% 
Could not find a doctor who 19% 

would take their health insurance 1 

Difficulty getting appointments 
during the hours they needed 

“Life in RuralAmelica. Part ll. " National Public Radio. RobartWocclJohnson Foundation and 
Harvard T.H. Chan School of Public Health. May 1. 2019. 

........_ ants: Learn more 000tlt AHA rural 
health resources 

ahecrglrural 

4 3 '  

ad
va

so
nw

 
I

N
V

 



AHA Agenda for Innovation 
and Transformation 

The AHA continually examines the environment to develop strategies that both address the issues of today 
and proactively prepare our field for the future. The AHA's Agenda for Innovation and Transformation advances 
the areas of public policy, field engagement and innovation to enhance our support, value and leadership for 
members. Maryjane Wurth is responsible for AHA's overall strategic direction and is the lead executive for the 
AHA Center for Health Innovation. 

QUESTION: Hospitals and 0&A OUES'I'ION: Can you tell us more 
about the AHA Design Studio? How health systems are investing in 

innovation to address spaces, 
affordability and outcomes. What 
role does the AHA play in assisting 
and encouraging innovative 
culture, processes and solutions 
throughout the hospital field? 

WURTH: Over a year ago, we launched 
the AHA Center for Health Innovation 
to help members drive high-impact 
innovation and transformation within 
their organizations and communities. 
The Center provides market intelligence, 
key insights, targeted education and 
actionable data and tools mat support 
the unique situations of our members. 
One goal is to help hospitals and health 
systems build innovation capacity within 
their institutions. 

Additionally, the AHA is uniquely 
positioned to provide a national 
perspective on fonNard-Iooking ideas 
and solutions. helping members learn 
from each other as well as traditional 
and nontraditional stakeholders. 
Examples include the AHA's work 
with more than 1,600 hospitals in the 
Hospital Improvement Innovation Network, efforts 
to address affordability through The Value Initiative, 
creation of a data collaborative with state hospital 
associations, exploration of new delivery models 
and development of resources to support population 
health management- 

We're taking the work of spreading ideas and 
best practices to the next level. We are developing 
a process to scale transformation throughout the 
field through the Center's new virtual entity called 
the Design Studio, created in partnership with 
members, that focuses on advancing the next- 
generation health care system. 

is it different from hospital and 
health system innovation centers? 

WURTH: The purpose of the Design 
Studio is to accelerate and lead 
transformation. addressing complex 
challenges in the field with unique 
member collaborations. The Design 
Studio will not duplicate what 
hospitals and systems are doing 
in their labs. The goal is to harness 
hospitals' and health systems' 
collaborative energy to discover novel 
solutions that would be much more 
challenging, or perhaps impossible, to 
develop alone. 

The work in the Design Studio is 
based on a human-centered design 
approach. As the virtual studio 
‘rooms' progress, the design teams 
may take different paths and employ 
unique approaches. The Design 
Studio will emphasize issues that 
matter to our members and will 
rely on their input. engagement 
and enthusiasm. Our initial areas 
of focus. supported by the AHA's 

Board of Trustees, are behavioral health, EHH data 
usability and risk approaches. 

A key outcome of the Design Studio will be 
the spread of curated learnings to all members 
throughout the design process. Other outcomes 
could include transformational partnerships, 
products. resources or tools or other outcomes we 
have yet to imagine. Our journey may take surprising 
turns. All together, the Design Studio ideas, solutions 
and results will drive value to address affordability 
and better health for patients, families and 
communities. 

44 





The top 10 questions from the 2020 J .P. 
Morgan Healthcare Conference that every 
CEO must answer 

Dan Michelson, CEO, Strata Decision 
Technology - Thursday, January 16th, 
As we enter a new decade, everyone is searching for something to truly change the game in 
healthcare over the next 10 years. To find that answer, an estimated 50,000 people headed to San 
Francisco this week for the prestigious J.P. Morgan Healthcare Conference. Every one of them is 
placing big bets on who will win and lose in the future of healthcare. The shortcut to figuring this 
out is actually a question —— or 10 questions to be more precise. And what matters most is 
whether or not the right people are asking and answering those questions. 

While the prophets are ever present and ever ready to pitch their promises in every comer of the 
city, the pragmatists head up to the 32nd floor of the Westin St. Francis Hotel to hear from the 
CEOs and CFOs of close to 30 of the largest and most prestigious providers of care in the 
country. Why? Remember, this is an investor conference and if you want to understand any 
market, the first rule is to follow the money. And if you want to understand the future business 
model of healthcare, you better listen closely to the health providers in that room and take notes. 

What providers are saying matters to everyone in healthcare 

Healthcare is the largest industry in our economy with over $4 trillion spent per year. Healthcare 
delivery systems and healflicare providers account for over $2 trillion of that spend, so that feels 
like a pretty good place to start, right? For that reason alone, it's critical to listen closely to the 
executives in those organizations, as their decisions will affect the quality, access and cost of 
care more than any other stakeholder in healthcare. 

Some will say that what they saw this year from healthcare providers was more of the same, but I 
encourage you to ignore that cynicism and look more closely. As the futurist William Gibson 
once said, "The future is already here — it's just not evenly distributed." The potential for any 
health system to drive major change is certainly there and the examples are everywhere. The 
biggest blocker is whether they are asking the right questions. One question can change 
everything. Here's proof. 

The stunning power of and need for good questions 

Last year I titled my summary "The #1 Takeaway fiom the 2019 JP Morgan Confirence - It 's the 
Platfonn, Stupid. " The overwhelming response to the article was pretty surprising to me — it 
really resonated with leaders. One example was Jeff Bolton,‘the chief administrative officer of 
Mayo Clinic, who told me that the article had inspired their team to ask a single question, "Does 

46 



Mayo need to be a platform?" They answered the question "yes" and then took aggressive action 
to activate a strategy around it. Keep reading to learn about what they set in motion. 

Soon after, I had a discussion wiflr John Starcher, CEO of Cinchmati—based Bon Secours Mercy 
Health, one of the largest health systems in the country, who shared with me that he is taking his 
team off site for a few days to think about their future. It occurred to me that the most helpful 
thing for his team wouldn't be a laundry list of ideas from the other 30 healtheare delivery 
systems that presented, but rather the questions that they asked at the board and executive level 
that drove their strategy. Any of those questions would have the potential to change the game for 
John's team or any executive team. After all, if you're going to change anything, the first thing 
you need to do is change is your mind. 

The wisdom of the crowd 

So, I set out to figure this out: If you were having a leadership or board retreat, what are the 10 
questions you should be asking and answering that may change the fiiture of your organization 
over the next 10 years? I didn't have the answers, so I decided to tap into the wisdom of the 
crowd, listening to all 30 of the nonprofit provider presentations, spending additional time with a 
number of the presenters and reaching out to dozens of experts in the market to help define and 
refine a set of 10 questions that could spark the conversation that fires up an executive team to 
develop to the right strategy for their organization. 

A special thank you to a number of the most respected leaders in healtheare who took their time 
to contribute to and help think through these questions: 

Mike Allen, CF 0 of OSF Healthcare (Peoria, Ill.) 
Jeff Bolton, CAO of Mayo Clinic (Rochester, Minn.) 
Robin Damschroder, CFO of Henry Ford Health System (Detroit) 
JP Gallagher, CEO of NorthShore University HealthSystem (Evanston, Ill.) 
Kris Zimmer, CFO of SSM Health (St. Louis) 
Wright Lassiter, CEO of Henry Ford Health System (Detroit) 
Mary Lou Mastro, CEO of Edwards-Elmhurst Health (Warrenville, Ill.) 

Here are the top 10 questions from the 2020 J .P. Morgan Healthcare Conference 

Based on the wisdom of the crowd including the 30 nonprofit provider presentations at the 2020 
JP Morgan Healthcare Conference, here are the Top 10 Questions that every CEO needs to 
answer that may make or break their next 10 years. 

1. Business model: Will we think differently and truly leverage our "platform?" As 
referenced earlier in this article, this was the major theme from last year — health systems 
leveraging their current assets to build hi gh-value offerings and new revenue streams on top of 
the infi'astructure they have in place. Providers are pivoting from the traditional strategy of 
buying and building hospitals and simply providing care toward a new and more dynamic 
strategy that focuses on leveraging the platform they have in place to create more value and 
growth. Mayo Clinic is an organization that all health systems follow closely. Mayo adopted the 
platform model around their 'digital assets' into what they refer to as Mayo Clinic Platform, 
which initially targets three game-changing initiatives: a Home Hospital to deliver more health in 

47 



the home even for high acuity patients, a Clinical Data Analytics Platform for research and 
development and an Advanced Diagnostics Platform focused on predictive analytics, using 
algorithms to capture subtle signals before a disease even develops. Children’s Hospital of 
Philadelphia, one of the top pediatric hOSpitals in the world, is leveraging their platform to drive 
international volume, where revenue is 3.5x more per patient. They are also making investments 
in cell and gene therapy, where their spinoff of Spark Therapeutics returned hundreds of millions 
of dollars back to their organization. Both organizations were clear that any returns that they 
generate will be re-invested back into raising the bar on both access to care and quality of care. 

2. Market share: Are we leveraging a " share of cup" strategy? Starbucks had dominant share 
in the market against Caribou Coffee, Peet’s Coffee and Dunkin' Donuts. Instead of solely 
focusing on how to grab a little more market share, they reframed the definition of their market. 
They called it "share of cup" meaning that anywhere and any time a cup of coffee was 
consumed, they wanted it to be Starbucks. In that definition of the market, they had very little 
share, but enormous growth potential. Hospital for Special Surgery in New York is the largest 
and highest volume orthopedic shop in the world. Their belief is that wherever and whenever a 
musculoskeletal issue occurs, they should be part of that conversation. This thinking has led 
them to build a robust referral network, which 33 percent of the time leads to no surgical 
treatment. So instead of fighting for share of market in New York, they have a very small share 
and a very big opportunity in a "share of cup" approach. NorthShore University Health 
System in Illinois has taken a similar approach on a regional level, converting one of their full- 
service hospitals into the first orthopedic and spine institute in the state. The results have 
exceeded expectations on every measure and they already have to increase their capacity due to 
even higher demand than they originally modeled. 

3. Structure: Are we a holding company or an operating company? There has been a 
tremendous amount of consolidation over the last few years, but questions remain over the merits 
of those moves. The reality is that many of these organizations haven't made the tough decisions 
and are essentially operating as a holding company. They are not getting any strategic or 
operational leverage. You can place all health systems on a continuum along these two endpoints 
—-- being a holding vs. an Operating company —— but the most critical step is to have an open 
conversation about where you're at today, where you intend to be in the future, when you’re 
going to get there and how you're going to make it happen. Bon Secours Mercy Health‘s CEO 
John Starcher shared, "It makes sense to merge, but only if you're willing to make the tough 
decisions." His team hit the mark on every measure of their integration following their merger. 
They then leveraged that same competency to acquire the largest private provider of care in 
Ireland, as well as seven hospitals in South Carolina and Virginia. Northwestern Medicine has 
leveraged a similar approach to transform from a $1 billion hospital into a $5 billion health 
system in a handfiJl of years. Both of these organizations prioritized and made tough decisions 
quickly and each has created an organizational competency in executing efficiently and 
effectively on mergers and acquisitions. 

4. Culture: Do we have employees or a team? Every organization states that their employees 
are their most important asset, but few have truly engaged them as a team. Hospitals and 
healthcare delivery systems can become extraordinarily political, and it's easy to see why. These 
are incredibly complex businesses with tens of thousands of employees in hundreds of locations 
and thousands of departments. Getting that type of organization to move in the same direction is 

48 



incredibly challenging in any industry. At the same time, the upside of breaking through is 
perhaps the most important test of any leadership team. JP Gallagher, CEO of N orthShore 
University HealthSystem, shared his perspective that, "Healthcare is a team sport." The tough 
question is whether or not your employees are truly working as a team. Christiana 
Care provides care in four states —— Delaware, Maryland, Pennsylvania and New Jersey. They 
have taken a unique approach that they frame as "for the love of health," incorporating the 
essence of what they do in every communication both internally and externally, in their values 
and in their marketing. In a multi—state system, it is tricky to create a caring and collaborative 
culture, but it's critical and they've nailed it. Their CEO shared that, "If you lead with love, 
excellence will follow." That's not only well said but spot-on. Creating a world-class team 
requires not only loving what you do, but the team you're part of. 

5. Physicians: Are our physicians optimistic or pessimistic? There's a lot of concern about 
“physician burnout" with a reflex to blame it on EHRs, cutting off the needed conversation to 
dive deeper into where it really comes from and how best to address it. The challenge over the 
next decade is to create an Optimistic, engaged and collaborative culture with physicians. In 
reading this, some will react with skepticism, which is exactly why leadership here is so 
important. One suggestion I was given was to make this question edgier and ask, "Are our 
physicians with us or not?“ However the question is asked, the bottom line is that leadership 
needs to find a way to turn this into a dynamic, hyper-engaged model. A little while back I spent 
the day with the leadership team at Cleveland Clinic. At the end of the day, their CEO Dr. Tom 
Mihalj evic was asked what he would tell someone who was thinking of going to medical school. 
He said he would tell them that, "This is absolutely the best time to be a doctor." His answer was 
based on the fact that there has never been a time when you could do more to help people. He 
wasn't ignoring the challenges, he was simply refraining those issues as important problems that 
smart people need to help solve in the future. Those who adopt that type of optimism and truly 
engage and partner with their physicians will create a major competitive advantage over the next 
decade. 

6. Customer: Do we treat sick patients or care for consumers? Words matter here - patients 
vs. consumers. Most hospitals are in a B2B, not B2C, mindset. Patients get sick, they try to 
access care, they check into an ER, they get admitted, they are treated, they get discharged. 
People get confused, anxious and concerned, then they seek not only care, but simplicity, 
compassion and comfort. With half of America coming through their stores every 
week, Walmart is already the largest provider organization that no one thinks of as they provide 
'consumer' care, not 'patient‘ care. But they are starting to broaden their lens, and health systems 
will need to make moves as well. Competing with Walmart, CVS and other consumer-centric 
models will require a different mindset. I think Dr. Janice Nevin, the 
CEO ChristianaCare, captured this really well when she said, "Our mindset is that our role is to 
ensure everything that can be digital will be digital. Everything than can be done in the home 
will be done in the home." Henry Ford Health System CEO Wright Lassiter commented, "Trust 
is the fundamental currency in healthcare." Building that trust will require a digital experience in 
the fiJture that is just as compassionate and caring as what health systems strive to deliver in 
person in the past. 

7. Data: Will we make data liquid? The most undervalued and misunderstood asset of health 
systems may be their data. While some at the conference refer to this as having the economic 

49 



equivalent of being the "oil of healthcare," the real and more practical question is whether or not 
your organization will make data liquid, available and accessible to the right players on your 
team at the right time. Jeff Bolton fiom Mayo commented that, "The current model is broken. 
Data and tech can eliminate fragmentation." In a recent Strata survey, we asked leaders in health 
systems whether they had access to the information they needed to do their job, and 90 percent 
said no. For many health systems, data is a science project, hidden behind the scenes primarily 
used for research and impossible to access for most stakeholders. The call to action is activating 
that data to improve clinical outcomes, operations and/or financial performance. ” 

8. Cost: Are we serious about reducing the cost of care and delivering value? Affordability 
is a hot topic, and for good reason, as high deductible plans, price transparency and other factors 
have accelerated its urgency. As Intermountain Healthcare CEO Dr. Marc Harrison shared, "We 
have an absolute responsibility to make healthcare affordable." While the consumer side will be 
a moving target for some time, the No. I challenge for hospitals right now is to lower their cost 
structure so they can compete more effectively in the future. Advocate Aurora Health, Baylor 
Scott & White Health, CommonSpirit Health and many others are targeting cost reductions of 
over $1 billion over the next few years. As most hospitals are now in a continuous process to 
reduce cost in order to compete more effectively in the future, organizations like Yale New 
Haven Health in Connecticut have implemented advanced cost accounting solutions to better 
understand both cost and margins. Yale is using this data to understand variation, supporting an 
initiative that drove over $150 million in savings. Additionally, they have combined cost data 
with clinical feeds from their EHR to understand the cost of harm events, which turn out to be 5x 
more expensive. As more providers take on risk, having a ”source of tru " on the cost of care 
will be essential. Advocate Aurora Health CF 0 Dominic Nakis shared that, "We believe the 
market will continue to move to taking on risk." Many of the presenting organizations shared 
that same perspective, but they won’t be able to manage that risk unless they understand the cost 
of care for every patient at every point of care across the continuum every day. 

9. Capital: Do we have an "asset-light" strategy? Traditional strategy for health systems was 
defined primarily by what they built or bought. Many hospitals still maintain an "if you build it, 
they will come" strategy at the board level. Yet, Uber has become the biggest transportation 
company in the world without owning a single car and Airbnb has become the biggest hospitality 
company in the world without owning a single room. These models are important to reflect upon 
as healthcare delivery systems assess their capital investment strategy. Intermountain 
Healthcare CFO Bert Zimmerli refers to their overall thought process as an "asset-1i ght 
expansion strategy. " In 2019, they opened a virtual hospital and they have now delivered over 
700,000 virtual interactions. The number of virtual visits at Kaiser Permanente now exceeds 
the number of in-person visits at their facilities. With that said, there will be a balance. I really 
like how Robin Darnschroder the CFO of Henry Ford Health System framed it: "We believe 
healthcare will be more like the airline and banking industry, both of which are firlly digitally 
enabled but have .a balance of 'bricks and clicks' with defined roles where you can seamlessly 
move between the two. Clearly, we have a lot of 'bricks‘ so building out the platform that 
integrates 'clicks' is essential." 

10. Performance: Do we want our team to build a budget or improve performance? The 
most significant barrier to driving change that many organizations have baked into their 
operating model is their budget process. The typical hospital spends close to five months creating 

50 



a budget that is typically more than $100 million off the mark. After it’s presented to the board, it 
is typically thrown out within 90 days. It creates a culture of politics, entitlement and inertia. 
According to a Strata survey of 200 organizations, close to 40 percent are now ditching the 
traditional budget process in favor of a more dynamic approach, often referred to as Advanced 
Planning. OSF HealthCare leverages a rolling approach, radically simplifying and streamlining 
the planning process while holding their team accountable for driving improvement vs. hitting a 
budget. When it comes to driving performance, SSM Health CEO Laura Kaiser captured the 
underlying mindset that's needed: "We have a strong bias toward purposeful action." Well said, 
and it certainly applies to all of the questions here among the top 10. 

5 additional questions to consider 

As you would imagine or might suggest, the questions above can and in some cases should be 
replaced with others. Additional critical questions to answer that came from the group included 
the following: 

1. Competition: Who else will we compete with in the future and are we positioned to win? 
2. Digital health: Are we going to be a "digital health" company, providing tech-enabled 

services? 
3. Affordability: How are we making care more affordable and easier to understand and 

access? 
4. Social determinants: Is this a mission, marketing or operations strategy? 
5. Leadership: Have we made the tough decisions we need to make, and will we in the 

future? 

Start asking questions 

The point here isn't to get locked into a single list of questions, but rather to force your team to 
ask and answer the most important and challenging ones that will take you from where you are 
today to where you want to be in the future. After reviewmg these questions with your team, the 
one additional question you need to consider is one of competency: Do you have the ability and 
bandwidth to execute on what you've targeted? In the end, that‘s what matters most. While there 
are many interesting opportunities, too many teams end up chasing too much and delivering too 
little. 

The next 10 years can and should be the best 10 years for every health system and every 
healthcare provider, but making it happen will require some really tough questions. "The current 
path we’re on will leave us with a healthcare delivery model that is completely unsustainable," 
stated Randy Osstra, CEO of ProMedica Health System. "We need to take meaningful action 
toward creating a new model of health and well-being ——-—- one that supports healthy aging, 
addresses social determinants of health, encourages appropriate care in the lowest cost setting, 
and creates flmding and incentives to force a truly integrated approach." 

Strong leaders are needed now more than ever. The rest of healthcare is watching, not just 
professionally but personally. We are all gratefiil to you for the extraordinary and often heroic 
care that you deliver without hesitation to our family and fi'iends every day both in our 
communities and across our country. But now we all need you to not only deliver care, but a new 

51 



and better version of healtheare. So, ask and answer these and other tough questions. We know 
you will do everything that you can to help make healfllcare healthier for all of us over the next 
10 years. 

Dan Michelson is the CEO ofChicago-based Strata Decision Technology. Mr. Michelson has 
authored recaps of JP Morgan Healthcare conferences for the past several years for Becker's. 
Read his account of the 2019 event here, 2018 event here and the 201 7 event here. 

52 





Trusteelnsigbts W 
TOP 1. TRENDS 

to Watch (and Act Upon) in 

2.02 
.. 1"." . ,  

i 1--- . u u 
x t For many. the continual hnancral 
1’ . " 

pressures created by expenses 
rising faster than revenues will be 
all-consuming. A slowing economy, 

BY LAURA P. JACOBS 
eyond election-year dialogue, 

B which will continue to place 
health care front and center, 

what should health care system 
trustees be watching in 2020? In 
some cases. what may seem 

0 Economic Pressures 

routine trends will require more ‘ ' I “1" or worse, a recession, could pose 
innovative and bold solutions, and ' . . " new challenges, including shifting 
some ground-breaking trends may -' , ' - - ‘ _ _ ' . - - ‘_ _ '7 are“; yer mix to increased Medicaid 
indicate "watchful waiting." 'J I =: - . #11. i or uninsured patients as well 

* ' as deferred elective ure.The 
The Fundamentals continued growth of highdeductible 

health plans will require an attentive 
point-of-service collections process 

and a thoughtful pricing strategy. 
With relentless capital needs for 
IT infrastructure and replacing! 

expanding facilities. 
a focus on margin 
improvement will be 
critical. Pharmacy 
cost management will 

Don't be fooled if these seem 
"ordinary." Solving the challenges 
that some of these ongoing trends 
present may require bold 
thinking and creative solu— 
tions to achieve the kind of 
impactful and sustainable 
results that this environ- 
ment requires. 

C TRUSTEE - Fundamental trends include ongoing - Acceleration of telemedicine, virtual 
" ' 0  TALKING PO|NT3 economic pressures, rising consumer care and advances in biotechnology, 

expectations, an evolving workforce diagnostic equipment and analytic 
. Routine trends present challenges that and continued movementtoward value- and digital tools have the potential for 

may require more creative solutions to based payment dramatic impact 
ejfl‘ect sirstainable change. 



Trusteelnsights 
be top of nmind, as the volatility of 
drug costs can create surprises in 
managing expenses. Taking a new 
look at ways to optimize human and 
capital resources through re—engi— 
neering care delivery and leveraging 
technology effectively will be neces- 
sary. as "the low-hanging fruit” of 
prior cost-reduction efforts has likely 
been plucked. A renewed focus on 
ways to reduce waste and unwar- 
ranted care variation through into- 
grating data and analytics with lean 
processes and team engagement 
will require strong leadership. The call 
to make health care more affordable 
will be loud and continuous. as will 
the need to challenge traditional 
approaches and solutions to yield 
sustainable cost reduction that main- 
tains or improves patient outcomes. 

Trustees Should Discuss: Does 
current operating performance 
match the expectations built into 
your long-term financial plans and 
target bond ratings? That is, does 
your current cash flow generate the 
cash required to fund current and 
anticipated capital needs? If not, 
what actions are being taken to 
address costs and revenue growth? 
Have previous improvement efforts 
been sustained? How does the 
organization foster an environment 
that encourages new thinking and 
bold solutions that position it for 
future success? 

0 Consumer 
Expectations 

Rising consumer expectations of 
a multiculturalfmuftigenerational 
demographic coupled with an aging 
population will continue to create 
both opportunities and threats to 

l traditional health systems. Health 
care consumers seeking accessible, 
affordable and Amazon-like experi- 
ences will be attracted to the many 
new entrants that seek to fill that 
void. These will include technolo— 
gy—based companies. new primary 
care models, national providers of 
outpatient surgery and imaging. and 
hospital-at-home providers, all lever- 
aging an ability to test new models of 
care, unencumbered by the politics 
and complex decision-making (and 
fixed costs) of a large hospital or 
health system. 

As the population ages. keeping a 
watchful eye on Medicare payment 
policies as well as continuing to 
improve the coordination of care 
across the continuum for patients 
with complex, chronic conditions 
must be a priority for all heafth 
systems. Implementing strategies 
and working with other community 
organizations to address mental 
health and health issues caused by 
poverty and hunger or malnutrition 
also must receive attention from 
health system leaders; the overuse 
of emergency departments and 
overlong hospital stays are often 
due to these issues and can best be 
addressed through influencing social 
determinants of health. 

Trustees Should Discuss: Who 
are the nontraditional competitors 
in your market and how is your 
organization addressing consumer 
expectations? How is the organi- 
zation poised to succeed under 
Medicare payment models? How 
are care delivery models adapting 
to address patients with multiple 
chronic conditions? What commu- 
nity needs beyond medical care 
does your community health needs 

l 
i 

EMERGING ISSUES 

assessment identify — e.g.. housing, 
poverty, hunger, mental health 
— which your health system can 
address either directly or through 
community partners? 

9 An Evolving 
Workforce 

As a field that is primarily depen- 
dent on human resources to deliver 
services. attention must be paid to 
an evolving workforce. With high 
demand for physicians of many 
specialties, especially primary care. 
to serve in various roles across the 
health care sector beyond direct 
patient care, health systems will have 
to refresh recruitment approaches and 
evaluate retention strategies.This also 
holds true for most clinical and tech- 
nology roles: Health systems must 
provide a workplace that is appealing 
to a multigenerational and multicul- 
tural workforce seeking flexible work 
hours. multiple venues for learning. 
competitive wages and benefits. and 
opportunities for advancement. 

Union activity will continue 
to put pressure on organizations 
to engage employees in effec- 
tive ways. This will put additional 
economic pressure on hospitals, so 
going beyond productivity moni- 
toring will be required to assure 
individuals are working "at the top 
of their license" in efficient ways. 
Stress over concern that artificial 
intelligence (Al) will replace jobs 
must be replaced with strategies 
to effectively use Al to reduce the 
stress of boring, repetitive tasks. 
Effective change management 
leadership also will be paramount 
as "change fatigue" can impact 
morale. not to mention patient 
care, across the enterprise. 

55 



Trusteelnsights 
Tulstees Should Discuss: Does 
your organization have a well-defined 
human resources strategy that incor- 
porates all elements of the human 
capital value chain and their interrela- 
tionships: recruitment, performance 
management, compensation and 
benefits, learning systems, produc- 
tivity management. leadership 
development? Does the strategy 
anticipate more changes in the future 
to the roles of care team members 
across the continuum —-- serving 
patients in their homes, through 
virtual technology, as well as in 
traditional settings? In what areas are 
vacancies (or overuse of agency or 
overtime pay) most severe, and what 
recruitment or retention strategies 
are being deployed to address the 
challenge? Has the health system 
played an active role in working with 
academic institutions and educational 
resources to promote the training of 
individuals at all skill levels in creative 
ways? What is your organization's 
leadership development and succes- 
sion plan? 

Shifting Sands 

Market movement in the following 
areas is highly variable, depending on 
your state, region or town. But they 
remain highly impactful and require 
constant observation to avoid missing 
signs of rapid change. 

0 Value-Based Payment 
Despite some fits and starts, the 
ongoing march to value-based 
payment will continue through 2020 
and beyond. While no payment mech- 
anism has yet to become a panacea, 
most payers continue to move away 
from “vanilla" fee-foaservice to an 

- _  

expectation that value be demon- - 
strated by cost savings and improved 
quality. Medicare Advantage plans 
already cover 35 percent of individ- 
uals eligible for Medicare across the 
country, and enrollment continues to 
grow at a steady pace year over year. 
Many Medicaid plans are organized 
around HMO-like stmctures with 
defined provider networks and, in 
some cases, at—risk payment models. 

Watch for increasing activity 
of employers in your market to 
contract directly with providers 
for certain specialty services 
le.g., Amazon with City of Hope 
for cancer care) or to take risk for 
total cost of care. Payers such as 
UnitedHeaIth {through Optum) and 
many Blue Cross Blue Shield plans 
are developing their own provider 
networks. Health systems with 
a blind eye to changes in payer 
strategies run the risk of being 
marginalized. 

All of these trends require 
increased collaboration and data 
sharing between physician organi- 
zations (either employed or affili- 
ated groups) and hospitals —— and 
physician leadership to drive the 
necessary changes in care models 
to effect value-based care delivery. 

Trustees Should Discuss: What is 
the health system's payer strategy 
to address commercial, Medicare 
and Medicaid trends in your region? 
How is the organization fairing under 
the current value-based payment 
structures? How "healthy" are 
hospital—physician relationships to 
drive improvements in care across 
the continuum? What opportu- 
nities exist to work directly with 
employers both within and outside 
your community? 

EMERGING ISSUES 

0 Regulatory Changes 
Health care is one of the most 
highly regulated fields in the U.S., 
so keeping a pulse on federal and 
state regulatory changes is crucial. 
Current " hot buttons" revolve 
around price transparency lbeyond 
just posting your charge master}. 
site-neutral payments and drug 
costs. Nationwide shifts to single- 
payer or public options will receive 
a lot of talk but no action this elec- 
tion year. Site-neutral payments 
go beyond CMS policies: Many 
health plans le.g., Anthem, United) 
have instituted payment policies 
requiring pro-authorization and 
potentially disallowing payment for 
certain surgical or imaging proce- 
dures in hospital-based settings. 

Whether mandated or not, 
being ready for retail medicine by 
enabling technology and simpli- 
fied pricing structures to provide 
consumers accurate information 
about their potential out-of— 
pocket costs will be a competitive 
advantage. Be alert to changes in 
state-specific Medicaid policies; 
shifts in coverage. payment models 
and rates can be severe depending 
on stresses on state budgets and 
the political climate. 

Trustees Should Discuss: How 
is your organization prepared for 
pricing transparency? What is its 
strategy to respond to site-neu- 
tral payments for outpatient 
care? Does it have a competitive 
outpatient network — inclusive of 
outpatient surgery and imaging 
services? What do you antici- 
pate at the state level in terms 
of regulatory changes or shifts in 
Medicaid policies? 

56 



Trustee Insights _ 
0 Growth of Outpatient 

and Post-Acute Care 
The growth of outpatient and 
post-acute care is not new, but 
it is receiving greater attention 
as competition heats up and 
financial performance is scruti— 1 
nized. Virtually all health systems 
continue to grow their physician 
enterprise, either through acqui- 
sition of physician practices or 
through contracting in clinically 
integrated networks. But there 
is also a plethora of primary care 
and specialty care models that 
are either privately funded (e.g., 
Oak Street Health, One Medical) 
or sponsored by large public 
companies lCVS, Walmartl that 
are expanding rapidly across the 
country. This will put pressure on 
health systems to assure that their 
outpatient strategy is competi- 
tive in terms of patient service, 
affordability and care coordination, 
and provides facilities and other 
resources attractive to physicians 
and other clinicians. 

Likewise, the high demand for 
post-acute care, given the aging of 
the population and push for "right 
care/right place" has fostered the 
expansion of a variety of post- 
acute providers and venues of 
care, including hospital care at 
home. Many health systems are 
finding that partnering with orga- 
nizations that specialize in rehab, 
skilled nursing and home care 
is more feasible than operating 
their own post-acute services. 
But setting up service—level 
agreements and assuring smooth 
transitions of care still require 
the constant attention of health 
system leaders. 

EMERGING lSSUES 

Trustees Should Discuss: How 
is your outpatient network poised 
to compete with the likes of CVS 
and Walmart? ls its financial perfor- 
mance sustainable, and how easy 
is it for prOSpective patients to 
access your services? Do you have 
a post—acute strategy that assures 
patients can move seamlessly 
across the continuum of care and 
receive care consistent with your 
health system's standards? 

0 Health System 
Complexity 

Health system complexity will 
continue to increase. Whether your 
organization is a single community 
hospital or a multihospital, multidi— 
mensional system serving multiple 
states, external trends demand that 
health systems operate effectively 
across the care continuum and 
across multiple functions. Your 
organization could play a role as a 
payer, technologylinnovation accel- 
erator. clinical research resource, 
educator and professional training 
site as well as a care provider in 
acute. post-acute, outpatient, virtual 
and retail care. 

The sheer complexity of running 
the information technology or 
analytics function for many health 
systems is daunting, let alone the 
revenue cycle process for so many 
different care venues and payment 
models.This level of complexity 
demands new types of leaders and 
approaches to leadership. It also 
requires organizations to determine 
what they can and should do alone 
and where partners can bring exper- 
tise and focus. Even more impor- 
tantly, hospitals and health systems 
must articulate a clear vision of the l 

organization they aspire to be, and 
what they will (and will not) do to 
achieve that goal. 

Trustees Should Discuss: Do 
our strategies and actions match 
our stated vision? What degree of 
transformation is required to get us 
there? Do we have the right leaders 
or leadership approach to get us 
there? Has organizational structure 
and function matured consistent 
with the size and scope of the 
health system? Is our governance 
structure and function geared to 
lead the current and future health 
care enterprise? 

Revolutionary Potential 

While not new, many of these trends 
are gaining traction quickly —— how 
dramatic will the change be in your 
environment? Close monitoring and, 
in some cases, advancing the appli— 
cation of these dismptive elements 
warrant attention for organizations to 
remain relevant as the future unfolds. 

0 Telemedicine and 
Virtual Care 

Telemedicine and virtual care have 
come of age.They have moved from 
the pilot stage and use in select 
areas to being a key consideration 
for virtually every service — from 
primary care to intensive care. For 
many health systems. telemedicine 
and virtual care are still viewed as a 
care model in its infancy, but many 
of the new entrants leverage the 
convenience of telemedicine and 
virtual care to attract consumers and 
create loyalty. They also provide a 
critical linkage with many specialty 
services for rural providers. 

57 



Trustee Insights 
For example, voice recognition 

in the hospital and home setting 
is growing and assisting patients 
with everything from adjusting the 
temperature in their hospital room to 
contacting their care manager from 
home. Wearables (think Apple watch) 
that track key health indicators (EKG) 
as well as using cell phone apps to 
manage chronic care and leverage 
behavior modification tools have 
been and will be widely promoted. 
The only holdup will be the pace at 
which payment models keep up with 
these digital and virtual advances. 

— _  

Trustees Should Discuss: What Is 
your health system' 5 plan to adopt 
and scale the use of virtual tech- 
nology? Has it gone beyond the 
pilot stage to being a routine way 
that care is delivered for appropriate 
services? How are wearable tech- 
nologies or cell phone apps being 
incorporated into chronic care path- 
ways — or when is the timing right 
for that? 

0 Biotechnology and 
Clinical Advances 

u—n-u—u—I—L 

Biotechnology and clinical advances 
continue to incorporate precision 
health concepts. Many of the most 
advanced are primarily provided in 
academic medical centers (e.g., 
CAR T-cell therapy], but genomics 
is being applied in many settings 
to take population health to a new 
level. Diagnostic equipment is 
becoming more portable (hand-held 
devices) and increasingly incor- 
porates Al (imaging equipment), 
which changes both the venue 
and role of clinicians in using the 
equipment. 

With organizations like Apple 

TRUSTEE 
TAKEAWfii '. .. , -  
Boar I“? i: —"|- ' 
trend 1‘ , _:|-. 
I'Ho "i‘ _ 

and 5"" Te Iii“ 
3'13? 'Wh 3315:: 

men "rial-- t 
SYSE'TT‘ we u . ’  

I: 

T ‘ I ' I j .  

. D o e  ‘ TIE-II“; : ' — _ :- 

I l iCO 

tit‘Jn'I'jv:Jr 

II I - .  

I“ in? i :IsIILt' I'- 

EMEHGING ISSUES 

I i E I  I"  - - “ I I  25-” . l __ . 
i. I .  1—]. _I 141.1 
3'16 I‘—Fit-Hi1:-I-u_i'li__iking 

r- 
1:: 

- : ' , . " 1 _ fi ; f h " i l l  I I 
I I “  I 

f" * Iii—J i i  1‘1.”- 

I-J—lh “{3- T_. I a i -  
' | s  our'gpvnarrtces t stirrea 

health care enter prise? 

and Google increasing their role in 
medical research, leveraging their 
powerful analytic engines. traditional 
clinical research organizations may 
either be challenged or will need 
to find new partners to accelerate 
research efforts. 

Trustees Should Discuss: How do 
our medical staff approval processes 
and care pathways consider new 
therapies or diagnostic approaches? 
Do we have a strategy to work 
with academic medical centers to 
extend the reach of researd1 and! 
or new therapies into the commu— 

[ c i t  Fini- : 3 8 :  E — " J '  

nity setting? How are we consid- 
ering genomics in our care delivery 
approaches? Have we set priorities 
to focus philanthropy on the most 
critical research efforts? 

(D Advanced Analytic 
and Digital Tools 

Blockchain, Al and other analytic 
and digital power have the 
potential to create new levels of 
efficiency in traditionally cumber- 
some processes — for example. 
in revenue cycle. But in many 
cases, these applications are just 

58 



Trusteelnsights... 
be unleashed in significant ways. 
At the same time. organizations 
that seize the power of some of 
these advanced digital tools could 
be the game changers in both 
reducing administrative costs and 
driving out waste. 

Partnering with technology 
companies that are working on these 
applications could be an opportunity 
ora distraction for hospitals and 
health systems. Determining the 
organization's readiness to radically 
transform key functions will be 
critical, but in any case, leveraging 
the potential of advanced analytics in 
your organization is a first step. Most 
leaders acknowledge their current 
dilemma: being data rich and insight 
poor. Improving basic business 
intelligence across the organization is 

emerging and are still waiting to I 

fundamental to understanding both 

current performance and shedding 
light on opportunities for redesign. 

Trustees Should Discuss: How 
are we leveraging technology and 
analytics to ill make business deci- 
sions; (2) drive clinical decisions: and 
(3} improve efficiencies? What are 
our plans to embrace Al within the 
organization? Should we be part- 
nering with others to see how we 
could transform key functions like 
revenue cycle or population health 
management? 

Conclusion 

Health care remains a tornado 
of change due to the many 
demands from all stakeholders: 
Consumers demand change to 
make our services more acces- 
sible, less fragmented. more 

EMERGING ISSUES 

affordable: payers demand more 
efficiency, less waste, lower cost; 
our workforce demands greater 
flexibility, less stress, competitive 
pay...the list goes on. We can 
be daunted by the complexity 
and often conflicting changes 
expected of health care systems, 
or we can embrace many of 
the opportunities that will make 
health care better for consumers 
and providers of care. As the 
saying goes, " running away from 
the problem only increases the 
distance to the solution." 2020 
will be another year to seize the 
challenge and embrace change to 
improve health care. 

Laura E Jacobs, MPH (Laura. 
Jacobs@ge.com) is managing prin- 
crpal of GE Healthcare Partners. She 
is based in Los Ange/es. 

59 





(eggs)... I 

%_ W h h m m  

2020 HOSPITAL CONSTRUCTION SURVEY 

2020 Hospital Construction Survey 
Advanced planning, design and construction technology helps drive building project 
efficiency 
March 19,2020 

Beth Bunnahl and Jamie Morgan 

Image from Getty Images 

Architects who began designing Piedmont Tower in Atlanta in 2016 knew the project 
would have to move swiftly to meet the target goal of opening by the end of 2020. 

The $600 million medical tower is a massive undertaking that will add a cardiovascular 
care center, more than 400 beds and 13 Operating rooms to Piedmont Atlanta Hospital. 
Designers planned to build the entire structure and up-fit 10 floors of the 16-floor tower, 
including the cardiovascular center, and then complete one floor per year after that. 

61 



ADVANCED CONSTRUCTION TECHNOLOGY 

Advanced construction tlL'ChfiMOglfi} mod on hes-3th Top LILIOH tar usual acumen! maximum" Ittnnoluflt~ 0.. 
can: prejccts rcportmd by 3;! tcspondvnh hum: - nr progd. by “wire-dent. tutti,- - och trc.hnoio,;w 

m m m m m u m m m  
min! 

_ - I ‘ "  — . - _  q 1 

_Wmm 

Wmdmfizfibvéw—fi ' 4 

ma - - -- 1- ~ 
W N W  _- _ _ __ _” M l .. 
mmmmmmewm 

1Y-u—p 

—— --i 

. . — _ - . _ _ _ -  .— " — .  

imam-mm M ' m  mam W135"! 2020 M W  Sum: 
q . . -  :-.—'—_-—-—- - -—.  ' ~  ——*» 

Tmmwfilwm ' '- E “  F'— 
P 

9m.f’mvs‘_ c = = - - f - -  I n .  

Click on the image above and click on the arrows to view data from the 2020 
HOSpital Construction Survey 

To accelerate the project, HKS Architects, Chicago, is relying heavily on building 
information modeling (BIM) and cloud-based collaboration that allows designers, 
contractors and engineers to coordinate the project in real time and eliminate the need 
to exchange design models, among other time-savers. 

As of early this year, the project is on budget and on schedule to open in late 2020. 

"From a design standpoint, BIM is a continually important tool,” says Joe Sprague, 
FAIA, FACHA, FHFI, senior vice president and principal at HKS ArChitects, Dallas, and 
a member of the American Society for Health Care Engineering (ASHE) Board. “Along 
with allowing the team to coordinate throughout the entire project, BIM provides 3D, 
real—time visualization and allows for input of critical project data. I continue to believe 
that CAD is also very important in that regar 

Technology like BIM not only helps hospitals save time and money, it offers a 
cohesiveness that designers even two decades ago could not have imagined. 

"BIM is surging in use partly because it's hard not to have BIM in your system,” says 
Brad Pollitt, AIA, vice president of facilities at UF Health, Gainesville, Fla. “BIM is great 

62 



for clash detection, enhanced collaboration and easier decision making. It's becoming 
necessary for most hospital projects.” 

BIM is just one of the advanced technologies hospitals are relying on to guide the 
design and construction process from conception to realization, according to the 2020 
Hospital Construction Survey conducted by ASHE’s Health Facilities 
Management magazine. 

The survey, which included responses from more than 400 facilities professionals at 
hospitals across the country, asked a wide range of questions on everything from 
design trends and budgets to certification and commissioning. 

For the first time, the survey asked respondents which advanced technologies they 
have used on construction projects in their health care organizations. 

Benefits across the board 

Along with BIM, prefabrication, 3D projection mapping, modular construction and 360- 
degree photography are among the most-cited technologies for design and construction 
projects, according to the survey. Most cited benefits are cost control (80%), enhanced 
communication (53%) and staying on or ahead of schedule (52%), which is in line with 
what is happening throughout the field, according to Mark Nichols, AlA, ACHA, LEED 
AP, principal at Eckenhoff Saunders, Chicago. 

RELATED ARTICLE 
Technology infrastructure drives renovation Erojects 

“Each of these technologies is different, but they all support one another. And in a 
sense, they all have a data component,” Nichols says. “Hospitals using these 
technologies are seeing lower costs, faster results and better coordination of 
documentation, leading to better outcomes all around." 

In the survey, respondents were asked open-ended questions about technology-driven 
projects and offered comments, including: 

. "We have used virtual reality, SD imaging, light detection and ranging (LIDAR), 
and BIM 360. So far, ali have saved time and reduced changes.” 
“BIM, prefabrication and 3D projection mapping were used in our construction of 
a full replacement hospital.” 

After BlM, prefabrication --— building or manufacturing parts of a project at a location 
other than the job site ——- was the second most cited advanced technology by survey 
respondents. While it is not a new construction tool, technology is amplifying the 
benefits of prefabrication. 

63 



Said one respondent: “Using prefab bathrooms has become a standard in our 
organization. it saves a great deal of time.” 

RESOURCES 
. "State of U.S. Health Care Facility Infrastructure" monogragh 

Modular structures — those constructed in a factory and transported assembled on-site 
-— continue to grow in popularity and are especially beneficial for larger hospitals, says 
Pollitt. “For something like bathroom design, you can build hundreds of these a year and 
stockpile them, which saves time and costs. But it wouldn't be as effective for a ZOO-bed 
hospital. You would have to get in front of the design team to standardize all the 
elements from the beginning." 

Pollitt says some health care providers in Florida are using modular structures “as big 
as a semi-truck” to build freestanding emergency rooms. 

Said one survey respondent: "Exterior wall panels were constructed at a factory, 
shipped to the site and assembled in record time with less labor. Cost and time savings 
benefit” 

Though not yet in widespread use, more designers are relying on augmented reality, 
which layers computer-generated enhancements over an existing reality; and virtual 
reality, a computer-generated simulation or recreation of a real-life environment. 

McCarthy Building Companies lnc., St. Louis, is using 3D technology and augmented 
reality to create a real-world experience for clients, says Alex Belkofer, director of virtual 
design and construction at McCarthy. 

“We are doing virtual mockups for health care clients and walking them through the 
project using a 3D model, or doing it live on the job site,” Belkofer says. “The feedback 
we are getting is great. Health care clients say the technology creates an environment 
that feels real and gives them a feeling of comfort. It gives the health care owner 
confidence about the project and really helps with buy-in.” 

Rendered floor plan technology is a great way to provide clients a clear understanding 
of the project's expectations, says Nichols. "This gives us a 3D approach that leads us 
to that 'turn on the light“ moment, where the stakeholders truly understand the design 
before construction is underway. Rendered floor plan technology eliminates the 
possibility of walking into a completed space and saying, 'This is not what I expected.” 

Other technologies gaining in popularity are 360-degree photography, which captures 
building data for future reference; drones, which can be used to capture construction 
progress photos and perform 3D scans of existing structures; and radio frequency 
identification (RF ID) to track workers and equipment. 

64 



And just as it is disrupting all of health care, Belkofer says artificial intelligence (Al) is 
among the exciting new technologies that will transform health care design and 
construction in this decade. 

“We are starting to figure out the many ways AI can aid design and construction," 
Belkofer says. “How do we automate some of these human tasks related to modular 
and prefab construction? How does the evolution of robotics drive the ability of 3D 
printing? They are now testing ways to lay brick and concrete blocks with robots. These 
technologies are the future of design and construction.” 

Funding construction projects 
in terms of funding, hospital construction budgets were in line with the previous year. In 
2019, funding for new construction dipped slightly from 25% to 19%, increased from 
18% to 20% for infrastructure and stayed level for facility renovation at about 28%. 

About this survey 
SPONSORED BY 

DPREMIER 
Health Faciifties Management (HFM) and the American Society for Healthcare Engineering of the American 
Hospital Association surveyed a random sample of 4,199 hospital and health system executives to learn about 
trends in hospital construction. The response rate was 9.2% percent. HFM and ASHE thank the sponsor of this (a... , survey: Premier lnc.. Charlotte, N.C. ‘ " 

While more than half of the respondents said projects came in under budget and on 
and/or ahead of schedule, more than 18% said projects were over budget and behind 
schedule — a number that has increased gradually over the years. 

Pollitt says this steady rise may be related to the increasing complexity of hospitals and 
the need for contractors to get involved earlier. “Hospitals that don’t hire the right team 
early in the process will soon be dealing with schedule overruns and budget overruns. 
Even 10 years ago, hospital systems were not this complex.” 

And the vast majority of hospitals are funding renovations and expansions (74%) of 
acute care hospitals versus new construction (31%), a trend likely to continue in 2020, 
according to the survey. Forty-eight percent of respondents are planning to increase 
spending on renovations/expansions this year. 

Pollitt says these numbers are consistent with what he is seeing in the field. 

65 



“Hospitals are upgrading older facilities to incorporate the latest technologies and 
services to better please patients, which is cheaper than new construction," he says. 
“The rise in physical plant infrastructure upgrades is in line with the increase in 
renovation." 

ASHE President Jeffrey Henne, FASHE, CHSP—FSM, CHEP, CHC, safety and 
emergency manager at the University of Pennsylvania Health System, Philadelphia, 
says the increase in funding for boilers and chillers is also linked to energy measures 
and incentives that provide payback to the facility. “l know for our hospital, we received 
more than $200,000 for chiller optimization," Henne says. 

Although the percentage of facilities increasing funding for off-site building dropped from 
51% to 41% in the last year, Sprague says the move toward outpatient facilities is still a 
trend. Health care systems are moving more procedures from inpatient to outpatient 
settings to diversify revenue and prepare for new payment models. It’s also a smart way 
to move into a new area without building an entirely new facility. 

"Consumer willingness to get care in nontraditional environments continues to push 
health care off-site, which drives workload, staffing and facility operation," Sprague 
says. "Alternative payment models are also a factor in the shift toward outpatient care." 

The survey shows more than 26% of hospitals are building or planning to build medical 
office buildings over the next three years; and roughly 22% have ambulatory facilities in 
the pipeline. Freestanding imaging centers and emergency departments are also on 
the rise. 

“There is a continuing effort to take patient care into the communities," Nichols says. 
"New equipment and communication technology are improving home care support. 
Through the design and construction of urgent care centers and hospital system— 
sponsored specialty clinics, the trend continues towards off-site patient access." 

The survey also showed an increase in ”critical access hospital projects, which continue 
to grow in importance, Sprague says. “Critical access provides emergency treatment to 
any demographic a health care system plans to serve, including rural areas. Critical 
access is a key concern when planning a network of facilities,” Sprague says. 

And although the survey found that construction for acute care hospitals dropped 
slightly from the previous year, that doesn't signify a major shift in that area. “Hospitals 
are putting a huge amount into renovation and construction of existing acute care,” says 
Pollitt, citing survey results showing 74% of acute projects will involve expansion 
and/or renovation. 

Investing in the future 

Continuing ongoing trends, the survey showed hospitals are investing in behavioral 
health care and emergency and ambulatory care. While funding for behavioral health 

86 



dipped from last year, it is still very much a focus for hospitals and health systems 
dealing with increasing numbers of behavioral health issues. 

"We’re doing a lot of behavioral health work, and that will be a trend for the near future," 
Sprague says. “As a planner, we are working to integrate behavioral health with the rest 
of the system to make sure it’s compatible. Blending these systems together in one 
design maximizes efficiency and minimizes duplicity.” 

Major expansion and renovation is often needed in older hospital buildings that aren’t 
equipped to handle the needs of today’s behavioral health patients, Pollitt says. “Today, 
we have drug issues, more violence and lockdown units. The anti-ligature requirement 
alone often requires major construction,” he says. 

The survey showed hospitals are also investing in pharmacy, imaging, and emergency 
and ambulatory care construction projects. 

Twenty—six percent of hospitals have pharmacy projects, with roughly 36% planning new 
or replacement projects in the next three years, and more than 65% planning 
renovations or expansions. Nichols says the pharmacy construction is likely linked to 
US. Pharmacopeia regulations, which usually require infrastructure and operational 
changes in the facility. 

“Meeting these regulations has generated a big push right now for pharmacy renovation 
and expansion,” says Nichols, whose firm is now handling 18 pharmacy projects in the 
Chicago and central lllinois area. 

Other building projects on the rise include cancer centers and children’s, heart and 
rehabilitation hospitals. In terms of what to watch, Pollitt says orthopedics are quickly 
shifting to an outpatient model, driven by advancing technology that negates the need 
for an overnight stay. “A lot of orthooedic work is moving toward an ambulatory 
environment,” Pollitt says. “You can get a new hip at 7 am. and be home later that day." 

Certification and commissioning 
A growing number of facilities are commissioning — conducting an audit to review 
energy perfonnance, safety and sustainability, among other factors. This year, 74% of 
respondents reported commissioning, up from 72% last year. ASHE, which offers 
Health Facility Commissioning Guidelines as part of its Sustainability Roadmap, would 
like to see these numbers increase, says ASHE Deputy Executive Director, Advocacy, 
Chad Beebe, AIA, CHFM, FASHE. 

New this year, the survey questioned hospitals about qualifications required of general 
contractors. 

The majority (62%) require contractors to complete Infection Control Risk Assessments. 
In addition, 26% require contractors to have Certified Healthcare Constructor (CHC) 

67 



credentials, while 6% require ASHE’s newest certification program, Certified Health 
Care Physical Environment Worker. 

“Hospitals are different. We operate around the clock, and we work hard to protect our 
patients from construction issues that may be common in other types of buildings, such 
as dust or noise," Beebe says. “By requiring workers to earn this new certification, 
hospitals can reduce risks by ensuring people working in their facilities understand 
important patient safety concepts." 

Beth Burmahl is a freelance writer based in Lisle, iii, and Jamie Morgan is editor 
at Health Facilities Management. 

68 





__ I # 

.-_ _ - ~: .5 . 

‘ 1:: I - .— ’ . . - ‘ _ _ _ _ .  1 _ ‘  ‘ ._.' H r .  
‘ I ' _ 'L ‘ ‘ . - l‘r _ 'l .. — ' 7' I ' I I _ n - - I' . . _ _ - . . I  '. fr l , _ ' I - '~- ' _— ‘ ‘ ' . -  - - - ' 

I — I ‘ ‘ 6 ‘  ‘ .— _ _ - ._ i. ‘ 
_ '  .i 

_ J '  - I 
. . a |,-.- - .  

I _ _ - - I  ' ‘ 1- '. _ 1 ,, I I 
_ ' I _  . — _ _  _ . _ . ~  —_ .7 [ f  ' l ; . r ' « '  " J L I  

_ . l . _ . - - I . . _ - - 4 I - \‘t - * ._-' . . . 
. . .  I ' l _ _ _  . - -. : 3. ' .  — 5 ' - — ‘ — " .  
._ .r‘ . - _ ' I  l- "1. . '_»r::|..rfé-t'.1'...—z.)- I - "  m ”  n 
. ' ' . " ._-‘ 

J , ” ‘ 7 ‘  ‘ - _ - . ‘ - "  ' 3 ’ .  n 
-. . 1 1  . . ' — ' ' - I ’ -I‘:r'-1:;I-—?-‘ i ' u a  .. _-'—-:. :‘l. 1- - ~ '  . I: III. , _ _ I ‘ | I ._ I . I l ‘  — — _ ”I 'l 1 .4 ; ‘12 ‘  n I i .  E" I I - n I in . I u 

”1"; f 1  l i n t - 1 ]  .p‘  l 1 - I 

| | ' I .  - _ I _‘ . '  | r . -  _ . -  | I 
_ | ‘ l  + - " -  ' _, i = I— 

. l  I'- - 

. -  

70 



I 
. 

m.‘ 

I! 

.......l 
..- ' 

i...- 
.m..........L... ..L»... 

.._._............... 
_. .II._1....,.H 

.4.. . 9‘ i... 

1..1.l..‘..i_zfl: 

I”. 
._._ I .. f. 

.11133. -.....WNM.I.W- 

...P 
u... 

u..;O....:..: 

71 

Emmi... .6 35% LE 



Egan. 

$8 a 3862; .0. EEEE 325 ll 3095 an. 3E: . .32. £823... a... 23.. 82.... 2: Lin —hmw +N 53.0 am $3.96 
“ 

2.. fig fi__&=§e8_§§f_3u 
BEE. _ .u _ 

. 1
2

 an 833.: 
O .. 3 22...: a... 35.8 .1555 35. _£_ 1 m 

\O© O—s 

.wrcr g 

ac. 332:“. .850 .. 
. 

xm .5."— mmE: _ . 
a , +m 9:2 E @3955 

; . Jaésa 
o\oN mN 2.5 28%“: _. . : ‘.. 

m _\ 

.25 23522 

and; 3:339". ‘.~ 9522533552 $5.20 

Sod AK 3:23 .6 “canton: oflufixm 

+8 an» gé v9 . .. .. 

25 £53.. <> outfismfi 
5:3: 02 n I 

. I. j. 

+mc cowgict 

% 3.3 non. O 3.2 man I. FEE: E 

605 $9530 35....s £30: 
.35 5:233 

ad; Eco 2:01 ugeazzcaufigcoo 
- 

O «.85 853m Eng: 5 58¢ Eng: 930 .8522 
n . 

ad: waging am.— 
Nom —‘ a $059.s pawn: 

5 3...”... 25 mm: 
mdaa «3.2% Egan 

9 «.33 332mm Egan 
m2 aficwnxw 

mdnua “pump—um newsman..— mucEDmE 5—m .m:¢c< 

N Fv.mw 

:2]; T: :L 
. a 1 1 . . 3P: :Lasuzfisfiufloseufi wing £5...»m 82..q is.” 3:80“. .355. ram BE 

.3253 SEE—.00 EN .23 5% $05 $25 EcafiEnu =3EE< "3395 323» fine $53.3 2.8 5.3: nan aims—mafia: an; 3 Eu 3 32:03 02332. «E... 
Haunt—.9 22.3 33.3320 SE 

00:959.. w 960 5.m 353225 38:30“: Eco 5:25 95:305a 930 £301 

nus... “Savanna 
“sienna 55. 3.0 332»— Efl 3 vegan. <3 55 .0321 

is 580.5 .. 833m 3358. new Emu 5:31 

72 



- 
I. 

.:_..J. ..-__ I 
_. 

_.H _....,..mn._. 3-5%": 
5.31.2 at 

. 
I... 

J ATV}. . $1.”. .. 11.. tn 1. 3: 
_..I.—r. 

v. _. 
EJ _ 4v _. .. 

I ~ up . 11.3.... 

F." w 
Mu. 

_. 
II 

5.... L43. “Siam—ma 
M 

73 



E35... 
#0 arm axe... arm .39.. 

wc. c355... .225 

2.5 88.3.... 

2.6 23.35. 

2.6 £32.. 4.... 

vmamm. man. . vméw non. . 

30$ $5900 3:53.... 5.m 

Ema 8:0 0:5... mc_m._=z:cmumm_§cou 

mdma 8.2% Emma... a. Eco... .313... 

.38 u§.x.$mo... a... 

@m 322$ 953$ 

edema $058 .555 

@949. «3.23 5.235. 

Qmmmm 356...... 28.35. 

H93 225 3.9.39.0 mam 

$562.25 35.5.60. .950 5:5: 

74 

2.860.... a 6.3.2.... Em 933 

O O 

.33.».fiésuaifiocgaiasp .55.... 
_ 

F—moa 
E... x... 2.... 5.». .833 .35.» 3.5.. 3.5.. . Eu Em .50.... he)...“ 22......a 

52.3.... I: l .3 .332. a... 25:3 3.1.25... 5.... 
o\ n . .V _. o 0 

xmm... .2. mac... 
+N 2...... .m 3.”...m 

.85 53:8,. . 
8555.32.82 cm___>_u O 

08.: < 
coaxing. 

v.33 .9. was... 
+~ mEo; .m $.9m 

{no.5 
3:23 *0 E096... 3.0..m 

r. 
T I. 

I‘ll I i. 

.n. 
“10.1%.”... a 

ma 
L.. 

rtFuLUOkQ 

.v..m_.n.‘_u1...n_ 
311%. .I . . Jo... .2...“ 

+mm vmfim 3.-.“... var 
I! 

3:33.... 
5.3... a: 

.mm. as... Egon. 
% ”9.3.3.2 

.35 532.0". 

0 San. .3255. 

SN... 
REE-.3. 5.3: 

.9 2...... ago an: 

wuszncmaxm. 
8:955 £32.. _m:::< 

mm P 

.Nw 
E... H..." - . . 2 1. 

» I4 _.-u1-.11u_n&a 1. Lain—“£5.33... 95... E3... 
.32.. 5.53.... 3...»: .Bw up" 

.asucwam 8:538 cam 
.33 52.6 .85 not...“ Rages cauuaE< .320... $9.53 Ema £885... 23 5.3.. new 35.9.3.5“. .91.. .mm a «3.3.... 2....235 an... 

(.5 £355.20 .. Sufism... .w 950 5.m 9.3..ucoaxm Emu 5.3... 



75 

Ln.— 

Hafiz? 
. fiflr. 

__ flufifig 

.....I 
.....T:U._H _ ”Siam... 

...... 

1;. M... 
r. .-...LEE... I1...h.b' 

. a:.. 2L .,..... .. 
.r 

m .....HWH. .H__...._ 



EmEum 
33 4.3.. fix +3 #9 

E. 5.3: ioasw 

4
%

.
 

$203 526 

#
3

5
 

23.3.2 

3.5 25?: 

use 5.3: ,3 

«3” 3m 0 :2: man c 

303 wmfigoo 3:53.... 5:m 

a. _. E 23 mEo: m5§2=§82§§0 

«ND» 333m .233: a 53¢ .aa: 

mafia n55.53ne. n5 

mama EoEam 9.3s 

m.m Sun magnum Ecum— 

méumm mmufium 5353.“. 

.283 25.5%. 23.35. 

Nana.“ 235m 3533.6 mam 

EEczoam BEEFEUV 38 £25.: 

Em 3 ESE 

l. ...| 
.w1..|,.._.:.i! Esau £553; w PF 232 xmmBLmn mmEz naaéafififiazsascifi a...» +N 2.9 a £29m Ono 

2. _fi%adwg__ ghfifinfi nan 
O 

.. . r 352“. use 2% 2.123... a... 

\om m o 
.130 

goo; .3 $5: 
+~ @565 .w $.29.m . 1. 

I'll} £05 5:283 . 
35.23.425.52 $30 I 

mvmd 
.vll 

n 

__fi.....:.1=rw4¢fi\.fihflunhfl 

O\O m 
.. 

NN 

“mu—=64 m0 233...... nfiufixu £23590.“— 

32:35 
5—3: oz 

% 
50$ cozflznoa 

.. 
51... - 

+3 :0 Sana 
”032.923 

950 .3622 

SH ; anemia... case: 
to 3;... 2,5 as... 

a. 
q . +1 ”£3 £53356 2%.. 53.. 

mmhagucmnxm 
3:559... 532.. Race: 

etumw 
L 3 1 

E... II“.— I 4 __ 1. . . .1 .I . . inf?!“ 

.53 3.53“. 5.3: Em :5 
.ncscamssafiu Eu .58 .33 was 3.3 9555...... cunts—.4 Susan. canon 3.5 

.8236... 28 5.3.. new £52935: as. up .8 a page“. ggafiuafi 2E. 

3:9.s a 9:3 :2m misununxw 950 5:3: 

895 uEnEmnuu 
$38a 5.5 

.28 5:8 
<3 .50 egg-m 

35 coEmm - 8%:m 8:933. cam 960 £60: 

76 



4...: ma... 
3;... 

A 
. 

. 
. 

I timinghflamhummfi 

r .k 
._.r.:__..I...L Hun: . .al_... . 

.Lm......_”|'lu 

[film-M...” 

ifém . . .v 

. . ,. ‘ I. I . .. l .. I I ... II F 
Il| 

_. 

:Enfé. .. . . fl . _ _ _ . _ 
sun 

.I‘ 
w __....-.. 

. 
. . 

_ . 



:33 8 
u n— .I. III... 

7.. . u .. Em as... Emufifia um 9.5632 x995 .2. 96E; as“ .osuiouesaus...» BE... 2:. in...“ —m® +~ as... .m 3.2m O 
“O 

2. Egg... fififififiu fin...“ 
Eh _ .. 

$08 . 3 a; a E g 
{en fin .31 fin 

a... 5.3: 3.3.9:... 

.2. 03.3.5... 525 x095 .59 @053 
+N mEo: Hm $6.3m. 

nx.m.om 
60$ co=m5a0a 

33.22.3355: $520 

892 < :5 23.3.... 

Ami—3.. 3 23.3.... wflufixm 3.5.30... 

.55 23.3.... 
H _ _ . _ 

:..,-_..n.____,.wu_no..... 
1 . ._ . .m D 

.V 
+8 .Vmimm 3.2 v2 . 

23 5.3... <> 00:33:. 
5.3... oz 

+mm c... _... Egon. 
% «mam non. 0 3-2 gun. I ”WEEEEB 

$05 222960 3:93.... 5.50... 
.34. 3.3.2.0“. 

Mm» 960 oEo... 32:22:33.9..30 
. 

O 98...... SEum .933... a 58m .flnmo: Emu .3.v 
. a aa $2333... an. N m P W 3:532: 5.31 

.o 2...... 25 an: 
~63 won—Zow macaw 

9 99.3 $223 Econ. 
m9:..u:waxm. 

Odfirm 803.3% 5.395.: mUEEDMC— 5“:m “NSF—54. 

omo. 

Na 
E... 5.... - 41.1... 3L 

2 
1 1 _ _ 1P: 1. 

r3 “Ear ugfinnw 20E Ema.— .nNNNm 35.5mm. 9.8.3.2 in“. 3:29... .952 .Bm. can 9.983 353.30 ram. .33 .3...m $0.... .825 3.2.5500 23:95 ”32.2.. wagon Sun. .2056... 23 5.3... can oEnEmaEmv 39. .a fin m «3.52... o....aEa£:. m2... 
mdhmm Ewiw mémfimpfi 02m 

55 .wu_m>:::w . 00:55:. a. Emu 5.3... 25:95a 950 5.5: 3:5:a 35.3300. 850 5:3... 



79 

15¢ .1. 3.: 
. ‘ . :, 1%33 with...» u. . A. u 

LuandflV 
. 

1.52.... 
. 

irks -3. 
. 

» 

. k... pa . 

u $.h..__._....__..h.::w.... 
. 

I...A..n”.._:._.._..r...__ _ v 

. ._.m__..._.j=£=_ _.. . - .._ I. .i . . 

3.: _.L a... . 

52C -:: 



Ememn. 
.3... gm 5’; 

m... 5.3... .23...Em 

ac. $9.22". .350 

2:0 25.3... 

2:0 23.35 

Li] 
98 £3... .3 

vmfin Ban. 2...? 
non. 0 

30¢. wmfiw>oo 35.52... 5.3... 

93 End 922.. 9.933.503.3200 

$3 835m 338: a 58m .533... 

m. 59 $2.33... 3.. 

name 822$ 9.6a 

.439 manEum .qn 

93..» «35.3 5.33... 

:5 E macaw—Sun. Ema—uni 

oE 22.5 35.320 mam 

.IIIILIIIIIIII Ill 

2866.2 v... $325.2 

luv-W»: 

Id: 
. 

. 

4- 

II. 

III 
.7 . . .I . 

:v....-. 

.I. III: 

..., 3.... . mwfl 1.895 

.L... 

. 
1!. 

... 
_ 1; -L 59.5.32 - --_. a... 

._ I 
a 

+3 5...... 
t 30.0.... 

“93.3.2 

98 .852... 

mwmm 

managvgaxm. 
3:93... 5.5m... .mscca. 

mm... E 

Sagacoaxm Emu 5.3... 

gum; En. wwE: 
+N 93.0 .m 3.0..m O 0 $3. . 

39.5 .2. mac... 
+N mEoz .m mm.u.mxw 

$0.0m 
3:22 .6 “swung. $3.38 

tum ONONO 

.pfifiwfifira 

a. a... 2:9 85...: Er . a... £35m 8.33325 8.. Eu .305 #5» 223.28 52.35.. .5 332.. a... 33:8 saunas 3.... 

50¢. 5.5.53“. 
35.223.33.52 5520 

mmrN 

.. ........... Huh. 
.fl. _ L..-nu... .n 

35.52.. 
5.3.... oz 

% 
63.. 5:223... 

352:»... .3.q 
.6 an)... 35 an: 

.9 
548E733...Ram...nflmnEovcomEoudfiemdSznwmfl. ”32. £5 5q EaE Emu. 

.23 3.5.9. Ea: Eu 9... 9.23m 5:528 Em .58 52$ .85 $§w 223526 55:... ”33.2.. $958 Sun. 
.2385... Emu page... .Eu via—“.950“. as. .n .2. a 823.... 2.3958... “E... 

(.5 .coEws. . 00:953. w 950 5.m 



81 

jmfixfinfimuzflum ME. 

EEo.Efi__.m 
. 

I .
I

 

- [ 
i. 

.l 

IT ... 
_ 

wk. 

_. 
A 

.. .... _. £1335 
.65 n . IN I , 

..FI 

t 
. .b‘ 

H 

_J. 
. 

fl 

. .. 3%.: 
1.. I .i. .....r 

. fipflfli‘. mini—“.... 
- 

... I. 1.1.. rIL . F‘- _r a. .I ..H .. I 
. Hi... 

. . i -.. u. .T . -...I. ......- 1.... .. , . 
.. ... . . .._ . ._ .hfrrt.“ . 

v. 
.1 . _ 
. ..nn_ ...." 

...—Flu... 
“III 

.— .-.WIL... w |_. 
._ a- - H 

It: Cd: .5 



E33; 
«.90.... gen 0.3.. ..3 

mg £_$1._§o_n_Ew 

J 
m... 332:“. 525 

‘25 

23?: 

. 

3:0 .932q 

.28 5.q a.) 

3.3 can 0 $3 Ba 0 

50$ mmfigoo 3:835 :23: 

adv“ 950 05.2.. mc_m52ncmumm_nacuo 

9:1m magnum 35.3... a. 53m .maamai 

0.2mm wagging. n3 

ofimw «8.2% £32m 

«.33 3233 E50 

9.33 «SE8 casing. 

gal mEmEmmm 23.32 

mg. :3.“ “=m «£29320 35 

Hmcficoam 35.338 3.5 .272: 

cum .3 uEuacE 

23.3.... a. ..CEEE 

_ . .. “This? 

...I-.. .. 

a 

Emu 3232 
www.mw 

mm: :zucmaxm 
3:355 :2m E553. 

mpméw 

muzzucaaxm Emu 5.3: 

:83 in $5: 
+m 530 am mm_u..mxw 

$02. 
3mm? .3 was: 

+w mEon .m mm_ww 

$fiom 
3:22 *0 “:3..m $3..m 

Em DEN a 
due“ .2845... ._ as". 3.55:5. .sunlim.§33$=zsm us. Em 535 $25 5.5.50 535 3 336; as. 83:8 ufififi at .239 

a: .5 
E 
II..— 

DvO 
$05 5333 ... o o uméwcéafiscoz E30 

:2: < 
...EEEQP. 

..u?i§fi¢ .. - .. 4....-. 
[Ll 

3:23.... 
5:3: a2 

% 
Ens angina 

3:95»...— 5:5: 
5 on»... 25 mu: 

3, 
. .. k: 

. ”Emu £5 .53» EB: Eta; 
It! 1- 

i£ii—IJ .1 u. ..u.l u a] I_Et' 

flan afiefi «eta: Em En 323m 3528 Eu .53 39$ $05 $23 $55a cautmEi 63:35 32:8 29.... 
638.35 23 £32 nan flfiflnoEet >3. .9 En a guSEn £52a £5. 

3:339: M. 0.50 52mm: 
321 $52953 

3853. «a, .25 2.2%.». .32., 
<3 .36 32:21 no? 

acmEoE “mm? - 83%m wocmSwE mam Emu 5:m 

82 





84 



CHNA STEERING COMMITTEE: 

Bethany Hickey, MPA 
Assessment Coordinator 

Benton-Franklin Health District 
(BFHD) 

Chas Hornbaker 
Epidemiologist 

Benton-Franklin Health District 
(BFHDJ 

Erin Manukure 
Community Benefit 8: Employee 

Events Coordinator 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center 

{KRMC} 

1*" ‘E UB1 I f  

Amy Person, MD 
Health Officer 

Benton-Franklin Health 
District (BFHD) 

Kirk Williamson 
Program Manager 

Benton-Franklin Community 
Health Alliance (BFCHA) 

Travis Reed 
Growth and Outreach Liaison 

Trios Health 
Lourdes Health 

Sean Domagalski, RN, BSN, MHA 
Performance Manager 
Benton-Franklin Health 

District (BFH D) 

Karen Hayes, MA 
Manager Community Health Investment 

Providence SLJoseph Health 
(PSJH) 

Kristi Mellema, BSN, RN 
Chief Quality and Compliance Officer 

Prosser Memorial Health 
(PMH) 

r; Prosse r 9? am“??? hi Memorial Health W 3  REL?AL'IEIE 

‘ mos- Health gLounoEs 
A UWMedicine Communlty Health Partner “" 



1") CHHA 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
— 

Executive Summary .................................................................................... 1 
Health Equity ............................................................................................... 2 
Our Community .......................................................................................... 3 
Accomplishments from the 2017 CHIP ................................................... 5 

Methodology: Data Collection, Process, and Participants ................... 7 
Local Health Status indicators .................................................................. 9 
Community Input 13 

Prioritization Process and Criteria ........................................................... 17 
Findings: 2019 Priority Health Needs ....................... 19 
Community Assets and Resources .................................. ...... .. ............... 21 

2019 CHNA Governance Approval 23 

Appendices .......................... . ......................................................................... 24 



EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

PURPOSE 

The Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) helps 
determine which critical health needs the community will 
focus on addressing over the next 3-5 years. It is a systematic 
and shared process for identifying and. analyzing community 
needs and assets throughout Benton and Franklin counties, 
from Prosser to Connell, from Hover to Hanford. The 2019 
CHNA is the result of dozens of stakeholder interviews and 
focus groups, hours upon hours of research, and multiple 
community and partner surveys. Not to mention the magic of 
two large-group exercises to identify and agree on three 
priority health needs. 

Just as our community is more than the sum total of residents 
and visitors, the health of our community is more than just the 
health of the individuals who live. work and play in Benton and 
Franklin Counties. The health status of our residents is 
important, but equally important is the strength of families 
and the communities where they live. 

Over the past several years, there have been some significant 
changes in the way our community views itself and its 
challenges and needs. Those changes are reflected in this 
document. in 2012, for example, the two strategic priorities 
were promoting healthy weight/reducing obesity and 
improving access to health care services. The 2016 CHNA 
added improving the mentalfbehavioral health system to the 
priority needs for our two—county area. The Community Health 
Improvement Plan (CHIP) was updated‘in 2017 and highlights 
on the progress to address these issues are detailed on pages 
5-6 of this document. 

PAGE 101 

METHODS: 

The framework for the 2019 CHNA is based on a modified 
version of the Mobilizing for Action through Planning and 
Partnerships (MAPP) reflecting the model used in the prior 
CHNAs and also provided by Providence St. Joseph Health (PSJH). 
The CHNA Steering Committee began meeting in March, made 
up of representatives of the Benton-Franklin Health District 
{BFHD}, Kadlec Regional Medical Center {Kadlec}, Trios Health 
(T rios], Lourdes Health (Lourdes), Prosser Memorial Health 
(PMH), and the Benton-Franklin Community Health Alliance 
(BFCHA). PSJH Community Health Investment staff provided 
invaluable technical assistance including a Spanish—speaking 
facilitator and qualitative data analysis. 

As a result, the 2019 CHNA reflects the health of the community 
in different ways. The numbers (quantitative data) often tell only 
part of the story. We were able to flesh out our understanding of 
the numbers with a formal analysis of the quality of the data by 
reviewing body language, tone, and frequency of key 
words/concepts in our interviews and listening sessions. This 
gives us a much fuller understanding of the needs of our bi- 
county community. 

RESULTS: 

Over fifty representatives including public health, hospital and 
health systems, behavioral health, community service 
organizations, first responders, business and education gathered 
for facilitated compression planning session to review and reflect 
on the data, identify important issues and come to agreement 
on the critical priorities for change. The three priorities are 
behavioral health challenges, access and cost of all healthcare 
and social determinants of health. Social determinants of health 
are the conditions in the communities where people live. learn 
work and play. including them as a priority reflects the growing 
recognition that factors such as housing, transportation, poverty 
and even discrimination play an important role in overall health 
and well-being. 

Behavioral Health Access and Cost of Social Determinants 
Challenges All Health Care of Health 



HEALTH EQUITY 
Health Equity works to optimize conditions so that everyone in the 
community has the opportunity to attain their highest level of health 
and achieve positive health outcomes. Health outcomes are 
influenced by a multitude of factors other than genetics and biology, 
including behavioral, environmental, and social factors. These external 
factors, known as Social Determinants of Health [SDOH) include 
housing, education. income, healthcare, public safety, and food 
access. Race, culture, and gender identity are forces in determining 
how these social determinants are distributed. 

Social 
Determinants 

of Health 

Certain population groups are disproportionately impacted by these 
factors and are, therefore, at a higher risk of various negative health 
outcomes and adverse health diSparities. Health Disparities are 
differences in health status between groups of people related to 
factors such as race, gender, income, or geographic region. It is 
important to recognize that differences in health status related to 
race, culture, and gender identity may, in fact, reflect systematic 
inequities in how social determinants like housing, food access. and 
education are distributed. 

The CH NA steering committee made intentional efforts to utilize 
disparities data during the CH NA process. The steering committee 
worked to ensure there were a variety of stakeholder interviews and 
listening sessions for various demographic groups either highlighted 
in the 2078 Disparities Report published by BFHD or recognized as 
historically marginalized groups. Some of these priority populations 
included the elderly, people of color, peOple who identify as LGBTQ+, 
people with low-incomes, people experiencing homelessness, and 
people living with disabilities. This also led to a greater effort to 
increase the number of Spanish—speaking sessions offered which 
resulted in three separate Spanish-spea king listening sessions with a 
Spanish-speaking facilitator and noteta kers present. 

PAGE | 02 

o. . Ll _' i ‘ l' 

to m I. rrv 
Everyone receives equal treatment; assumes everyone 

benefits from the same supports. 

~--}...-~. 
. I. 

p 
. I f  

1:. LI! I ' - 

mum 
”Everyone receives equitable treatment B when 

everyone gets the supports they need. 

I i 

Martian 'llEMtWr-tl. 
When the SyStemici'barriers are removed; everyone 

can see without supports. 



PAGE 103 

OUR COMMUNITY 
Benton and Franklin Counties, located in south-central Washington. 
have a total population of approximately 290,000 people. Each of the 
three main municipalities that make up the Tri-Cities are located within 
one of these two counties; Kennewick and Richland within Benton 
County and Pasco within Franklin County. There are numerous other 
smaller cities located within this jurisdiction including Prosser, Conneil, 
Eltopia, Benton City, West Richland, Finley, Mesa, Basin City, and 
Kahlotus. 

The population estimates for the cities and towns within Benton and 
Franklin Counties in 2019: 

0 Benton City. 3,520 
Connell: 5,500 
Kahlotus: 165 
Kennewick: 83,670 
Mesa: 495 
Pasco: 75,290 
Prosse r: 6,145 
Richland: 56,850 

0 West Richland: 15,340 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

Given these numbers, the estimated population of residents living in 
unincorporated areas in either county (ex: Finley, Eltopia, Basin City) is 
43,000 people. 

Wh'le the Race Benton County Franklin County 
popumUon 
remains 'm fl 1036 39% 
predominantly - r: (mm, 23.5% 5555;. 
white, there isa - '- - - =- - * -- -- - . - =3: - 
substantial 3"" fl 1.5% 1.5% 
Hispanic/Latinx E;-;~,.,mpm,~ -* _ _ _ . 
population that —'=': -'-- "If? 5% _ 13$; 

has more than Fm 35“ _ _ _ 2% __ 
dDUbIEd over the ' _ 2'52; {1, T i —  

— ‘ ‘ " k  past two decades. 
Approximately 41,000 people living in the bi-county region are foreign 
born, regardless of citizenship status, and 30% of households report 
English is not the primary language spoken in the home. 

The age distribution for Benton and Franklin Counties is approximately; 
0 0-17years:28% 
0 18—34 years: 22% 
0 35-64 years: 37% 
0 65+ years: 13% 

Sources: 
Washington State Office of Financial Management 
Benton-Franklin Trends 
Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT) 



Counties 

D 
Primary service area 

Secondary service area 

l". 

The map below illustrates the approximate hospital service area of the four local 
healthcare systems in the region: Kadlec Regional Medical Center (Kadlec), Trios 
Health (T rios}, Lourdes Health (Lourdes), and Prosser Memorial Health (PMH). 

The bi-county region is also considered to be a health care provider shortage 
area for primary care providers, mental health providers, and dental providers, 
meaning there are not enough providers for the population size, geographic 
location, or facility type. Franklin County is also considered to be a medically 
underserved area which the federal government classifies as an area that has 
too few primary care providers, high infant mortality, high poverty, or a high 
elderly population. These definitions and more information can be found on 
the website for the Health Resources & Services Administration (H RSA). 

' ‘7. -‘ ,1 Pram-n 
- '  ‘ 4 ‘  . 

Hsmrstm — - 

La Granite «- 



PAGE | 05 

2017 CHIP 
ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

The updated 2016 CHNA resulted in three priority issues to be 
addressed by the 2017 Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP: 
These priorities were: 

0 improve access to health care 
0 Reduce obesity and diabetes rates 
0 Improve the mentallbehavioral health system 

Each priority issue was assigned related goals, along with SMART 
objectives (Specific. Measurable, Achievable. Realistic, and Time— 
Bound) to support those goals. 

Improve Access to Health Care 

The priority issue related to access to health care was broken up int 
three goals: 

0 Resources will be identified to reduce barriers and costs of 
health care 

0 The community will experience coordinated health care 
0 The health care delivery system will have the capacity to meet 

the needs of the community. 

To achieve these goals. community partners surveyed the populatioi 
over the course of two years to fully understand the local barriers tc 
health care, increased the number of Community Health Workers 
[CHW), expanded enrollment of uninsured citizens onto health care 
coverage through the Washington Health Benefit Exchange. 
increased the number of partners distributing community education 
and engagement materials (rack cards, booklets, etc}, and increased 
dentist interactions with providers and the community through the 
annual Eastern Washington Medical-Dental Summit. 

The goal of improved access also ties heavily into health equity. To 
address this, Kadlec has expanded its Family Medicine Residency 
Program that includes rotations with a local clinic that provides 
primary care for the uninsured. Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) 
made similar efforts to increase outreach to under-served 
populations in need of primary health care with their Community 
Paramedic Program that resulted in over 600 free home visits to 
community members in 2018 alone. 



Reduce Obesity 

The priority issue of reducing obesity and diabetes rates 
was also divided into three goals: 

0 Community members will be more physically active 
0 Adults will make more nutritious food choices 
0 Promote breastfeeding and improve child nutrition 

To achieve these goals, the Benton-Franklin Health 
District (BFHD) has been working in partnership with local 
schools to implement Safe Routes to Schools programs 
and support local cities with enacting Complete Streets 
policies for new commercial and residential development. 
Both of these programs are nationally recognized ways to 
improve access and encourage more physical activity. 
The Health District has also led the community in 
breastfeeding best practices through partnerships with 
local hospitals aimed at eventually applying for the 
Breastfeeding Friendly Washington status and by 
operating a peer counseling program through WIC that 
has received state recognition and awards for excellence. 

PMH has supported local farmer's market events to 
promote healthy eating and hosted free events 
promoting breastfeeding that provided in-person 
provider support for breastfeeding patients. Kadlec has 
partnered with more than 30 area schools to offer a free 
program that teaches health and wellness information to 
school-age children. 

PAGE |06  
Improve the MentallBehavioral 
Health System 

The priority issue of improving the mental/behavioral 
health system was assigned three goals: 

0 Create more awareness about whole person health, 
including behavioral/mental health 

0 Work to eliminate gaps in the system 
0 Improve integration and coordination of services 

BFHD has partnered with Kadlec and other community 
partners to host community events such as a lockbox 
giveaway for storage of handguns. BFHD and Kadlec have 
also been active in offering various community trainings 
related to behavioral health including Signs of Suicide, 
YoUth Mental Health First Aid, and Adult Mental Health 
First Aid. Local partners and businesses have worked hard 
to stand up the first syringe exchange program in the bi- 
county region and expand treatment services for those 
with substance use disorders. Lourdes began working with 
local law enforcement in Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco 
to establish mobile outreach teams. This program pairs 
mental health professionals and counselors with local law 
enforcement officers in order to respond immediately to 
any calls with a mental health component. This innovative 
approach is another example of health equity work in 
action; a program specifically aimed at serving pepulations 
who are often outside the traditional health care system, 
or those who struggle with access to care. 

BFHD also hosted a summit in 2018 that brought together 
community partners to do compression planning around 
the topic of youth suicide. Priority issues were identified 
and potential solutions were outlined in the community 
work plan. 

1 h r ' L  I. 

it’iilij'fii 
“ - P V  ' 

tCLiy fPlEild 



PAGE 107 

M ET H O D 0 L0 GY 
_ 

The steering committee consisted of representatives from 
all the local health care systems (Kadlec Regional Medical 
Center, Trios Health, Lourdes Health, and Prosser Memorial 
Health), the Benton-Franklin Community Health Alliance 

(BFCHA), and the Benton—Franklin Health District (BFHD). 
. The steering committee was formed in March 2019 and 

began meeting weekly shortly thereafter. From the 
members on the steering committee, only one person, the 
Health Officer from BFHD, had been involved in the 
previous CHNA process from 2013 and the update in 2016. 
The group decided to use a modified version of the 
Mobilizing for Action through Planning and Partnerships 
{MAPP} guidance model promoted by the National 
Association of County and City Health Officials (NACCHO). 

Local Health Status Indicators 

Health related data points were identified using the list 
from the stakeholder survey, the previous 2013 and 2016 
CHNA data books, and based on priority issues highlighted 
by community members and stakeholders. These data 
points make up the Local Health Status Indicators. The 
Performance Management team from BFHD then compiled 
the list of desired data points and determined which ones 
could be supported by a reliable source. Sources used 
during this process included the Healthy Youth Survey 
(HYS), Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS), 
Community Health Assessment Tool (CHAT), Office of the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI), Department of 
Education, American Community Survey (ACE), and partner- 
collected data from the local healthcare systems and 
community organizations. Using all of these sources, the 
BFHD epidemiologist compiled the most current data on 
120 individual data points into a 2019 Data Workbook to 
bring back to the steering committee for consideration. 



Community Input 

Qualitative data. or data in the form of words instead of 
numbers, provides additional context and depth to the 
CHNA that may not be fully captured by quantitative data. 
Qualitative data was gathered in an attempt to gain 
insightful and equitable Community Input. This took a 
significant amount of time and effort in the form of 
listening sessions with members of priority populations 
and stakeholder interviews and surveys with those who 
serve these populations. Based on feedback from the 
Public Health Officer who participated in the CHNA process 
in 2016, the steering committee identified community 
input and involvement as an area of opportunity for 
improvement. The group wanted to be more intentional 
about incorporating health equity into this engagement 
process. One way in which this was accomplished was by 
utilizing existing tools, like the 2018 Hearth Disparities 
Report published by BFHD. This report helped to inform the 
ultimate decisions on which priority population groups 
would be a primary focus for the listening sessions, 
specifically highlighting the Hispanic/Latinx and the 
LGBTQ+ communities. Another way the group sought to be 
more inclusive was to offer multiple listening sessions in 
Spanish, the other predominant language in Benton and 
Franklin Counties besides English. A facilitator provided by 
PSJH was able to conduct three of the 10 listening sessions 

Pm}: Enigma; 'l' -t;'~‘~ .lernorial Health 

PAGEl 03 

completely in Spanish with Spanish-speaking notetakers 
present at all of them. Finally. the steering committee 
worked diligently to ensure a wide variety of sectors and 
populations were represented in the 16 stakeholder 
interviews including representation from the following 
population and sector categories: behavioral health, 
homelessness, healthcare. senior population. 
Hispanic/Latinx population. domestic and sexual violence. 
first responders, substance abuse, Pre-K—‘th grade 
education. post—secondary education, LGTBQ+ population, 
refugee population, and persons living with a disability 
population. The sessions were typically recorded with 
participant permission. and one or two notetakers were 
present to capture response information. Data from all of  
the stakeholder interviews and listening sessions was sent 
to a qualitative data analyst provided by PSJH for review 
and analysis. 

In an effort to include input from as many community 
partners as possible. the steering committee opted to 
disseminate the stakeholder survey from the stakeholder 
interview packets. An electronic copy was created to 
distribute through email distribution lists from BFHD. the 
hospital partners. and BFCHA. Paper surveys were also 
distributed to 20 coalitions. boa rds. or community partner 
agencies. Over 200 survey responses were received and 
analyzed as part of the Community Input data section. 

. "E r  



o'io CHM PAGE l 09 

LOCAL HEALTH STATUS INDICATORS 

Since the Steering Committee chose to utilize the survey provided in the stakeholder interview packet, the Performance 
Management Department at BFHD identified 120 individual indicators thatfit within one of the 26 categories outlined in the survey. 
From there, the Steering Committee compared those 120 indicators with the state numbers and kept only the data points for which 
the local numbers were performing worse than Washington state as a whole. Members then compared this list of remaining data 
points to the overarching qualitative data themes from the community input and included a handful of indicators where local 
performance was better than the state's overall, but still a concern to this community. This resulted in approximately 70 indicators 
that fit within nine overarching topic areas. The following tables list these indicators, followed by a (B), (F), or (8&F) to indicate if the 
data point is specific to Benton, Franklin, or both Benton and Franklin Counties. 

Obesity 

Indicator I I Local Rate WA State Rate 
1_B"_reastteeding at birth as noted on birth certificate ' _= 39% (Bat-7} 94% : 
Exclusive breastfeeding white in hospital Kadlec: 42-51% 51 53% 

Trios: 38-46% " 

."firgastfeading I5 month duration among m o m  {E'— agqt, (334:). ‘1"? g m  @M 
Children (1-5) in the top 15% BM! enrolled In MC 27% (33$) 25% 

be .. I... 15% # mm b m (“Fife totem 
Adults 18+ who have a BMI of 30 kglmz 33% (B&F) 23% 

Physical Health 

Indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 
Adults mooning excellent or very good health status I ' 49%'(B&F) ‘ -. “153195 ' ”’i 

Adults who have been told they have asthma by a 
doctor 14% (F) 13% 

Adults who have had a stroke _‘_ ' i 1.; E5 . 73% is 1 .396 _ if“ 
Hospitalization rate due to chronic obstructive 
pulmonary disease and bronchiectasis 1 54451100300 (B&F) 87.44f100,000 

Adults who have been told by a doctor they have. ' ‘ -' ' : 
diabetes . I Jud... 10% (884:) . . 9% .. 
Rate of unintentional injury hospitalizations 470.?1I‘l 00,000 (B&F) 435161100000 



PAGE | 10 

Suicide and Mental Health 

Indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 

"§G‘icide rate . overall " “"1?- "T‘ r ‘ 1"? 20.111110000010015) 1111100000 ‘3!“ 
Youth suicide rate (1017) 5.54!100,000 (B) 1691100000 

t—‘(Oung adult suicide rate (1am.fim 3E 17.7!100000 (B) 1-1 _ -‘ 9%16 43/100 000 {Q 
Suicide rate (65+) 23.311 00.000 (B&F) 19 58/1 00, 000 

[Youth suicide ideation 4;)- ' _ "‘ f" .fiii‘?‘ {E7 23%* (B) . r_ ',1 ‘urfi ‘ 23% ‘ 3 
Youth suicide planning 19% (B) 1 8% 

if Hospitalization from sarcasm-5E1: . ' gr moonooooo (301:) :3 r @091 110.com 
Youth depression 4096* (8&F) 40% 
figure reporting 14 poor mental heaith figs; 3 mo fi w  (BatM 
" Indicates that other grade levels had large: differences trout the state level data 

Sexual and Reproductive Health 

indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 
Wouth who did not use a condom last time they had sex 11 L. — i 48% (88F) ' ““ - -. ”j 47% m 
$112131 :3; :21 $10; use any tom of contraception last 26% (B&F) 22% 

[ii-ea: birth rate . :15; , m ‘ fi r m  000 (00F). W* '7- 2!! 000 a 
Rate of reported cases of gonorrhea 142811100300 (F) 137.09l100,000 

*Rate of reported cases of syphilis -' ‘ .1 “a so .,13,02!100,000(e&1=_) a. 15.9701 00,000 .4; 
Rate of reported cases of chlamydia 3.62311 00,000 (88F) 23501100000 
Percent of repoited chlamydia casesthatwere trgofpri _ E 7',“ 91% (88F) : f '_ ; - 96% .. ' 3;: 
HIV test done in the past 5 years 18% (B&F) 22% 



I-i STATUE, 
’IC/KTORS C O N T  

Violence and Community Safety 

Indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 
“Youth who have been hunted 20w (88F) " ' ‘is"% ' ‘57 
Youth feel safe at school 78%* (38F) 79% 

: Domestic violence - overall - ... 5111816511 003300 (F): .1 E31 ['1' 09,15; 
Domestic violence - youth 10% (88F) 11% 
Physical abuse by an adult, r; ,5. 
youth .. aL 'i 249“”) M W  
Verbal abuse by an adult - youth 15% (88F) 15% 

Lchild abuse and nsgfitflf 134.3911 .000 (0513; m m  
Reported sexual assaults - 125.4!100,000 
overall (3&F) 91 .6/100,000 

'§exual assault - Y°m;éfiEi—ii§%* ( “F . lgtm 
Egghlfiwtnessed sexual 32%,, (B &F) 31% 

LYouth gang invowenténtt—Et} *- 's% (88F) - yifiiffs‘sa way 
Youth arrests 42 311, 000 (88F) 8. 8/1 000 
Youth drug related arrests 6.5[1 000 (3&F) _ .4 323m: 
* Indicates that other grade levels had larger differences from the state level data 

Substance Abuse 

Youth alcohol use 1896* (8&F) 19% 
Youth Rx drug abuse 4%* (B&F) 4% 

:Youth cigarette use .;_ — .,‘ {‘5} __, 5% (38F) 1;: iii". "gig ~yy If” 
Youth E—cigarette use 22% (B) 21% 
Youth marijuana use 1696* (38F) 18% _ y; . 
Opioid overdose hospitalization 19861100000 (88F) 17.73i100,000 
Opioid overdose deaths 861100.000 (38F). 9:25l100,000 . yyyy . 
Opioid Prescribing rates 89.9!100 (B) (572/100) 
" Indicates that other grade levels had larger differences tram the slate lent data 

PAGE :11 

indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 
_ ' 7— ' ' ' -- ' ‘- ,1“: 



Homelessness and Poverty 

Indicator Local Rate , WA State Rate 
F’opulation experiencing food insecurity T. ' 9% (B&F) " -_,_._1 2% 7 ”l" 
Youth living outside parent’s home 11%* (B&F) 11% 

:{Elderiy living in poverty -' -. ;i_;i,;_;:;-‘ y f“ ‘ 9% (F) 1“? i ' " j 
People living at or below the federal poverty level 13% (B) 8. 16% (F) 12% 

lEamilles living at or below the iederal‘poli‘ertyflevgi 416% (a) s 139515); amigfiifi 
Pepulation living in a food desert 9% (B&F) 10% 
" Indicates that other grade levels had more significant differences From the state level data 

Access to Health Care 

Indicator _ Local Rate WA State Rate 
'Adults with health insurance ' '7’ _' 6* "— '—"_ '" 83% (38F) ' ’ ‘ " Fifi—“w: ... 
Adults with a personal doctor 72% (B&F) 74% 

'gdults whohave visited a dentist in. the past,1%m,h77% (885) 7:." “girl .1,c . ~ ' 
Primary Care Provider (PCP) to population ratio F: 4100:1 l . , B: 1 470:1 WA. 1220.1 
I59]? (non-physicianlto population ratio ’ f}: y —' Eff: 204?:1 H; Ling? ' f" 

L "  - . - - .176}! .- E B: 1071:1' 7.1!! A6fij§ 
Mental Health Providerto population ratio F: 780:1 l _ _ B: 470:1 WA. 310.1 

[A6Less to £169!i medial. Militia: f I” .13.; NE ;.’-_-’-‘ '7 3 m  

Aging Issues 

Indicator Local Rate WA State Rate 
Hospitalizations for falls — Adults 65+ " 2239351100000 (B&F) 1 ,823.091100,000 
Death rate from Alzheimer's disease 70.7211 00,000 (B&F) 45.41l100,000 



COMMUNITY INPUT 
The CH NA steering committee recognizes the value in having 
community members and community stakeholders participate in 
the CHNA process and share their perspectives. As the people 
who live and work in the counties, they have firsthand knowledge 
of the needs and strengths of their community. To gather these 
perspectives, the steering committee conducted listening sessions 
with community members and surveyed or interviewed 
community stakeholders. 

Listening Sessions 

Ten listening sessions were completed with a total of 96 
community members. Participants shared their vision for a healthy 
community, the health—related needs of their community, and the 
assets that currently help their community be healthy. Following 
are the dominant themes from the sessions: 

0 Community members' vision for a healthy community 
I People are outside playing, walking, and being active 
I The community is diverse and inclusive, where all people can live 

well 
Community members feel safe and kids can play freely 
People spend time together and take part in social events 
Local health care services are accessible and affordable 
People take care of one another, especially those who most need 
support 

a Health-related needs of the community 
I Affordable medical care, dental care, and prescriptions. 

specifically low—cost or free 
I Timely, convenient, and local medical care 
. Resources for people who need help and increase knowledge of 

local resources 
I Affordable mental health services that are responsive to people‘s 

unique needs 
- Shelters and services for individuals experiencing homelessness 
I Safe, affordable, clean housing, especially for individuals with low- 

incomes 
- Increased community safety 

0 Community strengths and assets 
Community resource fairs and financial assistance programs 
Multiple local hospitals and access to free medical services 
Educational opportunities for adults and children 
Access to healthy and fresh food 
Community openness to diversity and people's unique needs 
Close proximity to natural resources and activities 
Opportunities for people to exercise outdoors and be physically 
fit 

I Good transportation services 

PAGE|13 

Community Stakeholder Surveys 

The CHNA steering committee wanted to include as many 
opportunities for input from stakeholders as possible. 
They surveyed 256 stakeholders to provide additional 
insight into the prioritization of health-related needs. 
Stakeholders were asked to identify their top five health— 
related needs in the community. Stakeholders prioritized 
one health-related need substantially above the others: 
behavioral health challenges, including both mental 
health and substance use disorder. After this need, two 
more needs were given high priority and tied for 
importance: access to behavioral health services and 
homelessness and housing instability. These tap three 
health-related needs mirror those of the stakeholders 
who completed interviews. The top three health-related 
needs are summarized as follows: 

0 Behavioral health challenges 
0 Access to behavioral health 
0 Homelessness and housing insecurity 

Community Stakeholder Interviews 

The steering committee completed 16 community 
stakeholder interviews, including 40 stakeholders, or 
people who are invested in the well-being of the 
community and have firsthand knowledge of community 
needs and strengths. Stakeholders were asked to rank 
the unmet health-related needs oftheir communities. For 
those identified needs, stakeholders shared which 
populations are most affected by the needs, gaps in 
community services to address the need, and barriers to 
services for community members. The top three unmet 
health-related needs identified by stakeholders were 
classified as high priority. The nextthree unmet—health 
related needs were classified as medium priority. 
Stakeholders were also asked to identify community 
assets that help make the community healthier and 
opportunities they see for community organizations to 
better work together 



.xjft‘i -'-.-'iLli"-£ T Y  I N P U T  COX-J 

High Priority Unmet Health-Related Needs 

«- Behavioral health challenges (includes both mental health and 
substance use disorder): Stakeholders were concerned about 
the high amount of substance abuse in the community and 
lack of treatment options. Additionally, they were concerned 
about youth mental health and rising youth suicide. They 
identified people experiencing homelessness, young people, 
older adults, veterans, and individuals who identify as LGBTQ+ 
as more affected by behavioral health challenges. 
Stakeholders named stigma and a lack of funding for 
treatment as barriers to addressing this issue. They saw 
mental health services in schools and integration of behavioral 
health screenings in primary care as gaps in services. 

Homelessness/lack of safe, affordable housing: Stakeholders 
identified housing as foundational to addressing all other 
health-related needs. They spoke to needing more shelters, 
affordable housing, transitional housing, and resources to 
support people experiencing homelessness. They specifically 
identified young pa rents, tra nsgender people, women, people 
with substance abuse disorder, people leaving domestic 
violence, young people, and families with low-incomes as 
particularly affected. 

Access to behavioral health care: Stakeholders were 
particularly concerned about not having a detox center or an 
inpatient treatment center in Benton and Franklin Counties. 
Additionally, they shared that a lack of mental health providers 
and lack of affordable mental health care contributes to the 
behavioral health challenges. 

7;, O ' ' s 
Photo fitlrt: Me, . 

PAGE|14 

Medium Priority Unmet Health-Related Needs 

. Access to medical care: Stakeholders shared that the 
complexity of the healthcare system is a barrier to people 
getting the medical care they need. They stated there are 
currently not enough providers in the area, particularly 
specialists, contributing to long wait timés for appointment: 
Specifically, there are gaps in medical ca re for veterans, 
people identifying as LGBTQ+, and people who are 
undocumented. 

- Domestic violence, child abuse/neglect: Stakeholders were 
concerned about the long-term impact child abuse has on 
children’s healthy development, as well as the interaction 
between domestic violence and other issues such as 
substance abuse and homelessness. Teen girls, individuals 
identifying as LGBTQ+ and/or people with disabilities were 
identified as groups dispmportionately affected by violence 
Stakeholders saw safe places for children currently in dangt 
and community spaces for survivors of domestic violence tt 
support one another as gaps in community services. 

- Aging problems (such as memory, hearing, and vision loss): 
Stakeholders felt their community is aging and the current 
support services are not sufficient to meet the growing nee: 
To better meet this need, stakeholders stated Benton and 
Franklin Counties need a memory ca re unit, more geriatric 
providers, and more caregiver support groups. Add itionally, 
stakeholders shared there needs to be more education 
around healthy aging, dementia, and Alzheimer‘s for the 
general community and providers. 



up sliding even/body involved whether it‘s 

— Community Stakeholder 
., 15"”; ' 1: *- "h. 

they're doing great things, they think they're the only 
kids on the biock or are the only ones that can do it 
or they’re doing it the most pen‘ect way and it ends 

community members or other organizations.” 

PAGE| 15 

Stakeholders were asked, "What existing community health 
initiatives or programs in your community are helpful in 
addressing the health-related needs of the persons you serve?" 
Participants named a variety of organizations, programs, and 
local services they see as a community strength (See 
Appendices for a full list). The most shared themes were as 
follows: 

Opportunities for Community Organizations to Work 
Together 

0 More collaboration and less competition: Stakeholders 
shared they need more opportunities to collaborate with 
one another. They see the current coalitions as a strength 
and think there need to be more opportunities to learn 
from one another and collaborate on solutions. 

- Communication and relationship building: Stakeholders 
named numerous community organizations and programs 
that are currently working to meet health-related needs, but 
there is little communication between them. They would like 
to see more relationship building among organizations and 
sharing of up-to-date information and resources. 

Community Strengths and Assets 

. Collaboration between organizations and coalitions to 
address needs: Opportunities for organizations to work 
together and leverage their unique strengths were 
highlighted as a community asset. 

0 Innovative approaches to addressing behavioral health 
challenges: Programs such as the Trueblood Program and 
the Mental Health Court are working to provide support to 
individuals whose mental health impacts their criminal 
behavior. 

0 Providing services in schools: 3 Rivers Wraparound with 
Intensive Services (WISe) and Communities in Schools are 
providing supports and access to services to students in 
schools, addressing behavioral health challenges and other 
needs. 

”We also have a couple of really great community organizations that are doing a lot of that 
coordination and iaying over like Communities in Schools. That’s been a tremendous boon to aii 

of our school districts that have access there. And every school in the district wants a site 
coordinator because it aiiows education folks to do education and then all of those systemic 

barriers that our famiiies in poverty are ofien facing, there is somebody that can help coordinate 
those community sgnrices for them. " - Community stakeholder 



l if 't ' i isiUf-i TY |§‘~-JPUT CO?" 

Data Blending 

Community members and stakeholders identified many of 
the same health-related needs as priorities. The specifics 
of the need may have varied slightly. An overview of the 
health-related needs of both community members and 
stakeholders biended together is as follows {in no 
particular order): 

Behavioral Health Care (access to and challenges) 
Both groups identified the importance of having affordable 
mental health services available, particularly for youth and 
people identifying as LGBTQ+. Both groups identified 
stigma as a barrier to addressing behavioral health 
challenges and noted a need for more mental health 
providers. Stakeholders emphasized a need for substance 
use disorder treatment and a detox center. 

Homelessness/Safe, Affordable Housing 
Both groups shared a need for more shelters, more low- 
income housing for families, more affordable housing for 
older adults, and more resources (such as showers and 
laundry facilitieS) for people experiencing homelessness. 
Community members emphasized wanting good quality, 
clean homes. Stakeholders identified a need for more 
transitional housing and wet shelters. 

PAGE] 16 

Access to Medical Care 
Both groups identified a need for more specialists and 
primary care providers to increase access to appointments. 
Both groups identified a need for more accepting medical 
services for LGBTQ+ individuals and more affordable 
services for people who are undocumented. Stakeholders 
emphasized the need for patient advocates to help navigate 
the complexity of the health care system, while community 
members emphasized the need for more affordable care, 
including dental care. 

Community Safety and Child Well-Being 
Both groups were concerned with the well-being of children 
and their safety, as well as the importance of schools in 
meeting children's social-emotional needs. Community 
members were most concerned with gang violence in their 
community, while stakeholders emphasized a concern for 
domestic violence. 

Aging Problems 
Both groups acknowledged a need for more specialists and 
services for older adults, especially those living alone in 
their homes. Stakeholders were especially concerned about 
access to services for people with varying forms of 
dementia. such as Alzheimer's disease, and saw a need to 
better educate community members on local resources 
related to aging issues. 



PRIORITIZATION 
PROCESS & CRITERIA 
The steering committee chose to evaluate the Local Health 
Status Indicators by comparing them to Washington State 
rates. Data points that were worse than the state numbers for 
Benton, Franklin, or Benton and Franklin combined were 
identified first. The data points were then narrowed down 
further by the steering committee by considering other factors 
like change over time, comparison to target numbers outlined 
by Healthy People 2020, and the severity of the difference 
between the local and state numbers. These data points were 
then grouped into like categories of overarching topics and 
the steering committee added additional data points related 
to each topic and based on the priority issues highlighted 
through Community Input, regardless of local numbers vs 
state numbers, to present a more complete picture. This 
resulted in a list of approximately 70 data points categorized 
into nine topic areas: obesity, physical health, mental health 
and suicide, substance abuse, homelessness and poverty, 
aging issues, community violence and safety, access to health 
care, and sexual and reproductive health. 

Community Compression Planning 

The steering committee then scheduled a community partner 
compression planning session to which they invited agencies 
and partners from their respective distribution lists and 
specifically invited partners who participated in listening 
sessions and stakeholder interviews. The compression 

PAGE l 17 

planning session was held in July 2019 at the location of the 
normally occurring BFCHA meetings with a professional 
facilitator. Over 50 representatives from community partners 
and agencies attended the compression planning session and 
participated in prioritization activities. Participants included 
representation from health care networks, local clinics, public 
health, first responders, behavioral health, long term care 
facilities, local chambers of commerce, student nursing 
programs, and other service—oriented community-based 
organizations. Participants reviewed the 70 data points in a 
small group discussion format. Participants were also provided 
visual aids that indicated whether a data point was worse than 
the state number, identified by community members and 
partners as an issue, or selected previously as a health priority 
in the prior CHNAs from 2013 and 2016. Each group shared the 
data points that were significant to their group and lumped like 
data points together based on overarching themes, resulting in 
seven priority health issue topics: obesity, youth sexual and 
reproductive health, violence and community safety, social 
determinants of health, behavioral health challenges, access 
and cost of all health care, and aging and long term care issues. 
Participants then proceeded to select their top three priorities. 
This resulted in three issues rising to the top as clear priorities, 
three falling to the bottom, and one mid-range priority. 
Participants selected the top three priority issue topics: 

0 Behavioral Health Challenges 
0 Access and Cost of All Health Care 
0 Social Determinants of Health 



A I O R  T I Z E ‘ i T  31'  C C “ ) !  

Disparities Data 

One thing that was clear from the majority of stakeholder 
interviews, community listening sessions, data review, and 
compression planning discussions was that not all population 
groups are affected by these health issues equally. Some 
population groups, specifically the elderly, youth, and LGBTQ+, 
experience additional barriers, challenges, or negative health 
outcomes related to the top three health needs. 

Some of these challenges were brought to light in qualitative 
data from the listening sessions or stakeholder interviews. For 
example, access to healthcare is an issue for many residents 
regardless of demographic group, as evident by the provider 
to population ratios in the area. If someone requires more 
specialized care, like members of the LGBTQ+ community, 
living in an area that is already experiencing a healthcare 
provider shortage makes finding someone who is qualified 
and able to provide services to them even more difficult. 

Other challenges and outcomes were quite apparent in the 
quantitative data from the local health status indicators. For 
example, young adults and, even more so, the elderly 
population, show alarming rates of suicide deaths when 
compared to other age groups. 

These kind of clear disparities in health outcomes and 
challenges should not be ignored and need to be addressed 
with targeted interventions. The steering committee, 
therefore, intends to incorporate these population groups 

Photo Credit: 

PAGE I18 

into the upcoming Community Health lmprovement Plan, with 
focused objectives and activities aimed at better addressing 
the needs of these specific demographic groups. 

Public Discussion 

The steering committee also wanted to include the general 
public in the CHNA process and health priorities discussion. 
They chose to host a Facebook Live event with Dr. Amy 
Person, a member of the steering committee, to review the 
three priority health issues and answer questions from 
community members. Leading up to the event, the steering 
committee shared advertisements on their social media 
platforms and sent out invitations to community partners. A 
summary of the top three health priorities was published on 
the BFHD website for the community to view before the event 
and a link was provided for the public to submit questions 
ahead of time. 

The Facebook Live event was held in August 2019 and was 
viewed and shared from the Be nton—Franklin Health District's 
Facebook page. It also included an incentive for community 
members to share the video, resulting in 25 shares and over 
850 views from just BFHD's Facebook page. Dr. Person 
answered several submitted questions from the public and 
walked the audience through the selection process and results 
with help from visual aids and a Kadlec staff member 
conducting the interview. 



”I would just be repetitive in saying that i 
addiction is a real disease and yet we ' 
don’t treat people who are addicted 

like we treat other sick people. We treat 
them like outcasts and throwaways , 

and bad people.” I 
-— Community Stakeholder 

7*. .: hi1 ' j fi ;  .3 _ I {'1 Trifl' 

3'13 31.55; t: " JII'I’g-EII“. ‘ 

i 

.1 e 
1'" " "l7!" . '  ’s- I  if we: :' x' .. 3' 

I i i .  I 

PAGE | 19 

FINDINGS: 2019 PRIORITY 
HEALTH NEEDS 
The priority health needs identified through the 201 9 CHNA 
process are as follows: 

0 ® Q 
Behavioral Access and Social 

Health Cost of all Determinant 
Challenges Health Care of Health 

Behavioral Health Challenges 

The compression planning group identified this topic as one of the 
most important unmet health-related needs in the community. 
Local health status indicators support this as a community issue, 
as well community input from the Stakeholder interviews and 
Listening Sessions. The compression planning participants 
grouped mental health, suicide. and substance use disorder uncle 
this topic. 

Stakeholders agreed that mental health needs are so important 
because they affect almost every population. Groups named as 
being especially affected by mental health challenges were the 

' following: 
0 People experiencing homelessness (adults and youth) 
0 Young people (ranging from elementary school through high 

school) 
0 Older adults 
0 Veterans 
0 Individuals who identify as LGBTQ+ 

O Participants highlighted the complexity of this issue, stating that 
these groups often overlap with one another. For example, a 

‘ person may be experiencing homelessness and also be a veteran 
or LGBTQ+. Youth were specifically mentioned by multiple 
stakeholders as a group that has unmet mental health challenges 
due to exposure to violence and content related to suicide online. 

3 Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACES), such as abuse and neglect, 
E were also cited as strong contributors to mental health issues and 

substance use disorder later in life. Many stakeholders also 
-« ; mentioned the lack of treatment Options and detox facilities, as 

well as the continuing stigma towards people who use drugs, as a 
gap in the community that has perpetuated the issue of substance 
use disorder.  



Access and Cost of all Health Care 

The compression planning group identified this topic as a 
priority issue from the previous CHNA that needed to be 
continued and expanded in this iteration. In the 2013 CHNA, 
insurance enrollment was a focus under the access priority. but 
after systematic changes at the federal level that resulted in 
higher insured rates, the focus for the 2019 CHNA has been 
shifted. The compression planning participants chose to 
combine the issues of behavioral health care access and access 
to medical care, since both components are experiencing 
similar issues. Another area of focus related to access that was 
highlighted both through community input and the 
compression planning session was the cost of health care. even 
with insurance, and how it can be too much of a financial 
burden for struggling residents. Finally, another significant area 
of concern for 
those at the 
compression 
planning meeting mama 1470.1 
was the provider to ”fix?“ ' 

f t nnk l l n  Washington Homo“ L OUT ’3' Lnunly Qioit“ 

41001) 1220:1 

population ratios 
for the bi-county 
region. This use: 

6"” “‘5'" 1071 :1 204m "71:1 

concern was flagging 
echoed in the mum 470:1 780:1 310:1 

ram: listening sessions 
with community members expressing frustration and concern 
about the wait times to see a provider or access to a provider 
who also has specialization in the unique needs of specific 
population groups like LGBTQ+ or adults living with disabilities. 

ll 

”T he key to getting people healthy, is keeping 
them stable and in one location so that they’re 

‘j‘m ..-—_ —- r - 

PAGE |2o 

Social Determinants of Health 

Social Determinants of Health (SDOH) was identified as the 
third priority issue by the compression planning group. SDOH 
are external factors that affect one’s health besides biology an: 
genetics. Examples of SDOH include housing. education. 
income, healthcare, public safety, and food access. The 
compression planning group referenced Maslow's Hierarchy of 
human needs which asserts that physiological and safety need 
like a home, food, water, and employment are the most basic. 
fundamental needs a person requires to survive. Similarly, as 
the group discussed, these needs are necessary to ensure a 
person can achieve their greatest level of health and a lack of 
resources related to these needs affects a person's ability to 
meet the other health needs addressed in the CHNA. 
Stakeholders held these same sentiments, arguing that a 
person who has no home or no food is not going to be able to 
effectively focus on addressing their mental health challenges 
or treating their chronic disease. Understanding how these 
factors are so interconnected to all other health priorities and 
how broad of a scope 
SDOH truly is. the 
compression planning 
group chose to focus 
on poverty, housing 
and homelessness, 
and food 
insecurity. 

Seif-act-uatization 
‘-‘ i i i - m “  “ m m - r  

Physiological. needs 
al'fiu‘léidf tood.sm-iter.sleep ' tcmmq team-cache" 

not, you know; if! have to worry about where 
”in? going to sleep tonight, probably going to be 
less concerned about taking that medication or 

having the ability to go to that doctor to get 
I that medication that l need.” 

-— Community Stakeholder 

Photo Credit: Kim Fetrow and K a i .  



PAGE} 21 

COMMUNITY ASSETS & 
RESOURCES 
The listening sessions and stakeholder interviews also gave 
the steering committee the chance to identify community 
assets and resources that currently help address these health 
priorities. 

Participants in the listening sessions identified the following 
aspects of their community as a strength or asset: 

0 Community resource fairs and financial assistance 
programs 

0 Multiple local hospitals and access to free medical 
services 
Educational opportunities for adults and children 
Access to healthy and fresh food 

0 Community Openness to diversity and people's unique 
needs 

0 Close proximity to natural resources and activities 
Opportunities for people to exercise outdoors and be 
physically fit 
Good transportation services 

00
 

O
 

0 

Participants in the stakeholder interviews identified the 
following aspects of their community as a strength or asset: 

0 Collaboration between organizations and coalitions to 
address needs: Opportunities for organizations to work 
together and leverage their unique strengths were 
highlighted as a community asset. 

0 Innovative approaches to addressing behavioral health 
challenges: Programs such as the Trueblood Program 
and the Mental Health Court are working to provide 
support to individuals whose mental health impacts their 
criminal behavior. 

0 Providing services in schools: 3 Rivers Wraparound with 
Intensive Services (WISe) and Communities in Schools 
are providing supports and access to services to 
students in schools, addressing behavioral health 
challenges and other needs. 



I M M u i»: i TV A S ETC- 
ESQURCES CQi‘alT 

Community partnerships are essential in implementing a 
collective action approach for any community wide level 
efforts. This C HNA was only possible thanks to the 
dedication from numerous sectors, agencies, and partners 
spanning both counties. This list identifies the partner 
organizations who assisted in the CHNA process through 
stakeholder interviews, listening sessions, data sharing, 
compression planning, or completion of the stakeholder 
survey: 

Adverse Child hood Experiences (ACES) Collaborative 
Aging and Long Term Care 
Alzheimer's Association 
Amistad Elementary 
A New Start in Life (ANSIL) 
Behavioral Health Committee 
Ben Franklin Transit 
Benton Franklin Community Health Alliance 
Benton Franklin Early Learning Alliance (BFELA) 
Benton-Franklin Health District 
Benton Franklin Recovery Coalition 
Benton Franklin Youth Suicide Prevention Coalition 
Boys and Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties 
Chaplaincy Healthcare 
Columbia Basin College (CBC) 
Columbia Basin Veteran's Center 
Community in Schools Benton-Franklin 
Domestic Violence Services of Benton and Franklin 
Counties (DVS) 
Educational Service District 123 (E50123) 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
GmmCMK 
Human Services Coalition 

PAGE I22 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center 
Law Enforcement/Police Chiefs 
Lourdes Health 
Lower Valley Kiwanis 
My Friend's Place; Safe Harbor 
Parents and Families of Lesbians and Gays (PFLAG) 
People for People; 2-1—1 
Planned Parenthood of Greater Washington and North 
Idaho {PPGWND 
Prosser Memorial Health 
Prosser School District 
Prosser Thrive Coalition 
Senior Life Resources; Meals on Wheels 
Support, Resource, and Advocacy Center (SARC) 
Tierra Vida 
Tri-Cities Cancer Center 
Tri-Cities Community Health (FCCH) 
Tri-Cities Food Bank 
Tri-Cities Residential Services {TCRS} 
Tri-City Regional Chamber of Commerce 
Trios Health 
Lourdes Mobile Outreach Team 
Tri-City Union Gospel Mission 
United Way of Benton and Franklin Counties 
Vintage at Richland 
Washington State University Tri-Cities (WSUTC) 
World Relief 
You Medical 

Thank you to all the dedicated members of these agencies 
and coalitions for their assistance on this project. 



-J E} CHl-JA 

GOVERNING APPROVAL 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center 

fly/442.1 
Reza Kaleel, Chief Executive 

Mica-oz. 
Jerry Roach, Community Board Chair 

M / L ’ fi  

Joel Gilberston, Senior Vice President 
Community Partnerships, Providence St. Joseph Health 

Benton-Franklin Health District 

gkaeuhf?:mama~¢1 
Jason Zaccaria. District Administrator 

MflWm 
Dr. Amy Person, Health Officer 

PAGE J23 

Trios Health 

J” hn Solheim. Chief Executive Officer 

Lourdes Health 

M0 
Rob Monical, Chief Executive Officer 

Prosser Memorial Health 

kw) 
Craig]. Marks, Chief Executive Officer 

Benton Franklin Community Health 
Alliance 

fled/L 
Kirk Williamson, Program Manager 





f‘ . (J Presser 
J Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020 Plan 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT 2019 REPORT AND 2020 PLAN 

At Prosser Memorial Health (PMH), we believe that a healthy and safe community is a strong 
community. Our commitment to healthier families comes to life in the programs and activities 
featured in our 2019 Community Benefit Report which meets requirements in Washington State 
law that not-for-profit hospitals produce an annual community benefit report and plan. 

In 2019, PMH provided the following patient financial assistance: 

Charity Care Program $1,671,832 
Bad Debt $4,031,596 
Medicaid/Medicare Shortfall $8,799,638 
Total 2019 Uncompensated Care $14,503,066 

2019 Uncompensated Care 

, "targets“ . s12: 

:- Charity Care It Bad Debt :- Medicaid/Medicare Shortfall 

1'11 



2" . (J Prosser 
( Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020 Plan 

Community Health Needs Assessment 
Prosser Memorial Health has a tradition of addressing health service needs and providing 
benefits to the populations we serve. We continue to prioritize the health and well-being of our 
communities through our triennial Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA). 

In 2019, PMH participated in the development of the 2019 Benton 8: Franklin Counties 
Community Health Needs Assessment in collaboration with the Benton-Franklin Health District, 
Benton-Franklin Community Health Alliance, Kadlec, Trios Health and Lourdes Health. The CHNA 
helps determine which critical health needs the community will focus on addressing over the next 
3-5 years. It is a systematic and shared process for identifying and analyzing community needs 
and assets throughout Benton and Franklin counties, from Prosser to Connell, from Hover to 
Hanford. 

Over fifty representatives including public health, hospital and health systems, behavioral health, 
community service organizations, first responders, business and education gathered for 
facilitated compression planning sessions to review and reflect on the data, identify important 
issues and come to an agreement on the critical priorities for change. The three priorities 
identified are: 

0 ® 
Behavioral Health Access and Cost of Social Determinants 

Challenges Ali Health Care of Health 

Behavioral Health Challenges include mental health, suicide, and substance use disorders. 
Groups identified as being especially affected are people experiencing homelessness, youth, 
older adults, veterans and those who identify as LG BTQ. 

Access and Cost of All Health Care includes access to behavioral health care and medical health 
care as well as the ability to pay for care. While insurance enrollment rates have increased due 
to systemic changes at the federal level, the cost of health care remains a financial burden for 
many in our community. 

Social Determinants of Health are conditions in the places where people, live, work and play that 
affect a wide range of health risks and outcomes. Significant health-related areas identified 
include poverty, housing and homelessness and food insecurity. 



‘I Q Prosser 
( Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020 Plan 

It is not enough to research ways in which our community’s health could be better. As we 
continue to grow and expand the medical services we offer, we are taking the important data 
uncovered by the CH NA into account. That way, when we bring in new providers or building new 
facilities, it is in direct response to a community need. 

BENTON a. FRANKLIN COUNTIES 

COMMUNITY HEALTH 
NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

2019 
” m u m  

The Community Benefit provided by PMH is far-reaching from making healthcare available for all 
community residents, educating the next generation of healthcare professionals and supporting 
community health initiatives through activities and programs that improve access to health 
services, enhance public health, and advance the community’s knowledge. 

In addition to the $14,503,066 in Uncompensated Care in 2019, this Community Benefit Report 
is an important opportunity to highlight the substantial community contributions that PMH made 
in 2019 to support Behavioral Health Challenges, Access and Cost of all Health Care and Social 
Determinants of Health. ‘ 

As a result of the findings of the 2019 CHNA and through a prioritization process aligned with 
our Mission, resources and hospital strategic plan, PMH has placed focus on the following areas 
with specific activities targeting the three community health priorities for 2019 and 2020. 



1 {J Prosser 
J Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020 Plan 

2019 Community Benefit Activities 
- Behavioral Health Challenges 

0 

0 

O 

0 

Recruitment of Diane Hanks, ARNP (Mental Health) 
Providers obtained Medical Assisted Treatment (MAT) training to prescribe 
Suboxone for opioid addiction (Dr. Staudinger and Diane Microulis) 
Mental health services are provided in all PMH Rural Health Clinics 
Stop the Stigma (Suicide) Presentation 

0 Access and Cost of all Health Care 
0 

0 

O 

0 

Schedulers are pro-registering patients as they schedule appointments 
Opened the Grandview Clinic 
Expanded Wound Therapy Program 
Recruitment of the following providers: 

I Dr. Karen Bhatti (Cardiology) 
I Rebecca Warnick, ARNP (Primary Care) 
I Dr. Shem Rode (EM) 
I Dr. Samuel Strebel (Orthopedics) 
I Dr. Heidi Weaver (OB/SYN) 
I Dr. Lindsey Smith (EM) 

0 Social Determinants of Health 
0 

0 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

Diabetes education was provided at the Senior Center 
Providing care to veterans when they have greater than a two week wait to 
receive primary care 
Veterans Day Breakfast 
Ongoing Community Paramedic visits 
Annual Health Fair 
Go Red Health Fair 
Valley Vista Health Fair 
Big Latch Event 
Whitstran Resource Center Literacy Night with Dr. Min 
Red Cross Blood Drive 



{‘5 Prosser 
I n !  Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020,Plan 

2020 Community Benefit Activities Plan 
0 Behavioral Health Challenges 

0 
0

0
0

0
0

 
Provide psychiatric services including tale-psychiatric services 
Recruit a Mental Health Counselor (Prosser Clinic) 
Partner with Prosser Thrive to focus on mental health for local youth 
Facebook Live Mental and Physical Health 
Stop the Stigma (Suicide) Presentation 
Facebook Live on Chronic Pain 8: Suicide Correlation 

- Access and Cost of all Health Care 
0 

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

Increase current utilization of self-check in 
Implement at least two additional self-check in options 
Implement the Provider Recruitment Plan (APCs, MDs and Mid-Wives) 
Explore e-consult and telehealth options 
Enhance and expand cardiopulmonary services 
Enhance the orthopedic surgery program 
Joint Replacement Lunch & Learn 

a Social Determinants of Health 
0 

0 

0 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 

Create a calendar and promote educational seminars for the community 
Conduct lunch/breakfast and learns for residents in the community 
Study the feasibility of providing home health services and implement if 
‘appropriate 
Develop a comprehensive diabetic education program and implement 
Offer annual Medicare Wellness Exams for Seniors 
Go Red Women's Luncheon 
Red Cross Blood Drive 
Annual Health Fair 
Veteran’s Day Breakfast 
Diabetes Education Panel 
Facebook Live Events: 

I Sudden Cardiac Death 
I Concussions 
I Heat Stroke vs. Heat Exhaustion 
I Healthy Aging 
II Women’s Health Cancer Screenings 
I Breast Cancer and Mammograms 
I Influenza 

115 



{‘3 Presser 
d Memorial Health Community Benefit 2019 Report and 2020 Plan 

2020 Uncompensated Care Budget/Plan 

' Charity Care Program $2,001,181 
Bad Debt $4,220,415 
Medicaid/Medicare Shortfall $16,089,283 
Total 2020 Uncompensated Care $22,310,879 

2020 Uncompensated Care Budget/Plan 

I Charity Care It Bad Debt In Medicaid/Medicare Shortfall 

116 



117 



(‘bProsser 
‘ 4  M e m o r i a l  Health 

Overview of Service Area and Demographics 

October 2020 
Prepared by: 

‘ . HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
RESEARCH - DATA ' ANALYTICS ' STRATEGY - IMPLEMENTATION 

118 



Section 1: Overview of Prosser Memorial Health and the Primary Service 
Area 

A. Brief History 

The Prosser Hospital Association was established in 1943 to raise funds for a community 
hospital. In 1945, after intense community-led fundraising, construction crews broke 
ground on a new 19-bed hospital. Two years later, on December 26, 1947, Prosser 
Memorial Hospital (Prosser) opened, dedicated to the memory and service of veterans of 
World War II. The Prosser Public Hospital District was formed in 1948, and the Prosser 
Hospital Association was disbanded. 

Over the years, there have been numerous additions and expansions to the hospital and its 
services. and in the recent past, there has been significant clinic development. Today, 
Prosser is a robust rural health system providing family medicine, specialty care, advanced 
surgical care, inpatient care, obstetrics, and emergency care. PMH’s mission is “to improve 
the health of our community”, and its vision is to become one of the top 100 Critical Access 
Hospitals in the country. 

B. Prosser Today 

Prosser is a 25 bed Critical Access Hospital (CAH), meaning that it is rural, operates 25 or 
fewer beds, meets other applicable requirements and is paid allowable costs from Medicare 
and Medicaid. The intent of the CAH program is to mitigate financial vulnerability of rural 
hospitals, thereby assuring that essential services exist in rural communities. 

Prosser is located in western Benton County. Its services include a broad array of primary 
care, specialty care, acute care, outpatient, and post-acute care, including: 

Level 4 Trauma Center 
Emergency Cardiac Level 11 
Emergency Stroke Level III 
Inpatient & Outpatient Surgery 
Obstetrics 
Swing Beds 
Behavioral Health 
Teleradiology 

119 



Primary Service Area 

Patient Origin data for Prosser’s inpatients for the period of 2016-2 019 is depicted in 
Table 1. As depicted in the Table, the primary service area includes all three of the 
communities within the legal boundaries of the District, as well as several adjacent 
communities. The three communities within the legal boundaries of the District: Prosser, 
Benton City and Paterson, are all located in Western Benton County, and the rest of the 
primary service area is in adjacent Yakima County. 

As seen in Table, in 2019, approximately 44% of Prosser’s patients came from the District 
in 2016, but by 2019, only 34% resided in the District. The adjacent Yakima County cities of 
Grandview and Mabton consistently account for another 31-34% of discharges. 
Collectively, these communities account for about 70% of all Prosser inpatient discharges. 
Hospital primary service areas are typically defined as the geography from which 7 0-80% 
of a hospital’s patients reside. 

Table 1. 
" _ ~2016-2019 

Zip Code 
',_9935_0 ' Prosser 39.2% 41.7%' 39.4% _, 

99320 Benton City 4.8% 3.8% 3.1% 3. 9% 
E 973345 j Paterson I _ i _ l 0.1%- :- (LE/i: 

Subtotal - 
District 44-. 0%) 4-5 .4‘Vo 4-2. 70/0 33 .4% 

r @930 ; Grandview J _ 29. 89:21 23.- 2% j 25:. 3% f - 26. 3% 
98935 Mabton 4. 2% 5. 5% 5 9% 5.1% 

l ‘ _ _ i PSA Subtotal. 1... 729% l 1422- 1 73.13% i ' 69.13541 
l: i__ _; __ _ PSA Emerging Market -Sunnléi§§ l l 1.. l - . _ l _- 1. _ 

9894-4 Sunnyside 14.6% 15.3% 14.8% 10.2% 
3;" .1 - Subtotal PSA " . l .. ' : 

Fu%— 1 Erfiifiging _ 92.3921 39.4% I - 88.6%: it" #332. 
_" . Market ' j |_ . _ 

Other 7. 4% 10. 6% 11.4% 12.1% 
g Total .I ' 100.. 9% 1 . 1119-. 0% i 100. 0% 1 10630.92 

Source: 2016- 2019 Inpatient CHARS Data, excludes newborns and swing bed patients 

120 



Per Table 1, almost 20% of Prosser’s inpatients come from Sunnyside. For the purposes of 
this report, HFPD has elected to identify Sunnyside as an ‘emerging’ part of the primary 
service area. Inclusion as part of the PSA is reasonable for a number of reasons, including 
1] Prosser’s commitment to expand services to Sunnyside following the bankruptcy of 
Astria Health and closure of one of its hospitals in Yakima County and 2) available patient 
origin clearly depicts that, as a percentage of Prosser’s total inpatients, the Sunnyside zip 
code [98944) has increased by nearly 25% between 2016 and 20201. Outpatient data 
provided directly by Prosser, identifies the same patient origin pattern. 

As defined by the Federal Health Resources 8: Services Administration [HRSA], the entirety 
of Benton and Yakima Counties are Health Professional Shortage Areas, (HSPA) with 
designations for primary care, mental health, and dental care. Table 2 reflects the service 
area HPSA designations and scoring. The highest score (greatest shortage) for a HPSA is 25. 

Table 2 
HPSA Desi ; nation b Select Coun 

Geography Designation Type Designation 
Date 

' Benton County Primary Care Low Income Population HPSA 10/02/2017 16 
i Dental Care Low Income Population HPSA 8/31/2017 18 ‘ 
I _ ._ Mental Health . Geographic: Entire County 8/27/2017 J _. g m  

Yakima County Primary Care Low Income Population HPSA 09/24/2017 17 
. Dental Care I Low Income Population HPSA . _ Dug/20121:, E- .';' _ 

Mental Health Geographic: Entire County 08/23/2017 18 
Source: HPSA Find (https://datawarehouse.hragav/tooIs/anabrzem/hspafind.aspx). 

C. Demographics - Primary Service Area 

Throughout the report, the PSA is the five communities of Presser, Benton City, Patterson, 
Mabton and Grandview. When Sunnyside is added, we refer to the area as the PSA+ 
Emerging Community. 

As depicted in Table 3, in 2020, the PSA had a population of nearly 46,000 and nearly 57% 
of the population is Hispanic. Since the 2010 census, the PSA's total population has grown 
by 9.3%, while the Hispanic population grew by nearly 20% and the population age 65+ 
grew by 40.3%. The District is slightly “younger” than the rest of the State, with 12.7% aged 
65+ in the District vs 15.9% statewide. 

In comparison to the PSA’s 9.3% growth, the State grew by nearly 13%; however, the 
growth in the PSA far surpasses the average growth rate in communities served by the 

1 HFPD would also typically look at market share in defining the service area. However, Astria Health 
underreported in 20 18 and CHARS, the state data base from which inpatient market share is calculated 
recently notified all hospitals that 2019 data was not uploaded correctly and understates discharges. They 
are attempting to correct this data, but there is no ETA. 

121 



State’s other CAHs (4.9%). The PSA is expected to continue to grow [5.5%] through 2025, 
with the fastest growth occurring in the 65+ and Hispanic populations. Again, and for 
comparison, the State is expected to grow by 6.3% between 2020—2025. 

The population of females of childbearing age (15-44) grew by nearly 9% between 2010 
and 2020 and is expected to another 7% by 2025. 

Table 3 
Prima Service Area Po . ulation 

2010 Pct o f  2020 Pct of Pot 2025 Pct of Pct 
Tot Pop Est Tot Pep Chg. Proj Tot Pop Chg. 

2010- 2020- 
2020 2025 

ITot. Pop. 41,910 100.0% 45,811 100.0% 9.3% 48,340 100.0% 5.5% 
Pop. ByAge 

l. 0:17 - ..- 135.52. 333%.- 14971. 311-221. m6 11461; 301191: 31-316 
18-44 14,497 34.6% 16,153 35.3% 11.4% 17,264 35.7% 6.9% 

I 345164 1 9,708 3 23.2%; 0,762: 21.3% ' 0.6% i 9,787_§_ 20.2961 0.3% 
65-74 2,457 5.9% 3,654 8.036 48.7%‘ 4,125 8.5% 12.9% 

l 755%; ~ 11.- TZL‘ETEéai 229%1 1,636-i- 3336—98 '| 3357:9431 2.0438! 452% i 243.331? 
85+ 472 1.1% 536 1.2% 13.5% 555 1.1% 3.6% 

Tot. 0-64 37,757 90.1% 39,986 87.3% 5.9% 41,613 86.1% 4.1% 
l'fioe 65+ _ I. 4.153] 9.9%; 358.25! 12.2%] 403%} "6,728: 136% 15.53% 

neispanic J 21674: 51-794: 2398.81 59-124: 193°4- 23698 594% 3.93% 
Fem. 15-44 8,236 19.7% 8,962 19.6% 8.8% 9.590 19.8% 7.0% 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 201 9 and includes: Presser, Benton City, Paterson, Grandview and M11a 

As seen in Table 4, within the PSA, Prosser and Grandview have a higher percentage of 
Hispanic residents that the PSA as a whole. The District is proper is also growing faster 
than the communities of Grandview and Mabton. whole. It is also projected to growing 
more slowly than Benton County, and the State, but faster than Yakima County between 
2020 and 2025. 

122 



Table 4 
Primary Service Area Po . ulation Com . arisons 

U .r 

2020 Total 2025 Total Chi-fl e Hizsfligic % 0f Hizsoilslic Ch: 3 Population Population g p p g Total 2 0-2 5 Population Population 2 0-2 5 
99350—Prosser 14,339 15,392 6.7% . 7,019 _ 47.1% 7,949 13.2% 
33:20 ‘ Bent” 10,334 11,023 6.7% 2.545 246% 3:004 13.0% 

'29345 Paterson l P619331; ,1 4.4»? '. ' fl '  i t” i _ . - ' 1  it 1 § .413, 
.— _ I. -. '. I — - - _ . 

Subtotal District 25,223 26,920 6.7% 9,564 35.5% 10,953 14.5% 
98930" E 165225 18944l 4143/6” "12 303 F 7-3 933:] 13-313l 36% Grandview 1 ’_ - I , 1 '_‘____ 1 '_-‘-.~=§L 5. 1. '_.‘.1 
93935-Mabton 4,360 4,432 2.3% 3,613 _ 32.9% 3,305 5.3% 

l_' Subtotal P5142 '_ 45§03l 43,346 i 5.51%? 2.54935 .. 56:?%i 23,631 E 10.3% 
Benton County 207,503 219,250 5.7% 43,369 23.3% 55,039 13.9% 

[Yakima County 1 259,116 1 267E132 } 3.41961 _ 133,651 , 21.3%f 143?;375l 3:20:36 
Washington 7,661,468 8,143,617 6% 1,012,383 13% 1,159,778 15% 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 201 9. *Potterson is 0 P030): and is reported with Presser ( 9935 0). 

D. Demographics-Emerging Primary Service Area, Sunnyside 

As depicted in Table 5, in 2020, Sunnyside had a population of nearly 23,000 and more 
than 80% is Hispanic. The community is exceptionally young with only 9.6% over the age 
of 65. Since the 2010 census, Sunnyside’s total population grew by just over 4%, while the 
Hispanic population grew by almost 11% and the population age 65+ grew by nearly 12%. 
The growth in Sunnyside is less than the growth rate of the PSA. Sunnyside is expected to 
continue to grow (3.6%) through 2025, with the fastest growth continuing to be in the 65+ 
cohort and Hispanic populations. Again, and as with the PSA, women of childbearing age 
are expected to continue to grow as well. 

2 *numbers may not match Table 3 exactly due to rounding. 

123 



Table 5 
Emer in- PSA -Sunn side 

Pct of 2020 Pct 0f PCtChg' PCtChg' 
2011} Tot Pup Est Tut Pop 2010' 0' O 2020' 2020 2025 

_ Tot. Pop. 21,379 100.0% 22,309 100.0% 4.2% 23,634 100.1%. 3.6% 
Pop. ByAge 

III-17 I 2.077: 36: 811152 351.2%1L025221-8224I 34.8%.I 2.52%. 
13-44 _ 3,034 , 36.7% 3,447 37.0% 5.1% 3,777 311% 3.9% 

I 45:954. J 3.8.05I 174%! 2.1.152I 1512M ' 2.5.11'ZI' 4262i 18124;} 2223’: 
65-74- _ 999 4.6% 1,223 5.4% 22.9% 1,3__2_2 5.6% _ _ 3% 

[$1234. I "’ 2.2211 .l 222% 22%| 21-22 12-11! - .2211 351221 12.22 
85+ 330 1.5% 323 1.4% -2.1% 304 1.3% 4.3% 

I. Z; -.—’_'I 1...;1 _-2'-_1 _ 1:1. I I i I». LIE—1.; ._'._'__ 
Tot 0-64 19,916! 913%. 20,61§1 #904941? __ 3.5% 211.2762, 90.0% 3.2% 

I329 35 + 'I 12221 9.2211 22.211 132'! 111/I 295% 10103151: III-I 
Wisp-2919 I 12.23% 77.2% --i-3,-§"25f-'IL__3:.2.t1?%_l;.f71_22§%1l12.2.8.2I-.82§'321f22% 

Fem-1544 4,505 20.6% 4,711 20.7% 4.6% 4,903 20.7% 4.1% 
Source: Nielsen Claritas 2019 

124 



E. Demographics PSA+ Emerging 

Combined, the PSA and the emerging (Sunnyside) communities have a combined 
population of almost 70,000. Since 2010, the PSA + Emerging area has grown by nearly 
9%. The PSA + Emerging is younger than the State [12% age 65+) and is nearly 66% 
Hispanic. Growth will by 2025 is estimated to be about 4% with the 65+ age cohort 
growing more than twice as fast. The females 15—44 are expected to continue to grow. 

Table 6 
PSA+Sunn side 

Pct of 2020 Pct of P“ “‘3' 2025 P“ “f P“ Chg“ 
2010 Tot P0 Est Tot PO 2 010- Pro. Tat 2020-  p p 2020 ’ Pop 2025 

Tot. Pop. 63,789 100.0% 69,270 100.0% _ 8.6% 71,971 100.0% 3.9% 
Pop. ByAge 

l "11.7 1 21.629. 33.9%, 22,226.. 322340 ._2.1%: 22,795.. 317%1‘ 0.024 
. 13-4? 22,531 . 35.3% . 24,882 1 35.9% 10.4% 26,041 3621/2 4. % 
P0204 .1. 13.5231 21.2% 10062.1 294.1 2.634.? 14,951. 19:9530l 20% 

65-74 3,456 5.4% 4,990 7.2% 44.4% 5,447 7.6% 9.2% 
— - — -  - —»—~ .==- '- fi-fir' ‘ _ ' - 4 -  :— “21'. — .. I 15:24 l 1.8.2.8? 2.9%! 0379:! 3.4% 270%} 2.77s.l 3.2241 mm 
85+ 802 _ 1.3% 859 1.2% 7.1% 859 1.2% _ 0.0% 

. | _g _5 ____..l . ..-:"-l - 1 _ E . '  l ‘21:" 
Tot- 0-64 57,673 90.4% 61,051 88.1% 5.9%: 62,887 87.4% 3.0% 

[Tat 65+ 1 6,116] 9.6%, 0,219! 11._9_%i 34.4% ,1 9,084} 12.6%] 10.5% 

Hispanic l 38.6133 605%? 42.2622 _ 652693 l :._ 22.2%] 43.654..- 671ml ' fem. 
Fem- 15-44 12,741 20.0% 13,833 20.0% 8.6% 14,493 20.1% 4.8% 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 201 9 

125 



F .  Socioeconomic Characteristics 

Unemployment data is available only at the County level. While unemployment rates had 
generally improved between 2016-2019, rates in Benton and Yakima Counties are still 
higher than that of Washington State. Benton County’s unemployment had decreased by 
22% between 6.0% in 12016 (6.0%] to 2019 (4/ 7%). Comparatively, Washington State’s 
unemployment rate decreased from 5.0% in 2016 to 4.1% in 2019 (a decrease of 18%]. 
Yakima County’s unemployment rate has also decreased since 2016, going from 6.4% to 
6.1% (a decrease of 4%). However, as a result of COVID-19, unemployment rates have 
increased to unprecedented levels throughout the State. The data is summarized in Figure 
2. 

Figure 2 
Unemployment Rates 2016- August 2020 

12.0% 

10.0% ' 

3.0% 

5.0% I 

4.0% 

2.0% I I | I 0.0% 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

lYakima County I Benton County I Washington 

Source: U..S‘. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Not Seasonally Adjusted, (lune) 

Table 7 shows the PSA’s major employers, which is generally agricultural or public in 
nature. 

126 



Table 7 
Em - lo ers, b Number of Em lo ees within the PSA 

. Ste. Michelle Wine Estates 1,100 
Walmart Grocery Distribution 719 
Center 

_ Grandview School PSA _ '; __ — .l , .-_. ::,___. __:_5_6_2 __ __=.' .J_ 
FruitSmart _ 368 (218 in Prosser) . _ 

_. Prosser School PSA :3 # El: _' 1: 316 h . '—_ 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 

.WSU/lAREC _ _. ._ 
Benton County Government 

I Tree Top, Inc. 
Milne Fruit 
Yakima Valley Farm W'orker,” s. '- T 
Clinic _ _ _ 
Conrad Adams Fruit 

I Chukar Cherries - _ 
Bleyhel Farm Services . fl _ _ 

l ]M Smucker Company ' 1‘“ _ '_ 1 
Yakima Valley College 

lWelchGrape _ r i — i ' i l i  173:}: fit '7‘? lfi‘hf .____ 
. Zirkle Fruit _ ._ __ 60 [in Prosser] 
[CityofGrandview - / _ _  1 : ]  “ i i - L  58 ' _ -_ _.- 

Benton Rural Electric 54 
f C1ty ofProsser __j' __ J ..__._4_.; .____ :53 ___ _# 

Shonan [USA] 50 
Source: W W W 

The average household income for the entirety of Benton County, Yakima County, and the 
PSA is lower than the State [Table 8). Within the PSA, the communities of Prosser and 
Grandview are lower than Benton County and the State. 

Table 8 
Avera ; e Household Income by Area, 2019 

Average HH Income 
: 99350 - Prosser ' ‘ $79,626 

99320 - Benton City $331538 
, 99345 — Paterson * _ _ ‘  .1 " _ 

District 
' 93930 — Grandview l . ‘ r - gag-fie _ 
93935 — Mabton $62£457 

' 1‘l ' 
Benton County $90,475 
Yakima County _ l $31£2+63 
Washington $101,633 

Source: Nielsen Claritas 201 9. *Reported with Prosser ( 9935 0). 

127 



Table 7 
Em .1 layers, by Number of Em 

Employer 
3 Ste. Michelle Wine Estates 

Walmart Grocery Distribution 

lo ees within the PSA 
Employees 

1 100 

719 Center _ 
I ;  Grandview School PSA _ 4 I: 1L1“— 3 __,3,___ £56241 3 3 3 __._1_ 3,133,331., 

FruitSmart 368 [2318'13 P_ros33ser) 
[Presser School PSAl .-,3';33_3‘_:'_,_; 3:;3 33:33:. "—3'- 31315“ 3:33333‘3'333'3 _- 31—3 L61 

Presser Memorial Hospital _ _ _ 300 _ 
I WSU/iAREc -E-élifz .L— 11-1: I . 211:7 .1 5:1 '3 -' 

Benton County Government 144 

1313188 Trip, lnc. 133.3333 3 .. '13-: fife-31,3933- 1,45;- 1‘33? 
Milne Fruit 120 

"Yakima Valley Farm Werkgfis 33:33,: 3-133 7:33 - 1:335 :13: 331333" 
3_C_lin_ic __,=__, '“4 ! ' 3__ r 3 '_='_T_,_____:i '33' 
Conrad Adams Fruit 100 -I_- 33136 __seasonal _ 

|_ Chukar Cherries 1-1.1..1’IL'11 :5;- _ 111131 ..__-._: -. gifl 
Bleyhel Farm Services 89 3 

I IN! Smucker Comfiélny W m  _.'T -.3_ ”33% 3 33 3': “E _333-11_ 915131.333 
Yakima valley College 

1 Warm Grape m fl m  {EVIL-3E 
Zirkle Fruit 60 (in Presser) 

3 Cir} of Grandview _ 314:1! 3_:l3-: _1 :3_1_15__ Fifi? _ —33'3li 3313333 
Benton Rural Electric _ _ 3 3 
Ciaof Presser _. - -_ 1.23 _' -_ Jr“? £._‘ E ‘ - C .. .1413 
Shonan (USA) 50 

Source: W 3 .  33333311333133.1133 W 

The average household income for the entirety of Benton County, Yakima County, and the 
PSA is lower than the State (Table 8). Within the PSA, the communities of Prosser and 
Grandview are lower than Benton County and the State. 

Table 8 
Avera i e Household Income b Area, 2019 

Average HH Income 
99350- Prosser E 
99320- Benton City 

‘1 99345— Paterson * _ _ 3 l 
3 District 
3 9383.930 - Grandview . .. -. .' .1 ' 
98935 - Mabton 

_ _ F l  

Benton County 
Yakima County ,I 
Washington 

$79,626 
$83,538 

16.213833 $32,457 
' I “  

I . ”  - '  

iii-173$ 
_ $11,333 

$101,633 
Source: Nielsen CIan'tas 2019. *Repo with Presser (99350). 

128 



_ . 
|. 
. 

. " ‘ I  

' 1| : l.- 
;—1!-—-‘_' , "  . 

129 



O 
3 1 



5.0m: Etofimz 
._ 3o G I 

933m #5.. 
«flaw 3.56. mdw :36. 3:3 

www.mm #55330 mfim new»... no 
mafia "mafia wk #3:. 26 

85.3 "rum...“ .3 Han Km“. no 
3mg a. mam :8“. a. 

$2 5m. m3 and. 8 2.3.3 23m £5.58 
QED—“5.33309 macaw.— muam _uo_.w 

I -- .3EEWNEEE 23“ a??? EEE- E... as _ can u mm I 2 + ca 
3..» n ma + E + an an" gnaw mm and» at»? “853m E2§éo 3w u mm + ma + 3 

2w u an I m2 + Sn 2% #93 mm and» “$.t 235m: 355 on u a I o + H 
n» n S I m + m 3 was a .33 £35." Em 3.2a 93 u S I. + 3 

Eu u an... .m + SN ~m~ fig 2 $.38 x3? 595 $32.50 a3 u m .m. + m 
m u .5 I + a: «a $8 m $8” 32?. 

waists $5.: m.~m u mu I + n“ 
m3 u a: I + 2: m2 2mg 3 mafia Ram? 25 £3 mfim u Nu I + .5 

gm ..... Ra .H. + new 2....“ mafia 2 «33 5.5." Egaséfiu: 3 n 3 .u. m + m 
as u a...” I mm + «h man 33» 2 an» fig flame agafiwsm 99:5 San $35.» 

.83 $5 . 
,__|- 

I I Bu _E... _ Bu. .EEBIIfifiI..Im=EuI ma :3: "—3—... En: 
Ewan fianflflfi—nnofl «Hm—Haw magma..— «auwunm 
Ensem— mfiefiaufi hammeum 

131 



5.3: .25s 
L $305 9 
.36 I «erratic I in...» i 350 I 5.22.58 I .29.... I 

3.3.q a: “use.“ Fri-not 3..., gain ozfafia a: 532.... a.» £52m as, $36 

a N N 

3— 8" 

an 
2 

ECGEEOODE 2:0; ficaegoom 230; 

$93 -88 a; $58.82 2.2 
E guano: 

x3933 nwcfiEou ucmrwnc. nun 

132 



.53....1 Ezofimz 

.mmmoao . 2K hfifia..v afihhfifiq 3.1.3.533... 4mg” . 1h nag .Eh 

.26 I £53 I an...» - 
:- Kurt: .¥.§ a» 

.u 1.- ..! i: it!...-.. u .5. 
Eu 

.5. 23 .._ an a .535 do: itgng sill! 3:53.39...— _. n l 
a 

.3...— 3-93 .35 on 8 nucéouum: an... mc Hana—E an» we can ..I.. Find .52. .6 8 togauuxmx :9» 33E 3...t mum *0 on” u. uuBn... Lao» . 
ucmrmncn 3.5.5 .53.. 

a: Eon m. 353:3. cane—.35.. aficuflma #5....3 .59.. 
35:8. .8 $m.mw r. $6.159 «EB-n Eats“. 5...... 8w gag—33w: main» 3533 me. £36m fl 1523...?— fium 509...... Sn 

Each-Bunk =35 .23. i vofiuuu I $9.... I. 

550. .. Fianna.” -
.

 
.umihll I... 

and tin uuuw uncut} afifiuuu 

a... 35%... a N 
.5» age .Eiuuu 

an an 
.8. S. am. 

3. 
Sn 

in I. 
3" 

unaiuinkrogaouin 
.33. I catfish I Emir ll 

.2... .33 an... .439 ES Ewan-M. 
a ._. I I a 5. I . 

3.. 

8. 
.8" Sn 

.. I s. E 5. 96 322.6 =a0 
33”.; omen 

Muhzmo .30.s 1.2.... 

133 



.1 Agaififlw ‘33? Hr 
. 

$.13 4§jfiflgafi v.13 43:1; fix 
flan. 

:. 

..&..kd_...nuh 
L... L... _ .rrm 

atntrnmygwfi. 
“3...... . 1.... 

E... 
l. 

_ t‘ 

I .P 
TI.- 

..H. 
q 

t a _.,.J+u§3ymmnfi pfluah W3 
. 



.2038605 3 $88 >fi_k_m> A 
az.§o__8 25.0 3 988m 35> A 

acormwsd 525.5 A 
BEBE 3 93:35... 2 Emma; 5550 A 
“can 9:26 a 6039530 

55:35 :0 m=mu Ems—ma 53 “won. .m . 

:32 rim 339.5 
.N . 

muczom >Ec__g_um_EmE_ .H . 

82329:. 23 263:: 
B .98: 9:3 3523.2 

135 



56m: .35s 
Emmet... O .23 I muiicfin I SE.» al .33 I ay>hu=§n I 89-»! 92 353.5 a: £395 :5 532.. a; Effie 

a 
a: iafin oz 333. a... £39.. 1 ... . I ,_ I , I m— .8 m 

— 

8 

a» 

3 

8 

E 

8 

3 

.8— 

ucaEEooom 2:25 ucoEEooom 2:03 

Ax.~.mm..ONeN Q._.> Rmém -o~o~ 0:3 

x3? ”.80 Emu 334‘ 

EV 

Er 5:53. 

G
o

b
b

D
W

‘
H

N
-

I
-

fi
 

O
m

Q
fl

N
P

O
 

g
'

F
P

F
'

I
'

I
—

 

136 



Em mmfl 0 

"$50 ' chin—Hm ' £93. I 

hit voomw at...» 5.3 may Eoiflfl 
F _' 

I. l x 
.“ 

£9350... =55 

EEO. ' china .. thin. ll. 
. .1... Santa... Sun and”. «curtuum 

a n 

- 

2.. . 
m. 

:5 I... 

at...» 3:26 

fi
fl

fi
fi

fi
"

 

HE. flange. awanfiéh neiituefi. in? a 1.: SHEEN 

1 I131 .31- ..i.....1 f. . :3. “ti... 
I. ll ‘. L I. . 

.95 .gfisiso nuts-it .uzilgfl 
Hartman M ED menu"! 399$. 50% 

nap—£19310..- 
:2_. mean... 3:039". and mo «Ha a .331 .52. 

gurus-Dam: 33 952 Benin nun no NM." n 393... .50; Panama! an..." 3520 Bro! 
Echo nu $539.3» sociauuxms launch-Lin user—53.... Lao? 

H53!" .3. armiw fl ugh-=3: ucsuptu Egan .53.. 
tuciuufi. 31.3 3535 “B 95.2. n 9.352...» £3 sumac. 

firm-O I erg—hag . inn-L. all: 

and “5. 93$ .33 by: ”5:35. 

{
D

E
 

r 
3

3
9

3
8

5
3

5
}

 

030 .3 3.330 =u..o>0 
ONDN 

959602 

137 



5:00: 5:0s 
L mum 9 a 0 850 I raw-em I 593...! .850 I rig-um. I .35. i, 

noon 2-... EEO ‘39; Egg .3... in .590 

w 

w a 

35.5; Eofiufi 

95955593"; nE 365—9....— afiucoEEooom no noon—=33 

fimhéNON a; ficoaéwnfi 0:2. 

$.q ”.25 EEmoa Em ozzsm 

il38 



5.3: Ease: \ 
._ 9305 0 

am. «9.3..» Ragga manna E223- E. Hunt Eh 
hzfi ' stimunm I fiufimll .- in h} ir‘fiaq‘l Bi}... 

3. 
1 Iw£.1§§i¥ sfiflihgzfl .falti... l.—I a "- 

Ban 
.._ 

.309 
v an a. 

$2.35. 4.15. .fitltfllg magi-:2. .Srgfiullitflsi 
a I 

I 
a. 

uremia w >m 1.3%.: 3.33. £5} 
a zuco=ruxmu 59.. 9.30.. 3.5.3:.— mu mo .3 u mmfiufi 53. n gnaw—inky :9» 5:39. Btiuna wu mo nu H «uni... .53, u 

n £532. 5 3:20 the: 
hén a. main»: .ucfirwuxw. 33:85."— ucESu 53¢ 

a £5.39: .a. £56m H luau—Eva: “:33..— ucutau Lani 
: .3 mausvuxug Finn 3:033. mo 35.3 H. £3523..." £8 Jami... E 

EEEL. : . I. 532:. BEG I rim—any I #9.... ll. 
, inn. 2-... toga. Bunch...) tuiunu PI. 1. £50 ' Eamon—um I .u u 3.-..m 

it... 
a .3 25a .53 I “can 33. “cu—Infi— 

r 
w 

n a _ . 
n n 

1 . 
w 

. . 
a 

n. 2 
w aglnxflncosugoi 92...: 

:50 I rain...” I 59...: I... 
a 

5.... tough—ab. 
a Run. tuna Enzuuim 

u 
N fl 

w P III..- 3. 
w. w 

a m 
E z. I. n... 2:0 .3. .9236 .335 uiueusucsflnucahsuon omen 

Admin—MO... 
liar—DEN: EmmwOM—n— 

139 



140 



141 

7386.? :Llrudnlls :12... kissintr- 5...... LI... hln:._tl.v...! him?!" 5:" :‘I... 5.9.]. BJE.|hI...(-l.fi in n.. ...n In... var... ill: 
Earns: 4......- 

.3. III! :155 

ate—llvuaulh I: 

nus—.99: 
.050n 

0 

I .l. xiii-{ftp nIflERE—tib 
“:3!- 

It... '1. ”It‘ll...“ 
n. .ILII: . . LI. I “but!!! silllluhli i..- .vlcl'ota. IE5.- «ui .: Ii “Ii: if .2. £32.33. tact: «1:11.... 5. 3...... 2...... 9...... haw“... .flnflrrth. 

...3 $55.... 1.. 3:21;...1... 

€5.5fifiuzelts... .auoIzDEEuipaSEEi. 
fiestnniia-tenlrfl. I £Eu¢n52pfini§. Row 55" as" 2.5-! 

_. 
“C 

832»: “3... 
”H 

on..." a8" 2?. £3 E8 3 . P. :2 a3... 05— E.— 1.3. is?! i x. 5 .= H p.— v... .- ar .3 v 5-2:. .Inuczifixtuil .l. 3...... "n 
S “3. u- 3 "I no. «I :- it ab. 58.. 98. .53 ‘ :t I: :5 nt- 03 n...- &3 u: an» 

. 
OE. use and .8332 FFFFF in" 

85.. at... fix... an. 3:. any... one: awn-n 2.3: 9.5 turn £0...— 9:2. , . . . o 

08" an :3 n3... n3» 
.2. 

“NB 
"3 ”a 

03“ E PB" Dan 

I— 

an a 2. a an 
an. 

”8 

.23 a 
u.” 

on n: 
:- 3. a: .3. can 

as... a. .2... a... a... a... .2. :1... Ex. .2... a... .25.. 

—

.

:

 

_
.

-
§

_
.

.
:

 

.3 _ 

as 
_ 

as 

O 

.3. 
gfimflfii; ..i.--. E5 . . 

itinaiafisiuaésari 5322...... £55553. 3.3.8.113. éiifnfiifiséaaiifiié .53.}...3...ifiisgi.iglflfzrfiiuu3......“gisifiegilzfiiaé EEC”... wish. 
323.5 n «man 3232...... 

.VdmA—g ONON O 

dmsmfiom 
.QofiwImHON O a O 

. 

Xmflmhé; QNoN 
fimfioéaow. “Khwm -wHoN 

.cosmusuw cormufimE 
.3358: 95.5%.. 2m 3.5...q 



£20m .020s 

530.50 5&0 I «#2353 I as: I. :50 I 82.22%.” I :9.» I 
azaicfia a: £59: 3., Esau a; aim—.55 a: $255 a: 5533.". 5.. 588.. 

g . I a r! a a l m s p 
a 

E 

9 

8 

3 

E 

8 

B 

S. 

unoEaom 2:25 acoEaom 2:25 

§§m§méwo~ n_._.> fimdm -o~o~ 2:: 

£33.“ ..”:25 mumacta >=Emu 

“a, 52:5 

B
fl

h
i

fl
fl

“
 

M
I

N
-

"
D

 
w

a
n

—
o

 
I

I
I

-
I

-
u

-
q

-
u

—
 

It} 
.—

 

142 



55¢: .95s 

D 

Em Eng... unemfiaw .23235 augum. - «E gunk 
5.59 I £33m I .3t! 

knflltwmzl 3.365% I. .si .. .il .}.rliflr.. #5.; vacancy} :25 «now “Sign -2. tint-5:31.59 Int-fig .Ilfiulii—Efi 
a ... 4 I 

a «attain a.” in ‘33.? 3-93.... 59.. 
an an bang—”um“... 

30> army-t mania—fin NV" *0 Had H Haunt. 
.59.. 

nucflzuuxm: 50> mafia... Edwina M?“ an. Mdfl H Hymnal". Lac»... 8 9.5m an:— unsnzm... 5.52 
@.mm 3 hfixcnu nutflu—ows wear-mounts“ HEP—hay 530.? an ”Ru—uni mo 36...: H taco—.605: urn-Pin «catsu .50.? .. _ I... 2. eunusyuxmn mEhmm mucvnmn uE. www.mn. i IzuCfluamfi. 50m “Em... 

Econ—31:35 Din-am .893 has I 5.3.9 I as: I. 
‘3 -_ fetusfl ' “uni... ll :9..m ti 

.“.H..L.........: .i. 
noon. goofy... “Ezfibnu 

n, 
3a.... anon “5.26 or 

F . I I 9 a 
an 

9. 

on hm; I 
H..."— 

. be 
:25... Basia»:— fiuaunm was: a 

.950 .- ncuruflfl . IE»... I S 
a... tune rum. 8 in." anon. ufiiuum 

o IIIMII 
.l 

I 
a 3. or 

NM. 

.5 
M. w. n 

a: 

8 amp 

3 Q... 
a" I. _ 9: 950 “—0 32.50 =Ego Euucutkhuguusm ONDN 

m0 

143 



144 

“1....-. 
F» . .- ..I 

._.1 .. .. ll -.. .- . .s. ... .41.... 
L... .ll'..l..l...l.rb ... in .II .u 

a. 

-lfidawijaijd... --.... ....._...... ...--....H.....m.u....n 
Em... - ”menu 

“ME...“Ln 
a.“ _._.. 

l 

5.1 

lily; _' . , .1. 

1.... .3: ..l__fi.l..1_ 
I. 

.._l.. 



5.5m... EIOEBZ 
L ammo; n. O 

.26 I "2.5 I we.» I 
36...— uih acofi 3.30 .09} ESE 

II a m 

vm 

sinsnuuan. 2 anacossofifio 333.: 

XméwéNON a; 

find? ”“.86 EmEtmnwo >ucmmLmEm .,..__. 

a... 

on— 

San 

hip—a . giufi . snag—- I 

in .63 Boats; 

9 

gasozuufifi 3 32.55859 32.3.... 

xmém éNON 95.. 

“cs—gum 

u
h

m
m

c
n

n
r

o
 

t
e

e
a

a
u

s
e

w
 

145 



hmmmmemm 
0 

.23 - Eaten - .53.] 

363... ”$00 ”rim—.698...” 

Sr 

8* 

3.4. 

an. 
Eng.— 0550 Duos-.530 

$50 I. 
Begun-N 

.. #91... ll 

2-..- unua. rub 
.— nufl fluen- filing 

ill 

a 

..‘ 
a 

3 

Ea SEoEuuui Sam 
53 I Exam» I 193 .l 

.30n 
$3.6 ”chin—find. 

III. 
a 

I 5.. at 

an. 
an“ 

I: I! 
3" 

Eu II.§.§ iii-FE 

an 8.2.... fiamé gig EEEnbEzm. 1... Egan 

I I I'LIE: ..Jnl.~_..urufh...lfivth.m1 
49th- IEEE ‘9; .Iiififl 

«€q 3 .5 Emmi. .fiu‘fi. 59., 
.ucéouum. :9... 95! 3:33 mam t. 9: n .52.. La; .fioxfixms :5 nan! £532. 2m x. mm" a ace-F .53 

um Each.» 552 
w. an a. 39.5.. .35.?a 1.5582. EB 58. 

5:35. mo .3». was 55:33? ”ESE “:35” So... heap-um... Egan aiming mo .3”. um...“ 03:35.... £8 .finza... 

Ffin.‘ Tainan - Sun-kl..- 

.E 26.93 Essa 
l.fl...l...l_ 

a 

l 9.. 9 

B 

8 

n: 

R. 

a: 

n9. 

b? 

8“ I... a... 
«fin 

£3 to 93:6 =33 
anon 

Eggs... .mtosoz Emma...“ 

146 



immmmfle 
.222 E 558:8 963m . 

645500 
.6 332m ucm mmmcm=m£u mfi 3 

mcsmivm 0.0.. m>3uwtm 2mw cm mcov ism new amuse... .. 
.m_o._ 58.25 _mu:om_>_ 

am 9: UwEsmmm mm; mmmcmxs .5 .. 
.umsmsd‘ 

E :o_um:_m>m 26E Emsma >3 
9.3 m mc:m_n_E0u mo. E? .635 .. 

EmEtmam- >ucmmLmEm 

147 

._<zO_.Ez 

5.09: Btum 
\J .ZO_._.._.._UOmm< . 

5305 A... uow 
mi .75. :QCt :3... 

. .fi:-m..=..... m.._::. kmfium.r.:€:c: ....I._ 
.wwmmupéfip .r. _.........m 

trutwww ragga... .. .PI... ._.. 1..a 
.m-nfla 

.. 
flux—IIJIHL 

1. ..I 
. 

_ _. a 3.3.3. $.53q mmmzxqu f 
- ....I..$z.m_.....C:_..._ 

—I-.I»JLr1.H-.a 

mac. tag: 3...: uni 

. 
.4. 

5:02 3305. 
._ .25s ”an: 

_% {L 



53m: .25s 

L039; 
:2 #3.:a 

0 
P 

b£o I signage I is.» i... 
a: banana t... 3332". B.» 53:53 

F l on 

p 5 a“ 

unoEEooom 3:25 

RméméNom n.._.> 

$123.80 322mm .393 

.229 . Expats—~35 - 39-... .I 

Dita-bu a: £58“. a... 382... 

o o I 
N 

acoEEouou 2:25 

KNmméNoN 0:2. 

a... asacuvn 

o. 

m— 

an 

148 



56$: .25s 
J L mwm 9a «K 3539.» 332,. .35g Engage- 1... .Eku 

L3 I .356 I .33. I. I .rllrl I .I 

31M ‘. f4 1.] I... i. :I I‘J... 
I IIIr 

.3 Boot; 
. .. 

Sun 33 Esme—u 5:— Eg cacti .glgl lull... all... a a . In .. 5553 n 3 mix: 308....» L53, 5 awry—3%."? 
up... new! "gunman 3N mo mu." a. $321.52. 

k E 5:355. .5... 95! 3533 Hum no an" I guano... .53. 
8.. 

ecu—«£30 3.55 can: .. Q? m. 9.1 sum 55:839. 0.3522. acutau .5? 
R: 5:03!— mu amemw H luuu=luxma unmanag— ucSu L39... 

“,5 I .2 Elisa. mats» Hagan Lo 33¢ a mafia»! in» .15» 

annoy—Egan :55 use I 3.3.6 I we: .l. 

is . Eryn—nu .: 
in»... .II 3 rs: “ion. .3q gnu—Ina III I a 

3... finger»; w M I .5: Hana Ewing R 
F a .l a E. 

2 9 9. 
.9... 8 

B fin 
a: B 

h «- 8" 

u o E? 

E0: 05.8 305580 
5 

I8 I 83.25 ‘ 1...... .I. 
in unafirm: 

"2. 

Sun. anon. issuan— By 

an a» 8n 

n . 8 an 
or 

a..." 
a... E 25.3 5.26 =25 int: gigging ONDN 

.mgnmo: EtoEms— Emma:— 

149 



150 

..q 
'14" r .1113... Tara. 

Wk... 
5.1.}... “Hr-”III: .1 _ ...- il a damn.- 

.. . 
L 

. 
I . r ,_ 

. J .... ... 
h .—-.. ..F f HI :.I, ... 

_ . ...r ...... ... 

l 1.! . - . . . . .... . .T . _ it... .u _ u .. 1.. __ 



5.0m: Etofimz 

$3050 3&0 I 22.»...m 
69...?! 

Ban in 930 nag to? $2.85 :50 Sign :63... ..l. 
I III. 

o a 

D
 

1'- 
8

8
2

8
3

3
3

8
 

mall-l 

'- 
O

 
.—

 
.—

 
85§¢€§E a 3:55.88: Begs... wasfizfififi s ucssssosms .8335 

X. m.mw-o~o~ D._.> X. h..nm-o~o~ 
9.5., 

$3? ”.89 32.33 “:2.q So 

151 



”Lu—UNI *UZOENZ 

5».o 0 
D50 I 

afi:fin....u} - the? ll 

.2 fining.“ .3... >¥n§a .5 
I 

a... 

in: icsgu Eon-an 

uglnliufl. snarl... 
i» 35?... San nanny Mariam 

a 
._.__.I.._ .... I a. 

2 

3." II 

£0353». =E§O 

5:5. I. 
£123» I 193. I... 

:3... Doom. rub. 
a an «8.09 "tying-m 

t... 

.n 

in I 

but» .295 

E
fi

¥
§

3
"

 

3m 2.6m.» Rumpus”. ans; Lama $6 - a: £32.... an 

.. 1 i.§§ cfiitfi. rite . funk: 
lair—- £fl§l§ Sig vii? 

anus"... «a .6 .233: “9.9.... L3.» 
nus-=03? an... was! 3:53. no" mo hm." 3 333.52. 55:3“? no... 9.32 BEE an" 3 man u #9.... 53. Hum 50 330.5 the: 

9.3 a. 9.35: 55.129 gag-Ema “Eta. .5...» 
£55.... an ‘53 n 55.3%.. .533 £259 .39.. 

hfigfifi. 3......» 3535 t. $5.9.” n sanctum, £8 "#9:. 

ms: I 5.55 I 39.»! 
Eu .3. use 3q. ”Sid l I 

_ .. I an 

Em ml... E 

9n 

now 
93.0 3 E336 =23 

anew 

93m 2.5 93. :2...— 

152 



.EwEtmawc DEC 9: E 5.8 
35s mEtmm .6 $805 mfi 23mm 3 8:50 So BEE ucm flwcSoE 33q :55 525 ES. . 

EmEpmwb 3:2m Lo; $938 .6 E20; ncflxm 3 matte? . 

umumw: mm ucm e30; Lwflm 3533 A30 8.. 28 B 23 33¢ ncm mo Eat $95: .993 .859: $05 . 
EE: 9595 ES .5 .9: EwEmumE ms: 85 LE 3223 .u._.n_.m_ E Emsogm . 

umEtwu 23 9.525 wEBwa 8. 9:59: EU. 3.5: .mEBE cm Ewm . 

sma 2: B“— tEEoU “Em 26: #53 5t 33.6 B EwEtwqmt wfi U5 535 new :mfiwu m5 38mg: . 

:8. “55:38 wmu_>._omacm_am330 E 29.3 3.532). 

153 



m8_>._mm >mo_8co .m 
$223 :23: 9:01 .m 

Emu 9525 2.85%: 
.H 

H tms mEmn 
822$ umvcmaxm U5 mam? 

154 



gmmmwsmn. 
0 .550 I 22—83“... I 39:... gl- 

33 can. use 38 as» “Siam 
I 

mm 

2:. 

mcficofifiooam .o coop—39.5 

$m.nm-o~o~ D._.> 

x2? is “5.39. 223 

155 

:50 I Eifi I us.» I. 
.33 .5... Baa use to». 2.2.0u 

nu 

nfiucoEEooom ho 25:23.3 

fimfiwéwom 05:. 



2:52.. 3:0s 

5305 0 

ml 
ii. 

I I. airs-fl..- 

I 

a I 

35a . “:33. - fins-b5!- 

auz. aha-buss” has-n...— a; 

3.33: E351.- 32-2 Bacon 

53.5 I {it—d. ' Sol...— .II 

.5? arenas—tom 3.3:: .952. 

.n 

2.225 :55 .393 

.33 I reign I. wear I... 
nib .1066. hi? 

5...... Eon .1233 
a. 

Ila-I 1 I 
.n 

3.. 
II 

unifiiaufiaou .339 

E 
S
 

ham-5&9? aahfiém 30.n imam—.06..» u 1.... Eek. 

in. I. 

.. [rt CL. i6??? . Eta-rut *1 it In... 51.... 
.Or; .%I£:§ I; .tcazllimnsl 

is»: fl .5 $33: 309..» Sn... 
nafism... nah HEN—m..— flfififl. hm an e.» H 3391930.... .979. 39.. 9:39.. 3:03.»: hm mo an n Hanan... Lat... 

a0...nw.>£a. "mafia E02 
him up 21:3. scalar 23:33.. acmtau Lani 

3:953 95 arm...n_n n Edna. ”can-ma ugh...» 5.5.... 
tad-mu 9.3mm map—USE. mu fifia n. 0553.:— Gfin flanks... 

550 . and - twin. 1.... 

On 

5 

an 

mN 

afifim .293 3230 
cman 

156 



157 

_rl.. 

".._._... 

......)Jh 

...... 3.. ....fi/ 3...“... .fi...§q..§finm $35.54;? ...I. 

_III 
.IIIIL 

... 1.. 

_._ . f . 
J 

I: . . .- 
I_.1I.IIIJT”.... 

H. 
I 

P 

117.44....hr 

.._r._ 

g. 
_. 

. 
igflifl]. _mhfifififig.1§filfinrfir ..3fir ..._; ._._ at... ..mi. 

fifflflfi a... 

.9453... 
1.31.3. 

.._._... ...... 

.... 
.. 

I .

‘

 

..nH
... 



- erg-If hl‘I-‘n ix— 1 ,fi 
_ fluid- 

1 x 



I ‘  . _ . — ' II _ I n 

. A ,. - .— l - -  ' I ‘r-  -..- T." '1‘ 

. | - - ~ r- . . '1 - n: 
I - ‘  I I - l '  K 2 5  f" "-‘ “ I " !  ’.'- ‘ 2  :- ' L 

I I L A ' I  I I -  L ‘  - | . - :  - - >fil' I- n"—’uk-:’W—‘ ii b . -  -'—“ —I 'J’-‘Fl".l.+.‘ - A II‘J 

7 ' ' " ' i—l .  a! I "  —:Ed‘-"-"C‘:I' an w g r a  
-._' .- - . -" . -  -':‘-— _a ' -  ‘-‘f‘——' - p—l _ . ."".-‘-L'r..—- .." ..- :Z'c: 

" " '1 I ‘ ” F H ' E '  "1:13.t 5!? {vi-‘En'gfit: 
. . -  . _ -  i. ! _ I r ' . i . _ l .  . '  Li l lfl l  ' 1 1 . . l - '  .n. _. In. HI-l - ‘ J - P H .  L J . - . " . ~ I . J _ - L I  I: 

1 '_~ " u r -  ._ a - .  —. 
l ‘  l _ ' _ -  a .. 1 . I » ,  - . —  ' - '  1 _. - - _ 1 n .  - L 1  _ 

I II ‘I I. ‘I — "  i 1 - I. __ u -_u ' ' "— 1| ' :Ii— I“l _ l‘ . J 
. .  - . -  .. . , 

- . ‘ —  F J L .  ELI! , I I I .  : r I L— l l ! -  J ?  -I' — - '  2 7 - !  — 't '- ‘ -  . 

- | .  
. I  

159 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital [501312] 
© Copyright 2020 Cleverley & Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Score Rating 

Overall Financial Position 

Performance Drivers 

Market Factors 
Coding & Billing 
Pricing 
Cost Position 
Labor Costs 
Supply Costs 
Service Intensity 

.Non Oesraflng insane 
1923.95t $99.99 ' 
Plant Obsolescence ' 

MIL—- m n m - fi — i fl — fl - H H  " 4 ‘  

Capital Position 

i t  

* *  
i i  
i i i :  
* *  
*izir'k 
* i  
* i i  
i f  

tare 
Hm- 
fi;** 

Fair 

Fair 
Fair 
Average 
Fair 
Good 
Fair 
average 
Fair 
Good 

Average- 
areaééié 

160 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
© Copyright 2020 Cleverlev 8L Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Pruner Memufial Hospital Revenues: 525 - 75 All us. [Hmong] [5013121 Hllllbn [REVIOOZI 

Balance Sheet 
Cash 3|. Cash Equivalents 1, 221, 656 4,138,853 41,464,550 
Accqunts Receivable 8, 768, 411 8,349,149 54 928, 4583 
Total Qqnggg £5615 __ 19, 845 529 _16,4 168, 3714 1249, 746447, __1641 
Net Fixed Assets 12, 224, 144 _25, 468, 376 144, 191, 228 
Invgstments 0 3, 433, 293 642, 914, 666 
161431 9459614354444 4444 39, 261 ,9643 49,189,7194 44 4 43784, 842, 729 
Curran} Lyabilities 6, 9498, 331 9, 329, 1744 69, .3349, 939 
Long Term Debt 6, 648, 741 13,155,379 88, 9349, 713 
Equity 26, 513, 991 26, 445, 935 2426, 3406, 226 
iiicbme Statement " ' 4 
(4554355 Patier34t Reggnue 118, 39414, 4499 2414, 9145, 914 1, 4212, 662, 620 
- Deductions 66, 792, 440 164 ,4243, 331 912, 243, 34749 
Ngt Pgtjgpgfigyeflyg 614, 5949, 969 69, 491, 684 399,499,142 
49494146499639946949696999 _4 1711 721 __ __4 4442, 6.39, 246494 _4 242, 84746, 4791 .. 4 
T01819perati4l4149 Revenue 53 ,319, 74741 $3,139,963 323, 286, 8443 
Total Expenses 52,969,165 51, 882, 512 306,171,928 
ppergting Ingome 341,616 1, 248, 441 17,113,915 
Other Income 4124,1949 4 44323 ,44549 44 - 43, 4162, 4844431 
rie't' In'corrié' 4 465 725 41,525,391 2'6, 265', 747' 

161 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Presser Memorial Hospital 
@Oopyright 2020flmdeyaAssodates. Ail Rightsflaervad. 

fiautaa of Financial. Data 
Sauce of Inpatient Data 

Source of Dumahent Data 
Year of Financial Data 
taé'r étirtaati'e'iit Data 
Year of Outpatient Data 
Financial Wage Inde}; _ 
Inpatient W999 Indg; 
gutpatient Wage Index 
flitIaIIIIIIcIIIIaII Overview 

4 -  . _  w 

Returnm IqiItg_ II_ I 
Economic Va_l_ue Ad_d__ed (DO-D's) 
Fina nciIai Strength Ind91I1I® 
Tet-oi IIMarpitrII _ I 
Spar-1515119 RIIag'gln 
Mqrttet Factors 

Sprain-Rage; :59 . 
Erqoeeled PraIfIit 9r_1 DRSSI SIB 
WIIProfitI on ARCS ‘15 
Market Share at 
Medicaid Days 9‘3" 
Medicare Days 99444 

9:99:29 emporium 99a 4.3 
Mo;!i99id (themes {is 
Chartty Care _% I 
Uncompehsahed Care 'lbI 
Admissions IFram SNF 95 
Revenue Growifiiast gear] 95 
Equivalent DiseharaIes‘" 
Inpatient Equivalent Discharges" 

Dutaatent perpetrate?" 
2-yr Grange In Equivalent Disdtarga'" 

Codini l1 Billing 
953311;; in Ritalin-re 121119;. 
htedierre CM! 
CC! MCECEmre Rate _- 
MSDRGI Fan'Iri Rep9_ri_1';19 R_at_es frIIgIImaIniIa 
MSDRGI Ran-tit}: IRgpartinq Rates: HIeIarIt FaiIIuIre 
”.5939 lien-19g Iitepgttip;1_ Rates- ”93:99; 
”soar; 999991199999 Rates- Major JoIInIIt HIPIIFII'IBIE 
Short StagII IICI‘IrgsIt IRIaiIn 
Short Stay;- Congeaive I-lIea_rt FalirIrrg 

9‘91?n . 39°.“ P3"! 
Overall Short Stay (LDS- 1} I I  
pverali SIII1IoIIrItSt9y (ILQS <13)” 
In pattanIt DutIIIIeIr PIaIyIrIntrIent %I 
Grange InI Relative WtII (SMI) % II I I  
Avg Relative Wt per Outpatient Viit (ISMII) 
l'rIICCI IEnor Rate 99 
lpjettabig Drug_ wittIItIrIt Adntintsh'ation 9i: 
IlIttIId-on ICIatle without Rarent 9t; 
Potential Streeasive Payments 5t 
M4994 5.? .Lae' 
Average ED Payment 
Pricing 
HospIItaIII taIIrgeI Ingex® 

IIIAveraIge CheII'gIeI per new??? Dist-Sarge (CIMI = 1. 0)* 
6W9? CIhIarge pIerI yisit(Rw=I1.'IIJI)f 
Rootigte R99m IRIaIIIe“ 
(most Ito Rayflltllo) * 
NIOII'II- i39vt. PIayns tit» 
MaJ'InJNCharges II 965:) 
DeIdtIIctiIIon Va 

IIIIrIet Patient Revenue per Squivalent Discharge"* 

* A i i  

* fi h t i  

i i i :  

i fi i fi  
i n  
99399 
9 9 9 *  
i i i i i  

attain: 
RI“ 
9 * :  

9 3 x 9 9  
i i fi i i  

*3? 
i i i *  

i i g l fi  
a l t a r  
a t  

Fa__l_r_ 
53L--. 

591'- . . 
felt. . 
Fa?! 

twat-r I o n - I 5 - -  

Ppoeflent 
I499; 

53:395. . 
£44954 
Poor 

Poor 

5"?! . 
914944494 
fall: 
Poor 

Paar 

Po9r 
Fa Ir 

Sxoelent 

594M}! 
Average 

Average 

firm-Hr; Ha- rrl-“tlI 'l- H ”WT: j l  

11911; : .  

Mental-Ia 1:09; RepartI Mediate ICost Rgport Meditate (395! Repart 
Medicare Provider Army's—is & Medium Provider Ahalysis a Mediterra- Provider Ahaiysis ii 

-- Review IMedoar) Review (Medoari _ Refit"? {Manner} 
ggtpatient Analytical Pie {Mtpa’oept Analytical File qJatIenIt Apatytigl file 

2919 2919 got9 
2919 2919 2919 
2919 2019 :ai9 

1_. 9959 ”-0.9911 9.9199 
1'. 6927' 
1.mg 

.192. _- 932.. n.9,, 
$5163. “.155 14.3.3. 
22.3.9 9:19 4.3.99.7 
@fl. -LE  _.$% 
om Lm am i -  m- . m- 

2.3.99 3.9.5.0 41.30 
32.70 15:50 .?§.. 
.EM ”3“ RE. 

'1?:19 '1.t:§° 14.5199 
5 199 91.49 

16.99 19.19 19.99 
69.10 56.79 54:50 
NE 1- § 
3.22.?" 19:59 14:?!) 
ERR 1&9 159 19.911 199 at!" o my LS 
759 9:9 4 
5:459 6.089 19.977 
1,539 2,479 9.1535 
‘Wfi RM? 533 
1 6 . 7 0 1 3 1 1  9.39 

"5:15.“. .2- . 3&9. 
4:29? 14.3??? 1- 51.13 
99:9? 5.9-9.1. 35:21. 
9-9.2 2.29.? 9-9! 
(W? 94?? 9-25. 
.9259 9:?! - 9-3.? 9.94 _9_.o§ 11.95 
M}. .5973”. 5'! 

1.1.-§9 £3.39 13 
59 9. .3359. 

-59-. _ . ._ 32. _ 2-39 
$3.9 . -_2_°_ 13-3?“ 
53:19 4.9.4.5.? 17:!" 
. .9 9:59 2.49 
. .1} .5139- 24.3.9 

1.3.3.921 3:53.393 9:93.31 
224054 "-3213? 0:11?” 

'5'!!! 2:39 2-9.9 
mm 2.m 3% 
. .0 or??? 9-2511. 
32:35.! -?: 99? R904 
362+ 3451 3§9r 

MR EEE ER? 
1.7.9.9 29.9.4? 2.9.399. 

2-3-2. 594. 4.9.4 
.2912 199.4. atria 90.9 323. .395 
3§§ Qfl’ RE? 297 7259 3.59 
$922 9.99 as" 
7,999 9,467 9,959 

alf'ILt-q' 1 1 5 '  ”- 
Hill-Hr l H I v I W I I  

“'11 1. 191.132.6749 

162 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
ammo; 2020 cleveneyg Assnchtes. An nhts gnawed. 

‘ “1.1: IIIIllure-“n .|"4.-L'.'lt-1.I: I l l - “an".. f-  It ' 1  ’ 5  ' lu'tu ._ l s u u p u l .  $311.1; 
“ H i l l !  Ht luul tLHIIWJl ' . ’  

cgtrhfluon 
Hogpltal c_p_5_t lnde_x® Mfg 104.90 1.9.". 
$3392- 593? PEI- “9L“? -.E'PE'EFS‘E {91'}: - .1- 93‘ * t. 5?." 9-3.??- ?slfiif 3-915 _ 
£91395 £39? P3915! (M11937 3.3.? * .-. 59 .9.“ fl- 
Pia-slasa essmnseslt. .. et as" as! 6.4.1: .59. 
E'EEESPPEJQWEEEV __ we 3945 1.1.1.1 
REEL"?! ESE? .1! 3 2*. $313.93. .393 2‘. 3‘1. 
6911m per EiLaleng Lschgrggm“ 3; 33 35 i t  Eigllmt 331 629 . ..QEZ. 

FEES? 615* PFE WW 9W9??? ! * * * .592! 9.13? 9&7 9:955 
fieflfififiefiifififlwm “mm ‘6‘" “W's“ e a a ll Good 6,471 7,932 7.3g: 
mic gin-h , :3 - . 1.: '. g 

"9.! 3321595 . m  ...91‘?! 5'3- --. . t" 1* f??? 1.9}25’121. “55?.“ @1235 
”3'14”“ PEI Elma- MEET * * * 1* * Wt” ..Qflt- “255:7” ...-459 
Phyfidan gag! p_e_r Equlgalent lillgcllarqej'“ i: [gag . llggggf .g§2. _ 393 .. 

..SEL'IY. FBI. "5*. - _ . ...... * * * * * FEM 2 1 % ? ? ?  He??? 
”“19? W9? it at t e e Baal“ 0:01.. - 134.9 _ 1’3“?“ 
’sll'pgly Coal: " ..1 ’ . . 
Avg Fifififigcy Cost per Medicare pgscllerge (gar: 1__._o) g 3* * gmge sg; 547 gg 
Avg Medical Supply Cost per Medicare Discharge (m1 = 1.0) a a a a Good 419 577 733 
145053247 malaise m. @5531. gait 
Mspgg 170 Sgpplv cos; 4 Pour 8,531 5,5_7g saga 
Mgpli6244 Supplycgiai mg {1.94; glgls 
Mspgg 3gg gupply Cos; a 3: a a a giggly; 1,938 glagp gggg 
Msprig Egg Fgggggcy_ (East a g Fglr 733 gages gag 
MSDRG 603 fligrglggywst k t l-‘gl; 935 31; 76g 
Mgpng 39g Plagugy Clio; a e Flag; gig 591 {514 
M 696 Hannah? 66a in it it Average 548 515 542 
Sam "‘ Intensity 
fig” Gag}; .figl'MedigagL DLscl1_a_rg;a_ ((15n 3 :9?“ g gggg __ g3 egg 43:7 
Avg Eadlplogy Cgst pg“ Mgdlgge _Dlacha;gg (gal =_1_._q1_" 33.!" 1i 9; 1g gelling. 1‘2 312 _ 311 
W PEG”? ... 1.1_ fl ... -. _. - it. 2 it “19999 3:9! 3&9 3:?! 
Apcllgly 3205! per Medigg Disq'sarge .(CMI = __1. D__)_* i k * Avefage gggg g,O_3D_ fill-l 
flan Opanting Income _ . 
pays'éfi'sfi glam. a a a Ave-age “g“ _19_. ' g1; 
W t .  Income; lpveslmgnt 96 gig 2&9 2.39 
Portfolio Ir; Equities 9g WA NgA MIA 
lniutmant Effldnncv 
gig.” in ,aa *3 Egg 6; 52 5; 
Imaginary} Net pgent Revenue 9a 13 g. e e e Begum; 0.70 349 g 
Revel-me} Nat Fbied Met: * a a 11 * Healer“ 4.37 2.51 2.55: 
pleat opagluoenge 
Average Age oi_ Mgrig _ a a fgl; . 1_7_.gg 1_;.1_9 11.59 
g-vr Chargge In Net Fixed my: 1 1|: 1; 1k Gppgl _ 9:50 4:69 -1_.20 
Capflfl Position . . 
{my Tags; nEIjgtv 5g 1. g e ggegge 2539 3 3 9 . 1 3 3 9  
6% 905.! 95.59%! '5? * * FE! E-E'? 5:9? 5-20 
M W  Eat?“ It * a $99.94: 3:49. 3.183.. 5 . 
Dehtl Financing 5g 11 11 1; Ava-alga 3g.59 42.60 39.89 

163 





25.33.... 85.8.9. 5.6.9.3». Sufism 8331?. 233.5 $32.3 cumin: $33.3 $33.2. 
- 

“9.8%..” 93.33.... fimfitfi R336... $552.... $53.... 333.2 «$68.3 @863... 819...: 

#3.. mm...» 

manna: 85.3.... 833.3 353...: 858.2 “3.83.. 839.2 anion... «858d mafia..." 

$33.3 2.3%.... 35.3....” mafia...“ 338.... 3183 mamas... “3.3... «Rama... 33$." $3.3 BN8. 
gamma: Eugmafi 3...:d 
833.. Same» 33.3 $d 83%.. 53%.... 

333.. 812.3 fitmmmfl made”... «8.8... “no.8... ~33... «Rama... - 
«.533 

mama...” 9263.3 mama... magma. manuamm 813“...” 33%.”. 333.". 211mm...“ 33.3... 

332.. 33%.. ENE...” :55». 83.3 $3.... $33 Stun anus...” was...” 
$.13... 339.. 3...”... 
mm~...u.. and... can... mafiafl 332 36.8. 22.... $3.: mafia mas”. 

mam... «3.3.. 35.8 33.: an}... 53. 33.3 mmm.mm~ 25mm 339 
wwwfi mums... fin? ~34: 

5.5 23.3 55% 35... mag “mm...“ 3...... 8a.... «3.: «85 
31mm 83mm." 83..” 

«gamma 83$ 33... ENE mama... 832. 
name... 

“Exam... $23.2 Ramada «8.33 :35... 2183 Ewan»... Emit... mafia... 83%.... condom... Ragga. macaw gamma.” 33:3 23...... gain 25.3.... 353 3.53 
395.2 mkfimtwu mmmgcfi mango...” .mmmmma gamma “3.33 333.. 9.38.... 8&3...» 3...? 3...a Sammm 

magma...” 83:. mafia." $393 8...»...m ~3§fl2 3...m «$33 83.x... 35H.” 

anew anon 33 has anon muou anon was «new 53 
383E 

5.00: .UtOEmZ 

.owmoi 

Hanna =30... 

882. £2.35... .50... 

£8 «5:2... 85...: 

E. 53.... .516 

an: 38 3:2... «.88 an... 
«mung—u... 53.9.... 

mcoz.m_=3a Exam. .8. mm: 3 an 32:... 35532.... 
20.22.38» .338. .8 “:2...n .23.. .5 123.5: flea—manuu fin... E... 53 

«coins-yum .§n8 .6... an: 3 an 33...... 35.3.55 :23 .2... sun“. 
5.3.... 29.5.. $2 .3... 3 3 tau—E... 533. 

on... 8 an 3:5.— 333 

383 «:955 .30... 
an: 3 mm 3...... Hanna .3 :0.t EuEa 

339.. .25.. WE... u..._u_fi..._ 
3235. 2.2.2... 

9.3... 9.2.. 5.2.3.... 
8:352... 

.850 
“£30 

$5» 
Easin 9.23:. “.338 5.3..— u_5..fio__m 

£560.53 .25.. 3.3.2.5 uufififim 
333.33. 228.... E... 8.25 uuacofiaamE 

8.9.9583. 3:33... .5m ac... 
3.583 2562.35 .8 m8=a§=< 

339.3"... 
flcmEfigfi 5.3 .55 

$53.33.. 5.5 can Emu 
flame... ENE—.0 

pump..." 35.3 

‘1‘ A" 

165 



m8.mm~.$ 838.3 Shannan. ufi.§m...m 833:. $3.35 fidunam 29.3.3 um~.s..m..~ 9.38.3 Ewfiav Rwanda... 83mm...“ waning 83$...” outnumfi 3m.2.m...~ 3.33.3 «8.33. 96.51: madman mmo.mm...m~ 853...“ B...$n.3 533$ $13....“ humid: $23.3 $38... :39...» 
3...“... 

w......$....... 9363.» .862... 2&8»... $33.... 33...... “R63... $133 $33... 23...... 

. 83...... 83.8 832.. 8&2»... 83%.. 

3.62.3 flak...“ «3.33. gamma. magma. 93.....d 838.3 23.3.... 89%”... Hams... 
Enema.“ 

. 33% 
.333: 335...... madam... Kain... 33$... gamma... «$.32 83.... 83.... mag. 

$1.83 SEQ... ”Hanna 83%... 83mm... maa.emm.m £303 .842.” 8m...mm.~ R38.” $33 93.3.. 53.3. 83.... Egon 8..m 8......3 08.03 833 83% 98.2“ 8......” 2......" 83.... 08.3 3&8 98.3 2.3” 8...: macaw man 3“.“ 2.3 - 
$13 

213...” 3...”... 8.33.“ 8......» 53:3 madam ”2.8.. 93.8” 838 83...... £35. 8.....q 83...... 3......» 2......» «3.3m mama... 33.... 3...... 33mm 
$.38.“ 33%.” “when...“ momma... 35...... 9.8.3. 9.3.3 3.8.. 8%... 5.43 

8...: 
maxi...” #135 8......8 «$.83 “3.3...” flag... 33$ 8d 3%.... «$.25 

93... mag 33 Ban anon mean «new .38 «EN :0" 
Bio... 

5.3.1.2. am: .3... 63.303. .0 30:... autumn—u 
.35....3: .39... 

gnu—mo... «cz .30... 
tButuwflcz 

a... «33.3 .3353... 
32.»... 3......» c. .5869... «oz 

333 pm: 

93:95. 9.23:. 3.82 5.3... u...E.uw.w $2.3m... 

33....3... .50... 

Eaton $2.3 mm». 6.5.3330 3a.... .355 
5:5... “5...... .0 .0... .30.. E.uu.m..o._ 

33.....5... .050 

32.3.... 2.8.6 .5...» 2.0.3330 3.3. .833 .o mustang Eats 
5m... 5.3.9.... .0 53.0... HEEU 

magma 323... 303.63 
35...... .5...»m 
3552...... .96.. >592...“ 33......8 

to 9.... 2...... .528... 
mm.......~._ .9322 .2... =23... 3...q 

$35.9. 5.33.3.5 
magma flan—3...... 

3.5.3.. 50...... 
«3...... 

Hwflp—m Ouflafim 

5.0m: _U..0Emz ‘10 .mmwOLQ at... 

166 



.0305 

33.3.2 8~.mlm~.m 
3.3% magma $2.95 

393%... 3133 82.3 3...... mm Eh... 2.8... 5.. 

38.8.: 
$33.30.. mcofizfibcon. no man: - - - 83% - $3... 2...! £3...“ «and? “5.55.28 .336 

«3......q Engage“. so 82 can 9.2.3.55 
Enemamu ofifi m3. 333 $33." 33.2.3 R33.“ 8.....81... .54....” anaemm 38.815 .538 9.33 322...... 3.6 $22.2 3 $95 

83%. ”3...... has... “3.3.... 9.1.5.. B38 35% mmm.m..m 2.38 Nada... .2. 4323.3. 2.5.5. 2:535: .33. 
. €3.m flan... mac—~32 ucom 

3&3 81% $33. 22......t 
33.8 33.5 3.8a: 3235 22.3.58 55o E... meagre..."— 

fimmfi. .33.: 3.50 o. 3...... 2.2.358”. 
8.3v $3.3. 68%. $28.... no... :5 
«3.9. 33.. Ema... 35.5.. ".2... Eu 

ASN.9... 83m Ema: 8.... #3.... Bo... 8.8.3 83...... and...“ "5...... .o 3.3.... E. .32. 53 
38.3... 3.4%. 55...... 39.3. 3.3%. .8~.~m. 85...”: 38.3 6.8.”... 38...... may...“ use... 
8.33 hams. “8.8. 83: 39.3 3...... En... mm; 33 an... m... 8c. 25.3.; 
23% a$.m..w $33. 33% 3.2.... $32 SEQ $3.3... $3.2 5&8 22.28.. E... 85.5.52. 5. Sneak 

3.....mmmfi 2.32.“ 9.3%“. 9.3.... 33...“... fififla «magma «3.3 33...... $3.53.: 
028.... Esp—o3 

madmmam 23.3mm Rm.~8.~m $33.2. 2.38.3 “3.3.“... ~3.$m....m $5.33.". 83.8.8 magi: 32...... 9.553 .28. 
58.2... :33; 9:33.. awn... REE. mama. $33.. .333 $38 8mg». .25 

mugged 33m...” .3384 magma Swat... mag...“ 23......“ «$53.. $33; $38 “.35. E... 333 
umm.mm.. 92.3.. “2.3m 8&3.“ $3.1m «3.3“ “3.9% «3.3. Sada 33$ 3...... E... 35...: 

92.8.. $3...“ $18M mama» .5.m was” 3.3% 333 2.3.... $3..." 3:235? 2... £32.. 
gamma.“ 333..“ 02.3.3 #38.“ 55.5%.. Sada; 53%.. 8mg.“ 83...”; 3&2... 5.5.92.3 

Scan... 9.33 53.0% 33...... $3.... “3.2.. 3.3... 3.8.. 8...v «5.8... $55: 
Rama $35 Ema...” 33...” ESE 3».m Naomm ”3?... $3.... Show... 8.5.3... 

«2.8.x sigma 05.8.... $.85 .5335 535% ~m....mm~.m £33... gamma.” 33$.” 3:33 
Nummma 53$... flung... 8N8”... 2335 “Siam $32.... ..8...$.~ Swim.” aqua...” .823 3.2.... 
$183 www.mmms 5.3%... $3.93.“ 358.“ .mm.m.....m $33.... H355... $1.3m swanm .8. iconic... 
Siam... mSSN... “REE $5.35 332$ ~m¢.~o~.m «.35.? $32.... Sigma m8.m..m.m BEES 3.83:5 

39:3” 899.....2 mm~....m~.m~ Enadm 3.55.2 $38...." hogan...“ 83.33 magma...” 33..a 3...... E... 35...... 
mom—hon..."— “5:29.30 

«.333... 3.33.3 Emfimam «333.9. 8933.. Susana mhqnmfi “8.33m Nfiimam mom.o$.m~ $23.... Enema... .38 
310% Sun...“ 3&3... $38 .8t Eng... “8.8m Rafi... $5.9m“ $32 .25 
fidfihfi 333.. 2.5.2 93...; 5.3 .233 ENS... magma mama Nam 35...“. - wfinm mEEmPE 03:3... :5 0.22m 3303.39.35 
83% 83mm 8~.nmm mmmamm “3.3m 35.8 can: 318.. ”3.8... 55...... “.55.... .28... £39. 2535 
mmmfinmam qm¢.mm..mm anagram mmm.o-....e $33.... $38.“. ogmmofim mnmfimam 838...” 8.68...” 
.52.. 9.... .3 833... .o a... 35.5.. 2%.... “a... 

33:23. 9.5230 
g a main. 
an. 

a a flaw, 
ml”! 
% mm... 33%.... 

accmunhUn-O fin. unwF—flumum 

5.0m... EtoEmz \‘J 
4" 

167 



70,000,000 
60,000,000 
50,000,000 
40,000,000 
30,000,000 
20,000,000 
10,000,000 

0 

16,000,000 
14,000,000 
12,000,000 

10.000.000 
8,000,000 
6,000,000 

4,000,000 
2,000,000 

0 

-2,000,000 
4,000,000 

20.0% 

15.0% 

10.0% 

5.0% 

0.095 

-5.0% 

40.0% 

2011 

201 1 

{‘5 Prosser 
L l  Memorial Health 

Financial Malysis Graphs 

Net Patient Revenue 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 

Operating Income 

.‘ , .  :01:  .-. .E .. .'I In }?  :015 J‘I-E-I 

Operating Margin 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

‘20201‘5 projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 

2020* 

Huh" 

2020‘ 

168 



i“ (J Prosser 
I Memorial Health 

Financial Analysis Graphs 

Labor + Benefits % of Net Revenue 

70.0% 

60.0% _..._...._.._ 

50.0% 

40.0% 

30.0% 

20.0% 

10.0% 

0.0% 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020* 

Benefits as a % of Labor 
30.0% 

25.0% 

20.0% 

15.0% 

10.0% —----- 

5.0% ---- —-- 

0.0% 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

FTE '5 

350.00 

. 300.00 

E 25000 . - .__ 

200.00 Y 

150.00 

100.00 ‘ 

50.00 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020“I 

I All Purchased Fl'Es I Employed Provider Fl" Es I Employed Staff Fl'Es 

*202015 projected based on August Year To Date Pedarmance. 
169 



250000 

200000 

ISDJXND 

10m000 

5&000 

100,000 
90,000 
00,000 
70.000 
60,000 
50.000 
40.000 
30300 
20,000 
10,000 

25lfi$ 

201fl0 

151B€ 

100% 

510% 

(b Prosser 
J Memorial Health 

Flnancial Analysls Graphs 

Net Operating Revenue per FTE 

2011 

FTHII 
2011 

010% - 

2011 

I d  I 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2013 2019 

Labor Cost per FTE 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 

Long-term Debt to Total Assets 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2013 2019 

*2020 Is pmjected based on August Year To Date Pedannance. 

2020* 

2020‘ 

2020‘ 

170 



IMlOfi 

35106 

30.0% 

25105 

ZOJIE 

liflfi 

Lfljflé 

&0% 

0115 

000% 

SUIBG 

40£HE 

300% 

20106 

100% 

00% 

40.0% 

SEIHE 

300% 

2SIHi 

201H£ 

fliD% 

100% 

10% 

00% 

2011 

2011 

2011 

.‘ 
{J Prosser 

( Memorial Health 
Financial Analysis Graphs 

Total Debt to Total Assets 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 201? 2013 2019 

Total Debt to Total Equity 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Long—term Debt to Total Equity 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2019 

l"21920 is projected based on August Year To Date Pedormance. 

2020‘ 

2020' 

2020‘ 

171 



(‘5 Prosser 
‘ 9 ’  Memorial Health 

Flnanclal Analysis Graphs 

Days Cash on Hand 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020‘ 

250.00 

200.00 

150.00 

100.00 

50.00 

[ Cash Flow to Total Assets 

2011 . 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020' 

"I1 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 201? 2018 2019 202 0‘ 

Net Days in AIR 

80.00 
70.00 

50.00 

40.00 

30.00 

20.00 

10.00 

0.00 

”“2020 Is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 

172 



,‘ (J Prosser 
4 Memorial Health 

Financial Analysis Graphs 

Return on Assets 

25.0% 

20.0% 

15.0% 

10.0% 

5 - %  . - 0.056 

-5.09i 

40.0% 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020‘ 

Current Ratio 

6.00 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 201? 2018 2019 2020' 

Return on Equity 

35.0% 

30.096 

25.056 

20.0% 

15.0% 

10.0% 

0.0% - 
5.095 

-1 D. 0% 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2013 2019 2020* 

*2020 Is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 

173 



16,000.000 
14 000,000 
12,000,000 
10,000,000 
3,000,000 
6,000,000 
4,000,000 
2,000,000 

0 
-2,000,000 
4,000,000 

20.0% 

15.0% 

10.096 

5.0% 

0.0% 

6.0% 

40.0% 

7,000,000 
5,000,000 

5,000,000 
4,000,000 
3,000,000 
2,000,000 
1,000,000 

0 
0,000,000 

., 
(J Prosser 

l Memorial Health 
Flnanclal Analysis Graphs 

Net Income 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020'I 

Total Margin 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2019 2020‘ 

Capital Spend 

L411 1H: 2! J - I: .-2 Ir'f'u.‘ £016 In] ' 2010 3'. Ii' .".1.".' 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Pedarman ca. 

174 



3,000,000 

2,500,000 

2,000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

0 

40.00 

20.00 

P‘ .  (J Prosser 
( Memorial Health 

Financial Analysis Graphs 

Depreciation 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2013I 1018 2019 2020‘ 

Average Age of Plant 

__._-_—_____-_-____. o oo 
- 2012 2013 2014 2015 2m? 2018 2015 2020* 

-20.00 

40.00 

60.00 

-80.00 

45,000,000 
40,000,000 
35,000,000 
30,000,000 
25,000,000 
20,000,000 
1 5,000,000 
1 0,000,000 
5,000,000 

0 

Net Worth 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020‘ 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Pedermance. 

175 



16,000,000 

10,000,000 
1 2,000,000 

10,000,000 

8,000,000 

6,000,000 
4,000,000 

2, 000,00 0 
0 

0,000,000 
41,000,000 

?0.000,000 

00,000,000 

50,000,000 

40,000,000 

30,000,000 

. 20,000,000 

10,000,000 

0 

20% 

1596 

10% 

5'56 

2.60 

1.40 

1.20 

1.00 

030 

0.60 

0.40 

0.20 

0.00 

Prosser 
Memorial Health 

Financial Analysis Graph: 
0 

Excess of Revenues ever Expenses 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020* 

Total Operating Expenses 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 201? 2018 2019 2020‘ 

Net Patient / Operating Expense Growth Percentage 

2016 201? 2018 2019 

I TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 9% GROWTH 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2020‘ 

I NET PATIENT REVENUE 95 GROWTH 

2011 

Medicare Case Mix Index 

mlflTfll 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2010 2019 2020‘ 

*20201‘5 projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 





1OI1I2020 

VISION 
Patients 
Employees 
Medical Stafi‘ 
Quality 
Services 
Financial L 1 . 5 1 - r = '  

Om Char! 2-26-2020.dmwio 

Pross e r film 
Memorial Health 5‘3"“ 

PmoteTeamwork 
Integrity 
Respect 

To Improve the health afour community. Excellence 

-—— Medlcal Staff Services 
Credentialing 

— Medical Staff Recmltment 

chm Eucu'flw Melt 
ml. Marla 1cm: 

178 



., 
{J Prosser 

( Memorial Health 
Statistics 

Projected 
Description 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Admissions 
Hospital 673 656 678 627 838 887 982 894 992 966 
Swing Bed 89 84 76 127 169 142 145 132 141 123 
Nursery 343 299 275 174 325 379 389 388 439 480 

Patient Days 
Hospital 616 746 935 1,089 1,108 1,195 1,533 1,334 1,595 1,544 
Swing Bed 1,168 1,183 849 1,669 2,427 2,170 2,069 2,049 2,160 1,632 

Nursery 581 496 465 300 523 552 631 601 684 669 

Average Daily Census 
Hospital 2 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 
Swing Bed 3 3 2 5 7 6 6 6 6 4 
Nursery 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 

Case Mix Index 
Hospital 0.80 0.83 0.83 0.95 0.63 0.94 0.99 0.88 0.89 0.89 
Medicare 1.28 1.31 1.38 1.10 0.84 1.30 1.27 1.14 1.16 1.16 

length of Stay 
Hospital 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 2 2 
Swing Bed 13 14 11 13 14 15 14 16 15 13 
08 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 1 

Adusted Patient Days 9,642 10,042 8,742 12,419 15,479 14,410 14,564 16,480 19,494 16,311 

Surgeries ~ Inpatient 236 228 240 186 238 158 261 228 226 249 
Surgeries - Outpatient 709 640 673 901 1,025 1,094 1,160 1,176 1,192 869 
Total Surgeries 945 use 913 1,097 1,253 1,252 1,421 1,404 1,113 

Births 343 299 275 174 325 379 389 388 439 480 

Laboratory Tests 123,226 114,348 89,184 97,529 96,612 104,523 105,247 116,050 132,610 135,485 

EKG Tests 1,603 1,686 2,600 4,227 4,647 3,396 3,046 3,202 3,767 4,196 
Cardiopulmonary Tests 23,300 18,316 7,717 6.210 6,880 8,442 9,886 7,866 7,618 6,428 
Diagnostic Imaging Exams 14,923 14,013 14,341 17,798 18,756 19,734 17,632 19,786 23,484 25,068 
Pharmacy Items 102,581 108,966 101,479 138,024 217,192 706,926 713,914 664,546 884,229 878,451 
Nutritional Services Meals 16,533 14,444 13,756 19,070 24,140 37,383 45,395 62,602 32,783 40,913 

laundry Pounds 144,026 145,028 143,494 164,286 196,779 192,177 204,741 213,144 217,818 207,098 
Ou tpatient Special Procedures 1,051 1,250 1,523 2,43 1 2,047 1,721 1,920 2.705 2,688 2,802 
The rapt; Clinic Illiisits 9,692 10,128 11,619 13,900 15,924 16,148 16,894 18,589 19,289 14,877 

Emergency Department Visits 8,293 8,242 8,004 9,237 9,558 9,877 10,165 11,162 12,190 9,858 
Hospitalists Visits 0 0 0 0 2,956 2,915 3,587 3,551 3,410 2,742 
EMS Trips (w. CPP) 2,000 2,001 1,832 2,612 2,825 3,030 2,849 2,842 2,791 2,307 
Benton City Clinic Visits 8,165 6,620 8,478 10,797 11,913 11,906 8,734 10,287 11,493 10,466 
Prosser Specialty Clinic 1ifislts 7,198 8,317 6,900 8,605 9,316 8,370 9,709 10,459 11,404 11,136 

Presser Clinic (w. Dec Health} Visits 0 0 0 2,038 2,764 2,984 4,808 9,854 11,522 12,876 
Comprehensive Pain Mgmt Clinic Visits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 441 955 722 
Grandview Clinic Visits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,812 7,395 
Prosser Women's Health 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,627 6,992 
Outpatient HoSpital Visim 40,485 40,154 42,739 49,652 51,581 52,561 52,532 91,064 109,275 109,839 

Labor Full-Time Equivalent 
Employed Staff FI'E's 214.34 204.73 186.45 209.65 219.65 241.57 243.20 253.32 262.90 260.09 

Employed Provider FI'E's 9.94 17.96 9.59 11.72 12.70 11.30 12.21 17.69 27.01 26.10 
ALI. EMPLOYEE F‘I'E's 224.28 222.69 196.04 221.37 232.35 252.87 255.41 271.01 289.91 286.19 

Outsourced Therapy FTE's 10.96 10.96 10.96 12.96 13.90 15.31 15.11 16.15 16.87 16.35 
Contracted Staff FTE's 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.39 4.60 8.03 9.72 3.68 4.11 4.13 

Contracted Provider FI'E's 3.85 2.99 5.64 4.54 4.61 5.64 5.64 9.18 5.91 5.71 
ALI. PURCHASED FTE'S 21.81 20.95 23.60 24.89 23.11 28.98 30.47 29.01 26.89 26.19 

179 



,“ «J 5509.75.25" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Total Admissions 

1,800 
1,600 
1.400 
1,200 
1.000 

800 
600 
400 
200 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

IHospital - Med Surg ISwing Bed 003 

Total Patient Days 

5,000 
4,500 
4,000 
3,500 
3,000 
2,500 
2,000 
1,500 
1,000 

500 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

lHospital Med Surg ISwing Bed ' 0 0  

Average Daily Census 

14.0 
12.0 
10.0 

8.0 
6.0 
4.0 

2.0 

0.0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

lHospital ISwingBed IOB 

*2020 Is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
180 



P ‘  «J $232.?" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Case Mix Index 

1.2 

1.0 

0.8 

0.5 

0.4 

0.2 

0.0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017I 2018 2019 2020’ 

I Hospital 

Length of Stay 

20.0 
18.0 - 
16.0 
14.0 
12.0 
10.0 
8.0 
6.0 
4.0 
2.0 
0.0 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

I Hospital I Swing Bed .08 

Adjusted Patient Days 

25.000 

20,000 

15,000 

10.000 

5.000 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
181 



‘ 0 H0932?" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Surgical Services - Procedures 

1,600 

1,400 

1,200 

1,000 

300 

600 

400 

200 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

I Surgeries - inpatient ISurgeries - Outpatient 

Surgical Room Minutes 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020* 

ISurgeries - Inpatient lSurgeries - Outpatient 

Births 

600 

500 

400 

300 

200 

100 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020‘ 

I""2021?! is praiected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
1 82 



,‘ 1.} flfifiifi" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

La 00 ratory Tests 

160,000 

140,000 

120,000 

100,000 - 

30,000 
50,000 

40,000 
20,000 

0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2010 2012 2010 2019 2020* 

Impatient [Outpatient 

EKG Tests 

5,000 
4,500 
4,000 
3,500 

3,000 

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

Impatient Inutpatient 
Note: No data pflarto 2013 

Cardiopulmonary Tests 

12,000 

10,000 

0,000 _ 

5,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020‘ 

. I Inpatient I Outpatient 
Note: No data prior to 2013 

*202015 projected based on August Fear To Date Pedarmance. 
1 83 



P‘s Prosser 
L l  Memorial Health 

Service line Analysis Graphs 

Diagnostic Imaging Exams 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

O 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2019 2020* 

I Inpatient lUutpatient 

Pharmacy Items 

1,000,000 

800,000 

600,000 

400,000 

200,000 

0 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

-200.000 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
1 84 



70,000 

60,000 

50,000 

40,000 

30,000 

20,000 

10,000 

0 

250,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

50,000 

2011 

2011 

20212 

2012 

"I 1.} $5832.?" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Nutritional Services Meals 

2013 2014 2015 2016 201? 2013 

Laundry Pounds 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

*2020 Is projected based on August Year To Date Pedormance. 

2019 

2019 

2020* 

2020* 

185 



2:; Prosser 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Outpatient Special Procedures 

201 1 2012 2013 201d:l 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

3,000 

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

Total Therapy Clinic Visits 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017l 2018 2019 2020* 
0 

lPhysicalTherapy lSpeechTherapy [OccupationalTherapy 

Emergency Dapartment Visits 

14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

3,000 

6,000 

4,000 

2,000 

0 . . 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

‘2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
186 



(:8 Prosser 
Memorial  Health 

Service line Analysis Graphs 

Hospitalists Visits 

4.000 

3,500 

3,000 

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

Note: No data Marta 2015 

Emergency Medical Services 
3,500 
3,000 
2,500 
2,000 
1,500 

1,000 
500 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

I AMBULANCE ICPP 

Total Benton City Clinic Visits 

14,000 

12,000 

10,000 

8,000 

0,000 

4,000 

2,000 

o 
201 1 2012 2013 2014 201 5 2016 201? 2018 2019 2020* 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Fedormance. 
’l 87 



"Q 

Q U832?" 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Total Presser Specialty Clinic Visits 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2019 2020* 

Total Presser Clinic Visits 

14,000 
12,000 
10,000 
3,000 
6,000 
4,000 
2,000 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

I Presser Clinic Visits IOccupational Health Visits 

Total Grandview Clinic Visits 

7,500 
7.400 
7,300 
7,200 
7,100 
7,000 
5,900 
6,800 
5,?00 
0,500 
6,500 

2019 2020* 

Note: Grandview C‘iirric opened January 20.19 

*2020 is projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 
188 



I25 Prosser 
Service Line Analysis Graphs 

Total Women's Health Clinic Visits 

3,000 

7,000 
5,000 
5,000 
4,000 
3,000 
2,000 
1,000 

O . 

2019 2020* 
Note: Women's Ream: Clinic apenedAprfl 2019 

Total Outpatient Visits 

120,000 

100,000 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020* 

*2020 ls projected based on August Year To Date Performance. 

189 





114 ‘8 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Health Foundation 

LL} ‘ M r  I: _, I ‘ m - “ E L  . 

Elf-t5 ew Hos 
' % " I . 

. _ . .  1 "  
I I I ‘  P 

h- 

fl. 

3r“; 

prosserhealthfoundation 

191 



Introduction 
For more than 70 years, Prosser Memorial Health (PMH), a rural, 25-bed critical access 
hospital, has served Prosser and its surrounding communities. After years of enthused 
community-led fundraising, PM H's rich history began in 1945 when construction crews broke 
ground on the 19-bed facility. Two years later, on December 26, 1947, Prosser Memorial 
Hospital opened, dedicated to the memory and service of World War II veterans. 

This modest, small—town hospital blossomed into a community-focused center for exceptional 
medical care serving thousands of patients every year. Our care and provider base scope 
includes family medicine, advanced surgical care, laboratory, state-of—the-art diagnostic 
imaging, obstetrics, and emergency care. 

Today, the hospital's facilities are dated and not fully compliant with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. Building a new facility is a more cost-effective approach than renovating the 
hospital. We have land for a new hospital. We plan to sell the existing grounds and facility. 

Our Mission 
Prosser Memorial Health will improve the health of our community. 

Our Vision 
We will become one of the top 100 Critical Access Hospitals in the country through the 
achievement of the following Pillars of Excellence. 

Our Six Pillars of Excellence 
#1 Patient Loyalty: PMH will provide outstanding customer service, aspiring to treat those we 
serve the way they want to be treated. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher. 

#2 Medical Staff Development: PMH will respond to the Medical Staff concerns and needs in a 
timely manner, pursue initiatives in collaboration with our Medical staff and ensure the 
availability of the appropriate providers for those we serve. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual Medical Staff satisfaction rate of 90% or 
higher. 

#3 Employee Development: PMH will encourage and provide for the ongoing development of 
our employees. We will provide an atmosphere that values our employees and promotes: 

«- Open Communication. 
Competitive wages and benefits. 
Selection and retention of effective, caring personnel. 
Utilization and deveIOpment of talent throughout the organization. 
On—going education. 
Employee recognition. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual employee satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 

192 



#4 Quality: PMH will develop and maintain a system of continuous improvement which is 
incorporated into the daily work of every employee and Medical Staff member. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve an iVantage score of 49 or higher. 

#5 Services: PMH will develop and maintain appropriate facilities, technology and services to 
meet the needs of those we serve that includes building a replacement facility. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve a 50% market share of our great community for those services we 
provide. 

#6 Financial Stewardship: PMH will continue to strengthen its financial stewardship position to 
enhance the ability to develop new services, obtain needed technology, modernize facilities, 
recruit physicians and ultimately ensure long-term viability. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve an annual total margin of 6% or more. 

PMH Stats & impacts 

. Major Employer 
400+ Full Time Employees 

m 

4.4—: $35,300,000 Salaries & Wages 
u Compensation multiplies throughout the area spent on groceries, dining, retail 

goods, serwces, vehicles, and more! 

Hospital Admissions 
Category Growth 

Hospital Admissions and outpatient services have consistently increased since 
2015. infant births have increased by nearly 24%.. Adjusted patient days that 
include inpatient and outpatient services combined have more than doubled 
since 2013. We have grown our active medical staff 66% since 2017. 

All statistics are 2020 budget or annualized. 

193 



About the Foundation 
The Prosser Memorial Health Foundation pursues, receives, and administers donations and 
gifts for PMH. The Foundation supports and enhances healthcare for the Lower Yakima Valley 
and the surrounding region. The Foundation assists with new equipment purchases, funding for 
scholarships, building projects, and other organizational advancements. 

The Foundation has several designated funds. The Wayne Hogue Capital Fund will “host” gifts 
for the new hospital. 

‘ The Wayne Hogue Capital Fund: Financial support for 
staff training, hospital equipment, and facility 
improvements, including building the new hospital. 

Wayne, a generous philanthropist and businessman, 
leads by example. As a past Chairman of our Board of 
Commissioners, he used his many resources and 
talents to improve the high-quality healthcare we enjoy 
today. 

Wayne believed for fundraising, "You just have to ask." 
The Hospital and Wayne's objectives are well—aligned for the best options and treatment with 
advanced technology and resources delivered in an inviting environment. 

Community support from businesses, individuals, and foundations for the new hospital will be 
administered through this fund. 

Our Community Need 
Before the COVlD-19 pandemic, PMH grew at a rate of 10% each year for the last four years. We 
have expanded service lines, purchased new equipment, and added clinics and providers to our 
team in response to community needs. Today it is clear we must continue to grow and respond 
to the increased demand for high-quality, low-cost healthcare in the communities we serve. 

Our patient count from both east and west of Prosser continues to grow. Patients have changed 
their healthcare provider because they trust PMH, and they know they will receive excellent care 
with dignity, respect, and optimism. 

Our current facility is from a post-World War II era with many renovation and expansion rounds 
to stay current. Unfortunately, we have run out of room to expand the hospital at its current 
location. The facility is not ADA compliant and struggles to meet state and federal regulations for 
hospitals. 

The hallways are narrow, operating rooms are too small to contain all the new equipment needed, 
with no private rooms for inpatient care. There is a lack of parking and treacherous winter 
conditions make navigating the hill upon which the hospital sits challenging. 

194 



The Way Forward 
This is How We Care is not merely a PMH slogan; it is our way of life. We are committed to 
delivering high-quality healthcare. To serve our community now and well into the future, we plan 
to build a new hospital off l-82 and Gap Road. PMH purchased 33 acres there in 2017. 

Since 2017, we have worked closely with the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
on the extensive application process to secure a loan. The USDA approved our pre-application 
in 2019, which included a site visit to our current hospital. They agreed, PMH requires a new 
facility to care for patients. 

With the USDA loan PMH will not bring a levy or bond to voters to fund this project. The 
architect and construction consultants project we would open the doors to the new hospital in 
early 2024, following the hospital's 75th anniversary in 2023. 

The USDA loan requires community support as a component of the loan. To demonstrate 
substantial community support. We anticipate needing to raise $5 million dollars from the 
community. 

Preliminary Cost and Revenue Projections 
Estimated USDA loan proceeds $47,300,000 
Estimated PMH contribution $12,700,000 
Community fundraising goal $5,000,000 
Funding Total $65,000,000 

With the support and generosity of our community we will be able to build a state-of—the—art facility 
that will serve our needs for the next 100 years. 

195 



Preliminary Layout for a New Hospital 
(This is a first phase draft. As the project progresses, we will share the most current 
renderings with our donors.) 

5m Vent-.5 c m  

P m  1mm: (.14: donor. 

7' as! warn-cu cremation my Ur 
EL! Emmy . 

t '  

FIRST FtOOR 

Moi! Ffll'ry .‘ 

WWI-m 

NOTES: 

1. +i—fl4.8fll Si 
2. Gwen! WEI sepauhm 
3. Good Mme ammo paths for EDilmOQiflaiSLlrgery 
4. Admin {soil space} for memo! department growth. 
:3. Good future cormeclkm point tor luture MOB 
6. HUB 1P uni: claws lo! mid staffing. 
7 .  Phantom! is located upstairs. odfoce m I n  IP and LW. 
8. Shout waits to 0| den-crimenls from main enhance. 
9. 3351 mlion {or fuiuna: patienl room growth. 

* Erma-m 

" :‘ m m m m m  
- Gnu ”Sand elem! cumming 

new to m 
' .— Parnm m1- [15m 

(mum to: Future Audition 
Outdoor (Sudan 1 Water feature 

mom 5 5 m  

CREAM!  $1233 

I :  PAVE]? 

WERE) 

OWNER 

H l
l

 
[32,? £1

 

196 



Outcomes 
Prosser Memorial Health will be a Center of Excellence, providing high-quality, low—cost 
healthcare services to the communities we serve. This includes: 

. State-of—the-art surgical suites and technology to respond to the needs in our 
community. 

0 New Birthing suites will allow for water-birth opportunities, enabling more flexibility to 
accommodate mothers' preferences in delivery. 

. All inpatient rooms will be a private room with amenities to accommodate family and 
support people for our patients comfortably. 

. 16% of rooms will be equipped for ICU, providing a higher level of care for our patients 
and keeping them close to home. 

0 Expand the Cardiology Clinic to include cardiac rehab and pulmonology, allowing 
patients recovering from a heart attack or pulmonary issues to stay in Prosser for their 
rehabilitation. 

o A savings of 10 to 15 percent annually in utility costs with a new facility. 

- Expanded Emergency Department. 

. Medical Office Building for Specialists. 

Why a Capital Campaign? 
With most of the new hospital funding proposed to come from a USDA loan, some have 
questioned the necessity of a community capital campaign. A critical component of the fig; 
loan process is to demonstrate community support for this nrolect. The capital campaign is the 
most effective means to illustrate the engagement by our region's stakeholders. 

Campaign Oversight and Accountability 
The Foundation Board of Directors and Hospital Board of Commissioners will oversee the 
capital campaign initiative. The Foundation Executive Director Shannon Hitchcock and 
Foundation CFO Stephanie Titus will manage administrative support and financial reporting. 

197 



Thank You! 
We appreciate you reviewing this summary of our plan. Your thoughts and counsel about this 
exciting endeavor are essential. 

Prosser Memorial Health Foundation Board of Directors 

Officers 
President — Julie Sollers 
Vice President — Rich Legerski 
Secretary — Lois Chilton 
Treasurer — Evan Tidball 

PMH Staff 
Craig Marks — Chief Executive Officer 
Shannon Hitchcock — Foundation Executive Director 
Stephanie Titus — Foundation Chief Financial Officer 

Board Members 
Elisa Riley 
Emily Carl 
Frank Schroeder 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Keith Sattler 
Lisa Veloz 
Neal Ripplinger 
Stephen Kenny 
Susan Reams 

198 





P‘bProsser 
LI Memorial Health 

MEDICAL STAFF MODEL 

81 

PROVIDER RECRUITMENT/SUCCESSION PLAN 

FY 2017-2024 

200 



P‘bProsser 
k’ Memorial Health 

October 1, 2020 

This Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment Plan provides us with a roadmap for provider 
recruitment, retention and succession planning for the next few years. A roadmap alone does not 
guarantee a successful journey, however, the data presented strongly suggests provider recruitment 
must remain a top priority for the coming years. The Model will be used as a tool to not only better 
understand current and future healthca re needs of our Service Area, but also to guide our critical 
evidence based decisions to address those needs and improve the lives of the residents in the PMH 
Primary and Secondary Service Areas. 

Methodology/Overview 
The Model is based upon many different data sources including the Merritt Hawkins Cooper Physician 
Requirements Model, US Census Bureau, and secondary data from local sources. The most recent data 
available was collected for this report and five year trends are presented: 

1. Population data was divided among five logical geographic communities: Prosser, Grandview, 
Sunnyside, Benton City, and Ma bton. The purpose of the division was to align with the current 
primary and secondary PMH service areas. Population growth was also factored into the model 
to give an overall picture of each community; 

2. All physicians and advanced practice clinicians in each community service area were identified, 
regardless of affiliations or specialty; 

3. The Copper Model (which indicates the number of providers by specialty that a community can 
financially support) was used to identify the physician needs for the communities based on a 
100% market share goal; and 

4. For each community, the provider shortfall is noted. From this evidence based data, the 
recruitment plan can begin which will drive our strategic planning and budgeting. 

As you review this Medical Staff Model and Provider Recruitment Plan, you will note the obvious: we 
have plenty of work to continue. If you have any questions, comments or suggestions for improvement, 
please contact us. We welcome your input in the process as we work together to design the future 
Prosser Memorial Health. 

201 



mLofifimmmoi 
.98 95 E0: 2 m2... 

mmofi ~w>< xmccowtwcu wmm 
Lwn—c nmfiwm .w >nw£._. 539.1 

5.305 Hm 3:0s mp 
5”..c ESE. w .302 cam. $305 

53c >9w=< mmo‘i 

ammea ~m 35m mm @052 0% 
L3c >mo.95 mmoi 

qcwu u=own_o_._t0 mmoi 
5.4.c tawI mmoi 

‘5“c >._wm._:m .mhwcwu mmoha 

mmoi .< 35m ~w>< xmccovhmcu 0mm 
.5“c £_mmI m~cwEo>> mmohn. 

u_c__U mmohn— 

mmoga am _m_._oEm2 mmn 
_m”=n_moI 3:0s mmohn. 

30 SEE _m>< was How 
256 Eu coEmm 

30 SEE .m 85m 624 28 8h 
u_c__U ucmmmcmZ Ema w>_mcw;w._o_E0U 

u_c__U US$54 u u.» k. 
confiwfimcou 5.0:: u ¥ 

wwbq wot/Em \Cmvcouwm n I 

202 

85 83m \CmEta n I 

gu_c__U :0”..a 

2:933:90 
.35 

8333 89” 
£55 2,vc 

Aqwmmmv_ w_o_m>c::m 

wpmécsm. .3 
C23 mmmm 

iBUw—z >=Emu Lw>mw>> 

£u_U®I _U_.._OE®Z 
\

H
'

 

5305 



203 

“cu—.5135 
'99:.— -. i. 

. 
FHEWHI 

.352 Ben... 

5.3: .552 ad." :mutuE—uam :4 
«32:3: Ezu 0..” 

fiancwzgnes ...—5:6. ON 
2.53:3 © 

5.9a: Eonhgfifiz 
- .5... 

(932 ad 
nu QN 

m ......Io: 
_ 255 3.5853 

E3381... 
__ BEE 

E§$5m .r. 
258 .¥.E.F . .III. 

.... a... 
8:8... 2...... m... _ 

....5 magic... 3:35.535 m ._. 

5.3.1.5555“... 
._ 

.53... ed 
3:92.. ...:EE 9." 

. 
$.2q . 

...:EE .0533 

$1.5... 

Arafilcvh. ...... 

h... 11...... 
....— 

.J 

I uufimcczm 3.58:3 .539... .55 c923 2.92.5.6 . 5.3.0.... 1. . 

Emu 
. . 

v.39 a 
__ Eighties» _ 

23 .52.... 
_ _ Eotigfia _ 

.| I I I.— 
£5 55...... 

T 
.l 

a 
.3323. :5... 

_ 
m2... 33.0w rate—Eon # 

|| |_l 
— 

3.3 3.2mm EnEE _ 

Edam 



PMH MEDICAL STAFF RECRUITMENT & SUCCESSION PLAN BY LOCATION AND FISCAL YEAR 2017-2024 

Family Practice- O’CONNOR 1.0 
Mental Health- MORSE 1.0 
Family Practice- JOHANSING 1.0 
Orthopedic Su rgery- HALVORSON 1.0 
Family Practice- SANTA-CRUZ 1.0 
Pediatrician- CARL 1.0 
PA/NP- LUTHER 1.0 

Subtotal 7.0 

Internal Medicine/Family Practice — ZHMUROUSKI 1.0 
Family Practice - STAUDINGER 1.0 
Pediatrician — MIN 1.0 
Emergency Medicine — WENGER 1.0 
General Surgery — CHEW 1.0 
General Surgery — HUANG 1.0 
Radiology - ZUCKERMAN 1.0 
Mental Health - MICROULIS 1.0 
Physiatry — GRONER 1.0 
PA/NP - GARZA 1.0 

Subtotal 100 __ 

Cardiology - BHA'ITI 1.0 
Mental Health - HANKS 1.0 
OB/GYN — H.WEAVER 1.0 
PA/NP — WARNICK 1.0 
Orthopedic Surgery-STREBEL 1.0 
Emergency Medicine - SMITH 1.0 

Subtotal 6.0 

Emergency Medicine - RODE 1.0 
ENT— TIEU 1.0 
Urology- TIEU 1.0 
Certified Nurse Midwife- B.PADlLLA 1.0 
Certified Nurse Midwife- R.MORRIS 1.0 
PA/NP- DUNHAM 1.0 

Subtotal 5_0 

Internal Medicine/Family Practice 1.0 
Dermatology 1.0 
Gastroenterology 1.0 
FP/Peds 1.0 
Mental Health Counselor 1.0 
PA/NP 1.0 

Subtotal go 

Pulmonology/Sleep Medicine 1.0 
Endocrinology 0.5 
Neurology 0.5 

Subtotal | 30 

Family Practice 1.0 
Family Practice 1.0 
Endocrinology 1.0 
Rheumatology 0.5 

Subtotal 3,5 

Nephrology 1.0 
Ophthalmology 1.0 
Neurosurgery 1.0 
Hematology/Oncology 1.0 

Subtotal 4_0 

10.20.2020 

Prosser Clinic 
Prosser Clinic 
Benton City Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
Grandview Clinic 
Benton City Clinic 
Benton City Clinic 

Prosser Clinic 
Benton City Clinic 
Prosser Clinic 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
Benton City Clinic 
Comprehensive Pain Management Clinic 
Grandview Clinic 

Prosser Heart Center 
Grandview Clinic 
Prosser Women’s Health Clinic 
Grandview Clinic — Urgent/After Hours Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 

Prosser Memorial Health 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
Benton City 
Grandview Clinic 
Prosser Clinic - Urgent/After Hours Clinic 

Benton City Clinic 
Prosser Specialty Clinic (ENT) 
Prosser Specialty Clinic 
Grandview Clinic 
Grandyiew Clinic 
Grandview Clinic —- Urgent/After Hours Clinic 

Grandview Clinic 
Prosser Clinic 
Prosser Clinic — Telehealth 
Prosser Clinic - Telehealth 

Benton City Clinic 
Prosser Clinic 
Prosser Clinic 
Prosser Clinic - Telehealth 

PMH Specialty Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
PMH Specialty Clinic 
Prosser Cancer Center 

204 



PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 
MEDICAL STAFF RECRUITMENT & SUCCESSION PLAN BY SPECIALTY 

FY 2017-2024 

2023 2020 
SPECIALTY QUANTITY CURRENT 

Family Practice 7.0 3.0 

PRIMARY CARE Internal Medicine 2.0 1.0 

PAINP - Family Practice 9.0 5.0 

Pediatrics 3.0 2.0 

Women's Health 5.0 4.0 

Cardiology 

SECONDARY CARE HematologyIOncology 1.0 0 

Mental Health 4.0 3.0 

Urology 1.0 1 

Pulmonology 1.0 0 

Orthopedic Surgery 3.0 3.0 

Otorhinolaryngology (ENT) 1.0 1.0 

Ophthalmology 1.0 0 

Dermatology 1.0 0 

General Surgery 2.0 2.0 

Neurology 0.5 0 

Nephrology 1.0 0 

Gastroenterology 1.0 O 

Rheumatology 0.5 0 

Endocrinology 1.0 0 

Physiatry/Physical Medicine 1.0 1.0 

Emergency Medicine 6.0 5.0 

TOTAL 

205 



'. " Eryice‘firea: TotfiPFi—m—alry78efofid'ary Ser—viEeiFéf ___= 
' hysician Need 2023 

2018 Population: 67,344 
2023 Population: 70,395 

Population 
Needed/ Provider 

Needed 
(FTEs) 

Current Supply 
(FTEs) 

- T fl -  

Supply Needed 
(FTEs) 

fl 

.ilhr— , '  .—___ . 

General/Family Practice 
General Internal Medicine 

— ' _  
Primary Care Subtotal 

Allergy 8: Immunology 
Cardiology 
Dermatology 
Gastroenterology 
Hematology/Oncology 
Nephrology 
Neurology 
Mental Health Provider 
Pulmonology 
General Surgery 
Ophthalmology 
Orthopedic Surgery 
Otorhinolaryngology 
Plastic Surgery 
Urology 
Secondary Care Subtgtlt. i. _ _ 

‘ 7 — - _ : _  
- __.__ _ -__J —— = -  

Cardio Thoracic Surgery 
Endocrinology 
Infectious Diseases 
Neurosurgery 
Physical Medehab 
Rheumatology 
Vascular Surgery 

Tertiary Submit a —T 

_ Toal ___ . _ 

71,429 
12,821 
25,000 
22,727 
23,810 
40,000 
19,608 
6,250 
25,000 
8,772 
18,182 
11,905 
31,250 
41,667 
27,778 

66,667 
50,000 
58,824 
62,500 
37,037 
66,667 
66,667 

11.3 16.0 
0.0 
3.0 
0.0 
3.2 
1.3 
0.6 
0.5 

27.7 
14.7 

0.8 
2.4 
2.8 
3.1 
1.5 
0.8 
2.1 
4.7 
2.8 
5.0 
3.9 
2.7 
1.0 
1.1 
2 0 

3%}! 

1.1 
1.2 
1.2 
0.9 
0.9 
1.1 
1.1 

206 

__ : nll 



Revenue by Specialty 

UNITES STATES NEI' REVENUE BY PHYSICIAN SPECIALTY 
Specialty In Patient Net In Patient Net Out Patient Total Net Revenue 

Discharges Revenue Revenue (5 in thousandS) 
*With the use of In in 

Practice“ 156 
Internal Medicine* 11 172 $285 

Pediatrics“ 
* 

ist 

General Su 
15 
11 
57 
16 

Su 95 
5 

Mental Health Provider 344 
Pu 65 $981 4 

39 
Source: James Litton, “Gauging the financial Impact of physicians on hospitals.” Healthcare Financial Management Association; 
April 2012. 

AVERAGE ANNUAL REVENUE BY SPECIALTY 
Cardiovascular 16 

Invasive 
37 500 

764 
,277 
.000 

General S 707,317 
Internal Medicine 

Pulm $2 1 111 
Ca rd Non-Invasive 

Fam Medicine $2,111,931 

OB/GYN 4 193 
$ .500 
S 12 

Ne 789 
Pediatrics $1 

US. Average Net Revenue per Provider (2018) $2.4 million 
PMH Net Revenue r Provider 2018 1.5 million 

Source: Merritt Hawkins. 2019 Physician inpatient/Outpatient Revenue Survey. 

207 



Primary & Secondary Service Area Provider List 

Benton City Clinic 
701 Dale Avenue 
Benton City, WA 99320 
509.588.4075 

_ . _  

Prosser Clinic 
336 Chardonnay Ave. Suite A 
Prosser, Wa.99350 
509.788.1576 

Dr. Patrick Johansing (Family Practice) 
Dr. Suzanne Staudinger (Family Practice) 
Dr. David Carl (Peds) 
Dr. John Groner (Physiatry) 
Jessica Luther, ARNP 
Diane Microulis, ARNP (Mental Health) 

Dr. Carolyn O'Connor (Family Practice) 
Pam Morris, ARNP (Occupational Health) 
Dr. Sarah Min (Pediatrician) 
Heather Morse, ARNP (Mental Health) 
Dr. Dzmitry, turouski (lntemal Medicine) 

Prosser Women's Health Center 
336 Chardonnay Ave B 
Prosser,Wa.99350 
509.786.0031 

Dr. Brian Sollers (OBIGYN) 
Dr. Heidi Weaver (OB/GYN) 
Teresa Charvet, PA-C 

Prosser General Surgery Center 
820 Memorial St #3 
Prosser,Wa.99350 
509.786.5599 

Dr. Weslee Chew (Gen Surgery) 
Dr. Yung Huang (Gen Surgery) 

Prosser Orthopedic Center 
820 Memorial St #3 
Prosser,Wa.99350 
509.788.5599 

Dr. Jared Clifford (Podiatrist) 
Dr. Thomas Halvorson (Orthopedic Surgery) 
Dr. Samuel Strebel (Orthopedic Surgery) 

Presser Heart Center 
820 Memorial St #3 
Prosser,Wa.99350 
509.786.5599 

Dr. Karen Bhatti (Cardiology) 

Prosser ENTS Allergy Center 
723 Memorial St. 
Prosser,Wa.99350 
509.786.5579 

Dr. Combs (ENT) 

208 



Valley Vista Medical Center 
820 Memorial St Suite 1 
Prosser, WA. 99350 
509.786.2010 

Dr. Gloria Abacan (lntemal Medicine) 
Dr. Flint Orr (Internal Medicine) 
Dr. Gelar Paul N. Biscaro (Family Practice) 
Dr. Edward Lane (Family Practice) 
Dennen Frazier PA-C 
Rebecca Wray PA-C 

Astria Health Center Presser-Plastic Surgery, 
Cardiology, Family Medicine 
355 Chardonnay Ave 
Prosser, WA. 99350 
509.781 .6366 

Grandview Clinic 
1003 Wallace Way 
Grandview, WA 98930 
509.203.1080 

Dr. Davis Bronson (Plastic Surgeon) (0.1) 
Dr. James Kneller (Cardiologist) (0.1) 
Johnson Otong, ARNP (FP) 
Selina Diaz, ARNP (FP) 

« = — —  — 
i — fi r  —-—— ———— 

Dr. Santa-Cruz (Family Medicine) 
Erica Garza, ARNP (FP) 
Diane Hanks, ARNP (Mental Health) 
Steve Zi rke r, PA-C 

Astria Health Center - Family Medicine, Psychiatry 
and Sleep Medicine 
208 N. Euclid Rd 
Grandview, WA. 98930 
509.882.1855 

Dr. Luis Wncenty (Internal Medicine) 
Dr. Muhammad Riaz (Sleep Medicine) 
Dr. Pedro Fernandez (Psychiatry) 
Jody Gray ARNP (Family Medicine) 

Grandview Farmworkers Clinic 
1000 Wallace Way 
Grandview, WA 98930 
509. 882.3444 

Dr. Katheryn Norris (Family Medicine) (0.25) 
Dr. Tad White ( Family Medicine) 
Dr. Tamera Schille (Feds) 
Dr. Thatcher Felt (Peds) 
Brianne Johnson, PA-C 
Caleb Knight, PA-C 
Katrina Aguilar, PA—C 
Jeffrey Johnson, PA-C (0.5) 
Thomas Jenkins, PA-C (0.5) 
Mathew Schneider, PA-C (0.5) 

Mountain View Women’s Health Center 
Yakima Valley Farmworkers 
Grandview, WA 98930 

Dr. Ridhima Gupta (OBIGYN) 
Dr. Benno Marx (Family Medicine) (0.25) 

509.882.4700 

Astria Health Center Dr. April Biggs (Family Medicine) 
222 E. 2“d St Deborah Titus, FNP-C 
Grandview, WA 98930 
509.203.6501 

Manuel A. Jimenez, PA-C (Internal Medicine) 

209 



Weaver Family Medicine 
2935 Allen Rd. 
Sunnyside,Wa.98944 
509.837.0070 

Dr. Derek Waver (Family Mecdiine) 
Jason Redd, PA-C 
Ty Nielson, PA-C 

Sunnyside Pediatrics 
812 Miller Ave Suite C 
Sunnyside, Wa.98944 
509.837.7551 

Dr. Ana Garcia (Pediatrician) 
Mark Gardner PA-C 

Astria Health 
Multi-Specialty Clinic- ENT, Podiatry 
2705 E Lincoln Ave Suite B 
Sunnydside,Wa 98944 
509.837.1524 

Dr. Suzanne Cleland Zamudio (ENT)(0.5) 
Dr. Jeff Lecheminant (Podiatry) (0.2) 

Sunnyside Immediate Care 
Yakima Valley Farmworkers 
2680 Yakima Valley Highway Suite B 
Sunnyside Wa 98944 
509.839.3000 

Sarah Dawson, ARNP 
Danny Thibault. ARNP 
Maria Elena Thibault, ARNP 

Astria Health Center —Primary Care Paul Furan, PA-C 
2705 E Lincoln Ave Suite C Johnathan Alvord, PA-C 
Sunnyside Wa. 98944 
509.836.4848 

Swofford 8. Halma Clinic Dr. Harlan Halma (Family Medicine) (0.5) 
2303 Reith Way 
Sunnyside,Wa. 98944 
509.837.3933 

Dr. Blake Bond (Family Medicine) 
Marivel E. Sandoval, PA-C 
Susan Bussert, PA-C 
Maricela Ramirez, PA-C 
Rebecca Souza, PA-C 

Mid Valley Community Clinic 
700 S 11th St. 
Sunnyside,Wa. 98944 
509.839.6822 

Dr. Harlan Halma (Family Medicine) (0.5) 
Dr. Douglas Wrung (Family Medicine) (0.5) 
lrrna Z. Mejia, ARNP 
Elba Fernandez, ARNP 
Ovidio Demiar, PA-C 
Dr. Kristin Bond (Family Medicine) 

Astria Health Center-Family Medicine, 
Endocronology 
803 E. Lincoln Ave 
Sunnyside.Wa. 98944 
509.837.691 1 

Dr. Tatiana Antoci (Family Medicine) 
Dr. Lincoln Westfall (Family Medicine) 
Dr. GaryTreece (Endocronologist) (0.2) 
Benjamin Rodriguez, PA-C 
Sherry Johnson, ARNP 

210 



Astria Health Center 
2925 Allen Road 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.836.4830 

Dr. Tim Caylon (lntemal Medicine) 
Dr. Andrew Gustavson (Neurology) (0.5) 
Dr. Vansi Kanneganti (Nephrology) (1.0) 
Dr. Anna Madej (lntemal Medicine) 
Christina Zoric, ARNP 

Astria Health Center- Cardiology 
812 Miller Ave, Suite F 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.836.4825 

Dr. John Adan (Cardiology) 
Dr. Michael Becker (Cardiology) 

Astria Health- 03 
803 E. Lincoln Way 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.1550 

Dr. Miguel Brizuela (OB/SYN) (1.0) 
Dr. Robert Wells (OBIGYN) (1.0) 

Astria Heallth- Occupational Health 
802 Miller Ave 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.1564 

None Listed 

Astria Health Orthopedics 
, 2705 E. Lincoln Ave, Suite A 

Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.1570 

’ Dr. Valentin Antoci (Orthopedic Surgery) (1.0) 

Astria Health Cancer Center 
1013 E. Edison Ave 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.1587 

Dr. Danko Martincic (Hematology/Oncology) (0.5) 
Lee Jackson, NP—C (1.0) 

Astria Health Specialty Center 
Surgical Group 

Dr. Lori Alvord (General Surgery) 
Dr. Tracy Berg (General Surgery) 

500 S. 11th St. Dr. Whitney Parnell (General Surgery) 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 Dr. Manuel Ybanez (General Surgery) (1.0) 
509.837.7722 Dr. David Shoemaker (lnterventional Radiology) 

Dr. Natalie Mosley (Urology) (0.25) 
Dr. Richard Mynatt (Urology) (0.25) 
Dr. Bard Ward (Neurosurgery) 
Dr. Donial Drazin (Neurosurgery) 
Dr. Dave Attebarry (Neruosurgery) 
Plastic Surgery) (0.5) 

'Astria Health John Hughes None Listed 
Student Health Center 
1801 E. Edison Ave 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.836.4840 
Virginia Mason Lower Valley Specialty Center 
1812 E. Edison Ave. 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.0653 

No specific providers listed. 
Cardiology, Urology, ENT, Podiatry, Pulmonology, GI, 
Hematolgoy/Oncology, Orthopedics, Pain Management 

211 



Yakima Neighborhood Health 
617 Sooon Road 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.8200 

Dr. Nana (Pediatrician) 
Sue Dennis, ARNP, CNM (Women’s Health) 
Brady Moss, ARNP 
Cynthia Hurtado, ARNP 

Comprehensive Healthcare 
1319 Saul Rd 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 
509.837.2089 

Heidi Graf—LMHC 
Mary Lamarche 
Maria Montelongo 
Melissa Mon'n 
Paul O’Neal 
Susana Martinez 
Cory Kingsbury 
Dawn Maxwell 
Demetrius Straws 
Miguel Diego Mendoza 
Jose Sabalsa 
Crystal C. Liebert 
Alfanzo Meza 
Rachel Ramos 
Debra Dale 
Jaime Ortiz 
Christopher C. Devilleneuve 

212 



‘ J -  r;:-'-1 r 

.4: 

‘7 l 
'31" ". IL ' .  

- ' 2-: l ’ “ ’ : - ; - \— 

I 

l l .  l l  
' 2  t 'J tL - .  q.— _ . -  

III-.- P ‘  . 



.wucw=wuxm mo mhm___n_ w>onm m5. “—0 ycwEm>wEum 9t. Ucm 
mw:_m> mm_n_m< 30 9.3: >2 33:0“. 9+4. E 233.31 mmwuu< _mU_u._._U OOH 0.3 min mo wco wEOUwQ ___>> w>> 

ONON 3 DON>u_ mmwuuam 95 :o_m_> 

Goody I OHON 
3mm I DON 

o\o©.0 
I 

mHON 
o\o¢.m 

I mHON 

3% nmqi - 20m 
9% EMS - DON 

99% 03.2 - mam 
QED mofim - mHoN 

Ambmo “cwfima u 2x95: 

<2 I OHON 
o\omm.m® 

I DON 
RENO I .wHON 

$.t I mHON 

214 

o\o© 
A £952 _mu.o._. ”Eco 

92m E52 $8 “moo 
mB§E< 3:90 Bfigmm $2 ”:80 

QEmUEBwn—m _m_ucmc_n_ mwu_?_wm 

o\oO.mm I OHON 
o\oN.mm 

I DON 
o\oO.mm 

I mHON 
o\o©.mw 

I «WON 

A“x".wNm I OHON 
o\o0.0w I DON 

$0.00 I mHON 
o\oO.mm 

I mHON 

mucwzwuxm 

uuwgmwm 
3&0p _ 

xLOBEmfl. wuoEoL Q 

83m 

h: _53c30uu< 

mw:_m> SO 

ucwEwmmmcm ww>o_o_Em_ 

Cerummmfimm wwoEm 050m ”ECO conuflmsmm t 3282 fix. 

Ease 

“cwEQo_w>wn_ tmufi 73:02). 

o\om.Nm 
I OHON 

obwdw I DON 
«Vows—um 
I wHON 

o\ow6m I mHON 
mcorfiuwaxm Ewfima Ummuxm o\omm ”EGO 

>gm>04ycm3ma 

.>u_c:EEou 50 *0 £2m wcu w>o,.o_E_ 
___>> 5.m .33s 330.5 

:23: EtoEo: 
Lommoi 

223:). 

‘1. 

Ark 



.38....— tcu ...»... a. ion I .80... ion—ita- 

33 a“... EH- ...m I. E .3 $3.. .85 :38. 2.3 v sauna .gtszflxm .33 .....o... 98.3 «Eda .815 is." Eda A R .n.EuEEnu 
. m3... and”. and”. A 9...... E g 838 3.3... 2:. ... w a... 

. a nun... 
... S... fl .. 85.2“ 

v Egg-flu Fag Rude . 39mm ...... be I Emil“ 
I .II mwlmw .5 ...-ud- xhdm v 35.5%. 3.38 Emma E. .. ... Ema H. ...”. ....n . . . I I. 92.3 m _ .1... A _ :3: m mm...“ A “Egg... ransom... and $.a ...»: 3 ...-.2. .... . 1E...- . ”.55." . . .. #8..“ A Janus. .BAFL madm afimw . . .. cm. ...... I* 

A. ...- . .. . 8.3. v c.3333. 35.83 ... n25 .....2 
III I II ... II I 

ma” on... I .. . . 2.. 
I. 2.. J m... I. 

...: .. man A 3:592:32... .....s 0 .3... m3... . .. . ......E... 
-_ Eu." 8.3 A 3.235.... 2m.” 3%. . .. . . 8.... $5." :8 .53.... .35 «Ed #8..“ 

. 
u . .3... p. .I ... a: . . . . .......+: $3.”. 35.” A «£332.. ..3 96... Ba...“ 

Imam ...-Inn...“ ...... 
.. . A ... n. I NF ... . 

3.5 
A “2:33..“ «59...... gamma-...... .5: SH . . . man A 3333.25 ...—u motowi am 3 . .. n. 

I 
. . .. _ .... . am A 3:339 no mu mm .3 ...... E. . E . mm mm A «comm—E3 Egan... 8m 3.... . . ..II 

. . .- SF: . E: A a...) 8 . 
_ I .II ..Smfi .58 I. I | 

Hm? I ..nI.|I I I; I Fm] 
-....fi. .58 v ....E .3... .... 99... E... a. Eu... .5. 8.3.3 3nd «3.... and v 950 an 55.3 BEES—aux 3529.: 83-9.? and «and “and v lions on... .2. 2mm 5.63:. 1358...... £35.31 m m m v raw... 5.3 «=9... .8.” .... . .8." v Ea 2.... Eggs .3 . £23!“ 8 

no." 5.. . EH v «0...: _na...o..._.:o 3 0.... amiss. an... a $2 $0 . «3.. v ..uu... a v .955... 2.: 2.92 mfin mm.” I. . . . . r mfin A Exams: 5.53:3 $8 and... an .... ...... .... .6 r . m... 
m ..E .....I . .. sud. A “cowfifi as... $5.0 Ed IUWI 

.ulfwlm. 
l 

L1... 
... 

II 
a...» c ..II. 

m 
l 

8a.... v 35... 3.65:... find” 3mg .5. . “I... .... ......wi. .... p m 
I I . . _. I. .. End v .35 _u«o._.\unou II?“— «umé «gm . . .....n .. .Irlm .. . 2.3. v “.225 2:0... Epotufiigo I 255:0 .6 can: u.» mm a F J]. ... 

I 
. 

......w-...l IN a. . . muv 43:83.... “858.. gnaw-“— 5.... N“ I . ...I.. 
I I I. . 

4“... 

IN v 3.53 2...... Hawaiian: muEuE. .I. . . . 
. 

ow an . sh. .. um .n than $1..q menu: “—0 «7 mm on . 
. n .. . I «m A 9......U 52. 3.33.553 «<2 mm... 3.... I an flu man A .3c 5...»... 3.5525 s... E... 3- A: A»... 

. 1A _ . .fi. . as A 3.“... 3...... 3.22... «an 8m . “I. I”. 
am... 

I m I 
I 

my. 
. ...... . ”pa... «man A 37.5 255 uxz human... Bu 9.... .....r. A .6. m3 m8? 335 3...... Enam— NB 9mm . . gr. 

I. . I 5...”. 
m3... A 3.2... ......n. Panam— tud find I . 

u iafi . £2..- - En . In. 
J . . 

«on... 
v ...-353:2... .3.q 

$3: «3.3 Is... I Eu. ...II- fat. 5 ...E .2. ..S .... i.- wmwfiu A ..ucoEEauum ...—6.5. I “no. «.5 5.3 «33 3:”: .3... on In .... a ...... .... in ...m it 
I 

Em? Inn. .5...» A ......oEEouam 2.6.5.. I 3:5 «3.3 «an» . . 
Eli. ...—.... 

R: I. . ans—I. 
.- $33 A ....n508: 2:02... I van 3.3m «3.5. 93.3 In.” In... flh I . . .3 an manila. 

. E S ...... a. RE A .EuEEBux 2:25.. icy-5m Eofinfio ..Sdm finfim 1.... E. . #19- 
II- . . II 

«3.3 A ......aEEouox 2.62... I no and... $5.. .I 
x3? ......oszouam 283.12833.‘ «than “and” lei I... 

.2 v.3. E .ru i 2...: Eda A ......uEEOoox 2:03.. I am www.mw «mafia . 3.1.1. 
I 1.1.: 93.3 A Inca—cigar. 3:03.. . A: 

... son 94 as... 958.... in .5... an a... . 
If. _ as: H r: . E3 LIE... . ..nm E. 323 is! all... in 

3.8m Eiguufifi - anon £30m: _0_I.OE.mE 
.03053 

215 



n my :3... 5.3.3.. n my ”5.552a «coagusfiscfi Sofia 5.83 mmv 23.5.2... a we». finances: {2.52.3 85.53.: 3:36 :83? «z - .r . . :3..- §% 55% 35.3%..— 
5: En. Em... ._ .- .15.. . I. 5.: . {hfimiw Jab «San __unaEnZ a 25.3%: nigh...» Ragnar—fi— amd .. . a? .. .5. L .53.. 44...... 

._.. LE... 
all. 

.5. = $9.? 29 5.35 3.25.55“— «z h .: __. - 332$ Essaafiuuwsuet EB:— um 
-- 1 . n $55.2 8v 3% £33.55 he am. no «Sac-E om yo 9:: 3:83.31— 

aogu a. use. flow . _ ... . .. . - if, . :3. i 1 H... t 5.... a. $3." 13238 Effie; 5:8.q _ ficflm .a 9:... u . -. 
.... _ 5...?“ m 1......“ .m| . TE. 4... 2 If...” E .35“d E” «.53.. 9.7.3:. B 90.2 Esau—H50 . EmEumna “sunflo— 835 Nth... L pm...” i -....m.... Ruhr... 

.U.._ la a. HE 
.n ..._ $3.? $2558. 2: 3.. 3% case... 3583 Enigma:— az fir £35.. 

£31 8.. . . . as? __e 32%. 355.: mu. 55.3 5.528255 Ra:— fiméa . . . . . 
E I] $6.3." G3 022...;— EuEauacas. 33w .. amnumh an." an: . .. _ and". “$.253322553553355" an 5.2.5.95 3:542— :23“ -- . Emu.“ mad". _ousfiz a 0...... 53 3.3 52:3 #3— 33 an .52 so» 9.4 a... 

. as: has. __...q _ is: a: 5. _Bufifi Engage:— d 30.5 .39 SEE _ 
cram: _utoEmE 

wmOEAU - 

216 



.am. 2...". usage 
32.55.33... 295.2 .5... can 60:33.3“ 

.0 5.38.2. 33......» 5.2.33... 
=0 63.... .28 .o csfiaemn Egg... 

3...“...— ._.3 nouns—gm 63.3.... 555...... .EwEtmnmu mszmnfifia sumo uca 
unzabmz u... 3 Eton... .25 50.2.9.5... 

an... 2.3m oném... m 9...... 3.3.95 .3 __.3 ua...oEu.aE_ an... «3.32.... 5.... .33.. Son .3 .u 2.5.3.. 
a... 3 Eastman... £3 =. 3.62.. 

9.55:... H a. .33 .0 an... .335 
“.n. co.umu=mEo.aE. .5... tan 355...... 

3 3:96.32 09:... .5...» 33.853 
dun... :. «Ewe... as... 0.2....m a... 8 «mm... 3.63.. :25... .3... 3.5503»... “35 .83... .2... £32. c. man... woman. 355.3 :53... .En gamma... . .5 3mm 3 5.55539. 

_ 
.5 .n meannfi r2355. 69:... u 2 5.5.5. 9.3.6.. 3v 5.329... “.553m defining 2:93... 3.... com—oat: 3.950”. m 3 .33.... 5...... BEBE 3.525.“... won... 23.... a :0 3%.... 3.2.5.... 90.. 35...Eu unfit... E... 

.Emm. 2.0.3.. Econ—H.550 _ 
9.52m .qo. 5:28. .o 2.5 .2... c. 3.55 new «a... 3m... ESE... comm c. 3.3.585 9:... :9... no EmaEuE m... BEBE...”— =EE6 an 25.5: o~_E.:.E B 3.3....» .8 9:55.. :5 a... n3. 95.0.. 232...... 32:03 E... «guano 3:5... _. B 3......mmxnucomuan 30.... . 83.30a .3835 «x... 9.2.3.. 5...... 6.3.. 3 35...... 0.5.3.. 3......)0”. 

.83. .nom 32.532 2:... Emumuuucca «2.3.. .83 .553 .0 up 3 Eu... .6... an... a...“ 9:83.. 5.3 32.. 3 3.5.3.. 23...... Eva 5.5% 22.2. m.... .0. EBEEOE a...» £529.... 332.. E952. 22.... E... 3.53.... a... «32...... mean u... as... «an... 3 3.9.5”. 3.050“. a... 3 EB ucm m... .3 umugfi. 333:3 o. _.u..=ou 8.32.. 3.52 35.3.8.9... =3. as... $339.. tfin toga—3.32.... 9......3 .335" BESS“... 5...... has. ”083:”. o. .3..q tuna $23.2 madam 9. 3:2,... “.32.. mafimfi E... «3......58 €55... was: a... $226.. . 9.592... “55......5. .2... H.293 
.mH $2333.... «ES... 

_. ._ II II . I II | I1lII||IHH I I I 
I.- -- I 53:85:23....iu5733s6. .53.. 

I I. III _ 
._ _ .33 

I . 

‘ FNEEH 

217 



«.50 00.000. 
0:0 0.00... 0.00.0000. 0... 000.30.. 

300.00.00E500 02.000... 000.0000 o 
.0... .0009. .00 00...... 02.5 . 

“0.0.50.0 00.000000. 
.0550 0 00050.08. 0:0 00.2.3. 0 

.080... .00000050... .0 
00...... >9. 00 «00.0.0.2... 000000 0.3.00.0 o 

000.000.0500» 000...... 0... 
00.00.00.000 00 0.0.0 5...... 2.0 200.00... .2030... 000 300.5 

.0003... 0:000 0.00.00... .5... 00000000.. 5000 00:0 0...... A005. .3000: 30.00.... .2058 .06. 33 c. 0.03 =0.«00...0EE00 , 005.0.— 
0~0~>0 .0.— ..0.»Efi._...£0( “300503.000 0.0.20... 0 30.. .2000» 0000.. 0.5.. 0:0 00:00.00EE00 =0 0000. 5.3 00.20.08 080.0300 0.... 2:000 0.03m .00.... {0.000 00 00.....0000. 3.0000 n .5530 000.0 "5.230.. a. 30.58 a... 0.0.. 0... 0.... 3 B ..0... B .9. is .3... a... .3000. 0. $32»... 0.002.... a 00.3.0 .. “.20 .08.... a «00.5.2000 50.00.000.320... 00000000... 000.. 0...... 0.00.0.6 .05.... .0005... 0.0. 00003000 .32... .0003... 3...... 000.3... .0003... 0.0. £02m...» .8025 0.. 000 «0.3 0.003 .000... .00 00.000E. 2008000... 2... 003.0300 00.502000 0:0 00.000000. 0020.03. 1.20 0. tan .0050... 000.0... .. 00:3. 00 6.200 0.80003 0...... 500 a... 02030.. .3...%8 5.0.0.80. ram .03“ 00.00: 0:... a. 500.... 00.." "as“ .8005. o... .0 500020.... 0.00... .5 "0.29.. *3 30.00.... 005.0... .8000» 009.0» 2.5000000 ow...” .020 0....' 0... 05 c. .00.. 0.... 0 0000.035 0:0 0.00.6 . 000 00200000.. 00E...00 8 30000.... 

.0 _ 

05.5.05... 0.0.05 .03. 0.1.3 c. «000.020.0000 003.00...» >00 0.00.020 30:01.50 0. 00.00.0302 0000.00... 1.2.... a... 0. EuaE 
00.00.20... 00.0 «03:30 .0200... 2.0.0 .00 6.0....“ 058.00 0.00.. 10.005. 000.000 0.... 30.. 0.0.000 . 

0.... 0.5. 0:0 :00 
.05 . 00.00.00... .00.". 300m ca - 000000.500 .33.... 3.00.000 :0 0000000 .2300 000000 0.... .2658 000 .0023 :0... 0.00.000 5.00... 300.00.... .0000... 03” am... 00.00.00... 03” 0... 000.... .00....0 :5... 00 .3025 

, 
co . 0.0.00.0 «005000.000 «0.0— .00 .305 

.5 - 50.0.0.0“. ..0.000 0.30 £00000 0. 00... 00.00002 0. 000.000 an .0050... 0000...»... 00 33.0.. u0.00.00... 00:00.3 “Gnu 30m 00 000000. 3.0.... 0:..300E .00 dwom .0 .8300 an... 0.0 0. 000% 0.0.0.0.). 0 2050.05. 0..." 00.0000 . 0 0002.... .00.... 30.00.... :3... 05 0.00.0.0 .m .12.... 0...... 0... ._ 00.00200 , 00000.0 0. 00000.0 .50.. 0.: 00.008 :0 00.0 .396. 0.00.020 0000.050 5.00... 
.02.... 0.0.3.5. 05 00.00000 30...... £00.09... 0:03 "00.000 :5... .0 .3025 0.... 000 

.20. 0. 0.. 5.... 00300.9. 0... =5. .50.. 0.... .3030000 0.00.005. .0000... .3 .000... 0000000.. 000 030.008.150.2 .00. .0300... 0:0 . 20>... .5 5.200 2...... 000.. 00.. 0.00... 30.00.. 800500000 .0005. .0030... 0.; 8000:0050 050.00.... .0003 :0 00.0000 _. 00000.90 00:00.30»... 02.00.00 :0 00.0000 .0 _ 

. 00.00000 .. 
0.... “0000000.... . 00...... 0.. an... 0552... 0.0.5.0... 0...... . 2000.0 020000.. 0050... -.003 “00.080000 0.0.0000 .....E00.u 0.0.0.0 00.00300 .0030... 0 00.0000 3005\5080000 .u . -. i .. i....!.....!. 10 .0003230300. 0. 00.6.00... 30.. 0. 0.00.00... 000.0... . 3:00.080 .0 .23.... 00.... 0.0.00... .000 000.00. 8 2.0.0 0...... 0... 0000.00... .03” 00 “2000.0 00.0.0300 o _ 

__ 0.2.00 .5 .9204 0.0... 000000 0... 0.. 200.020 00...... 00.00. 300.0000 0.5 .003 0.005.... .0030 ..0 «80 “00.33.00 0.2.... an ”05.90 «Sm .600: an... 0.... £0.03 0.0.005. .0000 «So... 000.50.. 000.. 0.... 00 30.. 00.00000. .05..." .00....05. 0 0.0.0.05. .. 05 000.0... 0.0.0 00.0..q 5.0.300 0 0.50.00... .0 r 
i 

_ 
$00.00 000500005 .003 70.005. 0... 

:0 0.50. 0000000....“ .032. .0 $00 a 0.800 ... 
.3... 00.000.00.00 300 a 0 .50....3. ._. 

.figggg .030 .8000. .00.: a. _ 
0.0000 ...n 6.20 .8 0. 08000000 0.. .3... 000.0... 000050005 .05.... 30.00.... 0...... 0.... .0.— ..0200 00.68.03 anon n 0.00.“. .. 20.500000 0.0.0 00.002 .005... :0 80000”. .m u. 30...... 

00000.... .2350”. 5.001.500: o 02.3.. .5 
.20.... 2.0 00.50. 5.00... 0.00.003 . f2. .0 0.0.. 00000.: 

0.50 00.2.50. 5.8.. 0.550... . 0923.00: .12... 30...»... 0.000.... . .30... .0 0.0.51 0.50 0.08.... 15...»... . 
52...... 5.....- 0:02... 0.50 53...... .22.. .. .25. u... so... 5. 05.2 0.80-520 . .250 200220. 0.0.5... .0085... a... 0.0.3 00...... . .220 . 3.50....0000080080 2.5.... . +0 33.3.!- o... 2.0.... , 00.0.00... 02.5 "00.0.30! :0... 30.0.... ...n. $00.2... . 3.0.5 p.00: 0000.20.00. 050000 .3 0.0.00...E..... 000 than $0.00.... .00 5.... a 000500.00... .00320082200 00.... .Eou 0.... . 020 3.05.000... . 0.5.0 330.0. 0220 - 0.00000 05 ca... 0.0.5.2000 savanna—00 0. 000.000.... 00000.00... 00 .3025 u 000.. 2.8... an. - 050.005. 3:00.090 . "0500.0... «.000 5.... 6.3“ 30.00... 030 >0 00050.02. c 00...... ..0.....E. 30E... 0.2.00 ..n_ ”05.9.. “0.00.020 0532.0. 0... 03.0.00. .n. 00.. .0005. than .0200... u... 0. 000.0000. .0005. .030 00.005. 0 c. 0000: 0.... 2.00000 0.0.00... 

.5 .05.”... 2.3000800 000.. 0.... .030 00 3.00... x... .3: 05 0000...... an .5... 0.000.300». .0005... 0.... 20.00.06. . 1.20 05 :0 0000... 
«tat... 05:05.00. 0.0.0.... A tam 0.0.00.2 0. 0:000... III. I. II III: 

218 



9.... o. 1.59:... 
, 

:2... 3.. 2.0.2.3 3222...... .3 5.3!...» oz .33 at... 
c. «5.5.... .33....q “5....3 “Eu 3...... .nouuzaufl as... 

.0 cation 05 Heron...» 35 Ba 95 .3323 $0.295". ....o 

“a. £26.. so... u... 252...... a... 2...... 5.9.... 2.8.3.... Ea >=B=uE acts...» .3 2.0.8 2.... x353... n 133... “E05. Eu... 

3:25 2.52.2.3. .33 5......— dwofi 3 “.5 0.... .5 .2252... 
, 

3.30.. 3 33......» 55...... E. "3.23 2.2.3.... .SNE 9.2.9.... 9.2.3 .3232 .Entnofinu 2 cu... m... Sofia—n8. .25 Rea .0 «859m 2.3.3.2 52.52 acmEEnE. o "unis... 3.3520 .8 .Bugo, .33.... 9...: a... c. an... “2.53.. a BwEEou a. 5.... 0.5 .33 .32.... .325... Eases—a... o 
5...? =2... 2...... c. :3... «a 3.3.... am. now... mamcucflnEB a 3.33 c. .33. $323 $.28 . is... E _. 

W 
"EncaE_:..o=...nU 3 .BuEB .8... 133.2... 32.5.3... an. new.“ a 5.3 "£3.03 2.5.5... 

o... a? .Snxm. n3 nmwfi o 39.2... EncoE.=cn.Emo 23.... ten 85...... .nn .. 
5.5.... 2.3... 32...... .5 no. 2...... _ 

.K 
5.3 .2355. 2.8 E... Ea..nEnu 5...... a. 3.3.. £03.32, __ 30.2.: .32 .c .35.... Em 2.. 5 535323. 5.3 as us. ....~......3m 30.2... .a. snap... E... .532 5.2... .555... .83.... .o. __ 

__ 5.5.. ”.350 5355+... “$30 .5 Etta... $.30... p.593 «5 a... tan: a... 5.... “Eco... £9.23...— 
_ .2... 3...... 9.3.9.. Hanna a Engine... . Ewan... v...» 3...... 9.5.3. Esau“ EuEu_nE_ 

.HH .___ ____ 
._. _ .33.... 

7 
.99.... c. 9.253.. .255 , =. «$5 .3 “an... .cqumcuE £3 83...... . 

.— 
..o B. 5.3....8 9......a n 9.22.3. an _...s a? .0320... , .55."... £1..a «55...?a .Bm n «a 2536...? :Eagtaacnq .3520... En. Eng... £2. 3232.53 n 2...... Egan-5... 3......83. n5? “Enoch-u 8 2... a. m2... 4... 9.5... an...» 32.0.... u. no... 0!». 5!. of 9...... 3 “mean“... can .EEPE Evian-52 sun. 3230......3 

* 
_ "3.5.0 1:30.032... 3mm. >3: u can» 2...... .5... £3.28. :3... 3.. ha.“ 3:23....» 3. .33.... 3. E... .2035? team. rug...“ . a... 2.3.... 9... 32m 8 35.50 6... .u _ 

.83.: .35 .n v.32. a... .5 30.20.... 2. :8 .u... — 
«out... cabana—.0 v.30.— .u.....o.n .50 9.3.. can uni—Eng... 

; 235. ii... 6...»... E.» :2...— ..5...> 5.3 3:38. .2. “no... 3, 

fl 
. 22...... mace... E... 929.... 3 0:55... :33... .2... 235.3: 

_. _ . 

Ea ~20... .233... ._..n< E .3589..— acufia 3.... m Ea u. moron...“ Batten... u c. 33.32 ES 5.... v.8 25.. .. .EEuE. _ 
52:833.. 2.2.5.... an E28. 5 53.. a can... a #83... Ann}; _ .533.— .0 22...... 

.2... Egg .5... 235.... .33 ".252... 3.5558 2.. Earn“... €2.53 .38 .o 39. 5.9.33.3. Eu... .5 5.... Eu... o... .338. a 5.3 a: a... 33.3. as 35.3....» .352. u... 315.8 n 3.5 . £3358 9.. =8... 5.q 5...... 3.93 «.553. 5 .533. 5...... 5.3 sausage .333553 use...“ 12.....E. n...” . .. . .naefi .3 «55¢ fiscal 5:5... 68 .3... 5525 a. u... 8 Eu... a 5.5. n is... use...“ as .3253... .o. 5.35... 3...... .283. . .3353... 3...... 3...... so... a 35...... .m 
.023 2.. one... .9. .555 .39.... 3...... .0. 2.1.3.... Bataan... a... Ecatonuw 2.52.. o... 8.39... 2 «5?... k. £353...- ufi 2:»... 

5.3.3.3 E... «.3506 30...»... a... £0.m a...» ham 23:55. .2. fits 30.92.. Anna. 8.....3. 53803.0... :. moan—.2... 5.6.. ".350 coma—"FEE... 9.5—". 532.23 a... 3226.. 3.23% .8 «5.50 .30 an .30. unauuiuocso 5.3... .3..c .33... 3...... aces... 2...»... 3.5.5.... 3 5.9. _..a a; no a. .359 B one _.._ a... g. 355...... s ESE. 5:53.... a... 2.2.2.3 .3.....8. 5.3: 3:955. .33... £5... a a. .3... .2... .585. an»? "8.56 2.2.. .o .83.... 3mm Eu... 3......9 23 3.5.5 rpm 3.53...“ .3 "an... .23.... £t .3 .53....“ aucafia.n§ .2... 3.989 . Emma... fluctuauh a... tune... a...» 3:25 .w F56 .9335. B as? 
can... “.5 .6 ed a. 9.5.63 

a. E. Beet... 3.35.3.0 a 9.5.... 2.53%.... can Em m? 
.2228 ”saw t5. _ E.» 3......5... 2...... 8 can” .0 :2. venom» 9.. .... 35.33. . 

_ 
an ....s “3......“ gains...» .0. Eflunk. .8: .33.... 2... _ .Eufi 3 m3.5.25 £95.» .33. v.3 5......q _ .. Fig.5 #3 3.2.2.8 «a... 22:3 mg...» “.3“. 5...»... a nu tmfi 3.....q 2.. SE. .8338 .533. o... EscaEEB on. E? 3%..6... .>..acot=.h¢ £03.33 aim .mu 3 5...»..q a 2053...... .2... 3.25.“. 

.nacwcuu 3.9.3.... 5.3 983 80:83.... .25 :o..$.§EEou .553. main... "in mumps... B 2...t as...» 9...m :23 no. E... 2:20.... .2... tuna... 9.3 33.3 .0. >6..a ._.__s 5...... ..u.En... 5...... «.339... E 0.5 :o .353. n... 3:298 :25... 6.3.9.: 33 BEN ... .EuEtunou .333; :23. c. REF.» 
2.... «5...: Oman .05.: 2. than .5.q no 9:559. :32. .... uu—mucuuflu to“... 

.2. 
£8... .85.: .8 3.5.3. .55... 2...... 

aim £82.55 2... 329.33 5 mac—Eu“. .n 

219 



_ 

.. 1.: . 
015.1035; .. £53.00 0.3... . . . 

550.30%? 050002. tcnufiuocoa_ 00.332 0. flaw? 

3.230300 .33. 
1

—
 

300.30....» .0050... manta—Eu 300...... 30. 5.... 03.. RE 03 028 0:. «0.2002500 u... 0. $0005.. 20:00 >00 0.00.... B 2... c. 50 0.....q on _._0.. 0.... 0:55 .8 “£00. 0.... .m£a2£:u_.2 nuance”. . 300008.... 000005 .80 8 0.... 00:00.30 0.0.... 35.00.... 5. 6.0050... 3.0.00... .835 00.0 05 :. .3...=u. >330... 0.0...» 3.0.5.0 .00 5.3 300.: .000 .00.: .2... 85...... 0.000....“ 00200.00. E0032... 9.00 1.05.... an... 3 musics.» Elsa»... 3.0.003 .003... $0.30!... 80m 0. 00.0 00.30» .50 c. 00.5.”. En... 200...... 3...... 002000.. 0.... 1.2.. .0. EEuEn 0 «0050.05. .2... 00.0000 .. 3.0.83 :5... a... .0 3.3.“... 0.... Sufism .3 
9.3.2 30.5 .Omu £0.20... $0.00!...» 000 00.20:...“ a 0. 3.00000 20.0.00... ,_ Ann)... «.00.. 00.03.. fish—E0... =0 :0 1:00. 280200.000 3 .3023 0:0 020.95.. .0. £30.“ m :0 200.00.... .50 :0 0:00.. 0. «05.0 000.... 30.0.5 :5... 3.0.00.5 95.30...“ 000.0000 0. a... =...._. 

030 0.0... .50 .30“ 0. 2:20.: .000 003250.53 .33025 «00.5.0a 0.00... .5 623. up...” 0.0.0.00... N :0 2.0.59. :00... “0.. 8.553.0825 0...... .0. 00.0 0 50.00.05. 0.... 00.023 - .EEnEm 2.05.0... $0.00.... :5... 0.... oucmccw .3 - .03.... 0. .300... 520.00.. _ .Buoto 03....EE3 £05035 than a 3 0.2.0.0.... t3» .0200...— 30: =0 5.34 .. 2.... "8.5.0 zigzag... 09.3.2 2.0.03.2.” 2.3.3580 3.6 E. 22.... .5 33.223... .2035... 0.2.8 an. 55.9.. 3mm 5.... 003000.000 0. 0000.260 uE0... :30 2.02.00... 
5.... 02.... t3» .3522 m ungulfi. a...» 00.33 u 0.050... 020.3005 #0.... 30.00.... a 00.9.3 6.. 

.LmaEmuuo 0.. 
0200—0000 0.. =2... 00.32.00 2.000 :0 2.0.0... .00.. 00.50000 

2.08 00.00... 3 03000000 0.. =3. «00.30... 9.2.0... 
5.0.5.0 300.30.... :05 0:30.. «5000 0:0 .250 «080...... 0. 

03000000 0.. E... 2.0.0.0 000.5 .0050... a. 
.03" .H .3300 . .mN .Efiouaum Ewan 0. 00.3.2.8 a. 0.00.02... 05 5.... 3.900.... 

03...... 0...... 509. 305.028 “.52.. o. .5... E... 
URN £2. 00.0530 000.. 000.. “9.000.. .0030... 2.00:0”. 

.mn 
. .050“. 0..» 0:00! 30.30 0. 3.000020»... 0.. 0.... 0350.00... 

03.00.. 02.5.... 
:03 «a... £050.... 003000.00 9.000 0.... 0...... 00.05.. “5.... .0825 .0 «:0 =9. 0...... 00:00: 00 9:000 .20 #0.... «£03 05 6.2.0... .33. 200.09.... 500.00.... 80:0“ an. EU 8 E... 93.00000 05 an .00 £9.00. 

:00... «0.. ”0.23000 03m .0... 9.0.0 ”0.0003100: 00...... n 0.0... o .0... E030... 00.900000 “5.000 a $050.00... .5 1 

flute... .30 .0200... .50 :. $00.03.“... 000 “033E030 
an... =0. 3.2 .0... .225. =0 £3.20... 53 52.29 

0.5....» .0200... a... «00.20“ 0... 000 Is... 3 0.0302... .033 033.0500 
03...... 0000055.... 2...... 0.. use... :0 “0.1.03 20 0...... .15... 0.5.”. EEEEDU 1.2.. a... co 30300.0... .EEEEau .50 .EE» 3 502.00 .0... .82 .00.. ta... .2.q .00. :0 300......3, 3 9.02.5... 3......EE00 .2... 03...... 8...... a .0 5.00... 0.... 050E. 0. £00.00... 3.00.0500 55.. 022.280 0.... 38.2 0.03230... 2...... 5.3853035180522202... .303... 0828...»... as... .200 05 63...... 2...... 0.02.. .59. 0:0 £03. an arms .0 5005350.... a 3... 00.3..» 1.2.. .33 05: 0. c. 200.3... 3.00.0500 0:0 ES...» 000...... .. maze. 00.0.9. 0... 5.3 30.2.3.3 B 005.com. .0. .63. 3.32% 6.0.5.0 Emu 32...... .30 c. “00.20" 3.30500 20.00.05. .05 :5... .0 30.20. 0.00.50... 9.1.30... .8 0.50.0530 3.030.. m =0 6.5... .5002 : 2.0.00... .0 3......«00. 0... 20.0.... . 40.00...a .300." 0......“ 3000:2053 5.... 9.3.0... 0.... a... 5...... .50 0. 05.3509 .393. 0.5.20.8... a... .00.... 003.. BEEu 0... .00... .303 8 :0... 2.03. nuances. 0.0:“. .030... to 5.00.. .500... 0000005... .0: 2.0.. 03 958 3 0.5 c. 08.20.. .3358 5.00.. .35.... 00.02.. - «a «00.20“ 5:00.. .8005 "0.2.09.0 20.9w .9 

fianEEfiou 
Enomxg.wfi.«.=.51¢ :0 E0300... 10.0.0.5 1.20 

EnE B 0030.53.00. "50:00.... sass—Eon. 0000.030“. 
«£0. 0... 0... 00000 3.... .0302. 30.00 

.5 an... 030.. on. 62:00... Emu... 0.... 2:0... .. .ouow 0. 035.02... 00...... En... 
2.3.0.... 3.5022 020.008.. =30 80... was 

.03" c. “3500.0 0.00.... ...n. .02“. E00... 020.0003 0:03... B 000.0 .2... 0.m 00.08.»...EE =0 .0 .80 fine. «a 3.0003» dusfiuE E00... 2.0.0.... .5 .020 a... :0 “Bosnian 0:0 .05.... 20:3 an - 0.5 2.... .30 05 02.0.5553 0.... «0 000000080 :0 0000.. a 600.85... 02.005553. .E........ c... "05.0 5.... 2.3.2.0 300.... 0:0 03...... 0.. 0. 0000.200 .2380... ,, 6.9.3 5 1.2.. 0. 0033.250 tam .8505. 83.00000 20:3 .E .03.... «Sm t3“ .00.q is... .08.... 00.00.03. .otoE 9.5 1.2.. 0.... .000... 03.9 «00...... a... ".0000 tn...» 3000..“ a 5...... .0005. 055 :5... 0... 000.33 .3. 
60.390? .33... 0050000.... 9.0.... mm A .Eatnn. . 

02.00.... .0 0030:0008 0. 0.... 3E0...» :. 0320.... E. 0000 £00....“ an... .80. .0... «0.. 9F... 0.... .950”. .0 .030 a... an :20... 0. 020.0800 0. 08.20» u...u..0..t0 00.020 .23 0.30.6 . 
an... .0303 £23.... 2.... ._m.._fl.m_.._ 00.30000 00 .00.. .000 0.... .33... «EN .3 «0.8!... 

=0 0.0.22 3 an... 000...... 0 “20.02.00 0:00.000 2». 0... amigos 0.... man .5 0...... 0.030%... 8020... o 
.335... 00.50000 «090000.00. .50. FEB“. 00:00... .00 .53.. .05.»... EuEuuniux .50.. 9.45. 

no: 000.. 03 053 0. can .uflflnEou cum... :0 2...... 3:30.... a... no 0“... 0... 90.00.00. new}... 
8.02.0500 is... an Etna... >230... 0.0:... 23023 0.0....» Km” . 00:00:00 0.... .30.: 00:30.00 ionic... Emma... E0. 0.: 02.00.. 0... E00 .0 50.00.... «0.2 0 00.2.3 

III. I. P 

E0900 0.000295 0... 00:05.0 0.... 0.0.0.0.... .mn ‘1l 

220 



xsfiog EEG "conga 
.m E35232 hugfinfiaum. E352."— Ecarusm 

.3 $325 

.22... 2 :32 .33. “Econ can .335. 1.2.“. 2 new 3533.. SEE no: 5.3 firea 23E 5 .03.... $0 :03 an... 5:3 38.8 n: Echo—"En mfidSOU 2: 3 go 353 «or—.6235 .53“... can 335 . 20E uEBua :8 :5... #5 “#3 239a .mn 
‘ 

8.35. 996 “Own. .. 
E332£ 

25...." ”8228 5&3 535532“. .223 .33. $533 $5525 9.58“ ten 00:33:35 33825 raga—ass an =5. 33» no. 28253 new man...» 
32:23 2:. .b 3:332» 05 usuau... Eng 9!...» ea... _ 

3:353, .233 32.3.3: ufihuau Ban. .5 can 353% B .13.: 2: .83 BarflucuEu—_=._u2 ounqESun an: cam—.2...» 5:5: 3 _ «cm? .35.“. :5... mo :EfiEE Emu kg 32q amen—E: 2»:q a5 :23 act—33 52. 25: £5 3 an... cohacanxc manna u___.___u m 3330 . uuunn 35.953. .3.q 15:. a 3.950 .NN To: to 32 .389 
1. 

_ 
.Euxm. =8». .853: 

“3.23 5.3: u=u__o£u.uu._fiuu .cugaafi 
_ a an _ 

5.35:2. .EuEunmh nan £32333 €558 .__a_._ Loan. .udv Bu: .mu_c=u :3... 05 5 3223 . new? "EEG :2.» mfg—"EB «Sm «8332.... 2.3% 3 9.3.9.3 us. 650.... 
B It 11:3q 9228“ ES 383 $3 guano 35:5 .. unusfioaxugfiz +0 533...... 2.: 223m .3 

2....q 305.5» 
IIHII III-ll.“ 

.. .. . IIII. I I I . I II I.” ..| . I 
“ll 

I II I | I .l I 4... 

221 



cufiwfiamz 3.6.25 
9.. c. 339:5... 3...... 033%.... .mzonuuztu 

imam .3252... 
.5... c. that... 9.6.... a. 9.33.. 

:3. .2 3...... .cuEucaaEfi. :33: 
a... .o 533...... Sofia... 3 2.2.23 

SQ“. 3...... .09... can... an 
3.3.. .2... cwno cm 2.32.»... Barnum...— 

cEEfiE .2... £033 5... Emu... Brianna. .- 
fiom .2555. .89.: .32. 25:2... n no 

taxman... 3...... 9.... 532.30... 33.n5m 359.25.... mw>aEEm 5 i=5... 8 2.5.5”. ._ 
6.23.5... .o. 3%.... mu 958 2.3.5 .83. t3... .8... {2.3. 

.5 5.3 m5.» 3...... an.» ..m B. 5%.. 0H. 5.3.... B 3%.... .339... 2... .95.» =... a. 
a. 958 2.3.5 35...... .33. Bu 2.32... can... 8... .2a 33...“... B 35...... . .3353 .3... .255 53...... .Emfinfic. £0333... m... an... 32...... 2q .333. on» 286.8... E... manna—co... 

«Sm in... .35.. 5.... wan... 932...: 2.9.9.... 5a... 325 .23.: 5.5.5.... 5.3... 450.33% «Sm 1.2.. £235.02. “5...... p.33 135...... «Scam—35m d... 6.q u.:o.6u.w .0 mm: a... 336... o 
.3 .3...” n. 8F... 

.m. 3.... «ago. «a 82.52... .6. co 2...... .33 .m... .9509 o. 2... 33 c. 33.... “EEO“. .23 02.6... 3 t2. .0. “EEO. :2... ~23... . 
Eu... :0 m.........o. H533 o. 33...... a... £38.. E...“ :o 9.555.. .usucou . .332. «a “.322... Home... $.35. c. 35.3.... .23 3:3... .cwEummmzm Emu 5.3... fitnEaS. .33.... =5 5.... fig 3.35.... 5:55 5...“. «Sn $5.... .EEummmcm manic... .0 5.5.5 3.6.9.5 .o 0.3.2.3?353 a is... o 95.... 53.....553 93.5.5 2 3......5 .v .55.. 

_ 

3&3. Eng—2.... :25 .2 in «Sm 3 BE .5398 - . 
.8 .3... 3 3...... 33.3....“ a... 3.50.. mm 3553...... Even... 555589. . unbaEEu .351 . 

.3 58:3... .2... 25...? Eng 3.5:“:t 2.. 5.3 
2a..“ .28 3.3.... 9.3.... .83. .52.... 

deficmfiu. wwoEm. 
_ .8 .33 o. no...» Batu... oz 5..c 555......3... 3.3m m c. 833...... . 

Hosanna 9.63.0. 
__ .85.... .532. .82....c _ mm moan... .25.... 6.3... $523.58.... . 

_ a... .Ema... EEK—2.5.2 m... .5 333...! an. E... 5.2... a... 5.2. Bus... 9... 3.3... «.332. . 63.32.53 0... 59.95.... _ 
flap... B. .23 6:3. :. .533». 3.... .85.... .62... “59...... 5.3... .n..uEus. .33... ucflhnmocwdwhwwufiu 

. . 
. . . . . _ 

:5q «8.38m». 5:5... .25. .33 .62.... mum... 55...... 9.35.3... 2.3m 5555mm... mun... 55553.5 .0 23m n. c. 33.3%... o 2.55 B 23......“ Even... :5 man... $9.»... a 
soccer“... «5.8 .ufitu” .62”. Son 5 mm... .5 .8. e... .265... re gnaw... as. 5.3%.. $8 dam... E can .33 5.5.... .u..oE...r 33. 3 3.3.2.. .55....5. .2... 33.36 . humus»... _ E... mama... wizuafiou- _ 52.5 .mfimn 2....a m cc 9328... SQ... “.3... 3.3.3.. 5 so 63” t .a new a... .5 mm... .o .8. .o "ucozuu.:=EEou :30. 

3.3.. "ucufiusbfl. £3350 m... .38“ cm... ".5325 a... co emu—.6... uwmuc3.w.. .uboEa... Enemy. 3 32:55.... on. 3 ton... 5.65:... o 3.... .32....“ 33......» 1.2.5 5. 9.8.5... 
.N 83°50... .25.... .5... “3.2.... o. .2.» 832...... .3 .8 .uuau a. 5...... 3.3.55. oz 3.3:...” mm nonuehfim 3.6.9.... «8...... - #33... $2.... «a... snmofi... a... 

.8 .23. 3 .833 3.25%.. oz .88 .0. .25 5.5.3:... .52.... .3...» . .mtoEm... .33.... .u. nucmauu E83 2.30... «$33...» .so .0 52.... am .anow .3505: c. 59:32 co..un.m..mm tmum .8522 .2... 3.6.9.... .5Eno.w.fi.. 95%.... u... ”.350 “3.3.3. :25... .62“. .33. o... no.3... 3.3.2.9. oz .62.... acmfiummmcm «9.2.5... .35.... ._ cu m............ “again... .... Ea... Sn... 538 A .0. 3.3... ....m 
. . ._ ._ .I .I hr | l I . . 

III! .II 

Ill,1.,4.,...u._...w..nw...\..vm4. .«Mfiafiwu.m. 
. 

Ijll' .. . r... .. u . .. 

fig... .52.... 0.. - 2.3.3.3.... 3.6. L m... . _. v_ _ M13 a .u. r . . . . ‘lllf 
+..— .u 

..| AMI. 
r. “I r 

i_._ 

.ll 

I ll .— 

222 



Acmxm. 9.0.000. 205.5%... .5 u0uc0E0.nE. .00.:m ” 
0:0 00......" 0.. cm... «a... 80.020. 30.20.... 0005.020 , $6.. 055.23.. #22050 x: .8 0..... o. 5.....0 oz .00.. a 0.00.... 63.62.. .03 9......5 . .50.. .0. «3...... mac... 0... =. a...» 029.... .3 __ ._ .03... 5.55.5 02.6... a 03.5... 02.0... 

_.__ .8... 3.. 82.528.550.05 0.... 3...... a... €3.53. 8.5%.... 9.22.8. .uxafiaesfieiL .EEmo... 9.5:... 0.5.5.50. 0.... kg .3805. m E0229... 0.... 0.006 .. 030.050 .25.... u. m - Enamfluéau 09.0.... a. «£50.... 0:9...005 .3 .89.... 20502000.. 00:52.3 :0... :0 £550.: 1.... 0.5.54: 9...... 5.2. .00... :2..." £553.33. 0...... 3.50.0 3.5%...“ .30 0.3.: 0... 3 0.0.50. 3530... _ 
002.25 .3 30..» .025... .230 3 an... Eczema... .0... o~o~ :. E052... «ESEEBEEEH. ...o...=mou0.. 0031...? .u .025 3.00.. 8mm umfififikuflaoc 0.... 02.05.58: .82.... a 20:.29... .2... 3:02.50». ._ Ho..3=..0 ”500.5. 3:0 5.550.. 3:233 a: 3.5. :30 £300.. 3.02.05. .Snmm.:mm..o . 50.5. o: .33 .05: fine... 5.3.5.5 mo 20>! =.. .6182. c0555.... 00.0...Em .039... 2 to..." .5505 van 3033:... 0... Easmsfifi 

~ 
:0q 30.520: 55:13.5 08m 005......m 302 c. tagging 0...... 5....- 302 R 302 :5... 0... 3:200 B 0......03 .. 30.. ”.0 5:55.3h:.203=o 0.... 35...... .m 0.0.3 .0 «553.000.. _ 

.2... 5:3...5. 
10:820.. 

«at... .0230 0.3.. 2.....0... 
.Aomxmu 50:80... :50... 5.3.0000. .6 55:30. .2... 5.50.0... 98m 0 co EunEuE £00... 25$..q 5.3 «0:30.. 0H. =0 £5. £33....» 00...... was... =3. 0...... 

.- “amazon. £00.. 02.3%....83 , .8 .0.” 958 B 0.... 003.... mcficsam 03.2.3582 .893 m..........o.. 0....Efi....E_.< 0:528 _. .2... .000... 05.00420... 0...... ”.3 6.5 E... .2. N. 5.... a a... .00.... 8 23...... 22. .82 5 =3. 35...... .38 t c. 5...... 5.02.8. 2.. “5...... 05332268 .20. _ uuugEEou 5.. Rm. 0.. ._.3 3.. ....~ 
.33 .3 5.0.2 .8 20.. 5.. fin 20.....2008 252030.. E 00.... 65.3.3 .. {03200. E... fie. .m...._mco_fi_0._ 85......— d .5859... 

_ .33.... 
33 cusses... 0:0 332%.... .50 

c. 30...... o. .203 0... .6. ”~99: 62.50.... Emu... unzfifiEEE E... 8...? .0... Emgfiofifi .4 9.5.2. .5. :0... 930.23 .00.... .. 0.00.0 5.30 0.... 0m... 
0... 5.... “5.9.0“ 0550... 0.039..“ a... 00.00.... 0003350 .50 ”.90 ".0050 0.530.... 00...“. £0... .8505. $0.» 5.0. 20.80... ”£55... an... u.uo§.m 939.. 0... .0 E05335... 2.0.2.2002. mains sagas... coccmfi ”DB .8 0..... o... :23... 00.50....“ a: one”... Ea... 002000. .3... :0 0080 . u... c. $0.: =0... 05 .00.... 

022.... q. .3. 02.5.... .2... 000.03.. 
_. 

.83. s... 5 3.2. ......m 552.. .2... £503.... 
.83.. an.“ 3590 

$8.. 3 83 4...? c. 0050...“... «0.3.3.. 00.200... .6. 33 a. 03......3 3 Esau... 022.00... . EB“ 3.5.0.900. w . 
.32.. 83.0.. 9.32 60:0. 2 “20500.9. -55 ESE... .0. E23... 002:3... E... 00......) nuts? 0.... 0.5.0:. 2.3.0.531 €309.00. 0:50:00 .5 00.030 #03 

.0030... m.....m< .2... 005.30.... u.0 3...... 0..... __ 50.5. 0.. no. 00.0.2... =< 00.3.. 0.0 05...“...00. .6. 0.0.080. 5:03.30 00:05:20.. 0..... .3...» :5... 3 003 5.33.9... 8:05.800 ”.0950 «0959.0: 00.5.: n.02.... .8... $5.35.. 003.2... 3 00.00.... 0.0 0:050:30... no. Smash... 5.3.33.0 go. 9.3.... 0.22.... o .255. a..." 30.3.53... :2 =0 50...... 
.w _. 

_. 
using... 0033...... 25.5.... 0... case...“ 

_ Rom 00.059... 6...... 00:303. 35:30.... :3... L_ deco... .30.... .2253 3.3. 250.60.... __ add... 5...... Eu“... 3 «00:00.5 00....5... .0 360...... 
: 0.... .5 E020. 3 20m 0... 0.0:... .mco..u...§_. . 

«one... 2.3.5.. 5.0.5.03 =35. 0.... _ 
.5 .50... 0... 39.9.2... 00.0.... m. 3:9... no mafia... fi _ 3.3%.»... .3. a. 5.2.0. .252... __ «Sm 30... 3.5.003. o. 0.... 00.30.. 05...»... 3:20. _ 

r. .03.»... 0:... _ 
. snow 0... .5... 3.0."... magnatonno 055$. 0..._...o SQ... 60.25.3000 «£303..» no. 05......» . ....m .03.... 

.EBoEum cm... 0.039.... 0... :o 09.2.... 0.... 05:2... “ago... 05.5.0... ca... 5:83..» .03... .0. cm... ., 0.22.0.2 9......— co..8.....m totem“... 
.030... 533.....00 030...... :0 3.000.. a. “Emacs... 5.3 is... a 333...... 0>.m:0...0....E..u 0 E0529... 2.0 _ 30.... 2350 3:00.“. .25 $530.0... :0... 005...... o. m... 9.5“. meta? .33: .30... .0... wt .3 3.08.... 

.onom mctzu t3“ .0. 33.55.33 _ 3.5.0 .595 5:50.“... m: .38 an.» 3 03.2.0.5 00E... «0.....atoano animus“... «.32. 0.5.... .o w." 3 553300 an.“ 030...... .. .5383... 030..-... .0. 00.3.... .m II“. 
_ - . _ id.-¢ III |.| ll 1|.Ilu-..._| 

I- 
-I unl | - I .MHII 

:0.Eusu.nuofiuo¢-ud0fl..o.0>0n00:._ \ ... ..|... l.| - . . .. 

223 



.835". .3... mania: En... .. Icon. a... .33 £35.83 5:... $33.23 3... BEE... .9... «Eu .3 fisufoa .3. oasis... 83.3. - 
Ir $83.5 3.9m. .85.”... “553.com... .2... he. .5 flcafimxzaw. 5.3.. 3.5...50 a... .3532... .3 .23 o. 5...... 3.2.9.... oz .35.» .c 35.35.... $6.. «5.5... u .525... “5.5.93.5... 

, .ua..=..u. 58... up... 3.2.3.8 53 
.353. 23.3 an... .o. 3:212:33 E... Swan—.5... 

_. 
352.302 «3...... 

.2 on...» .33....» ca .0... 3.5%.. 62.59 9:2 .23... .2... 3...... 
.ufiuzou 0...). .523: . ensuflmfimu 3.635.. “.3532. m....mu..u>.fi 

, 
Ea... "flcmcwm 5.22.3 m... .m." 050.. .o. mega—".6... .a. tum: .33. Row .o... 33...... 9.33.... .9...» 35.0....” «SEE. 3 EEua... .o 5......3». ucm .3...q 

050.5 3.3. ”2.. .8...— ncm Beau... 
ucmauu 9.3%.. 3.23:0...53 5.3... mus—afim m3....~..u...:.3 m 5...»...— ._ 5.3... again... a... uncut... E... 5.5.. .3 ”3......q «a... B.“ an... mam. m. .mou .353 intone. «>2. .Em mums? v3.3.3.5? . 3...... x53 .3. mm .25.. swank... duo” .0. Sta... Bmz .mamu .3 in... in? to. magic... 33.5.. . .m:o..fi_::EEau ago. .3... 8... .8315... 3.32.... .5852. .3 .3... o. 5.33 3.2.2.3 oz tong...» ... Epic... $3.3... 5.3.. «3%... u .2... “83.9.5 .5... 8:32.92. .EQm. was? .3. 035.30....» .. 

_ 
Buz ”flcwfim 3.52.5... z... 5...... 9...»... 3.5 33.... c.5555... 3m... 2.. ouou :. t...» .nEuxm .3 8.0.3... 0...... m B $9.5... 22...... a... 5.... 2.....3E3 w... .623... .3953...» .3 L "in... 3. .0 522%.... m... .2... m... 2:0“. 3 .350. $329.... 5.22.... .2... 3....q $55.. 9.5%....c o. 5.3... 3.3.5.... .33... um .33.... 5...... «castaway. 9....»5 a... :q0 $9.33.. 55:... ES *8 9.5.58 B van .382. 3.0.... out—Ego or. “no“... .uo...EEou or. 2.. 9...: o 52.... 3 30.3.6. «mono... “Em .522... .3 ..o.. 3.3... .3... $8c 

.3 9.59 o. 32...... 
3 Eve... “.5533 5.3 35....83 .o. BEBE 3.x».fiq dun” 53......a .35 .8 moan—m... 3......03 33.3.. 1 

.8... .53.... 3.3.3.8 “3.26.. .fisummmcw 3.2.5 m .Ea 3.2.8.1532. 3:52.. B 3......3 _. 
i: 

.— 
fiom .....=m .39.}... a .9. 3.53.2.2. 9.33.... .256. cu... £5... 3.35.3. 2...... ._ _ . 

SQ... flutes... v.3 3......a .2.» . _ «5...... $0 .3... 0. 5:8 3.2.0....“ 
o... .55.... 3.. 9...... 88.33 69.... 3.95.. _. -. 

2.5.. ".85... .222... E5 .33. .i NEE: up. «$2.6... “Em 3.3.3. 1.2.. ..o 533...... ".350 30.33.... aa... E5 .335... .2.» 3.3 «gains... .853. 33...... $2.3 a... 5...... “$535323 _. 
33:39... 5:32. 33..-”...9. m2... :2...» cm... 95.5 a. $8.. .35.... n... so 5... _. 

«.02 "acuzum 3232.3 a... «S 4...... 3 5...... 3:35... 
a... $5.3“... gnu... a... 3:25 o. 35.5.... a 85...“... 5.3... mafia... 3...... :5 Sugar. .3 .2... 

an. 3.50....» .3 3...... 9...... omow o. 0.... tuna... .33. 3.25 .9... $4.53 .- 6029 main... 1...... no.3) 62.3.5. #15... .EQS “2...... mean... .2. B 5.3.. .53 2.. 35.35%»... E... 3.8.33 .53.... 9.65.0... Bcufiauam .cofizoEEu Bu... 3 «for... an... as... cfinmmmmm ._ NEE: 0.. b... .o. .3... o. “—2.2... EwEE.nEm .caE...o_..Em.u... .n. “.28.... 55.3.. __ ".qo «3.38.... cans: 3.5 an... .umSEEou m............ an... 33...... a. 9.3.5 .3... ....3 in... o no. 3......» o. Emumcmz m:...... 5.... 3...... 
.ma _. 

SQ... Emu... 9.55.583 _ 
w... 5.... mi... 2.3.5.... m ..o .2... _ 

.u.....m anon. 630.25.. manna. Eastman... BEE... m... 5...... as... .EEuB...E. .3 8...:atoano anew... 35.5.2.3. £3.95... m... ,, an... uni... =3. ten... 53...... a...“ 3... Eu: 2 man. .3. c. 3... 3...:3... 2.6 2.... E... 2......8 . 3 380... 3.33:. ....u a... 85...... :2 .3 2.9 .328 ._ o. «to...» 3 3...... Ram .o. 3...... tons... .. .. Seam... 30.. < $.55... «ma—.325 0.5.5 5... .33.. «.962... 35.3.. E... 25.5.... .. a .3... 5...... .33. 32mg... A....a..s_2... 38.583 .5. 0w... 5...... E29... main... 383...... 3 02......3 ._ . 
.SQN. ___. 332...... .5 .2353 ram 32m... 5.. 9.... _ 

2252.. 5.0.3.... 6.3.. E... 3.6.... 0...: «33:32.. E... 35.2.5... 3......58 255:. a co $2.50.. Ewan... mafia... .535. $3.535... mc_~._.m3m. .EEmEn $.39. an... ammufifi u... :. nausea... as 3.223 €93.53“... .m 2.330.. «Sow Eon—Eu... Emu... :22; El 3.5.5... 3.5.5:... w... 35......» .2.» 38...... a. .0355“. a mo fimucmum new. $22. NEED. a...“ 002......— AH _ | H 
I I I I I I'll 

I Hfi. m...nvI. 
l 1...... .l. fin... w” 1..L.- I- ai- - - . I . I mil. fifififififikm II]... .t 1 

u . 

224 



«8 .3"... 3 coaum 3.33:3 oz 

H25. oz swank“ ”Baum <3 22.5 .23 :9q «3.3%: 55...: .35 $3 
.23 5 Emma =5. mafia—Homo: .8 .202. 29.... 9.23 

4835 mfi~h¢0u .2. 3:53.... 
gout—55a”... 3333 8:232: 05 20... 

.83. 
o~o~ a. “5:593. «Ecfimfim mafia—Bu 

mEUmme. 3a... «3.33: 33332...“ 

5.5.. 3.3522 .33.; E mos—g E.» .2395 £3.63 
a... Bang...“ 553t 3:55 =m new 2mm 

=5 “:5 ESE... 5.3 «5.52 $5.25 
«3:3... mo “56:92.5 .5 £35.22 6” 

damn £3... c. 05.2...» cozmufifiane. 
E... «amaze .2232. 5:9. 5.3.5 

:2“. a £3. 3.53.... SE... 5:03.258 
:8“ we Enos 2.. new Ems. 5525553. 

2.8." Qua Eau 
09—55-500 Eye—CD 

595. a». 
£350 “350mm... 52:: ".25 .uumfiEuu 

7 .Snxm. 3.32....» mm 3:2. 2... Ewen—a5. 
.. 8.... 

3.2.32: 2... 3.0.3.. 3 “553.9% E... 
:ofiufiEoEE. .3 «£35.. 2.. 3.5.33 .EQE 5.38.. 85%.... .3: ca 

inseam“. £390 .2... amp—«.35.. £5. .35. 
.63. 

acowuaucuEEOuwh 9—0:. up.» “won—um...“— 
fiua firm—Ea 9.35.3; 5.39.9. 

3:2... 

.cofimfifim .5533”. 33.5.... 3...... 35.3%.. $553.6... 35:5. 9 :5... 
.3 3:0... ESE: .5533 m unmEEnE. 

.ma 

6.95. 35.3... 3 3:32 ”gamma... 
can? tum». =5. amp—act. «.32 355...... 

E EHEE 98.... 
.32 .0 an mafia.“ ESEU .9. GSOU B 3.5%... E 32833.. 3.3.3.... t3... corms—BEE 3 2.... 33.5%..“ #53 353.33 

5.3.. Eco: .0832“. 
50...... oz 

".850 muesgum 5E3: .35. 

.EQB flaws—2.3.5. .n 
.30 .3 «any... can can c3295.... m 33.0 .866. Eoufifififi 5.3 you... 

was 3.3:... 5:3.5EES a fling. 
.65.... , 5.5.22. a... me «wanna .30 a 3.9.5.. “Em 

23.59.»... 6223 3.23 29:3 30.3: 
.863. “5.3"... was £2. 3 3.58:...“ 

«:33 can cozfifinea 2t 32...... 

.513: 3.553... Emma...— fiE. magnum “Egan...” 3 gauge 
sons—.2; EB .323... 53% #0 ch 

6.....«6 $9.2...“ 5.3.52.3 €23.22. 
2. z___n_mm£ 2.. .6...“ S 35.5... 

.55.. 25... can; Eu 
£5.53 25 .32. .233: ESE... 52.35% 

Sign 3.53 62.9528 >3 3.3.52 um 

.38“ SEE =m E tuna... 3E=u .5..t 3 than 

33.9% “52. .8» 
anion 

mar—ma. EB E5355 £m 53...: ESE 3 
mucmbum :_ 3.33:: 3550 +0 835...... 25cc... 

*8." Swan 53:2 5 3.33.... 353.. “E .5323 

Ems. EmEmmmmcm $33.5 
sac... on 

”.qo $2.682 :35: Ex“. 

:53 :5... =2: 29.. 3 3.5.2.8 
a... tuna Bake 2.: E :32. .5 £59633 

$3.. 2: .255... 39.2.. Ema EmEommmcm ma.§aEm 

1 __ . . .. . 

.63. £8 m_w:_Eu_~> an an...» 355 822.3 $3EE~E3§E Ems? 35.5 E... 3.23."... c. 8.5... 
55.3 E 9...a tmfi ucm "3.63.5 

fitoEmE .33.... =m $22... 3 0:523 
.63. $32.. 

9:55... a...“ as; ”Emu... 3 3:95 uca 
“3.3.6.. co sumpuumm mEmu._mu.. $33.... :3 

$m>oEEu 39.9.3 33 n on: new 3—25.”. 
.89.: 355 E... 35.3.“... 

fin... can 3...a 2 3:333. 3.9:... .33. 88 .5. 355 3.6.3.. 
.555... an Ego—mu a 32.25.. was ofiEu 

.83. 28 s. 33 in... m mains... 3cm...» new $3.36.... EuEmwmmfi 
ago—aEw .a 32.5.. a £033 an... 

mum... .5535. .2... «$35» 2 2.528 III 

355......3 :5 :. EwEazgc. $.63Eu 
3050.... ten oucatunxu wzgomcm 

So... a $23.03 up: 9.5... «ma—m... 
main... 5.... cm=m B BBS... a... 53.29: 

22. 3 £53 .53 333E... 5—3... 
.ntoEuE .33.... .26 29.5.6 .3 Emu. 

as”... 
.a 38 t 38 5.6%.... 

Ugo—nEu .35.: 
.3 5359: E... 25.5: 

“cafimmmmcu $3.3m a... an: 3 3:35”. .5 

cox—Ems 
.59... Mmuécuinsgonu 

-41.. Echfludfllflc 
—L.:.+.r 

. .1. II 
u. 

I 1‘ 
. 

225 



.m... 228 2 was 9:: E.» 5.53. 5053 .333 
23:5 in? 

.umEn flaw 3* Evan— uzfificfiun 
new .252 :mEmB—n a 52.33 Ecflwctaa _ .3“m musician no mom—.39 

2:623 .mcozmfiSmk. a...“ 383 .mu 
____ _ 

£52» .mcoamuusa 
‘ 

1 

IF— 

>uEnE=¢ 5 5.38.5 8:50 05 ..8 $32 scam—.3.— umE Easing tau 8E : a c 8: a . 
~52 . 838 15.10 860.3 3mm n mcfiegmu a «853.... 5.3“?! *0 SUE—n map .233?t awhauuusw 

ofiflfi” o 
«.355 ...—an 2: 5 33:5 

.onan .flamaq c. 3t EFER. Manchu 52.5 
2.. £3. 55.5 8.2 33.3 ... «$5208 ....s 

063 BE OH. .38 .32 P._ $2“ .3 3 38:: 
Raw 53 grew—gnu. Awsumcubm >9 EwEwnmcmg was. .mcofimflgcou 3.5.”. ..uvoE .mnormflupcou .8».m Ems—Eu 

a...“ :m:o..£ 9:33.. 3:22pm.“... .5 «2:35;: 3.53 .25 “35mm magma. “33:35“. EB .mcoflun oSEaE 3 t3» Exact—mu. 
_

_
 Emu» QEMMHHH 

$5. .5. 39:90...." tafi 352%— 55. Bow... Omzu 3.05: new 235 be 330359 “38 . .co: .3 83.55.33 “552“ bongo... .wto .NN a 

5.6: :0q :ommfies E5 .895 wumtnEnnm .8 “genie... Ea demon p.38» 3:923 a 0:2 33% _ 

c850 «3503: ammo—n” 

oz 
. 

58.. «255583 B macaw—unwEEBE ..mEnES UH... “so—EB 32.: E... 8 t3» _ 
I “_ .5 m8 Emu 3 cozum oz 9.3: new nan: .63“ 3 Emmy in; m 235 . ..8 «3.5 v.33 .3388 23332” £35 

.3“ .. . 
J .. 

f I - - ll .. I I 
Wlln._.£-|L.H.....I‘. 

”H 3...: 
., E26: - «can. .... 

.033 026 _ 1|: 

.233 1 

226 



.33 .655». ... .23.. E... a... 026..."... .2... 330...! .836. 33 .0. 5.... .2200 0.2... Oman .0. ca... .258 5.88.... 0.... unuEflufld an... .. 5.0.8.... .0... 2.2.508... ".2: 30.00.00 o 
Jun—0.... 9.39.0 .3 u. a...» .09.... 5.08310 3%.... .2658 «5.6.... 2 30:8 5.60.... .5 .0228. .53 “a... “5...“...5553 2.2.30 

.85....88 
tfia ..m 3 5.08.6". Ea co.u..u...=EE3 fauna—0.. 8cm c 3050.... 3 “£309... Sofiaifi a 

£5. a 3.5.5.... .82.... gases? .5... .228 5:8... =5... 5.... 13.55208. :3... 3.. E... 35...»...52 reflux... .053 £32.62 ..m «.mmE 5...... .3... a... 8 35.2.3. 
.3 =9... 2. .805? 3...... Exam 5.8.055... 38... an... 2.... .33 Ewan... 5 Eng 2.. 3 3.2%.. 59.3... .0050 20.003... 1.2... 035%». 038......» .0 “23:3... .2... 8.3.3....8 ca..u........ao§._a 2280...... F33 E... 3325.. me... an... Epic... .9030 c2080... 0...... _. c... 88.....EEau a 383.00 0530.05. a E200... 5.2.2.0.... 5.60.... 35...... . 

.958... «22558 3:26 25.3... .2... .3353. «a 03.32 0. ac» Ema. mucous 2.050» a m. .0..q 0...? .- 9..q 3:30 25:0... 53 3 3:23:50 .0...q 3.5.03 0.000 .3 £033.q tuna”. ._ 
0.5 9.23.5... 0:50:00 =1... 0...... .30 .3 9...: «0... Eu .Suxwu. .533... 0.22.} 
0.5 .53.... .25 ........._0.._.. 3:20.... 2... 2.3.... a...... $5.3 

0.... .0. 3mm .6 3.... 005.3500 9.3.58 3%.... "EmEEE 3 .0323 sun so «as 05.28.... 508..q =22... duo" 2.520 2. u 2.3 .2. =33.q .35.... .3 c.5294 - 5.08:8... .0. £5.58» 0.08 .3 . .83 n... 
n. 

to 09.0.2.0 0n. =5. .05» =1 .0039». 5:33;". >u=UuunEou a .5."m 
dnau .unEflnum 2. t8» Emtnfinnm .fi. .30.... 3 flfiEmnummu 

sum... =5. a...» .330... mi 02. 6.5.8.33.— .35:.. .50..» B EcuuunEno “En 5.3023 0.0.3.... . £38553... 5... .0:..sa..£ 3 En. van 00:02.3 $3... 0.. £3 .0...“ 0320.000 an? 0.0.02.3 ._ .333 3:35... Em... an... 3.0.2.3500... £030. :30. 600.000.. 3.33.. £30 .52 6:35.. 5.03:? «5 .8 «£52. 3.2.00 . ago... «302... 9.....00. (5. "2.32.0. 352...... 5&3 a... 2:32.33... 2.32... 2.... 233...... .2 ._ 
.35.??? 5.22.8 3.9.... . 2.3.93.5. .2. a... «3...... 0.23.5.0 22¢ "8.2.0 1.2... .0 3.02.... $8 633.... .50.. «.2. 5.26.8 9.....8... .- ..0-m. 3.0.5503 553:? £35... . E. “3.8 “sauna... 03.2%..3» 3.3”. . . 

5.62.00 .0 use... 0...» 3.20.5... Eu... 2.50.2.3 3 324 
$9...." :2... 3...... «an: :on 0.... .2» 3:02.30... 053 a... .83 $2.... 03525.... :00 

..c 09.2. 
96 9.8.... 2.... .aumucuEEBuflfi Eastman... 03" us...“ 05 .0... antenna... 5 8.0.3.3.. 

..n 3 83050.. 2...... «can 0.2.. ESPF 3.5.5.33. Rania». .52..“ «caEu...E. .25 Ewan... . .0920...» Room 
.03“ 0.352.. Egon 05 3 03:82.. .33. .3202 .8 0.53 a... 

.2... 832.6. 3.... .5... 3.3.32 3:30 88 a... .. B .5... 0555.55. 3......0 anon .23.... . 
.30... 2.3.558 8:235”. .08 £20 £20555 .0 aEa=22 .2253 ..u 3 Esta... .0...“ 0000.32. :02... 3.. .50.. B on 8 “E3. 050...”...— Eunofiu 88m. “animus 033......» .0 «1.515% 95. ".350 3.336 3.5 «So... 9.0.5282... 3:30 0.28% 05.5.32. 3.3.2.38 < .. 3.9.32 3.1.... ".530... 80.5.2.0... 33.0 . E2 «Emu. 5...... 35.388 5 on . 

.9...»q 
030.5600 3:020 3...... 05 an n. 00.03.33... .3 $90... .53 o... 05...... 5.3 3:3. 0.»... 9.0.... 5.2.3.0 E5» 82.... 

.nucsuue 
.8..q a... 3 03:32.. a... .3 5.. 3.. actuate... a... £30 5.3.... 2:5 :30 .5 Emma... 025.50.. 6.5... .3230... .5 03.280... 52. 25.. «v.02... _. n...» 25.0 .3230... B 8...»... 5...... 3.3.0 .. 

druaE .832. 3530.... 3:25 guano—cu 3......» 05000» 0......0 Luna .3 0300.0... :03 2...... “Banana .- a...» 80.3 05.32. a 5.333 3 036:. _. 
.60.”. 023$... 3.30 3.8.3 32.05:... 033.0 :02. an... 1.30.03 0.00 “30.3.. 0.....U 0.30.00». Eu”. ”Ewan... 0......u. o...» :0 0020.... .0c “Eu EamnuE 0... 230.com mam—g. .8...=u 1.2.. .3 .33.... «$5 a .3... twp—“.333 :03 0.5... nutuoE 3:30 0.0.000... 0.5.0 .. B “0.33.... >530 0.200...» 0......0 302.0 . 2.0 0:00.... 0.50 a 05503.... . 

.32 .3}... 3...»q 3:25 .8823 .3532... 35.3.2 30.2. .8." Eu... 2.... .2... .uou .0 $2. 5......» mm... 2.0 4.38. 05 “an...” 039... 2.0% an unoEugE. 3:96 330.9. new... E... 2:30.... amt... ".350 3.3.5 +0.5 03m .5» 3...q Ema. 3.00.... ms .0 So 0:... .83 0...... .b 3 a 0.30.08 85 0.5.3. =29...u cw 30..."... o 3 0.323.... 0.5 2.0.0.... 2.553... . 

.3» 323 $2 0.0.... m. 
.2... .Eu .0 a... 5...... 2...... E»... .33.“: .3... gamma .83.. 0.2... 3.00.... a... .o .5. +0 0:0 am anon 9:: +0 a... a on...” .o .......u 

.3 .3» “an... .23 233...... .E . 
0.3m 3...... an..." 2:9...q 8:38 33.. .35.. 3.3... .20 9.5.2.5. _... tannin 0... 555.33 .. 2.3:... 33 "5.5.5“ 5 EcuEtnnu.» Emu... . 

39.3.. 
00cm..ooxm .33 .5. .0. 238.0... 2.2.0.2 .22... >...u..aE m .0 Ewan a... :0 00m... 2500.... 380.com mucnztotun .5.— .0 6.8803 cm... .5... 2q0 3.30.0 3.50 26m .3 .832. .25 09.3.... a. Euufloum 5... gauge...“ 2.... .. cu... c.0395 03”.... 0:0... .2... an“; . «II. 

. II: I. '1'. .II II.|....|.| 
. __.. 

I 
cling 

I Jll 

0.9.0.23 02B.:0.uuu.zuu.0 :0 5852.... 
.H 

1.--..I 
I III! 

. .r 

m6 £51.»: an... 

”3.02.... 

2.0 .0 “EH... 
u... 9a.. 3.5.5.... . 

c0_unu__=... 
30.020... HES—cu . 

0803.03 0.3.. 
E... 03%.... S. «50...... .. 

85:05.0 3...... 
.2.» Ease... 0.... fiEBflfi 

05...... 35...... 55... .0... nucufiuu 0.... 
“3.00030 .uufietoton 

3:03.590 
0.6.0:... 0..- 

3035 .9530... £33... 
in... on cusp—ans 02.... .coufl.:am..0 ufinEufii 
05 tan...“ 0.... 0:50.. . 

07.5.3... 

was 0.0.... .2.- 03055 4. 

._ 

22? 



I fillllll-I I'll...vll.l.. 

IIIIIII 

. .__ 
|.| 

lllll II II II 

.32.... 98 E. .0 30.00.. .5500 

u1.!..~| 
.‘| .I I I . .I . . 

«.530... 3.0.0.0.... .300... 0000...... .w 1" 

6.”... 500 0. 00.0.0. 000.030..» 00.30052. A33. 00.30.0090 
0:0 “0.3.0.... 0. 0.... 00...»... 50.. .2 .0300... .00 0:0... .. 1...... 30.0.. .0300... .00 0...... 0.....uucam .. .uc..00E 00EEE00 £330 .__000 .0 00.30.35 .2... sum. .33: Oman 

3.00:0 :0 u. “.000 05.2... 0...... 0050...... :0 0......02. .__ .0 .000 0... 3 “.000 20.0.... 0...... 050.50 . .0350... a. 0.... .8. 0... 8.3.0202, .003“. 2.0.0.... 0...... .0 .2... ..0........m... 000.. 2.... 02.323 30.9.... 0...... ._ 0....0...a. 0.... 52.0 “00.0....E0 .__. 032.0. ._ 
.2... . 09... 00.3.5. cmunm "3.030000... , $0...q 00.....EE0U 3:006 25:0... 5000 ”5.00:. 00.5.0.5 5.0.6 2500... 0... .0 00000.0...Buflfi. E0023... . an." 0.. EB. 000000 "0.003.... n .. 0000.350... 2.0.0.... 0...... u 0.0.53 0.. 005.3500 9.0.9... 0...... £000... . is... 0.... 0:03... 0...... 02.2.5 . 

g. 4.0%.... 0:02. 30.....u IS... .0 3.00.5 0.3.0....» 0.5.0 05 2000.. 0...... 1.2... 0 £5. a... 30:0. 0 00.000... 0.0....0 :8 am 0... .0: .0 .050...» «:0 0.... a... .... 5.... .__...60 3 000.030.... am .0 $3 .0. 3:05:59... 5000.053... 0.558... .00.... ".38.... 00 0.... 08.. .0358 3 0.... 0.9. no 2... Ex. 2.. 30.2.. 2.: .. a... 3.3.0.33... .8... .__... 0.. . a. 2...... 2...... 05.2.0.8 00 . 

8...... .2... 3. 0:003... 2.3.... 
«than 0. 0398.8 .0. 0000.30.00 00.80.. a... .. 3.. «5...... :0 3.... 0020.30.00 *3 00020.0 o 

.50.... 0.. .20.... a. as“ is. 5 03.3.... $3 3.0 .. 30...... 3.02.0.6 - 00.0 0.....8... 03m . 2.3.0.... .85. a...” 005...... 5...... 20050 3:3”. .35 $00... 
.29.... 0.. anon >05. 0. 00.300. «0.... «~00 u .0. . :00» 9...... «30.3.3 to. - «20 0.2.0.. .. :0 0000.. «.000 3.3.0 000.50.. 

. 

.__ 

_ 30.00... . .38 200.30.. 0. 1.005 0.... 2... 0000.000 .895 .002000 .0. Esau 0.... 
_ 

000.. 0.2.... ......_n 
00.0.80 . 

.30 00.5.0.0 no... :0... 85.3.08. 0.0.00.8 anon 0.... .. 0. =0... 00......0E0u 0.0.8.8 on...” 2.5... . . 
0...... .0 00.50... 

_ 
...0...m....mE 0... «0.00:0... 02.0....E00 30.00.00 0...... .3a . on... . 0:0 5...... 03.5.5... .. _ 0.5.00 0. 0.2050000 =0 0. 00:30....» 9:00.... a. 0.0.? .. 00.0.2.0... 00:03.28 0.0.00.0... 0033...... .n.0...E0.: 008.5050 5.... 00:00... 5...... 

0.0.. 00.100: «00.0 $004 o 0.0....2000 02.2.5 . 
00.....533 :00... 2.... m....0..0 30.0 .0. 0.50:0. 2....0 ca. .. .95; 00.03.03 0.0» £000.. 005...... 2.00. .0 0.00.0 .0. 0.300....» 0.....0 E. 00.03.. . 0.... 009.000 :0 £00....“ _. 0.... c. 00305 0.... .0 0...... a. .00.. :00... 0.5... 0.30.08 .0"... 0.00.... 5.0.... 0000:0000 .__.En. 0E0...0s. 0.0”. 2.0.0.... 0... .__0 850E 0... 00.... 0.0050... 00......500 008:0... 0.... mcuunnfi. .030... 05000... 

.5800... 000020500 0..- ....q .0... 850800 :0... 200...... 09.0....Eno .020 0.03 0... 5.... 00......2500 :00... mm... .30.. .0 80.0 8:0..0500 .. 00.020... .00...“ .0. “:00. .0 «00.... £0.50... .__ 0.0.00.0“. 02.00.... cm 50......5. 
.0... 20...... .2500 58.... c 

.0. 105.00.. 0..- _ .su0._.>0_.0.. 0...... 0300...... 00......030 00:00.53... 000.. 0.5... 308.00.. 0.... .0 «Sn 2:0 
.03“ 002.0 2. .- 39$. 0.0.3.0.. 0.... 3 300.5000 =0 3...... . .0..0..0u.....u.0 6.00.300 .0020: .0 09.0.0: .Snxm. 0m: 0.. 0.0.3.0“ 002...... up... 0.5.03.0 .0. €006.30 0...... 0... 000... 00.... 00:05:00.3 .. 00...... :0 00.30.000.00 .2... 0 9.0.2 .. 0.0%. .0530... £0.00... 0E0..0_2 ..0~.m. 0.00.200 £0... 0. 500.00.. 0...... _. 3...... 0.0050 3:000 .03.... 0.0.00... c. .__.n a. 53022.0 .0220... .25... .. =0 .0 00:02.30 62.000 .0005 0.0.050... . 02.0.2090 0.30.0.2.» __ 

5...... 3.0.2 .0332". 
. 

08m .00.»?! .00.... .__.m m. .30.. 30.00.. GEES. .- .3}. 3:00 30...! 002.00.. 30...... a .3000... 30...... 003.000 0 .:0E0.0E. .m . 0.... £00....» 
0. 00:300.... 

_ 
. ._ 

_ 3&0. $525000 ..0 3 20.... u... .__... . 0.3.5.... 00.02.30 0..» 00000 .20.»...000. 00.2.09. 0.302.000 _ 
3 «$00.... .0 .50.. «00:0. 0. E30000: .0 =0 .0 00.0000...“ 2.0.50 5...... «0.00000... 

7 0.0"a: duou .3 0...... :0 0.5.5.000... «.0050000 30...... 00.00000... .2... “0.3.0.. .0... “0.2.0... .30... 0.3 .0 .c0E..0....Em W 000.... .3323 «.000... .0 3.00.... :0 0. 10505.... 0.0.... “0.3.0.. .2... 2...... 98 03.00.... 500...... . 
L. 

. In 
.r! egg-5.30:0... 0...... . :fill. u... 

v. 11.11:] . .. .r...l.iA 
Hi urbm: 

.0 .. 
LATIJVI‘II'. 

228 



.23” 2250.. 5 EB... a... .3 3.5.5.... .E.w unaifi. .83. 88 .6. E... .223 0.63 33 .2 ca... .223 gonna... E... «5.53%... In... a 5.60.... .2.» .5532»... x“... 32......3 . 
Jumbo...“ 9.3!... an a. “E... .Snxmv corms—um Ext...- .m.n.o.>o_u 22.8.. 3 .833 co.fia..... no .853... 5.2. an... “co.umu...=£a 3.3.5.5 

33.353 
t!» ._n 3 coins? van co.uno.c=EE3 .EaEnun. 3:3 . «SEE... a. “5.52.... ufiEvEE. . 

in“ o. 5.5:? .23 £552.32 .5... .35“. 528.... :5... 5.3 uscwfisnfi. can... an... .2... aco82.=uo.. roams»... Beam» banana... ..~ flaw... :2...» an... n... 8 8:823 .3 =2... an 5.2%.. «5...... :33 ”£555.55 , Home .3... 9.... anon 3.2.59. :. than 2.... .5 gnaw Enact .223 5.33... 1.2.. .93..q 298......» .0 “Hanan." £5. 85.353 5.3:33025 2033...... «Son tum 3....q an... 5... E969... .obcou 5.83.... a...» a E. 35.55509 6 38:3 gEuEE. .. Echo... c0355.... cough... 3225 .h 
.953... umEEEou 5.25 35.5.: nun» 4.52.33 an 12.2.9. a. u...» EB. 5.959. 95.5% a a. 2..q “E.— .. unvouE 3:36 255E 5.8 an uu..=...nE8 

5.5m... m........_.uuv. «woo .5... 5:8..q tan»... . 
“.5 mctn...=nE 2.2.23 :3. 5.. ion 3 2...... no: En Aomxnn. .513: via—a. £5 .55.... .52... 5:2... 3.6....2. an; uEwE “E... $3.3 a... .6... $3 .3 3E 35.....EB “£553 Etc... .Ewpnnzu .6 Sauna in... an 3.... 9.353.. 553.q =82... .83 2...: B «a. a one". .2... :33.q =Eo>n c... 2.2%.... . =35..q .8 2.5.3“ 2.3 an .m - 

28.2.... 
to 19.8.... an. ....s :5... ._< .333... 5.38.... EcflunEou .. Anna... duo” .unfisnmm 5 :3... 8252...... .0 38. H magnum... 

Sufi. =3. g... .3020... Eu 2... anagram... .BEE. use." 2. inflonES v.5 5:83.... «23.... . .cozszofiagu <5. .a:..§.=£ 3 3... out 3.359 £5. B E...“ Ea unamEEou an... 32.2.3 a .83»... Eczema. Ema. um... giantnaao iota. =39. $59.38 5.33.. 33.. d... 6:35. 558......» «5 3.. 9:58.. 3.250 . ”Ea... 633.6 9:53.. «5. ”ac—30...... iaaa . Em... u... E... REP—afixfinfl 8 .39.? 9.8... «.83....0 ..< a .886. actor... 233:3 «anflu .. 0.... 3 32:... an: an... 35.2.. 0.. 5.5.0 2...... "3.5.... :2... .3 .8259 «3... .uflmflu cum... «2. 31.5.8 9.2.9.... .. .SQm. magenta? 5.3.5.3 taco... . ..w 9.2.... .3392“. 12.33.53» 2.5.. .m 5.32.60 .0 «.3... .25 3.2.5... Eu... 5.23.2.3 3 $2.... 53...... :2... 9......“ 3.... Ian. 0.... .2... £553.... 2...... a...“ Ann}. 5......“ 32:25.... :00 . 
.6 runs. Eu E39: upF .eouucuEafiEfi «5.5.32... anon 9......“ 0..» .3 5:22.22 :. “unsung 

E. 3 toss—2...... .2... .5. Eu... Euufl... .flcuErEoo. «3:33. >3...“ acuEu.nE_ E.» 3.2.»... _. .3353 .953 duo” 33...... 5 when 05 B “.35.q .893. .523... .3... .33.... 9.... .25 Eucfi. me... E... 3:953... >526 Oman 2.... .. B an... «cufigafifi. 3:30 amen u.E.....m a 
JEN}... 35.5....3 3:233"... .90 650 63?...q .b «fining... .9833 ..a 3 :39“..m ucu 33.3.... 5...... «2. 2...... B on 3 “E3. ”5.5.0.... .353... 33m. 3.2.0:» wig—nan 3 “Fate...“ 3...... 2350 3:36 .25 .83 “coaflcunfln 3.3:... 058% Eastman... .0 3.2.9.3 a. _. 9.3.2.». 3.3.... 5.8...." «5.5.2.»... 8.55. o . 23238 .Ea. 85.3.23 5 on 4. _ 

.uczmas. __ 
083E600 3:25 3.... 

2.... an a. 53:39.... .5..— umm.n._. _ _ .. .32. 2.. 2...... 5.... 3%.... Ema 22.. ....._....u..o as» 8%. a??? _ _ 
.3.q a... 3 3.53.... as B we... an; co..nE..£c. “.5 Em 3350...... $5.0 :93 “a £39.. 

_ 5.630.. 6.5... .3333. .5 tau—2.53 :3... was... auEus. _. v.3 35.0 .3131... 3 33.9... .3 «.55 e 30.69.... fi draw... 7 3&3. 8539... 3......0 .8828 .9... 2n... “En anemia _. 
_ 3:2...» 

".53..“ 2...... :80 .3 252....“ can... 95.. $5.33 .. as. 220.. 05.3.... a 5.533 8 amour. . 28 .9 £9.32 _ .33. .3533. 2.3.... 3.8.3 .23 5.... n35.5.... . _ 5.55.... £33... 52. an. 2320...». 
v.30 50.2.... 35.0 289.03 23 “5.5. 0.....U a... ...o 03.0.... 1:2. .25 £32.... B 239.98 358:2. BEE "3......u 1.2... .o .3025 «$5 a Ea .flfiiflfl noun 9.2.. «2.3... 3.5.... ".53...“ £56 ._. 3 5532.. 3:2... 953....» 2...... 335 o 25 «5...... 25.”. nucafiuiE. .m man—Egan 3:»..5 .. _ 

finish. £8 .3» .83”... «233...... 3.3.3 3.8.8 .3..."q a... uuuuuco 5 9.033 ._ mEu..u.2 30.2.. 2.3 0.53 3c .2... ion we «8... £5... an... ace Afiomv «.5 80.5.... anew..."— uaon... mam acoEmsEuE. 3:36 $33.3 .Euh v...» 333...... 85:09.... 3.55.. _ 5...... 2850 3:20 3...“. “Sn .3u 9.5%... 2.2... 3...»... mm .b “:5 an... .onou on... .o 9... ._ 33q3 9.5 «Eng __n..u..o ca 96..."... - B. ESE...“ 28 Euro; c552... .N .2... Eons... u... 8.58.5. , 
Eat... .uEano 5.3.... .. 

.3» 30.2. and Em... m... .8 35.3... a... a...» .nnu 3 Row :35... 9.9.... Em... $353 How weave... .33... 335030 .oucuszatcn _ 20.3 3.50... 25 mo 9 *0 pan an .33 0...... no «1 _. o~a~ .3 «.5 .5 .3» “as... =.._.. Engage... =1 ._ $553.59.... .2q 3.....3... 38 o... ”:23... €533 855. «How 92...... 9... uses... 2... 3.2.2.5.. :. 2.5%.. a... 55.5.33 . 3:2... Bow 9.52;“... c. flaunfifiuu 53.... ._ «San .05...q emit _ 
.3c 35.3.5. .33 .r. 5.. 258%... an... 2 p.322.» o2... £5.35. .33... 255... m .8 9.3.... u... ca 3.3 2:20... 2323.... mocmpcotun .5... we .EBEDum 5.... £32.59... gfififlnk .5... £350 3:30 3.6 Kan .3 3.2.9.» .9...» 19.2.... a. 280.58 cm... ninth... E... a 5...... 2325 one?» use... 3...... gun... a 23.23 023.533.590 ca 53..."... A 9.... ragga a. 3:550 _ Illlllllll . I 

229 



0.0500 3 0820. “50.8.... 00.3.3.3... .80.... $0.05.... 
0.... 0005.0... 3 0:0 000:0: :00... ...... 6:00... .00 0:0... a :5... 0.00.00 0300.0 .00 0:0; 000.038.... .- 

05.3... 30.528 £50 ...... a. 0000...... ...... .05 .8000 .02 3.00.... :0 .... 0.30 0:20.... 0:2. 0500..."... :0 05.00.... .. ..0 0:0 0...... .3 «.000 0:20.... 0:2. 000..."... .. 
0.0500 o. 0.... .2... ...... 00.3.5.0... .803... 0:00.... 0.5.. ... 0:0 0003320 :00... ...... 00.08000 000.9»: 0:0... 1 000E005. 0.... 00090 0003.050 :0 000003 a 

.62.... . 00.... 0......5. 08...... 00.02.5020, $5.00.: 00.2200 >500... 25:0... :80 0......q 00.».EEou 3.35.... 25:0... 0.0 no :fluufifitouuuza 0.000.000. Rm... «0 Eu... 00:00» 050:5» 0 n. 0000:0800 0:03.... 0:0... .. 0.0003 9. 00:0..0800 2.0.0.... 0...... £000... a .15... «a 0:30.... 0:0... 00:0..5 .0." ..0. Eu... .300...— _ 0:02 "8.5.0 ...—2.. .0 .28.... 0.2.0.0... 0.5.0 0... 00080 0.8 :5... 0 5.3 0.. 30...... a 00.000: 0.2.00, :00 am 0....~ 00... ..0 350...... .00 0:... B t .....3 £00.50 .3 000.23... am .3 8mm 3.. 3:05.533 .BcuEgonnm ......Eoon. ......U “.0002... am *0 0002 
.fiéSou 0... 0...... 0.0.. :0 0.... 0000 2... 603.0 0.0.: . .... 30:0. 0.000....“ «02.0 ....s mm o .... 30:2. 00...... 5:309...“ am. .2 _, 

.00.... 
.8... .... 0503.... 3.8.... 0.00.. .. 030......“ .o. 35.328 «53.... .... . 2. ~22 .... 0.... 85.058 :0... 00...... . 

.60.... .... .2“! a 82 ...... ... 8:82 ...... a... .. 3.... 0885.8 . a... 05.3.... ...... . magi... ......Qm. $8 .0085... _ .5... ".0050 ......50 0...... .8... .20.... n. on...“ 2.: ... 0......c a... .30 . ...... . ...... 050.. .35.... ...... 
. ”0.0 02.0... . .... 3.3 00... 5.2.0 .03.... ... 

«00:00.0 _ .080 32...... ... .23.. u... .5 005...... .30... .32.... 8.. .03.. u... 00.. 9....“ ....n 3.2.3 ._ 0.... 03:03.0 «0.... :0... 02.0.3500 8200.0... 09% 0.... a B. :0... 0000.30.00 3.50.3 300 2.500 a 0.... ..0 «...-00.. .00:.fl:_nE 0.... «0.005% 005.350.. 30.00.00 an... .522. u on}. 0:0 3.»: 03.0.55 . . 
0.0000 8 3:005:50... =0 3 00:30.30 2.00:0 n. 0.0.... ._ “0.00:8“ 00......0ER. 30.00.00 00:00:00 .EunEuE 00...».EE00 ......) 0:..00E 5.... 30.. 00.000: 0080 $.00... a 30000.0...” 00:0...cm .. 

00....353 0000 2... 0:00.. .0 0-0... ...... 030050... 0.000 :0 . Anna... 00.0.0.0... £00 £000.. 003:0... , 0:00. ..0 000.0 .00 0.000....» ...—....n :0 020.50 .. 0.... 0030.... ...... 0.00:...“ 
.. 0.0 :_ 350.: 0.... ...0 0:50 B 00.. :00... 0.5.. 0.80.08, 

.8”... 0.0% 2:000 02000000 2.0.0. 0.00:0... . 0.0.... 2.0.0.... 0.... :0 “EVE 0.0 00.... 0.0080... 000.258 003:0... 0.0 05.05.... 8.50:. 02.00% .5200... 005.350.... 0.... “00.0.... 0.... .0E8...0 00...... 20050 032350”. +0.5 *8... 0.... .05. 00......0800 000.. “0.. 0:00.. .0 000.... 005.3200 a 3.00.2133 .0. 0:00. .0 30... 00.3000... 
. 00200.0". 9.60:0 :0 5.0502 .0... 0:00.... .0E000 ...-ad ._ _ 

”0.. 0000.000 0.0 0.35:00 0.... 00300.... 00.50030 .00..nE.0t0n_ 
_ 

:00: 0...... 0.00.0000 0... .0 man ......0 .03" 00:20 3. .. ..onxm. 0.03.00" 0... 2 300.....00 :0 “an... . 000000.580 .fluwacoo .005... .0 one...“ .23. on: 3 0.0.3.0“ 9.0.0.... 0.... 0.00500... .00 ..00._.>u__0.._ 0...: 3 00...... .0... c000...E.0.0n_ .. 00...... ..0 500555.00 .2... 0 9.0.2 .- 8003 .2330... 60.000 .520... .3... .058 .5... o. 08...... 0...... . 
.5... ”.0q 2.3.6 00...”. .3030... ... ....u 2 50020.... 803:3 30:5. - =0 .0 2.0.22.0 «000:0... .005... 0.0...E0u o 00.005595 000% _ 0...... ....0... "000.020 ...... 05.0.0. .09.... =0. 0.0.0.. 3...... 5.0.50 .. .800. 3:8. 32...... 0....o 3.3: . .082. 00.3.. .8050 3.050351... 0508...... 28.... 

,_ 

.500. 0:053... ... a. 0...... 00.. .... 05.....00 “0.00:0.“ 0...... 0008 0.500.000. 00.2000 033.300 _ 
3 “0000.0 .0 .50: “00:0. 0. £00080: 0.... =0 .0 “0.00:0... 000...... 5.... «0.00000... 0.00050...— dnon .0... 0...... ...0 0.5.5.5000 3000.030 0.000: 

.00....00020 0:0 00.3.0: 0:0 00.2.00 0:30 0.00 .0 «00500.35 0:20 0.00.38 0.00030 .0 .0635 2.8.. =0 0. 00.00.00... 0.0.... 00.3.00 0:0 “0...... 00.. 000.00.... .05.... 000 .... +0 300.0. .30.... 5.8.0.. . 0.5.00... ......0E05. .030... 02.2....— .0 I I I.-II..|ln”ar_..|.A .--. 
. .... - I I|I.IL-H _ IL. I . .- . . ._ . ll. IIIHIIWIMII II I getswsi..- ......1: ... 

|.I 

230 



3.5... 2...... “3.5.9.835... 
.25... 3.0.2 "Ozu 

EEO: EEO "On—u 
..xxx.xxxm. 

«3.0... nugget—.2... SEE... 
up... no» 3a.. 3 mac... 2&3.» .9 38a tarmac. «a: :5... 

.63.. 
ouou c. 22.30.. mtg... nuggets...“ 

3.32... E. 3332 :5... an... Esau» 
608.323 

is: .522... .2... «u: a... .6 33.8.3 

«5.... 
25...?“ "35:... .o .392... m8...“ 

653.... 9.33.5 .0 E25 32 a... 
z. 3322.. m. tuna: uncontotom 3.2.2.... .5::<..Eum 

.3... a 3:. Eu... 2.. 
3 3362.. 5.2%.... .555 :5... .3 «.23.. 

3553...... 3.2.2.... .3ccu._Eun a .53.... 

$038.... 
5.2%.... .9330 :5... .5 ouzmscotmn 

38...... a... 9.559. m.w=o..nu.EEou 
.9 1.53 2.: B tuna. .a=::3._Euu n 92.5... . 

an... ”.335”. 296 2.50.5... wwmh 

6.6.. 3.0 urn—=55.— 
..3935 9.5.1.5 =3“ «.3 as... «.5 an 53> 3.... can 

.022... an... .35.. En 3.33. :3... 2.30 2.... “a... 2... c. 
.32... 5...... 2.5.. 9.5.3.3. 3.122.. :8... 

Ba: .23.?» am 
39.23:... ucEflu .3 5...... =23... an an 9:. «>3 5. "a... 

.26.. 
m .02.... «>2. 32.5.5 ten «.5... h... 30.9... 

aiming: 3:384 S: c. at... 535...... 
.33. as»... 

“a... 3.5.... L2. a is... .2... 3...»... 
£1.32!» .53.»... 39.2. 

«3.53%... 5533.. a. £8 E... 525...... 
. 

“BF 
3:5...o Susan... 3 .28.... «San 

.mcwooE .23.. .55. n5 3 7.3.... 9.2.23 3. E3. 5.53 5.5.. 35.53:: E. .3382 1.2... 
.33. Ewan a... 5.3 9.2.... new flour. 

.8 3.5% 2!... 35.25:: cm £53 
55:53.65 5:5 D... 5...... Mann...“— 

..o_. 5.5%. $2... q.m=u:= cm 53.5 
. 

“5:0... 3:3 “Gnu Rom 
$.32. a. tune. a .Eu :5... 

EB. 32. 1333.99. 05 =a .323... an... «393%.. a 2.3.5 

.mouxu. .2... $5353 >35 .5 3150.... «02:89. 
a... ”53 ton». 35.326... 22:55.. 

2.3.2.... 3552...... E... 3.95.... 

.Emu tuna». 1.2.. a... 
a. 3.2.». 25.8.... 2....“ E... E... .3 35:2 

3:22.“. “Emma...— uouuxu 5%.... «3.2 .m 

fizz—ox “.53 "On—U 

.qm wan 9.39.2... 33$... aim: m. Egg... 
:82... van «flu—TS... using came... an: 955.95.. 

fins—=5. .833 3 0:... 3:05.... .0 
2:2. 33...». wage—an... 522...... no... 3 20.....8... .EmE 

.3 nut—2...... amazon”... :3; 9.5... “.393 uEmE mafia“... . 93.... .2... «SN 3: m. >2. 95...». .2. 3:35 own—mud 
E... an :38 2a was «5.3.. 35...}. 928 3 25 

.330 3:3. 
3 www.cstaano .3 525:8 3.29. 3...)»: 

£2.28 285...... 
u:_>EnE. new “mun—5:0 main?» .2... 

using 3 $3 3 33.5 .33... 33.6.. 
£2232 .2... co..m~.E_.no mcfi 

2. $3 .5 2.2:... =_ .33 .0228 8.63. .cozaugaao 
9.55“ E... 552...... .6... go... .5512..q 

usage. 3. 535.5: .5 3.63. .mnou 2.9.2. 8m .5 a... 
«5.3.. nouns—um .2. 35...... .53 33.3.. .339 .3 musty”. 

3.3."... 5.3 _ 
#5....052... 235...»! E! 

9.....3. £25 “Du—U 
llll 

«$3 3 559... .33 .2... 2.3... .o 59...: 9.2%.... 
an an: :5... .950”. 3.. mafia... .203. 3 3.5.... 

633 new Em .33.... 
.uduafifio 

=a 
.Emo» ecu—535.2 2 23.5... 

.2... 5a E96 3.2.2 .222... 5.3.... .28: .6. .3... .o 592.. .23 m E... 
3nd ammo. an .0 59.2.. 9552.9 .5 EB _. .0. «5.53:5 aunt...— uuuuxu 8%.... you... A 

dank. 

— . 
IFIIII . l I II 

a .31....3353535 3.50.35 $335.03 
icon... 559.0 finite _ 

in: 3.2.0.. 8 3...“... 
9... 32.2.5 2 5.38.. 

_ 

1.:a2n33u Ens-Ea 
n.=£fi§§§§fl_ 

lllll ll 

- In I _ afiqfid .wsgfisssm .92.... 
II I II n «.53.: 

a 
.. a . 

231 



«Sm 

£030.... 0... £050.05. 3 00:00.00... 5...... 0......03 a. :5... .83 0....— c. 08.05 
.000 3 Oman £0.05. 

___. 2.0.3 
:0... «02 Eat 00000.0... 00... 2.0.60.3”. :08 

6c 0.0.0.2 ___. .02..0 .0: 00...... 000.000....9 00.20.39.500 

8:08.... .0. «00...... FEE 0.3000000 .666. 0:030:55 00:05.... 000E0...E. .80.... “0.05.... 8.. 2050...... 
.85. 0.2 0. 00.2.0.8 030... 0. 

$00 .0. 0002.000 0... 000.00 8 0.000 :5... 0.... 2.0.... . .32... .5 .00 «:00 3 00.. 0.5.000: 000000 .00....0 .893. “00.0.0... 0.000. 0000 00......00000 2...... 0...... .000 0% 0. 00.0.0.3... as... 0...... .230... 0.5 05.00. a. a... .2... 2...... I..... 2.. so 0... 20.000058 . 00.02.0008 .50 00.00.... 00.5.0.0 .2 
3.. 00050.05 0.... “000.3058 00.... .3050: 

0:0 000.» .0. 00.0.0... 00:. 5 3.0706 0055 _- .0...83 02.0. .2... 00...... .03... .50.. 02.0.0 0:0 .0000E0Emsu 000.5... .00 050...... 2.0.0 00.500500 0. ___—2.. 0.0000 3 00.0.... .fl0:0>...00.....00 0.5.3.. 200.. ”Eu 8mm 0......0E...0..0.. 0:0 050...... a «0......00 0.. 2.000.“. 000005 «00.0... 0.... .3300050 .0 20.80 a 00......3 .. 000...... 0:0 00...... 000.00.. 0.6.0.... .3 

.05.. .83... a... c. 08.8.. 0...... . 0.... 00 00.02000 9...... 0.0 0.... 00:00:00.. 0... .3 000.000.. .33. Bow 0. 05.00.00... 0...... 3.000 .3300... .50.. 0002.8... 02.00....“ .08 0.0... :00... 0...... 0...... .5300 0 .0. >030 5.3.30. 0 .0. 0.0... $300.00 0 .0. 2.3.. 3:533. 0 .00....00 o .0. 0003000... .8500 0.0.30 3 :0... 00.000... 
.3 

.m. 

.00.... 0.... .6 508...... 08.9.... . 
0.....0... 0:0 ““000... 05 05.0.00...“ .05.... _ 3.30... 5.0.. _ 

0:... 0.05 000000: :0 0.0.00.6 0.00:3 ._ 
T. 

0.00:0 2000......0 0.... .25.... 000000.000 05.3.. 0:06.000... 0.0.00. £03.00. .Aucogutofiad .000 .50... E080... 0.0.09.0. 00:00. 0000.53.00 3.000.... .0... .0.— 0...3§ 000.. 0~.E0..0E Sun—0:300» «005000.0E. 00000.... 02.00... B 0.0.000. 00...... 0. 05:500.. E0... 0.0.. 0:0 0.2.0:. 00.000000 00000.. £800 £00.33 0.. >300... 300... .0... 53h 0.96 03.000”. 00000.0 05 53.. 02.00.0000 0. 0.0.00.5 0.00:3 ._ .50.. 00.0.5... 8 3:30 ..o~......_....0§osu E... 0.085....» 3.50.8. _ 03.00.... 000...... 0:0 00:05.0...00 £020.... £0500... 000...... :0 000000.. .0... .03. 000......0000 0.: 0... £50... 0200.030.“ .505...— 0.....0: 053 “on“. 00mm 0000...... 8 0.200.... .0.. 000.000... 2.3.0.... 05.000: 0.0.00... 003000.00 :0 000E035. 0.... 0.006 - E35508... 000.50 .0 0.3.00 0 0.00.”. .3 
_m...l..0..._u:0.uu 0. mafia—t 

dmxmo .3 0.0.00...a 5.... 0.2.0..» 0.0.6 00:000.. .wna. .8“ .5 00:000. 0.0050000 0000.0... 0 __ E... 0...... 0.350.... .o. 0.... 00......8 0.00:8 00.... 
.80.... .3503... E... 08500.... 05.250030... _ 0.....0: 0.00.”. “Eu 3mm .50.... £0.50... 0.00505. .00 0...... 

20.000006 0. 0300...... 0005...... :0 00050.08. 000 00.053 .. 05...... 0.005005... 0.... 00......5 .m __ fi. 
_ 

___ 
_ 

, 
.000. 3.0.5.. .2000. 0... 0. 00.0083 00 0E3... 3.05.... 

503.300 0.... can... 0000:0000 08 0. $8” 00 0.00.. 
_ 05...... 0.5 a o. .0 08.... a... .0 0.8 083 .o .58.... 

«00.00.. .0: m 0 0.0.. 00500... 000.. 00.. 50.00... 000.00.“... __ 0.320.000... o... .05.... 500.3%... 8 2...... _ 

‘ 
0...... 0. «5000.... >2. 00.00... «mm 0 .0.— 0.a.u..0 0.... 3008...... _ 

>0....=0m ..< 000.5... 000.0 :0 0:080... 00..“ 0 3000000 ___ 000......» =0 .800 B 00.3.0... $0.200 0.. .0025. 00... :5... _ 000.00... Em 0... .0 0:0 05.... 0...... 00.0.... .0 .000 05 5...... _r _ 00:00.3... .5 0»... 01.000...“ 0.0.2.000 3......05 2.0.000, ARE. 09.50.03 _u..0..0..... .2... _ . , 

232 

an... ".3000... 0.0.0 000000... 0.0.6.0.... 2.02.050... 00... 3000... 000.00.. h.0 .0020... 2.0... 03m .5 000300.30 00....0.....0.u:_.0.. 0000...... 10.11. I H.I_l...._ 
___... 

-1... ___ 
l- . I 

u I 
I I IIIII I I I I: I I I I . 

I a I I Ir I..lJI I II I IIJIII I III I . I III I u I.. III - 1.. 
I'II III- 

I _. ‘.. 
. 



“BF 
minimum "mun—Em .B 3635 

.33 3 5.3% 
25 «$353 3 .83 «E: 2.98 3 3.. £9. E “a 

.83 .Ewam 2: .3 accumucuEEBE SEE 
.25 3.23550 26.5.5 new £30 33!: 

=_.5 #5 «35.3 33:3 .5.— .flm £33t 
£290 2...“: 

3.33% E. azfluztnn using. £530 . 

3.2.... 2.53 uncuEummcaE; 
23.552 .8 .8926 .38 5. 295:9. 5.53.3932 3 Exmcg $.23, 

.33: 2835365.. gust» 
EOE nun. 22"....3 Eflgfié .335”q 
.535 9.55:: E? an...“ acufiummcns— 

airman—2 E. «conga Sagan 26: £23! 

.3553»... E 9:53 
mfingubaou .25 «.0559 285:5 §EnE_ 

fluEx 0: "0:10 
x053: 55v. "GU 

Ah5:3— 2:39 "EU 8mm 

.HNON 
.a 3E3 5 E suntan go... 3 ugfiufiEEEEE: 

__n 522...: 33:5 5? 35032 

.SQNH. SmtnEnmmm Sofia—us. 
“Eu «an... 53.25:. 6:23.... 3552 .m: 1cm 

.__E..a&_2 5.2.32 unzcfiuua 5. «Bu: 
Egan .50 $2: .852. 3 accrue 229m. 

.u..§£o... 
gfiutu 03E 5:25 39.33: .553: 

new uctcsofld E Eucmfifiw 2652:. 

NH 

._o_._=n_ >h5—2 "OOQOZU mama 

.3223 
35:56. .5 3:50 SE 523 ““25 5.3 EBEEEB 

E ummmucm 
.3325 um 9:52.. scam—Eu £33 .0683 

5:35 mm ”as...” 08.65 a. 33.5.. 5.8”. ugEfin 

.83. 235.5%: >55. £22 a 9. 
8E3 53225 23233 3 5:. 38.6 .SQE 539 3:3. 

2.3 3:25: 35:5 3 «>95 £293 
£3353 ”EH—Hus. gamma—cm 15.; 

m5? oucafihotoa 335:... 2.: 3:25 _ 

d.— 

.tnfizom mac: "mwuccwm 
Eucacfi Earp“. B 5325 -I|1 F__.I1.Wlmv..:.|ll 

_ ..H ._ 
. . I 

.umEEmE 32a of u>2nE_ 3 23.. 
>_v_wu3 a co E05. .3? 9.5.95 gents... 

2m can “$88.:— 
95:: .50 .0 «Fauna cw fiancee 3 352.55 Bummcm 

.uc .S 2% £33 :23 2.25 
Sana”. 

«.939 25 main“. n tango». 3 35:23 eBEm Emma's III I 

It] ‘ I || I..I IIIT-IIIII III I 

.8935 33 E «canoe: 9.5.3 29...?» So 
ouzuzcw Ea mo_u:m_.ucwv .3 «3:3 8 £25 .Snxfl PEER. $55 323% £35 8 

”magnum...“ 355 So .5. £35 3.2:.» tau—Eu .3:a=aE3 3958..” unis“. «325:. 
:1 r 

lIr. . . 

. i.- 
.I 

I . 
1 ll!!- 4-|!|....-L.ni ll . .11.— 

... a 
..I II I . l I..|I._..T..|.. 

.3 . 

233 





“535w 
tn.“ 33.3.: 

.

N

 

4 I 

‘ 
I 

II 
_I 

I 
.- 

.. m - Ia”..- .... . . . 
..4..... ._ ... -.- .... . . .. . ... .h.....1_..n...l 

{455 

.m 
.N 

mEoom pcwfima Bm>_._n_ 
..n 

2358; 26: 93 E UBoEuE wwm Cu 30> Lo.— ucmtoaé I mC—F—O—m—> HuwHOLQ m_ ”HES .wu:w__wuxm_ ".0 mafia x_m 50 co nwmmm 

CtomI _U_._OE®_)_ 
‘1' gmmLn— Ark 



OUR VISION 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2024 

To become one of the top 100 Critical Access Hospital in the country by achieving the 
goals set in our Six Pillars of Excellence. 

1. Patient Loyalty Pillar: PMH will provide outstanding customer service, aspiring to treat those we 
serve the way they want to be treated. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher. 

1. 

2.  Medical Staff Development Pillar: PMH will respond to Medical Staff concerns and needs in a timely 
manner, pursue initiatives in collaboration with our Medical Staff and ensure the availability of the 
appropriate providers for those we serve. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual Medical Staff satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 

1. 

236 



3. Employee Development Pillar: PMH will encourage and provide for the ongoing development of our 
employees. We will provide an atmosphere that values our employees and promotes: 

a Open communication. 
Competitive wages and benefits. 
Selection and retention of effective, caring personnel. 
Utilization and development of talent throughout the organization. 
On-going education. 
Employee recognition. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual employee satisfaction rate of 90% or higher 

1 . .  

4. Quality Pillar: PMH will develop and maintain a system of continuous improvement which is 
incorporated into the daily work of every employee and Medical Staff member. 

GOAL: Achieve an iVa ntage score of 49 or higher 

1. 

5. Services Pillar: PMH will develop and maintain appropriate facilities, technology and services to meet 
the needs of those we serve that includes building a replacement facility. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve a 50% market share of our greater community for those services we provide. 

1. 

237 



6. Financial Stewardship Pillar: PMH will continue to strengthen its financial stewardship position to 
enhance the ability to develop new services, obtain needed technology, modernize facilities, recruit 
physicians and ultimately ensure long-term viability. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve an annual total margin of 6% or more. 

1. 

238 



.m 

.N 
9:03. «:2q flux/tn— 

.H 

Emu—Ema; 26: map E 32335 mwm 3 30> .5"— EELOQE_ 
m_ par—2, 

.wucw=wuxm u5 mhm=E 5m 50 co Ummmm 
I. mcmcommm> HumHOLl 

5:06: _U_‘_0Em_)_ ‘1' mmoxmfl A'\ 
m Emfisumfid 



Attachment C 

2021 Strategic filgn'mng 

This is your opportunity to provide input! What would you be 
disappointed about if it wasn't included or add resee-d for our new 
hospitai? We also want your ideas and feedback for the 2021 Strategic 
Plan and Visioning for the new facility! Employees Who participate in 
person or remotely wiil be entered in a drawing to win gift certificates. 

TUESDAY. OCTOBER 13 

3 PM -- 4:30 PM -' All Stafl’ (Whitehead Conference Room) 

WEDNESDAY. OCTOBER 14 

7 AM «- 8:30 AM - Medical Stafii (Whitehead Conference Room) 

9 AM - 10:30 AM * All Staff {Whitehead Conference Room) 

11:30 AM -- 1 PM 1-. All Staff (Whitehead Conference Room} 
Pizza wili be served for lunch. 

All forums wili have refreshments. Ail forums will be accessible on Microsoft Teams; 

( 3, PFOSSE l" 509386-2222 l Prose-erl-‘lealth‘org 
L Memorial Health 

Shannon Hitchcock 
Chief Communications Officer / E. D. of the Foundation 1 Community Relations 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 



Attachment D 

OUR VISION 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2024 

To become one of the top 100 Critical Access Hospital in the country by achieving the 
goals set in our si'x Pillars of Excellence. 

1. Patient Loyalty Pillar: PMH will provide outstanding customer service, aspiring to treat those we 
serve the way they want to be treated. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher. 

1. 

2. Medical Staff Development Pillar: PMH will respond to Medical Staff concerns and needs in a timely 
manner, pursue initiatives in collaboration with our Medical Staff and ensure the availability of the 
appropriate providers for those we serve. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual Medical Stafl satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 

1. 

242 



Attachment E 

MEETING AGENDAS 

Project: PMH Replacement Hospital 

Dates: October 12 - 14, 2020 

Meetings: Various — See Below 

Location: Whitehead Conference Room 
Mock-Up Room Building 
Prosser Memorial Health 

Dayl  
Monday, 10/12 

bCDESHGNGROUP 

so inutes Kick Off Meetin at Mock- u room: H's-$1396 PR smI-T— 
7:00 - 7:30 am. Goal: Review Mock Rooms Agenda and plan for meetings 

Attendees: Admin. Team, A/E Team, NV5 

2.5 Hours LDRP Mock-Up Review: 
7:30 - 10:00 Goal: Review LDRP Room size, clearances, furniture, etc. 

Attendees: Merry, AXE Team, NV5, LDRP Leaders & Staff 

2.0 Hours ED Treatment Mock-Up Review: 
10:00 — 12:00 Goal: Review ED Treatment Room size, clearances, furniture, etc. 

Attendees: Merry, A/ E Team, NV5, ED Leaders, Staff 

12:00 - 12:30 Lunch 

2.5 Hours Patient Room Mock-U9 Review: 
12:30 — 3:00 Goal: Review Patient Room size, clearances, furniture, etc. 

Attendees: Merry, A/E Team, NV5, Med/Surg Leaders & Staff 

2.0 Hours Leadership - Strategic Planning 8. Visioning Session: W 
3:00 - 5:00 Attendees: Leadership Team, NV5, A/E Team 

bcDESIGNGROUP 
12101 W 110th Street, Suite 100 
Overland Park, Kansas 66210 
913.232.2123 



D012 
Tuesday, 10/13 

Etehead Conferencg 

3 hours Review 18* and 2"d Floor Plans: 
7:00 — 10:00 Goal: Review first—generation first floor plan. 

Attendees: Admin Team. NV5. A/E Team 
90 Minutes MEP Systems Discussions: (Conference call with City of Prosser) 
10:00-1 1 :30 Goal: Initial conversations about MEP Systems and Goals. 

Attendees: Admin. Team, Steve B., A/E Team. NV5 

11:30 - 12:30 Lunch 

1 Hour Site Design: ifil—mlerencfeji 
12:30 — 1:30 Goal: Review site layout options. 

Attendees: Admin. Team, A/E Team. NV5 

1 Hour Building MassingDesign: Mmeqrd Conference Rom-fl 
1:30 - 2:30 Goal: Review building massing studies. 

Attendees: Admin. Team, A/E Team, NV5 

1_-5 Hours E_p_y_m lo ee Forum - w 
3:00 — 4:30 All Staff 

Day3 
Wednesday, 10/14 

Esq-dconfereii 
Medical Sta_l'l Forum 
7:00 — 8:30 Medical Staff 

Employee Forum 
9:00 — 10:30 All Staff 

30 Minutes Wrap-Up Session 
10:30 - 11:00 Goal: Talk Next Steps 

Attendees: Admin. Team. NV5. A/E Team 
Emgloxee Forum 
11:30 — 1 :00 All Staff (Pizza for everyone who shows up) 

bcDESlGNGROUP 
12101 W 1101h Street, Suite 100 
Overland Park. Kansas 66210 
913.232.2123 



Attachment F 

12'-7" 

8 
2 
34“ 

MED/SURG 3% 
ROOM 5.: . 
I I :  - _ 

1 MED/SURG ROOM 
1 / 4 "  = 1 1 — 0 "  

PROJECT: PMH Replacement Hospital Number: 2008 1 SHEET 

sESIGNGROUP 
100 E. Park St. Suite 202 | Olufhe, KS 66061 
913.232.2123 

Date: 1 0.02.2020 
Scale: 

1 / 4 "  = 1 1 - 0 "  MS] 



//
 

"k. 

‘ l 
‘ f 

E. 

7-
—

 

./.
-/ 

rm
 -3

 :4-
 

\1
 

f’
 

M
f

/
 

L 221" L 2-0" 1,1210" L 
'1 '1’ 25" DP '1 T 

2ME:I%SURG - E 
1/4" - 

[SIGNAGE 

/. 

\EN 

T l 1'—10” l8" !  

1 MED/SURG CORRIDOR — S 
1/4" = 12-0" 

PROJECT: PMH Replacement Hospi’ral 

ICEDESIGNGROUP 
100 E. Park Sf. Suite 202 | Ola’IhE. KS 66061 
913.232.2123 

Number: 2 0 0 8 1  

Date: 10.02.2020 
Scale: 1/4" = 1:0" 

SHEET 

M82 



4'.— 

HEADWALL 

:0 2 

ab 1 
T. T. 

23) 

L 2-2" 1'-4"L_1r 
'T 18"DP 14"013f 

2 MED/SURG — HEADWALL 
1 / 4 "  = ‘ | I _ O I I  

8 l _ 7 l l  

44130141 

N
.

 
22

9" 

1 MED/SURG— S 
1/4 = 4 1  -0' 

PROJECT: PMH ReplacemenTHospi’rol Number: 2008.] 

> Date: 1 0.02.2020 

. [I‘DESIGNGROUP Scale: 1/4”=1'-0” 
100 E. Pork 51. SUi’re 202 | Olofhe. KS 66061 
913.232.2123 



CHAIR 
SLEEPER SOFA 

BENCH/PATIENT STORAGE 

36" TABLE 

" — - - _ CUBICLE CURTAIN BASSINET 

GUEST CHAIRS 

BUFFET 

TV 

.
.

 
' 1 

' 
1 

C
-

O
-

O
-

O
-

C
—

O
—

 
I 

. 
n 

I 

HEADWALL 

OVERBED TABLE 
I 

NURSE WORKSTATION 
I 

INFANT ZONE 

25
24

" 

NURSE PREP 

48" x 36" SHOWER 
WITH PORTABLE SEAT 

NURSE SERVER 

4'
-0

" 
D

O
O

R
 

30" COUNTERTOP WITH SINK 

LPRP - PLAN 
4" = 120" 

Number: 2008.I If SHEET “II 
Date: I 0/ 02/ 2020 

Scale: I /4 "  : I "0" L D  1 

PROJECT: PMH Replacement Hospital 

bSDESIGNGROUP 
IN E. Park Sf. SUIIe 202 | OICII'ha. KS 6606] 



BENCH w; 
WATERFALL EDGE ". 

I 
J. 
I a; a. z I 

5" IfOPEN—l .1 
‘ I flay? 

I 

L
1

 

BENCH — ELEVATION 
1 / 4 "  = ] I _ 0 I I  

5
1

-
0

"
 

COUNTER w; 
CASEWORK i 

BELOW. ‘9' 
CASEWORK 

CONFIG TBD a? 
F) 

_ 3‘40" 
DgTH VARIES, RE: Fifi 

I HEAQWAILL — PLAN HEADHWALL - ELEVATION 
1/2" = ' | l_0l 1,4" = 1 ‘ _ O  

I.» FULL HEIGHT CABINET WITH DOOR 

' PLAM 
NURSE 
SERVER 
WITH ADJ 
UPPER 
SHELVES 

NURSE WORK — ELEVATION 
4" = 120" 

PROJECT: PMH Replacement Hospital Number: 2008.] 'r SHEET 1| 

[DDESIGNGROUP 
IOOE.PGI1< SLSUiIe 202 | Olafhe.K5 66061 

Date: 10.2.2020 
H3 

Scale: LP El. 1 I 

k. 

LD2 



SERVER 

TREATMENT 

32" T.V. 

1 E _T]. EATMENT ROOM 1/2" —o" 

mom; PMH REPLACEMENT HOSPITAL Number; 2003.1 " SHEH "II 
Date: 10.06.2020 

TIDDESIGNGROUP Scale: 1/2" = 120" 
i210} WIIDSireet | Ovenond Fark.Ks 55210 
913.232.2123 



T 
[a O. TVAND 

‘° -- — — MOUNTING 
‘* \ BRACKET 

2'
40

" 

l
f

‘
x

i
 

'
1

 
|
 

l 
l 

TREATMENT ROOM — E 
1/4" = 1'-0" 

|rW|NDOW 

U/ 
tFBED 

3
1

-
0

"
 

TREATMENT ROOM - S 
1/4" = T'—O" 

PROJECT: PMH REPLACEMENT HOSPITAL Number:2008.] 
Date: T 0H062020 

Scale: 1 /4”  = III-0” 

bDESIGNGROUP 100 E. ParkSt Suite 202 | clams, KS 66061 |913.232.2123 





J-hour MEP Systems Discussions: 
9:00 — 10:00 Goal: Continued conversations about MEP Systems and Goals. 

Attendees: Craig, David, Merry, Steve B, A/E Team, NV5 

2-hours Operational Focus Meetings; 
10:00 — 12:00 Goal: 

Attendees: 

Lunch 

1-hour Board Work Session: 
6:00 — 7:00 Goal: 

Attendees: 

bcDESIGNGROUP 
12101 W 110Ih Street, Suite 100 
Overland Park, Kansas 66210 
913.232.2123 

Review strategic planning summary and determine focused 
question to talk about operational flow with departments at the 
next round of meetings. 
Entire Admin Team, A/E Team, NV5 

Visioning, Construction Management Options, Design Update 
Entire Admin Team, A/E Team, NV5 



Attachment H 

4'“ ‘5 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Health 

October 20, 2020 

Karen Nidermayer, Management Analyst 
Washington State Department of Health 
Certificate of Need Program 
111 Israel Road SE 
Tumwater, WA 98501 

Subject: Prosser Memorial Health Hospital Replacement 
Revised Certificate of Need Inquiry 

Dear Karen, 

In follow—up to your conversation with our Owner’s Representative, Paul Kramer, the Prosser Memorial 
Health team is pleased to share with you notification of the proposed relocation of our existing services 
to a new facility within the city of Prosser, Washington. We are providing this information to assist the 
Department of Health to determine if a Certificate of Need will be required. 

Our current facility, Prosser Memorial Hospital, which is 73 years old and at the end of its useful life, is 
located at 723 Memorial Street, Prosser, Washington, 99350. As a designated 'Critical Access Hospital’, 
the facility has 25 licensed acute care beds, and currently provides the following services: 

0 Emergency Medical Treatment 
0 Inpatient Acute Care 
a Family Maternity Labor and Delivery 
0 In and Outpatient Surgery 
0 Diagnostic Imaging 
0 Laboratory 
0 Pharmacy to Support Hospital Services 
0 Rehabilitation Services 
- Cardiopulmonary Services 
a Specialty Services (OB/GYN, Orthopedics, Urology, ENT, Cardiology, General Surgery) 
0 Administration and Support Services 

Our proposed new facility will retain the name Prosser Memorial Hospital, and will be located at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Interstate 82, and North Gap Road, in Prosser, Washington, 
approximately three miles from the current site. It is anticipated that a property address will be 

723 Memorial Avenue, Prosser WA 99350 I 509.786.2222 | prosserhealth.org 



identified once the site has been formally annexed by the City, which is scheduled to occur within the 
next six-months. 

The new facility will remain a Critical Access Hospital, and as such, will have 25 licensed acute care beds, 
and will provide the same services as our current facility as listed above. It is the Hospital’s intent to 
transition all services from our current facility to the new facility by January 2024, and the existing 
facility will be decommissioned. 

Enclosed, please find payment for the requested fee of $1,965.00 for the Department of Health’s 
assessment. We request that the State confirm receipt of this request to the Hospital and identify next 
steps if required. If there are any questions regarding this correspondence, please do not hesitate to 
contact either myself at 509-786-6695 / cmarsQrosserhealth.org, or Paul Kramer at (216) 225-4273 / 
Paul.Kramer@NV5.com. 

We appreciate the State’s assistance in this matter and look forward to working with your team. 

Craig J. Marks 
Chief Executive Officer 

Sincerely, 

cc: David Rollins PMH 
Merry Fuller PMH 
Paul Kramer NV5 
Kurt Broeckelmann BCDG 



Attachment I 
(example) 

The Advantages of the GC/CM Project 
Delivery Method 
0 Small Business |0 Managing Employees | '  Team Building 
By Pat O'Connor 

I f U ‘ P G fi E  £1 
1 

7‘ 

A . 
I "  1' 

Push the boundaries of _.. 
what’s possible to create 

L 

The general contractor/construction manager delivery method is one of the project 
management options available to companies and organizations about to start a 
complicated construction project. The point in the project at which the hiring agency 
consults a general contractor is one of the main differences among the options. 

Project Development 
A construction project involves different types of team members. Architects, general 
contractors, construction laborers and the agency overseeing the project all have distinct 
roles to play. Complicated construction projects take a great deal of coordination among 
the participating members, and some types of project delivery methods are more 
effective at facilitating communication. In addition, budget and time-frame constraints 
play a role in choosing the appropriate method. 

https:flsmallbusiness.chron.comladvantages-gc-cm-project-delivery-method-35838.html 10!17[20, 8:10 PM 
Page 1 of 8 



Design-Bid-Build Method 
Under the design—bid-build method, an engineer or architect draws up the plans for the 
entire facility, and the organization requests build bids from contractors. Everyone knows 
his role in this method, but the engineer may not have taken the cost of materials into 
account, and the design for the entire project has to be complete before any 
construction starts. If the design is faulty, the general contractor isn’t accountable and 
may initiate a lawsuit for payment. ln any case, there's apt to be bickering between the 
designer and the general contractor. 

General Contractor/Construction Manager Method 

The general contractor/construction manager - gc/cm or cm/gc -- method allows the 
general contractor to participate as an adviser during the design process. This improves 
communication between the two parties because the general contractor acts as a 
construction manager and provides input on the availability and cost of suggested 
materials and perhaps offers cheaper alternatives. This method costs the agency more 
for the general contractor's time, but his suggestions on the affordability of different 
designs can save the agency money in materials. 

https:Nsmallbusiness.chron.comladvantages-gc—cm~project-delivery-method-35838.html 10I17120, 8:10 PM 
Page 3 of B 



$2.. @323. I 20:23 mémzao _ 28.52 
.umEmmm mmzmmfi mEtcmu—wn a. 5:30 2.: 

mcowEom mm 383.”. >mE umwflmE Sn 
“Emma E: US. tan m 82 E: 2m cmto 53928 as... . 

_ . .wucmcfiEmE new 3032o mEomco I 
B“— 833 .2238 mm :2: mm flmou 533.538 EsmE E :3m can. EEB 

.mmmza :mfiwu _H. Li 

_ 
n 9.: smack: 283 $332.38 5 :55 3:333:28 3396 Ho: 88 83228 ugh . ._ _ i. 

H 
.Emmmmuw: an cmfimu a... _.F -8 23% :39 :8 88 :mfiwu _mcoEcum new 

.322“ cosuzbmcon. SEE awmnzn 3:6 .3. 

_ 
. E “3.36 23 t 8 ‘BmEEou 2 :mfimu 9.: Es: :Eozx Ho: E cosuzbmcou Us Sta .2: 9:, . 

_ 
.Efloa 9,: ”_o wmvmgocx {BUSES .cosuzbmcg “305295 mmmmmbE “m8 “.0 En: .3233 m5 mmummb 

_mwfi E 3.88% .228 mmcmzu zwzwcfi 
88483 
new uBmmEE >=Emcmm 2 BE“. E5 5381 2.5 .mEE En _mEE E2: m~_E_EE B EEO E mmEEEu E: E umEEmE 2:53 Ho: mEm: 

”I. .1 
w Mm 503.. “.833 oEoU m E 5533 u__:n-u_n-cm_mwu mm 32 mm g E: EEE Eco _mEE . muiuxw 3 Bogumbcou mwNSzcmuE 532.. £35 _mEE :o uwthmam >_EmE E :osusbmcou _ .flcmEzuon :mawu :2: m5 SUP 2%.: E: E hotmbcou wfi mm .Emm... 535.528 .933q 9: E >3 .25 98: soon. 2: E EofiEEo ucm Botm 

_wEEEu E0: 320 mmcmzu .8 mm: “m __:m E 5:30 wch . __ 923m B: sawmfia 232150 flwEsO fiflwwb m_ E: 3255 uwfifisdéi 33.5 5 $25... 
I. l I.‘ 

.m:_m> .6550 8.8m mEEmS 
gm. csouEn 233: m E umuSoE 239:3 Em “ESE m3mu3 E 8228 225:3cq . 

.EmEo wmcmfi 3:3. :8 $306 :mfimu 9: smacks“ EwEw>_o>E .ofimbcou . 
.mmmE =23:q $8 

_mcoEuum w~_>::muE B BUSES 9: £3; m>mm BE: 3 Ewfifi m wmcmtm :8 5:30 ms... . 
.3352 E m_ “mm En .25 m5. 235 3 :mfimu m5 .m_=uwr_um 

mEEum: E tor—m 93232.8 EQE m LE m§o=m mE... .mEEES Em mucwfisuou wfi 8:0 worn 8:05.. 58 uwucwuxm cm B 3323 $5.29”. _Em 3m: m5 353% 33.223 ms... . 
m wEE>oE 2:0 :9: SEE 382.... 2: E :0 23m aura 53::m m B mEEES .ofimbcou ms... . .38 552328 _mEE “$32 up: 

.2883“ cam :EEEQES 852:8 
.3385. 2535 D: Em 23:53:..8 an :8 H.885 a...”~ BE 8% “m5 3:29 395 . 95.32123; 

a E 33mm: :wto mEnEn 95 9:3 2.: gm mucwEauoo cmfiwo *0 “mm :3 4 . 

r _. _ _ _ 1 _ G. u ._ ‘ .Bfimbcou _Emcmw D5 22 _-. 
‘ 1 

.. .55 B 22:29“ ucm ~__u._m.na_En_ 3cm EsEm uwwucfimso m 329% £03 2: «En Emmcm—z 
_ 

- gosuzbmcou wfi .BmEES 25653 Em mEauou :mfimn m5 553 .mmEEBm :Efizbmcou . 
-95 350 2m «:39 uzflmo. _ucm wEmmcu £2328 awumEzmm “mom. m:_n_o_m>wu >0. $305 cw..m ate? wfi BwEEoU 3 233:3 ucm “no”. tad—:2. m $25.05 053 hopumhcou 

9: E $322t $9222 cozusbmcou mi .3805 :mfiwt 2: E 2.3 EmmmcmE :Etzhmcou m B >_w>_EwnEou flcsuou 2: ME? 52: £3.33 m 5% 355.8% mamcmzwaU 3.3% 
m _ocm Emm._. :mfiwg Ewucmaq cm mESE 5:30 of was? “.0;m >523.” flwfia < 2 Eng :9m EwuzwamtE :m 359 3:30 9: was; 005%.: Em>=wu “$.36 _mCQEUmb q £032.6m 

A5630. mmcmE :orusbmcoubopumbcou _Ewcww EEmfiEémfimo 30:55. 

m > _ z 
,r we 0:5 ENEE hum—BE 20.53.5200 

en: ucmEsumfi—d 



Attachment|_(7-l _ 

State of Washington 
Capital Projects Advisory Review Board (CPARB) 

PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE (PRC) 

APPLICATION FOR PROJECT APPROVAL 
To Use the General Contractor/Construction Manager (GO/CM) 

Alternative Contracting Procedure 

The CPARB PRC will only consider complete applications: Incomplete applications may result in delay of 
action on your application. Responses to Questions 1-7 and 9 should not exceed 20 pages (font size 11 or 
larger). Provide no more than six sketches, diagrams or drawings under Question 8. 

Identification of Applicant 
3) Legal name of Public Body (your organization): Presser Public Hospital District 
b) Address: 723 Memorial Street, Prosser, Washington 99354 
c) Contact Person Name: Craig Marks Title: Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
0!) Phone Number: (509) 786-6695 E-mail: cmarks@prosserhealth.com 

1 .  Brief Description of Proposed Project 
a) Name of Project: Presser Memorial Hospital Replacement 
b) County of Project Location: Benton 
0) Please describe the project in no more than two short paragraphs. 

Presser Public Hospital District, dlbla Presser Memorial Health, is a community-based health 
system, consisting of Presser Memorial Hospital (PMH) located in  Prosser, Washington and 
several outpatient cl inics located throughout the region. Opened in 1947, PMH has served 
the Presser community for ever 60 years. In  2017, Prosser Memorial Health started their 
latest expansion effort by purchasing 32 acres of land at the Northeast corner of Gap Road 
and l-82. This new land wil l  be the future home of Presser Memorial Health, starting with a 
replacement hospital and medical office building. 

The scape of this project includes the construction of: 

A new, 2-story critical access hospital, approximately 70,000 SF i n  size 
A new medical office building and c l in ic  space, approximately 10,000 - 15,000 SF 
i n  size 

. A new pro-engineered maintenance bui lding, approximately 1,500 SF in  size 
. Site Improvements, including reads, parking, site lighting and uti l i t ies required to 

support the buildings noted above, and potential future development 

2. Projected Total Cost for the Project: 
A. Project Budget 

Costs for Professional Services (A/E, Legal etc.) $3,215,000 
Estimated project construction costs (including construction contingencies): $37,500,000 
Equipment and furnishing costs $6,500,000 
Off—site costs $0 
Contract administration costs (owner, cm etc.) (included in Values above) $0 
Contingencies (design & owner) $3,880,000 
Other related project costs (briefly describe) $3,320,000 
Sales Tax $3,000,000 
Total $57,415,000 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 1 of 11 



B. Funding Status 
Please describe the funding status for the whole project. Note: If funding is not available, piease explain how 
and when funding is anticipated 

It is anticipated that the majority of the project cost will be funded through USDA Rural 
Development and Direct Loans. The balance of funding will be provided by the Hospital, 
including an expected community philanthropic campaign. 

3. Anticipated Project Design and Construction Schedule 
Please provide: 
The anticipated project design and construction schedule, including: 
a) Procurement; 
b) Hiring consultants if not already hired; and 
c) Employing staff or hiring consultants to manage the project if not already employed or hired. 

GCICM Procurement Phase: 

08130120 Initial GCICM RFQ Issued 
09120120 GCICM RFQ Revision #1 Issued 
10120120 PRC Application Submitted 
10123120 GCICM RFQ Revision #2 Issued 
1212120 Project Presentation to PRC 
1214120 GCICM RFQ Response Due by 1:00 pm PST 
12111120 GCICM Short List Announced 
12117-12118 GCICM Finalist Interviews 
12121120 GCICM Contract Questions Due 
116120 GCICM Sealed Proposals Submitted by 10:00 am PST 
116120 GCICM Selection and Notification 
1113121 GCICM Protest Period Closes 
1114 — 1121 GCICM Preconstruction Contract Finalized 
1128121 GCICM Award & Preconstruction Contract Approval at Board 

Meeting 

Additional Project Team Procurement: 

July 2020 Engaged A1E Team Per RCW 39.80 
August 2020 Engaged Owner’s Representatives 
October 2020 Procure Medical Equipment Planner 
January 2021 Procure Non-Medical FF&E Consultant and Commissioning 

Consultant 

Design & Construction Phases: 

08114120 Programming Complete 
12111120 Schematic Design Complete 
02112121 Design Development Complete 
03101121 Estimate Prepared for USDA Grant Application 
03112121 USDA Application Submitted 
08106121 Construction Documents 90% Complete 
09124121 Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) Established 
09130121 USDA Funding Approval Received 
11115121 Funding Finalized 
12101121 Start of Construction 
12101123 Substantial Completion of Construction 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 2 of 11 



4. Why the GCICM Contracting Procedure is Appropriate for this Project 
Please provide a detailed explanation of why use of the contracting procedure is appropriate for the 
proposed project. Please address the following, as appropriate: 

If implementation of the project involves complex scheduling, phasing, or coordination, what are the 
complexities? 
As a new hospital facility, the success of the project will rely on the close and thorough 
coordination of complex building systems and sensitive and technical Owner-provided 
equipment, all of which will require sophisticated phasing and superior coordination. The 
project will be highly technical, and involve complex and interrelated systems for Surgery, 
Diagnostic Imaging, Emergency Medicine, Inpatient, Lab, Central Sterile, Information 
Technology, Rehabilitation, Dietary Services and other critical programs. On the basis of 
our teams’ past experience, the earlier a construction manager can participate in this 
coordination to understand the issues involved, and to implement the highly unique and 
technical requirements that will need to be addressed in the Subcontractor procurement 
effort, the better the project outcome will be for schedule, cost, and quality. 

If the project involves construction at an existing facility that must continue to operate during 
construction, what are the operational impacts on occupants that must be addressed? 
Note: Please identity functions within the existing facility which require reiocation during construction and how 
construction sequencing will affect them. As part of your response you may refer to the drawings or sketches that you 
provide under Question 8. 
WA 
If involvement of the GC/CM is critical during the design phase, why is this involvement critical? 
As noted above, the GCICM’s involvement during the project design will be critical in 
ensuring the successful phasing and coordination of complex building systems and 
equipment. Moreover, in order to maximize the funds available for different programs within 
the facility, the project team believes the input of a construction manager related to Site 
Issues, Materials Selections, Constructability, and Systems Selections will bring great 
benefit to the project. As an example, by utilizing Target Value Design and Continuous 
Estimating principles during the design phase, a GCICM can assist the Project Team with the 
selection of specific systems. This in turn should reduce inefficient redesign that would be 
costly in both time and resources. 

If the project encompasses a complex or technical work environment, what is this environment? 
As noted previously, almost all elements of the project will be complex and technical. As a 
new hospital facility, the project will involve the integration of sensitive equipment and 
systems that must be very closely integrated with construction activities. Additionally, as a 
partial l2 structure, there will be strict requirements from multiple local, state and federal 
authorities during Subcontractor procurement. This is particularly important for the 
Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing and Low-Voltage trades that will likely account for over 
50% of the total contract value. The work scope for these Subcontractors will involve 
detailed coordination with the GCICM throughout the pre-construction period. 

If the project requires specialized work on a building that has historical significance, why is the 
building of historical significance and what is the specialized work that must be done? 
NIA 
If the project is declared heavy civil and the public body elects to procure the project as heavy civil, 
why is the GC/CM heavy civil contracting procedure appropriate for the proposed project? 
NIA 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 3 of 11 



5. Public Benefit 
In addition to the above information, please provide information on how use of the GC/CM contracting 
procedure will serve the public interest. For example, your description must address, but is not limited 
to: 

How this contracting method provides a substantial fiscal benefit; or 

How the use of the traditional method of awarding contracts in a lump sum is not practical for 
meeting desired quality standards or delivery schedules. 
The project will involve a substantial public benefit, including a significant cost benefit, and 
the traditional “design—bid-build” process really is not a feasible option given the project 
complexities. The traditional “design-bid-build” limits transparency in establishing costs 
and communicating and confirming expected quality standards. Often, issues are not 
surfaced until the building is well under construction, when a conflict or unforeseen scope 
gap can lead to both significant cost increases and schedule delays. The GCICM process 
allows these risks to be minimized. Additionally, given the size and complexity of the 
project and the current competitive state of the construction market, there is the possibility 
that a contractor with limited experience could provide a low-bid without a thorough 
understanding of challenges the project may present. 

In the case of heavy civil GC/CM, why the heavy civil contracting procedure serves the public 
interest. 
NIA 

Public Body Qualifications 
Please provide: 

A description of your organization’s qualifications to use the GC/CM contracting procedure. 
Prosser Memorial Health has formed a comprehensive team with varied experience to help 
deliver the project successfully. Within the organization, Prosser Memorial Health has 
significant Washington public works experience, almost all in the medical space, and both 
the CEO and CFO of Prosser Memorial Health have significant experience in the execution of 
major hospital projects in previous roles with other institutions, including GCICM equivalent 
projects involving $40M+ hospital expansions in both Missouri and Colorado. That said, the 
Prosser Memorial Health team recognized that this will be their first GCICM project under 
RCW 39.10. To supplement their internal team, Prosser Memorial Health retained NV5 as its 
Owner’s Representative. The NV5 Team has decades of experience helping hospitals around 
the country in the successful execution of over $13 in projects, almost all of which used a 
GCICM approach. And to ensure that RCW 39.10 requirements are closely understood and 
followed, Prosser Memorial Health retained Perkins Coie as its Legal Counsel to advise on 
the GCICM process and contracts. The Perkins Coie team has significant experience in 
helping owners comply with RCW 39.10 requirements. 

Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank 

Revised 33/28/2019 Page 4 0f 1 1 



o A Project organizational chart, showing all existing or planned staff and consultant roles. 
Note: The organizational chart must show the level of involvement and main responsibilities anticipated for each position 
throughout the project (for example, full-time project manager). if acronyms are used, a key should be provided. ( See 
Example on Project Organizational Chart) 

Prosser Memorial Health 
Craig Marks - CEO 
David Rollins - CFO 

Steve Broussard - Facilities 

NVS 

Perkins—Coie 
Andrew Greene, Esq. 

Adviser to Project Team on 
Contracts & RCW 39.10 

Requirements 

Construction - 10% 

Meg Hohnholt 
—-—.——‘— r ‘ s —  — _ 

DD - 50% 

CD - 50% 

Construction - 20% 

l'iclLHL-si grill-re up 
Kurt Broeckeimann 

SD - 30% 
DD- 25% 
CD- 15% 

Construction - 10% 
tjEE-ilgft Grunt }  

Lance White 

Construction - 40% 

Expediant - Civil Engineer 
Bob D. Campbell - Strutural Engineer 

Henderson - MEP l LV Engineers 
Mills & Assoc. - Food Service Consultant 

Cost Estimating 

. Staff and consultant short biographies (not complete résumés). 
Prosser Memorial Hospital: 
Craig Marks — CEO: Craig has over 30 years of experience in leadership roles with acute 
care facilities. In his 4-Years with PMH, Craig has led the effort to construct a new facility to 
support the Hospital’s continued mission. In a similar role at Western Missouri Medical 
Center, Craig oversaw the planning, design and successful execution of $42M expansion to 
the facility. ‘ 
David Rollins — CFO: With over 15 years of experience leadership roles with acute facilities, 
David is currently working with Hospital leadership to develop sustainable financial models 
to support the proposed new Hospital. David acted in the same role supporting a $32M 
expansion to Mt. San Rafael Hospital in Trinidad, Colorado., a project that utilized both 
USDA funding and GClCM-equivalent delivery. 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 5 of 11 



Steve Broussard — Director of Support Services: Over the past 25 years, Steve has worked 
for and with PMH on numerous capital improvement projects, including minor and major 
renovations, and the construction of significant clinic facilities. Steve has strong knowledge 
of the local construction community and of the regulations that must be met to support 
healthcare construction and operations. 
NVS: 
Paul Kramer — Project Director: Over a 30+ year career focused on the design and 
construction of healthcare facilities and renovations of all types and sizes throughout the 
country, Paul has worked with Owners to lead teams in the successful execution of several 
billion dollars of projects. The majority of these projects have been constructed utilizing a 
form of GClCM delivery, including most recently, additions to Critical Access Hospitals in 
Colorado, and a new Family Maternity Center renovation in Ohio. 
Meg Hohnholt— Project Manager: With 13 years of experience in the design and 
construction of public facilities in multiple states, Meg has led project teams in the 
comprehensive planning, procurement and implementation efforts for numerous Healthcare, 
K-12 and Civic initiatives. For these projects, Meg has assisted in the coordination of Bond 
Procurement, Contract Development, Budget and Schedule Development and Compliance, 
and Project Close-Out, and is well versed in a number of forms of project delivery, including 
GClCM. 
Perkins Coie: 
Andrew Greene — Partner: Over the past 20 years, Andrew has worked from the Seattle 
office to build Perkins Coie Construction Law practice, of which he is Chair. Supporting 
over 100 Public Entities throughout the State of Washington, Andrew has assisted Project 
Teams in compliance with RCW 39.10 requirements supporting their unique construction 
projects, including the development of multiple GClCM contracts and procurement support. 
bcDesignGrouE: 
Kurt Broeckelmann — Managing Partner: As a healthcare focused Architect, Kurt has over 20 
years’ experience working with acute care facilities ranging from Critical Access Hospitals 
to Academic Medical Centers. Over his career, Kurt has participated in 30+ successful 
healthcare projects that have been delivered using a GClCM approach. 
Lance White —- Project Architect: Lance has 16 years of experience in the development of 
healthcare projects ranging from interior renovations to complex building additions and new 
medical office buildings. He has been involved in over 25 GClCM project, and has worked at 
a facility with a GClCM for 12 years as a project manager. 

. Provide the experience and role on previous GC/CM projects delivered under RCW 39.10 or 
equivalent experience for each staff member or consultant in key positions on the proposed project. 
(See Example StafflContractor Project Experience and Role. The applicant shall use the abbreviations as identified in the 
example in the attachment.) 

Paul Kramer 

Project Value lnvolvement Timeframe 

Southwest General Hospital $17.6M Owner’s Rep. 2l2020 to 2/2022 
Middleburg Heights, Ohio 0" QC’fMt- 

. . . equwa en FamIIy Maternlty Renovatlons project 
GClCM 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 6 of 11 



Pioneers Medical Center 
Meeker, Colorado 
Hospital Additions 

GClCM 

$14.5M Owner’s Rep. 
on GClCM- 
equivalent 

project 

912019 to 1012020 

Mt. San Rafael Hospital $32M Owner’s Rep. 312019 to 212021 
Trinidad, Colorado on Qc’lcmt‘ 

Masterplan Additions 1 Renovations equlva etn 
GCICM projec 

TUKH Cambridge Tower $340M Owner’s Rep. 112015 to 41201 8 
Kansas City, Kansas on 901:3”; 

. . equnva en New Ht:g;§ll:nPr01ect project 

Southwest General Hospital $124M Owner's Rep. 412011 to 412016 
Middleburg Heights, Ohio 0" 901:3”; 

Masterplan Expansion 1 Renovation equ'vf“ etn 
GCICM projec 

Meg Hohnholt 

Project Value In volvement Timeframe 

Banner Health System $12M Owner’s Rep. 312019 to 312020 
Greeley, Colorado on 901:3”; 

. equnva en Internal P2535) Support project 

TUKH MOB $30M Owner’s Rep. 912018 to 312019 
Kansas City, Kansas 0" QCIfMt' 
Venic25::nsion “simian 

Weld County Schools $72M Owner’s Rep. 1012016 to 1112020 
Hudson, Colorado 0" QCIICMt- 

. . equwa en RE3J Distrzgfifsd Program project 

Eben Ezer Lutheran Care Center $13.5M Owner's Rep. 412017 to 112018 
Brush, Colorado on c’fMt' 

. . . equuva en 
Senétz'Ilérnnng project 

Kurt Broeckelmann 

Project Value Involvement Timeframe 

Fitzgibbon Hospital $16.5M Lead Architect 2012 -2014 
Marshall, Missouri °" QCIICMt- 

. equwa en Expanggga MOB project 

Western Missouri Medical Center $42.6M Lead Architect 2009 to 2011 
Warrensburg, Missouri 

Hospital Expansion 

Re vised 3/2 8/20 ‘1 9 

on GClCM- 
equivalent 

project 

Page 7 of 11 



GCICM 
North Kansas City Hospital $12.5M Lead Architect 2009 - 2011 

Kansas City, Missouri 0" Qc’fMt' 
. equwa en Cardéaglgslnter project 

Heartland Spine 8: Specialty HOSpital $15.8M Lead Architect 2008 to 2010 
Kansas City, Kansas 0“ c’f‘Mt' 

. equwa en Nezggsgital project 

North Kansas City Hospital $32M Lead Architect 2008 to 2010 
Kansas City, Missouri on GfCIICMt' 

Maternal C(Is‘i'icldclxnovations ”#2323" 

Lance White 

Project Value Involvement Timeframe 

North Kansas City Hospital $2.5M NE Project 2017 to 2018 
Kansas City, Missouri MaggflggflO" 
Tiffany Springs MOB equivalent 

GCICM project 

North Kansas City Hospital NE Project 
Kansas City, Missouri $3.5M M33393?" 2016 to 2017 

Platte City MOB equivalent 
GCICM project 

North Kansas City Hospital $10M NE Project 2015 to 2016 
Kansas City, Missouri ”33319:;fl0“ 

Surgical Department Renovations equivalent 
6010'“ project 

North Kansas City Hospital $12.5M AIE Project 2009 - 2011 
Kansas City, Missouri magglgggflon 

Cardiac Center equivalent 
GCICM project 

North Kansas City Hospital $32M NE Project 2008 -2010 
Kansas City, Missouri Maggfgalon 

Maternal Child Renovations equivalent 

GCICM project 

0 The qualifications of the existing or planned project manager and consultants. 
Prosser Memorial Health recognized that the project will be its first under RCW 39.10 and 
therefore retained one of the preeminent Owner’s Representative nationally for this type of 
project (NV5). The NV5 team has decades of experience helping hOSpitals around the 
country in completing large, complex, and mission-critical projects, almost all using a 
GCICM contracting and project-execution approach, and both NV5’s Project Director and 
Project Manager have deep GCICM-equivalent experience. Because this will be NV5’s first 
project in Washington, Prosser Memorial Health also retained Perkins Coie to ensure that all 
requirements of RCW 39.10 are addressed. 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 8 of 11 



If the project manager is interim until your organization has employed staff or hired a consultant as 
the project manager, indicate whether sufficient funds are available for this purpose and how long it 
is anticipated the interim project manager will serve. 
As noted previously, NV5 has been retained by Prosser Memorial Health to support the 
hospital development, and sufficient funds are included in the budget for NVS’s fees from 
Design through the Occupancy! Close-Out Phases. 

A brief summary of the construction experience of your organization’s project management team 
that is relevant to the project. 
See above. Both NV5’s Project Director and Project Manager have deep GCICM-equivalent 
experience on comparable health care projects, and have helped clients complete over five 
similar {or more complex) projects over the past five years. 

A description of the controls your organization will have in place to ensure that the project is 
adequately managed. 
Over the past several months, the Prosser Memorial Health team has established initial 
comprehensive schedules and budgets for all project activities. These documents are 
derived from the project’s current goals and program and will be subject to continuous 
refinement through the course of the project. The team uses these tools to establish 
benchmarks to track the status of associated activities, including financing, site 
development, consultant procurement, AHJ review, FF&E procurement and contingency 
status, in order to ensure that each activity supports the project’s overall goals. As 
documentation of this process, sign-offs have been proposed at each critical milestone by 
the Prosser Memorial Health’s administrative team, and this information will then be 
reviewed and approved by the Prosser Memorial Health’s Board. As the project proceeds 
into construction, clear and concise construction schedule and financial goals will be 
developed and included in the contract. Any future proposed changes will be thoroughly 
evaluated against this information, and in conformance with USDA 
requirements. Concurrently, the project team will continue to coordinate architecturally 
significant equipment to ensure that it meets the project’s budget requirements, and does 
not affect the progress and cost of construction. All costs will be reconciled, at a minimum, 
on a monthly basis. 

A brief description of your planned GC/CM procurement process. 
As generally outlined in the anticipated project design and construction schedule included 
in Section 3 above, the Prosser Memorial Health team has deveIOped an RFQ for interested 
GCICM firms, which it will post on its website and advertise through traditional 
channels. Statements of qualification are scheduled to be submitted following PRC approval 
of the project (if approved). From these submissions, the team will use the communicated 
selection criteria to determine the top-scored firms and then schedule interviews with these 
finalists. Following these interviews, GCICM finalists will be invited to submit formal cost 
proposals for the project. Once these proposals are received, the team will analyze the 
qualifications and cost preposals to determine the highest scored firm. 0n the basis of this 
evaluation, a recommendation will be made to the Prosser Memorial Health Board for 
selection of a GCICM firm to join the Prosser Memorial Health team for preconstruction 
servuces. 

Verification that your organization has already developed (or provide your plan to develop) specific 
GC/CM or heavy civil GC/CM contract terms. 
The Project team has had recent experience using GCICM contract forms, including those 
approved for use by USDA, on comparable projects. For this project, the team will work 
closely with Perkins Coie to ensure that all requirements of RCW 39.10 are met. 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 9 of 1 1 



7. Public Body (your organization) Construction History: 
Provide a matrix summary of your organization’s construction activity for the past six years outlining 
project data in content and format per the attached sample provided: (See Example Construction History The 
applicant shall use the abbreviations as identi'fied In the example in the attachment.) 

. Project Number, Name, and Description 

. Contracting method used 

. Planned start and finish dates 

. Actual start and finish dates 

. Planned and actual budget amounts 

. Reasons for budget or schedule overruns 

Prosser Memorial Health (PMH) - Construction History (1 0-Year” 

Contact Planned Actuai Plat-mud Actual t d  Actual RmonforBudgflorScheduie 
‘3 mi’c‘m’m Pmctmc'wm Mound sun sum Finer: Feast: Budget Budget Overrun 

Delays in Motorists Procurement, 
Untoreseen Existing Conditions 

Mobilization Betsy. Lmtoreseen Existing 
Conditions 

Indoor Remodelling to 
add Exam Rooms 
Build-Out of Shell Space 
t o  add Exam Rooms 

1 Chaonnay Clinic TI D-B-B Mar-1 9 Apr-20 Aug-1 9 Nov-19 $380K $409K 

2 VatieyVistaTl D—B—B 00M? Nov-17 Mar-18 Apr-18 $451K $4?4K 

Interior Renovations to Mobitizatton Delay, Untomsaen Eidstlng 3 PMHOBRenovations D—B—B Mar—14 Aug-14 Aug-14 Sap-14 $1.05M 31.0845»! add LDRP's and Dialysis Conditions 

"Interior renovations to . . . . 
:3 Imaging popamuam accommodate Medical o-s-s Mar-12 Apt-12 Augnz Sap-4 2 $150K $155K mmfmtm“ mm?‘ mm” mm Renovations Conditions Equipment lap-Grades 

' 5 PMH 08 TI Interior Renovations D—B-B Fab-10 Feb-10 May-'10 May-10 $137K $143K Untoreseen Ezdsttng Conditions 

8. Preliminary Concepts, sketches or plans depicting the project 
To assist the PRC with understanding your proposed project, please provide a combination of up to six 
concepts, drawings, sketches, diagrams, or planlsection documents which best depict your project. In 
electronic submissions these documents must be provided in a PDF or JPEG format for easy 
distribution. {See Example concepts, sketches or plans depicting the project.) At a minimum, please try to include 
the following: 
o A overview site plan (indicating existing structure and new structures) 

Preliminary Site and Departmental Block Plan(s) for the proposed facility are attached to this 
Application for reference 

. Plan or section views which show existing vs. renovation plans particularly for areas that will remain 
occupied during construction. 
Note: Applicant may utilize photos to further depict project issues during their presentation to the PRC. 
NM 

9. Resolution of Audit Findings on Previous Public Works Projects 
If your organization had audit findings on any project identified in your response to Question 7, please 
specify the project, briefly state those findings, and describe how your organization resolved them. 
Prosser Memorial Health is not aware of any past audit findings related to previous construction 
projects at the HOSpital. 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 10 of 11 



10. Subcontractor Outreach _ 
Please describe your subcontractor outreach and how the public body will encourage small, women 
and minority-owned business participation 
The Prosser Memorial Health team has already received over twelve (12) inquiries from 
interested GCICM firms, and has been actively speaking with local and national teams that have 
expressed interest. If approved to utilize a GCICM approach, Presser Memorial Health will 
finalize the diversity promotion qualifications to implement for the project and will request that 
each of the teams present their own plan for how they will encourage the participation of 
diverse and underrepresented firms. Once a GCICM is selected, the project team will then work 
together to develop a Subcontractor selection process in accordance with RCW 39.10, and 
cultivate potential MBE I FBE I Small Business participants to the greatest extent possible. 

Overall, Prosser Memorial Health is strongly committed to the enforcement of fair contracting 
and hiring practices that comply with all Local, State and Federal Guidelines. 

CAUTION TO APPLICANTS 
The definition of the project is at the applicant's discretion. The entire project, including all components, 
must meet the criteria to be approved. 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
in submitting this application, you, as the authorized representative of your organization, understand that: 
(1) the PRC may request additional information about your organization, its construction history, and the 
proposed project; and (2) your organization is required to submit the information requested by the PRC. 
You agree to submit this information in a timely manner and understand that failure to do so may delay 
action on your application. 

If the PRC approves your request to use the GC/CM contracting procedure, you also understand that: (1) 
your organization is required to participate in brief, state-sponsored surveys at the beginning and the end of 
your approved project; and (2) the data collected in these surveys will be used in a study by the state to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the GC/CM process. You also agree that your organization will complete 
these surveys within the time required by CPARB. Additionally, responding to the 2013 Joint Legislative 
Audit and Review Committee (JLARC) Recommendations is a priority and focus of CPARB. Data 
collection shall include GC/CM project information on subcontract awards and payments, and if completed, 
a final project report. For each GC/CM project, documentation supporting compliance with the limitations 
on the GC/CM self-performed work will be required. This information may include, but is not limited to: a 
construction management and contracting plan, final subcontracting plan and/or a final TCC/MACC 
summary with subcontract awards, or similar. 

I have carefully reviewed the information provided and attest that this is a complete, correct and true 
application. 

Signature: Odd-d. ) \ ,  R M  

Name (please print): Ora (public body personnei) 

Title: Chief Executive Officer 

Date: October 20, 2020 

Revised 3/28/2019 Page 11 of 11 



F ”.0 :mrm 
Eds-i— 

.nlz 
at“. 

25n— wtm 
Jinhamozoo 

midi kmuzm 
$3.1m. 

LEEII camper 
E _m=. 

”2m somID 
E1 

El 

m 

m
a

m
a

 
IIIZ

IIH
I‘ Y

M
V

T
E

I 

W
lfi

m
fl
fl

 

rm
‘u

o
m

tm
m

 

“
H

I
M

“
 

“
w

h
o

“
 a 

'C
IVO

U
 dVD

 
VM

 'H
EISSO

H
d 

L9099 S)! 'EIHLV'IO ‘zoz '313 “is HHVd 00L 
dnoaa NBISEICI sq 

'IVJJdSO
H

 'IVIHO
W

EIIN H
ESSO

H
d 

N
ouonausm

oo 303 .LON 

I I I I l‘wa 
sluaw

w
oo 

exec 

.u__. =3 Benn—EU 
523:3: .35. 

mwuinfi “.0" I 3550mm mc—n—m 41....9. .m 
mwotnm m I EDSOmn mugs...“ $5525.. no E232 .v 

“main—m xx I 8050”“; muofum flixmtn. amiafihw no mugaz .n 
gain 6.“ I «HEDGE muo<mw uzuEin. Lo 59.52 .N 

E5.) Ezuofizu yuan Ruin—Ex. .7 En. 84mm _. I mhzwfitd yuzgfl 
300m mznfiwfloflm KO 25am mum wwninm .H I WrsI‘n—hbo 

mural—fled awn— t=fi awn. wu<Am _. I 55 12.2%: 

Em Em Siam _. I wrap—ms. 
mnum drama: a mun. madam _. I WIDE}? ._.2MF¢E..= ._. 

gag 

.0 ”56¢ 

.a “man 

a REESE 95¢ 59 52: 

g 
.3 Efix 
bu ”mom 
.3 "REESE 9.9. 5.3 oE 

#65228 ifizwu I 8 

Donna (a. .mwmmomm 
.5m 1.85: own 

5&5 1....n—mo: o_._m:n_ mummamm 

than 5‘ .555 (jun 
m 0.5 in. m: Exam can 

U._|_n_ .qwmz_G_2m 456 5.75.3m 

“muuzmzm 

lug Iuo: Inn: Inn: I 2a 0235502... 30935 
I. um. v...) —I.....n_.| tn... rm uzflfiswm .N_. 3003mm 

R th. E Fixer: mm...— nmmnnomn. 
$2 an. in. 2: t6 rm uzaflqi .~_. 3335 

I: I; I33 I33 I uz... E43 .0 unmask“. 
Italic 

EIEI uzzmzcknfiomomm 
.9 “15:24.: EH mafia—10E 

a II a II Egan rfitvim nu 883E 
wzfimuhzmfi. 9.3.80 
Fagin DEED 

mush...— n—(ulfibo usq 
”Ga union oZFwnxu 

Pitta... Osiu 
U02“... Dsfiu 

marznu DsRm 
ME.— .5535 

hr: ”x. . “to E. _ 
.— 

.oo.n H a.“ gum 

"HEB on: a 00— 

Ltoc 

aw 

.. _ III... 1r 

7. 
x 

.8 2:” PEEEIIII 

-_I.r.r - 5.2...»3 I”; III. . . I. . . .2”)... a: .. IJII. II. . 
JI— 

' 

WK \ _. 
.IIuWWlxk v on due .3: :2 .3... B . _. . 

éfidu Pn...nn:oz 
, 

33miN—az.e\—32 an dflw 4.... 2.: .3: H.— 

.E SE _,__..n_..._..u_z.l.n...u 
if...” ' 

5—! .E 60 .35.! 
“nun-2.5 Hutu in:— i 
.0100 2. 5.0g .N\__In .9: 

rzaugsna I' 
._-- 

m
ap 

. 
F

. 
- - 

«163:: gm
. =I~3£"1d. 

E
D

I-fi
n

 
O

ld 
.3 LT. ;m

.j'\|:qg.1‘5'-H
 

I- u
n

m
an

 1.4: : 
1

:6
1

.- 
51 





Attachment J 

maebiugton fitate legislature 

October 12, 2020 

To whom it may concern: 

RE: Letter of Support for USDA funding for Prosser Memorial Health’s new hospital facility 

We would like to add our full support of the Prosser Memorial Health’s application to the US. Dept of Agriculture for 
funding for their new hospital facility. 

The current hospital facility is over 70 years old and has been outgrown by the size and needs of the community it serves, 
so the need for a new hospital is very clear. It brings new patient services and specialties that would have previously 
required their residents to travel. Having this in one location increases privacy and the quality of patient care. 

As a hospital in a rural area, the service area of Prosser Memorial Health is quite large and with this new facility comes the 

opportunity to add treatment services such as Urology, Oncology, and full—service surgical services on the hospital campus. 
Currently, many of these treatments are unavailable locally and would require travel of 40 miles or more. This new hospital 
would alleviate the need for Prosser residents and other local community members to travel for their healthcare needs. 

The hospital will be constructed in an area the City of Prosser is planning to further develop, and we believe it will bring 
additional economic development to the area as well. 

Prosser Memorial Health has always been a steadfast partner to the City of Prosser and the outlying areas. This new facility 
is simply one more way to anticipate the needs of their growing community. 

Again, we want to express our full support for this project and acknowledge the tremendous benefit it will have on the 
citizens of Prosser and the surrounding areas. We are hopeful you will look favorably at their application and thank you for 

344% 
Sen. Maureen Walsh Rep. Bill Jenkin 
State Senator State Representative 
16th Legislative District 16th Legislative District 

your thoughtful consideration. 
Sincerely, 



Attachment K 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSOC. THE DIRECTION YOU'LL WANT TO snow 

To whom it may concern, 

This letter is in support of Prosser Memorial Health for their USDA funding for the new hOSpital facility. 

Our current hospital building is over 70 years old and undersized for the growing needs of our community. The 
new facility would solve many of these needs. It allows for increased patient services and specialties that would 
usually require travel to different locations. it increases privacy and the quality of the patients care and 
treatments. 

As a hospital in a rural area, the service area of Prosser Memorial Health is quite large and with this new 
facility comes the opportunity to add treatment services such as Urology, Oncology, and full-service surgical 
services on the hospital campus. Many of these treatments would have been 40 minutes to an hour away, or 
more. This is a tremendous opportunity for our city and for our residents to not have to leave the community for 
their health ca re needs. 

Prosser Economic Development Association believes strongly in Prosser Memorial Health and knows that this 
new facility will raise the bar for surrounding healthcare organizations as well. We also believe that with this 
new facility we will see additional benefit to Prosser in future economic growth. 

Prosser Memorial Health has always been a wonderful partner in our city and community. This new facility is 
simply one more way they anticipate the needs we face and strive to meet and exceed them. 

We hope you will look at their application favorably. Thank you for your consideration. 

Best Regards, 

Neal Ripplinger 
Executive Director 
Prosser Economic Development Association 

236 Port Ave. Suite A Prosser, WA 99350 wwwprosserorg info@prosser.org 509 786-3600 



Attachment L 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
OFFICE OF RADIATION PROTECTION 

11] Israel Road SE ' PO Box 47827' Olympia, Washington 985 04— 7827 
TDD Relay Service: 1-800-833-6388 

October 2, 2020 

Aurora Weddle 
Prosser Memorial Health 
723 Memorial Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 
Dear Ms. Weddle: 

We received your application on September 4, 2020. Your request for a Radioactive Materials 
License — Medical, has been logged in and issued Licensing Action Number 20-09—24, and is 
awaiting complete review by licensing personnel. 

The Department of Health has adopted a local Government Notification Policy in response to a 
code revision enacted by the Washington State Legislature during the 1984 Session, House Bill 
1153. The enclosed copy of a letter to your local city or county official explains this process. 
The original letter has been sent to your local official, along with a copy of the cover page of 
your license application. Should you desire to speed up the process, you may approach your 
local official yourself. 

If you have any questions regarding your request, please feel free to contact this office at 
tanner.depert@doh.wa. gov or at 360-236-3209. 

Sincerely, _ _ 

Tanner Depert, Health Services Consultant 
Radioactive Materials Section 

Enclosure: Letter to Presser City Hall 



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
_ OFFICE OF RADIATION PROTECTION 

243 Israel Road SE ' PO Box 4 782 7 ' Olympia, Washington 985 04— 782 7 
TDD Relay Service: 1-800-833-6384 

October 2, 2020 

Mayor Randy Taylor 
Mayor of City of Presser 
Presser City Hall 
601 7th Street 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Dear Mayer Taylor: 

The Department of Health, Office of Radiation Protection is required by law (RCW 70.98.080 
(2)) to notify the appropriate local government officials when a radioactive materials license 
application is received. The Office must notify either: the Chief Executive Office, if the 
applicant is located in a city; or the county legislative authority, if located in the county. 

This is your official notification of the application for specific use and possession of radioactive 
material as described in paragraph four below. 'As a courtesy, we are forwarding a copy to your 
local jurisdictional health department. We urge that you forward a copy to the appropriate fire 
department for their review. 

The Office of Radiation Protection will delay the issuance of a license at least twenty (20) days 
from the date of this notice. During this time period, if you deem appropriate, you may file 
written objections against the applicant or the activity for which the license is sought. The law 
states that all written objections you may request, and the Office of Radiation Protection may at 
its discretion hold a formal hearing concerning the applicant or activity. 

On September 4, 2020, Prosser Memorial Health, pending license number M0324, submitted an 
application requesting to be licensed to receive and use radioactive material at 723 Memorial 
Street, Prosser, WA 99350. The applicant stated that the use for radioactive materials will be for 
treatment of hyperthyroidism as well as various other medical treatments. 



Mayor Randy Taylor 
October 2, 2020 
Page 2 

If you have comments, they should be submitted to this Office by October 22, 2020. Please 
submit comments to: 

DOH OFFICE OF RADIATION PROTECTION 
RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS SECTION 
PO BOX 47827 
OLYMPIA WA 98504—7827 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (360) 23 6—3209, or by email at 
Tanner.Denert@dOh.wa.go_V. 

Sincerely, 

Tanner Depert 
Health Services Consultant 
Radioactive Materials Section 

cc: Benton Franklin Health Department 



Attachment M 

What is a da Vinci system? 
The da Vinci is a surgical system comprised of three components: surgeon console, 
patient-side cart, and vision cart. 

Surgeon console 
The surgeon console is where your 
surgeon sits during the procedure, 
has a close-up 3D view of your 
anatomy, and controls the 
instruments. The instruments are 
”wristed” and move like a human 
hand, but with a for greater range of 
motion. 

SURGEON CONSOLE 
Y'all! surgeon-t sits at the console. (mustang the instruments white Positioned a i m  the tit-d. the pattern can now. the camera and 

stews yotmanatorny tn htgh rttel'lnill-an 33 

Patient cart 

The patient-side cart is positioned 
near the patient on the operating 
table. It is where the instruments 
used during the operation move in 
real time in response to your 
surgeon’s hand movements at the 
surgeon console. 

PATIENT CART 

mom-rem: tl'cat the surgeon controls from the console. 

Vision cart 

The vision cart makes 
communication between the 
components of the system possible 
and supports the latest 3D high- 
definition vision system. 

VtSlON CARI 
The mm can market. mmunlceflm between C W “ -  
possible and summit. the so mattidetmruan vlsion system 



Your surgeon in control 
The do Vinci surgical system gives your surgeon an advanced set of instruments to 
use in performing robotic-assisted minimally invasive surgery. The term ”robotic” 
often misleods people. Robots don"t perform surgery. Your surgeon performs surgery 
with do Vinci by using instruments that he or she guides via a console. 

The do Vinci system translates your surgeon’s hand movements at the console in real 
time, bending and rotating the instruments while performing the procedure. The tiny 
wristed instruments move like a human handyr but with a greater range of motion. 
The do Vinci vision system also delivers highly magnified, 3D high-definition views of 
the surgical area. The instrument size makes it possible for surgeons to operate 
through one or a few small incisions. 

The advantages of robotic assisted surgery: 
0 Minimally invasive; (Complex procedures can be done through on 

or more small incisions). 
o Shorter patient recovery time; 
0 Reduced complication rate; 
0 Ability to perform more complex surgeries or surgeries were 

robotic assistance has become the standard of care; 
I Utilization by multiple specialties: urology, gynecology, general 

surgery, and colorectal surgery. 



Received: 21 December 2018 I Revised: 30 May 2019 
Attachment N 

DOI: 10.1002Ircs.2023 

ORIGINAL  ARTICLE 
‘ Medical Robotics WILEY Computer Assrsted Surgery 

Cost of ownership assessment for a da Vinci robot based on US 
real-world data 

Josh Feldstein1@ l Bjoern Schwander2 I Mark Roberts3 | Herbert Coussons1 

1CAVA Robotics International, LLC, 
Northampton, MA 

2AHEAD GmbH—Agency of Economic 
Assessment and Dissemination, Loerrach, 

Germany 

3University of Pittsburgh Graduate School of 
Public Health, Pittsburgh, PA 

Correspondence 
Josh Feldstein, CAVA Robotics international, 
LLC, 351 Pleasant Street, Suite B #215. 

Northampton, MA 01060, USA. 
Email: jfeIdstein@cava-robotics.com 

Funding information 
Medtronic, plc 

Abstract 
Background: Despite growth of robotic surgery, published literature lacks assess- 

ment of the cost of ownership (COO) of a da Vinci robot by surgical service line 

and the associated benefit such data provides. 

Methods: Based on real-world data (RWD) from 14 US hospitals and @6000 da 

Vinci robotic cases, CoO was assessed using all relevant fixed and variable cost com- 
ponents, calculated by surgical service line. 

Results: At a representative hospital with an efficient robotic program (n = 424 
cases), the weighted average fixed cost per case was $984. Weighted average vari- 

able cost per case was $8025 (range: $3325 for Cholecystectomy—multiport, to 

$16 986 for Rectal Resection). Assessing weighted average by case, main variable 
cost drivers were non—da Vinci supplies (49.5%), staff costs (28.6%), and da Vinci sup- 

plies (21.9%). 

Conclusions: Case mix, annual robotic case volumes, and cut-to-close/patient-in- 

room time by surgical service line represent core variables influencing robotic pro- 

gram CoO, which help drive profitable program management. 

KEYWORDS 

1 I INTRODUCTION 

Despite the accelerated growth of robotic surgery in recent years, 
the published literature offers limited cost of ownership (C00) 
assessment of this technology that includes all relevant cost catego- 

ries. Cost of ownership is defined as initial equipment acquisition, var- 
iable supply and case costs by service line, and maintenance costs. 
Gaining insight into these costs can have a direct and positive effect 
on a robotic program's financial success and overall efficiency. Fur- 
ther, hospitals use a variety of approaches to robotic cost account- 
ing, making it difficult, if not impossible, to determine accurate 
CoO assessments within a hospital and across hospitals. A recently 
published systematic review concluded that the methodological qual- 
ity of studies evaluating costs of robotic surgery was low and insuf- 
ficient to inform action by hospitals.1 For example, cost accounting 

cost of ownership, da Vinci robot, fixed and variable costs, real-word data 

methods vary regarding the inclusion of capital cost of a robot and 
other indirect cost, such as administrative salaries, housekeeping, 
and many other nonrelated variables. Even within a given hospital, 
cost accounting methods may not be standardized for robotic and 
nonrobotic cases making comparisons difficult. Some look at direct 

costs only; others spread capital costs across department costs in 
different ways. These factors motivate the need for a more stan— 
dardized approach to robotic C00 assessment. 

The peer-reviewed literature has traditionally focused on the cost 
of robotic surgery by case rather than the COO of the robot itself.2'7 
Additionally, when most US hospitals consider the cost of owning 
the da Vinci robot, they typically assess robotics differently than cap- 
ital medical equipment used in laparoscopy, such as towers and gener- 
ators, etc.1 Why are there so many different cost accounting methods 
when it comes to assessing robotic vs laparoscopic costs? 

lot J Med Robotics Comput Assist Surg. 2019;15:e2023. 
httpsz/fdoi-org.ezproxy2.library.drexel.edu/10.1002/rcs.2023 

wiIeyonlinelibrary.com/joumal/rcs © 2019 John Wiley 8: Sons, Ltd. 1 of 9 



- _ Medical Robotics 
Computer Assisted Surgery gm‘—"l——-W1 LEY 

In short, robotics emerged in the 20005 during the era of data 

capture and value—based medicine—both of which emerged more 
than a decade after the introduction of laparoscopy. While robotic 
surgical program performance data are now seen by most hospitals 
as critical to assessing whether and to what degree a program is 
“successful,” very few such performance data assessments were per- 
formed on laparoscopy programs when this technology was intro- 
duced. Further complicating cost accounting matters is the fact 
that, although more data are now being collected than ever before, 
many hospitals' cost accounting data assessments are flawed due 

to data collection, auditing, and standardization errors combined 
with weak analytics.a 

As of 2017, an estimated 2800 of 5500 US hospitals9 (51%) have a 
da Vinci robot, with an estimated 644 000 annual robotic surgeries 
performed in the USA.10 When a hospital or Integrated Delivery Net- 
work (lDN) is considering the acquisition of robotic technology for a 

new or existing robotic program, an accurate assessment of the total 
(100 should be an integral part of the technology acquisition equation. 
Beyond the fixed capital and service costs of the robot, the significant 

variable costs include the per procedure cost (supplies and multi-lived, 

so—called robotic “reposables"), case times, and associated cost of 
labor. Factors that contribute to these variable costs include case 
mix by service line and annual robotic case volume. Nevertheless, 
the published literature has yet to produce a detailed and standardized 

approach to calculating total ($00 for the robot. This paper meets that 
need by analyzing the COO of a da Vinci robot using anonymized, 

aggregated real-world data (RWD) from a range of robotic programs 
reflecting 14 US hospitals inclusive of an academic medical center 

(AMC), numerous mid-sized community hoSpitals, and a small, rural 
facility. All data were obtained from CAVA Robotics International 
(www.cava-robotics.com), an independent US-based firm that assists 
hospitals with optimization of da Vinci robotic program performance. 
The CAVA database captures and aggregates quality, operational, 
and financial robotic surgery and program data in connection with 
hospital engagements. 

2 l MATERIAL AND METHODS 

The CoO assessment included all relevant fixed and variable cost 
components: time, OR crew-related labor, capital, supplies, and ser- 
vice. Aggregated, anonymized data were collected from 14 US hospi— 
tals sourced from the facility Electronic Medical Records (EMR), 
supply chain, and cost accounting databases across 20 robotic case 
types within seven service lines, as summarized in Table 3. The various 

datasets for each hospital were curated and then synthesized, audited 
for gaps and errors by surgeons and administrative stakeholders, and 
then approved by the facility for accuracy. Fixed cost components, 
including purchasing costs and operational costs, were determined 
using current list prices for da Vinci robots.11 Variable costs consisted 
of supplies for the robot, nonrobotic surgical supplies, case time, 
andlabon 

FELDSTEIN mu 

2.1 | Fixed cost components 

Currently, there are five versions of the da Vinci robot available; the 
most commonly used Xi and Si, as well as the X, SiE, and Single Port 
(SP), with an average sales price of $1.47 M. and a yearly average ser— 
vice contract cost of $154 K1142 To calculate annual CoO, 3 service 
life of 5 years was used to estimate annual capital depreciation 
because in a real-world environment, robotic technology is often 
obsolete—or perceived as such—within this time frame, leading sur- 
geons and facilities to move to next generation technologies. 

To associate these fixed costs to a single robotic case, the yearly 

capital depreciation and service contract expense was divided by the 
average yearly number of robotic procedures performed per da Vinci 
robot at a given facility. This estimate (n = 424 cases annually) was 
obtained from data from Bellin Health (Green Bay, Wisconsin USA), 
selected as an example of an efficient robotic program given its excel- 
lent data management, analytics, and programmatic best practices. 
The average case mix by service line and case type is shown in 
Figure 1 

2.2 1 Variable cost components 

Variable cost was calculated using RWD of m 6000 da Vinci robotic 
cases from the 14 hospitals. These variable costs included disposable 
supplies such as drapes, trocars, sutures, and other commonly used 
surgical supplies. In addition, costs of mesh and single-use disposable 
Iaparoscopic instruments were included if surgeons utilized these 

additional costly supplies. Operating room time was included based 
on surgical case time, separated into cut-to-close time and patient- 
in-room time. Although the OR time cost assumptions in this analysis 
did not include the possible impact of scheduled vs actual case times, it 
should be noted that this differential can impact the cost of robotic 
ownership due to greater or lesser case efficiency and overall through- 
put. Associated OR personnel cost calculations were also included, 
based on aggregated CAVA data. Real-world da Vinci supplies, non- 
da Vinci supplies, and surgical times (inclusive of cut-to-close time 
and patient—in—room time) are presented in Table 1 by surgical service 

line and case type. 
Time data were used to estimate operation room (OR) staff costs. 

Hourly costs were derived based on staffing data and CAVA expert 
opinion, inclusive of usual and customary OR personnel by surgical 
case type, and expected pre-, intra-, and post—op times by personnel 
type, including surgeon, anesthesiologist (AN ES), registered nurse cir- 
culator (RNC), technical assistant (TA), and mid-level assistant (MLA). 
The personnel time intervals used in the cost calculation were deter- 

mined as cut—to-close time for surgeon and TA and as patient-in-room 
time for ANES, RNC, and MLA. Table 1 illustrates the average time per 
case, and Table 2 includes OR personnel requirements per case. The 

related time information (Table 1) was combined with the number of 
staff required per case type (shown in Table 2) with hourly personnel 
costs of $418.40 for employed surgeons, $326.66 for ANES, $41.12 
for RNC, $26.09 for TA, and $66.11 for MLA.:L0 



FELDSTEIN Hr AL. Mednui Robotics 
Computer Asmted surgery 

Barialrios 

Colon Resection 

2
—

“?
1

. 

Rectai Resection _ 
Choley - MP 3 . 

Choley - SS _ 28 
Fundopiioation ‘18 

lnguinal Hernia i 30 
Ventral Hernia 1 —  25 
Endomelriosis P a 
Hyst .Benign * 90 

Myomectomy ;- 4 

SacrocolpOPexy - 6 
Oophoreotomy F 12 

Ovarian Cystectomy h 4 

Hyst - Malignant — 30 

FIGURE 1 Annual real-world robotic cases, ~943tm ‘h 12 
by case type, in Bellin Health Green Bay, Prostatectomy _ 50 
Wisconsin (total n = 424). Abbreviations: Partial Nephrectomy . -  3 
Choley - MP: Cholecystectomy, Multi-Port; Lobectomy fi 20 
Choley - SP: Cholecystectomy, Single-Port; Wedge P B 
Hyst - Benign: Hysterectomy, Benign; Hyst - 
Malignant: Hysterectomy, Malignant; Wedge: 
Wedge Resection 

O
 

20 40 60 BO 100 
Average number of da Vinci robotic cases by year 

The impact of surgeon learning curves is another cost variable that 
should be called out, given that learning curves can lead to cost per 
case being overstated. Average case times always included surgeon 
learning curves, training surgeons, and poor performing surgeons; 

these numbers can also be impacted by case complexity. While not 
included in the current model, such variables may merit subanalysis. 

2.2.1 I Real-world cost categories considered 

Variable RWD cost categories considered in the C00 assessment 

include da Vinci supplies (ie, reposable instruments, drapes, seals, and 

other disposable supplies); non-da Vinci supplies (ports, trocars, gowns, 
gloves, disposable nonrobotic energy and staple devices as well as 
other nonrobotic laparoscopic supplies); and personnel costs, based 
on RWD from the hospitals. For the base-case analysis, the mean 
values presented in Table 1 were applied, whereas the influence of 
the upper and lower estimates (informed by the 95% confidence 

interval limits presented in Table 1) was investigated in sensitivity anal- 
yses. For the sensitivity analyses on fixed costs, the case volume was 

varied between 250 cases (low estimate) and 600 cases (high estimate). 

3 | RESULTS 

C00 assessment of the da Vinci robotic surgery presents fixed costs, 
variable costs, and total costs by robotic case as total costs from the 

hospital perspective, and as weighted average per robotic case, 
weighted by the number of robotic cases performed by case type (pre- 
sented in Figure 1}. The sensitivity analysis of the C00 results per case 

is informed by higher and lower input value estimates (as described 
above), whereas the base case results reflects the outcomes if the 

mean values are applied. 

3.1 | Base case results 

Results of the C00 assessment for the da Vinci robot are presented in 
Table 3 by robotic case and in Table 4 for the total case mix, respec- 
tively. All costs are presented from the hospital perspective. 

Assuming no financing costs (due to the extreme variation in payment 
and finance options available), and adding the yearly service contract 
costs (including 4 years in a 5-year period in order to reflect the 1-year 
warranty period), the result is in average yearly fixed cost of $417 200 

{$294 000 purchasing costs and $123 200 service contract costs). 
Applying the efficient Bellin Health yearly robotic case number (n = 424 
cases) yielded an average fixed cost of $984 per da Wnci robotic case. 

Variable costs, however, are highly dependent on case type. The 
weighted average variable cost was $8025, ranging from $3325 (cho— 
lecystectomy, multiport) to $16 986 (rectal resection) as presented in 
Table 3. Looking at weighted average by case, the main variable cost 
drivers were the non-da Vinci supplies (49.5%), personnel costs 

(28.6%), followed by da Vinci supplies (21.9%). This cost distribution 
is case specific and is different for each surgery case type. Total vari— 
able costs for the hospital, using the efficient number of annual Bellin 
facility cases as the basis of the calculation (n = 424), were 
$3 402 560, as illustrated in Table 4. 

The total weighted average cost by da Vinci surgical case (Table 3) 
is $9009, ranging from $4309 (cholecystectomy, multiport) to 



FELD
STEIN

 ET AL. 

.cosummwm 
wwumg 6n uycmcm=m2 $E8u28m>z .ucmcwzmi 

- if Emm .>Eofim._mum>_._ 
.cwEwm 

- «m2.— ntomimEm SEoumaflocu .am 
- >230 E09232 .>E3u3m>um_ocu 

.n=>_ 
- >295 uncommSmEnd. 

omo omw $5 E3 on momma 2% 83% mm moon m.mmm «mm 8 3mm 3m 32 on «mum; 
mmm m3 8% momma on momma $0; mmhm on $3 33 gem on 303 new 33 cm 50683 2229: 

3m 3% Ho; 083 mm 3.03 So; 33% mm mmmv mm: Him a m.mmm 9mg 38 8 53338: .mEmn. 
9mm; mmmmm 89m 3mm 32% 303 wmmmw Em mew: om: E8 wmm $3 mil. Em wmm 528359.”. 
mmm HE 083 83m mm 583 08$ mama mm 05mm 33 3mm :V 0.0% 33 «mm mm 588232 $22: 

So m3 $3 39% Sm 23m 33m Emma 3m ommm 3: 32$ m3 3% E meam Sm Egyaeiaz $28.5 56 

$03 uni mfimw mmm enema 303 mm; mmm 38 in 33 wmm mém mm? 32 m: 5293;... 
535 

$03 $3 mmog E Smmm 30$ mom; E 3mm Se m.v 3 32 mi” Em mm 538.330 
Em mg 05$ 38* m3 vmmmw 3o; 93$ 9: Ema 33 9mg 3 $8 0.3 $3 8 3828033 

8m $3 Emma mmm 5‘3 mmoa H33 wmm 2% mmm 3.3 mm 3mm Qmw 3mm 0mm 5300522 
mmmmw 2.3 33% Ram 3mg mama mka Ram 0.8m 9mm mi; 3mm 0.3m 05‘ no: 3.3 @59m 
mmma 8% 80mm mmm 88m 32m 82m mmm 3mm BB 3mm mam 0.m 9mm 32 em $825585 56 

83% R2 33% m9. mama 08mm 83% m5. m.8m heme 3mm mum mmmm 0.3 mg mu“ 352 3:55 

m 2:3 om; mmma mmw momma 8% 83% mm: 3mm gm 3: mm.“‘ 35 0.1m m8 m3 252. .239. 

m Boom mmmm mafia a. :mfi 89; 33% we $3 32 mi; % mmmm WE 33 mo cosfiaocca 

m. 8mg ommmw Rama om Em m8» mama 8 mm: mmm tom 2. 0.8 Ba 53 8 mmlgofi 

m w Emma 8mm $3 wmm Si 303 m3; wmm 3mm 36 mm: mm Qmmm 0.8 $5 vmm azlgocu 3550 
d E 

m m mmm m: momma momma m comma 8m; 83% m mmwm 2mm $8 m 38 mma 38 m 5382 .393. 

“ mmm m; 33 v83 mmv ommmw 8o $0; a? So: 03 vim mmv 0.3m «.3 m.mh m? 5632 8.8 35228 
E 

m 0% o; 39mm 8mg mm Emma momma mama mm 3am nmw 33 mm m.oom 5mm imam mm Sufism 853.8 

M Gamma 62.3 .502. a San? 6.33 :32 - c Dana Uxmm :32 r... 
__u§.R 63mm :82 a. map 35 2.: «328 

m... 
3:33.. >u._=oz -. 3:23 >_. us: :63. ...__.Emz£. 

9:: «86 8 .5 
O 
c 

EwEmmmmwm 000 05 £23 mm 3m: .33 
$8 3 $5335 2330.. 5:5 mu :0 Eat 2.62,-.m .4240 

:0 Emma ._B_amo; 
m: E 33320 a mam—4... 



FELDSTEIN ET AL. 

TABLE 2 Overview of required full-time surgery staff by case type“:I 

Required Staff in Full-Time Equivalents 

WILEY Medical Robotics 
Computer Assuted Surgery 

Service Line Case Type surgeon (n) 

Bariatrics Bariatrics 1.00 

Colorectal Colon resection 1.00 
Rectal resection 1.00 

General ChoIe—MP 1.00 
Chole—SS 1.00 
Fundoplication 1.00 
Inguinal hernia 1.00 
Ventral hernia 1.00 

Gyn Endometriosis 1.00 
Hyst—benign 1.00 
Myomectomy 1.00 
Sacrocolpopexy 1.00 
Oophorectomy 1.00 
Ovarian cystectomy 1.00 

Gyn oncology Hyst—malignant 1.00 

Urology Nephrectomy 1.00 
Prostatectomy 1.00 
Partial nephrectomy 1.00 

Thoracic Lobectomy 1.00 
Wedge 1.00 

MLA (Er ANES (n) out. (n) is (n) 

1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 0.50 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 0.50 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 ' 2.00 2.00 0.00 
1.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 
1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 

Abbreviations: ANEAS, Anesthesiologist; Choley - MP, Cholecystectomy, Multi-Port; Choley - SP, Cholecystectomy. Single-Port; Hyst — Benign, Hysterectomy, 
Benign; Hyst - Malignant, Hysterectomy, Malignant; MLA, Midlevel Assist; RNC, Registered Nurse Circulator; TA, Technical Assistant; Wedge, Wedge Resection. 

aBased on CAVA Expert Opinion. 

$17 970 (rectal resection). Total cost from the hospital perspective 
(Table 4), using the efficient number of annual Bellin Health robotic 

cases (n = 424) as the basis of the calculation, was estimated at 
$3 819 760. (See Discussion for additional explanation on estimated 
average annual robotic case volume per robot.) 

3.2 | Sensitivity analyses results 

Sensitivity analyses for the COD assessment are presented by robotic 
case for fixed, variable, and total costs in Table 5. For each category, 

the base case, low values, and high values are presented in US dollars; 
the variation from the base case is presented as a percentage change. 

In general, the variation of fixed costs (based on between 250 and 
600 robotic cases annually) was not as pronounced as the variation of 
variable costs, while the variation in variable costs was more pro— 
nounced for the high estimates, as demonstrated by a higher percent- 
age deviation from the base case compared with the low estimates. 

4 I DISCUSSION 

Based on the authors' real-world experience providing consulting sup- 
port at dozens of US hospitals with robotic programs, facilities may 
begin to experience robot access limitations at 250 to 325 cases annu— 
ally—due to scheduling challenges, surgeon or crew skill challenges, or 
all three factors. This annual case volume represents between 30% 
and 45% of the robot's theoretical capacity (assumed as three cases 

per day X 5 days per week x 52 weeks a year = 780 cases, depending 
on case mix, with a dedicated robotic operating room). 

Nevertheless, even a modest annual volume of 300 robotic cases 
commonly leads to a hospital beginning to experience robot case 
scheduling and access challenges, which in turn may cause hospital 
administrators to question the “robot value proposition" (ie, is it possi- 
ble to get enough profitable robotic cases done annually on a robot, 
given the cost?) While there are a small number of very efficient 
robotic programs (doing 600 or more cases per year on a single robot), 
this is uncommon. The influence of annual case volume—high or low— 
on the fixed annual cost of robot ownership is highly significant, with 
more efficient and typically higher volume robotic programs achieving 

superior fiscal performance to lower efficiency, lower annual case vol— 
ume programs when assessing reposable use, non-da Vinci supplies, 
and overall CoO. This component was not assessed in this paper, how- 
ever, and is thus a limitation of the present analysis. 

While case volume and efficiency are indeed related (ie, as a pro- 
gram's case volume increases, average case time typically decreases 
while per-case supply efficiency improves). However, case volume 
alone may not always be an indicator of a robotic program's efficient 

use of supplies or reposables (ie, a higher volume program can lose 
money due to excessive per-case supply consumption, if not well man- 
aged). As seen in the sensitivity analysis, variation in variable costs had 
much greater impact on the robotic program, especially for the high 
estimates, as demonstrated by a higher percentage deviation from 
the base case compared with the low estimates. This underscores 
the importance of programmatic standardization (case times, crew 



Medical Robotics FELDSTEIN ETAL. “ii—W1 LEY Computer Amsted Surgery 

Service Line Average Fixed Costs" Average Variable Cost—s _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . ._ Eta—l So:  _ 

Case type Fur-chase Ber-vice Total fixed da Vinci sup. Non-da Vinci sup. Staff costs Total VAR Fixed and variable 

Bariatrics (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $3729 $7109 $1750 $12 588 $13 572 

Bariatrics $693 $291 $984 $3729 $7109 $1750 $12 588 $13 572 

Colorectal (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $1635 $6645 $3406 $11 687 $12 671 

Colon resection $693 $291 $984 $1644 $5804 $2826 $10 274 $11 258 
Rectal resection $693 $291 $984 $1601 $9802 $5583 $16 986 $17 970 

Gen Surg (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $1283 $1981 $1484 $4748 $5732 

ChOIe—MP $693 $291 $984 $1153 $763 $1408 $3325 $4309 

Chole—SS $693 $291 $984 $892 $2977 $964 $4833 $5817 

Fundoplication $693 $291 $984 $1710 $4632 $2468 $8810 $9794 

Inguinal hernia $693 $291 $984 $1439 $1352 $1350 $4141 $5125 

Ventral hernia $693 $291 $984 $1408 $1417 $1626 $4451 $5435 

Gyn (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $1694 $3639 $1866 $7198 $8182 

Endometriosis $693 $291 $984 $1300 $2633 $1690 $5622 $6606 

Hyst—benign $693 $291 $984 $1772 $3548 $1860 $7180 $8164 

Myomectomy $693 $291 $984 $1351 $3274 $2467 $7092 $8076 

Sacrocolpopexy $693 $291 $984 $1946 $6611 $2574 $11 130 $12 114 

Oophorectomy $693 $291 $984 $1505 $4028 $1411 $6943 $7927 

Ovarian cystectomy $693 $291 $984 $1242 $2445 $2049 $5735 $6719 

Gyn oncology (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $2274 $7051 $2881 $12 206 $13 190 

Hyst—malignant $693 $291 $984 $2274 $7051 $2881 $12 206 $13 190 

Urology (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $2149 $4864 $3867 $10 880 $11 864 

Nephrectomy $693 $291 $984 $2102 $6110 $3605 $11 818 $12 802 

Prostatectomy $693 $291 $984 $2238 $4399 $3954 $10 591 $11 574 

Partial nephrectomy $693 $291 $984 $1664 $5900 $3716 $11 280 $12 264 

Thoracic (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $1644 $5902 $3181 $10 727 $11 711 

Lobectomy $693 $291 $984 $1739 $6365 $3351 $11 455 $12 439 

Wedge $693 $291 $984 $1407 $4745 $2756 $8908 $9892 

All case types (weighted average) $693 $291 $984 $1754 $3974 $2297 $8025 $9009 

aCosts were determined by case using a weighted average on the basis of the average case mix presented in Figure 1 based on an annual case volume of 
424 cases related to Bellin Health in Green Bay, Wisconsin. 

'”Based on an annual case volume of 424 cases, Bellin Health, Green Bay, Wisconsin USA. 

performance metrics, and da Vinci and non-da Vinci supplies) as a 4_1 | Misaligned cost accounting 
means of reducing robot CoO. Costs may also be artificially 
constrained due to the arbitrary determination of reposable instru- 
ment lives; instrument use and surgeon instrument preferences are 
another contributor to cost and associated variability/.13"14 When a 
surgeon demonstrates high instrument variation, this also often leads 
to increased cost. Thus, robotic case standardization, based on high- 
utilizing surgeons' consistent use of supplies, can help drive more pre- 
dictable instrument profiles for each case type. While unique cases 
may occasionally demand creative approaches to surgery, most cases 
should be accomplished with standard and predictable instrument pro- 
files. This is also impacted by the overall experience of the surgeon, 
with surgeons in their learning curve or early in their robotic careers 
typically far more variable and excessive in instrument use. 

Real-world cost of data obtained from the CAVA Robotics' data base 
includes capital costs for the robot. It is noted that these data are fre- 
quently amortized across all the robotic cases. However, at most hos— 
pitals when these same data are pulled for traditional laparoscopy, 
orthopedics, and other procedure-based service lines, the facility fre- 
quently follows different cost accounting methodologies. For exam- 
ple, a hospital may opt to roll up the capital cost of a da Vinci robot 
into its total robotic cost assessment. but not follow this same treat- 
ment of capital costs with other surgical technologies and service 
lines when attempting cost comparisons. Comparing the actual CoO 
of a da Vinci robot vs other surgical technologies is therefore chal- 
lenging. Thus, when assessing robotic costs, a similarly designed 



FELDSTEIN Er AL. WILEY 
TABLE 4 C00 results: Fixed and variable total costs For The HospitalaI 

Medical Robotics 
Computer Afiisted Surgery 

Service Line Average Fixed Costs Average Variable _CostsA _ _ - :_ _ _ Total_§os_ts_: ‘— 

Case type N Purchase Service Total fixed da Vinci sup. Non-da Vinci sup. Staff costs Total VAR Fixed and variable 

Bariatrics (total cases) 17 $11 788 $4940 $16 727 $63 399 $120 854 $29 745 $213 998 $230 725 

Bariatrics 17 $11 788 $4940 $16 727 $63 399 $120 854 $29 745 $213 998 $230 725 

Colorectal (total cases] 19 $13 175 $5521 $18 695 $31 069 $126 263 $64 723 $222 055 $240 750 

Colon resection 15 $10 401 $4358 $14 759 $24 666 $87 054 $42 389 $154 109 $168 869 

Rectal resection 4 $2774 $1162 $3936 $6404 $39 208 $22 334 $67 946 $71 882 

Gen Surg (total cases) 136 $94 302 $39 517 $133 819 $174 480 $269 438 $201 864 $645 782 $779 600 

Chole—MP 35 $24 269 $10 170 $34 439 $40 363 $26 716 $49 284 $116 363 $150 802 

Chole—SS 28 $19 415 $8136 $27 551 $24 965 $83 355 $26 997 $135 316 $162 867 

Fundoplication 18 $12 481 $5230 $17 711 $30 782 $83 371 $44 422 $158 575 $176 287 

Inguinal hernia 30 $20 802 $8717 $29 519 $43 171 $40 566 $40 508 $124 245 $153 764 

Ventral hernia 25 $17 335 $7264 $24 599 $35 200 $35 430 $40 652 $111 282 $135 881 

Gyn (total cases) 124 $85 981 $36 030 $122 011 $210 018 $451 239 $231 328 $892 585 $1 014 596 

Endometriosis 8 $5547 $2325 $7872 $10 399 $21 061 $13 518 $44 979 $52 850 

Hyst—benign 90 $62 406 $26 151 $88 557 $159 515 $319 307 $167 374 $646 195 $734 752 

Myomectomy 4 $2774 $1162 $3936 $5403 $13 096 $9867 $28 367 $32 302 

Sacrocolpopexy $4160 $1743 $5904 $11 676 $39 665 $15 442 $66 782 $72 686 

Oophorectomy 12 $8321 $3487 $11 808 $18 057 $48 331 $16 932 $83 321 $95 128 

Ovarian cystectomy 4 $2774 $1162 $3936 $4967 $9778 $8196 $22 941 $26 877 

Gyn oncology (total cases) 30 $20 802 $8717 $29 519 $68 227 $211 533 $86 432 $366 192 $395 711 

Hyst—malignant 30 $20 802 $8717 $29 519 $68 227 $211 533 $86 432 $366 192 $395 711 

Urology (total cases) 70 $48 538 $20 340 $68 877 $150 426 $340 476 $270 679 $761 580 $830 458 

Nephrectomy 12 $8321 $3487 $11 808 $25 223 $73 325 $43 264 $141 813 $153 620 

Prostatectomy 50 $34 670 $14 528 $49 198 $111 893 $219 947 $197 685 $529 526 $578 724 

Partial nephrectomy 8 $5547 $2325 $7872 $13 309 $47 203 $29 729 $90 242 $98 114 

Thoracic (total cases) 28 $19 415 $8136 $27 551 $46 038 $165 265 $89 066 $300 369 $327 920 

Lobectomy 20 $13 868 $5811 $19 679 $34 779 $127 307 $67 016 $229 102 $248 781 

Wedge 8 $5547 $2325 $7872 $11 259 $37 958 $22 050 $71 267 $79 139 

All case types (total cases) 424 $294 000 $123 200 $417 200 $743 657 $1 685 067 $973 836 $3 402 560 $3 819 760 

aCosts were determined combined all cases presented in the underlying average case mix presented in Figure 1. 

model, as herein described, should be applied to obtain a true com- 

parison with da Vinci robotics. 
Why is there a common cost accounting method inequality 

between robotic and laparoscopic surgery C00? There are several fac- 

tors. A decade ago, when robotic surgery experienced significant vol- 
ume growth and expansion of case mix, supply chain and finance 

departments of hospitals looked at robotics as a new service and 

wanted to evaluate the profitability of this service through a narrowly 

defined “cost” lens, but did not take into account an equitable compar- 

ison of the robotic costs vis a vis other Minimally Invasive Surgery 

(MIS) and non-MlS service lines. Amplifying this inconsistency is the 

fact that 20 years ago, had these same hospitals assessed the cost 

of laparoscopic surgery in the era of paper cost accounting with its 

limited ability to assess all the dimensions of surgical costs and pro- 

vider performance metrics, many institutions may have seen weak or 

even negative financial performance. Robotics, on the other hand, 

emerged in the early big data era, at a time of heightened awareness 

of cost-effectiveness and value-based medical care—all of which did 
not exist in US hospital “C-suites" of the late 19805 and 905. 

Further complicating the assessment of robotic C00 is the lack of 
standardized cost accounting methodologies among US hospitals; 

attempting to compare the cost of a robotic system between hospitals 
or lDNs is currently affected by wide variation in cost accounting 
methodology. One example of this variation is the variety of ways that 
hospitals treat the cost of da Vinci reposable instruments: some hospi- 

tals place robotic surgery in the highest cost tier and add a first minute 
surcharge to the case to allow for the high instrument cost; some cap- 
italize the cost of the instruments; some meticulously track the use of 

each instrument and capture the actual cost per use. In the model 
described herein, however, only hospitals that cost each reposable 

instrument have been used, an essential component to assure accu- 

racy in the C00 assessment. It is advisable that these elements be 



m. 

w 

m 
amv waa mafimoH aooaa mammm mmoma mam maa mamaOa mmoma mammm avmma wmmaa Amamam mmaa mafiam mama ~8m Eon: mmob mmmu =4 

m mam ama mafimaa Nawaa mamam mow ma amm ama madam woama naamm moama wmmaa mamam mwaa mamaw. mama mamm>> 

oma mma Amanda.“ amm Naa A“ammm Gamma mam ama mammma mmm aaa mammm mamma mmmaa mamam mwaa nwomam mama aEBuwnoo 

wvo ama Auaomva a: :a mammm amama omm ama mammma awn Oaa maofim mmmma wmmaa mamam Ewaa wamaN mama 333 :39: 235;... 
«mm mma Amanda 
wmm maa maaam maava mwo mma mamma 0mm aaa mamdm aaNVa wmmaa mamam mwaa mamam mama afimEomc .mEmn. 

Nam oma maofia mam :a mamfio ammaa mam maa mafiaa Ham caa mavmm mmmma wmmaa mamam mwaa mamam mama afiBBmEn. 

who mwa mmmoo mom NHa maaMm ommma mom ama fixaém mam :a mawmm mwama mmmaa mamam mwaa mamam mama >E3umfomz 

mom ama mamaa mmm :a waamm Ham ma ovm aaa mamdm 0mm Oaa mammv mawma mmmaa mamam wwaa mamam mama $38 .30: $205 

amm mma maodx. oaa maa maaoa mmmma ama oma "afioa 
mow Naa Rowena mama mmmaa mamam mmaa mamam mama EmcflfiElfiaI 

amm NNa maoda oaa maa oaaoa 
mmmma ama Qua mafia mom Naa maméa mama mmmaa mamam vwaa namaw. 
mama $38 .30: $285 E6 

oma maa mawdg aaama maamm mawma Nam 3a maomma mmama mamAm momma wmmaa namam mmaa mamam mama atau $290 

20 3a avg Rana ago 83% .3 2a amaa mama ammo mafia was; made Ema anon mama 5038280 

mom mma mamMm v: Naa maodm Homma mmm owa mamém 03 3a maacnm moama wmmaa mamam mwaa mamam mama axmaofiouobmm 

mmm maa mafiama maoma nmammm mmmma oww maa maomma maoaa mamdm ammma mmmaa nmamam mmaa mamam mama >EotmEo>E 

Hmm aaa mafiag «mama mamam amama mao maa maaoma Omaha n“aomm Niama wmmaa mamam vmaa “$a mama cmEmnlmmaI 

mod"~ maa maomg momma mafimm maoma awn Ea mafimma NNmma mamfim momma wmmaa nmamam mwaa mamam mama m_mo_mom:m 

aaa maa mafimma mmama maadm Homma mum aaa 8a.o3 oaaaa mammm momma mmmaa mamam vwaa mamam mama @628 =30“: can. 

m mam aaa mama: mmvma $8.5m wma omaaa mamdma Hmiua mamém amHNa mmmaa mamam vwaa mamam mama EEw; _m._ucm> 

.m a: Naa mammma mmama maaam mmmNa amv oaa mafimma amava mamém oawHa wmmaa mamam vmaa mamam mama 35m... .mcSmE 

m. w. NNo oma mammg vaaaa nmaamm momma mmm waa gamma oma maoda Nvmma mmmaa mamam vmaa mamam mama :o.:mu__nomc:n_ 

m. m. 
wmwaa maamm aaoma mafiaa ammva oaama maafim mmwva namma mmava wmmaa mamam 3aa mamam mama mmlflotu 

M man :a mafia: aomva maiwm Nmmma mma Oaa mammom mwmma Row? amaaa mmmaa mamam vwaa mamam mama n__2|m_o;U 

m woa Naa mama: Nmama $0.3 aowma 03 3a maaa: wmava mafia? Emma wmmaa namam vwaa gnaw mama 338 =30: whom 50 

M mNm wma mafiwm oaa aaa nRummm mmmma amw mma mafiwm mma maa nRacmm mmmaa mmmaa mamam mwaa mamam mama cosummw. .mfiwm 

. m. 
aom mwa fiawooa mmm :a mav ammma ama oma mammoH mam Oaa mafiaa whama wmmaa mamam wwaa mamam mama c2632 :28. 

r0. mmm. mma AKawmm Ham maa mamdm mmmma awa NNa camam. amm aaa mafimm wmama mmmaa mamam wwaa mamam mama Hmmmmu EB” .mtEoEU 
wma mma maada Nam maa nmammm mmoma oao Nwa mamma wwm Naa mam.am mamma wmmaa mamam mmaa mama“ mama muEmtmm. 

wma mma “Rama Nam maa mammm mmoma oao Nma mamma wwm Naa mamfim momma mmmaa mamam mmaa mamam mama $8.8 58v 8:323 

;m__.._ mmcmcuma mmwummmm mmcwsuma 26.. 5E1 wwcmsuma mmmu wmmm wmcmcufi 30.. :EI mmcmcuma mama mmmm 09:“q 3o... an)... 38 - .HI I- H. I 
mu .33.... 

.. . . 
Bmou m3m_.m>._ 
33o Ext 

8: agree. 

mwumErmm cmE mom 32 9:3 .38 
an. Emm 2530.. 6:5 mm Lmo “m8 m0 cozwiwo “m_m>_m:m 33583 m 59.x... 

v. 
E 
n 

W 



FELDSTEIN ET AL. 

standardized so that robotic CoO can be universally performed in a 

reliable manner, and so robotic performance can also be compared 

correctly to lap and other service lines to achieve an equitable 
apples-to-apples assessment of C00. 

4.2 | Quality as a cost variable 

Moreover, the quality of the robotic program itself—ie, the perfor- 
mance characteristics of the robotic surgeons, the efficiency of the 

crew, the management of supplies. etc.—further impacts the C00 
equation. Quality, however, is rarely discussed as a factor in robotic 

C00 in the peer review literature, with wide variations in time metrics 
and supply utilization routinely observed in real-world settings. These 

variations—not strictly accounted for and a limitation of this analysis— 
are largely influenced by surgeon training and experience, crew train- 

ing, case selection and case type, program performance policies, and 

governance. 

4.3 | Cost of ownership for future robotic 
technologies 

The current model also provides a base CoO framework which may be 
useful as a foundation for hospitals to evaluate new robotic systems as 
future technologies enter the market place. In this context, it is impor- 
tant for hospitals to standardize their cost accounting, as suggested 
herein, to achieve comparable analyses from the perspective of IDN 
to IDN/hospital to hospital, as well as from the perspective of 

assessing the COO of robotic vs MIS technologies—fully burdened 
based on identical service line/case mix/case volumes, and all associ- 
ated fixed and variable costs. 

5 | CONCLUSION 

Assessing the COO of a robot using RWD makes it clear that there are 

many variables that directly and significantly impact CoO. Cost 

accounting, supply/reposable efficiencies, case mix, case volumes, 
and case times represent core variables that can drive up or reduce 
CoO. Robotics is thus often referred to as a "team sport," meaning that 

highly efficient management and work flow of all robotic stakeholders 
significantly impacts program quality and robotic C00. Hospitals/IDNS 
that understand how robotic C00 is impacted by these variables hold 

the key to better controlling robotic costs, and thereby achieving 
improved financial performance of their robotic program. Moving for— 

ward, establishing this improved operational and financial approach is 
critical as new robotic vendors and technologies enter the global mar— 

ket, as administration and clinicians ask, what does this new robotic 

technology really cost? 

SOURCES OF FINANCIAL SUPPORT 

Medtronic, plc. 

WI LEY— ' Medical Robotics 
Computer Minted .Surgery 

AUTHORS' CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 

Josh Feldstein and Herb Coussons are employed by CAVA Robotics 
International, LLC which received funding from Medtronic, plc for 

the development of the Cost of Ownership model and the drafting 
of this manuscript. 

Bjoern Schwander and Mark Roberts are paid consultants to CAVA 

Robotics International, LLC. 

0 RCI D 

Josh Feldstein 0 https://orcicl.org/0000-0001~8951-550X 

REFERENCES 

1. Korsholm M, Sorensen J, Morgensen 0, Wu C, Karlsen K, Jensen PT. A 
systematic review about costing methodology in robotic surgery: evi- 
dence for low quality in most of the studies. Heal Econ Rev. 
2018;8(21]:21. 

2. Anger J, Mueller E, Tarnay C, et al. Robotic compared with laparoscopic 
sacrocolpopexy: a randomized controlled study. Obstet Gynecol. 
2014;123(1):5-12. 

3. Knight J, Escobar P. Cost and robotic surgery in gynecology. J Obstet 
Gynacol Res. 2014;40(1):12-17. 

4. Rosemurgy A, Ryan C, Klein R, Sukharamwala P, Wood T, Ross 5. Does 
the cost of cholecystectomy translate to a financial burden? Surg 
Endosc. 2015;29[8):2115—2120. 

5. Dobbs R, Magnan B, Abhyankar N, et al. Cost-effectiveness and robot- 
assisted urologic surgery: does it make dollars and sense? Minerva Urol 
Nefrol. 2017;69(4):313-323. 

6. Feng Z, Feng MP, Feng DP, Rice MJ, Solorzano CC. A cost-conscious 
approach to robotic adrenalectomy. J Robot Surg. 2018;12(4):607-611. 

7. Byrn J, Hrabe J, Charlton M. An initial experience with 85 consecutive 
robotic assisted rectal dissections: improved operating times and lower 
costs with experience. Surg Endosc. 2014;28i11):3101-3107. 

8. Childers C, Hofer I, Cheng D, Maggard-Gibbons M. Evaluating sur— 
geons on intraoperative disposable supply costs: details matter. J 
Gastrointest Surg. 2018;1:1-9. 

9. AHA Hospital Statistics, 2018 Edition. 

10. 2017 Review of physician and advanced practitioner recruiting incen- 
tives. Merritt Hawkins. 24 th edition. 

11. Intuitive Surgical, Inc. Annual Report 2017: p. 48. 

12. Intuitive Surgical, Inc. Annual Report 2017: p 42. 

13. Ludwig WW, Gorin MA, Ball MW, Schaeffer EM, Han M, Allaf ME. 
Instrument life for robot-assisted laparoscopic radical prostatectomy 
and partial nephrectomy: are ten lives for most instruments justified? 
Urology. 2015;85l5):942—946. 

14. Ramirez D, Ganesan V, Nelson R, Haber GP. Reducing costs for robotic 
radical prostatectomy: three instrument technique. Urology. 
2016;9(95):213-215. 

How to cite this article: Feldstein J, Schwander B, Roberts M, 

Coussons H. Cost of ownership assessment for a da Vinci 
robot based on US real-world data. Int J Med Robotics Comput 

Assist Surg. 2019;15ze2023. httpszl/doi-org.ezproxy2.library.drex .edu/ 10. 



Attachment 0 

% Marks 
. L — _ 

From: McClain, KimberlieI <Kimberlie.McClain@providenceorg> 
Sent: Friday, October 16, 2020 8:46 AM 
To: Craig Marks; Kevin Hardiek 
Cc: Strawn, Michelle A 
Subject: Epic Executive Packet 
Attachments: Prosser Memorial Health - Oct 2020.pdf 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Flagged 

External Email: Please Proceed with Caution 

Dear Craig & Kevin, 

We are excited to be sharing Prosser Memorial Health’s Epic executive packet with you this year. 

It’s a comprehensive data-driven report produced by Epic containing key values regarding your organization as well as 
comparison data with other organizations similar to yours. Additionally, there are opportunities identified to further 
your organization’s usage of the tools available within our current version of Epic. 

This is Epic’s first time sending these packets to Community Technologies partners and we have an opportunity to 
provide feedback on Epic’s Connect Steering Board. After you have a chance to review and discuss, we welcome any 
feedback you would like us to pass on, both positive and constructive. 

I am happy to schedule a call with your leadership team to go over it if you have any questions. 

Thank you. 

Kim McClain/L 
5r. Client Services Mgr, Community Technologies 
(406) 250-5414 C 
Kimberlie.McclainQProvidenceorg 
CommunityTechnologies.com 

a: 
Community 

TECHNOLOGIES 

This message is intended for the sole use of the addressee, and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under 
applicable law. If you are not the addressee you are hereby notified that you may not use, copy, disclose. or distribute to anyone the message or any information 
contained in the message. If you have received this message in error, please immediately advise the sender by reply email and delete this message. 

1 



K E II- 9 _ .   Prosser Memorial 
. E— "   Health 

. _'I 
- — ~ ‘ - j + -  _ p !  



Preface 
Rationale 

The Executive Packet is a collection of data-driven reports from different areas across your organization. Each page is 
intended to highlight areas where Epic's technology and automation could better support and advance your organizational 
goals. We hope you find them useful. Please let us know if any additional data points would be valuable. 

Notes on Data 

Each page within the packet includes a note describing the date ranges used for the data, the peer group you are being 
compared against, and the period with which trends are calculated. Trending is calculated as "percent change from prior 
period” - for example, a change from 40% to 50% would be represented as a 25% increase between periods. 

Broadly speaking, most over-time metrics cover the prior 3-month period, while point-in—time metrics represent the most 
current value we were able to collect. 

We use a variety of data sources in the packet: clinical, financial. and feature tracking metrics, feature usage information for 
your organization from Gold Stars and Nova Release Notes, and a variety of manually gathered data. 

Peer Grouping 

You are being compared against the peer group Critical Access: Resolute Hospital Billing locations. This facility type applies 
to rural hospitals that are commonly certified as Critical Access Hospitals (CAH) by Medicare and receive cost-based 
reimbursement. 

You can find a list of organizations that are included in benchmarking peer groups by navigating to the most recent Cogito 
Benchmarking Update post on UserWeb at https:[zuserweb.epic.com[Topicz340 and downloading the "Participation" PDF 
linked at the bottom of the post. 



Contents Page 
1 Interoperability 1 

Provide a more complete health record to your providers with Care Everywhere. 

2 MyChart Patient Experience 3 
Boost patient satisfaction and loyalty while saving time for office staff and reducing costs for your organization. 

3 Outpatient Physician Well-Being 5 
improve physician use of the system by increasing personalization and benchmark to see which specialties may 
benefit from extra attention 

4 Outpatient Physician Efficiency - In Basket 7 
Help your physicians thrive in by automating common tasks related to messages, saving clicks, and offloading tasks to 
others on the care team. 

5 Acute Care Nursing 9 
View key guaiity measures, see which units are spending the most time documenting, and gain insight into features 
that could help your nurses to be more productive. 

6 Revenue Cycle Performance Index 11 
Benchmark key financial performance metrics. 

7 Revenue Cycle Automation 13 
See how your organization has adopted automation tools in Epic to get paid faster, improve the data quality of claims, 
and decrease the cost to collect. 

8 Cogito - Benchmarking 15 
Compare your clinical and operational performance to peers across the Epic community. 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA: 12 months ending August 2020 

Standards-based interoperability Exchange Statistics Qtasxa Patient Records 

Patient Records Exchanged — Washington Instance 

You've exchanged 
patient records with 
organizations spanning 

Darker shading indicates 
higher exchange volume 

Implemented Features Epic Communityndoption 

«3 Outside Visits in Chart Review 402 i415 
Show internal & external encounters together for a more complete picture. 

r 283,562 External Encounters Viewed Last Month 

m Longitudinal Plan of Care 17 r 22 
Show de—duplicated patient information from external and internal sources. 

«3 Happy Together Lab Results (Fundamental) 254/ 400 
include lab results from Care Everywhere in patient charts (does not include 
trending local and outside results, which requires complex build). 
> 1,074,533 Lab Results Auto-Reconciled Last Month 

m Image Exchange 119 r 398 
Send and receive reference-quality images via Care Everywhere. 

m Chart Gateway 124/ 391 
Efficiently review and process your patients’ life insurance release requests. 

m Government Connections SSA J Boost/A J 124/ 391 

@ Payer Platform 16 r 373 
Collaborate with payers to reduce costs, relieve administrative burden, and 
improve patient outcomes. 

Exchanges in 2020 YTD 31,656,940 

Exchanges in 2019 38,200,762 

Since Care Everywhere Go-Live in 2011 122,379,013 

Hospitals Exchanged with 1,993 

EDs Exchanged with 1,634 

Clinics Exchanged with 41,641 

Top Trading Partners 7 _ i I Sent I Received 

Swedish Medical Center (Historical as of 6—15-1 9) and Polyclinic (Active) 
_ 6 . 5 1 0 . 6 1 0  
UW Medicine - Washington 
_ 5 . 1 6 3 . 7 0 1  
Kaiser Permanente Washington 
— 5 . 0 9 4 . 9 9 4  
MultiCare Health System 
— 4 . 6 6 5 . 0 2 3  
Clinics using athenahealth 
— 4 . 0 2 2 . 7 0 4  
the E veretr Clinic 
—2.923 .505  
Catholic Health initiatives Pacific Region 
—2.193.000 
Collective Medical 
—1.624.640 
Gveu'iake Hospital Medical Center 
—l.455.873 
Valley Medical Center 
—1.350.303 

Streamlining Exchange I Sent I Received 

90th 
Your Record Exchange Compared to . 
Your Peers (Percentile) 

Features Impacting Your Exchange You Your Peers 

Effective Authorization Policy \/ 82% 

Advanced Record Location J 77% 

Shared Provider Directory J 59% 

air: Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. 

_— 
Ca-requality Exchange by- Network I Sent I Received 

Live Since: 05/25/2016 Sites Exchanged With: 3,710 

athenahealth 
— 4 , 0 2 2 , 7 0 4  

Kno2 
_1.624.e41 
GE Healthcare (Overa) 
—952.272 
Common Well 
-4so,293 
NextGen 
-374,sos 
eClinicalWorks 
.172,620 
Health Gorilla 
123,604 
NetSmart 
4,956 

Interoperability | 1 



OCTObEI' 2020 I PTOSSEI' Memorial Health‘ PEERS: Critical Access | DATA:12 months ending August 2020 

Patient Records Exchanged 

State Map States are shaded based on the number of records you've exchanged with them, with dark green indicating the most 
exchanges. The darkest shade indicates an exchange percentage of 10% or greater, and each consecutive lighter shade 
follows a logarithmic scale (10%, 1%, 0.1%...) The lightest shade indicates that you've exchanged at least one record with an 
organization in that state. Gray indicates no exchanges with organizations in that state. 

Exchanges in <Year> The sum of incoming and outgoing patient records in a given year, including exchanges with Epic and non-Epic trading 
partners. A single patient can account for multiple record exchanges if they are linked to multiple organizations and updates 
are requested for those links. ' 

Hospitals, Emergency Departments, The number of Epic hospitals, emergency departments, and clinics you have exchanged with. It does not include any non- 
Clinics Exchanged With Epic hospitals, emergency departments, or clinics because we don't have a way to gather these counts. 

Streamlining Exchange 
Your Record Exchange Compared to Your You’re compared to your peers based on each organization's exchange counts normalized by the number of unique patients 
Peers they’ve seen in the last 2 years. If you’re in the 50th percentile, you exchange the same amount of records as peers who see 

the same number of patients. Features that can improve your exchange compared to your peers' are shown with a blank 
checkbox. 

Effective Authorization Policy Patients should authorize the exchange of their records when they're seen elsewhere. If this metric appears with a green 
check mark, at least 90% of your patients seen in the last quarter have authorized Care Everywhere exchange. Restricted or 
otherwise opted-out patients are excluded from this metric. 

Advanced Record Location Advanced Record Location significantly streamlines record exchange by automating requests for a patient’s record, reducing 
staff time and increasing the likelihood that information is available. If this metric appears with a green check mark, you 
have Advanced Record Location enabled at patient check-in, ED arrival, and inpatient registration (as applicable). 

Shared Provider Directory Sharing your provider directory improves communication by allowing external providers to send records for patients coming 
to your organization. If this metric appears with a green check mark, you've shared an updated provider directory in the last 
quaneL 

Top Trading Partners 
Top Trading Partners Bar Chart Your top ten trading partners during the past 12 months, sorted by the total number of patient records exchanged (sent and 

received) with those partners. 

Carequality Exchange by Network 
Sites Exchanged With The number of unique organizations you‘ve exchanged with via Carequality. These organizations do not use Epic, so this 

count cannot be broken down into hospitals, clinics, and EDs. Each organization you exchange with may represent multiple 
facilities. 

Bar Chart Your Carequality network trading partners during the past 12 months, sorted by total number of patient records exchanged 
(sent and received). A network may represent multiple EHR vendors. 

Feature Toggle Legend 

« D  On Off Not applicableto your organization w-wr-w Available inafutureversion 

El": Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Interoperability | 2 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access I DATAi3 months ending October 2020 l TREND: Since last quarter 

PahentExpenence 
Activation & Logins Financial 

.— . . —| Patient Payments Collected Through Patients With a MyChart Account El MyCha rt 8| Welcome (Past 3 months) 

V You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Median I Best259ir I Best 10% V You I Bottom 25%- I Middle 50% I Median I Best 2595 I Best 10% 

Patients Seen Who Have 21 39/ Y Patient Payments 
a MyChart ACCOUHt ' a o 2;“ 3m are-on COHECtEd Through ' 21x as: 23!; m m we 
(Past 12 months) 134’ MyChart 

Patients Seen 3+ Times 1' 23_5% . - Paperless Statements 0 _ 

MyChart Users Who Have Y CE Patient-Initiated Estimates Peer Group Adoption 7/ 20 
O I. _ ' 

Logged In {Past 90 days) 40 "3 39’- 4”"- m m '55" _ m pay as Guest Peer Group Adoption 19 l 20 

Inactive Patients Activated Within 1% I 3,. a m m Payment Plans Peer Group Adoption 1 7 /  20 

t27% 7 Days Of Encounter m Financial Assistance Peer Group Adoption 7/ 14 
«3 Automatic Activation Peer Grove Attention 18 l 22 

« 3  Instant Activation Peer Group Adoption 22!  22 . . . __—_ 
Access 

« 3  Front Desk Signup Peer Group Adoption 18 f 22 
‘7 You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Median I Best 25% I Best 10% 

_ _ Appointments I 
Clinical Scheduled Online 03% H 2% 4% 8% 101 

for MyChart Patients 
V You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Median I Best 25% I Best 1096 

Appointments 
Test Results Released 534% Y Checked-In Through 5.5% n a n m m m 
Within 24 Hours or 20* m 53* 75* '5‘ MyChart or Welcome 

Test Results Released 93.5% _ J  0P3" SIOtS WW 0 09, E a 9 
Within 30 Days tie to. on. on on. not Through Fast Pass ' ° 1“ 2 " 2‘“ 

Turnaround Time for 1 3 Days I Y Sooner Appointment Time Offers Sent 0 
Patient Messages (Avg) ' 1149' 06 L0 ' 3+ to Patients Through Fast Pass (Past 3 months) 

patient Notes 40.6% T Average Days Improvement _ 
Shared In MyChart T1!I_1 0% 55% 90'!- Tom a Fast P385  0 e r  

. Ticket Schedulin Peer Group Adoption 7 l 22 
MyChart BedSIde Use (96 of admissions) 1% (E g 
b For 7 Live Departments out of 229 w 0 . _ pen Scheduling Peer Group Adoption 17 l 22 

« 3  Happy Together Peer Group MONO” 22 i 22 m MvChart eCheck—ln Peer Group Adoption 21 l22 

w Hello Patient Peer Group Adoption 9 f 22 

Telemedicine 8r Virtual Care {E Welcome Kiosk Check—in Peer Group Adepuon 12/ 21 
Integrated Video Visit Volume Not Using 

« 3  On My Way Peer Group Adoption 4 l 22 
E-Visits Received Not Using 

. , _ _ m eSignature Peer Group Adoption 15 l 21 
Patients Enrolled in Care Companion Not Using 

air: Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. MyChart Patient Experience | 3 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA:3 months ending October 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

Activation 
Total Patients with a MyChart Account 

Patients Seen Who Have a MyChart 
Account 

MyChart Users Who Have Logged In 

Inactive Patients Activated Within 7 Days 
of Encounter 

Automatic Activation 

Instant Activation 

Front Desk Signup 

Count of patients active on MyChart. A patient with two proxies [e.g., a child with two parents) is counted as 1- 

Percentage of unique patients seen in the past 12 months who are active on MyChart. Also shown as patients who have been 
seen 3 or more times in the past 12 months. 
Percentage of active MyChart users who have logged into their account in the past 90 days. 

Clinical encounters for which the patient's MyChart status changed from inactive to active within 7 days of being seen. 

Use configurable automated triggers to send an email or text message to patients for MyChart signup. 

Staff can quickly send patients an activation URL by email ortext message for a streamlined mobile signup workflow. 

Prompt front desk staff to sign patients up during check-in/out. 

Clinical 
Test Results Released 

Turnaround Time for Patient Messages 

Patient Notes Shared in MyChart 

MyChart Bedside Use 

Happy Together 

Data on the time it takes to release finalized test results to MyChart. 

Average time (in days) it takes for someone at your clinic to respond to a patient message. 

The percentage of patient notes available for sharing that have been shared in MyChart. 

Percentage of admissions using MyChart Bedside on the tablet or MyChart Mobile for live departments. 

A design philosophy dedicated to improving patient care and care coordination, Happy Together allows patients to see a 
combined view of their healthcare record across many organizations in one comprehensive narrative in MyChart. 

Telemedicine 8. Virtual Care 
Integrated Video Visit Volume 

Total E-Visits Submitted 

Patients Enrolled in Care Companion 

A count of scheduled video visits where a patient and a staff member were connected simultaneously. 

The total number of e-visits submitted from MyChart. E-Visits are an asynchronous form of telehealth that allow providers to 
respond to patient symptoms on their own schedule. 
Number of patients currently enrolled in a MyChart Care Companion Care Plan. MyChart Care Companion is an individualized 
plan of care delivered to patients through user-friendly technology. 

Financial 
Patient Payments Collected Through 
MyChart 8. Welcome 

Patient Payments Collected via MyChart 

Paperless Statements 

Patient—Initiated Estimates 

Pay as Guest 

Payment Plans 

Financial Assistance 

The sum of electronic payments made over the past 90 days. Patients can pay their outstanding balances by logging into 
MyChart, logging on as a guest, or using Welcome. Payments from payment plans are also included. 

The percentage of payments made over the last 90 days that came from MyChart, Pay as Guest, Welcome, and payment plans 
rather than manual collection by your staff, calculated as a percent of the count of payments. 
Percentage of total billing statements made available to the patient in MyChart rather than sent via mail. Patients are counted 
whether they are active on MyChart or not 
Patients can view and create estimates for common procedures based on information your organization provides. 

Allows for patients and guarantors to pay bills online without signing up or signing in to their MyChart account. 

Patients and guarantors can set up an auto payment plan in MyChart with the monthly amount, pay date, and details. 

A patient or guarantor can complete a form to request financial assistance and track its progress and approval online. 

Access 
Appointments Scheduled Online for 
MyChart Patients 
Appointments Checked In via MyChart or 
Welcome 
Open Slots Filled Through Fast Pass 

Sooner Appointment Time Offers Sent to 
Patients and Average Days Improvement 
from Fast Pass 
Ticket Scheduling 

Open Scheduling 

MyChart eCheck—ln 

Hello Patient 

Welcome Kiosk Check-In 

eSignature 

a s  Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. 

Percentage of visits for MyChart-active patients that were scheduled through MyChart. 

Percentage of appointments where the patient checked in using MyChart or Welcome before the visit. 

Percentage of appointments offered through Fast Pass where a patient accepted the offer. Fast Pass helps patients secure an 
earlier appointment time and improves providers' schedule utilization. 
The count of appointments offered through Fast Pass, and the corresponding average number of days an appointment was 
moved advanced forward. 

Clinicians create scheduling tickets for visits or procedures, or the system auto-generates tickets when a clinician orders a 
certain procedure or lab test. Patients can use the ticket to schedule the appointment online through MyChart. 
Open scheduling allows patients to schedule an appointment online without needing a MyChart account. Patients can 
schedule appointments through a central scheduling page or from within your organization's provider directory. 
Allow patients to skip the line for check-in by empowering them to update their insurance, sign documents, and answer 
clinical questionnaires through MyChart. 

Digitally greet patients as they arrive at the clinic and automatically sign or check them in 

Offer patients self-service check-In at the start of the care process, via an intuitive touch screen interface. 

Allow patients to quickly sign documents prior to arrival via MyChart eCheck-in. 

MyChart Patient Experience | 4 



October 2020 l Presser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic | DATA:September2020 

' " ' s 3' l '  l . ' .  , E "  I' Let Outpatient Physrcran Well—Being pErna:stressesisaint:snow 
Minutes Working After Hours (Unscheduled time on weekdays between 5:30 PM and 7:00 AM and any time on weekends, AKA Pajama Time) 

YourAverage HeerE-roup PeerGroup Your Distribution Your Physrcians 
per Physician Bestifi'e Median DOMinutes l<75Mrnures Ii5-30Minutes l>30Minutes 

Total 
Physicians in Bottom 25% 

of Specialty 

overall 8.2 22.5 26.7 _ NA 79 
Largest Specialties by Number of Physicians 

Bottom Outlier Specialties {Furthest from the Epic community specialty-specific benchmark) 

Progress Notes (Time in notes vs progress notes length) Clinical Review (Higher is better) 0 You | Best 25%; I Median 

Inefficient Note Composition Potential Role Bloat 
Chart Search 29% 

Personalized a ' 
1%" Quick Filters 21 ‘4’ 

2:! 
E on 20%. 40% son sex 100% 
E, 

O) 
33 i 

Q . . E Team-Based Care (Higher rs better) . You I 383259,; . Median 

E |-... Orders Placed with o 
. Team Contributions 26 ’6 l l 

Note Text Written 0 
. . . . 32 #6 Short Efficient Notes Note Length (Characters) Long Efficient Notes by Others 

1 Family Medicine 0% 20% 40% 60% 30% 100% 

Chart Closure Rate (Higher is better) . You I 395; 25% I Median 

Same Day Chart 0 I A . . . . 91 46 ctive Signal Users per Week I You — - Best25% nun-redian Closure Rate I 
(Per 500 physicians - Washington instance) 0% 20% 40% 

11 7 g 8. 4 
8.8 5 0  5 o 5. 3 6. 2 
6.6 H4145 

I I I  I I I I- """ 2 2  ............. mm“... 
0 I I .  

Jul Jul Jul Fug Alug Aug Aug Aug Snep Sep Sep Sep Oct Oct 
i3 20 2? 03 70 i? 24 3? 24 27 28 05 72 

Eric Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Outpatient Physician Well-Being | 5 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic | DATA:September 2020 

Minutes Working After Hours 

Overall This section shows the percentage of providers across your organization who spend time in the system on weekdays outside 
the hours of 7:00 AM and 5:30 PM and any time on weekends and non-scheduled holidays. Time is also divided into buckets 
of minutes per day spent on average. If a provider is scheduled on weekends or off hours, this metric does not include the 
time during those scheduled hours. It also excludes time spent personalizing tools like SmartPhrases and preference lists, 
time spent using reporting tools such as SlicerDicer and Reporting Workbench, and time spent in inpatient encounters. 

Largest Specialties by Number of The average amount of after hours time per provider in the two largest specialties at your organization. 
Physicians 

Bottom Outlier Specialties The average amount of after hours time per provider in the two specialties at your organization that are furthest from their 
peers at other organizations in the Epic community. 

Progress Notes 

This sections shows your top specialties by size. Each specialty is graphed in standard deviations away from the community average for that specialty. The size of the circle 
corresponds to the relative size of that specialty at your organization. 

Time in Notes Average time spent writing a note for each note written per provider. 

Note Length Average length of a provider's notes, in characters. 

Manual Note Composition 

The percentage of text in notes written manually for the three specialties at your organization that are furthest from their peers at other organizations in the Epic 
community. 

Physician Builders and Training 

Self-Reported Physician Count of certified Physician Builders or Power Users at your organization (self-reported). A Physician Builder is a practicing 
Builders or Power Users clinician that understands your organization's workflows and contributes to records built in your Epic system. Power Users are 

Epic- trained providers that have shown an understanding and usage of optimization tools. 

Active Thrive Program Shows whether your organization has an active Physician Thrive program. Thrive After Go-Live is Epic's post-live, efficiency, 
and advanced personalization program for end users. Research on provider satisfaction shows that ongoing training and 
system personalization improve overall end user happiness. The Thrive program provides a framework for you to establish an 
ongoing training program targeting efficiency tips and advanced personalization, starting 2-3 months after go-live. 

Active Signal Users per Week 

The number of unique staff members from your organization who viewed Signal at least once in the given week, normalized to users per 500 physicians. This metric is 
calculated by dividing the count of unique users in a given week by the number of physicians at your organization and multiplying that number by 500. 

Clinical Review 

Chart Search The percentage of providers who used Chart Search at least once during the reporting period. 

Quick Filters The percentage of providers who have created at least one Quick Filter in Chart Review. 

Team-Based Care 

Orders Placed with Team Help The percentage of orders signed by the provider that were pended by another provider. 

Note Text Written by Others The percentage of notes authored by physicians that were added or written by other providers. 

Chart Closure Rate 

Same Day Chart Closure Rate The percentage of appointments that were closed the same day as the appointment date. 

aria Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Outpatient Physician Well-Being | 6 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic | DATA:August 2020 

Outpatient Physician Efficiency - in Basket 
Higher than necessary message volume could distract from important messages and take time away from patient care. Improve outpatient physician efficiency in In Basket by 
rerouting appropriate messages to support staff and by enabling features that help your physicians quickly respond to common messages. For more information on improving 
physician efficiency, contact your BFF or TC. See Signal (signalepiccom), Epic’s online portal for provider efficiency data trending, insights, and drill-downs. 

Your Overall Average 

50 

40 
32 

3° 24 
20 

20 

10 I 

0 

Your Overall 
Average 

_ _ - __ _ . _____ _ 9.. 
Message Ffpes to Rollie" Messages per Provider per Week 

Type Recommended Action Item You Rest 255:. Median 

Refills Help support staff handle these messages more efficrently through Refill 13 0‘79 50 _ 
Protocols. 

Canceled Orders These messages are often only informational. Assess the value and 5.1 0-45 2-1 
suppress or re-route to support staff as appropriate. 

assistant:ran;initializesWW 1-0 0.14 0-83 
satires:tripartisitsm’"e”not“its"“t u 2-6 . '92 

Clinic Orders Cosign 5:531;tfifirrtrgelsps’agg-(gsrggteiggorders and determine which could fell 9.6 3.0 12 _ 

CC Charts 55%;::riltrigteesrsfégggnsolidating these messages with other encounter 2-7 — 1.4 4.0 

# I # Peer Group Adoption 
- ’ _ n  

Automatically Remove Completed Messages 86/ 399 (E Email Ticklers 72 l 399 
Give providers immediate feedback on progress by automatically Help users who only work in Epic a few days a week stay connected 
removing a message from the ln Basket when it is marked Done. to their patients by subscribing to email reminders for new in Basket 

messages. 

33': Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Outpatient Physician Efficiency - In Basket | 7 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic i DATAzAugust 2020 

Descriptions & Benefits 

Messages Received per Provider per Day The average number of In Basket messages received per provider per day. 

Your Specialties with the Highest Message Compares average message volume in specialties at your organization to the Epic community's top quartile for those 
Volume specialties. The graph highlights specialties with the largest difference from the Epic community average. 

Message Types to Review Shows In Basket message types whose value and audience should be reviewed, including strategies to decrease the number of 
messages of that type in your physicians' In Baskets. 

lmpactful Features You Are Not Using These features are available on your current Epic release version and are not fully in use in your organization. Implementing 
these features would help to make In Basket more efficient for your providers. Thresholds for use of these features are 
available at Signalepiccom. 

mic Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Outpatient Physician Efficiency - In Basket | 8 



October 2020 I Presser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA:3 months ending October 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

ACUte  c a r e  N u r S i n g  VVou IBortom25'Lta M1’ddle50% E'Best2596 IMedlan 

Track System Time(30secondrnactivltytimeout) Provide Lean Flowsheets 
Data from 409 shifts across 105 nurses: Mar 22 - Jul 10 See reverse for data date ranges 

Active Time per 12-Hour Shift . Cg Device-Entered Flowsheet Data in ICUs o 
(Hyperspace) 118 Mlnutes 9 (Of data that can be automated) 18 /° 

1" How You Compare 1' _ —  How You Compare - — —  
100 15357 no zoo 13% 53% 7332-35-1. 

130 
114 109 126 

98 

82 

65 Total Minutes Initial Rows 50 53 Most Used Flowsheet Templates Spent Displayed 

DEC ‘9 “PF ‘30 Jun 90 Adult PCS 5,404 103 
Active Time in Hyperspace by Category (Minutes) Labor Record 2,451 122 

I Flowsheets I MAR I Clinical Review I Care Plans Vita| Signs 1,740 43 
I Orders I Time Management I Notes I Other 
Y Intake/Output 1,432 29 on 

PACU 1,373 100 

Flowsheet Features Peer Group Adoption 

Average of Best 25% a) Infusion Pump Integration 7 120 

a) Rule-Based Flowsheets 18 I 21 

Patient Monitoring m Ventilator Device Integration 17 r 21 

5' E:- Deterioration Index 8/21 _ . _ 
_ Premsron Staffing 
in Early Sepsis Detection 17! 21 
(E Fall Risk 1 I21 CE Assignment Wizard 5/21 

CD ICU Length of Stay 2 l 21 m Capacity_M_a_nagemen_t 17 r 21 

CE ICU Mortality Risk 2/21 CE Nurse Scorecard 10 I 21 

[E Risk of Unplanned Readmission 10 l 21 m) Workload Scoring 16 r 21 

Monitor BestPractice Advisories (BPAs) 

- BPA Acted 0n ° Ho You Com are “ * —  
[—' Pop Up 5 9 A W p as ea. 12% m, 24$. 

a t  Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Acute Care Nursing I 9 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA:3 months ending October 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

Track System Time 

Active Time in Hyperspace 

How You Compare 

Active Time in Hyperspace by Category 

Clinician active time spent in Hyperspace is collected and summarized through our Nursing Efficiency and Assessment Tool 
(NEAT). This tool breaks down how nurses use the system to help identify actionable feature and configuration options to 
improve efficiency. Your EpicCare Inpatient Technical Services representative can share this data with you on a quarterly 
basis. We currently capture user click and keystroke information and apply a 30-section inactivity timeout in calculations. We 
are transitioning to a newer data model that also captures mouse movements and lowers the timeout threshold to 5 
seconds. Peer benchmarks are not mixed across data models in order to preserve fair comparisons. 

This graph shows the distribution of the average time nurses spend in Hyperspace across organizations. The measurement 
is limited to Registered Nurses in similar shift durations [e.g., 8, 10, 12 hours) and the selected packet peer group. 

The double bar graph shows where time is being spent in Hyperspace activities as compared to the organizations in the top 
quartile. The graph shows the top seven areas where nurses spend time, and all remaining time appears in the Other 
category. You can see a more detailed breakdown of this information in your NEAT workbook mentioned above. 

Monitor BestPractice Advisories (BPAs) 
Pop-Up BPAs Acted 0n 

Frequently Presented BPAs with Lowest 
Acted Do is 

Measures the percentage of inpatient interruptive BPAs (such as pop-up BPAs) presented to nurses with at least one non- 
acknowledgement reason action taken. Referto the Reducing Medication Timing Errors Using BestPractice Advisories 
program for ideas on how to use this metric. 

Displays the BPAs that were presented to nurses most frequently in the reporting period and had low action taken. Consider 
more targeted display of these alerts or adjusting logic accordingly. 

Provide Lean Flowsheets 

Nurses spend a lot of time in flowsheets. That data entry is vital for patient care and is a core component in the Cognitive Computing Models below. Help your nurses 
document this data in real time and more efficiently by improving your Flowsheet content. Work with your inpatient TS to run the Flowsheet utilization tool to help inform you 
in that work. 

Device Entered Flowsheet Data in ICUs 

Timely Flowsheet Documentation 

Most Used Flowsheet Templates 

Flowsheet Features 

Percentage of flowsheet values entered by an integrated device compared to the number of values that could have been 
entered by an integrated device. This metric is limited to values entered from ICU departments where device integration is 
most prevalent. A single day of data was sampled. 

Percentage of flowsheet values filed by a nurse within 60 minutes of the value being measured. 

Flowsheet templates where users spend the most time, along with the number of initial rows show by the template. You can 
use this information to prioritize build improvements by their impact on nursing practice. Usage data from 409 shifts across 
105 clinicans: Mar 22, 2020 - Jul 10,2020 

Consider the following top tier Gold Stars features to help bring added integration, safety, and efficiency to nurses' most- 
used workspace. 

Patient Monitoring 

Clinical cognitive computing models use historical trends based on data from patients' charts to predict future events, such as a patient's likelihood of developing sepsis or 
having an unplanned readmission. These models can help your organization do the most good with the resources you have available by focusing the attention of clinicians, 
care managers, and administrative staff on the patients who are most likely in need of that attention. These inpatient cognitive computing models are intended to directly 
affect patient care by driving interventions that reduce negative outcomes, improve care, and lower the costs associated with that care. 

Precision Staffing 

Epic’s precision staffing tools can help your organization granularly evaluate, assign, and monitor nursing workloads for improved clinician satisfaction and patient care. Use 
scoring tools in Epic to distribute patient assignments, reduce staffing shortfalls, and improve continuity of care. 

Feature Toggle Legend 

do on (E on ~ Oh but not Not Applicableto Available in a I l 

I- operationalized yourOrganization future version 

Hi: Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Acute Care Nursing | it) 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic I DATA: October 3, 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

Revenue Cycle Performance index 
This page provides a peer-based comparison of some key revenue cycle measures. it highlights areas of strength and opportunities to improve financial performance. 

: Financial Pulse Trophies Metrics Compared to Median Metric Movement (Since lastquarter) 

Your gold (best 5%), silver {best 70%), and bronze The number of metrics above and below the peer The # of metrics that improved, dropped, or stayed 
(best 25 % ) metrics compared to the peer group. group median. the same compared to last quarter ( July 2020). 

0 0 Improved >5% 3 
. t". .. 1 
{E7 c!) Within 5% of Prior Value 1 

- I _ Declined >5% 2 
- 1 . .  _ _ _ _  _ _  . . - _ _  ___ .  

Metrics ' ' * Higher is Better- 

Hospital Billing Your Value Best 25% Y You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Best 25% I Median 

0 AR Days were 553 323 — —  . 
22.9 32.8 42.1 50.1 as a 

DNFB Days 132.0% 3_7 75 h 
5.4 9 5 9.4 11.8 15.4 

0 Insurance 90+ T7393 25_0% 12_2% - ‘  u 
7.32 12.2% 16.12 21.2% 35.0% 

Primary Denial Rate 4.29 5' 122% 33% _ _ i  
6 2% 3.9% 11.1% 15.11% 24 7% 

* Net Collection Ratio $7.199 90_3% 94.2% i —  
71 5% 35.9% 91.3% 97.22 

a * Clean Paid Claims 40.0% 303% 557% . _ —  
27 on. 45.9% 55.52 74.02. 

Hair: Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Revenue Cycle Performance Index | ‘I 1 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health peens; All Epic | DATA:Dctober 3, 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

Data is collected weekly via Financial Pulse for the service area(s] listed and compared to the peer group as designated below. Financial Pulse trophies are based on this peer group. 
For more measures and other service areas or comparisons. visit Financial Pulse in Epic or speak with your Financial Performance Analyst. 

_ _ - . _ 2%— _—P_ _ ¥ - _ _ _ - —  -_—__—_—_——-—_.- 

Service Area CC WPM PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH SA 

Peer Group All Epic 

Financial Performance Analyst Mark Bledsoe - mbledsoe@epic.com 

Financial Pulse Trophies ‘ 

HB Trophies (1 / 18) 

Y Claim Error Days 

Metrics ' - _ _ - ;~. — _ ll. 

HB 

AR Days Number of days of outstanding balances in accounts receivable. 

DNFB Days Number of days of balances that have been discharged but have not been final billed. 

Insurance 90+ Percentage of insurance balances older than 90 days from discharge. 

Primary Denial Rate Denial rate for payments posted for primary payers. 

Net Collection Ratio Ratio of payments (less refunds) to net charges on fully resolved accounts. 

Clean Paid Claims Percentage of claims resolved that did not require a touch in Epic (no edits or denials). 

Hi :  Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Revenue Cycle Performance Index | 12 



October 2020 l Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic | DATA: 4vweek average, ending October 3, 2020 | TREND: Since last quarter 

Revenue Cycle Automation 
This page gives a quick glimpse into how often key Revenue Cycle activities take place without anyone at your organization needing to lift a finger. You can learn about opportunities 
to improve automation within your Revenue Cycle by reviewing the Financial Programs on the UserWeb. 

Automation Pulse Trophies Metrics Compared to Median Metric Movement (Since last quarter) 

Your gold (best 5%), silver (best 10%), and bronze The number of metrics above and below the peer The # of metrics that impro ved, dropped, or stayed 
(best 25 9/6 ) metrics compared to the peer group. group median. the same compared to last quarter {July 2020). 

O ill. 6 Improved >5% 0 

. Within 5% of Prior Value 5 

0 1 Declined >5% 0 

_,rfi ._ __fi _ _ _  ___—r  - ! _ _ . !  
__"t‘ricgs' 

Your Value Best 25% ‘7 You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Best 25% I Median 

0 HB Charges Triggered Clinically l0.4% 973% 997% 1 — -  
soes 98.2% senses. 

HB Out atient Accounts Coded b 1 — —  0 M P Y m 34.3% 35.3% - 
3.2% 319% 54.9% goes 

HB Consecutive Accounts Auto . ->0.0% (103’ 71.8"/ F — —  
0 Combined O 0 0.0% 17.6% 42.5% 94.8% 

0 HB Late Charges Auto Processed 40.0% 03% 713% . _ —  
0.0% 34.1% 53.71:. 92.8% 

0 HB Payment Plans Using Auto Pay 60.0% 0_0°/° 62.0% Y _ —  
omi. 34.4% 50.0% can. 

-1
 

0 HB Insurance Payments Auto Posted t i  1% 72_6% 973% . _ 
72.53:. 92.0% 95.5% 99.1%. 

Ric Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Revenue Cycle Automation | 13 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: All Epic l DATA: 4-week average, ending October 3, 2020 I TREND: Since last quarter 

Service Area CC WPIVI PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH SA 

Peer Group All Epic 

‘ Automation Pulse Trophies 

Y HB Estimates Auto Created 

_ fietrics 

Metric Definition Your Value Sample Size 
Percentage of hospital billing charges triggered through clinical workflows 
instead of back-end revenue cycle workflows, such as Charge Router Charge 919% HB Charges Triggered Clinically Entry and Batch Charge Entry. sears/31,757 416 

HB Outpatient Accounts Coded by :ienr‘ciclegtvagfi Eggiutpizgsg’a non-surgical accounts successfully coded usmg 34.3% 335 

SVC p g ' 2,202 x 0,327 

Percentage of consecutive hospital accounts that were combined 
. automatically using a system action compared to the total number of 

HB Consecutive Accounts Auto . . . 0.0% . consecutive accounts that were combined or WhiCh had the DNB check 268 
Comblned . . . . 0/30 overridden. This metric excludes recurring accounts. 

Percentage of late charge processing actions that were automated by a D 09’ 
HB Late Charges Auto Processed system action. 0‘; M: 387 

HB Payment Plans Using Auto Pay Percentage of payments set up to use Auto Pay. 02.51:? 282 

HB Insurance Payments Auto Percentage of Insurance payments which are posted Without user Intervention. 72.6% 
Posted This Includes payments posted via electronic remittance. 3143/1i277 413 

all: Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Revenue Cycle Automation | 14 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA: September 2020 | TREND: Since prior month 

Cogltonrse Benchmarking 
Cogito Pulse Benchmarking is Epic's built-in performance benchmarking infrastructure. You can compare your performance on clinical, operational, and financial 
metrics to peers across the Epic community. A sample of the available metrics are listed below. fi 

Enanicipation Rate 8: Performance 

Published Metrics You Submit How You Compare to Your Peers 

677 I Your Metrics in the Best 25% 36% 

Your Metrics in the Middle 50% 33°/ 0 — m ' o 
I Your Metrics in the Bottom 25% 31% 

9:4. __ _L_—_— J 
n Popular Metrics Your Value Your Percentile Y You I Bottom 25% l Middle 50% I Best2595 I Median 

a
?

 

* Day of Surgery Cancellations 0.0 0 A 

Percent of Inpatient Discharges Before 2 PM 0.0% h —  
0% 42.6% 50% 

Breast Cancer Screening 0.0% 55.0% m * —  
056 36.4% 58.6% 80% 

Cervical Cancer Screening 0.0% m * —  
0'6 35.9% 50% 

I Leading the Pack Your Value Your Percentile ‘7 You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Best25% I Median 

Appropriate Treatment for Children with Upper .6 .. n! 
Respiratorylnfection (URI) 0'0 0,5 9mg 

T 
* Bed Request Turnaround Time - ED Turnaround 0.0% . — 

om 89m 123m 210m 

* Bed Request Turnaround Time - Bed Ready to a Y _ _  
Completed 0'06 100111 0111 74m mm, 

a Room for Improvement Your Value Your Percentile 7 You I Bottom 25% I Middle 50% I Best 25% I Median 

- - - Y — —  MyChart Enterprise Activation Percentage 0.0% - 
0% 32.9% 40.41:. 5h 

- - _ Y * Average Wait Time After Check-In 0.0% m r 
0m 21m 28m 50m 

1' 
*Diabetes:HemoglobinA1cPoorControl 0.0% — . 

0% 32.9% 39.0% 60% 

attic Executive Packet @2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. Cogito - Benchmarking | 15 



October 2020 | Prosser Memorial Health PEERS: Critical Access | DATA: September 2020 | TREND: Since prior month 

How You Stack Up 

a Popular Metrics 

Day of Surgery Cancellations 

Percent of Inpatient Discharges Before 2 PM 

Breast Cancer Screening 

Cervical Cancer Screening 

I Leading the Pack 

Appropriate Treatment for Children with Upper 
Respiratory Infection (URI) 

Bed Request Turnaround Time - ED Turnaround 

Bed Request Turnaround Time - Bed Ready to 
Completed 

n Room for Improvement 

MyChart Enterprise Activation Percentage 

Average Wait Time After Check-In 

Diabetes: Hemoglobin A1 c Poor Control 

HI": Executive Packet ©2020 Epic Systems Corporation. Confidential. 

The percentage of day of surgery cancellations. A case is considered canceled if the case is canceled, rescheduled, 
or marked procedure not performed on the day of surgery. Add-on cases are excluded. 

The percent of inpatient discharges completed before 2 PM. A higher value generally indicates a more efficient 
discharge process. 

The percentage of women age 50-74 who had a mammogram to screen for breast cancer. 

The percentage of women age 21-64 who were screened for cervical cancer using either of the following criteria: 
age 21-64 and had cervical cytology performed every 3 years. or age 30-64 and had cervical cytology/human 
papillomavirus (HPV) co-testing performed every 5 years. 

The percentage of children age 3 months-18 years who were diagnosed with an upper respiratory infection (URI) and 
were not dispensed an antibiotic prescription on or within three days after the episode. 

The average time required to complete a bed request originating in the ED. Incomplete bed requests are excluded. A 
lower value is better. 

The average time elapsed between when a bed request was submitted and when it was completed. Incomplete bed 
requests are excluded. A lower value is better. 

The percentage of unique patients seen in the previous 12 months who had an active MyChart account. 

The average time a patient waits between check-in and the beginning of rooming. A lower value is better. 

The percentage of patients age 18-75 with diabetes (type 1 or type 2) who had an HbAI c result >9.D°/o or no HbAl 0 
test result. A lower score is better. 

Cogito - Benchmarking | 15 



Hie 

© 2020 Epic Systems Corporation. All rights reserved. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION - This item and its contents 
may not be accessed, used, modified, reproduced, performed, displayed, distributed or disclosed unless and only 
to the extent expressly authorized by an agreement with Epic. This item is a Commercial Item, as that term is 
defined at 48 C.F.R. Sec. 2.101. It contains trade secrets and commercial information that are confidential, 
privileged and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act and prohibited from disclosure 
under the Trade Secrets Act. After Visit Summary, Analyst, App Orchard, ASAP, Beacon, Beaker, BedTime, Bones, 
Break-the-Glass, Bugsy, Caboodle, Cadence, Canto, Care Everywhere, Charge Router, Chronicles, Clarity, Cogito 
ergo sum, Cohort, Colleague, Comfort, Community Connect, Cosmos, Cupid, Epic, EpicCare, EpicCare Link, 
Epicenter, Epic Earth, EpicLink, EpicWeb, Garden Plot, Good Better Best, Grand Central, Haiku, Happy Together, 
Healthy Planet, Hyperspace, Kaleidoscope, Kit, Limerick, Lucy, Lumens, MyChart, OpTime, OutReach, Patients Like 
Mine, Phoenix, Powered by Epic, Prelude, Radar, Radiant, Resolute, Revenue Guardian, Rover, Share Everywhere, 
SmartForms, Sonnet, Stork, System Pulse, Tapestry, Trove, Welcome, Willow, Wisdom, With the Patient at Heart, 
and WorldWise are registered trademarks, trademarks, or service marks of Epic Systems Corporation in the 
United States of America and/or other countries. Other company, product, and service names referenced herein 
may be trademarks or service marks of their respective owners. Patents Notice: www.epic.com/patents. 







3 --/8--20 

1 T 6  

P DSSBsr M€W({a\\ Hen-597m: 
fig; 
:oax/H» TWK Gu— and 43m (Law'vm 

g fi l e ‘  wkhcjlw a—«S :1‘41 oééwmwwb on} r 

5% 

i: 

L/wflnfffl [algal/L Wm 

flaw W55» ire Wmfed 

Wm «@4227 

gXM 
W 

IllllllllllllllllllIIIllllllllllllllllllllIllI|llllIIllIIllllllIlllllllllllllllllllllllll 



”Wanna/M 
* 4k 

(/wflnfc’a éfgaw Mm 
flaw may» ire Wmfm’. 

Way» ?’3 {fie flexi/ 

llllllllllllllIlllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllflllll 



d Eur—.532 



Attachment R 

5‘5 Prosser  
L l  M e m o r i a l  H e a l t h  

September 28, 2020 

Dear Prosser Memorial Health Team, 

Adversity can make or break a team. People in the military know it. So do coaches and athletes 
involved in competitive team sports. Ropes challenge courses evolved to create stress and 
adversity to see how a team would respond. The idea being that when people come together and 
share a physical or mental stress, they form a close group bond and build trust. 

The COVID-l9 pandemic has pushed us outside of our comfort zone. We have had to rely on 
one another as a team as we navigate through the “unknown.” As frontline workers, none of us 
had the luxury of quarantining at home with our family until we knew more about this virus. 
Instead, we donned our PPE, created a pop—up clinic, and took every safety measure to ensure 
that our patients and our staff were safe. It has been challenging and stressful and I know there 
have been times when you have been tired and worried. 

Our Prosser Memorial Health family met adversity head on, and we never wavered. Each of you 
knew what needed to be done and you did it! You shared your opinions and your fears to keep an 
open dialogue with your fellow team members and we learned from each other as we moved 
through each day. It hasn’t been easy, but no one ever shied away from the challenges we faced. 
There aren’t adequate words to put in a letter to let each of you know how proud I am to work 
along side of you. Your professionalism, respect for one another, and your dedication and 
commitment to our patients has been nothing short of awesome to witness. 

Enclosed with this letter is a monetary thank you for everything you have done during these 
challenging times. Our community thanks you, our Board of Commissioners thank you, and I 
personally thank you. I know it hasn’t been easy and I can’t promise that there aren’t still more 
challenges ahead, but I know that together we can face whatever comes our way. 

You should all be very proud of yourselves and your Prosser Memorial Health family. I am! 

With sincere gratitude, 

Craig J. Mark 

CEO 

723 Memorial Avenue, Prosser WA 99350 | 509.786.2222 | prosserhealth.org 



%1--lealtlfiCare lr'mlauve 
leadership Rsmdment 8 Int-r: nm 5 Attachment 5 $.e t_‘1.;hctflncarwm\§ 99m 

- rm- 

Bryon Dirkes, MA 
695 YELLOW“ STREET 
WAILA WALLA, WA 99362 

MOBILE: 425-359-8635 -WORK: 360-327-8313 
httfitflwwinkedin.comlin/brxon—dirkes-ma-628469a/ 

Summary of Experience: 

Extensive experience In leading large and small Human Resources and Organizational Development teams within highly 
matrixed, health care continuums with union and non-union employees. Cunently hold accountability for leading the 
delivery of HR. services for a 24-hour. mum-site. unionized healthcare network In Forks Washington. 

Relations I 

Director. Human Resources: ”612020 — Present 
Forks Community Hospital. Forks WA 
Lead the Human Resources function in a critical access hospital healthcare continuum. with an acute care hospital. behavioral 
health program. a network of primary care and specialty clinics. supported by unionized and non-union caregivers. employed 
and contracted providers. (My primary home is located in Walla Walls. and ! commute to Forks Washington eVery week.) 

Director, Human Resoumes: 11:16 - 9I27I2019 
Lourdes Health Network lLll'ePolnt. Pasco WA 
Lead the Human Resources function supporting Mid-Columbia region's heelthcare needs. through an acute care medical 
center. behavioral health hospital providing both inpatient and outpatient programs. a network of over seventeen primary care 
and specialty clinics. with numerous other outpatient services. supported by unionized and non-union caregivers. employed 
and contracted providers. 

PROVIDENCE HEALTH 8- SERVICES - (17 Years) 
W W  
Kadlec Medical Center a Physician Group. Richland. WA 
Senior Human Resources Strategic Partner: 5m: - 11115 
Transferred into a Sr. HR Strategic partner role within the Providence system and held primary responsibility for leading HR services 
in the Physician network. 

Erovidence Health a Services: conga — 11:16 
Providence Regional Medical Center. Everett. WA 
Regional Director (interim). Human Resources: M15 - 11i15 
Senior Human Resources Strategic Partner: 112013 - 516 
As a member of the HR Leadership team. provide HR business partner consultation and support in a highly unionized. multi- 
site. health care organization with more than 3.400 employees and over 78.000 in the Health System. Serve as the 
representative on system and local efforts for employee engagement and leadership development. Manage day to day leave 
management. employment efforts. employeellabor relations issues. contract negotiations and grievances management. Coach 
leaders in performance management and provide individual and team coaching and development. 

Director. Organizational Development: tomes — 112013 
Providence Health 8. Services. Renton. WA 
Set strategy and direction for a team of senior 0D consultants in delivering consultation and coaching services impacting over 63,000 
employees in four west-coast states. Load a regional matrixod team of 25+ HRIOD in preparing. deploying and providing diagnostic 
& coaching services for annual employee engagement survey. Oversee OD efiorts for corporate integration, merger a. standardization 
during “One Transformations". Hold accountability for development of annual OD budget and related analysis. 

1 | P a g e  

Bryon Dlrltes. IIA 

flumprmntcd by; 
Alison Holland, Executive Recruiter 

Alisonhollmdrhhflhw ' ""“txom 

.r . . I _ l l " _ l _ .  L -  I .  n . . . l _ .  . . . I f I  - -  -.ml....‘ b n a n - I l i a e k t w  f “ - fl r 4 d l ‘  



\ 'r'rn: . . . . 
é, I-lealihCare intilailVe We: 

. we {ship Recruitment Er interim Salmons £255 rimmtsm 

”ill-1i 

DIRECTOR, OD! LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT: 512905 - 1912906 
Providence Regional Medical Center, Everett, WA 
As part of the Sr. HR Leadership team, assessed organizational and functional unit needs to develop and deliver leadership 
development and OD services within the Northwest Region, comprised 3,200 employees working in hospitals, physician clinics, 
business Offices, and supply chain locations. Served as chief representative on councils and task forces governing regional 
and system-level OD, employee engagement and leadership development efforts. Chaired the Leadership Development team 
comprised of operations directors and managers and responsible for setting learning strategies to address business needs. 
identifying course content and than building a development team Of operational leaders to deliver curriculum. Oversee the 
deployment of annual employee engagement surveys, diagnostics, leadership coaching, education and action planning efforts. 
Provide counsel to executive leadership regarding engagement performance and leader accountabilities. 

SENIOR MANAGER, HUMAN RasOURcEs: #2903 - $2995 
Providence Regional Medical Center, Everett, WA 
As a member of the Sr. HR Leadership team, provided strategic direction, leadership, and operational oversight for team of 
eight professional and administrative HR staff in a multi-site, health care organization with more than 3,200 employees and 
over 35,000 in the system. Served as the chief representative on system, regional and local-level task forces and councils 
governing benefits, compensation, HRlS, policy, employee engagement, leadership development and provider privileging and 
credentialing. Directed the compensation strategies and plans for both union and non-union employees, ensuring market 
competitiveness. Accountable for benefits administration and compensation administration under three union contracts. 
including per-pay period adjustment coordination with payroll services. 

SENIOR MANAGER, HUMAN RESOURcea: SM 999 — ”2903 
PROVIDENcE MEOIcAI. Gnour- l PnovroancE REGIONAL MEOIOAL CENTER, Evansrr, WA 
As a member of the executive leadership team, Provided hands-on leadership forthe HR Operations of a multi-site primary a. specialty 
care physician pmctice. Partnered with service area human resources statf in brokering benefits, compensation, employee relations, 
and recruiting services- 

Drnac'ron, HUMAN Resounces: 1997 - 1999 
VALLEY Crrres COUNsELrNe AND CONSULTATION, AUBURN, WA 
As part Of the badership mam of a mutti-site behavioral health 8. day treatment health sysmm, was responsible for all aspects Of 
human resources including talent acquisition, performance management, compensation, employee relations, benefits design and 
administration, employee 8. leadership development. regulatory and Joint Commission compliance, and physician I credentialing. 

I 

DIRECTOR, HUNIAN ReaOURcEs: 1994 - 1996 
PaovroENcE - Sr. BRENDAN CARE CENTER. SPOKANE, WA 
Led human resources team of eight in providing strategic planning, talent acquisition, employee relations, performance management. 
benefits design and administration, compensation administration, leadership development employee health and education, infection 
control compliance, risk management. safety, workers compensation, and payroll administration. Oversight Ofa State-certified nursing 
assistant education program providing a pipeline of healthcare talent. Provided 18-month project management input into facility 
building expansion project, resulting in additional space for increased patient occupancy and higher revenues. 

MANAGER, HUMAN RasOURcEs: 1992 - 1994 
CAROLINE KLINE GALLANO HOME, SEATTLE. WA 
Hired to develop a human resources function in privately held, 24—healthcare center. Amuntable for staff general orientation, 
applicant sourcing, interviewing and selection, workers compensation administration, unemployment management, community 
calendar preparation and events tracking, personnel tile maintenance, federal. state and local compliance documentation and 
employee relations. 

2 | P a g e  

Bryon mirror, NA 

Ream presented by; 
AlkmflollandJ‘rrewtive Recruiter 

t 
Alisonfloihnd. tbeheattncatflmonive com 

m u m .  in Lil-anh- half Imam Jamil-[AM W I  



\ 'l'ht- . . . 

é, Healthcare It’llilailVB 
leadership Rsrmrtme rat 8: Intanm Solutions amathgtisslfigwyabagy..mm 

" 'Iml 

Professlonal Guallflcatlons 

Master of Arts. Organizational Management. University of Phoenix, Phoenix, AZ 

BA Communication Studies, E.W.U., Cheney. WA 

C rtifi 
Leading Organizational Design Facilitator! Coach, KatesKessler, Organization Consulting 
Targeted Selection Facilitator I Coach, Development Dimensions International, (DDI) 
Certified Program Management - Targeted Selection. DDI 
Success Profile Analyst. DDI 
Master Trainer I Coach - Select Interviewing. Select International 
Personalysis Facilitator I Coach, Personalysis Corporation 
Development Dimensions lntamational, Certified Master Trainer ICoach 
Transitions 8- Change Management Facilitator I Coach, Linkage International 
Lominger Leadership Architects Products Coach, KornIFerry Leadership and Talent Consulting 
0—12 Impact Planning Coach. Gallup Corporation 
Six Sigma CAP & Workout Facilitator I Coach, General Electric 
Five Dysfunctions of a Team Facilitator: Lancioni, The Table Group 
Select Interviewing Facilitator, Select International 

3 | P a g e  

Bryon Dirku. "A 

Resume presented by: 
Miser: Hoiland, Exec-ethic Recruiter 

Ascension“ theheanhcaeimm‘mtgm 

CHI-1a.!“ 3n Mini-3‘4 MA ‘MM‘LH {Mud haiku-a... (AI-slrfifl l l  



Craig Marks 

Attachment T 

From: Shannon Hitchcock 
Sent: Tuesday, October 13, 2020 1:24 PM 
To: !All Staff 
Subject: Employee Engagement Survey Starts October 19 

" ‘  P r 0  8 8  e r Your FEEdbaCk 

‘ L l  Memorial Health Makes a Difference 

We care about your work experience with us and want to make Prosser Memorial Health an even 
better place to work We are happy to partner with People Element to give you a. Hence to provid e 
confidential feedback; Your feedback gives us the opportun Ity to hear the collective voice of our 
workforce and the at: lity to take targeted action. Your 2028 Employee Survey-will be available to 
take on October 19- If you complete the SuWEy by October 25, tell your manager and receive a $5 
gift card to the Busy Been! The survey will close on November 13. 

1Will“? RESPONSES ARE CONFIDENTIAL 
We partner with People Element to ensure all individual responses are kept confidential. 
Only aggregated results w'll be reported back to Prosser Memorial Health. Your name will not be 
reported with your respDnE-EE so please provide your honest feedback 

YOUR FEEDBACK CAN ASSIST US IN: 
- Mal-ting this an even better place to work 
, Identifying what drives people to be engaged 
- identifying what we do well and wnet can oe improved- 
- Daveloping our organization 

if you have any questions or concerns about 
this process. please contact: 

Rockyf Snider 
(599} 783-6102? 
maiderfiiprosserheelthorg 

pa fifefiit This is how we care. 

— 



_Atta_chment U 
Engagement Model — — 

Presser Memorial Health Engagement Survey 

Somewhat No Answer! Strongly 
Does not Apply Disagree Ag reeiSomewhat Strongly . - ree Agree 

| feel proud to work for Presser Memorial Health H" 
I would recommend Presser Memorial Health as'a good place to work H" 
I plan to be with Presser Memorial Health at least 1 year from new El* 
I don‘t considerloeking fora new job elsewhere Ei" 
Overall, I am satisfied working at Presser Memorial Health El* 
I would recommend Presser Memorial Health to my friends and family for care 
There is a high level of respect between medical staff and employees 
I agree with the Mission, Vision, and Values of Presser Memorial Health 

Both 9. Presser Memorial Health shows recognition for meeting goals 
" Med Staff 10. Other physicians treat me as an important element of the health team 

__ Med Staff 11. I tell others that Presser Memorial Health is a good place to practice 
Med Staff 12. I am satisfied with my current relationship with Presser Memorial Health 

'_ Med Staff 13. The hospital sees physicians as important resources 

Job Satisfaction 
— E’Efiifil 14. I am motivated to go beyond what is normally expected of me to help Presser Memorial Health be 

. “lg successful Ei" 
rfiblqyeé?7 15. My work gives me a sense of personal accomplishment Ei" 

Both 16. My workload allows me to maintain a good work/life balance 
Med Staff 17. I am confident in the medical expertise of the specialists 

: Med Staff 18. Presser Memorial Health is effective in resolving staff cencems 
Med Staff 19. Presser Memorial Health is effective in resolving patient concerns 

Refers to the who man activities 
20. communicates e for 
21. me useful feedback on 
22. ' for work 

Immediate 

23. su m 
24. is effective in issues 
25. su ' treats em 

Administration (Refers to the C00, CEO, CFO, CHRO, CIO, CNO, CMO and COO] 
Both 26. There is sufficient communication from Administration 
Both 27. Administration communicates a clear vision and plan for Presser Memorial Health's future 
Both 28. Administration actions show they care about employees and medical staff 

: Med Staff 29. Administration effectively balances quality care and fiscal policy 
Med Staff _ 30. Presser Memorial Health Administration and physicians are in agreement on erganizationalgoals 

Med Staff 1 31. The decision-making process at Presser Memorial Health is fair 

© 2017 People Element Page 1 



Engagement Model 

Communication 
Both 32. Prosser Memorial Health's communication tools (i.e. newsletters, bulletin boards, emails, 

company website) are useful 
Both 33. I trust the information I receive from Prosser Memorial Health 
Both 34. I receive important company information in a timely manner 

_ Both 35. | feel comfortable voicing my opinion and offeringfliggestions 
Both 36. My ideas and suggestions wiven consideration 
Both 37. Communication between departments is effective 

38. If you answered 3 or below to the previous item, please explain how communication between 
Both departments could be improved 

Med Staff 39. Prosser Memorial Health information systems allow for timely and accurate reporting of 
information 

: Med Staff 40. Communication between medical staff and nurses is effective 

Service & Quality 
41. My coworkers are committed to deliveringflgh quality work 

Both 42. Patient satisfaction is a t0p priority at Prosser Memorial Health 
Both 43. I am encouraged to share ideas for improving service and quality 
Both 44. Prosser Memorial Health emphasizes the importance of safety 
Both 45. Safety standards are consistently enforced 

‘ Med Staff 46. I know the plans for improvement and my. role 

Staffiny & Resource Ma Jement 
, ‘ T  _ - "ee&‘__ 47. I am given flexibility' In my schedule when I need it 

g'mpTfiyee? 48. The amount of work I am expected to do Is realistic 
images _ 49. I have the resources and equipment I need to be successful at myjob 

' m; 'loyees 50. Prosser Memorial Health does a good job of recruiting quality-people 
: ' ‘-;?"_es _ 51. There is sufficient staff in my department to maintain quality work 

8. Career Development 
_ ‘_ .Prosser Memorial Health provides me with opportunities to grow professionally 
Both 53. I receive adequate training to be successful at my job 
Both 54. The EPIC EMR/EHR training helps me better understand the Epic software and my 

department's Epic workflow 
Both 55. I am satisfied with the EPIC EMR/EHR 

'Méd Staff 56. Employees are adequately trained to help me be successful 

Com _e_nsation & Benefits 
_.__. 57. I am paid fairly for the work I do 

, 58. My compensation is competitive with other healthcare organizations in the area 
Employees _ 59. Overall, the benefit package meets my needs 

to ees 60. My benefits are competitive with other healthcare organizations in the area 
“ T ees 61. My benefits are clearly communicated so that I understand them 

Department Satisfaction: Please indicate yourlevel of overall satisfaction in workin- with the followin departments 

N0 Answer Very Dissatisfied A riggimifihat Satisfied Ve Satisfied Does Not Apply Dissatisfied g Disagree W 

© 2017 People Element Page 2 



Engagement Model 

62. 
63. 
64. Ambulance 
65. Services 
66. Fami 
67. Acute Care Services 
68. 
69. Benton Clinic 
70. Clinic 
71. 
72. Assurance 
73. 
74. Marketi Relations 
75. Human Resources 
76. Services 
77. Maintenance 
78. 
79. Environmental Services 
80. lnformationT 
81. 
82. Materials 
83. Adm 
84. Patient Financial Services PF 
85. Health Information 
86. Administration 
87. Procedures 
88. Paramedic 
89. Laund Services 
90. Prosser Clinic 
91. Social Services 
92. Pain Clinic 
93. Grandview Clinic 
94. Prosser Women‘s Health Clinic 

Comments {Your responses in the following open-ended comment section will remain confidential, meaning that 
your name will not be associated with each comment; however, any identifiable information included in your 
comments will be reported as entered.) 

95. What do you enjoy most about working at Prosser Memorial Health? 

96. What 1 or 2 things would most improve Prosser Memorial Health as a place to work? 

© 2017 People Element Page 3 



332.2 033: :8: 

3.33 w 90$; 3&q 
mum: m 6%.: W 3:05 03.03 

09 m N83; 332 £38 
«Rim m 8303 $m 03.3 

- 
mkamv m owngmmm $33 8.3: - 

- 0 33:3 030% $300 200% 

_ .30 x: *0 gm gm 
20 gm gm x: x0 
x: gm gm x: 08 
x0 ,5 gm gm gm 
u~o~ m~0~ -0~ :8 38 

3 mm mm 9: mm: 
SN :0: :8 mm: 3: 

:8 gm: x3 :3 gm: 

020:0 0223800 
02.20 _0:::< 

5:032t 5:22 :_ 0230:. 

20:35:00 :802 
20:35:00 0:050:04 

509.“; 252% 03205. 
20:35:00 03205. 

20:35:00.3321 
20:35:00 50800.0( 

2:005:00 :02 
2:005:00 

_0>0._ 5:030:50 

5.55. 8:35:00 :8: 
5“:m _m_..OEw_>_ hwmmohm 

> 20553.2 

03“ Km m omhdomafim 
m 

St: 
0:000: 

0253 mm>< 

m omqknmwd 
m 
m ommAmofiNH 
m 

2553 50:. 



‘- ___Attac_hrrEnt W 

f“ ‘3 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Health 

ANNUAL HALLOWEEN 
FESTIVITIES 
Pumpkin Decorating and Costume Contest, Ghoulish Grub and more! 

Save the Date: Friday, October 30th 

Lunch 
Lunch will be served in the Vineyard. If you have dietary restrictions let 
Nora Newhouse know by October 23. 

Costume Contest 
Take a picture of your department and individual costumes, send them to 
Shannon Hitchcock and then vote on Sharepoint for the best! All entries will be 
posted on Sharepoint for voting through November 5. Prizes will be awarded for 
Best Department Theme (lst and 2nd place AND Best Individual Costume 
(lst and 2nd place). 

Pumpkin Decorating Contest 
Employees and Departments will show off their skills decorating or carving a pumpkin. 
Pick up your pumpkins outside between the hospital and the maintenance building 
Monday, October 26. Return your pumpkin to the Whitehead Conference room Friday, 
October 30 by noon. All entries will be posted on Sharepoint for voting through 
November 5. Prizes will be awarded for Best Department Pumpkin (lst and 2nd place 
AND Best Individual Pumpkin (lst and 2nd place). 

Evening Staff 
Stop by the Vineyard between 8-9pm to pick up dinner and your Halloween treat. 
Take pictures of your pumpkins and costumes and send them to Shannon Hitchcock 
for entry in the contests. 

A . This is how weQ,‘are. 



. Jim-‘1 
up“ [ wt? 31'"- .."a I. --_r f 

I7 '. ' 

‘.' I. 
" E u - -  
'u' : ‘Jl 

l P ‘— - 

.4 

..ufl 

.
.

r
1

 
. 

..__ 
I. 

Z 
. 

.
.

d
.

l
.

r
,

.
 

.
.

.
 

_
_

 
. 

- 

.
I

r
 

a
.

.
.

 
r 

v
.

.
.

 
..__.” 
I

‘
 

I
I

 
. 

__ 



News 8: Events 

2 /  

On September 11, PMH hosted a blood drive in partnership with 
B l  d D ' _ the Red Cross. We had 24 donors including Sara Dawson, pictured 

0 °  r l v e  here. Some of our Health Occupational Students assisted Red Cross 
Volunteer Dave throughout the day. 

Extended Hours 
Beginning September 21, 
Benton City Clinic will be 
open Monday-Thursday 
from 8am-7pm. 

Benton City Clinic 
Extended Hours 
Beginning September 21, Benton City Clinic 
will be open Monday-Thursday from 8am-7pm. 
Fridays 8am-5pm. 

Fridays Sam-5pm. 

Dr. Carl will see pediatric 
patients Mondays and 
Thursdays until Tpm. 

"=1 Benton City Clinic 509-558-4075 
* " a - -- - ProsserHealth.org 



October is Physical Therapy Month 

are movement 
experts. 

STAY TUNED! 
More info coming soon on this year’s 

. Halloween Costume Contest! _ 

’ ‘ m 

l 3  



October is Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month 

H E i g  h t e n e d  i gfligflggges 

D e t a i l  3 D ' FasterExam Time-5 

M __ h _ - Ingram Accuracy 

am mag rap y - Patient Friendfl'y 
. _ . . . Design 
{Sal-I 5953355555 ta 
scheduie yum mammagram.. ‘ Se Habla Espafimfl 

4 /  



Welcome Becky Morris 

I Certified Nurse Midwife: 
a Women's Health 
Nurse Practitioner 

Help us welcome Certified Nurse Midwife & Women’s Health Nurse Practitioner Becky Morris, 
CNM-WHNP, to the team at our Grandview Clinic! Becky’s services include women’s health, 
routine exams, pap smear screening, prenatal care, and more. Call the Grandview Clinic at 
509.203.1080 to schedule an appointment. Welcome to the PMH Family, Becky! 

"I came to Prosser Memorial Health because I believe they are committed to providing 
women with access to the latest medical technology and care. I look forward to partnering 
with the Prosser Memorial Health team in supporting and caring for the women of Prosser, 
Grandview and surrounding areas." - Becky Morris, CNM-WHNP 

l 5  



Welcome to the Team! 

Hollie Wood, Wyatt Johnson, Victoria Torrico, Leticia Navarro, Tabitha Troutman, Magdalena Fernandez. 

How do you spend your time outside of work? 
Hollie Wood, EMT-B: "I love spending time with 
my fiance and our 11 animals. I also enjoy stand 
up paddle boarding and horseback riding." 

Wyatt Johnson, EMT-B: “Hunting, fishing, playing 
games, spending time with the wife/family and 
hanging out with friends, shooting, golfing." 

Victoria Torrico, Nurse Extern: "Playing with kids 
and spending time with family.” 

Leticia Navarro, ER Tech: "Spending time with 
family and crafting.” 

Tabitha Troutman, Med/Surg Tech: "Camping, 
playing with my kids, campfires, cooking/baking, 
raising chickens, dogs, cats, and 
bearded dragons." 

Magdalena Fernandez, Housekeeper/EVS: "I like 
making candy, watching movies with my kids, 
coloring with my kids, and hiking.” 

6 /  

What have your enjoyed so for working at PMH? 

Hollie Wood, EMT-B: "I’ve enjoyed being a part of 
a great group of people doing a job that i love." 

Wyatt Johnson, EMT-B: "T he people. Everyone I've 
met so far have been so welcoming and kind. I 
love that kind of environment." 

Victoria Torrico, Nurse Extern: "The environment 
is a wonderful one and makes it nice to come 
to work." 

Leticia Navarro, ER Tech: "Friendly environment 
and benefits." 

Tabitha Troutman, Med/Surg Tech: "My boss, 
patients and coworkers." 

Magdalena Fernandez, Housekeeper/EVS: 
"Everyone has welcomed me in and have greeted 
me every time." 



October Employee Flu Shot Clinics 

Empolyee 
Flu Shots 
Octuber 12 
7:30 AM —- 10:00 AM 

October 13 
BBUPM-EBOPM 

October 23 
7:30 AM ~-- 9:30 AM 

Vineyard Conference Room 

G p {'0 S s e r 509.786.2222 
Memorial Health ProsserHealthorg 

I 7  



Anniversaries 
Happy 4 Years 

Veronica Flores 
Patient Billing Services Collector 

Happy 1 Year 
Lindsay Mckie 
Pharmacist 

Happy 16 Years 
Jessica Gonzalez 
Patient Billing Services Collector 

Alex Carballo-Martinez Karolynn Thompson 
MRI Tech Patlent Billing Serwces Collector Happy 17 Years 

Michelle Smith Happy 5 Years Janie‘Gonzalez 
Prosser Specialty Clinic RN Amanda S chilp ero ort CNN Unit Secretary 

. Medical/Surgical Acute Care Tech Lucia Magana 
Prosser Specialty Clinic CMA Andres Vanguardia 

. . Groundskee er 
Heidi Weaver p 
Prosser Women‘s Health Clinic 

Maria Padilla 
Pharmacy Technician II 

Tonya Carreon 
RN Resources Nurse 

Happy 6 Years 
Connor Speights Michelle Morgan 
Dietary Cook Medical/Surgical RN 

Happy 2 Years Happy 8 Years 
Yung Huang - - 
Prosser Specialty Clinic abngggiastgfinlz 

Lindsay Oswalt 
Benton City Clinic CMA Happy 9 Years 
Grady Winn Sunshine Zavala 
Paramedic Housekeeper 

Happy 3 Years Happy 10 Years 

8 /  

Victor Silvia-Frayle 
Medical Technologist 

Jessenia Garcia 
Prosser Clinic Patient 
Services Rep 

Kaylee Swan 
Patient Billing Services Collector 

Diana Johnson 
OP Special Procedure RN 

Sarah Moritzky 
Emergency Department RN 

Happy 12 Years 
Nancy Sanchez 
Patient Registrar 

Happy 13 Years 
Amanda Hibbs 
CT Technologist 

Happy 14 Years 
Nora Newhouse 
HR Generalist 



Birthdays 
Cynthia Alaniz 
Laboratory 

Carolyn O'Connor 
Presser Clinic 

Andrea Moreno 
Medical/Surgical 

Rebecca Pettis 
Ambulance 

Donna Tuning 
MIS 

Cindi Pineda 
Presser Clinic 

Brian Sollers 
Presser Women’s Health Center 

Sara Benitz 
Emergency Department 

Diana Ramirez 
Patient Billing Services 

Kimberly Winters 
Medical Records 

Teresa Charvet 
Presser Women’s Health Center 

Jennifer Kernan 
Presser Specialty Clinic 

Sergio Merino 
Surgical Services 

Jonathan Friend 
Ambulance 

Anna Kellog 
Surgical Services 

Danielle St. Amant 
Radiology 

Rosemary Mendoza 
Grandview Clinic 

Maria Flores 
Surgical Services 

Maria Rivera 
Medical/Surgical 

Phillip Braem 
MIS 

Ernestina Salguero 
Housekeeping 

Francie Poole 
Administration 

Sara Dawson 
Surgical Services 

Erika Raver 
Medical/Surgical 

Steven Rode 
Emergency Department 

Diana Wilson 
Presser Specialty Clinic 

Hollis Ferritto 
Presser Specialty Clinic 

Maria Cardenas 
Medical Records 

Rodelito Mallari 
Laboratory 

Maria Rubalcaba 
Patient Billing Services 

Elizabeth Gonzalez 
Labor 8.: Delivery 

Samantha Santos 
Radiology 

Anna Atilano 
Medical/Surgical 

Mary Dawsey 
Accounting 

Veronica Huerta Monjes 
Labor & Delivery 

Thomas Halvorson 
Presser Specialty Clinic 

Stephanie Titus 
Accounting 

Susie Cervantes 
Emergency Department 

Katy Davis 
Nursing Administration 

l 9  



AS P I R E S . 
A w a r d  5 Promote Teamwork 

I nteg rity 

Accountability 

Respect Our ASPIRE program recognizes team members who 
demonstrate our core values of Accountability, Service, E 
Promoting Teamwork, Integrity, Respect and Excellence. XCGllenCE 

Janie Gonzales 
Janie was recognized for the excellent patient care 
she delivers from the moment a surgical patient 
walks through our front door. Janie greets them 
in the main lobby and walks them down to the 
surgical center, talking to them, and answering any 
questions they might have. She takes extra time 
and care with our pediatric patients, assuring both 
patient and parent, that they are in great hands 
and we will take excellent care of them. Thank you 
Janie! You truly live our ASPIRE values every day, 
every shift, and with every patient! 

The following PMH team members were nominated for ASPIRE Awards in September. Thank you to all 
ofyou! 

Ana Martin Meaghan Luther Carling Vaux 
ED Tech EVS RN, Surgical Services 

Katy Davis Eileen Sheppard Lisa Lewis 
House Supervisor RN, Surgical Services RN, Family Birthplace 

Ivan Castellanos Jaron Raymond Gloria Zuniga 
RN, ED MA, Prosser Clinic 

Carina Montelongo _ _ 
CNA, ACU Rosa Rivera Lynn Smith 

CNA, Specialty Clinic Medical Staff Coordinator 

1 0 f  



Low-Carb Autumn Tin Foil Dinners 

Servings: 4 
Prep Time: 15 Min 
Cook Time: 35 Min 

Ingredients 

12 oz. polish sausage 

1 small head of cabbage 

2 medium carrots 

1/2 large red onion 

4 tbsp butter 

_ - 1/2 — 1 tsp. dried thyme 
POW'E'RING If". 

I - ' Salt and fresh-ground black pepperto taste 

Instructions: 
Preheat grill to medium-high or preheat oven to 450F. 
Cut up a small or medium-sized head of cabbage into bite-sized chunks. 
Slice four sausage links into slices about 3/4 inch thick, cut red onion into thick slivers, and 
cut carrots into slices or half-moon slices just slightly thinner than the sausage. 
Lay out four double sheets of foil big enough to hold all the ingredients when it’s wrapped 
into a packet, and spray foil with non-stick spray. 
Divide the cabbage, carrots, and onions so one-fourth is on each set of foil sheets, season 
the vegetables with salt and fresh-ground black pepper to taste and some dried thyme and 
add about 1 tablespoon of butter. You can add mushrooms or peppers if you'd like. 
Then add the slices of sausage on top of the vegetables. 
Wrap the inner packet first, then fold over the outer sheet of foil and tightly roll up the ends. 
Cook Autumn Tin Foil Dinners about 20—25 minutes on a grill that’s pre—heated to medium 
high, or cook about 30—35 minutes if you’re using the oven. Turn once about half-way through. 
Serve hot. 

I 1 1  



Annual Evaluation — 2020 Attachm_ent Y Date: 09/3072020 
Name Leader Department Division J55 Titie Year Ending" . 
Marks, Craig Administration CEO 2020 

TotaI Weight: 100’ 100 Overall Performance Score 

QVerall Performance Score: 3.10 

.-'-
'”—

"--
i 

.Pillar Goal Rating Description Result Total Score Weighted Status 
Weight Score 

Patient {Achieve a patient satisfaction score of 86.61% Units : HCAHPS @8661 for Jan thru 30% I 3 0.9 
Loyalty gor higher (2019 — 86.6%) (Would Recommend — Percentage (Aug 

i-Weighted): Higher is better l 
5 is 90.61 and 

{Department Weights below: above 
ED: 15% 4 is 88.61 to 90.6 
EflP: 20.9% '3 is 86.61 to 88.6 
{OP Surgery: 15.7% -2 is 84.61 to 86.6 
i;Swing: 6.4% -.1 is 84.6 and below 
top: 33.6% i 

_ . 919 3479-..”.-. _ _ _ ,_ . __ _ _________ - m... _- . __ - _____ _ , _____ . ,_ 
Medical Staff {Achieve a Medical Staff satisfaction rate of Units : Percentage :89 for Jan thru Jan 20% 2.99 | 0 6 
Engagement i-89.01% or higher (2019 - 89%). Strategic Higher is better 

Programs Medical Staff survey —- Question #12: i5 is 93.01 and 
ii am satisfied with my current relationship with i' 
i ; 

i 
| 

PMH. 

Employee 

Employee 
Engagement :-direct reports at a rate 80% or higher. 

i 

i 
i I 

Service 
1 calculation of 56.0 (2019 Budgeted — 
9320.5111366 = 56.0) or above. 
1 
I 

i 

i 
i 
1 . 

‘1‘ 
i': 

u duality. Achieve 571 iVantage Score of 49 or higher 

I 

Finance 

EAchieve an annual employee satisfaction rate of Units : Percentage 
Engagement 185.61% or higher (2019 — 85.6%). Strategic 

Program Employee Survey — Question #5: 
LOverall, I am satisfied working at PMH. 

QComplete timely performance evaluations of all 

iAchieve an Adjusted Patient Days Per Day 

"Presser Memorial Health will achieve a 

l 

above I 
4 is 91.01 to 93 ' 
3 is 89.01 to 91 i 
2 is 87.01 to 89 

£1 is 87 and below I 
l 

i85.60 for Jan thru i15% 2.99 
.Higher is better 'gJan | 
'5 is 89.61 and | 

0.45 i 

:above 
-'4 is 87.61 to 89.6 
'3 is 85.61 to 87.6 | 
"2 is 83.61 to 85.6 
1 is 83.6 and below 

'Units : Percentage i100 for Apr thru Dec 5% 5 0.25 
Higher is better 

.5 is 100 and above 
-4 is 95 to 99.99 
.3 is 90 to 94.99 
5.2 is 85 to 89.99 
:1  is 84.99 and belowi I 

f'Higher is better ' 
. 5  is 60 and above 
'4 is 58 to 59.9 I 

§Units:Days i45.3forJanthruAug 10% ' 1 l 0.1 

3 is 56 to 57.9 I 
:2 is 54 to 55.9 
'1 is 53.9 and below .. 

i 
iUnits : Percentage E49 for Jan thru Aug 
Higher is better 
5 is 55 and above ’ ' 

"4 is 52 to 54.9 
3 is 49 to 51.9 
2 is 46 to 48.9 
1 is 45.9 and below 

h
a

m
-

I
.

 

:17 for Jan thru Jul i 10% 5 0.5 Units : Percentage 
percentage variance of budgeted total margin 

.for FY 2019 of 0% or greater. (annual total 
margin is 7% for 2020). Note: 5% increments 

Higher is better 
5 is 6 and above 
4 is 3 to 5.9 
3 is 0 to 2.9 
2 is -3 to -O.1 
1 is -3.1 and below 

@2008 - 2020 Huron Consulting Group Inc. and affiliates. Use and distribution prohibited except through 
written agreement with Huron. Trademarks used in this document are registered or unregistered 
trademarks of Huron or Its "censors. 



Attac_hment Z 
— 

Curriculum Vitae 
Richard Unger, DO 

(515) 851-2223 
r jungerdo@gmail .com 

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY 
General surgeon providing surgical and cesarean section coverage in community hospitals. Also supervision 
of the wound clinic. 

EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

1995 Deaconness Hospital, St. Louis, Missouri Surgical Residency 

1990 Metropolitan Medical Center, St. Louis, Missouri Rotating Internship 

1989 Kirksville College of Osteopathic Medicine, St. Louis, Missouri Doctor of Osteopathy 

1985 Olivet Nazarene University, Bourbonnais, Illinois Bachelor of Arts: Chemistry 

CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSURE 

ATLS 

ACLS 

BLS 

Wound and Hyperbaric Oxygen 

Robotics (Da Vinci) 

Licensed in the state of Iowa 

licensed in the state of Missouri (Inactive) 

Board Certified, 1998 



EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

04/2016-04/2018 

Regional Medical Center, Manchester, IA 

General Surgeon - Providing surgical and cesarean section coverage — This included robotics 

05/ 2006-04/ 2016 

Boone County Hospital, Boone, IA General Surgeon - Providing surgical and cesarean section coverage 
for Boone County Hospital - Traveling to Hancock County Hospital in Britt, Iowa for elective procedures 
once a week - Providing supervision of wound clinic - Starting and supervising a wound center at BCH - 
This included supervising Hyperbaric oxygen chambers 

07/ 1995-05/ 2006 

Mid Iowa Surgery, Boone, Iowa General Surgeon - Private practice providing surgical coverage to several 
community hospitals - This included cesarean sections and general surgery - This also included bariatric 
surgery at Boone 

AFFILIATIONS 

American Osteopathic Association 

American Board of Osteopathic Surgery 



Karan 
Bhatti 

Erica 
Garza 

MBS for 

Thomas 
Halvorson 

Ryan 
McDonald 

Carolyn 
O Connor 

Lindsey 
Smith 

Derek 
VVeaver 

Brian 
Sollers 

Heidi 
VVeaver 

Attachment AA 

Teresa 
Charvet 

Sarah 
Min 

Bailey 
Padilla 

f 
V 

Suzanne 
Staudinger 

\/\ 
Rob 
Wenger 

Prosser Memorial Health 

f 
Jared 
Clifford as

 
:

5
0

 
:7

3
 

fl)
 

Syed 
Hashmi 

I
-

<
 

C
C

 
:0

3
 

:
t

o
 

co
 

Pam Rebecca 
Morris Morris 

Jacobo Steven 
Rivero Rode 

\/ 
Samuel Coral 
Strebel 

fl 
:! m 

X
 

: 

Susan Dzmitry 
Whitaker turouski 

Garrett 

Jessica 
Luther 

Heather 
Morse 

Jose 
Santa-Cruz 

I! (D
 c 

Steven 
Zirker 

MBS, Inc. * 601 N. Mur-Len/Suite 16 * Olathe, KS 66062 * (913) 393—2525 * FAX: (913) 393-2288 

www.strengths.com 



Attachment BB 

MBS for 
Prosser Memorial Health 

fl fl \ / \  

Joseph Steve Sara Christi 
Ashton Broussard Davis Dawson Doornink-Osborn 

Merry Kevin Tricia Shannon Victor 
Fuller Hardiek Hawley Hitchcock 

Craig Lindsay Kristi Cinthia 
Marks McKie Mellema Miklas Pumphrey Raymond 

Jacobo 
Rivero 

\_ 
Stephanie 
Titus 

Andrea 
Valle 

Donna 
Williams 

Snider 

Rusti 
Wilson 

Bflan 
Sollers 

MBS, Inc. * 601 N. Mur-Len I Suite 16 * Olathe, KS 66062 * (913) 393-2525 * FAX: (913) 393-2288 

www.5trengths.com 



mmm‘mnm‘mu m 233% «863.3 

mmmdmmamm Nmwxmm $32.3 

mmmqw‘wN afiwam mwmamdqm 

9332 $33.3 $38.3 

magma“: nmmkmmofl «358$ 
$q 9384 98584 

mom~mmhfl 8333 $93d 

83o m3.mom.NN 31$q 

mmmam 80.? 293 
. 8mg; memqmmfiw 
833 $0.92 cmmhmm 
hwfiwom mmmfim Emamom 
83mm 83$ 8m 

«9&m mmmsmmfi mmmflflwm‘n 
mmfimwma 213m.“ mmmKEhN 
$5.83 magma Swamp; 

mmmkmqm 85% - 

qmmm momqmmm mmm‘mmm 
383m} 8833 oNoQo 

85.8 3.: .w 83.5% .33 

3:23 25”. a $2.33 

mmmamfimfiu m wands Hum m gogmawfiw m muwmmd _mu0._. 

n32 32:6 :02 550 w cEymgg “m2 
umom mam. - ES 

Bammd “Cat—4U :OZ LQLHO um ”EmEumm>:_ 

EmEQSUm w Ema 3.38m 52 

flammd 

mmHHNE‘N mmm‘tm moflmmmm 
8:28 EB .32 og‘mfia 03‘q 03‘q 

85mm 23 865mg $mq mmmfimqoa $334 
wucflmm “Es”. Ugutufimw‘ED 

8:23 as; mon‘qmfimfi mmw‘owmamfi 
-mg‘gmamfi 

- 
385%v 5335 33833 

Efimmmdq 395$ 33.8? 
32:32 :32 mama? mama“? mama? 

$98d N333: wmwfiqm‘fl 

83:53 Eats :02 ES 33$; 8584 8384 
S E 6... $83 .358 - @355“ mmqfimn 
6 B a: magma mucom mamamflmfi 353i Enmmmi 

mmEEm: 5:6 82 madam $384 $3q 
$303 8&2? H523 

35:5,»: E925 ES mwm~mnm~mfi 
.Sodmmqm @3t _- 

33:32 29:5 .25 $33 $.q ommkmmfi 

29n $835 BEBE 33mm; 33mg; Siam; 
magma 950 3:33 :33 mmoxmmq 9%..m 

”55$”. 98:32 $3 3:38 832 qfimma Gm‘mfiq 
$5.5m E 35959 qmmm 33mm 23mm 

33t Em 3 359mm 350 
magma toamm $8 33m mqmwmd ~865d 

323% SEE w =2§ 33%;: 88.83: 88686: 
magma BEBE mmfimm‘mm mqmmdmm Emmiom 

mwmmw._ 
fitnmU Caxton. “amt—4U 

239$ mucom 3 SEE 22.6 $983 mmofimmfi $98.3 

283m} 883m? 93$o 

o~o~ .om LwnEmm 
uUfir—W QUE—2mm 

5:00: EEOEQZ 

hmmmogn. 

UU HE¢E£UNHH< 

‘1‘ 

r» 

cozmfiwawo aSEzuud 
EwEQSUm a... #65 35q 

ucmg 

Emmmq umpmcmfiwa Emom 
macaw 8mm: Eww x2. 

wiwmmm Emu cozmmio 96m 
_>._. - conflumamo BEE 

zmmu - cozmtwamo BEE 
E04 - ES; umwcmtfs 

39.3 Et :33 
333 Emtsu 550 

32233 232a 
3352. 

52$ 3t Em E0: Eamawuwm 
29958”. $m 

mwfimzmuwm “:2q 52 
£352.03: Lou, 30532.4 33 

wEmzwumm muczouud sma 3.9.0 

mpcmEpmmE. \caEm... w 58 



833.3 m «8.3mm. 33.8.3 m 
. 

mmm‘mmmamm NwHSQNm 333$ 

mmm‘mmm‘mm Nwhgwam $3Q 

$39m ommwowam mmqfim‘mm 

o o 
Elfimfi $38.“: $058.2 

- 9384 2384 
Sqfimfi 80.3d 398d 

qoflqmmkn mfifiomam 33%.: 

9664 moogmm mam“ 
- 83q memamdm 
oomdmm God: 03% 
- Swim nmmamom 
8mm? 8m 833 

mmmdmw manna“ 3%n 
mmodfimkm 833a” mmmimm 
3384 magma swam} 
E32. 83% - 

8mg: magma mmm‘mmm 
32:83 083m; 223m? 

8523 was”. a 85:31“: .30... 
. 

mofiwamfiq m Nfimdan‘nm m go‘mfiwfim m muwmmd ESP 

"53¢ “cwtzu :02 550 w mucmEyn uwz 
Umom Qmw - new; 

muwmwd. 
“amt—40 :02 LmLH—O aw 
ucmEHmwe 

EwEQEUm w 22¢ 35q $2 
532qv uwamiEsuud 

EwEaSUm w #65 353...“. 

32mg 

B32 nmamcmfiwo Emom 
WES; 3mm: Ewm x5 

wimmmm Emu cEEmEO scam 

_>.r - 5:38m 83:3 
:80 - cozmfimamo BEE 

n29 - was; ummLBEB 

39.3 Eat-d Eyck 
333 “29:5 550 

mmmcwaxm 238.“. 
33:99:. 

S>mn_ Ban. Em So: mfimzbuwm 

wfimzmuwm $m 

mm_nm>_wumm Emzmn. umz 
2338:0c 89, «wucmEQE $3 

mEmumm 358% Egg 30.6 

35:53:. EEOQEE. w 58 

8:23 2.: w 35.3“: 

3353 $935 mofimmhm 
8:23 2.3 .38, 035E; 3?“..q 33E; 

8:23 23 85:52 $384 $334 $933 
macaw—mm 

Us...“— 
wutumw‘ED . u 

8:23 BE mfimamomamfi mmmaommamfi mfioim‘mfi 

5358‘v ENNHHE afiqmom‘nu 

mofimmoaq 3933a SNEQS 
82.32 38 83% mmm‘mb.‘ 83$ 

mmwflkfifl mmmfiimfi mmmaqmafi 

835% E928 :02 ES 8d 858a 8384 
.b t 5c 3&3 558 - $36“ mmqén 

no .6 Hm: magma mucom Emdmm‘mfi 35mg: 3333 
32:5? Eats :02 Q33. $38; $303 

mmmxmomq mmwfimq :38; 

33:5? Eats EB madami Sokommam mmmdmoqm 
33:33 Ewtsu $50 $268 wmod: ommdmfi 

292$ “”235 8223 magma £3t 8;a 
mscmém 358 8:38 239‘ mmo‘mmq 0qm 

£55: 883.2 arm umtflwo mwmamw www.mmma 33:; 
$5.5m E 3:38 womdm 83w». 23mm 

mma Em op mmEm>ma EEO . . 

magma toamm 5.8 3332 3336 mmm‘fim‘ofi 
325% SEE w =9§ smmkmmqm: 88.8d 885863 

magma. 3:884 23q $32.2” mmm‘hmfimm 

mwmmwg Etnmo coEon— ctsu - I 

239$. 893 E 8E8 22.5 $52 $332 $3m 
3853 88:3 883% 

88 .8 33633.8 
“mm—hm 3:23 

5:00: _O_LOEmZ 

gmwwOLn— 
\H‘ 

332 



cmm.gm..~ m $3 1.3. 3.33.” m mumgwfi m 833.... m 
.33- 338 $3- $9.35 $33 33.9 
33- ...mm... 33m- 33.3.. 3m... :3d 
$3 $8.33 gm- 3m...“ 83.33 €3.33 3...- mohmmm gm..- Kama nmmgm 93.33 .3 mummmm gm 33.3 33.3.... 3.0.43. 

.33 “$.33 33 mama...” 33.34.. 3°33... 

.3 33.3.3 Mac 28.3: «3.3%. mmmgmfie 
gm ....mm.mwm.3 3m 3.....v Ema-3.3 nom.3m.3 

$3- 3.3% *3 393m mum-.334 330m..- 
33 33R.“ .3- 533. 08.9.3 3m.omo.~ 

.33 mmm.~mm 33. 33.5 3.33 m33m 
0.2.- 8383 am 333 $3.33 33.33 

.3- 8933 an 3~....3 $3.33 ~no.nmm.~ 
.......3 

0333 2.....- 38.3. 3.3.3... 03.3.. 
33 33.33.. «8 53 «3.33 23.33.. 
33- 333 $3 3......3 Sam-.2. 333 

.3 33.33 .3. 
83.3.: $333 m3.~..o.m 

gm 3o.mwm.3 .3- 33.38 3.3.30.3 338.3 
.3. 33.8% $3- $3.33 $363.3 3.....3o.~ 

$3 $33... .3 9.6.3 33.3mm... 3.3.3.... 
.3 “3.98.3 .3- €3.33 33.3%: 3.3.3.33 

x3 M36343. .3 $3.83 33.3.3.3. “3.3.3.9. 
$3.- 333; .33. 

$3.33 30.3» 33$ 
.8 - .8 Sim-3...- . 3133 
am NEH-3.3 $.- Amvmdomfl $33.2. 33.3.3.3 

.2..- “8.30.3 $3 8a....33 $983.3 3.0.53.3 

.8 hum-.33 E @333 R333 33.33.. 
$3. 3933 $3 $33 9......m 33.3.3 

gm- 333.3 $3 38.3%: 23335 $33.3 
gm- 333.3 a: «$33.3 $33.5 $33.3 
{I3 

39.3.3.3 x3 3....m3 33.33 393.3 
gm- Emir-.3 .33 mom.m3.~ 03.3.0.3 33.3.3 
.3- 3333 .33 3333 3.3.3.3 $33.3 

.3. 3633.3 $3 03.33 @3633 333.3 

.3- mm¢.eom.¢3 g3- Ammmfimmd: $33.33 3m.m3.m3 
gm- 3358.3 .33- aomfificd 3m.o...m.mm Bm.3m.w..- 

a... magma“ m gm- 33.3.: m 30.353 W 8.33.3 m 

.x. :3; fl. uncut; 33.6.5 .364 
.2... 3.3 3 ES» 

wwOLn— 

Ammo: mEBE .52 

2:35 3:330 52 .32. 
3835. 3:85 3:2n :oz $50 

3:33 3235 
mEOuE EmEumm>E 

$5.6m xmh 
0E3:— mcflmhmno :02 

Anna... mESE 9.3935 

3335 «5:225 Ego..- 

mmmcmnxm Bafléoz Ego-Tag 
mmmcmnxm mcsfimno .650 

cosmNEOEa. .w :25??a 
8.2:- .w 8:83 8:235 

833 .m. 235m 
550 - 82.2% Emma-3:; 

33:5: - 82.2mm 38535 
mmznazm 

EEO - mum; 5.2389; 
2523;; - may; ficEflflEm 

Emou 8n 3 32.53 
533 33:85 

flcmcmm 
92.2.8 

3335 9.52q 

3:33 52 
3:65”. mafia-ammo $50 

mama-.m— umz Q>Ou 
2.29.6”. 3.6.23 Emzmn 52 

3:26: E2... 2.28333 .32. 
5.5 9.5 

28 3:96 
mmuzm3o=< .mztmbcou pwz 

“3:952? .msfiEEou $.20 
55553.6... 550 

mwumm 3.550m 

23q 
EMS—uwfi 

mwucm30=( .mzfimhucou 

2.53: Ea: 22333 

353: 3228 35:3 305 .30... 
E23330 

“533.5 
2.55m 322mm ESE; $20 

ONON .om bun—Ewuawm 
303330 *0 acmEmuSm 

2:c _U_._0Emz 

3.3 3.33 .83 3.33 00 Show... m 3.33.3 m. 
33 oar-.3 $3- 335. 25.3 8&9. 
«.8 - “.83. :3. gm - 

.3“- .33.: 3mm- N33 .333 .333 
.3...“- mfiqm .33- :363 momfl 2.3 
.3- 33.8 .8 83. 3}... mafia. 

33m @353 .33 333m 333 magma 

9...: 83mm... .33. 3.8.8.: 58.363 33.3% 

.3 828.3 $3- $3.32 333.3 03.33 
.33- main gm- 33.3 mom-.33 23.33 

.3 «.863 gm- 63.3 $33 R33 
33 93.3 .33- 33.3 2.13 mont- 
gm 333 am .333 mum-£3 3.33 
an... 333 .3... 53.33 39.03 3.33 

.33.. 03.3 .33.- 
fim§$ $3.... 33.? 

$3. .3d .3..- anmém. www.mmm N333. 
.33 N3...- 38 33.3 83:. 3.3.3 

.3 033mm 33- 33.03 m8.3m www.mmm 

.33 m3.mmm.~ $3. 33.3.... 33-35 33.3mm 
3m max-.3...“ $2.- 53d 93.....3 33.23 

.32. 33.3... 3.3. $3.3. 33mm 3338 
$3 3m.~n~.~ $3. $3.33 omu.mwm.~ $383 

$3 m3.o3.m 3m main-3.3 ~35m 93.33..“ 
.33- www.mm 33- 38.3 333 3.33 

.3. . «8 80.03; . Sodom; 
:3 33.33. 3.. “3.3.. “3.3% 31.83 

$3 $333 a: ”Sc-3.3 3m.mmo.w 3336 
.33 “3.3. .33- 33.31 33.3mm madam 

.33- Rm.~3 $3 mmmdm 3......3 3.3.3 
.8 3m...m....m .33 333.3 N353...- «3&3...- 

.......o 
3m...3.m .33 333.3 3.3.3.3 H.333...- 

xmhq- 33.3. 
.33 33......- mg 33.3% 

x 
.3...- Rmmmmq 9.....- 9863 93.35 ~35t 
.33 3.334 :3 33m. mmm.mmm.~ 23.33.. 

.33- 3333 $3 ”3.35 3333. $3.33 

33 33.3.3 «a- 853$ 333.3 3.3.33.3 
$3 ~mm.3m.m .3. 53.3: 33.3.3 33”; 
a... «3.333 m..&. 2.863. m mammam m mmm.mmm.~ m 

3 Em... R. uncut; $33. .354 
BE 3:25 5:22 

‘1' 
fix 



A3183 

LOmwOLn— 

ONON 6m .mnEmmm 
250$ 53 v5 2m53 

stow: BtOEQE 
A 

Smio‘fl 26: :20 52 

mwmgflmm qzm m~m-um~mm 

$339 szGMm Rum—“mam 

825$ :96 

“$6.85” :30 z. $256 $2 $3.33 

33623. mmEzbq 92.55:. E em: :90 E: 82.83 
_ 

mmmdom 3354 EwEfigE 65$: 
vii 28 333 .838 :0 €309; $9.2 

Amwmdmmd $3229... 558 :29: 

mmE>E< 02.552. EOE 250.: :20 

833.3 mzoEEmS E 9559... 55 E: 33.33 

Sdofimi 82.5w: 5 33889 885.... amfiofii 
$33 332 E 3828: 88:8 $933 

255 @2520; 

233...". 2:9 9:33 

Hmfimq 332 E 28 8 Eng 3.3 - 
- cosEoE< - 

wmw‘omohm 353$ cosmseamo Rmammm 

$386 88: “.282. $2 meimmmq 

mzozdemno E :20 52 oh ”.282. 52 
.334 333“ 

MES 0h 5m; 5205. 55:50 

‘1 

nrAx 



llll 

838.3 ehwfiww cmmfimm 
ll i. i 

DNON .om .mnEmunwm 
.25....- .._u:os. NH - 250.". find .3 Ewe—.355 

LUZ—um... .020s 

.mmo 
‘1‘ 

Int. 

83$... .388 .238. .318... 338m... 338.. .33... .8181: 26.. :90 E: 

8333... 833.3 «858.3 $33.8 3388 833.2. magma. ~mm.$~.£ ”883.: 85.3.3... 3&85 wzazm. 

magma... ”88......” 88.838 amp-3...... $32.3 $33.2 838.3 283.: $33.: «.3335 mnmfioafi 3.22.8... 

323...... :30 

58.8 swam-m.- .R...m~.2 85.9.3 .38.: .838. 3&8... 38.95... .Nmmfia. .33... .832... :35 2. 324:“. B... 

.33... . #3.»... 83.3... . 83...... 38.8: 23.8 .888. 83$. .333 .288. .213... 8:55... 92.55.... .6 an: 1.9.5 52 
Gem. .mmmfi: 98.9.“. amtmmm .8. 83.. 81% .318. mafia .mfldm. man-IQ 

3.2.2.. .5282... 
«3.3 www.mfi www.ma oom - - - -_ . . - Bow Baum... .333 cc mum-.80.... 

88.8.. 88...... .88... .898... 838: .mm~.mm. $3.88. 9.38 38.83 3.8.8.. 38.83.. meg-.95“. .858 

meter”... 5.5%! 5.0.: 95¢... :90 

$3.8m 
. 338 32.8.: $33... 882. .2883 38.3: 38.83 38...... $32 .338. 2955.5 .6 893.... :2“. E: 

28.8. $8.58... $38.. 8.586 888 98.3 .333. 3.8.8.... mam. 83.2 0%.Q 32.52. c. .388... m5......9... 
.m.o.mflm. 83.8... swam...” .mom.m~m.~. www.mmm 33.8.... 8333. $8.3... «mm... .8H.~m... 334mm... Em... c. .3855. 885m... 

.535 H.239... 

88:. .8538 $38.” 8&3} .88 m8... “3.3.. 33.3 88.8: m8.3m 83:. .58 

mag-m mHm .vmmfid Sam. - - - ..._ . 
I .- _ .- 332... U6 2% :o 3.3. $0.. 

- I - - - - - r - .- . :o_.m~_toEq 
88mm .338 m...m.mm~ $38 33.8 838 2.88 33.8 888 $~.-~ 838 3:88. 8.5.8.8.. 

8.8.: 8o...-.~ 833.... £18.. 62.8... .818: 3.3.8 8o.$m .838. 358 3.38 .30... .382. 5: 

20:55.6 .6 :36 E: 9 “5.82. E... 
.msuud .msuud .mzuud .mfiud. EBB... .233. .83... Est... .533. .933 $33. 

8-..: 8-5.... 8-52 8-3... 8.5.2 8.8-... 8-52 8-9-5 8.32 8-30 madam 



$3.3... $3.38.: Ew.m- «Rams Eda... 33...... $13... .Rufiu. @342. 83.3. 83.31... .333. .50: :2... E... 

93.3%."... waning mafiafi ”fiat...“ Enigma Sand...“ mummmmfi «8.3%.: 333.: 83...: $38.: $33....” @252. 

mmm...mm.mm ~mo.m~m.um $3.3...” 8“...»d SEN}. £23m...“ $33.3 2.33.3 $33.: .3532 mama... Rama...“ 92.226... 

625...... .35 

a H H H H 

3.3% 33m... "Rafi...” Hum...» 31...? Stan. $3.3... aging. €342. 33.3. .8183. 83.93. :29 z. 32%... 52 

38...... .m...~.3. 33.55 :38... 33.3.. .33... 33.35 3mg... 88.83 83.8: 38.3». 33:... 3.2254 @2592. a. 8...: :96 E: 
38.3. .93... $3.33 33.0%. 33.3.... .mm~.mm. .m.m.~m~. mmm.3~ .momdmm. 8.8.8.. 33.2%. .833. “2.2.2.... .338 

BEBE... 2.5.2... 5.0:. $6.. :96 

mama... 58...»... $33.... Ease... $5.... $3.3: 35mm... .umm.~mm..... Hm~.......~ .853 33.3.... 33.3... 3.253 .3 82.6.... 1.3 E: 

.813. 38...... $2.3: .313. .qm. - .qmm...:. .313. .813... .B.......... .313. .35.... 35.... 3935.33 

.mmo.m..m.m. 
$8.02.... 533.3 33.3.3. .E......m...m. 53.2%.... .E.$m.m. $8.393 .B.....mm.~. .mmm.mmfi.~. $563.“. 38.3.}... 3.5.... :2... 

. - 1 - .. - - 8.8.3.1.: 
mucwE>ma E...m....E..... EmEmEmm 

33.9.3. .mmmdmm... $8.2m... 33.83. 33.8.2... $358.“. .338... 5...“..3. 5393.“. .2335 32.3.”... .Nmo.3¢.~. 32.2.... n... 
.mm}. Ema... .33.. 38.... .5... .83... $3.... 38.... .33.. 38.8: .mmhw. 82...... macaw... Ems... 

madam... memamdm 233.3 @353...” ~....o.~m...m $3.3... “8.2m... .2586 $33.... $38.... a~o....R.m 35.23 22.5 
.8532. .353... .3283. 58 

£33.. 238 29.83: “33...... .8...q $3... 33.” 9.38 $3....“ 25.3% 82...... 33.53 “5...... .52 .25 
$53 $3.... $32 Emma... $3.... 832 E3... 8......2 Sad... 23% 83mm 3.. tom 

£33. 91...... $3.... 33m. 8...... 819: .363 $3... Sim“. 33.. 3......” 
“.58 {9.52. 

35...... 3...? 3...? 83.. “Ram 83... 33% 2.0.2 on...“ 3...... Sm... 4... 
”3.2.... 333.. $38 monmmma Same... 30.3.. 93.9mm... “$.35 $133 madam.” £33 23.3.2 
8mg? 83%... .8..d $0.8... EQBN... 30.3.... 33...... mmm.m-.. 83...... 33mm... $.38 £8.85. 

$0.33 «8.3.... Swan... 3135 flag...“ madam. EQEE 8.0.5:.m @323 33$... 03.3... 5.5558 
82...... $2.22.. 

92.5.5.6 .29... man... :90 
snow Sow anon anon 9.8 28 snow 33 $8 33 BEN man 

M3“ 9...: :22 Ema. 59.22 Emanmu ans—.2 .EEmq .waEmgz .3390 335033 umzmzd 

flow .3 .mnEwEwm 
EmEBBm .50... :26 325 

E..om1_.o_..oEmz 

530.5 
‘1‘ 

r... 



3.3.35 mEumEaO >3. 

56$: .U...OEmZ \‘l‘ LomLn— Alf‘ 

.x. :88 8: 2.8 8.8m 8.3m 8E .83 __< .8 m5... 8.m $d 
_ 9.8 m; .28- .88. mm... 88 8: 8.5:. 85228 88. #3.. 

8..» m3 

8%- 8.2... gm 8... 8.8 8.8 8: :9... 83:28 __< E... 8.8 8.3 .2 8... am. .26. B... 8... fit $8 8888 .83- .88. 8.. mm... «.8. 3.2 88. 8..” 8.8 8.8 mm: .322: 828330 88 8.... 8.2.. 8.3 

x... 28mm 8. Kg :88 8.8” 
mm: 8.388“. 8. 8.2 3mm 8.3m 

_ w...” 888 - 8. 8.8 8.m :28 ME 8.538 ._< 8.... 8.8 8.8m 8.8m 
a: 8.8 8.. NS 8.8 8.8 mt .839. BEES .8 9.; atom 8.8 
.2 8.08 8.. 8.8 8.8.. 888 8:. .88 8.635. .8 2.8 8.08 888 

55.358 52.35. x85 
.8... mam $2- 88.: 83 8% 3...... 0.5.“. 5.8... “.5a - Is... 8:- .2. 23 am. 
am. 3...... §. .8. 83 83 3.“... 0.5.0 322820 - Is... .8- 

.mm. 08 mm 
.8. m8... .8 mm. 8...... 83. 3.“... 2...... 88:. - :5... 8m 3m 8.... $3 

8“. 8% $2- .83. Bod Em... 35> 0.5.”. 3.”. SE8 - 1.2“. .8..- .8. 8m 3m 
.8- 8m... 8.....- .83. mad a}... 256 3.988 :5... .8- 

.8. 83 no... 

xmfi 0.8.3 .8 o 85.2 80.2 
mmm $22.98 gm. .8 ~88 m...m.~ .8. 833 an- .58.“. 8.3: 898. mm: 32585 .8 NH 8...... 8m»... 

88- mmm.m $8. .98.... SN... 8m.» 35> 5.8 5:858 $8. :8. m8.“ .8 
9.8. 8.... 9.8- .8». .83 $8 8.882. .5298 .87 .8. 8. SH 
8: 8m .8 R mmm 8.. 8.32.8 *8 w mm m... 

8.. 88 x3- 8.- 8m 88 .8. 55880 28 33... $8- $8. .8... 8m 
8..- 8.8 8.. 8.... Km... 8.3 .08 8.3... - >89. .5 £83 8.28... .38. .88.. Rd. 8.2 gm- 8.... 

.8- .86. 8... mm.~ .838... - 5m .6 £83 8284 $2- .85. 88 88 
.8- Ram am. 6%. Sim 93m 88885 3.3.3 8.... fl omm 8m 

$2- 8.8 $3- .8... 8.2 3.2 328 2.8 82$... 8mm- .88. 8.2 8.... 8.... 8%.: x8- .83.. 38.3 New: 2.8 .838 8.3.3 3mm- .8... 98... 83 
x2- 8. RR. .8. 3. mm $923.5 .8 8.8 .88. .m. .S m 
.3 mmn .8 .2 m8 8.“ 39885 22.8... a... m 8 mm 

.8 mi .8 2 mi .8 228538385 .8 m 8 E 

:3. 8m...“ 
.8... .8... 8% ma.” 

9.8 E88... .32. 8mm- .8. Em 8.. 
x8- 83 «E. .8... Km... 82 9.8 8.8 E258. as..- .m... N: a 
.2- 83 8..- .8. ~84 85 £8 38... E288. 8..- .8. 8m a. 

$53.2; >3. 

23> x. oucm...m> «macaw 3.30.4 mm 35...; pout—E .mauud 
mmcmcu 3...“. 3mm 3 36> 5:25 5:05. 

38 an .unEoEom 



DMmmémn Sam. 8:2: *0 3635 “at... wEmam 

momméwn 80m. 52:0 53:8: 320 m:___om 360 
382.30 

mmAqmH madmmfiqfi Hmdmmfimfi PE in. mmcmnxm mEqao 
mmfiflwmfi modwmdmfi mmfifimfiqa wt 3.... macmsmm mcnflmuo 32 

mm $53 fimdm mscw>wm mcrEmaO ”.02 we .x. m mm Aflcmcmn .25 :00 Sam; 

8.83m $68.8 8.33% 356324 - E :3 73:23 .8: :8 L33 
oqm madam :dfim foam. SEES .3: “wt .30... 
3.00m HmAmm wimnm fonfi qEOu 3:: «mt 3333...”. 

8.52.2 Sam.— 
.xafi wwm‘m Ewm 550 new >mq£mm 

find“ .wxomdm 
«$.mm 8:935 _m_u._mEEou 

mafia»... .wxofimm «mwém 3352). 
nm www.mm flumam EmufiwE 

33 0:55.... 305 .3 3953. «:53: “53mm. 
33.5 .35 $3. $3 2292:3386?“a 

wmé 0mm. mm.~ muEmm Ema 
wmdfl Nfidfi mndfi .23.: £55 05 mmd mm>< 

ma...“ mwd $4. 05mm mcficwam .338 

gmmfl gmmfl 33d 33 353 5 EEE 
3mm GSA 3.2 3 0:3. 5320 

mmofi mm.-m $.92 363 can... co £8 
mmé 3“...“ mm: 3 Spam Emtau 

no.3 wnfim mmdm A363 mfimzmomm Eczouod uwz 
Earn Hmm‘m DRE. 

3.3 #6s nmfizfiq Ba 0335 $2924 
«and .3d 
«3H A22”. 55 mEHEmuou E922 49mm. mcnflmno 

mad “as: $3 33 59.22 38$ 
fimfi «wmd Kmm $3 5922 mcfifimno 

35mm >3. 

mmndm mmfiém owwdm stag. umz 
qmw‘: Hmmkmm mama 33:33.. 

.33 
2&6 nmmda mwhflu Ema Emanmcfl 
mixm wmmam mafim Fawn .5 mafiauxfl 35:32.. 

E.2..mco._ 
tam “catau 

wmfiNH mvm‘mfi mwnfifi Bmmmq 39$ 52 
was: wmwgmm fimN 5322 Enmamumm mac—68¢ 

mamd mmmda mod.“ 3:09.535 ncm Luau tBuEm: 

38m. “$5 35.3 
mmm omqm hmmf EmEnSam ncm a: mi .3535 B 30:..t 
mama. momxw nmv‘m A32“. ammo mcsmgmaov 49mm 

mama.“ women minim mwmcmaxm ._m>0 magma mo ammuxm— 

mnqm «.36 man; 305980 Eoc $3.: wEoUE 
mmimw wwmfiv mnflmq mmcmaxm mczfiwao Bub... 
vodmv Nfifimv oodflu magma 9.3230 BB... 
3q «mafia. 08.9 magma E23; “oz 

883 wucmctotwn .5655”. 
on: mad am... xmnE x22 wmmU Etna: 

$m.mm $13 80.3 32:32 22q “9: Eu; 6q 
33.x. $0.9” ENE. m. 3:23. 223330 

m.~ m.~ WM 3.63 .35 *0 59.3 omEm>< 

mém m.mm m “tum 33:80 3.3964 

mm. md m.w mzmcmu >__mo ammhwaq 

92am 32:0. mmm‘m 3292 E 3. 3333...... 
m3. Hon m3. m:o_mm_En¢ 

532:3: 

.28 $225 at _ 82.. at, $8 at, 

82 .8 $336.3 
$039.30 _m_u:mc_u_ 

£6»: BtoEmz 
mmogn. 

‘1‘ 

PK 



mHON DNON 0.; 

5:5 .28 >3. run I 

own. >02 

wuflmhzmr: EBLUEEOU . 

._.UO .Emm w3< 

28:85. I 
._D_. 2.): >42). mad :3). mm”. 2x2 

mmEU _m_ucw:_u_ >6— Ozcm>m¢ mmOLmv ONON 

28822 I 

$0 

*2 

Ram 

«mom 

*9» 

nxbm 

$8 
.39” 

Ram. 
gem 

$.93 

$0.03“ mad www.mm Kmém mmmém meow 
$0.03 mama Xmfim «\oadm findm ONON 0.; 

Own. 
>02 
.50 

$0.09” £0d fiwfim gmdm “Kmfim .Emm 
$0.23 «and fififim “Exam $1.1m 03¢ 
Rodofi fimfi fimém www.mm fiwfim 42 
$0.93 $53“ $0.0m 

.wxomdm $66M. 2:— 
KOdOH dfi. mafiwm fimdw vamém ><_>_ 

nx509“ $.d «$t «\omém fifidm mmq 
$8.0m: Rim «\ahém .3o KERN ”.52 
$0.93 flaw KHKN AXumdm www.mm mm.”— 
mdOH «3K RUHKN wamdm Ax.m..fimm ZS. 

_mu—O._. LwSHO Dcm >mn— twm wucmLZmE _m_u.._mEEOU ENS—ow: wLmUEm—z EHCOE 

ouoN 6m .mnEmEmm 
mmmU _m_ucm:_u_ 3 3:93. 

2:0m .020s 

gmwwOLn— a 



550 tam >2 2mm I 3:932. _m_u.wEEou I EqwE I @52q I 

omom 0.; H5 >02 .Emm 
.: . $0 

$3 
Ram 

$8 
$9» 

gem 

nRoom 

$9. 

exam 

30m 

$03 

mam—u _m_u_._mc_n_ >9 03:26”. 52 o~o~ 

n“3.2: x2: xmam «KAN §d~ mSN 
$0.03 

Exam: «3.3. 
0%.: Kim 88 a; 

He 
>02 

be 
$32 «3.8 .xmsm «$3 «3.2 him 
$33 $53 xoém gimfi www.mm 03 
@862“ xw.~ www.mq ”Roam $6.0m SH 
"“863 «$3 $0.? www.mm xqwfi 22 
§dS $92 «3.3 fififl gmém >52 
£0063 $3 mam: gmqm Exam...“ E< 

$8.02 «$6 $93 xmem gin $32 
«8.9: mad $33 $32 xwmm mm: 
$0.2: xwm $3; gmmm «3% 2.3 

_mu0._.. tar—HO Ucm >mn_ twm wUCmLDmS _m_U._wEEOU BEE—09>. wgmgflwg LHCOS— 

88 am .3553 
mmmU Etc—NE". 3 355m 52 

5:09... EtoEmZ 

gmwwoha PK 



$.90 fidm- 

tcwhh SHCDEIMH 25059.o “—0 “cmuwu—m 

5.02.. .020s 
gmwmoi 

‘1‘ 

f.‘ 

8m- 8m 8- £8 E. gm. *2. 8mm «3. Km 88 8H 89: SE Eat 88% 8:98 “m2 
3%- R...” 

wad. mm KNN EQMI mam- $3.- 3H- Rafi wmfifi- Xmfi “.m- 
www.- LucoE horn Eat. mmcmzu mzcv>mm mmohw 

83 8m- fimfi 8N- Km- 8m- Xv Rm- gem- «8 Km EN 8m RN 5:9: Eta Eat $55 8:35 mczmhwao 
88.3.“ fiwdw fimdm fimdv fifimm $w.mm mama «8.3 

Kmdm «8.9“. $36 98.3 
xadm 98.3 

353m 52 to x m 8 :53 
8.8 83.8 «$8 .88 8.8 32m 8.8 $85. 8.3 8.8 8.8 game «8.3. 8.5. 

3:26”. “oz ”E g a m 3:28 
.88 8.8- $5 8.8 8.3. $13 $3. 3mm- aim 8.3 m8. mam «$8 .88- 3585 83.380 =o 5922 
$93 «38m- «$6. mafimm afimfi “3.3 mam- Kim. «86 «3.3 3mg”- mmfi amm 8mg £332 .38. 

2.884 m 38.2%: m 81a «8.338 m 88.8.“ m 8.88 $88 83.3 3...c $38 2:. 8m 3: :8 m 3.88 m 93.8 m .33. ”ES... 5: 

88.? 88mm Edam Emma: Emma H88 H38 856 8&3 «8.8 8%: 833 83% 8a.? «58583230 52 .32 
-. 8a.“. . .nflmgm. 

V8.2 8m - _-_ 
ENE . 83: 838 - 8nd 3388 m.88. 8:880 :oz 550 

833 $3.8. $8.5 68.8. :88. 693$ $83 38.3 $8.3 $8.3 $2.5 8”.q 83: 3.3.8. 8598 $235 
$3 83 mama ~88 28.2 80.3 833 80.8 ”8.8. 93.8 38.3 85.8 8d 98.3 mEBE “BEE; 
98.8 80.: SEE. «when 8&8 Ewan 3mg.” 0.8.8 086.. 8&8 88m mama.“ 8&8 H88 2.53”. E 

9:35 mczmhuno .52 
_ 838." $8.33. 8mg“ 3e.em~.~ mmlmgofi 

mafia 58.3”... 
.818: 88: 838 :88; 88.: 81...: 8:5 .33. mass 8:280 

#38:”. 838... «8.88 8133. mkdog 8188 magnum 3883 .5326. 888d 838...“ 6868.... 8:83 «858... 3225 8:226 .38 

ommdflum mqfifimma mafimwma www.mmoé v3.36; aflmmwa www.0mo.m 
qoflommé mafimmmrn mmmdmmha mfiodfifim qfiwma gamma mafimqfifi 3335 333-52 
_Bo._..g:m 

2.33 83m 83:; 68.5 83.... 2.018 838 $38 9.38 I 
88¢ «853 333 8%q 838 $225 8:280 350 

83mm 83mm 838 qmm mumdmm Smdmm 0868 mmmfimm 2.3% 33mm 83mm 83mm 893m :38 co:m~_toE< a 552853 
monk 83m 888 mmmgm 83m 8H8 8m 8E8 088 ~88 80.3 888 8&8 98.2. 35» .m 3:8: m..”.E..§E_ 

8.3.2 R33 832 $38 9883 :33 80...a n86: 8"..q «8.m 25.84“ 833 @363 8.q $33 a 235m 
833 83mm 33.3 88mm 83% 838 8.88 83mm 838 888 8.08m mammm EH8“ $.38 550 - “38mm .8288 

81.3 3.3m H88 83.... 8mg 33m Show 8m 8N8 08.8 $8.8 8%? 08.8 “3.3. 32:5 - 323% 83:85 
9.38 madam 888 8:83 838 33?. 238 838 8.88 333 .832. 886. 832. 98.8.» . 3:88 

Emu: $8.85 33m ~88 8.8 mmtmm $0.2 8.3m 83v nemmm $.33 8mg“ .88 
838 550 - mama 823965 

838 088mm .838 
838 £8.m and? 83mm 8d 828m SQRm mmm.~mm 3.88 83mm «8.8m E88,: - “mm”. 823365 

88.38 38.88... 38.83 Em.mqm.m mmm.~mo.m magma mmqmofim $53.“. 8338 80685 Rflmwofi 23:8 838W I W883 88 :53 82.58 
8a «8.82 3.83 883 8882 838 Simmm $38 @858 838 288 H85“ 832 89.0mm .33 83:28 
0888 806mm mqmdhm $5.q mmméom mmmdmn mmmdg Nmmfimm SURE www.mmn mmqmom $0.3m 81q 83mm 382mm 
magma mama.” mmmaqm 8133 80.8“.” 31mg.” 83t 812m.” 8083 “8.83 Snmmfl 3m.ww~.~ n8.~...~.~ 8183 3:28 

mum—.35.. “Eu—«3:0 

. . $3Q $3 8?. 58.33 2886 838x «8636 338.... 8:58.: $8.8m...“ .8338 8N8? Ring...” 8183 33.83 35:8 “oz 
mmhama 882 «8.3 838 838 mmqmq 312. 03.8 $18 $3.... ”3.3: «8.3 838 R8: 8:96: 8:280 550 
80.83 58.81: 838 818.} 8884 "8.83 “82mm :55 958 

3883 www.mmmé 8338 832:”. 55.83 398$ 838$ “848.". 818%.... 838...". 833$ 988$ mmmgwé “8.83 8:38 822% 25:8 52 

@8888 Emma.“ 338K mmmfimmd www.mmme mmmfimfim mmw8m.m 83q 23.83 832.6 8923 838.... $388 $8.23 3558 :5: 22683 .28 
83mm 238 «$88 2.3mm 83mm 83mm 838 $33 8808 $1.8 833 883 81mm 88mm 58 Em 

mmmdn 81R 23mm 283 max? R38 833 838 83: 83m magma 888 R33. 968% Emu 3:26 
www.mwnd 036a nmmdmfln mwvdmvd 03.53;... Dmfiwfim www.mmod Smémfin mqHNK mmmfimfim mmmfimod mNomfi mmmémnfi Smgfimfi 89825.? 356228 $29 

$8.83 80q 33mm 838 A883 ”8.8 838 833 8194 $8.8. hmmfi 23.: H88 388 BEES? 350 
58.85 8min; $8.83 .8585 833a 888 8883 888; 8.83 mmmfimca “8.8.“ 3384 R38; H88} 88 88882 
nmmwmm.~ 838a 88:8 2393 8884 oom.8o.~ 8.83 83mm.” 838a mmm.mmm.~ 8833 88.88..“ 33mm; 8283 2882 
$8.23 338a 8883 8.33 $123 $38 SSE @858“ mmmamma mfimfimd 08.83 “8.08..“ 3m.fiwa.~ $83 285% 

gunman—.4 .mztnhzou 
mam 8mm 8cm ,.__._ .. 

£3. 83 85.. RE Emm mrmm 8mm Ram mm 8.3 uscwfiwm Eon“. mfiofiusflmn 

0348.2 838.3 888.8 mvm.qo~.mfi $838 83a mqmfimfi 838.3 “8.8q 888.2 818%: 838.8 8&3d 8&8? 88:3. “8.23 ESE $20 .38 
- dwamhm 838.3 3385 8336 8m.~8.m 338.... 8m.~mm.w 833% 333.8 838.8 98.38 mmmfimml $0.33 .83q “583:0 

mmm.m8.m w .388.” W 88.926 m 3386 m 8383 m widow.” m «3.83 W 20.035 m 08.38.” m «8.33 m mqmfima m 8385 m madam.“ m oom.o~m.m m 228:. 
9.:55wm 
non—tram “Egan“. 39.0 

3-3m o~-m=< 3-..: 8.5: 3-85. 8.83 3.8.2 363 3-52 $-q 3.32 3-50 3-3m Emu—E 



mwmcwaxm 3:830 58+ 380 Sn 3 58.5 :mlll mzcmim 8338 2,2q 52 IOI 

mscm>wm E0: mcosusuwe _Bo._.l.ll mmucmao=< E33580 mmogwlll magma 8229.“ Egan. 890 238+ 

8-3m 3&3... 8-..: 8-5: egg 0?? 3-52 03$ om‘cm. $-q $-32 mEuo 33¢. 2&3 

000.000.N 

0006006 

00000006 

000~000~w 

000~000~0H 

000~000~NH 

0006093” 

stow: 6:0s 

mmo‘i 



«and 
«83“ 
$03” 
«and 
«moon 

mmmdgfiw 
mm." Ammfim 
mmfimms R...” 
39.3%: 

emmqmmeéa 

ONON I 

mHON I 

mHON I 

$3 I 0% 
gmfi I § 
$3 I am 
$2 I 4% 
RE I 3m 

mqhdmvd 
hmm‘mmfim 
owfimmm‘fi 
mmNdm 
Rmfimfim 
own 3:0 

can 39.0 

Iwmm. 
Ifim 

nfim 
Iwmm 
Imam 

:3” 
1% 

3? 
1K 

5% 

I gm 
- gm 
- Km 

I $2 
I g: 

EDEN—mm _mu0._. “—0 w Nuchwn— m< 

mnmfimmé 
nwflmowé 
mmméwm 
how‘mfimé 

mmmawmfi‘a 
a 

mmafimvé 
Hfifimmfifi 
Nfimknmw 
mvmkmmfifi 

9‘0“Q 
aw. 

mamas; 
momdmma 
wwwdmm 
31mm? 

8383 
% 

Omadoflm 
mamdm 
owfimmqa 
mmn.m~m.m 
mmmgmmmé 

mm 
mzufifimcou 3:23 mum :4. 

SEN .32.. 
£85 932328 mm< m< 

833i 
SE83 
«898.: 
omqmmim 
wnmafimam 

mm 

I gl 8% 
l i $8 

I I $8 
I pal :2 

l gmvl 28 

ONDN 
mnou 
MHDN 
hnom 
mHON 

338$ 

838;. 

98686 

8968.» 

8:533 

8289.3 

9368q 

828.23 

mam 
Kmm 

mama 
mmom 
mm: 
$3". 

mam? 
mam 

macocm mm 

2.: 

31643.3 
mmwfiwmfim 
mnmfimfimm 
whwfiamfiw 

Hmmdmmqmm 
mmmdmfiqom 
mmhfiomfim 
modmdm 

ONQN 

acaq 

oomdmfimm 03.5.: Homing 
3.0.3q mfioimfi $8.8q 

mmmémmmm $33.3 mawqmfi 

$33.2 qmmdfi «gag: 
$38.2 mS‘mhmamH mmm‘mfim‘fl 

mmqmmmqm $32.3 $33.3 
nwmqmmq‘mfi owmfiwfi qmdfl 
mmdmmm‘fl $332 mmqmmmmfi 
53:2d 035%.: onfiflfifl 

83q Emfimé Swami 
$332 23m mmdomwfl 

28 33 :8 
BEE. mucflmm ad 

=31 £2.22 £2.39. 

mgimfi .3583 
mqqmwmfl .8582 
333.3 5860 

I 695933 
mmmfiwfi “2&2 
mmommfi 22 
3385 9:: 
333.3 222 
Nfismvdm .23 
338.8 5222 
333.3 335$ 

Simomfi ESE 
mHo~ 

B352. 

GEN .28 
£35 22 £39.; - Ba: 8:28 E 

55m: 5:0s 

Lommogn. 

can. ODD. m 

GOO :ooo a.“ 

5:0 :ccc mH 

5:0 one am 

can. ace mN 

aaqoooa—m 



Attachment DD 

{‘5 Prosser Li Memor ia l  Heal th  
Physician Clinics Consolidated 

Income Statement As Of: September 30, 2020 

YTD Prior 
10,403,892 

(4,118,152) 

6,285, 740 

99,890 

5,848, 005 
337,965 

6,185,970 

224,911 
398,243 

46,981 
153,5 72 
679,465 
208,970 

1, 712, 142 

7,898,111 

(1,512,432) 

63.06 
0.95 

YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Var 
Clinical Patient Revenue 10,993,183 12,890,489 (1,897,306) -15% 

Deductions From Revenue (3,959,363) (4,637,919) 678,556 -15% 

Net Patient Revenue 7,033,821 8,252,571 (1,218,750) -15% 

Other Operating Revenue 85,851 119,250 (33,399) -28% 

Salaries 7,679,630 7,384,523 (295,107) -4% 

Benefits 407,415 558,535 151,120 27% 

Purchased Labor 4,438 — (4,438) 0% 
Total Salaries and Benefits 8,091,483 7,943,058 (148,424) -2% 

Professional Fees 122,917 175,275 52,358 30% 
Supplies 772,077 627,259 (144,818) -23% 
Utilities 56,541 53,240 (3,301) —6% 

Purchased Services 171,432 130,537 (40,895) -31% 
Rentals & Leases 652,831 664,672 11,841 2% 
Other Direct Expenses 101,791 223,078 121,287 54% 

Total Non Salary Expenses 1,877,588 1,874,060 (3,528) 0% 

Total Expenses 9,969,070 9,817,118 (151,952) -2% 

Contribution Margin (2,849,398) (1,445,293) (1,404,100) 97% 

Referred Hospital Revenue 22,450,915 

Net Hospital Contribution Margin 19,601,517 

FTE's 
Employed 72.72 83.46 10.74 13% 
Contracted 0.77 4.25 3.48 82% 

Total 73.49 87.71 14.22 16% 

Employed 
Hours Paid 116,350 133,536 17,186 13% 

Hours Worked 100,650 106,829 6,179 6% 
Contracted 

Hours 1,232 6,800 5,568 82% 

Unit of Service (UOS) Total Visits 37,801 40,844 (3,043} -7% 

Productivity (Worked Hours I UOS) 2.70 2.78 (0) —3% 

64. 01 

1 00, 902 
89,691 

1,512 

36,847 

2.48 



{‘8 Prosser 
a Memorial Health 

Benton City Clinic 
Income Statement As Of: September 30, 2020 

RURAL HEALTH CLINIC 

YTD Prior YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Var 
Clinical Patient Revenue 1,813,125 2,440,962 (627,837) -26% 

Deductions From Revenue (453,281) (610,240) 156,959 -26% 

Net Patient Revenue 1,359,844 1,830,721 (470,877) -26% 

Other Operating Revenue - - — 0% 

Salaries 1,402,572 1,420,056 17,484 1% 
Benefits 92,266 108,416 16,150 15% 
Purchased Labor ~ - - 0% 

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,494,837 1,528,471 33,634 2% 

Professional Fees - - - 0% 
Supplies 98,378 49,920 (48,459) -97% 
Utilities 11,801 11,779 (22) 0% 
Purchased Services 23,533 31,017 7,484 24% 
Rentals & Leases 173,551 177,973 4,422 2% 
Other Direct Expenses 7,263 33,300 26,037 78% 

Total Non Salary Expenses 314,526 303,988 (10,539) -3% 

Total Expenses 1,809,364 1,832,459 23,095 1% 

Contribution Margin (449,520) (1,738) (447,782) 25771% 

FTE's 
Employed 16.41 19.00 2.59 14% 
Contracted -- - - 0% _ 

Total 16.41 19.00 2.59 14% 

Employed 
Hours Paid 26,264 30,400 4,136 14% 
Hours Worked 22,336 24,320 1,985 8% 

Contracted 
Hours - - - 0% 

Unit of Service (UOS) Total Visits 8,415 9,868 1,453 15% 

Productivity (Worked Hours I U05) 2.65 2.46 (0.19) —8% 

2,201,273 

(550,318) 

1,650,955 

1,533, 024 
93, 690 

1,626,714 

7,094 
42,296 
11, 651 
3 7, 1 70 

1 68, 975 
11, 974 

279, 160 

1,905,874 

(254,919) 

18.23 

18.23 

29,175 
26,396 

9,144 

2.89 



{‘5 Prosser ‘1! Memor ia l  Health 
Prosser Clinic 

Income Statement As Of: September 30, 2020 
RURAL HEALTH CLINIC 

YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Var 
Inpatient Revenue 953,645 751,979 201,666 27% 
Outpatient Revenue 3,459,439 4,010,700 (551,261) -14% 
Clinical Patient Revenue 4,413,084 4,762,679 (349,595) -7% 

Deductions From Revenue (1,103,271) (1,190,670) 87,399 —7-% 

Net Patient Revenue 3,309,813 3,572,009 (262,196) -7%_ 

Other Operating Revenue 85,851 119,250 (33,399) -28% 

Salaries 2,311,266 2,057,166 (254,100) -12% 
Benefits 124,864 157,078 32,214 21% 
Purchased Labor 4,438 — (4,438) 0% 

Total Salaries and Benefits 2,440,568 2,214,244 (226,324) -10% 

Professional Fees 107,705 149,400 41,695 28% 
Supplies 306,059 214,559 (91,501) -43% 
Utilities 18,220 22,255 4,034 18% 
Purchased Services 60,585 52,942 (7,642) -14% 
Rentals 8: Leases 271,919 275,254 3,335 1% 
Other Direct Expenses 62,061 106,350 44,289 42% 

Total Non Salary Expenses 826,550 820,759 (5,791) —1% 

Total Expenses 3,267,118 3,035,003 (232,115) -8% 

Contribution Margin 128,546 656,256 (527,709) -80% 

FTE's 
Employed 24.30 26.80 2.50 9% 
Contracted 0.77 2.59 1.82 70% 

Total 25.07 29.39 4.32 15% 

Employed 
Hours Paid 38,886 42,880 3,994 9% 
Hours Worked 34,213 34,304 91 0% 

Contracted 
Hours 1,232 4,144 2,912 70% 

Unit of Service (U05) Total Visits 15,427 15,847 420 3% 

Productivity (Worked Hours/ UOS) 2.30 2.43 0.13 5% 

YTD Prior 
463,391 

3,141,716 
3, 605,107 

(901,277) 

2,703,830 

99, 890 

1, 001, 749 
88, 773 

1, 090, 522 

200,516 
182,871 

20,008 
66,285 

235,258 
108,898 
813, 835 

1, 904, 356 

899,363 

17.48 
0.94 

18.42 

27,970 
24,816 

1,496 

14,310 

1.84 



(‘5 Prosser ‘9’ Memoria l  Health 
Specialty Clinic 

Income Statement As Of: September 30, 2020 
PROVIDER BASED CLINIC 

YTD Prior 
3,473,711 

(2,014,752) 

1,458,958 

2,521,243 
109,907 

2,631,150 

13,901 
62,226 

3,406 
4,449 

150,233 
25,508 

259, 723 

2,890,873 

(1,431,914) 

17.93 
0.01 

YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Var 
Clinical Patient Revenue 3,561,961 4,288,777 (726,816) -17% 

Deductions From Revenue (2,101,557) (2,487,491) 385,934 —16% 

Net Patient Revenue 1,460,404 1,801,286 (340,882) -19% 

Other Operating Revenue - - — 0% 

Salaries 3,088,035 2,864,997 (223,038) -8% 
Benefits 131,189 213,440 82,251 39% 

Purchased Labor — - - 0% 
Total Salaries and Benefits 3,219,225 3,078,437 (140,787) -5% 

Professional Fees 11,400 25,875 14,475 56% 
Supplies 107,691 144,471 36,780 25% 
Utilities 5,883 157 (5,726) -3655% 
Purchased Services 34,707 4,840 (29,866) -617% 
Rentals 81 Leases 124,331 123,331 (999) —1% 
Other Direct Expenses 22,562 56,728 34,166 60% 

Total Non Salary Expenses 306,573 355,403 48,830 14% 

Total Expenses 3,525,798 3,433,840 (91,958) -3% 

Contribution Margin (2,065,394) (1,632,554) (432,840) 27% 

FTE's 
Employed 19.67 22.00 2.33 11% 
Contracted - - — 0% 

Total 19.67 22.00 2.33 11% 

Employed 
Hours Paid 31,478 35,200 3,722 11% 
Hours Worked 27,370 28,160 790 3% 

Contracted 
Hours - _ _ 0% 

Unit of Service (UOS) Total Visits 8,451 9,566 1,115 12% 

Productivity (Worked Hours / UOS) 3.24 2.94 (0.30) —10% 

1 7.93 

28,686 
25,000 

8,586 

2.91 



{‘8 Prosser ‘4’ Memor ia l  Heal th  
Gra ndview Clinic 

Income Statement As Of: September 30, 2020 
RURAL HEALTH CLINIC 

YTD Prior YTD Actual YTD Budget Variance % Var 
inpatient Revenue 7,666 928 6,738 726% 
Outpatient Revenue 1,197,347 1,397,143 (199,797) -14% 
Clinical Patient Revenue 1,205,013 1,398,072 (193,059) -14% 

Deductions From Revenue (301,253) (349,518) 

Net Patient Revenue 903,759 1,048,554 (144,794) -14% __ 

Other Operating Revenue - - - 0% 

Salaries 877,757 1,042,304 164,548 16% 
Benefits 59,096 79,601 20,505 26% 
Purchased Labor — — - 0% 

Total Salaries and Benefits 936,853 1,121,906 185,053 16% 

Professional Fees 5,444 - (5,444) 0% 
Supplies 67,014 55,637 (11,377) -20% 
Utilities 14,058 13,725 (334) -2% 

Purchased Services 29,233 21,750 (7,484) —34% 
Rentals & Leases - - - 0% 
Other Direct Expenses 6,671 15,975 9,304 58% 

Total Non Salary Expenses 122,421 107,087 (15,334) -14% 

Total Expenses 1,059,274 1,228,992 169,718 14% 

Contribution Margin (155,514) (180,438) 24,924 -14% - 

FTE's 
Employed 12.33 15.66 3.33 21% 
Contracted - 1.66 1.66 100% 

Total 12.33 17.32 4.99 29% 

Employed 
Hours Paid 19,722 25,056 5,334 21% 
Hours Worked 16,731 20,045 3,314 17% 

Contracted 
Hours - 2,656 2,656 100% 

Unit of Service (U05) Total Visits 5,508 5,563 55 1% 

Productivity (Worked Hours l U05) 3.04 4.08 1.04 26% 

2,498| 
1, 121,305 
1, 123, 802 

(551,305) 

471,997 _ 

791, 989 
45,595 

837,584 

3,401 
110, 850 
1 1, 916 
45, 667 

125, 000 
62,590 

359,425 

1,197,008 

(725,011) 

9. 42 
0. 01 
9.42 

15,070 
13,479 

4,807 

2.81 



Benton City Clinic 

{‘3 Prosser 
‘ 9 ’  Memorial Health 

Revenue By Financial Class 

Specialty Clinic 

Commercial 
Medicaid 
Medicare 

Self-Pay 
Grand Total 

Revenue by Financial Class 
1,824,272 
1,797,013 

424,351 
246,524 
120,924 

4,413,084 

41% 
41% 
10% 

6% 
3% 

Revenue by Financial Class 
Commercial 496,354 
Medicaid 344,766 
Medicare 267,907 
Other 67,242 
Self-Pay 28,744 
Grand Total 1,205,013 

41% 
29% 
22% 

6% 
2% 

I Commercial I Commercial 

a Medicaid . Medicaid 
'- Medlrare r Medlcarc 

I Other .- Other 

I Self-Pay " Self-Pay 

Revenue by Financial Class Revenue by Financial Class 
Commercial 675,741 37% Commercial 1,119,332 31% 
Medicaid 600,658 33% Medicaid 896,676 25% 
Medicare 452,334 25% Medicare 1,204,164 34% 

26,236 1% Other 219,378 6% 
Self-Pay 58, 157 3% Self— Pay 122,412 3% 
Grand Total 1,813,126 Grand Total 3,561,962 

Prosser Clinic Grandview Clinic 

I Commercial I Commerclal 

. Medicaid .- Medicaid 
‘1 Medicare - Medicare 

I Other - Other 

. Self-Pay I Self-Pair 



{‘5 PFOSSGI’ 
d Memorial  Health 
CLINICAL PROVIDER VISlTS BY MONTH 

Benton City Clinic 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT Nov DEC TOTAL 

CARL 107 117 
JOHANSING 174 144 
STUADINGER 149 200 
LUTHER 155 139 
ZIRKER 133 185 
MICROUUS 133 121 
GRONER 68 35 
MORSE - - 

Prosser Clinic 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL 

OCONNOR 352 336 
MIN 191 156 
ZHMUROUSKI . 151 157 
MORRIS 235 168 
MORSE L- 190 207 
GARZA — - 
DUNHAM - - 
SOLLERS 262 205 
WEAVER 135 173 
CHARVET 79 77 
GARZA - — 
PADLLLA 90 174 

Specialty Clinic 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL 

CLIFFORD 190 205 
HALVORSON 145 114 
STREBEL 92 39 
HUANG 56 90 
CHEW 57 39 
COMBS 146 106 
BHATTI 121 133 
C. TIEU — - 
T. TIEU - - 

Grandview Clinic 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT Nov DEC TOTAL 

SANTA—CRUZ 116 
GARZA 70 
WARNICK 67 
ZIRKER 67 
ZHMUROUSKI 37 
HANKS 193 
CHARVET 14 
MORRIS - - 



Attachment EE 

4- "  1H" { H u t  
"Physicians Insurance 

Ma 'I'r__:._.. 

\ 
Claims 3 '1 

A. 59 ':", :a- {fit—rt“: .If—fi' fi r s - I  

Fr— _ — — ‘ f : l : _ ;  September 211; '3 
_... 

_ - _  . . , g  

In 2014, a 16-year-old woman who was 25 weeks pregnant was hospitalized with severe preeclampsia, a 
serious complication characterized by high blood pressure. Her physicians contend they advised her to 
undergo an emergency cesarean section, which she refused; the patient claimed that doctors told her that 
the baby would die or suffer brain damage if she had that procedure. Whatever the case, when the baby 
was delivered vaginally days later, it suffered severe damage. The mother filed a lawsuit, and in June of 
2019 the case went to trial. After the parties rested, the jury came back in just two and half hours with a 
staggering verdict of over $229 million in favor of the plaintiff—the largest medical-malpractice verdict ever 
recorded. 

Since 2013, there have been a total of eight medical-malpractice verdicts exceeding $100 million, including 
the aforementioned case. Of note, six of those eight cases have come to conclusion in the last two years. 

For medical professional liability (MPL) carriers, these increasing claim costs have an enormous impact. For 
many years, the MPL industry has been experiencing financial pressure in response to the changing 
healthcare system and social inflation. There has been an extended soft market creating downward, 
competitive pressure on premiums, while the frequency of severe claims has been steadily rising. 

This has prompted the need for economic adjustments in the industry. Most carriers have already 
responded by filing for rate increases—some multiple times and as early as 2013. However, at Physicians 
Insurance, we have been trying to keep our rates flat as long as possible by closely managing expenses and 
trying to offset increases through other means. 

Unfortunately, as claim costs continue to rise, investment income is down and our rates are no longer 
adequate to insure today’s exposure. As a mutual company owned by and operated for the benefit of our 
members, we take changing rates very seriously, and only consider it as a means to continue to serve out 
our mission to our members. 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 1 of 10 



CONSOLIDATION CHANGES THE RISK LANDSCAPE 
Healthcare has changed rapidly in many ways with electronic medical records and changes in technology 
and reimbursement, but one major change has impacted the MPL marketplace most: the drastic shift 
towards consolidation 
and physicians moving to 
employment at hospitals 
or large groups. This 
graph shows the large 
increase of physicians 
moving to hospital- 
owned practices. Note 
the drastic change 
between approximately 
2014 and 2013, when 
more than 34,000 
independent medical 
practices were acquired 
by hospitals. 

At Physicians Insurance, 
our book of business 

Physician Practices Owned by Hospitals 
90,000 

80,001 

some 
n 
c; 

.2 
g mm 

«.1 

.§ 
3 60A!!! Approximately 35,000 independent 
3'6 practices were acquired by hospitals 
g 501m betwaen 2014 and 2013 

E 
a 

10.090 

30.000 
3 91 fl 3 S .“J :2 fl 3 a i: 33 
a s a s s s s s s. s 2 : :  

Source: Physlclan Advocate institute, 2019 

mirrored the national trends, with many of our smaller/independent practices moving into hospital 
employment orjoining large multispecialty clinics. For example, in 2015, more than half of our book (57%) 
consisted of practices with between one and 32 physicians. Just four years later, that dropped to 34%. But 
during this same time period, our total physician count increased from about 6,500 to more than 8,000 
members as the company continued to grow. 

That move toward consolidation and employment within the healthcare market reduced the number of 
independent practices, as smaller practices closed or coverage moved to the larger groups or hospitals. 
Carriers had to develop 
new ways to recoup lost 
revenue, so many 
responded by moving 
into new territories to 
diversify their business. 
As a result, the Pacific 
Northwest saw 36 new 
carrier entrants between 
2010 and 2020. This 
increase in competition 
put additional downward 
pressure on pricing and 
contributed to what is 
referred to as a soft 
market. 

PI Insured: Migrate into Large Practices and Hospitals 

1m 8.50:} 

9cm 

5 m 3,000 
E 
5 m E 
E 

g 5m 
man i 

.2 
3 son 3‘- 
E if. 
g 4m; mm 

"a 305‘ 
all 

so: 6.500 

10% 

no: open 
2015 2'31? 2919 

H Hospital fl Practices with 33+ physicians — Practices with 1+3! physicians *Totai p-sician Count 

l m a m . W M D - m  

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 2 of 10 



INCREASING CLAIMS SEVERITY REVERSES THE SOFT MARKET 
Insurance markets have historically gone through somewhat predictable cycles, which influence insurance 
limits and corresponding premiums. A soft market is characterized by abundant capacity, ample 
competition, and low premiums due to decreases in claims frequency and severity. Soft markets are then 
followed by hard markets, where capacity diminishes, competition lessens, and premiums increase to 
match changes in claims frequency and severity. 

Until recently, the MPL marketplace had been in a prolonged soft market, with ample carriers in the 
marketplace. During the same time period, there was downward competitive pressure on premiums due to 
the soft market, and there was an uptick in the frequency of high-severity losses. 

Natima'w’ ‘“ 1”“ Number of MPL Verdicts in Excess of $10M 
the last three full 
calendar years, 
there have been a 
record number of 

46 

jury verdicts for 
greater than $10 26 3° 
million, including 
two in Washington 18 
State in 2019: a 
$13.9 million verdict I 
in a stroke case and 
21523.9 million 

2014 2015 20115 2017 2013 1019 verdict for a birth- 
injury case. And in www.mmummmrmmm 
2018 and 2019 _ 
combined, there were three verdicts totaling more than $100 million, including the $229 million case 
referenced at the beginning of this article. 

Another view of the national data shows the average of the largest 50 medical-malpractice verdicts since 

2001- The lines in Average of Top 50 Medical Malpractice Verdicts in US 
red represent years 
in which average 35 ' 
verdicts exceeded 

during this period 
was in 2002, and 20 

$20 million. The first 30 l _ _ 
time this happened 25 , _ _ _ _ 

then it took 10 1 . 
years to hit that ' ' I 
mark again in 2012. 1 _ ' 
However, just six AWN,“ 
years later, the 1 ' g5“ 

. 15-52011 averages well 0 . _ _ . s w 

91599d $20 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 ea 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 1e 17 1a 19 
million In both 2018 Year 
and 2019. m m  
Physicians 
Insurance’s experience during the same timeframe of 2001 to 2019 shows a large spike in cases settling for 

M
i

l
l

i
o

n
s

 

O
 

a
t

 

—
'

 

U
! 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 3 of 10 



more than $1 million and $2 million, starting after 2016. For example, in 2015, approximately 0.27% of 
cases resolved for more than $2 million, but in 2019 that figure was over 2%. 
Another way of looking at this is that in less than four years, the number of claims settling for more than $1 
million and $2 
million jumped 
100% and 300%, 

Paid indemnity in Closed Year 

m 
respectively. g m a 

ll 11" I 

Outside ofjust a 5 m 5 
pure increase in the 1; m 7. 

frequency and “'5‘ 
severity of claims, am 
there has been a m 
steady increase in Z: 
averagepaid m m m m m m w m m m m m m m a m m m v m m  
indemnity. National 5mm 
data on NPBD m u m  WNW 
reporting from 1991 mmmm—mmrmm 
to 2019 shows a 
steady increase in average indemnity (excluding shock claims or those with massive payouts), with 2000 
averaging approximately $250,000 and 2019 reporting more than $425,000. 

When compared to national statistics, the Pacific Northwest is also seeing this same trend in the frequency 
of severity. Our data without the largest 10 claims shows a steady increase; however, including the average 
of the largest 10 claims, particularly in the last four years, there is a marked overall increase. 

The surge in Paid indemnity Severity 
. . . 2010*2014 Level vs. 2015-2019 Level 
indemnity severity 

$300.” can be easily 
_ WWW? observed when we 5mm UHF-aim m minimally 

compare the 2010— ' mama 

2014 indemnity _ sin-0,009 
severity level to that 
of 2015—2019 In 5150.050 
Washington and 
Oregon. The chart 51mm 
shows that paid 
indemnity severity snow 
has almost 
quadrupled in so 
Oregon, and that of 
Washington has Momma Isms-ms 
increased by almost ' 
30%. 

m m m W — m m m  

Aside from the increase in the frequency of severity of claims, another factor contributing to overall cost 
increases is just the costs to defend claims themselves. Using 2007 as a baseline, paid loss adjustment 
expenses increased 50% between 2007 and 2019—which means that not only are claims resolving for more 
indemnity, but it’s also now costing more to defend them. 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 4 of 10 



LEGISLATIVE CHANGES ARE IMPACT ING CLAIMS 
What is causing the value ofthese cases to go up? There are a number of factors, but one thing that 
certainly has an impact is the legislative and judicial environment in the Pacific Northwest, where 
meaningful liability reform has been eroded over the years and abuses in the civil justice system—such as 
venue shopping and junk science—have increasingly been allowed in the courtroom. 

In Washington, there was a brief period when a cap on non-economic damages existed—non-economic 
damages referring to more subjective damages, such as pain and suffering and non-monetary losses. 
Washington also used to require that plaintiffs file a certificate of merit and a 90—day notice of intent before 
filing suit, both of which laws were later declared unconstitutional by the court. 

In 2019, Washington also opened a new class of beneficiaries in wrongful-death cases, enabling parents and 
siblings of deceased parties to bring suit even if they don’t live in the United States and aren’t financially 
dependent on the deceased. Since this measure is new, its effects have not yet been fully realized—but it 
demonstrates our region’s leanings toward ensuring an injured party has rights to unlimited economic 
recovery. 

Additionally, Washington has a joint and several liability rule whereby a defendant who is only minimally 
liable for a given harm can be required to pay for the entirejudgement, if a co-defendant is unable to pay 
their share. The impact of this rule is that parties that otherwise might justifiably contest their minimal 
liability may look to settle instead, to avoid the risk of paying a large portion of a verdict. 

In Oregon, there is no collateral source rule, which means that plaintiffs can show amounts billed for 
medical expenses (also known as phantom damages) to a jury, rather than the amount actually paid or 
required to be paid—which is often significantly less, based on the health insurer’s contracted amount. This 
allows plaintiffs to increase their economic damages and thus increase the perceived value of their cases. 

In addition, through a recent Supreme Court case, Oregon has enabled a new cause of action in malpractice 
claims, allowing plaintiffs to claim a “loss of chance of a better outcome.” These medical-malpractice claims 
are unique in that, instead of requiring patients to sue for actual physical harm, they allow them to claim 
damages on the grounds that they had a chance of a better outcome, and the provider’s negligence 
eliminated that chance. (Notably, while this is new to Oregon, this cause of action already exists in 
Washington.) 

Oregon also has a $500,000 wrongful-death cap, which has been heavily contested over the last few years. 
The 1987 cap for wrongful death and bodily injury was deemed unconstitutional in 1999 for injuries other 
than wrongful death. However, in 2016, the Oregon Supreme Court essentially reinstated the 1987 non- 
economic damage cap in the Horton vs. OHSU decision for all actions. And earlier in 2020, the Oregon 
Supreme Court reversed course yet again, declaring the bodily-injury cap unconstitutional. The $500,000 
cap for wrongful death remains. While this ruling is disappointing, it is not a surprise, as the wrongful-death 
and bodily-injury cap has been under attack for quite some time. We anticipate more debate in Oregon 
over the wrongful-death cap in the future. 

Idaho has typically been a conservative venue, but there has been recent movement toward it becoming 
more plaintiff-friendly. The plaintiff trial bar has strategically placed their allies on the courts in states 
where they do not have successful allies controlling the legislature. Idaho does have a cap on non-economic 
or subjective damages; however, if a plaintiff can prove that the actions of the parties were ”willful and 
reckless,” the cap does not apply. Carriers see cases where plaintiffs successfully get around the cap using 
this method. 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 5 of 10 



Additionally, at the next legislative session in Idaho, we are expecting the plaintiff bar to push for phantom 
damages to again allow plaintiffs to increase their perceived damages by being able to show the billed 
medical expenses, as opposed to what was actually paid. And finally, in other Northwest states, there are 
movements toward inflating damages and doing away with current liability reforms. Alaska is considering 
adopting phantom damages, and Montana’s Supreme Court is issuing opinions that undermine current 
liability reforms. 

SOCIAL INFLATION CHANGES JURY AWARDS 
Another factor that contributes to increasing claim costs is social inflation. The term social inflation is a 
catchall phrase as it is utilized in the insurance industry; but in general, it refers to the increase in loss costs 
due to shifts in trust of corporations, in juror composition, and in effective plaintiff-attorney strategies. 

One significant trend contributing to social inflation is the increase in distrust of corporations that began 
with the financial collapse of 2008. Since that time, there has been a greater division and separation of 
wealth, and an increase in feeling that someone needs to pay when something goes wrong. This shift in 
mentality makes it easier for a jury to believe that a faceless corporation with ample assets (or insurance) 
should be held responsible. In 2019 in Washington, a jury assigned no fault to providers who provided 
medical care, and assigned all the fault to a healthcare entity to find a way to compensate the plaintiff. 

Plaintiff attorneys have used this distrust of corporations to alter how they file pleadings in malpractice 
cases. One litigation strategy utilized by plaintiff attorneys is to purposely name only the healthcare entity 
as the defendant instead of the individual providers who provide the care, in order to take advantage of the 
public’s mistrust of a corporation versus an individual healthcare provider. 

Social inflation is also impacted by a new composition ofjuries. As the millennial generation becomes 
jurors, their experience and mindset differs from those of prior generations. Most millennials entered the 
workforce during the economic recession, saddled with student debt. According to some trial consultants, 
millennials are starting to take leadership roles in juries, drawing upon a social-responsibility mindset while 
serving. Plaintiff attorneys who want the jury to "send a message” will appeal to this call to action when 
they believe millennial jurors can impact decisions. 

Additionally, younger generations are increasingly less trusting of authority. The Pew Research Center 
conducted a study in November and December 2018 analyzing the differences in opinion by generation, 
and found some striking contrasts. For instance, 73% of people under 30 believe that “most of the time, 
people just look out for themselves,” versus the 48% of their baby-boomer counterparts (ages 65+) who 
believe the opposite. The same study also found that younger Americans are much less likely to have 
confidence in key institutions such as the military, religious leaders, and police officers (3 shift in opinion 
that we are seeing play out on the national level today). 

This affects how a jury might perceive the care being given to patients, and impacts their decisions when 
they’re rendering verdicts. Whereas older generations might assume that hospitals and healthcare workers 
will do the right thing, younger generations are more skeptical. 
Today, jurors of all ages may also be basing larger awards on the skewed value of the dollar and the 
uncertainly of access to medical insurance. Prior to 2016, the public had some confidence that medical 
insurance would be available to them through the ACA or private insurers. Today, that assurance is gone, 
and even those with insurance are increasingly utilizing high-deductible plans. Juries want to make sure 
that an injured party will have the money available to cover their future cost of care, regardless of 
insurance status and plan type—and skyrocketing rent, home, food, and healthcare costs, coupled with the 
widespread knowledge of what professional athletes, celebrities, and influencers make, have impacted 
juror mindsets on what amount a jury should give a gravely injured patient. If it costs a million dollars or 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 6 of 10 



more for a small house in Seattle or Portland, that will affect how much money a jury in one ofthose cities 
is likely to award an injured party. 

Lastly, plaintiffs and plaintiff attorneys now have a new tool for bringing claims, in the form of litigation 
financing. This involves a plaintiff contracting with a third-party funder to obtain financial assistance for 
their case, in exchange for the funder receiving an interest in the potential recovery. The agreement is 
usually non-recourse, so if the plaintiff loses the case, the funder receives nothing. 

The consequence of these factors is an increase in the number of cases brought, particularly weak ones. It 
can also prolong litigation, discourage settlement, and direct money away from the injured party, given that 
a large percentage of each verdict will go to the investor and attorneys. When a plaintiff is considering a 
settlement offer, they have to think about the cut that is going to their attorney AND the third party, which 
can again inflate the amount they think they may need to settle their cases. For the most part, this type of 
activity is completely unregulated, and is projected to grow. 

COVlD-19 OUTCOMES ARE STILL TO BE DETERMINED 
Aside from all these influencing elements, uncertainly surrounding the ongoing nature of the COVlD-19 
pandemic and its economic impact is significant. In terms of claim trends relative to COVlD-19, with any 
type of new risk, it typically takes several years for claims to materialize, so the full impact of the pandemic 
is unknown. However, there are some early indicators, based on potential claims and some early pandemic- 
related lawsuits that we’ve seen already.- 

For medical malpractice, claims related to community spread or delay in treatment or deferred non— 
essential care are already being made. Delay in diagnosis and treatment has historically been a frequent 
allegation in many claims; the impact that clinical and elective-surgery shutdowns will have on these kinds 
of claims in the future has yet to be seen. It’s also possible that clinics without proper callback systems may 
not prompt patients to come back soon enough, potentially worsening delays in care. 

For employment-related matters, there have been more reports in the industry of 
whistleblower/retaliation claims—from warnings about inadequate measures to protect personnel and 
patients from COVID-19, to claims of wrongful termination and violations of FM LA or the Families First 
Coronavirus Response Act around paid or unpaid leave. For directors’ and officers’ liability, COVlD-19- 
specific claims have trended toward alleged negligence for wrongful action or specific inactions, such as 
failures in contingency planning. With all the remote work going on, cyber crime has also been affected, 
with an uptick in phishing scams and data compromise. We’re also likely to see an increase in privacy- 
related claims to both patients and employees, due to the new risks associated with remote care. 

FINANCIAL RATING AGENCIES SHOW A NEGATIVE OUTLOOK 
But even before COVlD-19, some carriers were experiencing financial struggles. Global credit-rating agency 
AM Best, in the later part of 2019 and the early part of 2020, downgraded its Financial Security Rating for at 
least eight MPL carriers—including Norcal and ProAssurance, who have limited market share in the Pacific 
Northwest—for deteriorating financial performance. This is significant, as these eight companies make up 
approximately 10% of the total annual MPL premium in the United States. 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company (9 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 7 of 10 



In fact, AM Best has m u D I byAMBastzms-zozo 
maintained a 
negative outlook on 
the MPL segment cmvmmemw ”26,202,, i A" I k 
for the coming yea r, cwcmm 6l 1021012019 "A5“ iii.» 
Eltmg key factors of 'Wm Cumming“ — - mum” 1.: I “  ~ «i 

depressed ~— . — — _ _  __..._.._.. ._.. -......-_...... , 
demand, ‘FblnmmmCmpmy _ _ _ magma .M' if.“ 

diminishing reserve .mm‘mmam _ _ _ ”35’3”” A“ 41f? 
redundancies; “new. MutullmlncaCo-mw 21291020 Au I A-u 

concerns regarding Imam! PhyskilnsMedRfiG.MmlnsCo I 2125mm IAu :1“. 
rate adequacy amid I Promimmrnsunncccgormm uzenazo It,» '- A 

rising loss costs WAMW ‘ ‘ “MSW ‘ 
trends and social 
inflation, (and) the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic”. 

While Physicians Insurance has remained financially stable, and even had its A- (Excellent) rating from AM 
Best confirmed in 2020, the company has operated at an underwriting loss since 2015. Despite rising 
expenses driven by increases in reinsurance costs, we’ve remained relatively consistent in our underwriting 
expense ratio, controlling our expenses in order to spend more of our premium dollars defending our 
insureds. (In fact, compared to a set of peer companies, Physicians Insurance consistently spends less on 
running the business and more on defending members and paying claims.) 
Additionally, for the 
last 12 consecutive PEER COMPARISON 

years the mmpam’ LOSS & LAE RATIOS 
has returned $5 
million in dividends. m u.- '4" 

813‘ 

This Peer m 
Comparison chart m 
shows a comparison was 
of Physicians m 
Insurance and a 
composite of 18 of m 
our competitor peer 3a. 
companies. (The m 
composite group is 
shown in light blue, 1"" 
and Physicians 0,, 
I n s u r a n c e  ' 5  S h o w n  2010 2013 2013: 2016 201‘! 21:13 

in dark blue.) The mncmaze IPhysiciansmwame 

graph is broken Wt ”WWW-Wan” . . ‘T - . _ _ . _  “”188: 
by just the loss- 
adjustment expenses; we have historically had a loss and loss-adjustment ratio of more than 80%, and for 
2019, that figure was at 88.5%. Of note is that for 2019, the gap appears to be closing—but really the 
average is vastly impacted by the adverse loss experience of one competitor, Norcal, which posted a 
175.9% combined ratio in 2019. Excluding Norcal, the composite group of our peers is at 79% for 2019. 

Overall, what is demonstrated by these numbers is that we are consistently spending a greater percentage 
of our premium dollars on paying our losses as compared to our peer group. Two of the factors contributing 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 8 of 10 



to this could be that we operate in an environment lacking tort reform, and that we are uniquely willing to 
spend the money needed to defend cases and take them to trial. 

The same comparison study of 18 peer groups also looked at underwriting expenses, the money spent to 
run each company and cover elements such as reinsurance costs. (Again, the composite group is shown in 
light blue, and Physicians Insurance in dark blue.) Physicians Insurance consistently spends much less to run 
its business, 

operating a Ieener PEER COMPARISON 
operation than its 
peers. Compared UNDERWRITING EXPENSE RATIO 

with the prior graph, 3“ 
this chart shows m 
that we are m m m 2"" 15" 
conSIstently 2’” 
spending a greater m ”1" 3‘“ m n" 

M 19% 159$ percentage of our 
premium dollars on m ”'i , 
defending members as: m 
and covering claims, 
compared to what 
we pay ourselves— 1“ 
which is how we 
believe our 5‘ 
members want us to 
steward their 
premium dollars. I“ m 2010 2013 2015 2015 am? 2015 

mlMi’tCmposite zlPhysidam Inna-m 

So what does this mmmmmdww“ * 4 1.. L: r .' “‘ hem-Arman“ 
mean? Firstly, it 
means that Physicians Insurance has consistently managed its expense ratio, being effective stewards of 
members’ premium dollars, spending a greater percentage of premium dollars defending members and 
taking cases to trial compared with its peers. This is part of the benefit of being insured by a mutual 
company that is owned by and operated for the benefit of our members. However, loss trends within the 
industry demonstrate the need for premium and rate adjustments. By adjusting rates, the company can 
ensure that it has adequate premium dollars to pay against future claims to continue to serve its members. 

Already across the industry, most carriers have responded to the aforementioned changes by taking rate 
action. For Physicians Insurance, the last filed. rate changes were a 10% rate decrease in Washington in 
2009, a 15% decrease in Idaho in 2010 and a 20% rate decrease in Oregon in 2012. Looking at 2019 and 
beyond, we can see a large uptick in the amount of rate increases that other carriers in the region have 
taken. Med Pro and TDC both increased their rates, sometimes two years in a row for Washington, Oregon, 
and Idaho. The last rate adjustment by these carriers in these states was a rate reduction in 2012 during the 
soft market; CNA took early rate action by increasing their overall rates by 12.9% in 2013, and by another 
6% in 2015. Physicians Insurance is really the outlier, not having taken any filed rate action since 2012. 

MARKET IMPACT FOR THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST 
The medical-malpractice industry has undergone significant changes in the past few decades. Changes in 
the healthcare landscape have eroded solo and smaller practice models in favor of employed and hospital— 
owned practices. These consolidations have had an indirect impact on MPL insurers as they changed their 
customer base, necessitating a need for those insurers to find ways to recoup lost revenue. Competition 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 9 of 10 



fueled by increasing loss costs caused combined ratios to rise to unsustainable levels, with MPL carriers like 
NorCal being forced to sell and other carriers placing a moratorium on writing large groups. 

The severity of claims is also rising, and is projected to continue to rise. In our states, just since 2015, we’ve 
seen a surge in indemnity, with average paid indemnity almost quadrupling in Oregon and increasing by 
almost 30% in Washington. We do not anticipate any meaningful tort reform or other legislative changes to 
combat this uptick in indemnity. Social inflation is expected to continue as well, with a new juror mindset 
tending to view malpractice claims as a form of hitting the lottery. The trend toward hospitals and groups 
purchasing higher limits, coupled with plaintiff counsels bringing more claims against multiple defendants, 
will continue to push average claim settlements and verdicts higher and higher. Early projections of the 
repercussions of the COVID-19 pandemic indicate that the pandemic will cause further claims increases in 
years to come. 

To address these changes and increases in loss costs, Physicians Insurance took responsible steps in 2019 
and early 2020 to improve its financial performance. Our underwriters have taken premium increases on 
accounts driving losses through debits and reductions in premium credits, have been conservative in 
writing new business, and have not underbid to win accounts that were priced too low by the competition. 
The company also grew through new partnerships that brought in business appropriate to our overall risk 
portfolio. 

However, even with these efforts, Physicians Insurance’s increasing combined ratio is a warning sign. 
Although we have sufficient surplus to support combined ratios of more than 100% for several years, that 
doesn’t mean that this is a status quo the company is able maintain in the long term. To maintain its AM 
Best rating of A-, Physicians Insurance needs to move steadily back to a combined ratio at or below 100%. 
After careful actuarial review, it has been determined that in addition to the efforts already made, it’s time 
for the company to adjust base rates to reflect the true cost of insuring the delivery of medicine in 2020 
and beyond. 

The resulting rate increase for Washington is 8.0%. An actuarial study proposed a rate increase of 16.8%, 
but we felt that a smaller increase would be sufficient, if put in effect along with cost containment and 
other strategies. For Oregon, the rate increase is 15%. (Again, an actuarial study proposed an indicated 
mature base rate change of 59.2%, using other carrier rates as a reference.) Interestingly, in Oregon, 
purchased limits are generally higher than in Washington, and premiums are generally |ess—-and our 
adjustment to the base rate takes this important factor into account. 

Certainly, all the market dynamics described—including social inflation, the legislative environment, a 
consolidating healthcare industry, and others—will continue to bring changes in the short term. Increased 
claim severity may be a new constant the MPL industry will have to manage. With so many carriers facing 
the challenging new financial realities caused by these complex issues, the coming years will continue to 
see carriers working to adjust their policies and strengthen their financial performance, and Physicians 
Insurance will respond accordingly—but always with its members in mind. For more information on how 
these market dynamics and rate changes impact your policy, please contact your Physicians Insurance 
underwriter by calling (800) 962—1399 or writing to underwriting3@phyins.com. 

Marketplace Update: Physicians Insurance A Mutual Company © 2020. All Rights Reserved. Page 10 of 10 



Hospital Dashboard Report 

Attachment FF 

Prosser Memorial Hospital [501312] 
© Copyright 2020 Cleverley & Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Overall Financial Position 

Performance Drivers 

Market Factors 
Coding & Billing 
Pricing 
Cost Position 
Labor Costs 

Supply Costs 
Service Intensity 

Non Operating Income 

Investment Efficiency 
Plant Obsolescence 
Capital Position 

Scare 

fir 

** 
ink 
*‘kir 
1“: 
initial: 
*‘k 
*i'ir 
*‘k 
inlaid: 
*‘k‘k 
*irir 

Fair 

Fair 

Fair 

Average 

Fair 

Good 
Fair 

Average 

Fair 

Good 
Average 

Average 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
© Copyright 2020 Cleverley 81 Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Presser Hemnrial Hospital 
[581312] 

Revenues: $25 - T5 
Mfllinn [REVIUOZ] 

All [1.5. [SThflflflIU] 

Balance Sheet 

Cash 81 Cash Equivalents 
Accounts Receivable 
Total Current Assets 
Net Fixed Assets 
Investments 
Total Assets _ 
Current Liabilities 
Long Term Debt 
Equity 
Income Statement 

Gross Patient Revenue 
— Deductions 
Net Patient Revenue 
Other Operating Revege 
Total Operating Revenue 
Total Expenses 
Operating Income 

Other {0999.13 
Net Income 

1,221,656 
8,768,411 

1073452529 
12,224,144 

0 
99:51:05.3 
6,098,331 
6,648,741 

26,513,991 

118,391,490 
66,792,440 
51,599,050 

1711.721 
53,310,771 
52,969,155 

341,616 
1.242.109 
465,725 

4,138,853 
8,349,140 
152153371. 
25,468,376 
3,433,203 

4971981719 
9,329,174 
13,155,379 
26,445,035 

214,915,014 
164,423,331 
50,491,684 
215392299 

53,130,953 
51,882,512 

1,243,441 
377,450 

1,625,891 

41,464,550 
54,928,583 
120,767,151 
144,191,228 
62,014,666 
3732342729 
60,330,039 
88,939,713 
226,306,226 

1,212,652,520 
912,243,379 
300409442 
22,876,701 

323,285,843 
306,171,928 
17,113,915 
3,152,831 
20,266,747 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
© Copyright 2020 Cleverley 81 Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Pruner Memorial Hospital naval-1195. 515 - 7'3 
1591911] Hflllun [REV 19911 “i ”'5" 15119999] 

Reference 

Source Of Financial Data . Medicare C9595 3399“ Medicéire COSt Report . ”'39.”? C93 5990“ 
Medicare Provider Analysis 81 Medicare Provider Analysis 81 Medicare Provider Analysis 81 

Review {Medoar‘l _ Review l’MedoarI . .,. Review iMedoar} _ 
Outpatient AnalyticalFile Outpatient Analytical File Qutpatient Analytical File 

Source of Inpatient Data 

Source of Outpatient Data 
Year of Financial Data. .9019 29.19 .2919 
Year of Inpatient Data 2019 2019 2019 
Year of Outpatient Data 2018 2019 2019 
Finalipial “9991.99.93 ._ 1.0255 0.3411 9-9198 
Inpatient Wage Index 1.0427 
Outpatient Wage Index 1.0255 

Financial Overview 

59199133599“??? __ _ . * * tall 1-89 6-50 _ 9. T. 
599.9909 91958995911909?! _ * * fair 4.71.5.3 45.9. 111.93.... 
Financial Strength Index® * it Fair -2._30 -1.40 41.40 

Total Margin _ 1k * Fair 0.90 1.70 4.50 

Operating Margin * * Fair 0.60 1.30 3.60 

Market Factors 
Inpatient league 9;. it a: air it i Excellent 25.19 39.59 41.99 
Surgical Casee ”7’9 11; Poor 8.70 16.50 25 

Expected Profit on ones % fir it '*' A9999? 2 3 9.40 
Expected Profit on APCs 9’0 11 9 it Average -17._1e 711.50 515.50 
Market share % I Poor 5 100 51.40 
Medicaid Days %** il- 1: 1|: it Good 16.80 18.10 19.90 
Medicare Days “/9“ it Poor 68.10 56.70 54.50 

Inpatient Disproportionate Share % MIA 3 3 

Medicaid Charges “/1: ii Poor 32.70 14.50 14.20 

Charity Care % 1k it 1: Average 1.80 1.50 1.60 
Uncompensated Care % t * Fair 10.90 7.80 6.60 

Admissions From SNF % 1i: Poor 0 0.20 1.20 
Revenue Growthflast year) % * air it it Good 7.60 3.30 4 
Equivalent DischargesTM 1t Poor 6,459 6,084 19,377 

Inpatient Equivalent Discharges“ 1: Poor 1,633 2,479 9,196 
Outpatient Equivalent Discharges“ * ilr Fair 4,826 3,399 9,372 
2-yr Change in Equivalent Discharges” wk w it ‘lr * Excellent 16.70 1.70 5.30 

Coding 8: Billing 
Change in Medicare CMI % * Poor -7._20_ 2 2.60 
Medicare CHI '1! Poor 1.2044 1.3859 1.6193 

CC! MCC Capture Rate .* * 11: Average 60.65 58.01 62.01 
MSDRG Family Reporting Rates - Pneumonia i- ! 1|: Average 0.92 0.89 0.91 

MSDRG Family Reporting Rates - Heart Failure it uh * 11' Gerard 0.95 0.92 0.95 
MSDRG Family Reporting Rates - Sepsis it Poor _ _ 0.58 0.74 0.78 
MSDRG Family Reporting Rates - Major Joint Hip/Knee * it it 1k * Excellent 0.14 0.05 0.06 
Short Stay - Chest Pain NM. 66.70 60 
Short Stay - Congestive Heart Failure ii 1* it Average 11.80 13.30 13 
Short Stay — Back Pain iv Poor 50 0 30.80 

Short Stay : 695199999999 1* .909- 29 29 ...._3§-__29_-- 
Overall Short Star (995 :9 ._ * vi * * 9959 1929 - .29.. 29-99 
Overall Short Stay (L05 <=_2) 5t- * Fair 53.10 49.60 47.20 
Inpatient Outlier Payment % ‘1" t it all ill Excellent 0 0.40 1.10 
Change in Relative Wt (5M1) % ah i ii vi: 6000 11 4.30 780 
Avg Relative Wt per Outpatient Visit (5M1) at t it 1|: 11 Excellent 13.2071 7.4227 9.0131 
NCCI Error Rate 9'0 ii Poor 2.4044 0.1287 0.1168 
Injectable Drug without Administration % WA 7.10 9.80 
Add-on Code without Parent % “18 2.99 3530 
Potential Excessive Payments % sir i at ir it Excellent 0 0.3842 0.3541 
Average ED Level t 11: it Average 3.851 3.807 3.904 
Average ED Payment 1: * 1: Average 3621‘ 3451' 3591 
Pricing 
Hospital Charge Index® _ _ _ N/A 101.70 105.40 
Average Charge per Medicare Discharge [CMI = 1.0)* all 1k it it it ExceIlent 17,899 25,249 28,769 

Average Charge per Vlsit (v = 1.9)* a it a. t 9 Excellent 239 595 494 
Routine page Rate" _ ii: * Fair 2,332 1,664 2,003 
Chest X 7 Rayi71020) * i ii i it Good 305 393 399 
Non - Govt.Payers % * Poor 15.10 21.70 23.40 

_M_ark_up(_Cha_rgesf Cost) 11 it it all it __Exce|lent 2.27 3.55 3.59 
Deduction % air air 1|: 1|: * Excellent 56.40 71.59 73' 
Net been Revenue per Equivalent Dischargem‘“ iv 9., Fair 7,999 9,467 9,994 



Hospital Dashboard Report 
Prosser Memorial Hospital 
(9 Copyright 2020 Cleverley 81 Associates. All Rights Reserved. 

Cost Position 

Hospital Cost Index® 
Average (Zest Per Medicare Discharge (CMI = 1.0)_* 
Average'Ctist per Visit (RW = 1.0)* 
Direct Cost per Routine _D_ay* 

Direct East per ICU/CCU Day* 
Overhead Cost “(0 

Capital posts per _Equiva!en_t Discha_rge"“* 
Average Cost per Equivalent Discharge?“ _ _ 
Average Cost per Equivalent Discharge (Exci Subprovlders 31 
non-reimbursablesi‘”* 
Labor Casts 

Net Patient Revenue per FTE“ _ 

Men-hem Per Esuiyalsnt 0137:3090" 
Physician§est per Eguivalent Discharge‘"* 

Salary Per FI‘E‘f 
Fringe Benefit 91: 
Supply Costs 

Avg Pharmacy Cost per Medicare Discharge (CMI_ = 1.0) 

Avg Medical Supply Cost per Medicare Discharge (CMI = 1.0) 

MSDRG 7.:‘17 WWW c.0575 
MSDRG 470 Supply Cost 
MSDRG 244 Supply Cost 

MSDRG 330 Supply Cost 

MSDRG 194 Pharmacy Cost 

MSDRG 603 Pharmacy Cost 
MSDRG 392 Pharmacy Cost 
MSDRG 690 Pharmacy Cost 
Service Intensity 

Avg Lab Eostper Medicare Discharge (041 = 1.0)* 
Avg Radiology Cast per Medicare Discharge (CMI = 1.0)* 

Medicare. 9951.931 5 m). .. " _ ' 
Ancillary (lest per Medicare Discharge (CMI = 1.0)* 
Non Operating Income 
Days Cash on Hand 
Investment Income f Investment 9’0 
Portfolio in Equities % 

Investment Efficiency 

Days in AIR 
Inventory] Net Patient Revenue % 
Revenue} Net Fixed Assets 

Plant Obsolescence 

“339‘? “‘9‘? 910.30". 
2-yr Change in Net Fixed Assets 

Capital Position 
Long ‘i'en'n Debt/Equity % 
Average Cost of Equity % 
Times Interest Earned 

Debt Financing % 

*3. 
* * * *  
H 

*3 *_  
3 * * * *  
t i t t  
*iririr 

i t  
*‘kiri‘k 

***** 
i i i i i  

* * *  

* * * *  

* * * * *  

in! 
*1! 
in: 
fi'k‘k 

* * i * *  
* i i  
*irir 

i i i  

*‘k 
*‘kfi'i'fi 
i fi i fi i  

* *  
* i r ‘ k i  

* i i  
*1. 
i i i  
i i i :  

Fair 

Good 

Fair 

Average 

Exceflent 

Good 

Good 

Fair _ 

Excellent 

Peer 

Excellent 

Excellent 

Average 

Good 

Poor 

Excellent 

Fair 
Fair 
Fair 
Average 

Poor _ 

Excellent 
Average 
Average 

AVE ra ge 

Fair 

Excellent 

Excellent 

Fair 

9909 

Average 

Fair 
Average 

Average 

FEDS-Hf Hen-Infill Humtnl 
[50 1 3 I 1'] 

MA 

3222 
89 
759 
W 
.39 
254 

3,173 
6,471 

191,391 
0.0+ 

1,091+ 
oi 

0.0+ 

591 

419 

N/A 
3,531 
N/A 

1,033 
794 
934 
340 
543 

723 
14.7. _ 
2.60 
4,023 

MA 
MA 

62 
0.70 
4.37 

17.30 
6.50 

26.10 
6.30 
3.30 
32.50 

levnnuu: £15 - 1'5 

Hulrnn [RENE-01] 

104.90 
3,162 

9'? 
_ 612 
1,036 

36 
669 

9,667 
7,932 

135,573 
93.70 
252. _ 

74:43.0 
23.40 

547 
577 

2,951 
5,570 
4,942 
1,360 

741 
591 
515 

433 
240 
2.60 

4,030 

10 
2.20 
N/A. 

52 
2.10 
2.51 

11.10 
-4._60 

3.70 

5.0+ 

2.80 

42.60 

in: us. {5100001 

100 

2.0.56 
93 

593 

1,111 
34 

697: 
9.955 
7,352 

207,936 

83.50 

392 

24.951. 
24.50 

623 
733 

3,216 
5,335 
5,156 
2,069 
663 
766 
614 
542 

427 
233 
3-79 

4,111 

2?- 
2.20 
N/A 

52 

2.55 

11.50 
-1.20 

13.20 
5.20 

33.80 





Introduction 
For more than 70 years, Prosser Memorial Health (PMH), a rural, 25-bed critical access 
hospital, has served Prosser and its surrounding communities. After years of enthused 
community-led fundraising, PMH's rich history began in 1945 when construction crews broke 
ground on the 19—bed facility. Two years later, on December 26, 1947, Prosser Memorial 
Hospital opened, dedicated to the memory and service of World War l l  veterans. 

This modest, small-town hospital blossomed into a community-focused center for exceptional 
medical care serving thousands of patients every year. Our care and provider base scope 
includes family medicine, advanced surgical care, laboratory, state-of-the-art diagnostic 
imaging, obstetrics, and emergency care. 

Today, the hospital's facilities are dated and not fully compliant with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. Building a new facility is a more cost-effective approach than renovating the 
hospital. We have land for a new hospital. We plan to sell the existing grounds and facility. 

Our Mission 
Prosser Memorial Health will improve the health of our community. 

Our Vision 
We will become one of the top 100 Critical Access Hospitals in the country through the 
achievement of the following Pillars of Excellence. 

Our Six Pillars of Excellence 
#1 Patient Loyalty: PMH will provide outstanding customer service, aspiring to treat those we 
serve the way they want to be treated. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve a patient satisfaction rate of 95% or higher. 

#2 Medical Staff Development: PMH will respond to the Medical Staff concerns and needs in a 
timely manner, pursue initiatives in collaboration with our Medical staff and ensure the 
availability of the appropriate providers for those we serve. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual Medical Staff satisfaction rate of 90% or 
higher. 

#3 Employee Development: PMH will encourage and provide for the ongoing development of 
our employees. We will provide an atmosphere that values our employees and promotes: 

a Open Communication. 
Competitive wages and benefits. 
Selection and retention of effective, caring personnel. 
Utilization and development of talent throughout the organization. 
On-going education. 
Employee recognition. 

GOAL: PMH will achieve and maintain an annual employee satisfaction rate of 90% or higher. 

0 Prosser 
Memor ia l  Heal th Fnununtmn 2 



#4 Quality: PMH will deveIOp and maintain a system of continuous improvement which is 
incorporated-into the daily work of every employee and Medical Staff member. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve an iVantage score of 49 or higher. 

#5 Service: PMH will develop and maintain appropriate facilities, technology and services to 
meet the needs of those we serve that includes building a replacement facility. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve a 50% market share of our great community for those services we 
provide. 

#6 Financial Stewardship: PMH will continue to strengthen its financial stewardship position to 
enhance the ability to develop new services, obtain needed technology, modernize facilities, 
recruit physicians and ultimately ensure long-term viability. 
GOAL: PMH will achieve an annual total margin of 6% or more. 

PMH Stats & Impacts 

. Major Employer 
400+ Full Time Employees 

4 $35,300,000 Salaries & Wages 
n Compensation multiplies throughout the area spent on groceries, dining, retail 

goods, services, vehicles, and more! 

Hospital Admissions 
Category Growth 

Hospital Admissions and outpatient services have consistently increased since 
2015. Infant births have increased by nearly 24%. Adjusted patient days that 
include inpatient and outpatient services combined have more than doubled 
since 2013. We have grown our active medical staff 66% since 2017. 

All statistics are 2020 budget or annualized. 

C; Prosser About the Foundation 
i Memoria l  Health Foundation 3 



The Prosser Memorial Health Foundation pursues, receives, and administers donations and 
gifts for PMH. The Foundation supports and enhances healthcare for the Lower Yakima Valley 
and the surrounding region. The Foundation assists with new equipment purchases, funding for 
scholarships, building projects, and other organizational advancements. 

The Foundation has several designated funds. The Wayne Hogue Capital Fund will “host” gifts 
for the new hospital. 

' — The Wayne Hogue Capital Fund: Financial support for 
staff training, hospital equipment, and facility 
improvements, including building the new hospital. 

Wayne, a generous philanthropist and businessman, 
leads by example. As a past Chairman of our Board of 
Commissioners, he used his many resources and 
talents to improve the high-quality healthcare we enjoy 
today. 

' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' '  

Wayne believed for fundraising, "You just have to ask." 
The Hospital and Wayne's objectives are well-aligned for the best options and treatment with 
advanced technology and resources delivered in an inviting environment. 

Community support from businesses, individuals, and foundations for the new hospital will be 
administered through this fund. 

Our Community Need 
Before the COVID-19 pandemic, PMH grew at a rate of 10% each year for the last four years. We 
have expanded service lines, purchased new equipment, and added clinics and providers to our 
team in response to community needs. Today it is clear we must continue to grow and respond 
to the increased demand for high-quality, low—cost healthcare in the communities we serve. 

Our patient count from both east and west of Prosser continues to grow. Patients have changed 
their healthcare provider because they trust PMH, and they know they will receive excellent care 
with dignity, respect, and optimism. 

Our current facility is from a post-World War II era with many renovation and expansion rounds 
to stay current. Unfortunately, we have run out of room to expand the hospital at its current 
location. The facility is not ADA compliant and struggles to meet state and federal regulations for 
hospitals. 

The hallways are narrow, operating rooms are too small to contain all the new equipment needed, 
with no private rooms for inpatient care. Also, the lack of parking and treacherous winter 
conditions while navigating the hill upon which the hospital sits add to the inconvenience. 

'1 (.5 Prosser 
Memorial Health Foundation 4 



The Way Forward 
This is How We Care is not merely a PMH slogan; it is our way of life. We are committed to 
delivering high-quality healthcare. To serve our community now and well into the future, we plan 
to build a new hospital off l-82 and Gap Road. PMH purchased 33 acres there in 2017. 

Since 2017, we have worked closely with the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) 
on the extensive application process to secure a loan. The USDA approved our pre-application 
in 2019, which included a site visit to our current hospital. They agreed, PMH requires a new 
facility to care for patients. 

With the USDA loan PMH will not bring a levy or bond to voters to fund this project. The 
architect and construction consultants project we would open the doors to the new hospital in 
early 2024, following the hospital’s 75th anniversary in 2023. 

The USDA loan requires community support as a component of the loan. To demonstrate 
substantial community support. We anticipate needing to raise $5 million dollars from the 
community. 

Preliminary Cost and Revenue Projections 
Estimated USDA loan proceeds $47,300,000 
Estimated PMH contribution $12,700,000 
Community fundraising goal $5,000,000 
Funding Total $65,000,000 

With the support and generosity of our community we will be able to build a state-of—the-art facility 
that will serve our needs for the next 100 years. 

a Prosser Preliminary Layout for a New Hospital 
Memorial Health Four-dat-an 5 



(This is a first phase draft. As the project progresses, we will share the most current 
renderings with our donors.) 

srm "awn mm _. t a  

Pub-4. “ In :  Lit-Juic" 

.. " _ SECOND noon 

NOTES 

5;. L Staff mun finumion I .  4.1.3443“; 5} 

:0 Em: 2. (318:)! DEB ssh-{radium 
3. Good tulue 6mm mm. Eur [Dilmugnyiiugew 
4. Adnin {soft space: to: mama! dewtmem grown. 
5. Good mum correction pom: tor fuhm’.‘ MG‘B 

hm: Vu’cit‘rcuhfior. 6 .  HUB 1P U111? OW :57 M i d  35%. 
5'. Phtmxmy is hauled mis. urfixenl lo I? und IORP. 
8. Short waits to 0!! m m  5mm main entrance. 
9. Best opfior- for tuhxe Menttocm gum-rm. 

. Saturn, :- 

Sec 0’4 [ w  W4. 
Gus: "SJ“: rr'w- ’ - .nm‘rqu 
m m  ID 316.1% 

9mm c—l ' Mn,- 14 a w. 

(mum; far I.  tn- & rm: 

Gown may: . 6:312- Remus 

swam: 5‘4} 

CFC“ HKJIIBJ-“IE 
I ;  P " :  " 

4 %  
4 : 1 “ ) .  

FIRST FLOOR 

lu
l 

H
 i "

 

I 
I 

5W”?! I 2010 

0 Presser  
Memor i c t  Hea t th  Foundat ion 6 



Outcomes 
Prosser Memorial Health will be a Center of Excellence, providing high-quality, low-cost 
healthcare services to the communities we serve. This includes: 

0 State-of—the—art surgical suites and technology to respond to the needs in our 
community. 

0 New Birthing suites will allow for water-birth opportunities, enabling more flexibility to 
accommodate mothers' preferences in delivery. 

. All inpatient rooms will be a private room with amenities to accommodate family and 
support people for our patients comfortably. 

. 16% of rooms will be equipped for ICU, providing a higher level of care for our patients 
and keeping them close to home. 

. Expand the Cardiology Clinic to include cardiac rehab and pulmonology. allowing 
patients recovering from a heart attack or pulmonary issues to stay in Prosser for their 
rehabilitation. 

. A savings of 10 to 15 percent annually in utility costs with a new facility. 

. Expanded Emergency Department. 

. Medical Office Building for Specialists. 

Why a Capital Campaign? 
With most of the new hospital funding proposed to come from a USDA loan, some have 
questioned the necessity of a community capital campaign. A critical component of the USDA 
loan pr_ocess is to demonstrate communitv support for this proiect. The capital campaign is the 
most effective means to illustrate the engagement by our region's stakeholders. 

Campaign Oversight and Accountability 
The Foundation Board of Directors and Hospital Board of Commissioners will oversee the 
capital campaign initiative. The Foundation Executive Director Shannon Hitchcock and 
Foundation CFO Stephanie Titus will manage administrative support and financial reporting. 

{‘5 Prosser 
L4! Memorial  Health Founuatmn 



Thank You! 
We appreciate you reviewing this summary of our plan. Your thoughts and counsel about this 
exciting endeavor are essential. 

Prosser Memorial Health Foundation Board of Directors 

Officers 
President — Julie Sollers 
Vice President — Rich Legerski 
Secretary —- Lois Chilton 
Treasurer -— Evan Tidball 

PMH Staff 
Craig Marks — Chief Executive Officer 
Shannon Hitchcock — Foundation Executive Director 
Stephanie Titus — Foundation Chief Financial Officer 

Board Members 
Elisa Riley 
Emily Carl 
Frank Schroeder 
Glenn Bestebreur 
Keith Sattler 
Lisa Veloz 
Neal Ripplinger 
Stephen Kenny 
Susan Reams 

Q Prosser 
Memorial Health FDundihfifl" 



Attachment HH 

)Prosser  
Memorial  Health 

Interview Date: August 20, 2020 : : s r ) e6‘4'3‘p1'i’l'r. 5 :5 
Teams Meeting 

:5. Mann maparmwl 
Phone Number: gQQ- 336i" Ell-«H 

Email: ” E j m fi fl fi n fi  : S S Q D A  ( Q 1 ) !  , m g fi c a c  “Lona 

\ , \ - . 

Current Title: 5 x _ h—\ t . _ [  fll—{fl 3 ‘  «Ir-Ll t N + Q (  

Current Employment: . . u ' e. * as . n. 1 
r _ l 1. 

Areas of Expertise: 11 1.1:; _ .1 _ g l I_ _ \l‘t . u  I... 

INTRODUCTION: (Please tell us about yourself and why you believe you would be an asset to the 
Prosser Memorial Health Board of Commissioners. Please describe your current title, company and 
major responsibilities you are accountable for.) 

I bp\\£1__)0 MA: 3: xrcsomkb \QQ Och QSSPA' ”\h We: 
‘ I 0» CL A 

K K 

I ' .  'LI. I. L ' I  In. - ' _  . h L .  4... .1 I l l .  * 0  

.r J" fi ~  t. _ t I t  1. _ l. I I t “ .  _ ' I .  C LL95 .- 
1 I'- t r I 

II. _ - a! i ‘ - ‘ IE. . I  l t ‘  “I _ . ' ‘ l l n .  I_. - ‘ 3 '  ...'I-. g :  

\ 

t u. _ _ _ I l  l ' i. a t  "‘ ll. I. . I. I. 4-. '+ 
s - I: 

1'. ‘i n u n  r i l -  I l  J Y l - O  h I I  In. '1. 3- I L  i"----.ill.’ 8 



CAREER HISTORY: (Give a brief career history, naming key companies and industries you have worked. 
If you are responsible for revenue mention that here. Describe the groups you have led, major 
initiatives you implemented.) 

1 x I .I w. s ” ;  HI. \1... 9 

I l "  n f l c o . \ . i fl W ‘ Q 0 I g & | _ fl A _ G f e a 6  

n 

631% 
I .  ! L . .  ._ n (— III. I 

BOARD SERVICE HONORS SPECIAL SKILLS AND EDUCATION (1 PARAGRAPH} 
' I x  r + L.» ' I l ' r (  4 . . ! " . . a . 1 ‘ . l  D ’  “L‘- 

w r :  : ll.a..e.’.u’.‘I' - u 
" (zfidffl S Arte 7:; (31123 IMFQG‘I'é 

' 7 ‘ !  , " mI “j l .— My 0 %  .19: ~11 S S I M E  

” M I L  Mfi/Jl/I‘I‘ZPI 
‘ .  I at"  MMH‘IIEL "' + (”V KIA . 1 0 0  

Ballr: of Dmflo “(3 “CAI [cl/m5 MFAPMA W 

Please complete and return via email to Carol Allen, Executive Assistant, at Prosser Memorial Health, 
callenflgrosserhealthprg by Thursday, August 13. If you have any questions, please contact Carol at 
509—786—665 1. 



Attachment II 

Craig" Marks 

From: Kristi Mellema 
Sent: Friday, October 02, 2020 11:35 AM 
To: !All Staff 
Subject: COVID Stats 

Good morning — I’ve included some visual graphs regarding positive COVID tests that were done here at PMH. As you 
can see, there is steady decline which is great news! However, masking and hand hygiene continue to be a necessity. 
@ I’ve also included the Benton/Franklin graph at the bottom which also shows a decline for both counties. The 
health department did report this week that they have seen a little “bump” in positive tests the last week and a half 
which are being attributed to Labor Day weekend. 

You can always look at the Benton/Franklin COVID-19 Dashboard at 
httpszllwww.bfhd.wa.-gov[programs services/investigations outbreakslc o v i d-19/benton- franklin case count. 

Keep up all the great work that you do every day! You are appreciated!!! Thank you! 

it of Positive Tests 

-€‘2 ofPos-tareifats “Linear l_# of Fosztrve Tests} 



it of positive cases 

265 
zeo- 

15%} 

1E“?! 

58‘ 

M arch April Mary June Juiy Aug List Saatembfif 

—# of positiyecases 

A In, , . . ._ ._ 
1. _ "..._i 

— l  

Kristi Mellema, BSN, RN, CPHQ, Chief Compliance 8: Quality Officer 
Chief Compiionce 84 Quaiity Officer / Administration 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 
723 MEMORIAL 5T I PROSSER, WA 99350 
o: {509) 786 6646 
kmellema@prosserhealthprg | www.mosserhealthorg 

“ (J Presser 
Memorial Health 

This electronic mail message and all attachments may contain confidential information belonging to Prosser Memorial Health. This email may contain information related to performance improvement and peer review 
programs and is therefore confidential and protected under RCW4.24.250, RCW 70.41.20!) and EH31711. This information is intended ONLY for the use of the individual or entity named above. If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution (electronic or otherwise), forwarding or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this informatiou is strictly prohibited. If you have received 

2 



Attachment 1] 

m Marks 
‘ _ 

From: Kristi Mellema 
Sent: Wednesday, October 07, 2020 2:11 PM 
To: !All Staff 
Subject: Employee Flu Shot - REMINDER 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 

Employee 
Flu Shots 
Octoebr 1.2; 
7:35 AM - IOL‘UG AH 

ctober '13 ' 
3:30 PM — 5:39 pm 
October 23 3 
7:30 AM - 9:30 AM 

Vineyard Conference Roan 

***EMPLOYEE FLU SHOTS WILL BE DELIVERED TO THE PRIMARY CARE CLINICS AND WOMEN’S HEALTH CENTER THIS 
AFTERNOON! 



Get a Flu Shot During COViDflQ! 
Flu vaccine is llllfilill to hllp prim-mt illmu during the pandmic 

bill“? I. in“? 1": .I’Iril the maxim: *u an till Hflflrfi  Lmu‘trum r Put  *13 rd ll'l‘1l' L; fair-m t‘fliifii 
a}: in." til-rt 1r-rrrw-II-“1 an.“ Hun-- hl’l 'Wu Mr! ulsfl fur-'11. pt! Pul- FL. uh I" #41 ind-ru- hi1”. til—.7!!!" 
man-T.-r_~r.r-va;'u.r11u {Hr-rm If ENE: 79 Tun-nu Hun-1! ILIrEr-n uni-‘1 puma-«J m4. r d  113;; Emil uni-1 r-d chi; 

1:!" war firm-Ha til-6‘11- rm waded mu»: kw winner -I DIE-2TH: [SI-:- 11” nu: tr; mar:  m Emma-kc: 
'I-‘i'lrt iii-l: w‘n'm‘ *2: tr: 1m: .1 F ;  the! Ina-111:! I'll-Jr r1.- 

“ ' 3 “ ! q  

E M .  “ 3  ”it. I JIT mem- 
fi firmer-v. i f  nu: #1:: (HI-II“ run-:11. a 
+1.... maxi-'1: tad- TIE-at TE:  mum: 
F fiw f  rum-ir- .r-J LII-09M up 2" 

{ e u  run-411*: (mu-Herr. 

“ fi l m c W - i w  

m g m .  ' mm; m 
m u f f - I t  Hum: currwgur 

{new urn-J" "an: N "that?- - 

Elmira-magnum I, 
-mtfififlm. r a. mu“: .1” i" 
7: «311.? an”. -'*_'qrr-:;| L;- mu run-I I n  .1 
{Ff-.1: -_ r’ul'r-c: III-i" rib-f 

W W W  5.1:. r. 
an: I: ” i f  k m  N W :  war 

-"I i 't-fli 1"".- *I'eH" 

m ” M  ii. LIME-Jr'- 
ninth-fit '4': it i r2;l"*r"|"1...|-."1!-.-1,.;- 

” *l- ”'11“ I:I_fll‘ in“ i 1  -1_ 1" - “l [ll 

'Ifl-LL f‘il'l'ii ELI-L?- I”! " a m “ ? !  I ' fl  

1F: fl-rfuflrr: r‘flfl‘ L‘i'fi- “-11— H I  

‘ l f z i r h !  y'r‘F-i I'Lt-FL'. f f -  

W W W “  War- To: 
“Hr-J‘- sfllm w ”  Lil-fl: if“! nifflb‘ # 3 . ?  

:2: m:- “.r d war-rm C any! 1.1m 
LUJ‘I-u r d  Erna-trite n 1“ an! 
wilt-nu. -'.r an t 1:”: 

wsmimmwmnmm M i m m r w - m  
'nn " u  mart  did-7F". “am at ans-.1. "arr 1:4 an: new and 
Flt-1” .rn Lit'h mm :1". H... 'rJ- we...” 
1fu1d qr! III-Ina! 1‘1 r! {2’1}!!- t": rr: 

of {bunt-r rm: wanna: we:  Wm 
r:-Ir l-i‘truv'; m ,  u I c-H'ef [ran-Eta" 

m w m . F i J w I — L a rfi  M W I W M M E E  
haw l'flIU'UJ La‘rl. 'tccru Hahn- 
n :  ma: rant. I'm-man turn-1i - 5’ 
r: Hui-1 n; a th- ins—'hrrn wri- fin: 

tw- fl‘flk in!!! '11:?“ “Mar 
W W W  m:- w 'b'lctffiqllld I“ ml 

inn-rt Hunt in“: rt Luella. an m 

ru: Dim-Jr rfi-taatti-f 4" r13- 
e-w.mrn an. I: .Wfrftffi'fl. cf 
ruwn ‘J 114 Ma run: an“ 
”Lunar- H} uni-cunt Hm hr: 
flirt-“H7, tame: Damn-u for {Crrfl- I'J 

t a u — u m n m c — u u m m n n — u I - n n — " h  “ m u n - I n n  
.J' “ fl m m l u fi - m — fi j h — fl w h w u fl m fl  ” i t “  

“ m a m a - m n b m n w  fi fl fl h m — n h fl l fl l m w  m 
m m m n m '  m a m m w n l “  

='==. " a 5  

Kristi Mellema, BSN, RN, CPHQ, Chief Compliance 8: Quality Officer 
Chief Compliance & Quaiity Officer I Administration 
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 



A
ttachm

ent KK 
2°“mo o~o~.om.mo: 

Exam; mpg—2.5“. n=>Ou 

IIHIIIII H 
23.33.. m 4.8.3:... m. 2.324 m «$43.2 .. 233 

._Lm r m . m 43.3 m 835%.... emfimm .. «58...... :o_.m~...nfim mu... 2:05. 
in. . m 4.34.... m. - m Snag. 33.. M. ...:m ...3 $5.42: 

Encfifiu:¢uzh91htlzltt.ttrz 
._.. 

.....H...HH...__ 
....H_...:..:. :2... 

I...=.:—_:.: 
......H _._.. 

. 

_._...J......_1_.... ..Ha... 
.... ...... ....n..............o........... 

.... 

. 
... r... - m 98.84.... m 283$ “.8603 m “55...... 3.2.3 9.: 

I4... 1...... 
.....1... 

.3 ......._._....n........ 
.....................”... 4%.. .... t... - ... $32 4 . m 23Q $38 m Ems}... 3.35.5. “I: 

.... ........_.............:.... 
...“...I 2...... 

.....mM. ._..... 
........ 

... . Em. - m 83.3 m - m 802Q 93.03 m .55).... 3.255 m1... 

- . E... 
.... .. ....I 

...- .. ......I.:. 
......_........ 

_._..a... 
_. ....IE... 

._.".m - m Sud.“ m . m 3833 Sim... m EmE>mn m.._..E_.m m1... 
.. . 

.. .. ......Hq... 
......H... ... ... .. 

. . .. . Em. o m mwmdN m aSQNNHm Namdm m “25.3%.. .0 5582.8. :85 18...... 33.3.2 .1. ._..-......t 
lr!.!.!.:.£..:.. _._.. .- ...r......»1................— 

.36.. 
u”... 

...-...... 

..‘I...— 
H; ._.—Hg. in... ...—.... 

. 93...... L2... -. ....... 
...... 1L 

_ 

_ 
F...H.....1.E.._.....E.._..=..E_.E...._J..H_ 

......ItEH 
. .rH 

... 

................H....?....1...:..........._........E._._................... 

..H.H...... 
_._.. ... .. .... . 5......._._._......_.. 

.. £.........a....fl....._ 
v9.6 . m . m 08.8 m 88:2... 26.8 m 5.5.... 52.82.22. ...... ....2 «19.5 

.... ......4... ...... ._... ._..... .... .. .__.: ..........H .... ....- 
. H. 

.. . E... 
. m $4.9. m - m 2.8.83 34.9. m . Eaeaamasefi «.... 

1... 
... ...... ........4..._.In......._..i jun......x 

..._..... 
. . . ...m. - m 3383 m Beak... m 22.6.... ”2.9:... 4 SEE... ...... 

...... 
.. .... .n. Err... .... .. .... 

. . . 
.. .33... 

...ucsu 3:2... 52.6.... $.20 
57...... 

... ....._..._..........__.._....:...........1t........ 
.rw.:3:._-...u. 

._..—.__.... n. _._....Jfiun 
...-L ._._.—... 

.34“; .31.. 
......r. ...... .ur..- rib—._.... n... .. 

.... _._.. 
2.5.... . . 

. 
- 

...._ 
Eu - .... mm~.omm.m m - m 22.3.... mmwdmmd m :8. “$5298 5.332.. =22... 3...... =8. Esme... 5.632.. :23. «mm .5... m... 

. 
......c..............._....._1...;._h.....—.....___ 

a... ......u .1. 
r ...... . 

.... -_. .........._ 
._... 

.3... ._..... 

. ... ....F....}...t._.l 

...J. 

.L. .....I..... ._.....1. 
......E...:.__....... 

.1... 
.... . ...— 

. 
....H._*_.. 

.I... 
._..:Hrh_....o..r..n 

_t ._.-._....1. 
......E. 

.... . ...... 
. 

pan“. 
I.....4.u..._.._ .- ...... uwfl... _._. ...... . Em - m - w Soda m 982e 80.3 m 53.. “35290“. 5.632.. :25... :93 can... .5335 23...... u.EocBm «mm .....mm m: 

. E - m - m BER ... 
. 

eggs... 33.x m .55.... 3.35.5. ...... 
”31.....1“ ..L....:... 

_.c...._.u.1ml.unp 
._.....pm.) 

t..—...u.LH__—_.. 
. 

int... .... ......u. 5...... ._.”... 
.....Ev...||r.. 
.... ......ur. 

.. . 
hm. ommqmmfi w - m . w 935.25. 8336 m flame)... 28.3.2 .0 85264 3.353 389?. 9.8.3.2 mEu 

.....vr 

..mF::n_...=.. _._....t...C..:_._....=...._£t.._5.....1...1.4.1.5..._. 
. 

hm - m - m 332. m 828$ ”8.8... m .525. 3.25.5 E... 

.....m. . m - m coed m owowxm? 8...... m “Eb 3050”. 9.... meta. 5.8... .o a.....3::8uq sneaou .335 
3...: .2 mafia... 5.53.3.1 5.85.8. 

332 $50 33 2.2::a «5:352. tmwmcmogx Foam 32. Ems... 303.... cozmuEmma 
”£05.... 3:23 EsoE< 

(5.00... .020s ‘1‘ .9305! 



N +0 H mama. 

.mmmoi 
atom... EtoEmz \J 

VK 
..._ 

EoEsumuE 

$93 a8... “$2 “an... 
. mama“ $3. “and $3- 

$9: 3985 “3.33” $93. 93.39.... 2.183. a . 
. 5336 a 5.3.3. 9 

gm..- imam: $3.3 .85- 32.2.: 93.2.. 3...?» 98.2.. «$3- $3.9... .mmN.mm. $92... 38.8. 23... 95.: 88.5: ma- am... 3333 id. .333 838$ 8863. SEE. 
mom- $84.3. magma 35:- 8%.“... 9:68 838 392” 
gm $3.3 34.8» $3- 53.. mmmdmm 03.3.. 83% 

$3... $983. 23%.: $92. «25m... $33... ”manna.“ $365 

5 Swim 333.3 3...» Bugs.“ 833.8 833.3 «3.8q 

.3. ago”. “36.8.2 .3... $135 «Rania $33.3 _ 232...: 
gm”- .mwwwwm. mmm.¢3.. 3...? 98.05 08.2.... $33.. 33%; 
E. Nam“ aafla $0 :. mote...“ 08.8.3 «3.9% 

o 3.3.... 
$3 @863 83mm 3...... 88.3 33m... 958... N53... «R- .332. $303 $3. $3.: 3m.mmm.m 3.4mm...“ 33...... mm- $3.8: «3.81m 

exam; 3:3. 333m 33%.... 3.38... 
Km $0.3 omwfim $3 2...? Show... $53. 30.3... mm 83$ mama.“ 

a... v.9. $9.t @853...» 3.....o mm 32.6 
0%.“. .mfiefl. mans.“ oxen... 26.8 Emmvm «$68 8...?“ gm ~33. 213m... 

0.. to. manna. £3.25 £0.23... Satin 

x... mass 893q «ad 3568... 833.5 «Sauna» 595......" .x: $53 Rims.“ $0.2- .E.%$ $9.53 $33.” 
_ 

”8.2% $5 53: $386 $3 $3.8 83%... $0.08.... $33.... .3 23mm moimmman $3 8°55 8&8m www.mhvgm 832.3 

am“ “Kane“... ”8685 .3“... «meat.» 53%.; «5.3.98 3.5.2.3... x3- .SNSN. 33mm 3.5... 28.0%. 83.3.. «$.83 £35.. 
madam... mmwdmma 

806 08.... 
8».d 83%... 

an- 532...... 3181...... «on... $55.... 83t 232.9. 833.5 
:3. magma: 8131mm #3: $33.: «2.3m...» ”Sagan 5.55.8 3.» R3: $5.83. «on... 3...»? mrvdmu... 838... gamma.“ :3 2063 93.33 

oi? 83% 538a «mafia; wmmdotm 
:3. 533.3. 3133.: «on: 8:312 339...... 33.2...» Raga... 
$3“. .233. R33... $30 «8.3.. mmw._.m~.m 33%... 

$38.? 
$2.. $352.... ommiqfi £5“ E. 2E... mR. Soda $3 2...: 8m...» 5: 
gm..- Rommmmw. momgmdm $93 m :33 Bodega «$51....» m» P. r 5.2.. 
:2. .omm.mmm.m. mmmdmmfim $3: . 5.8m... «868.? €hmmm..§ www.mmmdw 

.30.. 
«U 
n... 

:2. $2.33: mumfinmafi $3.. 89.5%? 8386.... 55..a 53%.»: 
gmfi- 3852.3. $33.8.“ $93 8.2.8.9 ommdmmfifi 338...? 332.3 .3. .mwmgmd «@533 .8... Egg aging www.mmmNm mango...“ 

3% 3.8.2... 9.3a 53:... as” 339.. $8 $33 

mzo...<w_m.n.o ".0 .Fzmfim..<._.m 

59m: .23.. 
59%: mew—Ewan" 

Ammo... 
2:35 32 

wEboE 55.330 .52 .So... 
nmmcmaxwv 9.5.30 :oz 550 

Amazonxm. 5225 
2:85 .3582. 

$3.356”. Km._. 

2:3... 55:22.0 :02 

$3... «Eco... 3:930 

320a 9.29.2.0 .23. 

mmmcmnxm. 534.52 .m.o._..n=w 
wmmcwaxm. 9.8.30 550 

co..m~....oE< w 5.5.8.80 
mmxm... w 3:8... 8:93... 

$26.. a. 9.“...c 
.550 - mmuEmw uwmmcoSn. 

8.....5 - mmuEmw uwmmcosn. 
3.395 

550 . wwwu. .mcofimmBE 
acm.o.mEn_ . mam“. 6:23.89; 

3.80 .33 3.35% 
.33 33:83. 

mEmcmm. 
marmfim 

mamcaaxm. 9.59.3.0 

$933.. .02 
03:96.”. m:..m.wa0 5:5 

“93.3.2 .o 82. EGmEn. 5.529;. .9303; 
m 5500 2 3:29 EEG EEO 

macs". .239. 9.... 

0==0>0m wag-(om ucfluan— ~02 

2:35: ES". 93.6330 .33 
.80 0mm. 

Emu 3...s 
«3526...... $302.50 39.0 

$58.33 550 
32mm. uw.m_.ommz 

28.3.2 
98.8.2 

«.3532? .mfiumbcoo 

0:296."— mqom Earn... 3.20 .53. 
E25330 

Egan... 
355mm. muuiuw Emanu— 30.5 



N we N a»: 

3“...m amvxm “8mm mmom mama.” Rowan. an: $8.3. Rama“ R33 mama. mmvw- Rum.» Emma 3232 “$3 mam §m.- amvww. “$3 3%.? $03 modem mas? 3mm. “83 
Sagas 8336 2.33 2:.q macaw? amnmfii 81$" 23.q mamas.” E68 326“: E12: Sada 

$3.3m mums... mun? mwmae was... mafimm Edam mama: “3.3 33m 33.... $3» 318 
mama 83 mi.“ 35 - 83. - 33.3. $3” 8m - . am“. 
$3.33 33.3 :33 $33 833 35$. $8.2m. fiatmm. A833 .833 .333 :32. $3.3. 33$ 83 8o.” 83 N3...” 83 mam “3.2 Hmmfi 08.3 93.3 $8.2 Ema” 
mafia Hoods 30.2 “8.9.. wfidm 58.5.. 23R «.32 www.mo Human Ems.“ mmmfim 9%.: 

manna: $336 £3.q 93.3. 29.33 686%.: $33 3153 338.” £558 :5m 33.2”: 23: 
a S H mo SH ”.83 Rm. 3 "“3. 

“.9d 
«mam. wvom ”a no u name“. Rune H maven 

333.8 333...” 335m $53.... ”8.3!... 838$ Shaw} 3133.. finance 213$ 233$ $33.». 3.3m} 
“an- mam «mm. mm. m8“. m3 ”aw «an m. a» H . Ru- E. who am 

Em.2m.- Guam; Saga.” mafia." 333a “5.3m.“ 2133 53.33 :38.” 23mm." 368a «2.83 33mm.“ 
£6.35 33$ 83““ 83$ 332 31% 8mg” Emma”. ~33 mamam $33 Emma #33 

98.9.3 33% mvmdmu 3.0.52 R32 mmamn 83mm 33% wqmdmn $.33 0362 $3.2 “ENS 
mmmdmm 02.m 3.3m 83m 33... ~33 mmmdm mmm.mm 83m 83m man...» mm~.mm oqm 

mmmdotw 93d mhmamfi mnmdwfi flaw: :8.m $3: $33 $32 33$ 33.9 .83: 3:3 
$0.83 30.0% $.32 93.0mm mfidfl 23mm .3d www.mmm $33 33% mmndmm 33% 83mm 
833 $93 mum? $93. mach 33m Hmodm mwmdq Rm? 25m BN8 mmmfiu 2%.? 833.... «8.3m «8.9% wmmmmm #38 dfi 8.“..m mafia». 239. max“... £33 335 «3.3m awake. may... mommy,» 3q Emu: $8.23 33% $3.”. Sod... mm}... 30.2 www.mm 8mm“. 
8&8...” 8d 8d 89m ~wm.mmm 085% SEN.“ oedmwm 93mm mug? $33 8n mkamm 

3.... an “"9 and “.3 .«u. WV am. #2. «m .......n "an new 

muogfium $33.... R335 $33.». Hanan gamma «$.33 3.33.... mmm.~ma.m maveufi $3.83 31%; Sudan 
Rifle.“ 3mg emmsmfl Emma 35R 2%.: Samoa 333 “wwwfl mmm.$~ Btmmm Rama” 83m: 

2.355 mmmfimm mmmamm m3$m 83$ $0.8m $33 23:. $33 $d $33 333 «8.25 wovdmmdm m~m.mmm.~ omm.m...m.~ mmfi.ome.~ mmm.~om.~ madman” mmw.~3.~ oatmmmfi Swag.” mnofimqm $0.8m.” 

an: $2M 

it i... L. {m en. . 

. _ .II. . 
1f,.....r..rh.|.‘l. 

nvfi.mvm.w 

kw- .om 

mmfimnmfi 
mm 

”mm EH ".53 3m name a“: m m. an a»; n Ema 
3968.2 «3.35.: v~m.wnn.m www.mmwfi cutwu 5“ «3.2.66 39.3.».6 95636 @858..." 39636 w..~...ne.m 3:686 ~3.mmm.m 83% 83m: 21? NS? ~mn.~ma 31mg «9.3 mmmdm mmmdm flag :3.“ 34.3 94$ 

33%.». mm~.omm.m 333?... 20.3 33%.“ mfiwmm.“ 83 . 8nd 
momfihmd 83.2. £993 33? 80.83 anaemia $33 «3.83 *8 Row an... awn awn *3 Run awn mum 35m and “an 

8.33% 833$ $3.33 89.3% fitmmmm magma... «8.39m manna mama... Begum 33mm... 333.1 93.8% 
.3 53...? «flank $133 $4.55.» @8536 “$.33 33%;. mamas «mamas 332...“. $336 Swag “3.35 E. 53. R33 $3.? www.mom 23mm 33mm mmmamfi 8.3% 83% $33 wwwflm 33.3 83% 
8m.m5.~ Ewdwm Riva N268 mmmfin 23k 25% $33 $6.3 Rad: $0.2: BEEN match 

3 59.9.. £386 £386 $38K 3.3a 23a 33min $133 3.3%.". 23.36 «$.39... 3.5.33. «$.23 End»? 83% Spam” comma 5382 $0.8... 33mm gamma swim... New? 23% $33 832 
83. :3. F «$.83 93d madmwm.“ EQmfia mmwfiea mmmfimma m2.wmn.H $334 ”mnmmm 83mg Swamma “$.23 

833.8 mmwawtm momdofim madam E33.” mom.m¢m.~ mfidflfi mqnmqa 3.3mm; 838a H333 33$.” mafia.” 89.9.3.8 www.mmm.~ 33mm." omm.H~m.~ $334 9.3.33 www.mfifi ~mm.flo.~ 33$; mmflmmm Emfiwa 832.” mmmdmmfi 

. .2 L. .1. Ju. 
.r... Fm- Hum. 

.22“. “mm. 3.1.. mm? 3v “mm 
in I; .1. I. .._. vm- fin. v.2 

- .3? “an? £3- we...“ 
.3 

5...... mm. 3m- ..... f . ..u. gem" We .95 n. LE. 
.on- “.q Wow. 

3&3».v 3123.2 mmm.~me.~u emfihmmfi Saga”: 98.9».2 335.2 mem.¢o~.~u magnum www.mmme $33.: gimmifi Hammad" 
$3852 33%... 3&d 932.3 Smamhm $38.3 239.5 3335 83%... ”5.33 mmm.mmw.w $33.6 833.8 «@638 $.3a 832.... mmvflfi mmo.mmm.~ SHEEN mowdndm mmm.~g.m mmmdmmfi $33.” 3m.mmw.~ H8636 39.3.3 

a. 
.maEmuua .3533. $235 ban—£33m “Quad 2.... 

2:... is. =54. 552 E35”: >533 

59%.. E0... 
593: act—tuna. 

3.3.: 
«Eon... «a: 

0E3... 3:230 .62 Ea» 
$2.3m 9:930 :02 550 

Amwcaaxmv 3995 
9:8:— E9533 

2.53”. x8. 
083:. 959.30 .52 

fined ~53... 9:39.30 

nonconxm 95225 .23. 

mmmcoaxw 693.82 _Eo._.-n_:w 
mmmcmnxw mcumhmao .650 

:ozmnioEa. a. cosmfimamo 
mmxmk w 3524 8:935 

.833 a 225m 
.550 . 822mm nommcusa 

3:55 . 323% 3222:; 
mm=aaam 

550 . m8”. .mc2wm29a 
mcflofimcm . mam“. $358.65 

$30 .33 _Eo._..n:w 
.83 38:93 

flcwcmm 
marmam 

«magnum acafiuno 

3:26.: 52 
03:93". 9:930 EEO 

3.8522 3 #s £99.; 53885 9.85%.". 
@5500 2 new? 9520 550 

was“. $58". m1: 

9:531 3329.... Ewan; “a: 

355m E9."— mccauauon .50... 
Ema tam 

Emo 5.:c 
mmu=u30=< Hausa—.00 39.0 

wgcmfiwmau/x .550 
mag—mm “.05:n 

238.2 
98622 

moo—.96.? 333350 

03:30”... 3323 Ema—E $20 35... 
E25230 

20:35 
9533. 32390.. Egan. $9.0 



Dmomxmfixoa 

n-I-II‘. 

-..: n. .. _ 
.1 - ...—.... 

.133... 
....m...3.£.._~..:.._ . 

.....Laz? 

...... ......) 
.....r. 

_u._.:..3:. 52.... ......E: E: +........._..,. E: ... .5 Raw... .1 

m ...u ..E. 5:: ...... 
7.235.... ....c... ......E ...:r... :2: ... . .. 

.2.» ......m... .....z: .3 4.5.; 3...... ....»i: .33. . . . 

|._.__... 
51.5.1.4... ......3. ...... “ta... 
.....E. ......réw 1.5.... 

..li. .. 

1 ..- ....E....::..=: .r....+i.__:.....c.......1....:..::... 

...-..Vtcrgu 

..m 25...... 

......Z... .2: ...: 4.15.. 
._n......_... 
it“; 9:52;... 2. I... ._ ...: tn... 5...: ..wfiiiflwln. 

13mg“.NH...“.........I.H.........m1.fl..........~w..... 

F5 .5: a... 1.3.... ...:E? ....u.<.wx<~..;: tun-.....wl .4 .. .... 

...... 
............:...._: 

”...? _.n-...._. 

3...; 42...: tr? ...... 
12.15; ... 

1...: "titer; ..1. 

.. .... 
||I|:I.II! ..I.|I..|:il..:1|.l.1!-..I-II.-l|._. Ila—...!) 

n... .... .... Er... ......;....£.... ...... ......E...... ..u 

2.3351; .33. ...... .. 
1...; “...—...... 

“..tuhés ESE @111... 

3...... ......E .. ...... ... ..oa.._........,.. ......a..:..... .... _ .. ........I.- . 
-fiKE 

. ....m Ears... .....s . fl... .. . 
...:...... a: a... may... ....... 5...... 5:5 c...........:.mv ......3 

.... .5574...“ “.1... 

...... ._..._._.._... 
...... t... :22... .....3..:........ 1...... 

.a: ...... 5...... .m'fiulbw. 3:.— It}... 
4%..A_:.xu_.Hu1/. 

Arr/..— 
t. C..T.....i..u 

___g._| 

1.5.... .I 

...Hi...t..2..a.......t=.§ ...... ESE. .....ca. 
...... ......w 

... 
.......__ ...... 

.... 

...... .. 
......n I 

.....i. ...: 2... t: . ..._r:. 
3. c....5r..c_ 

......— 
.._.. .2459... 

F. ..........:. ......1... 9...... EFF. 52.: $34.3. 
......._... 

......_ .11.... .........._..._5: k 3.1.5.. we. 
amt—...... 

...... _E:C ”rm. ...... tn Jill...l.....II.I.....:III.-lfl1 ultllutnil.l.lll:.lll.lllflu. 

......30. ...... ...... EC. 2... ...l..l......E....... t... ...... Jam—fl... 

- .c- 
.....G... «1...... t. 

(:77. 
...... 

5.5:... r,.t.._n.tc. 
Ev...” 

“anamxhwuv tan. a. . 

“3.55.5.5... 5...... ......» an...” .an.c...>cz 
E Ewe... fin. .. .r. 

...... 

..E v... 5.4.3.5 Sandi 
.. - .. :C..E>.. 

......iafi T.. 
.... .c... ... . 

“.302 BED 

c~o~.om.mo: .mxumfi. mcficzn— n__>0u 

$53.3 m 

5.0m: .o...oEmz 
..wmmoir 

ommmd m momfiwflm m Ewdmdm m 238. . 
Em - m . m gimm m own—“FE wmvfim m ..cmE...mn_ cozfimfiflm HE... 8:03. 
Em - m mmfimw m _. m omomxnmxn mmafim m n___._m Eon <32 «mm: 

Em 1 m ooodoma m. 03?.a 08.0c 
m .553; 335.5 mm: 

....m. - m mmmdofi m - m Omomxmmxm mmméfi w .583... «22:5 2.: 

Km. - m 23.03 
m - m QNDNBQm @363 m acacia; .3353 m1: 

Em - m 8...? m - m 2833 8...? m .55).... “225% m: I 

Km 0 m mmmdm m emomxwmxm ~mm.m~ m .65: 52... E 333258 :35 :85 28622 

v_um_ Iu - m. - m 
. 

98.3 
m 32:53 . 08.3 
m «1m? Ea... 329.3 mm... Ema. (19.5 

E. - m 83... m . m 883% 3......» m .52).... 8353 m1: 

.5 - m. KNEE m Sine...” m 8333 232.... m 5:82.... m 
=22. - E5. 3:3. $2.6... $5.5 

Em - m, mmmdmmd m . m owomxwxm mm~.omm.m m .83 325398 5:8o __o.>mn_ 3%.... :mo._ Emaoi c2330.... __o.>mn_ (mm mm m: 

t. - m - m 8...... m 9.289... 83: m :8. “352...... 5.632.. :92... :93 5.3 .3235 :2... £528.. 3... ....3 m... 

t. - m . m 31:.“ m 88:.q EAR m 23...... 335.5 2.... 

.Em owmémmd w - m . m 33.3%.. 93.3%.... 
m macmEEE €8.32 .5 85%... Enocwm 5852.2 93.32 min. 

Em . m - m 25.8... m 8.5q 83...... m .555. “335% mm: 

.Em . m . m 086 m omomxm? 986 m mat“. man—>8 2: meta“. 5:3: .owulzfimucaoaq 
msau .335 

3:2 .8 mafia... 538.39.. 5.8522. 

mm: EwE>mnwz ”£5...s uwfinmouwm Puma Ban— Emad 33...... :ozmuEmma 
mpg—2.5". 3223 “5.9.5.. 



Attachment M M  

October XX, 2020 

The Honorable Alex M. Azar II 
Secretary 
US. Department of Health & Human Services 
200 Independence Avenue, SW. 
Washington, DC. 20201 

Dear Secretary Azar: 

The Provider Relief Fund (PRF) authorized under the CARES Act has helped to provide 
America’s health care providers with the resources needed to deliver essential public services 
during the COVID-19 pandemic. These funds have been deployed to help protect the safety of 
frontline providers and patients, and in many cases, have helped enable providers to keep their 
doors open. 

On September 19, 2020, the Health and Human Services Department (HHS) announced changes 
to the PRF reporting requirements that will force many hospitals and other providers to return 
some of this vital funding and jeopardize patients” access to care while the nation continues to 
battle the COVID-19 pandemic. This represents an about-face from the stipulations that HHS 
outlined months ago, which providers based their planning upon during an already tumultuous 
fiscal environment. HHS should return to PRF reporting requirements established on June 19, 
2020. 

Congress has acted several times this year to add funding for the Public Health and Social 
Services Emergency Fund to reimburse health care providers for COVID-lQ-related health care 
expenses and lost revenues. Eligible providers are required to submit reports and maintain 
documentation to ensure compliance with payment rules. On June 19, HHS released a frequently 
asked question defining lost revenue as any revenue lost due to COVID-19 and said providers 
should “use any reasonable method of estimating the revenue during March and April 2020 
compared to the same period had COVID-19 not appeared.” Providers applied for and budgeted 
the use of PRF funds based on this HHS guidance. However, on September 19, HHS changed 
the definition of lost revenue, placing many struggling providers in an untenable situation. Now, 
funding is only accessible for COVID-19-related expenses and lost revenue up to the amount of 
a provider’s 2019 net patient operating income. This change will dramatically reduce the amount 
of lost revenue providers can claim, create a massive administrative burden, and force many 
struggling providers to return some of their payments. 

This sudden and dramatic shift has created numerous problems for the nation’s hospitals at the 
very same time they continue to be our first line of defense against the COVID-19 pandemic. 
We therefore urge you to reinstate the June 19 requirements so that our frontline providers are 
able to focus their full resources on protecting the health and safety of the communities they 
serve. 



We thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions please contact Kirsten 
Wing of Representative McKinley’s office and Kirsten.Wing§&1,mail.housegfl or Faith Williams of 
Representative Levin’s office at Faith.Williamsgfitmailhouse.gov. 

Sincerely, 

< 5 6 . i  

David B. McKinley P.E. 
Member of Congress 

ago/v.12. 
Roger Marshall, MD. 
Member of Congress 

gm; 
Frank D. Lucas 
Member of Congress 

4 fl 

Mike Thompson 
Member of Congress 

Mike Levin 
Member of Congress 

Tom O’Halleran 
Member of Congress 


	Work Session Agenda 
	Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda - Revised
	Board Work Plan FY2020
	Patient Care Scorecard
	Strategic Plan Scorecard
	Work Session Minutes - 9.22.20
	Board Meeting Minutes - 9.24.20
	Special Board Meeting Minutes 9.29.20
	JCC Minutes 10.21.20
	Finance Committee Agenda 10.28.20
	Finance Committee Minutes 9.23.20
	CEO Memo - October 2020
	Attchachment A - Strategic Planning Doc. FY2021
	Attachment B - Project Visioning
	Attachment C - Employee Forum
	Attachment D- Our Vision 2021-24
	Attachment E - bcdg Agenda Oct.12-14, 2020
	Attachment F - Patient Room Draft
	Attachment G - bcdg Agenda Oct. 26-27, 2020
	Attachment H - DOH-CON Letter
	Attachment I - Project Delivery Method (Example) 
	Attachment I(1) Construction Delivery Method NV5
	Attachment I(2) Capital Project Application (CPARB)
	Attachment J - Letter of Support  WA State Legislature
	Attachment K - Letter of Support PEDA
	Attachment L - Nuclear Med Letter of Intent - DOH
	Attachment M - da Vinci Robot
	Attachment N - da Vinic Cost Assessment
	Attachment O - PMH Epic Performance
	Attachment P - Thank Yous
	Attachment Q - Gift Card Thank You (Pool Party)
	Attachment R - COVID Thank You
	Attachment S - Bryon Dirkes, CV HR Director
	Attachment T - Employee Engagement Survey
	Attachment U - Employee Engagement Survey Model
	Attachment V - 403B Contribution Matrix
	Attachment W - Halloween Festivities
	Attachment X - The PULSE - October
	Attachment Y - LEM 2020 Performance
	Attachment Z - Richard Unger, DO, General Surgery - CV
	Attachment AA - MBS Medical Staff
	Attachment BB - MBS Leadership
	Attachment CC - September Financials
	Attachment DD - PMH Clinic Quarterly Financial Performance
	Attachment EE - Physicians Insurance - Malpractice Costs
	Attachment FF - Cleverly Hosptial Dashboard Report
	Attachment GG - PMH New Hospital Prospectus
	Attachment HH - J. Neilan McPartland Bio  - New Board Member
	Attachment II - COVID Stats
	Attachment JJ - Employee Flu Shots Notice
	Attachment KK -COVID Funding Tracker
	Attachment LL - COVID Financial Plan
	Attachment MM - HHS Letter - Definition Change

